Ventura County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan

Update 2022

Volume 2—Jurisdictional Annexes





June 2022







Ventura County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 2022

June 2022

PREPARED FOR

County of Ventura

800 South Victoria Avenue Ventura, CA 93009

PREPARED BY

Tetra Tech 1999 Harrison St., Suite 500 Oakland, CA 94612 510-302-6300 | tetratech.com

Tetra Tech Project #103s7428

\tts121fs1\Data\EMCR_Projects\California\VenturaCounty\HMP 2021_103s7429\Plan Development\Plan Documents\2022-06_Final\2022-06_VenturaHMP_Vol2_Final.docx

CONTENTS

Introduction	xv
Background	xv
The Planning Partnership	xvi
Annex Development	xvii
1. Ventura County (Unincorporated Area)	1-1
1.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	1-1
1.2 Jurisdiction Profile	1-1
1.3 Current Trends	1-3
1.4 Capability Assessment	1-6
1.5 Integration Review	1-13
1.6 Risk Assessment	1-15
1.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	1-21
1.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	1-22
1.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	1-29
2. City of Camarillo	2-1
2.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	2-1
2.2 Jurisdiction Profile	2-1
2.3 Current Trends	2-2
2.4 Capability Assessment	2-4
2.5 Integration Review	2-10
2.6 Risk Assessment	2-11
2.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	2-14
2.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	2-15
2.9 Public Outreach	2-19
2.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	2-19
3. City of Fillmore	3-1
3.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	3-1
3.2 Jurisdiction Profile	3-1
3.3 Current Trends	3-2
3.4 Capability Assessment	3-2
3.5 Integration Review	3-8
3.6 Risk Assessment	3-9
3.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	3-11
3.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	3-12
3.9 Public Outreach	3-14
3.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	3-14
4. City of Moorpark	4-1
4.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	4-1
4.2 Jurisdiction Profile	4-1

8. City of Santa Paula	8-1
 7.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
7. City of Port Hueneme	7-1
 6.4 Capability Assessment. 6.5 Integration Review 6.6 Risk Assessment 6.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions 6.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan 6.9 Public Outreach 6.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex 6.11 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability 	
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 6.2 Jurisdiction Profile 6.3 Current Trends 6.4 Canability Assessment 	6-1 6-2 6-3
6. City of Oxnard	6-1
 5.6 Risk Assessment	5-9 5-10 5-11 5-13 5-14
 5.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	5-1 5-1 5-2 5-2 5-2
5. City of Ojai	5-1
 4.4 Capability Assessment	4-5 4-10 4-10 4-12 4-13 4-16 4-16
4.3 Current Trends	4-3

8.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	8-1
8.2 Jurisdiction Profile	8-1
8.3 Current Trends	8-2
8.4 Capability Assessment	8-4
8.5 Integration Review	8-10
8.6 Risk Assessment	8-11
8.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	8-12
8.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	8-12
8.9 Public Outreach	8-17
8.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	8-17
9. City of Simi Valley	
9.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	9-1
9.2 Jurisdiction Profile	9-1
9.3 Current Trends	
9.4 Capability Assessment	9-4
9.5 Integration Review	9-10
9.6 Risk Assessment	9-11
9.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	9-15
9.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	9-18
9.9 Public Outreach	9-22
9.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	9-22
10. City of Thousand Oaks	10-1
10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile	10-1 10-1
10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile 10.3 Current Trends	10-1 10-1 10-2
10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile 10.3 Current Trends 10.4 Capability Assessment	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile 10.3 Current Trends 10.4 Capability Assessment 10.5 Integration Review 	10-1 10-1 10-2 10-3 10-10
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	10-1 10-1 10-2 10-3 10-10 10-12
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	10-1 10-1 10-2 10-3 10-10 10-12 10-13
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile 10.3 Current Trends 10.4 Capability Assessment 10.5 Integration Review 10.6 Risk Assessment 10.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions 10.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan 	10-1 10-1 10-2 10-3 10-10 10-12 10-13 10-13
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	10-1
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile 10.3 Current Trends 10.4 Capability Assessment 10.5 Integration Review 10.6 Risk Assessment 10.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions 10.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan 10.9 Public Outreach 10.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex 	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile 10.3 Current Trends 10.4 Capability Assessment 10.5 Integration Review 10.6 Risk Assessment 10.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions 10.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan 10.9 Public Outreach 10.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex 10.11 Additional Comments 	10-1
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile 10.3 Current Trends 10.4 Capability Assessment 10.5 Integration Review 10.6 Risk Assessment 10.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions 10.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan 10.9 Public Outreach 10.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex 10.11 Additional Comments 11. City of Ventura 11.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 11.2 Jurisdiction Profile 11.3 Current Trends	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile 10.3 Current Trends 10.4 Capability Assessment 10.5 Integration Review 10.6 Risk Assessment 10.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions 10.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan 10.9 Public Outreach 10.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex 10.11 Additional Comments 11. City of Ventura 11.2 Jurisdiction Profile 11.3 Current Trends 11.4 Capability Assessment 	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile 10.3 Current Trends 10.4 Capability Assessment 10.5 Integration Review 10.6 Risk Assessment 10.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions 10.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan 10.9 Public Outreach 10.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex 10.11 Additional Comments 11.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 11.2 Jurisdiction Profile 11.3 Current Trends 11.4 Capability Assessment 11.5 Integration Review 11.6 Risk Assessment 11.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions 11.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan 11.9 Public Outreach 	

11.11 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	11-19 11-19
12. California State University. Channel Islands	
 12. California State University, Channel Islands. 12.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	12-1
12.10 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	
13. Calleguas Municipal Water District	13-1
 13.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
14. Casitas Municipal Water District	14-1
 14.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 14.2 Jurisdiction Profile 14.3 Current Trends 14.4 Capability Assessment 14.5 Integration Review 14.6 Risk Assessment 14.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions 14.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan 14.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex 14.10 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability 	
15. Channel Islands Beach Community Services District	15-1
 15.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	

15.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
15.9 Public Outreach	
15.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	15-12
15.11 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	15-12
16. Conejo Recreation & Park District	
16.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
16.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
16.3 Current Trends	
16.4 Capability Assessment	
16.5 Integration Review	
16.6 Risk Assessment	
16.7 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
16.8 Public Outreach	
16.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
16.10 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	16-10
17. Ojai Valley Sanitary District	
17.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	17-1
17.2 Jurisdiction Profile	17-1
17.3 Current Trends	17-2
17.4 Capability Assessment	17-2
17.5 Integration Review	17-5
17.6 Risk Assessment	17-6
17.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	17-7
17.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	17-7
17.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	17-8
18. Pleasant Valley Recreation & Park District	
18.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
18.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
18.3 Current Trends	
18.4 Capability Assessment	
18.5 Integration Review	
18.6 Risk Assessment	
18.7 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
18.8 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
19. Saticoy Sanitary District	
19.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	19-1
19.2 Jurisdiction Profile	19-1
19.3 Current Trends	19-2
19.4 Capability Assessment	19-2
19.5 Integration Review	19-5
19.6 Risk Assessment	19-6
19.7 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	19-8
19.8 Information Sources Used for This Annex	

20. Triunfo Water & Sanitation District	
20.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
20.2 Jurisdiction Profile	20-1
20.3 Current Trends	
20.4 Capability Assessment	
20.5 Integration Review	
20.6 Risk Assessment	
20.7 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
20.8 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
21. United Water Conservation District	
21.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
21.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
21.3 Current Trends	
21.4 Capability Assessment	
21.5 Integration Review	
21.0 Risk Assessment	21-10
21.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	21-11
21.9 Public Outreach	
21.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
21.11 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	
21.12 Additional Comments	21-16
22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
22. Ventura County Fire Protection District 22.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 22.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	22-1
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	
 22. Ventura County Fire Protection District	

24. Ventura County Public Works Agency—Watershed Protection	24-1
24.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	24-1
24.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
24.3 Current Trends	
24.4 Capability Assessment	24-3
24.5 Integration Review	24-17
24.6 Risk Assessment	
24.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
24.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
24.9 Public Outreach	
24.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	24-35
25. Ventura Regional Sanitation District	25-1
25.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	25-1
25.2 Jurisdiction Profile	25-1
25.3 Current Trends	25-2
25.4 Capability Assessment	25-2
25.5 Integration Review	25-5
25.6 Risk Assessment	
25.7 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
25.8 Information Sources Used for This Annex	

Appendices

Appendix A. Planning Partner Expectations Appendix B. Annex Instructions and Templates

ACRONYMS

The following acronyms are used throughout the annexes in this volume:

- AASHTO—American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials
- AB—Assembly Bill
- APCD—air pollution control district
- BEACON—Beach Erosion Authority for Clean Oceans and Nourishment
- BOS—Board of Supervisors
- BRIC—Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities
- CAAP—Climate Action and Adaptation
 Plan
- CAL FIRE—California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection
- Cal OES—California Office of Emergency Services
- CalARP—California Accidental Release
 Prevention Program
- CAMUTCD—California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices
- CDAA—California Disaster Assistance Act
- CDBG—Community Development Block
 Grant
- CDFW—California Department of Fish and Wildlife
- CEQA—California Environmental Quality Act
- CERT—Community Emergency Response Team
- CFR—Code of Federal Regulations
- CIBCSD—Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
- CIP—capital improvement program

- COS—Conservation and Open Space Element
- COSCA—Conejo Open Space Conservancy Agency
- COSP—City of Santa Paula
- CRPD—Conejo Recreation and Park
 District
- CRS—Community Rating System
- CSU—California State University
- CSUCI—California State University, Channel Islands
- CTM—Circulation, Transportation, and Mobility Element
- DAC—disadvantaged community
- DFIRM—digital flood insurance rate map
- DHS—Department of Homeland Security
- DSOD—Division of Safety of Dams
- DUNS—Dun and Bradstreet Number
- DWR—Department of Water Resources
- EAP—emergency action plan
- EIR—Environmental Impact Report
- EMPG—Emergency Management Performance Grant
- EOC—emergency operations center
- EOP—emergency operations plan
- EPA—Environmental Protection Agency
- ERP—emergency response plan
- ESRM—Environmental Science and Resource Management
- FB—finance and budgeting

- FEMA—Federal Emergency Management Agency
- FHRP—fire hazard reduction program
- FIPS—Federal Information Processing System
- FIRM—flood insurance rate map
- FMA—Flood Mitigation Assistance Grant Program
- FMAP—Fire Management Assistance Program
- FWS—flood warning system
- GHG—greenhouse gas
- GIS—geographic information system
- GSA—Ventura County General Services Agency
- HHPD—Rehabilitation of High Hazard Potential Dams
- HMA—Hazard Mitigation Assistance
- HMGP—Hazard Mitigation Grant
 Program
- HMP—hazard mitigation plan
- HPS—City of Santa Paula Hazards and Public Safety Element
- IDF—Inflow Design Flood
- IGC—intergovernmental coordination
- IRWM—Integrated Regional Water Management
- IRWMP—Integrated Regional Water Management Plan
- JP—joint partnership
- LARWQCB—Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board
- LCP—Local Coastal Program
- LLAP—Local Levee Assistance
 Program
- MDERP—Matilija Dam Ecosystem Restoration Project

- MPSP—master plans, strategies, and programs
- MS4—municipal separate storm sewer system
- MWD—municipal water district
- NFIP—National Flood Insurance
 Program
- NFWF—National Fish and Wildlife Foundation
- NGO—non-governmental organization
- NOAA—National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
- NRCS—Natural Resources Conservation Service
- NWS—National Weather Service
- OBRAP—Ormond Beach Restoration and Access Plan
- OCC—Oxnard City Code
- OES—office of emergency services
- OMC—Ojai Municipal Code
- OVLC—Ojai Valley Land Conservancy
- OVSD—Ojai Valley Sanitary District
- PDM—Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant
 Program
- PFS—Public Facilities, Services, and Infrastructure
- PMF—probable maximum flood
- POC—point of contact
- PSPS—public safety power shutoff
- PSR—planning, studies and reports
- PTP—Pumping Trough Pipeline
- PVRPD—Pleasant Valley Recreation & Park District
- RDR—regulation and development review
- RHNA—Regional Housing Needs
 Allocation

- SB—Senate Bill
- SCADA—supervisory control and data acquisition
- SCAG—Southern California Association of Governments
- SCC—California State Coastal Conservancy
- SCRC—Santa Clara River Conservancy
- SFD—Santa Felicia Dam
- SFHA—special flood hazard area
- SGMA—Sustainable Groundwater Management Act
- SLR—sea-level rise
- SMP—Salinity Management Pipeline
- SO—services and operations
- SVMC—Simi Valley Municipal Code
- SVOES—Simi Valley Office of Emergency Services
- SVPD—Simi Valley Police Department
- SWRCB—California State Water Resources Control Board
- THIRA—Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment
- TNC—The Nature Conservancy
- TOMC—Thousand Oaks Municipal Code
- USACE—U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
- USBR—U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
- USDA—U.S. Department of Agriculture
- UWCD—United Water Conservation
 District
- UWMP—urban water management plan
- VCFPD—Ventura County Fire Protection District
- VCOE—Ventura County Office of Education

- VCPWA-RT—Ventura County Public Works Agency—Roads and Transportation Department
- VCPWA-WP—Ventura County Public Works Agency—Watershed Protection
- VCSOES—Ventura County Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services
- VCSSFA—Ventura County Schools Self-Funding Authority
- VCTC—Ventura County Transportation Commission
- VMT-vehicle miles traveled
- VOAD—Voluntary Organizations Active in Disaster
- VRSD—Ventura Regional Sanitation
 District
- WCB—Wildlife Conservation Board
- WCVC—Watershed Coalition of Ventura County
- WEA—Wireless Emergency Alerts
- WSD—Water and Sanitation District

INTRODUCTION

BACKGROUND

Ventura County's hazard mitigation plan was developed and adopted in 2005 as a multi-jurisdictional process. Subsequent updates conducted in both 2010 and 2015 were also multi-jurisdictional efforts. Multi-jurisdictional hazard mitigation planning can be an effective process to build partnerships between communities that face common hazard risks, leading to shared solutions. It can also help build a foundation to shift priorities as risks and vulnerabilities change. Multi-jurisdictional planning processes are encouraged by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), and offer the following advantages:

- Improves communication and coordination among jurisdictions and other regional entities
- Enables comprehensive mitigation approaches to reduce risks that affect multiple jurisdictions
- Maximizes economies of scale by leveraging individual capabilities and sharing costs and resources
- Avoids duplication of efforts, and Provides an organizational structure that local jurisdictions may find supportive.

For the *Ventura County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan* 2022 update, a planning partnership was formed that expanded the partnership established during the 2015 hazard mitigation plan update, leveraging resources and meeting requirements of the federal Disaster Mitigation Act for as many eligible local governments as possible. The Disaster Mitigation Act defines a local government as follows:

"Any county, municipality, city, town, township, public authority, school district, special district, intrastate district, council of governments (regardless of whether the council of governments is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under State law), regional or interstate government entity, or agency or instrumentality of a local government; any Indian tribe or authorized tribal organization, or Alaska Native village or organization; and any rural community, unincorporated town or village, or other public entity."

In addition to the County, the jurisdictions participating in the *Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan* 2022 update include:

- 10 incorporated municipalities
- 14 special districts

All participating jurisdictions in a multi-jurisdictional plan must meet the requirements of Chapter 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations (44 CFR):

"Multi-jurisdictional plans (e.g., watershed plans) may be accepted, as appropriate, as long as each jurisdiction has participated in the process and has officially adopted the plan." (Section 201.6(a)(4)).

Each participating planning partner prepared a jurisdiction-specific annex to this plan. These annexes, as well as information on the process by which they were created, are contained in this volume.

THE PLANNING PARTNERSHIP

Initial Solicitation and Letters of Commitment

A planning team made up of Ventura County staff solicited the participation of eligible municipalities and special districts in June 2019, at the outset of this update effort. Emails were sent to the applicable points of contact for the 18 members of the 2015 plan and to additional interested parties. Local governments wishing to join the planning effort were asked to provide the California Office of Emergency Services and County with a "letter of commitment" as a participating jurisdiction in the County's plan update process. In all, the planning team received formal commitment from 24 planning partners in addition to the County.

Municipalities/County

- Ventura County
- City of Camarillo
- City of Fillmore
- City of Moorpark
- City of Ojai
- City of Oxnard
- City of Port Hueneme
- City of Santa Paula
- City of Simi Valley
- City of Thousand Oaks
- City of Ventura

Special-Purpose Districts

- California State University, Channel Islands
- Calleguas Municipal Water District
- Casitas Municipal Water District
- Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
- Conejo Recreation & Park District
- Ojai Valley Sanitary District
- Pleasant Valley Recreation & Park District
- Saticoy Sanitary District
- Triunfo Water & Sanitation District
- United Water Conservation District
- Ventura County Fire Protection District
- Ventura County Office of Education
- Ventura County Public Works Agency—Watershed Protection
- Ventura Regional Sanitation District

A map showing the location of participating special-purpose districts is provided at the end of this introduction. Risk assessment maps for all planning areas (countywide) are provided in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan while maps showing the risk assessment results for each of the participating municipalities are provided in the individual annexes for each city.

Planning Partner Expectations

The planning team and consultant, Tetra Tech, developed the following list of planning partner expectations, which were provided and discussed at a formal kickoff meeting held in May 2021 (see Appendix A for details):

- Re-confirm lead and primary points of contact for the update effort.
- Support and participate in the Steering Committee meetings.
- Provide support required to implement the public involvement strategy.
- Participate in the planning process through:
 - Steering Committee meetings
 - Public meetings and outreach efforts
 - > Workshops and planning partner-specific training sessions
 - > Public review and comment periods prior to adoption.
- Perform a "consistency review" of all technical studies, plans and ordinances specific to hazards.
- Review the risk assessment and identify hazards and vulnerabilities specific to the jurisdiction.
- Attend the mandatory Phase 3 jurisdictional annex workshop.
- Review and determine if the mitigation recommendations chosen in Volume 1 will meet the needs of the jurisdiction.
- Create an action plan that identifies each project, who will oversee the task, how it will be financed, and when it is estimated to occur.
- Formally adopt the hazard mitigation plan.

By adopting the hazard mitigation plan, each planning partner also agrees to the plan implementation and maintenance protocol established in Volume 1. Failure to meet these criteria would result in a partner being dropped from the partnership by the Steering Committee, and thus losing eligibility under the scope of the plan. All planning partners met the planning partner expectations, including attendance at mandatory workshops.

Final Coverage

All of the above jurisdictions submitted letters of commitment to participate, completed an annex template, fully met the participation requirements for this update, and will be covered by the updated hazard mitigation plan upon FEMA's approval of the plan and adoption of the plan by their individual governing bodies.

ANNEX DEVELOPMENT

Capability Assessment

A capability assessment creates an inventory of a jurisdiction's mission, programs, and policies, and evaluates its capacity to carry them out. All participating jurisdictions compiled a capability assessment which helped to identify potential gaps in the jurisdictions' capabilities. Specifically, if the capability

assessment identified an opportunity to add a missing core capability or expand an existing one, then doing so has been selected as an action in the jurisdiction's action plan. The sections below describe specific capabilities evaluated under the assessment.

Planning and Regulatory Capabilities

Jurisdictions can develop policies and programs and implement rules and regulations to protect and serve residents. Local policies are typically identified in planning documents, implemented via a local ordinance, and enforced by a governmental body. Because the planning and regulatory authority of counties and municipalities is generally broader than that of special-purpose districts, the assessment of these capabilities is more detailed for those partners.

Development and Permitting Capability

The County and its municipalities regulate land use through the adoption and enforcement of zoning, subdivision, and land development ordinances, building codes, building permit ordinances, floodplain, and stormwater management ordinances. When effectively prepared and administered, these regulations can mitigate hazards. As special-purpose districts typically do not have the ability to regulate land use, this capability was assessed only for the County and municipalities.

Fiscal Capability

Assessing a jurisdiction's fiscal capability provides an understanding of the ability to fulfill the financial needs associated with hazard mitigation projects. This assessment identifies both outside resources, such as grant-funding eligibility, and local jurisdictional authority to generate internal financial capability, such as through impact fees (fees charged to a development project).

Administrative and Technical Capability

Without appropriate personnel, the mitigation strategy may not be implemented. Administrative and technical capabilities focus on the availability of personnel resources responsible for implementing all the facets of hazard mitigation. These resources include technical experts, such as engineers, scientists, and grant writers.

Education and Outreach Capability

Regular engagement with the public on hazard mitigation provides opportunities to open a two-way dialogue that can result in a more resilient community. Use of a jurisdictional website, social media outlets, and other outreach resources to communicate mitigation information are assessed for each planning partner. Assessing outreach and education capability illustrates the connection between the government and community members.

Compliance with National Flood Insurance Program Requirements

Flooding is the costliest natural hazard in the United States and homeowners face increasingly high flood insurance premiums. Community participation in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) opens up opportunities for additional grant funding associated specifically with flooding issues. Assessment of a jurisdiction's current NFIP status and compliance provides a greater understanding of

the local flood management program, opportunities for improvement, and available grant funding opportunities. The NFIP is not available to special-purpose districts, so this set of capabilities was assessed only for municipalities and the County.

Participation in Voluntary Programs

Participation in voluntary programs, such as FEMA's Community Rating System (CRS), the National Weather Service's StormReady and TsunamiReady programs, and the National Fire Protection Association's Firewise USA, can enhance a jurisdiction's ability to mitigate, prepare for, and respond to natural hazards. These programs complement each other by focusing on communication, mitigation, and community preparedness to save lives and minimize the impact of natural hazards on a community. Participation in these programs demonstrates a jurisdiction's commitment to go beyond the minimum requirements set forth by local, state, and federal regulations in order to create a more resilient community. The programs reviewed here are only applicable to municipalities and the County, so were not included in the capability assessments for the special-purpose districts.

Adaptive Capacity

An adaptive capacity assessment evaluates a jurisdiction's ability to anticipate impacts that may occur in the future. By looking at public support, technical adaptive capacity, and other factors, jurisdictions can identify their core capability for resilience against issues such as sea level rise and climate change. The assessment provides jurisdictions with an opportunity to identify areas for improvement by ranking their adaptive capacity as high, medium, or low.

Mitigation Action Plan Development

Risk Ranking

The risk-ranking methodology for partner annexes was the same as that used for the countywide risk ranking described in Volume 1. Each planning partner was asked to review the ranked risk for its jurisdiction, based on the impact on its population and/or facilities. Municipalities and the County based this ranking on the probability of occurrence of each hazard, and its potential impact on people, property, and the economy. Special-purpose districts based this ranking on probability of occurrence and the potential impact on their constituency, vital facilities, and the facilities' functionality after a hazard event.

The objectives of this exercise were to familiarize the planning partnership with how to use the risk ranking, part of the assessment results, as a tool to support other planning and hazard mitigation processes and to help prioritize types of mitigation actions that should be considered. Hazards that were ranked as "high" and "medium" for each jurisdiction were considered to be priorities for identifying mitigation actions, although jurisdictions also identified actions to mitigate hazards ranked "low", as appropriate.

Information Reviewed to Develop the Action Plan

In September 2021, each planning partner was provided with a tool kit of relevant documents to assist in developing their jurisdiction's action plan and was required to attend a workshop that provided

guidance to develop their action plans. The tool kits were used during the mandatory Phase 3 workshops and in follow-up work conducted by the planning partners. Planning partners reviewed the following information included in the tool kit to assist in the identification of proposed mitigation actions:

- **Capability assessment**—Reviewed to identify capabilities that the jurisdiction does not currently have but should consider pursuing, or capabilities that should be revisited and updated to include best available information; also reviewed to determine how existing capabilities can be leveraged to increase or improve hazard mitigation in the jurisdiction.
- **National Flood Insurance Program compliance table**—Reviewed to identify opportunities to increase floodplain management capabilities.
- Adaptive capacity—Reviewed to identify ways to leverage or continue to improve existing capacities and to improve understanding of other capacities.
- **Future integration opportunities**—Reviewed to identify specific integration actions to be included in the mitigation strategy.
- Jurisdiction-specific vulnerabilities—Reviewed to identify actions that could reduce known vulnerabilities.
- **Mitigation best practices catalog**—Reviewed to identify actions that the jurisdiction should consider including in its action plan.
- Public input—Reviewed to identify potential actions and community priorities.

Action Plan Prioritization

The mitigation actions recommended in each jurisdiction's action plan were prioritized based on the following factors:

- Cost and availability of funding
- Benefit, based on likely risk reduction to be achieved
- Number of plan objectives achieved
- Timeframe for project implementation
- Eligibility for grant funding programs

Two priorities were assigned for each action:

- A high, medium, or low priority for implementing the action
- A high, medium, or low priority for pursuing grant funding for the action.

The sections below describe the benefit-cost analysis and the assignment of the two priority ratings.

Benefit/Cost Review

Pursuant to 44 CFR, Section 201.6(c)(3)(iii), the action plan must be prioritized according to a benefitcost analysis (BCA) of the proposed actions. BCA is a method that determines the future risk reduction benefits of a hazard mitigation project and compares those benefits to its costs. For this hazard mitigation plan, a qualitative review was performed for each mitigation action by assigning ratings for benefit and cost as follows:

- Cost:
 - High—Existing funding will not cover the cost of the action; implementation would require new revenue through an alternative source (for example, bonds, grants, and fee increases).
 - Medium—The action could be implemented with existing funding but would require a reapportionment of the budget or a budget amendment, or the cost of the action would have to be spread over multiple years.
 - Low—The action could be funded under the existing budget. The action is part of, or can be part of, an ongoing, existing program.
- Benefit:
 - > **High**—Action will provide an immediate reduction of risk exposure for life and property.
 - Medium—Action will have a long-term impact on the reduction of risk exposure for life and property, or action will provide an immediate reduction in the risk exposure for property.
 - **Low**—Long-term benefits of the action are difficult to quantify in the short term.

To assign priorities, each action with a benefit rating equal to or higher than its cost rating (such as high benefit/medium cost, medium benefit/medium cost, medium benefit/low cost, etc.) was considered to be cost-beneficial. It is important to note that this qualitative review is not intended to substitute for the more detailed level of benefit-cost analysis required for some FEMA hazard-related grant programs. More specific analysis would be performed at the time a given action is submitted for grant funding approval.

Implementation Priority

Implementation priority ratings were assigned as follows:

- **High Priority**—An action that meets multiple objectives, has benefits that exceed costs, and has a secured source of funding. Action can be completed in the short term (1 to 5 years).
- **Medium Priority**—An action that meets multiple objectives, has benefits that exceed costs, and is eligible for funding though no funding has yet been secured for it. Action can be completed in the short term (1 to 5 years) once funding is secured. Medium-priority actions become high-priority actions once funding is secured.
- Low Priority—An action that will mitigate the risk of a hazard, but has benefits that do not exceed the costs or are difficult to quantify, has no secured source of funding, and is not eligible for any known grant funding. Action can be completed in the long term (1 to 10 years). Low-priority actions may be eligible for grant funding from programs that have not yet been identified.

Grant Pursuit Priority

Grant pursuit priority ratings were assigned as follows:

- **High Priority**—An action that meets identified grant eligibility requirements, has high benefits, and is listed as high or medium implementation priority; local funding options are unavailable or available local funds could be used instead for actions that are not eligible for grant funding.
- **Medium Priority**—An action that meets identified grant eligibility requirements, has medium or low benefits, and is listed as medium or low implementation priority; local funding options are unavailable.

• Low Priority—An action that has not been identified as meeting any grant eligibility requirements.

Classification of Actions

Each recommended action was also classified based on the hazard it addresses and the type of mitigation it involves. Mitigation types used for this classification are as follows:

- **Prevention**—Government, administrative or regulatory actions that influence the way land and buildings are developed to reduce hazard losses. Includes planning and zoning, floodplain laws, capital improvement programs, open space preservation, and stormwater management regulations.
- **Property Protection**—Modification of buildings or structures to protect them from a hazard or removal of structures from a hazard area. Includes acquisition, elevation, relocation, structural retrofit, storm shutters, and shatter-resistant glass.
- **Public Education and Awareness**—Actions to inform residents and elected officials about hazards and ways to mitigate them. Includes outreach projects, real estate disclosure, hazard information centers, and school-age and adult education.
- **Natural Resource Protection**—Actions that minimize hazard loss and preserve or restore the functions of natural systems. Includes sediment and erosion control, stream corridor restoration, watershed management, forest and vegetation management, wetland restoration and preservation, and green infrastructure.
- **Emergency Services**—Actions that protect people and property during and immediately after a hazard event. Includes warning systems, emergency response services, and the protection of essential facilities.
- **Structural Projects**—Actions that involve the construction of structures to reduce the impact of a hazard. Includes dams, setback levees, floodwalls, retaining walls, and safe rooms.
- **Climate Resiliency**—Actions that incorporate methods to mitigate and/or adapt to the impacts of climate change. Includes aquifer storage and recovery activities, incorporating future conditions projections in project design or planning, or actions that specifically address jurisdiction-specific climate change risks, such as sea-level rise or urban heat island effects.
- **Community Capacity Building**—Actions that increase or enhance local capabilities to adjust to potential damage, to take advantage of opportunities to build capacity, or to respond to consequences of insufficient capacity. Includes staff training, memorandums of understanding, development of plans and studies, and monitoring programs.

Annex-Preparation Process

Templates

Templates were created for the two types of jurisdictions (municipalities and special districts) participating in this plan to help the planning partners prepare their jurisdiction-specific annexes. The templates were designed so that all criteria of Section 201.6 of 44 CFR for local governments would be met based on the partners' capabilities and mode of operation. The templates were deployed in three phases during the course of the plan update process as follows:

- Phase 1—Profile, Trends, Previous Plan Status
 - Deployed: May 10, 2021
 - Due: June 21, 2021
- Phase 2—Capability Assessment and Information Sources
 - Deployed: July 6, 2021
 - Due: August 20, 2021
- Phase 3—Risk Ranking, Action Plan, and Information Sources
 - > Deployed: September 9, 2021
 - Workshops: September 22-23, 2021
 - Due: October 25, 2021

The templates were designed to lead all partners through the necessary steps to generate the Disaster Mitigation Act-required elements specific to their jurisdictions. The templates and their instructions are included in Appendix B of this volume.

Tool Kit

Each planning partner was provided with a tool kit to assist in completing the annex template and developing their jurisdiction's action plan. The tool kits contained the following:

- A copy of the 2015 Ventura County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan
- The vision statement, goals and objectives developed for the plan update
- Information on past hazard events that have impacted the planning area
- The risk assessment results developed for the plan update
- A list of jurisdiction-specific issues noted during the risk assessment
- Information on climate change and expected impacts in the planning area
- Jurisdiction-specific annex templates, with instructions for completing them
- A catalog of mitigation best practices and suggested actions to enhance adaptive capacity
- Information on the FEMA Hazard Mitigation Assistance grant program
- FEMA guidance on plan integration
- AB 2140 compliance guidance
- The results of the public survey on community awareness of hazards conducted as part of the public involvement strategy
- The public service announcement (PSA) hazard mitigation video produced by the Ventura County Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services and the Ventura County Public Works Agency.

<u>Workshop</u>

All partners were required to attend and participate in a virtual technical assistance workshop held the week of September 20, 2021, where key elements of the annex template were discussed. The workshops focused on how the tool kit could be used to facilitate completion of the template and develop each jurisdiction's mitigation action plan. The templates were subsequently completed by a designated point of contact for each partner and a member of the planning team. The workshop addressed the following topics:

- The jurisdictional annex templates and the tool kit
- Natural events history
- Jurisdiction-specific issues
- Risk ranking
- Status of prior actions
- Developing the action plan
- Benefit-cost review
- Prioritization protocol
- Next steps

Following conclusion of the workshop, a copy of the presentation given at the workshop session was added to the tool kit provided to each of the planning partners.



Special Purpose Districts (1 of 2)



Ojai Valley Sanitary District

Saticoy Sanitary District

Ventura Regional Sanitation District

Casitas Municipal Water District

Calleguas Municipal Water District

County Boundary



Data Sources: Ventura Co., Esri

Triunfo Water & Sanitation District



Ventura County Fire Protection District

California State University - Channel Islands provide services countywide.

1. VENTURA COUNTY (UNINCORPORATED AREA)

1.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Bonnie Luke, Senior Program Administrator 800 South Victoria Avenue Ventura, CA 93009 Telephone: 805-765-7007 e-mail Address: BonnieK.Luke@ventura.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Kathy Gibson, Program Administrator II 800 South Victoria Avenue Ventura, CA 93009 Telephone: 805-765-0326 e-mail Address: Kathy.Gibson@ventura.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 1-1.

Table 1-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members		
Name	Title	
Patrick Maynard	Director of Emergency Services, Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services	
Bonnie Luke	Senior Program Administrator, Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services	
Kathy Gibson	Program Administrator II, Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services	
Gerard Kapuscik	Manager, Strategic Resiliency Group, Ventura County Public Works Agency-Watershed Protection	
Glenn Shephard	Director, Ventura County Public Works Agency-Watershed Protection	
Ashley Bautista	Public Information Officer, County Executive Office	
Jackie Nuñez	Assistant Public Information Officer, County Executive Office	
Aaron Engstrom	Long Range Planning Manager, Ventura County Planning Division	
Dave Ward	Director, Ventura County Planning Division	
Matt Wyatt	District Manager West County Office, Ventura County Building & Safety Division	
Clay Downing	Program Administrator, Sustainability Division, County Executive Office	
Mark Lorenzen	Fire Chief, Ventura County Fire Protection District	
Jeff Shea	Division Chief, Ventura County Fire Protection District	
Debbie Conner	Management Assistant, Ventura County Fire Protection District	

1.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

1.2.1 Location and Features

Ventura County is located on southern California's Pacific coast, approximately 60 miles northwest of Los Angeles. The County is bordered to the north by Kern County; to the northwest and southwest by

Santa Barbara County and the Pacific Ocean, respectively; and to the east and southeast by Los Angeles County.

Ventura County stretches across 2,208 square miles, of which 1,845 square miles is land and 363 square miles is water. The northern half of the county, comprising approximately 53 percent of the county's total area is located within the Los Padres National Forest, and is mostly uninhabited. Two offshore islands, Anacapa and San Nicolas, are also included within the jurisdictional boundary for Ventura County. Anacapa Island is located approximately 11 miles offshore and is one of five islands that make up Channel Islands National Park. San Nicolas Island is located approximately 61 miles offshore and is operated by the United States Navy as a weapons testing and training facility. For the purposes of statistical analyses, the county is divided into 15 distinct planning areas. Within the County there are 10 cities and 18 unincorporated communities that are recognized census designated places (CDPs).

1.2.2 History

Ventura County was historically inhabited by the Chumash people, who also settled throughout much of Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo Counties. The Chumash were originally hunters and gatherers, fisherman, traders, and are known for their rock paintings and basketry.

Spanish explorers began arriving in the area in the mid-1500s, although active occupation did not effectively occur until more than 200 years later. The Spanish encouraged settlement of the area with large land grants called ranchos, while the Catholic church established the Mission San Buenaventura in 1782 in what is now the City of Ventura.

On January 1, 1873, just 23 years after California's statehood was attained in 1850, Ventura County was formally established. At this time, however, the area remained largely rural, consisting of a population of less than 5,000 individuals that engaged predominately in ranching and the cultivation of grain crops.

During the early 1900s, increased demand from new markets in the burgeoning Los Angeles area led to a significant expansion and diversification of agriculture in Ventura. Together with the discovery of vast oil reserves in the area, this resulted in an influx of immigrants, wealth, and substantial improvements to transportation infrastructure in the region.

A second, intense population boom (>5% annually) occurred beginning in the 1940s with the construction of Port Hueneme and the establishment of a military base at Point Mugu which brought numerous professionals and ancillary industries to the region. Ventura County, and the Oxnard area in particular, benefitted from the hiring of more than 10,000 civilian workers and 21,000 military personnel, thus providing jobs for local residents and reviving the economy following the Depression of the 1930s. By 1950, the population of the county had increased to over 114,000 individuals, more than double its population in 1930.

The population continued to grow rapidly through the 1970s, assisted further by the completion of highway 101 in the mid-1964, which helped make the commute to Los Angeles easier. Although much of this growth was centered in incorporated communities, development also expanded in the unincorporated areas, particularly on the east side of the County.

1.2.3 Governing Body Format

Ventura County is administered by five elected supervisors who each serve four-year terms. The supervisors appoint department administrators who manage county functions.

The Board of Supervisors assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; Ventura County Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services will oversee its implementation.

1.3 CURRENT TRENDS

1.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, as of January 2020 the unincorporated areas of the County had a population of 95,001. This represents a negligible increase from the 2010 census data (94,937 individuals).

Table 1-2 lists unincorporated communities in Ventura County that are recognized by the United States Census Bureau as census-designated places for the 2020 census:

Table 1-2. Ventura County Unincorporated Communities						
Census Designated Place	Population 2020	Population 2010	Population Change Since 2010			
Bell Canyon	1,946	2,049	-103			
Casa Conejo	3,267	3,249	+18			
Channel Islands Beach (e.g. Hollywood Beach and Silver Strand)	2,870	3,103	-233			
El Rio	7,037	7,198	-161			
Lake Sherwood	1,759	1,527	+180			
Meiners Oaks	3,911	3,571	+340			
Mira Monte	6,618	6,854	-227			
Oak Park	13,898	13,811	+87			
Oak View	6,215	4,066	+2,149			
Piru	2,587	2,063	+524			
Santa Rosa Valley	3,312	3,334	-22			
Santa Susana	1,160	1,037	+123			
Saticoy	1,133	1,029	+104			

Source: United States Census Bureau. <u>https://www.census.gov/</u>.

The bulk of the population within the unincorporated county area is concentrated within four of these communities. Approximately 17,000 people reside in the adjoining communities of Oak View, Meiners Oaks and Mira Monte on the west end of the county. Meanwhile, nearly 14,000 people reside in the community of Oak Park on the east end of the county.

1.3.2 Development

Unincorporated Ventura County is a slow-growth, mostly rural land use jurisdiction with policies and initiatives that seek to focus growth and development in more urbanized areas. Developed areas include about 18 existing census-designated places listed in the previous section, most of which are

governed by one of nine specific area plans. For the period between 2016-2020, single-family residences made up approximately half of the development activity in the unincorporated areas, while accessory dwelling units comprised an additional 35 percent of the development activity. Agricultural worker housing projects represented approximately 1 percent of development activity, while other multi-family projects and subdivisions were uncommon, representing less than 7 percent of the development in the unincorporated areas. Permits for commercial development constituted 9 percent of the development activity. For a more detailed description of development trends, see the 2020 Annual Progress Report available here:

https://vcrma.org/docs/images/pdf/planning/plans/2020_Ventura_County_Annual_Progress_Report.pdf

Table 1-3 summarizes development trends in the unincorporated County in the period since the preparation of the previous (2015) Hazard Mitigation Plan update, as well as expected future development trends.

Tab	Table 1-3. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends		
Criterion	Response		
 Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan? If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or structures. 	No		
 Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan? If yes, describe land areas and dominant uses. If yes, who currently has permitting authority over these areas? 	No		
Provide the number of new construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	Permitting activity in 2020 was concentrated in the areas around Piru, Oak View, and Meiners Oaks. In particular, within the Piru area, the buildout of the Piru Gateway development (Tract Map 5553, recorded in 2017) has been under construction for the past several years. This development consists of 53 single-family homes, 4 duplex units, and 10 triplex units, for a total of 91 new residential units. Conversely, in the Oak View and Meiners Oaks areas, most new development consisted of legalization of existing, unpermitted accessory units, and construction of new accessory dwelling units. Much of this development is being driven by state-level regulation changes that went into effect on January 1, 2020 which limit local agency authority to regulate accessory dwelling units. Much of the development is located in high fire hazard severity zones, including Piru, the Oak View and Meiners Oaks areas near Ojai, the hills north of Camarillo, and southeast of Simi Valley in Bell Canyon. A small number of single-family permits have also been issued in coastal areas that are primarily for redevelopment of existing structures. Most of these coastal structures are vulnerable to tsunami and other coastal hazards. For a more detailed description of development trends, see the 2020 Annual Progress Report available here: https://vcrma.org/docs/images/pdf/planning/plans/2020_Ventura_County_Annual_Progress_Report.		

Criterion	Response						
Are any areas targeted for	Yes						
development or major							
redevelopment in the next five							
If yes briefly describe	In Educing 2021, the County approved a 240 unit formworker boucing project parts of the						
including whether any of the	Camarillo called "Somis Ranch" which will be construct	ted in thre	e nhase	s over the	next few	vears	
areas are in known hazard	Five hundred, ninety-eight additional units are also plar	ned to be	constru	tod over	the nevt f		
risk areas	vears as part of the continued development (Phase II) of	of the Uni	versitv G	lenn area	located a	diacent	
	to California State University Channel Islands. This master-planned, mixed-use residential						
	community is proposed to be located on 32 acres south	of the C	ity of Can	narillo, alc	ong the w	estern	
	edge of the Santa Monica Mountains, within a high-fire	hazard a	rea. Addi	tional hou	sing is als	SO Huvo	
	Anticipated to be constructed south of Camarillo as part Housing (50 units) on Lowis Road			erra Senio	i Suppor	live	
	Finally, there are a total of 224 dwelling units anticipate	d to be c	onstructo	d adiacon	t to Hww	126 in	
	the Piru Expansion Area as part of the development of	two recor	ded tract	maps: the	e Reider	120 111	
	subdivision, comprising 49 townhomes, and the Finch s	subdivisio	n, compr	ising 175	new dwel	ling	
	units. The Piru Expansion area is partially located within	n FEMA's	s A99 floo	d zone.			
	In addition to the new housing outlined above, there are a number of redevelopment projects related						
	to fire rebuilds. Between 2017 and 2018, 337 residentia	al dwelling	J UNITS WE	ere destro	yed by the	e bich	
	were located within Ventura County As of 2020 rebuild	lina effort	ts have in	cluded is	suance of	122	
	Planning Permits, 87 Building Permits, and the rebuild	of 40 resi	dential ur	nits. Many	of these	units	
	were located in high-fire hazard areas.			5			
	Efforts by the County Planning Division are ongoing to	implemer	nt program	ns outline	d for the		
	disadvantaged communities within the El Rio/ Del Norte	e Area Pla	an and Sa	aticoy Are	a Plan the	at would	
	accommodate additional development in these areas through roadway, sewer, and water						
	The County also continues to improve regulatory nathways that support the development of						
	additional affordable housing and agricultural worker ho	ousing thr	oughout	the Count	y via an ι	update to	
	the General Plan Housing Element, as well as zoning a	mendme	nts for ag	ricultural	worker ho	housing	
	regulations and accessory dwelling units.						
How many permits for new		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	
iurisdiction since the preparation	Single Family	40	46	46	65	4/	
of the previous hazard mitigation	Multi-Family	0	0	14	3	21	
plan?	Other (mobile homes, accessory dwellings, mixed	23	35	52	40	50	
	use, etc.)	11	4	14	0	7	
	Commercial	74	4	14	9	105	
Describe the level of buildent in	Total	/4	CO	120	/ - f h - th	C21	
bescribe the level of buildout in	The 2040 Ventura County General Plan Background Re	eport incli The unin	uded an i	nventory (ad resider	of both re	SIDENTIAL	
jurisdiction's buildable lands	potential was estimated to be 1.361 units (Section 3.7. Table 3-19). The residential development						
inventory. If no such inventory	potential accounted for parcels on vacant and underutilized land, as well as other constraints such						
exists, provide a qualitative	as steep slopes and floodways. If second dwellings, farmworker housing, Channel Islands University						
description.	housing, and vacant OS, AE, and RA zone parcels with single-family potential are included, the						
	remaining residential development potential is 28,228 units (Section 3.7, Table 3-22).						
	The County of Ventura's General Plan Annual Report d	etails tha	t Unincor	porated V	entura C	ounty's	
	Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) for the period from 2014 to 2021 was 1,015 units. As of						
	2019 the County has authorized permits for 590 of the 1,015 RHNA units (Exhibit 1, page 7). The						
	for the period of 2021-2029 which is 1,262 units (Section 3.2, Table 3-1).						

1.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 1-4.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 1-5. •
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 1-6. •
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 1-7. •
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 1-8. •
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 1-9. .
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 1-10.
- The community's adaptive capacity for responding to the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 1-11.

I able 1-4. Planning and Regulatory Capability					
	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?	
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements					
Building Code	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: 2019 Ventura County Building Code, Ord. #4548					
Zoning Code	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Non-Coastal Zoning Ordinance, last amended 4/13/21 Coastal Zoning Ordinance, last certification 6/11/21	1				
Subdivisions	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Ventura County Subdivision Ordinance, last amended 6/16/20					
Stormwater Management	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Ventura County Ordinance Code Relating to Stormwa last amended 7/17/12	ter Quality Mana	gement for Unincorpor	ated Areas, Ord	<i>dinance #4450,</i>	

able 1-4. Planning and Re	equilatory Capability
---------------------------	-----------------------

		Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Post-Disaster Recovery		Yes	Yes	No	Yes
Comment: See <u>https://www.venturacountyrecovers.org/</u> (click on "Hill and Woolsey Fires" in upper right) Board of Supervisors Ordinance No. 4515, Approved 12/26/17: An Emergency Ordinance establishing local standards and procedures for cleanup of debris generated by the Thomas Fire. Board of Supervisors Resolution No. 17-148, Approved 12/26/17: Resolution waiving certain Planning, Building and Safety, and Environmental Health Division fees related to Temporary Dwellings during rebuilding of residential structures damaged or destroyed in the Thomas Fire. Board of Supervisors Ordinance No. 4532, Approved 10/30/18: Ordinance amending Division 8, Chapter 1, Article 5, Sections 8105-1.1, 8105-4 and 8105-5, Article 6, section 8106-5.12, article 7, Sections 8107-14.2 and 8107-14.3, and Article 13, Section 8113-6.1.1 of the Ventura County Ordinance code, Non-Coastal Zoning Ordinance pertaining to the permitted uses matrix, temporary dwelling during construction and reconstruction, and destruction of non-conforming structures and structures containing nonconforming uses.					
Real Estate	Disclosure	No	No	No	No
Comment:	None currently				
Growth Mar	nagement	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment:	Measure C, Save Open Space and Agricultural Resou	irces Extension t	to year 2050, 11/3/16		
Site Plan Re	eview	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment:	Non-Coastal Zoning Ordinance, last amended 4/13/21 Coastal Zoning Ordinance, last certification 6/11/21 2019 Ventura County Building Code, Ord. #4548				
Environmer	ntal Protection	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	Initial Study Assessment Guidelines, last amended 4/2	26/11			
Flood Dama	age Prevention	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	Ventura County Floodplain Management Ordinance, O	Ordinance. #452	1, Enacted 3/27/18		
Emergency Management		Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Code of Ordinances, Div 5 (Safety), Section 3 (Public Emergency) (5300) https://library.municode.com/ca/ventura_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=DIV5SA_CH3PUEM Created the Emergency Planning Council					
Climate Cha	ange	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: 2040 General Plan, Climate Action Plan in Appendix B, September 15, 2020 General Services Agency, Energy Action Plan, April 2010 Climate Protection Plan for Government Operations, April 2012 Saticoy Area Plan, Mobility Element Coastal Zoning Ordinance, Section 8178-8—Water Efficient Landscaping Requirements (2018) Non-Coastal Zoning Ordinance, Section 8107-25 (last amended 2008) and Coastal Zoning Ordinance, Section 8178-7 Tree Protection Regulations (last amended 2018) and Tree Protection Guidelines Non-Coastal Zoning Ordinance, Section 8106-8.2—General Landscaping and Water Conservation Requirements (last amended 2021), which requires compliance with the State's Model Water Efficient Landscaping Ordinance.					
Planning Do	ocuments				
General Pla	n	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Is the Coun Comment:	ty's General Plan compliant with Assembly Bill 214 2040 General Plan, Appendix B, September 15, 2020.	0? a			
Capital Imp How often i	rovement Plan s the plan updated? Annually	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment:	Capital Improvement Plan Project Sheet Submittals ar	re revised and up	odated annually in supp	port of a rolling s	5-year planning

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Disaster Debris Management Plan	Yes	Yes	No	No
Comment: <u>Emergency Ordinance No. 4534</u> , Dec. 4, 2018 An emergency ordinance establishing local standard Woolsey Fires.	ls and procedures	for cleanup of debris g	enerated by the	e Hill and
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
<i>Comment:</i> Flood Safety Plan for Ventura County, March 2017				
Stormwater Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: County Stormwater Program Compliance Strategy in Feb. 5, 2019	n the Unincorporat	ted Area, approved by a	the Board of Su	pervisors on
Urban Water Management Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) for C	ounty Waterworks	s District #1, June 22, 2	021	
Habitat Conservation Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Habitat Connectivity and Wildlife Corridors Ordinance	e, Non-Coastal Zo	oning Ordinance, 2019,	Ord #'s 4537 a	nd 4539
Economic Development Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: 2040 General Plan, Economic Vitality Element, Sept County of Ventura Economic Vitality Strategic Plan,	'ember 15, 2020 November 13, 20	17		
Shoreline Management Plan	No	Yes	No	No
Comment: Beach Erosion Authority for Clean Oceans and Nou Programmatic EIR, 2009 and 2011	rishment (BEACO	N) Coastal Regional Se	ediment Manage	ement Plan and
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Ventura County Community Wildfire Protection Plan	, 2010. Plan upda	te scheduled for compl	etion in 2022.	
Forest Management Plan	No	Yes	No	Yes
Comment: Los Padres National Forest Land Management Plan	, 2005			
Climate Action Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
<i>Comment:</i> 2040 General Plan, Climate Action Plan in Appendix B, September 15, 2020 General Services Agency, Energy Action Plan, April 2010 Climate Protection Plan for Government Operations. April 2012				
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	No	No	No	No
Comment: NA				
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Ventura County Disaster Recovery Plan, Adopted by	BOS in April 201	9		
Continuity of Operations Plan	Yes	N/A	No	Yes
Comment: Ventura County Continuity of Operations Plan was for Office. The plan is included by reference within the 2	irst adopted by BC 2021 EOP draft up	DS in 2008 and is maint date (which is currently	ained by the Co pending appro	ounty Executive
Public Health Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: Ventura County Public Health Strategic Plan, 2015-2	2020			
Other	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
 Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Assessment and Ada Farmworker Housing Ordinance, underway Tree Mitigation Fund and County Tree Planting P Ventura County Land Conservation Act Program, Ventura County Surface Mining and Reclamation Naval Base Ventura County Joint Land Use Study 	aptation Report, 2 rogram, Act Program, y, 2015	018 and 2019	ate is approved	

Table 1-5. Development and Permitting Capability		
Criterion	Response	
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits? If no, who does? If yes, which department? Planning Division, Public Works Agency	Yes	
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	Yes	
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	Yes	

Table 1-6. Fiscal Capability		
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?	
Community Development Block Grants	Yes	
Capital Improvements Project Funding Comment: Check with Public Works and General Services Agency	Yes	
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes Comment: new taxes require 2/3rds Board of Supervisors approval	Yes	
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service If yes, specify: Check with Special Districts, typically require fee study	Yes	
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds Comment: Requires Board of Supervisors Approval	Yes	
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds Comment: Requires Board of Supervisors Approval or voter approval	Yes	
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds Comment: Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds, 2010 http://bosagenda.countyofventura.org/sirepub/cache/2/qdv0sgxbtlloepc0ihgn2r24/551690082020210412476.PDF	Yes	
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	Yes	
State-Sponsored Grant Programs Comment: Requires Board of Supervisors Approval to Receive Grants	Yes	
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers Comment: Requires Board of Supervisors Approval	Yes	

	Table 1-7. Administrative and Technical Capability	
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?
Planners or engineers with know	owledge of land development and land management practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Yes, various positions throughout Planning Division and Public Works Agency	
Engineers or professionals tra	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Yes, Building and Safety Department various positions, Public Works Agency—Transpo Department and Watershed Protection, all positions.	rtation
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Building & Safety manager has CFM and Emergency response, Public Works Agency— Protection, Planning Division, Area Plans and Resources Manager, General Plan Manager	Watershed ger
Staff with training in benefit-co	ost analysis	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Building & Safety management team, Public Works Agency Directors and General Servi Parks Department Director	ces Agency
Surveyors		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works Agency, Surveyor's office.	
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Building & Safety counter staff, plan review engineers and management team, Resource Agency GIS Supervisor	e Management
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	PWA Engineering Managers and Hydrologists. For scientists, the Planning Division and agency also contract with consultants as needed.	Public Works
Emergency manager		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services (OES Director, and 6 additional full-time EMs), B district managers	uilding & Safety
Grant writers		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Planning Division Long Range Planning Managers, County Executive Office, Office of S Manager, various Public Works Agency departments.	ustainability

Table 1-8. Education and Outreach Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes			
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?				
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website?				
If yes, briefly describe: ReadyVenturaCounty.org contains pages dedicated to the Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, include information on hazard mitigation and links to the existing Hazard Mitigation Plan.	luding			
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach?YesIf yes, briefly describe:Twitter, Nixle				
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?YesIf yes, briefly describe:Emergency Planning Council, CERT, Disaster Assistance Response Team, Ventura Regional Fire Safe Council, Ojai Valley Fire Safe Council, Ventu Park Fire Safe Council, and Bell Canyon Fire Safe Council				
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? Yes If yes, briefly describe: VCEmergency.com; ReadyVenturaCounty.org, VC Alert,				
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? <i>If yes, briefly describe:</i> <u>VC Alert</u> , Wireless Emergency Alerts (WEA); <u>VCEmergency.com</u> ; Hi-Lo Sirens				
Table 1-9. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance				
---	--	--	--	--
Criterion	Response			
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Ventura County Public Works Agency-Engineering Services Department, Development Services Section.			
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Director, Ventura County Public Works Agency			
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	Yes			
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	3/27/2018			
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements?	Meets			
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contac	9/21/2018			
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed?	No			
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction?	No			
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction?	Yes			
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program?	Yes			
If so, what type of assistance/training is needed? Additional training on benefit-cost analy green-flood plain management project	ysis for the BRIC grant program, and solutions eligible for FEMA funding.			
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)?	Yes			
If yes, is your jurisdiction interested in improving its CRS Classification?	No			
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? ^a	1,346			
What is the insurance in force?	\$395,320,600			
What is the premium in force?	\$1,327,849			
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction? ^a	724			
What were the total payments for losses?	\$10,126,504			
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021				

Table 1-10. Community Classifications								
Participating? Classification Date								
FIPS Code	Yes	06111	N/A					
DUNS #	Yes	066691122	N/A					
Community Rating System	Yes	5	5/1/2016					
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A					
Public Protection	Yes	03/3X	12/21/2018					
Storm Ready	Yes	N/A	N/A					
Firewise	Yes	N/A	Unknown					
Tsunami Ready	Yes	N/A	N/A					

	Table 1-11. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change						
Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating					
Technical C	Capacity						
Jurisdiction	n-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	High					
Comment:	High level of understanding of anticipated exacerbation of drought and wildfire risks, and sea -lev Moderate understanding of secondary impacts to agricultural/biological risks, and severe weathe	vel rise-related impacts. r/severe storm impacts.					
Jurisdiction	n-level monitoring of climate change impacts	Medium					
Comment:	2040 General Plan has emission reduction and climate adaptation programs adopted and monito implemented.	oring programs are being					
Technical r	esources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Medium					
Comment:	The Planning Division has access to technical resources in other County Agencies, coordination resources is frequent, and the County also has the capacity to hire consultants when needed. Ac adaptation pathway planning would be helpful.	with outside agencies with Iditional resources in					
Jurisdiction	n-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	High					
Comment:	A GHG inventory was completed for the 2040 General Plan Update with baseline data for 2015. emissions inventory, and monitoring is planned for the future as part of General Plan implementation.	There is also an operational tion.					
Capital plar	nning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	High					
Comment:	The 2040 General Plan includes policies related to climate adaptation to guide development due The 2040 General Plan also includes implementation programs that function as climate adaptation	to climate change impacts. on strategies.					
Participatio	n in regional groups addressing climate change risks	High					
Comment:	Comment: Some members of the Board of Supervisors are on committees for sea level rise and beach sediment management. The County's Office of Sustainability, the Long Range sections of the Planning Division, and the Public Works Agency regularly participate with regional groups to address climate change risks. The County Executive Office's Ventura County Climate Emergency Council is a citizen advisory committee focused on GHG reductions. The County's Sustainability Committee is an interagency work group focused on integrating sustainable practices into agency activities including Climate Action Plan implementation.						
Implementa	tion Capacity						
Clear author processes	rity/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making	High					
Comment:	Included in 2040 General Plan policies and programs, see Appendix B.						
Identified st	trategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	High					
Comment:	Included in 2040 General Plan policies and programs. The County Executive Office's Sustainabil Ventura County Climate Emergency Council to advise the County's Board of Supervisors on clime Climate Action Plan implementation. <u>https://www.ventura.org/vccec/</u>	ity Division manages the ate action planning and					
Identified s	trategies for adaptation to impacts	Medium					
Comment:	The County's 2019 Sea level Rise Adaptation Report includes adaptation strategies that have ye form.	t to be adopted in policy					
Champions	for climate action in local government departments	Medium					
Comment:	Action ultimately requires Board authorization for policies and programs. The County Executive Office's Sustainability Division acts as lead for Climate Action Plan implem invested by a full-time Sustainability Officer and supporting staff. The Sustainability Officer is the Sustainability Committee, an interagency work group focused on integrating sustainable practice including Climate Action Plan implementation.	nentation including time Chair of the County's the s into agency activities					
Political su	pport for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	High					
Comment:	In June 2020, the County's Board of Supervisors allocated an additional full-time, fixed-term emp supporting Climate Action Plan implementation efforts as part of its budget hearing process.	loyee to focus on					

Critorion		Iurisdiction Pating
Financial ro	esources devoted to climate change adaptation	High
Comment:	The County funded the 2020 Climate Action Plan, which is a component of the 2040 General Pla. matching funds for sea level rise planning grants. The County Executive Office's Sustainability Di climate action and adaptation programs, including an additional fixed-term position focused on su Plan implementation that was approved in June 2020. The County also contributes membership i	n, and has provided ivision has staff devoted to ipporting Climate Action funds to BEACON.
Local autho	prity over sectors likely to be negative impacted	High
Comment:	The County exercises land use authority in the unincorporated County.	
Public Capa	acity	
Local resid	ents' knowledge of and understanding of climate change risk	Medium
Comment:	Many residents have a general understanding of climate change risks, but ongoing outreach and broader community.	education is needed for the
Local resid	ents' support of adaptation efforts	Medium
Comment:	While most residents support adaptation efforts, they may be resistant if new requirements impact	t them financially.
Local resid	ents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment:	Applications for new development and redevelopment have rarely included voluntary climate ada features are required to be included according to 2040 General Plan policies. The County has all areas impacted by wildfires.	ptation features, but some owed redevelopment in
Local econ	omy's current capacity to adapt to climate change impacts	Medium
Comment:	The agricultural industry is a substantial contributor to the local economy, with an estimated gross billion dollars, and employing over 40,000 individuals. The County (~8,000 employees) and Nava (>16,000 employees) are the two largest local employers and both are planning for climate change City of Port Hueneme is conducting a General Plan update that will include a vulnerability assess level rise impacts at the Port of Hueneme. Adaptive capacity is highly dependent on the scope and severity of climate impacts. Rebuilding leand rebuilding/relocating buildings and infrastructure in the face of extreme flooding and sea level measures and, in many cases, would require substantial public funding and a multi-jurisdictional assess.	s value in 2020 of over 1.9 I Base Ventura County ge impacts. Additionally, the ment and planning for sea evees, managed retreat, I rise are costly adaptation approach to implement.
Local ecosy	ystems' capacity to adapt to climate change impacts	Low
Comment:	A 2019 report by the Western Regional Climate Center indicated that, as a result of climate change experience air temperature increases, a greater number of extreme heat days annually, and an ir dry days leading to fewer but more intense rainfall events. Based on these findings, it is anticipate lead to challenges in evapotranspiration and crop cultivation, increased potential for flash flooding increased susceptibility to drought, and longer wildfire seasons. More work needs to be done to e that often straddle jurisdictional boundaries can migrate and adapt. More community education and needed to demonstrate how ecosystem services can minimize or abate climate change impacts. https://wrcc.dri.edu/Climate/reports.php https://wrcc.dri.edu/Climate/2019_bookmark	ge Ventura County will acreased number of annual ed that such changes will g and/or debris flows, evaluate how ecosystems nd benefit-cost analysis is sed.pdf.
High = Capa Medium = Ca Low = Capac	city exists and is in use apacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement city does not exist or could use substantial improvement	

Unsure = Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

1.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

1.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- The Ventura County 2040 General Plan, Hazards and Safety Element was updated in September, 2020. The update also included a Water Resources Element and a Climate Action Plan.
- The **Non-Coastal Zoning Ordinance (NCZO)** includes standards for hazard mitigation and abatement relative to high fire hazard areas, earthquakes, geology and floods. Recent updates to the NCZO added water efficient landscaping standards and a wildlife corridor overlay zone that includes new standards in fencing and lighting to promote the movement of wildlife.
- The **County's Local Coastal Program (LCP)** is comprised of the **Coastal Area Plan** and **Coastal Zoning Ordinance (CZO)**. The CZO includes standards for hazard mitigation and abatement related to beach erosion, geology, earthquakes, and floods.
- The Ventura County Subdivision Ordinance requires consideration of both geologic and flood hazards during the siting and design of proposed lots. Additionally, it requires consideration of wildfire hazards when a proposed subdivision is located in a "state responsibility area" or a "very high fire hazard severity zone".
- Ventura County Emergency Operations Plan addresses the County's planned response to hazard events.
- Ventura County Building Code is the local adoption of the State codes Title 24

1.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that offer opportunities for future integration or expanded integration with this mitigation plan:

- The Ventura County 2040 General Plan includes policies and programs for hazard mitigation and abatement relative to high-fire hazard areas, earthquakes, geology and floods, as well as climate change adaptation related to droughts, sea level rise and coastal erosion. The County will re-link the General Plan with this HMP once this HMP update is approved. This will enable compliance with AB 2140.
- The County's **Initial Study Assessment Guidelines (ISAGs)** are in the process of being updated and this may be an integration opportunity.
- The County's **NCZO** is periodically amended per Board of Supervisors directive or as required by state law. Updates per new fire codes related to brush clearance and fire prevention may be needed.
- The **County's LCP** includes standards for hazard mitigation and abatement relative to beach erosion, geology, earthquakes, and floods. The policies and standards related to environmentally sensitive habitat, coastal hazards, and sea level rise are being consolidated and updated, and this effort could present an opportunity for future integration.

• Wetland Project Permitting Guide, 2006—this document could be updated with support from the County's Public Works Agency to include hazard integration.

The following projects are currently underway or are planned to be updated. There could be integration opportunities to include hazards in siting and design standards.

- Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Assessment and Adaptation Report, 2019
- Farmworker Housing Ordinance, underway
- Tree Mitigation Fund and County Tree Planting Program
- Land Conservation Act Program
- Initial Study Assessment Guidelines (ISAGs)

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

1.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

1.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 1-12 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

	Table 1-12. Past Natural Hazard Events				
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment		
2019 Easy Fire	FM5298	10/30/2019 to 11/2/2019	1,806 acres burned; 6,500 homes threatened; 30,000 residents evacuated.		
2019 Maria Fire	FM5302	10/31/2019 to 11/4/2019	9,412 acres burned including a substantial portion of prime ag lands; 4 structures destroyed; >1,800 homes / 7,500 residents evacuated; triggered temporary shut-down of local oil and natural gas field facilities and pipelines; damage to communications and oil and gas field facilities occurred. 160 acres of avocado orchards and 25 acres of lemon orchards were moderately to severely damaged or destroyed. Damage to avocado and lemon crops was estimated at ~\$5.2 million, according to Korinne Bell, Ventura County Chief Deputy Agricultural Commissioner.		
2018 Hill Fire	DR4407	11/8/2018 to 11/16/2018	4,531 acres burned; 4 structures destroyed; 4 structures damaged; 5,000 structures threatened.		
2018 Woolsey Fire	DR4407/F M5280	11/8/2018 to 11/21/2018	96,949 acres burned; \$6 billion in property damage; \$10 million in firefighting costs; 1643 structures destroyed, 3 deaths, 295,000 residents (in Ventura and L.A. County) evacuated.		
2018 Heat Event (July)		7/4/2018 to 7/6/2018	Extreme 2-day heat event broke records across the county, and resulted in damage to crops. For crops such as avocados and citrus, heat can damage both the current crop and also the fruit set for the coming season, packing a two-year punch. The California Avocado Board estimated a 2019 crop of 210 million pounds, down from 372 million pounds a year earlier, and the smallest crop in over a decade. Citrus officials say it knocked down up to 15 percent of the region's lemon crop at the tail end of the harvest. Lemons dropped by 14% in value in the County's 2019 ag report.		

	FEMA		
Type of Event	Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
2018 Montecito Debris Flows	DR4353	1/9/2018 – 1/22/2018	A 30-mile section of U.S. Route 101 (US 101) from Santa Barbara to Ventura was shut down for two weeks as sections filled with two feet (60 cm) of mud and debris, some of which also reached beaches 2.25 miles (3.6 km) from the mountains. Following the closure, access to Santa Barbara from the Los Angeles area was limited to a 260-mile (420 km) detour around the Los Padres National Forest or through the use of private ferries to Ventura. This closure severely impacted commerce throughout the county. Based on commuter surveys conducted by the U.S. Census Bureau (2013) and Department of Transportation estimates, in 2017 an average of 2,300 vehicles (2,400 workers) commuted daily from Santa Barbara to Ventura. This addition to approximately 10,000 vehicles (11,500 workers) commuted from Ventura, in addition to approximately 3,700 commercial trucks. The loss to Ventura County cities from commuter earnings for each week of the closure has been approximated at \$12,235,774.
2017 Thomas Fire	FM5224	12/4/2017 to 1/12/2018	Over 280,000 acres burned. Cost of \$2.2 billion; \$171,296,703 in agricultural losses (crop losses and farm equipment) alone; 1,063 structures destroyed; 280 damaged; 2 deaths; and 104,607 residents evacuated; Businesses, including Ag also experienced loss of perishable goods from the nearly two-week closure of U.S. 101 that shut down commerce and prevented workers from accessing fields.
2017 Winter Storms	NA	2/17/2017 to 2/18/2017	Rainfall amounts from 2 to 6 inches across coastal areas with up to around 10 inches in the local mountains produced numerous reports of flash flooding as well as mud and debris flows. Strong southerly winds with gusts up to 70 mph reported in some areas. Highway 101 was closed in both directions north of Ventura due to mud and debris flows near the Solimar burn area. Flash flooding near the community of Thousand Oaks; three men rescued when Wildwood Creek flooded. Near the community of Camarillo, Conejo Creek to overflow its banks, flooding acres of agricultural land. State disaster declaration No. CA77 and CA77.1
2015 Coastal Erosion and Flooding Event	NA	12/11/2015	Strong waves (up to 15 ft.) from a large westerly swell event resulted in evacuation and closure of the Ventura and Port Hueneme piers. Heavy surf caused approximately 15 pylons to break off the sides of the Ventura pier—triggering an extended (four month) closure while repairs were made. Pier repairs cost \$1.4 million. Localized flooding of beachfront homes in the Pierpont neighborhood and nearby streets also occurred Harbor Boulevard between Sanjon Road and California Street in the city of Ventura had to be closed due to flooding. Erosion from this event substantially altered the beach profile along Ventura State Beach near the pier, including impacts to Surfer's Point as well as other exposed coastline areas. At Naval Base Ventura County, officials temporarily closed Family Beach and a nearby campground because of high surf. Farther east along Pacific Coast Highway, State Parks relocated campers inland from the beachside Thornhill Broome State Beach Campground after the combination of high tide and the swell flooded the east and west ends of the campground.
2014 Pacific Coast Highway (Hwy 1) Landslide		11/20/2014 to 3/15/2015	Rocks, boulders, and 4-6 feet of mud slumped onto Hwy 1 near the May 2013 Springs Fire burn area. The substantial slope stabilization and highway repairs required resulted in a months-long closure of 9 miles of Hwy 1 (November through mid-March) between the Mugu and Malibu areas, isolating unincorporated south coast communities, impacting commuter traffic, and limiting access to coastal recreational resources.
2014 Coastal Erosion and Flooding Event (Hurricane Marie)	NA	8/26/2014	Large southeast swells from Hurricane Marie generated high surf conditions along local beaches and resulted in numerous rescues by local lifeguards, beach and campground closures, and flooding of some coastal roads. Local piers experienced some damage including the pier at Port Hueneme. Extensive damage also occurred to the road infrastructure of Hwy 1 near Sycamore Canyon campground in Point Mugu State Park. At postmile (PM) 4.0, the existing revetment was damaged and at PM 4.2, the vegetated slope between the road and beach was severely eroded.
2013 Springs Fire	FM5024	5/2/2013	24,251 acres burned; 15 homes destroyed; 4,000 homes threatened as well as key communications infrastructure (including \$1 billion dollar Naval satellite operations station on Laguna Peak). More than \$10 million in firefighting costs incurred.

Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
2009 Guiberson Fire	FM2839	9/22/2009 to 9/29/2009	17,500 acres burned;1 structure destroyed; estimated firefighting costs of more than \$6.9 million
2007 Ranch Fire	FM1731	10/21/2007	58,401 acres burned in both L.A. and eastern Ventura County near Piru; over \$9 million in firefighting costs
2007 Freeze Event	DR-1689	1/11/2007 to 1/17/2007	4 nights of below freezing temperatures caused losses of over \$1.3 billion statewide and \$281 million in crop damage locally. Damage was mainly to citrus and avocado groves, and the winter strawberry crop that was just going to harvest.
2006 Shekell Complex Fire	FM2681	12/3/2006 to 12/6/2006	13,600 acres burned; 5 homes, 2 comm. Buildings; 11 structures destroyed; \$12.8-13 million in damage; 9.2 million in structural damage; 25 million in ag damage
2006 Day Fire	FM2677	9/4/2006 to 10/9/2006	162,702 acres burned, including substantial wilderness and national forest areas; \$78 million in fire suppression costs; 11 structures burned, residences threatened in Lockwood Valley and Upper Ojai over course of several weeks.
2005 La Conchita Landslide	DR1577	1/10/2005	The landslide resulted in the deaths of 10 people, destroyed 13 homes and resulted in red- tagging of 23 others. It occurred following a two-week period from Dec 27-Jan 10 in which 430 mm of rainfall fell (a record 15-day rainfall). Estimated costs of ~\$1.75 million in county agencies' response to the event.
2005 Winter Storms (January)	DR1577	1/7/2005 to 1/11/2005	Damage totaled more than \$200 million. High water flows, scouring, and washouts in the Ventura River damaged several water wells and exposed water lines owned by the Ojai Valley Sanitary District. Severe erosion occurred along both embankments of the Ventura River. The Calleguas Creek topped its banks near the state hospital in Camarillo and flooded nearby ag fields. Homes in Moorpark, Casitas Springs and Ojai were flooded, major roads including Highways 101, 126, 33 and 150 were closed for more than a week, and the Santa Paula Airport was closed for several months due to flood damage to the runway.
2003 Simi Fire	DR1498/ FM2504	10/24/2003	108,204 acres burned; crop losses of nearly \$8 million.
1999 Ranch Fire	NA	12/27/1999	4,372 acres burned, including a large proportion of national forest lands in Los Padres National Forest. Reported losses include thousands of dollars in outdoor equipment and numerous small structures at The Ojai Foundation. The fire also threatened numerous homes in Ojai Valley area. Fire officials estimated the cost of fighting the fire at nearly \$5 million, and noted that firefighters constructed more than 20 miles of fire lines.
1998 Freeze Event	DR1267	12/20/1998	This severe freeze impacted citrus/avocado/strawberry crops across Ventura County; 1,139 services received; \$71,541,000 in damages to agriculture industry. Other sources estimated losses as high as \$74.3 million for Ventura County farmers.
1928 St. Francis Dam Failure	NA	3/12/1928	>530 people died; bridges, orchards, farms, and homes were all eradicated in flood's path down the Santa Clara river valley to the Pacific Ocean. Considered to be one of the worst engineering disasters of the 20 th century.

1.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 1-13 presents a ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides quantitative risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions target hazards with high and medium rankings.

	Table 1-13. Hazard Risk Ranking							
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category					
1	Landslides	51	High					
2	Wildfire	36	High					
3	Earthquake	32	High					
4	Severe Storms	24	High ^a					
5	Severe Weather	24	High ^a					
6	Dam Failure	24	High ^a					
7	Flooding	18	High ^a					
8	Sea Level Rise	12	Low					
9	Tsunami	10	Low					
10	Drought	9	Low					

a. The risk category was increased to High, based on jurisdiction-specific vulnerabilities.

1.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 63
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: N/A
- Number of Repetitive-Loss or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: N/A

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Prioritization of Open Space / Natural Resource Areas—In 2015, the U.S. Department of Agriculture named Ventura County the most desirable place to live in America. Ventura's mild climate, varied topography, bountiful open space and natural resources, and proximity to additional natural resource areas are a large part of its draw for residents and visitors. Vast tracts of the unincorporated County lie adjacent to, or within, the Los Padres National Forest, Santa Monica Mountains National Recreation Area, and the Pacific Ocean. Valuation of these resources, and of our interface with these open space areas is outside the scope of FEMA's traditional risk analysis tools (e.g., property/structural damage estimates, loss of life, and critical infrastructure inventories, insurance claims), which can result in radical underestimation of disaster impacts to recreation, tourism, and the overall desirability of living and working here.
- Santa Ana Winds and Planned/Unplanned Utility Outages—Warm, dry northeasterly winds are a local weather phenomenon in Southern California that can result in downed trees and power lines, blowing dust and air quality concerns. Although the winds themselves do not cause wildfires and rarely rise to the level of an area-wide disaster on their own, they exacerbate

critical fire weather conditions in our area and substantially complicate wildfire response and containment. These winds may occur throughout the year, but are typically most common from October to March. Nearly all of the region's significant wildfires have occurred in conjunction with strong Santa Ana wind conditions. Local power outages have been enacted with increasing frequency by utility companies in response to high wind/low humidity conditions, both within Ventura County and adjacent counties. Supporting adaptation of local businesses and individual residents to sporadic utility outages triggered by potential wind events, as well as critical facilities (e.g., communications towers and other energy infrastructure) should be prioritized.

- Localized Flooding—Many communities within the unincorporated County are located adjacent to rivers (e.g., Santa Clara River, Ventura River, Sespe Creek, Piru Creek, Lockwood Creek) that are prone to flood to varying degrees during periods of heavy rainfall. The effects of this flooding range from localized road closures to damage to property (e.g., flooded croplands), vehicles, and buildings.
- Ventura County Public Works Agency Watershed Protection's (VCPWA-WP's) Critical Facilities in the Unincorporated Areas—Based on the fact that virtually all of VCPWA-WP's critical facility assets were constructed to provide flood protection and/or are geospatially located proximate to and/or in flood plains, and as documented in Table 1.8 Past Natural Hazard Events above, during the aforementioned 56-year period, VCPWA-WP's critical facility flood protection assets experienced \$81 Million in damage from flooding, severe storms and severe weather events, VCPWA-WP has ranked Flood risks as "High" in Table 1.9 above.
- Matilija Dam Seismic Risk Vulnerability—Matilija Dam in the Ventura River watershed is
 vulnerable to seismic failure. Many communities are at risk of inundation. Implementation of the
 Matilija Dam Ecosystem Restoration Project (MDERP) would address this risk while also
 opening 17 miles of habitat for endangered steelhead trout. MDERP comprises several
 downstream flood protection and water supply reliability components that must precede removal
 of the dam, some of which have been completed or are at various stages of completion
 (alternatives analysis, design, or construction).
- Levee Rehabilitation and Certification Projects in Unincorporated Areas—Ventura County Watershed Protection is engaged in preliminary design and CEQA work for levee retrofit and/or flood-protection enhancement projects required to certify all its levees in compliance with federal levee certification requirements. Major levee rehabilitation and ultimate certification projects in the unincorporated areas include: the Ventura River Levee (VR-2) located in the unincorporated community of Casitas Springs, and the Live Oak Acres Levee located in the near the unincorporated community of Oak View. VCPWA-WP is working with FEMA, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), as well as affected cities, residents, and property owners throughout Ventura County to marshal scarce Federal, State, and local funding resources necessary to complete five very important levee retrofit public safety and flood protection projects. Once all VCPWA-WP's levee retrofit projects are completed, VCPWA-WP's levees will fully comply with applicable Federal Levee Certification requirements found in 44 CFR 65.10. At best, full completion of VCPWA-WP's five levee rehab projects will require a minimum of five to ten years, and could take longer, depending on final engineering design plan results, environmental considerations, and availability of project funding required to construct the rehab projects.
- Unincorporated Area Pump Stations Vulnerable to Sea-Level Rise—San Nicholas, Santa Monica, and Santa Paula Pump Stations lift stormwater from low elevation coastal neighborhoods and discharge directly to the Pacific Ocean. The Santa Monica and Santa Paula Pump Station outlets are frequently clogged during high tide and heavy surf events, causing the

pumps to shut off and requiring manual removal of sand to ensure the coastal communities do not flood. With sea level rise, the risk increases. While not currently afflicted with the propensity for sand to clog its outlet, San Nicholas Pump Station is vulnerable to failure as sea level rises. The pumps in each facility are over 40 years old and do not have on site backup generators, making them vulnerable to power failures, which cause alarms to sound signaling the need for immediate emergency response. All three facilities need constant repair due to corrosive salt air and water. Upgrades are needed, but more land is required for truly effective solutions, and adjacent land is occupied by high value coastal residences.

- Ormand Lagoon Coastal Estuary Vulnerable to Sea Level Rise—Ormond Lagoon is a coastal estuary open to the ocean only during rain events and for a variable period thereafter depending on time between rain events, tides, etc. Sea level rise may reduce the ability of storm runoff from Ormond Lagoon Waterway and Tšumaš Creek to breach the lagoon and flow into the Pacific Ocean. Without a Beach Elevation Management Plan, the following are vulnerable to flooding from storm water backed up in the lagoon: the adjacent Oxnard Wastewater Treatment Plant and Advanced Water Purification Facility, the New-Indy recycled containerboard mill, the Halaco Superfund Site, local residences and roads. Restoration of the Ormond Wetlands complex may help reduce flood potential.
- Homeless Population—The size and distribution of the homeless population in the unincorporated area is not easily quantified, but has been increasing in recent years and exacerbates hazard risks and mitigation costs. During a January 2020 point-in-time survey coordinated by the County Executive Office, 128 homeless individuals were counted as residing within the unincorporated County area. Many homeless individuals within the unincorporated area inhabit encampments within the Ventura and Santa Clara river bottoms, where both wildfires and flooding risks are regular concerns. Unsheltered living locations have negative impacts on watershed viability and resilience in addition to posing risks to the broader community. The presence of unauthorized habitation within the watersheds increases wildfire risks (e.g., accidental starts from cooking/warmth fires and arson) as well as the cost of hazard mitigation actions (e.g., brush clearance for wildfire hazard abatement and trash and debris removal efforts prior to winter storm season). Communication barriers, fear of government officials and law enforcement, substance abuse issues, and mental health issues can complicate public outreach and hazard awareness efforts to homeless individuals, and confound accurate assessments of hazard risk and disaster damage.
- Importance of Agriculture and Potential for Undervaluation of Drought and Ag/Biological **Risks**—Agriculture, in the forms of ranching and farming, has been a keystone of Ventura County's economy since its inception. With fertile soils and a mild climate, Ventura remains one of the leading counties for agricultural production in the state. In addition to a variety of row crops and nursery products, the county is one of the top producers of citrus, avocados, and strawberries in the nation. Much of the cultivated land lies within the unincorporated County areas of the Oxnard Plain and Santa Clara River Valley. In addition to generating direct on-farm employment and revenue, agricultural production supports a wide range of other businesses, including packinghouses, equipment dealers, chemical applicators, pest-control firms, labor contractors, fertilizer and other supply dealers, trucking firms, fuel distributors, and repair and manufacturing facilities. Altogether, farming and farm-dependent businesses provide an estimated 43,000 jobs in Ventura County, more than any other sector of the economy except services. Agriculture and agriculture-related businesses account for about 4.4 percent of overall economic activity in Ventura County, generating \$2.1 billion in revenue and \$76 million in indirect business taxes annually. One in 10 county residents relies to some degree on income derived from farming. However, drought and agricultural/biological hazards (e.g., invasive crop

pests and disease) do not lend themselves to evaluation using FEMA's traditional risk analysis tools (e.g. property, structural damage estimates, loss of life, critical infrastructure inventories), which results in underestimation of the disaster impacts/costs that these hazards can have on the local environment, economy, and area communities.

• Unauthorized Immigrants—Ventura County's farm bureau estimates there are about 36,000 immigrant workers in the county, many of them undocumented. Unauthorized immigrants may be disproportionately affected by disasters (e.g., wildfires, flooding, pandemics), particularly those that impact agricultural operations in the unincorporated county areas where many work as farm laborers. Language/ communication barriers and fear of government and law enforcement personnel can complicate public outreach and education efforts to these individuals.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

1.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 1-14 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 1-14. Status of Previous Plan Actions							
		Removed;	Carrie Plar	Carried Over to Plan Update			
Action Item from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update			
OA 11—Develop and implement plans to increase the building owner's general knowledge of and appreciation for the value of seismic upgrading of the building's structural and nonstructural elements.			~	VUC-8			
<i>Comment:</i> This is an ongoing effort to be developed over the next year.							
OA 19—Maintain vegetation management program that provides vegetation management services to elderly, disabled, or low-income property owners who lack the resources to remove flammable vegetation from around their homes.			✓	VUC-9			
Comment: This is an ongoing program and will be carried over to the plan update.							
OA 21—Maintain hazards fuel treatment program for areas that have been identified with overgrown/dead brush/trees to reduce the potential for tree-to-tree ignition. Ensure that a "maintenance now" component to provide continued fire resistance is part of the program.			√	VUC-10			
<i>Comment:</i> This is an ongoing program and will be carried over to the plan update.							
UVC 1—Continue to participate in the National Weather Service's (NWS) StormReady Program.			~	VUC-11			
<i>Comment:</i> Ventura County continues to participate in TsunamiReady and StormReady. renewed for both SR and TR on 2/25/2019. The next renewal will be due on	NWS confirm 3/19/2022.	ed that Ventu	ra Count	y was last			
UVC 2—Develop a plan to identify funding to replace/relocate the Operational Area Emergency Operations Center (EOC).			~	VUC-12			
Comment: This item was not completed/pursued during the last update cycle (Thomas a and COVID impacted planning and development of many items over the last interest that will be carried over to the plan update.	& Woolsey fire several years	events, OES) but continue	staffing es to be a	changes, a project of			

		Removed;		Carried Over to Plan Update	
Action Item from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update	
UVC 3—Update Seismic Standards for Communications (Cell Towers) Facilities (Building Code).			~	VUC-13	
<i>Comment:</i> This will be done through the Ventura County Building Code VCBC 2019					
UVC 4—Reinforce and maintain County roads, bridges, ditches and culverts from flooding through various flood proofing measures.			~	VUC-17	

Comment: Ventura County Public Works Agency—Roads and Transportation Department (VCPWA-RT) is responsible for the operation and maintenance of County roads, bridges, ditches, and culverts in the unincorporated areas of Ventura County. VCPWA-RT conducts annual ditch cleaning and culvert cleaning before winter storm season to maintain the capacity of ditches and proper drainage flow to mitigate roadway flooding in rural areas of the county. In addition to the annual cleaning of ditches and culverts, the VCPWA-RT is actively working to rehabilitate Bridge Road Bridge (#442) which is currently in design and environmental permitting phase and is expected to be completed in 2023. Replacement of Catalina Drive Bridge (#384) was completed in May 2020 and replacement of Casitas Vista Road Bridge (#327) was completed in September 2020. Mupu Road Bridge and the Wheeler Canyon Road Bridge improvements projects were completed in 2016-2017. The VCPWA-RT is developing a Bridge Management Program to maintain County bridges. The program will identify and prioritize VCPWA-RT's 158 bridge structures which include 81 bridges on the National Bridge Inventory and 77 other structures. This program will identify budget needs, and schedules for preventive maintenance as well as budget for required rehabilitation or replacement of VCPWA-RT maintained bridges for short and long-term planning needs. The Bridge Management Program is expected to be completed in calendar year 2021. In 2020-2021, VCPWA-WP continued to clean flood control channels and catch basins to prepare for winter storm seasons. VCPWA-WP also secured Proposition 1 grant funding for the Santa Ana Bridge and Camino Cielo Bridge replacement projects which are managed by VCPWA-RT (both are components of the MDERP). The design of Camino Cielo Bridge is progressing towards 30% millstone. For the Santa Ana Bridge project, a construction contract was awarded in March 2021 with an estimated completion date of December 2022.

1.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 1-15 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 1-16 identifies the priority for each action. Table 1-17 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 1-15. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix							
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action VUC-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.							
Hazards Mitigated:	Hazards Mitigated: Landslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Sea Level Rise, Tsunami						
New & Existing	1, 4, 6, 9, 10, 11, 16	Ventura County	NA	High	HMGP, PDM, FMA	Short-term	

Benefits New or	Objectives Met		Current Arenov	Estimated	Courses of Funding	Timolino a		
EXISTING ASSetS	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	COSI	Sources of Funding	rimeline ^a		
community, including the 2040 General Plan, Non-Coastal Zoning Ordinance, and Local Coastal Program.								
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthqu Drought, Agricultu	uake, Severe Sto ral/Biological	rm, Severe Weather, Floodin	g, Wildfire, D	am Failure, Sea Level Rise,	Tsunami,		
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, 15, 17, 18, 19	Ventura County Resource Management Agency, Ventura County Sheriff's OES, Ventura County Public Works Agency	NA	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		
Action VUC-3—Ac	ctively participate in t	he plan maintena	ance protocols outlined in Vol	ume 1 of this	hazard mitigation plan.			
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthqu Drought, Agricultu	uake, Severe Sto ral/Biological	rm, Severe Weather, Floodin	g, Wildfire, D	oam Failure, Sea Level Rise,	Tsunami,		
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19	Ventura County Agencies	NA	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term		
Action VUC-4—Co programs that, at a • Enforce the floo • Participate in flo • Provide public a Hazards Mitigated:	ontinue to maintain g minimum, meet the d damage prevention odplain identification ssistance/information Flooding, Severe	ood standing and NFIP requirement ordinance. and mapping up n on floodplain re Storms, Sea Lev	d compliance under the NFIP hts to: odates. equirements and impacts. el Rise, Dam Failure	through imp	ementation of floodplain mai	nagement		
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 17, 19	County Public Works	Building and Safety	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		
 Action VUC-5—Identify and pursue strategies to increase adaptive capacity to climate change including but not limited to the following: Implementation of 2040 General Plan programs including a Cool Roof Ordinance and Cool Pavement Standards, Performance-Based Building Code for Green Building, Groundwater Basins Resilience Program, Sea Level Impacts Monitoring Program, and Wildfire Vulnerability Assessment and Mapping Program. Develop programs to increase energy efficiency of new buildings above state-required design requirements Hazards Mitigated: Sea Level Rise, Flooding, Drought, Wildfire, Severe Weather, Severe Storms, Agricultural/Biological 								
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19	Ventura County	NA	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing and Short- term		
Action VUC-6—Pu	Irchase and install po Dam Failure Fart	ermanent genera	tors for critical facilities and in Severe Weather Severe St	nfrastructure	that lack adequate backup p	ower.		
Existing	2, 6	Ventura County	NA	High	FEMA HMA (BRIC and HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Short-term		

Benefits New or				Estimated		T I II 0		
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	l imeline ^a		
Action VUC-/—Pt	Irchase and Install m	obile generators	for critical facilities and infras	structure that	lack adequate backup powe	er.		
<u>Hazarus Miliyaleu:</u> Evistina	Dam Fallure, Earl		, Severe weather, Severe St	UTITIS, I SUNA	TTI, WILDIFE	Chart tarm		
Existing	2, 0	County	NA	High	HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Short-term		
Action VUC-8—Develop and implement plans to increase building owner's general knowledge of and appreciation for the value of								
seismic upgrading Hazards Mitigated:	of their building's str Earthquake	uctural and nons	tructural elements. (formerly 2	2015 Action (DA-11)			
Exitsting	1, 2, 4, 6, 9, 16, 17	Ventura	NA	Medium	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		
		County Duilding and				and Short-		
		Safety				lenn		
Action VUC-9-M	aintain new vegetatio	on management	program that provides vegeta	tion manage	ment services to elderly, disa	abled, or		
low-income proper	ty owners who lack t	he resources to r	emove flammable vegetation	from around	their homes. (formerly 2015	Action OA-		
19) (Coordinates w	ith Ventura County F	Fire Protection Di	strict Action VFP-12)					
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire							
New & Existing	2, 4, 5, 8, 10, 13,	VCFPD	Ventura County	Medium	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP	Ongoing		
	14, 13, 19				General Funds			
Action VUC-10-N	/laintain wildfire haza	ard fuel reduction	program for areas that have	been identifi	ed with overgrown or dead b	rush, trees		
and weeds to redu	ce the potential for tr	ee-to-tree ignitio	n. Ensure that a "maintenance	e now" comp	onent to provide continued fi	re		
resistance is part o	f the program. (form	erly 2015 Action	OA-21) (Coordinates with Ver	ntura County	Fire Protection District Action	on VFP-6)		
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire							
New & Existing	2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10,	VCFPD	CAL FIRE & USDA	Medium	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP	Ongoing		
	11, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19				General Funds			
Action VUC-11-0	Continue to participat	e in the National	Weather Service's (NWS) St	ormReady a	nd TsunamiReady Programs	(formerly		
2015 Action UVC-1	I) (Coordinates with	Action VCPWA-V	VP-16)	onnitoday a	na roananni toady rrogramo	. (ionnon)		
Hazards Mitigated:	Severe Storms, Se	evere Weather, 1	sunami, Flooding, Dam Failu	re, Landslide	e, Sea Level Rise			
New & Existing	1, 2, 7, 8, 17	Ventura	Ventura County Sheriff's	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		
		County Public	OES					
		Works			0			
Action VUC-12—L (formerly 2015 Acti	Develop a plan to ide	ntify funding to re	eplace/relocate the Operation	al Area Eme	rgency Operations Center (E	.OC).		
Hazards Mitigated	Landslide Fartho	iake Severe Sto	rm Severe Weather Floodin	a Wildfire F	am Failure. Sea Level Rise	Tsunami		
New & Existing	6. 7. 8	Ventura	NA	Hiah	Staff Time, General Funds	l ona-term		
	0,7,0	County		i ngin		Long tom		
		Sheriff's OES						
Action VUC-13—L	Jpdate Seismic Stan	dards for Commu	unications (Cell Towers) Facil	ities (Building	g Code).			
Hazards Mitigated	Earthquake							
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 11	Ventura	NA	High	HMGP, PDM, FMA	Short-term		
		County Ruilding and						
		Safetv						
Action VUC-14-	Develop a countywide	e Evacuation Rol	ute Plan to identify and evaluate	ate evacuatio	on routes for wildfires and oth	ner hazards.		
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire, Dam Fail	ure, Flooding, La	ndslide					
New & Existing	7, 8, 17, 19	Ventura	VCFPD	High	Staff Time, General	Short-term		
Ũ		County OES		Ū	Funds, Fire Safe Council			
					Grant			

Benefits New or				Estimated					
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a			
Action VUC-15—I perishable data aft hazard mitigation e Online) to capture document and arch pursuit of grant fun <u>Hazards Mitigated</u> :	perishable data after significant events (e.g., preliminary damage estimates, damage photos, event mapping, etc.) in support of future hazard mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the HMP. Leverage applications (Maintstar v15, ArcGIS Online) to capture information related to VCPWA-RT, W&S, and WP critical facility asset impacts, and establish a centralized location to document and archive critical facilities geospatial data related to disaster events which will facilitate the development and optimize the pursuit of grant funding for future hazard mitigation projects. (Coordinates with Action VCPWA-WP-3) <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flooding, Landslide, Sea Level Rise, Severe Storms, Severe Weather, Tsunami, Wildfire								
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments, Cities, Special-Purpose Districts, and NGOs.	Low	WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC) and County General Funds, as required	Short Term			
Action VUC-16—Improve public awareness and community response to flood event emergencies by upgrading and modernizing the Flood Warning System (FWS) optimized to leverage multi-social media venues. Expand the public outreach of the FWS through targeted marketing based on web-site analytics and develop multiple language interfaces to better reflect the linguistic and cultural diversity found in Ventura County communities. (Coordinates with Action VCPWA-WP-4)									
New & Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 12, 17, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	DWR, NOAA, VCSOES, Ventura County Departments, Cities, Special-Purpose Districts, community and tribal leaders, community councils, and NGOs	Medium	WP Structural Revenues augmented by DWR and FEMA Grants (BRIC and HMGP) and County General Funds, as required	Short Term			
Action VUC-17—F pipeline infrastructu provide adequate f Action VCPWA-WF	Prioritize efforts to up ure, pump stations, r lood-proofing protect P-5)	grade County bri bads, water and ion and enhance	dges, culverts, dams, debris wastewater community infras the resiliency of vital commu	and detentio tructure, and inity lifelines	n basins, flood conveyance o other critical facilities require in Ventura County. (Coordin	channel and ed to ates with			
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam Failure, Eart	hquake, Flooding	, Landslide, Sea Level Rise,	Severe Storr	ns, Severe Weather, Tsunar	ni, Wildfire			
New & Existing	1, 2, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 16, 18, 19	VCPWA Departments	Ventura County Departments, Cities, Special-Purpose Districts	High	WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC, HMGP) DWR, VCTC, Caltrans and County General Funds, as required	Long-term			
Action VUC-18—0 unincorporated cor evidence local corr	Complete project fea: nmunity of Casitas S pliance with Federal	sibility analyses, prings, and the L Levee Certificat	design engineering and CEQ ive Oak Acres Levee near th ion Regulations (44 CFR 65.1	A work for th e unincorpor 10) (Coordina	e Ventura River Levee (VR- ated community of Oak View ates with Action VCPWA-WP	2) in the / required to 2-6)			
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam Failure, Eart	hquake, Flooding	, Landslide, Sea Level Rise,	Severe Storr	ms, Severe Weather, Tsunar	ni			
New & Existing	1, 2, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 16, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments and Cities of Camarillo, Oxnard, and San Buenaventura	High	WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC and HMGP) DWR-LLAP Grants USACE, and County General Funds, as required	Long Term			

Benefits New or				Estimated						
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a				
Action VUC-19—S renewed emphasis under FEMA's Buil properties in Ventu	renewed emphasis on the planning and implementation of flood mitigation projects for repetitive loss properties eligible for grant funding under FEMA's Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) program with the goal of reducing the number of repetitive loss properties in Ventura County. (Coordinates with Action VCPWA-WP-7)									
Hazards Mitigated.	Flooding, Landslic	le, Sea Level Ris	se, Severe Storms, Severe W	eather, Tsun	ami					
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 16, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments, DWR, FEMA	High	WP Structural Revenues augmented by Grants (FMA, BRIC, HMGP) and County General Funds, as required	Ongoing				
Action VUC-20-F	Partner with the Natu	re Conservancy,	Santa Clara River Conservar	ncy, Ojai Vall	ey Land Conservancy, and	other NGOs				
in cooperative effor design elements in	rts to acquire floodpl cluded in hazard mit	ain properties, ca igation projects v	arry out restoration projects, a vhere feasible. (Coordinates v	nd enhance with Action V	resiliency to natural disaster CPWA-WP-8)	s with green				
Hazards Mitigated.	Dam Failure, Drou	ught, Flooding, La	andslide, Sea Level Rise, Sev	vere Storms,	Severe Weather, Tsunami, a	and Wildfire				
New & Existing	1, 2, 5, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments, TNC, SCRC, OVLC, DWR, CDFW, State Coastal Conservancy	High	WP Structural Revenues augmented by Grants (FMA, BRIC, HMGP, DWR, SCC, etc.) and County General Funds, as required	Ongoing				
Action VUC-21-A	Advance planning, fe	asibility analyses	, preliminary design, and ultir	nate constru	ction of multi-benefit stormw	ater capture				
projects through a recycled water, sto and implementation	regionally collaborati rmwater capture and n of WP stormwater	ive approach; as I sanitary system capital projects.	well as pursue strategies to r diversion, and groundwater r (Coordinates with Action VCP	naximize sto recharge) wh WA-WP-9)	rmwater as a resource (enha ere possible in infrastructure	ance e planning				
Hazards Mitigated.	Drought, Flooding	, Sea Level Rise	, Severe Storms, Severe Wea	ather						
New	1, 2, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments, SWRCB, LARWQCB, DWR, SGMAs, NGOs and Private Landowners	Hign	WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC & HMGP) DWR, IRWM, LARWQB, SWRCB) and County General Funds, as required	Ongoing				
Action VUC-22—(could adversely im	Coordinate with FEM pact local hazard mi	A Region IX to p tigation project p	roactively address flood plain lanning and implementation e	managemer fforts which i	it and flood risk mapping issumation is the may arise from updates to the the may arise from updates to the may	ues that e				
Countywide DFIRM	As, Community Assis	stance Visits, and	I/or other risk mapping initiativ	es. (Coordin	ates with Action VCPWA-W	P-10)				
Hazards Mitigated.	Flooding, Sea Lev	el Rise, Severe	Storms, Severe Weather	Marillion		Quarter				
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 16, 17, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments, DWR, FEMA, Cities, NGOs, and Private Landowners	Medium	WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC & HMGP) DWR, and County General Funds, as required	Ungoing				
Action VUC-23—\ other Federal, Stat County. (Coordinat	Nork closely with CA e, and local agencies tes with Action VCPV	Division of Safe s to update and r VA-WP-11)	ty of Dams (DSOD), County S efine the Emergency Action F	Sheriff Office Plans (EAPs)	of Emergency Services (OE for the state size dams own	S), and ed by the				
Hazards Mitigated.	Dam Failure, Floo	, ding, Earthquake	e, Severe Storms, Severe We	ather						
New & Existing	1, 2,4, 7,8, 12, 17, 18	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments, FEMA, DWR, Cities, NGOs, and Private Landowners	Medium	WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC), DWR, and County General Funds, as required	Short-Term				

Benefits New or				Estimated		The sheet 2			
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	I imeline ^a			
Action VUC-24—Complete project feasibility analyses, design engineering, CEQA, and implementation of the removal of Matilija Dam, reconstruction of the Camino Cielo Bridge crossing, and work with the Casitas Municipal Water District to reconstruct the Robles Diversion, as well as complete the construction of flood protection projects in the unincorporated community of Meiners Oaks in compliance with DSOD requirements. (Coordinates with Action VCPWA-WP-12)									
New & Existing	1 2 1 6 8 9 10	$VCPM/\Delta_WP$	Ventura County	High	WP Structural Revenues	Long-Term			
	11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 17, 18, 19		Departments, Casitas Municipal Water District, Bureau of Reclamation, Caltrans, CDFW, DSOD, DWR, FEMA, USACE, NGOs		augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC & HMGP) CDFW, DWR, NFWF, NRCS, SCC, WCB, and NGO's and County and Casitas General Funds, as required				
Action VIIC-25_(Collaborate with the (ity of Oxnard N	ature Conservancy and State	e Coastal Co	nservancy to advance plann	ina desian			
and implementation along the Ormond supports the City on <u>Hazards Mitigated</u> . New & Existing	n of the Ormond Bea Lagoon Waterway as f Oxnard Action OXN Drought, Flooding 1, 2, 3, 9, 12, 13, 14 15 17 18 19	nch Restoration a nd creating public V-12) , Severe Weathe City of Oxnard	nd Access Plan (ÓBRAP), pa c access along <i>tšumaš</i> Creek r, Severe Storms, Sea Level VCPWA-WP	articularly tho . (Coordinate Rise, Tsunar High	se components alleviating flo s with Action VCPWA-WP-1 ni City Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA	ooding 3 and Ongoing			
	14, 10, 17, 10, 17				Grants (BRIC), CDFG				
Action VUC-26—0	Coordinate efforts to	plan, develop, ar	nd ultimately construct multi-b	enefit, flood i	resiliency and other risk haza	ard			
Action VOC-26—Coordinate enorts to plan, develop, and utimately construct multi-benefit, flood resiliency and other risk nazard mitigation projects with the Watershed Coalition of Ventura County (OBRAP) 3-Watershed Councils, its Disadvantaged Community Committee, and nonprofit partners by increasing outreach and engagement with disadvantaged and socially vulnerable communities and tribal groups to better understand their unique community-lifeline vulnerabilities, facilitate the development of flood hazard mitigation multi-benefit projects, and align and leverage advocacy efforts to optimize grant funding opportunities. (Coordinates with Action VCPWA-WP-14)									
Hazards Mitigated.	Flooding, Severe	Weather, Severe	Storms, Severe Weather, Se	ea Level Rise	, Tsunami				
Initial action with gate at the severe storms, sev									

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

	Table 1-16. Mitigation Action Priority							
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
VUC-1	7	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
VUC-2	12	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
VUC-3	17	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
VUC-4	12	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
VUC-5	19	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Medium
VUC-6	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
VUC-7	2	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
VUC-8	7	Low	Medium	No	No	Yes	Low	Low
VUC-9	9	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
VUC-10	12	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
VUC-11	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
VUC-12	3	Medium	High	No	No	No	Low	Low
VUC-13	5	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium
VUC-14	4	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium
VUC-15	14	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes-only at a level that is "Minimally Necessary to Comply"	Medium	Medium
VUC-16	8	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes-only at a level that is "Minimally Necessary to Comply"	Medium	Medium
VUC-17	12	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
VUC-18	12	Medium	High	Yes	Yes	No	High	High
VUC-19	12	Medium	High	Yes	Yes	Maintaining Class 5-CRS Rating: Yes. Reducing Severe Repetitive Loss Property Exposure: No	Low	Medium
VUC-20	13	High	High	Yes	Yes	Establishing Partnerships with NGOs: Yes Acquiring flood plain properties, carrying out restoration projects, and including green design elements: No	Low	Medium
VUC-21	12	High	High	Yes	Yes	Advance planning and feasibility analysis: Yes Perform Final Design and Construction: No	Medium	High
VUC-22	13	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Coordination with FEMA: Yes New Hazard Mitigation Project Planning and Execution: No	Medium	Medium
VUC-23	8	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Coordination with FEMA, DWR, and DSOD: Yes Emergency Action Plan Refinements: No	Medium	High
VUC-24	15	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
VUC-25	11	High	High	Yes	Yes	Collaboration with City of Oxnard: Yes OBRAP Flood Mitigation Project Design and Implementation Actions: No	Medium	High

Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
VUC-26	14	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Coordination efforts with WCVC, its DAC, and NGOs: Yes Flood Mitigation Project Design and Implementation Actions: No	Medium	High

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 1-17. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
			Actio	n Addressing Haza	rd, by Mitigat	ion Type ^a		
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building
High-Risk Haz	zards							
Landslides	VUC-2	VUC-1	VUC-3, 16	VUC-20	VUC-11, 14	VUC-17, 18		VUC-3, 11, 12, 14, 15
Wildfire	VUC-2, 9, 10	VUC-1, 9, 10	VUC-3, 9, 10	VUC-9, 10, 20	VUC-6, 7, 9, 10, 14		VUC-5, 9, 10	VUC-3, 5, 9, 10, 12, 14, 15
Earthquake	VUC-2, 13, 23	VUC-1	VUC-3, 8		VUC-6, 7, 23	VUC-17, 18		VUC-3, 8, 12, 13, 15
Severe Storms	VUC-2, 4, 22, 23	VUC-1, 19	VUC-3, 4, 16	VUC-20, 21	VUC-6, 7, 16, 23	VUC-17, 18, 24	VUC-5, 17, 18, 20	VUC-3, 4, 5, 11, 12, 15, 22
Severe Weather	VUC-2, 22, 23	VUC-1, 19	VUC-3, 16	VUC-20, 21	VUC-6, 7, 16, 23	VUC-17, 18, 24	VUC-5, 17, 18, 20	VUC-3, 5, 11, 12, 15, 22
Dam Failure	VUC-2, 4, 23	VUC-1, 19	VUC-3, 4	VUC-20	VUC-6, 7, 14, 16, 23	VUC-17, 18, 24	VUC-17, 18, 20	VUC-3, 4, 11, 12, 14, 15
Flooding	VUC-2, 4, 22, 23	VUC-1, 19	VUC-3, 4, 16	VUC-20, 21	VUC-6, 7, 14, 23	VUC-17, 18, 24	VUC-5, 17, 18, 20	VUC-3, 4, 5, 11, 12, 14, 15, 22
Low-Risk Haz	ards							
Sea Level Rise	VUC-2, 4, 22	VUC-1, 19	VUC-3, 4, 16	VUC-20, 21		VUC-17, 18	VUC-5, 20	VUC-3, 4, 5, 11, 12, 15, 22
Tsunami	VUC-2	VUC-1, 19	VUC-3, 16	VUC-20	VUC-6, 7	VUC-17, 18		VUC-3, 11, 12, 15
Drought	VUC-2		VUC-3	VUC-20, 21		VUC-24	VUC-5, 20	VUC-3, 5, 15

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

1.9 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- Ventura County Ordinance—The ordinance code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **2040 General Plan**—This document was reviewed to identify opportunities for hazard plan integration.

- **Coastal and Noncoastal Zoning Ordinances**—These documents were reviewed to identify opportunities for hazard plan integration.
- Ventura County Subdivision Ordinance, 2020—This document was reviewed to identify opportunities for hazard plan integration.
- Initial Study Assessment Guidelines, 2011
- Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Assessment, 2018
- Sea Level Rise Adaptation Report, 2019
- VCPWA-WP's Integrated Watershed Protection Plan Project Prioritization Process— Explored possible opportunities to better integrate the development of multi-benefit flood protection project partnerships with public and private sector agencies and organizations aimed at improving community resiliency to flood hazard risk, flood plain management, groundwater conservation, stormwater capture, environmental protection, and helping to secure a sustainable water supply for agricultural and urban users.
- VCPWA-WP 5 Year Capital Improvement Projects Plan, Annual Update—Confirmed inclusion of flood protection projects in WP's current 5-year portfolio which address a mix of high, medium, and low hazard risks found in WP's current Jurisdiction Annex, keying-up those projects as entries in WP's new 5-year Action Plan portfolio, including seven levee rehabilitation projects which when completed will ultimately result in local compliance with Federal Levee Certification regulations found in 44CFR65.10.
- Ventura County Flood Mitigation and Safety Plans—Consulted current plan documents to identify opportunities of alignment and optimization of WP's new 5-Year Action Plan submittal with the baseline framework found in these historical County flood mitigation and safety plan documents.
- VCPWA-WP's Preparation of Annual Recertifications and Cycle Verification of Class V Rating for Unincorporated Ventura County under FEMA's Community Rating System Program—Consulted the current Class 5 Rating program performance and reporting requirements to ensure continuation of this rating, as well as identified opportunities for renewed emphasis on the planning and implementation of flood mitigation projects for repetitive loss properties eligible for grant funding under FEMA's Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) program with the goal of reducing the number of repetitive loss properties in Ventura County.
- Ventura County Emergency Services Planning Documents—Reviewed emergency services planning documents prepared by the Ventura County Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services to gain a better understanding of how best to facilitate appropriate development of WP's new 5-year Action Plan submittal by complementing and supplementing countywide risk hazard emergency planning rubric defined by County's Emergency Action Plan, as well as refine Emergency Action Plans for the state-sized dams owned by the County.
- Ventura County Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (IRWMP) Updates and DAC Public Outreach Engagement Initiative—Explored framing potential opportunities to better coordinate joint efforts to plan, develop, and ultimately construct multi-benefit, flood resiliency and other risk hazard mitigation projects contained in WP's new 5-Year Action Plan submittal by increasing outreach and engagement with disadvantaged and socially vulnerable communities and tribal groups to better understand their unique community-lifeline vulnerabilities, facilitate

the development of flood hazard mitigation multi-benefit projects, and align and leverage advocacy efforts to optimize grant funding opportunities.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

- Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.
- BEACON Regional Sediment Management Plan
- General Services Agency, Energy Action Plan, April 2010
- Climate Protection Plan for Government Operations, April 2012
- Los Padres National Forest Land Management Plan, 2005

The following website resources were used to document natural hazard event damage assessment:

- <u>https://www.vcstar.com/story/news/2019/11/12/ventura-county-avocado-lemon-growers-blame-losses-power-shut-offs/4171383002/</u>
- <u>https://gro-intelligence.com/insights/articles/volatile-california-avocado-crop-keeps-market-on-edge</u>
- <u>https://www.vcstar.com/story/news/2019/08/03/ventura-county-california-agriculture/1859539001/</u>
- <u>http://www.coastalview.com/news/2019-avocado-market-rundown-volumes-down-and-prices-up/article_1a24b732-da67-11e9-9fdf-43ac94face0a.html</u>
- <u>https://goldrushcam.com/sierrasuntimes/index.php/news/local-news/18925-2018-heat-reduces-volume-of-2019-avocado-crop-california-farm-bureau-federation-reports</u>
- https://www.cnbc.com/2018/07/23/heatwave-hits-california-lemons-sending-prices-soaring.html
- https://grist.org/article/so-howd-those-avocados-handle-the-searing-heatwave/
- https://www.rdniehaus.com/app/uploads/2019/08/RDN_Montecito_Mudslides_Impacts-1.pdf
- <u>https://www.kclu.org/local-news/2016-04-27/battered-south-coast-pier-set-to-reopen-after-1-4-million-in-repairs</u>
- <u>http://archive.vcstar.com/news/local/ventura/much-of-the-ventura-pier-remains-closed-this-week-26f4a712-45e6-0d4b-e053-0100007ffddb-362537201.html</u>
- <u>http://archive.vcstar.com/news/local/ventura/ventura-pier-closed-due-to-high-surf-26a2626c-d797-40f2-e053-0100007f22a3-361574741.html</u>
- <u>https://archive.vcstar.com/news/waves-generated-by-hurricane-marie-threaten-pier-close-campground-beaches-ep-579996262-351261691.html/</u>
- https://migration.ucdavis.edu/rmn/more.php?id=1194_0_2_0
- <u>https://tdn.com/business/freeze-destroys-70-percent-of-california-orange-crop/article_de49ab3e-0d14-5b06-b53e-ea2dbcd115ce.html</u>
- https://www.dailynews.com/2007/02/04/despite-freeze-hopes-are-high-for-spring-harvest/
- https://www.montereyherald.com/2007/09/13/not-all-is-lost-for-state-farmers-caught-in-freeze/

The following website resources were used to document other noted vulnerabilities:

- <u>https://www.vcnewschannel.com/news/480-county-homeless-encampments-efforts-update</u>
- <u>https://www.conejoguardian.org/2021/09/23/county-fails-for-years-to-clear-illegal-riverbedencampment/</u>
- https://housefarmworkers.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/FAQs-about-ag.pdf
- <u>https://www.vcstar.com/story/news/2020/11/15/california-coronavirus-covid-19-ventura-county-financial-assistance-farmworkers/6265780002/</u>
- https://housefarmworkers.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/FAQs-about-ag.pdf
- <u>https://www.kqed.org/news/11363886/deportation-threats-worry-farmworkers-and-owners</u>

2. CITY OF CAMARILLO

2.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Carmen Nichols, Assistant City Manager 601 Carmen Drive Camarillo, CA 93010 805-388-5312 cvnichols@cityofcamarillo.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Roger Pichardo, Sr. Management Analyst 601 Carmen Drive Camarillo, CA 93010 805-388-5392 rpichardo@cityofcamarillo.org

Table 2-1 lists the members of the local hazard mitigation planning team that developed this annex.

	I able 2-1. Local Mitigation Planning Learn Members							
Name	Title	Name	Title					
Tali Tucker	Assistant Director of Public Works/City Engineer	Kristen Madary	Finance/Accounting Manager					
David Moe	Assistant Comm. Development Director	Roger Pichardo	Senior Management Analyst					
Jaclyn Lee	Principal Planner	Carmen Nichols	Assistant City Manager					
Tom Magdaleno	GIS Specialist	Michelle D'Anna	Community Relations Officer					
Tom Juzwiak	Deputy Building Official	Wendy Milligan	Terra Firma Enterprises (Consultant)					

2.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

2.2.1 Location and Features

Camarillo encompasses 19.86 square miles in west Ventura County at the base of the Conejo Grade, within the Oxnard Plain. The City is some eight miles from the ocean and the Pt. Mugu entrance to Naval Base Ventura County. Homes along the City's northern border are nestled among rolling hills and citrus groves; the northernmost boundary traverses the Las Posas Country Club. Pleasant Valley Road designates much of Camarillo's southern border, though the southernmost point is on Howard Road, near the southeast corner of the City. The eastern edge of Camarillo is situated partially up the Conejo Grade, along the Ventura Freeway (Hwy 101). Camarillo's furthest point west is at the end (cul-de-sac) of Del Norte Road, just north of Hwy 101.

2.2.2 History

The City of Camarillo was incorporated in 1964. In 1837, a large expanse of what would be the Conejo and Pleasant Valleys was established though a Mexican land grant, which Juan Camarillo purchased in 1875. Juan's sons, Adolfo and Juan, Jr., would govern the 10,000-acre Rancho Calleguas for many years. Adolfo oversaw the development of the Camarillo House and Ranch in 1892, and his brother would have a prominent role in the construction of the St. Mary Magdalen Chapel in 1913.

In 1899, a line of the Southern Pacific Railroad was extended from Somis to Oxnard. At the time, a businessman named John Sebastian relocated a store and post office that were displaced from an area called Springville by the new rail line. When asked to provide a name for the new location of the store and post office, Sebastian suggested Calleguas, though the post office representative felt that name was confusing. Sebastian then proposed calling the area Camarillo, and by 1901 it was the official name for the settlement.

For years, from horse-drawn wagons to early automobiles, the route from Thousand Oaks north down the Conejo Grade involved 24 switchbacks. The journey was quite a trek, especially during warmer days. As travelers looked down the grade toward present day Camarillo, they often commented on it being such a pleasant valley.

Eventually, the region from Somis south to Pt. Mugu became known as Pleasant Valley and would be an integral part of the larger farming industry in Ventura County.

In 1942, with America involved in World War II, Naval Base Ventura County was commissioned, and a military airfield was built near Camarillo. In 1945, the airfield was officially known as Oxnard Air Force Base. The County of Ventura purchased the site in 1976 and began the transformation of the base to what is now Camarillo Airport.

In the early 1960s, a movement by the City of Oxnard to annex Camarillo galvanized community leaders, who organized a push for cityhood. In September 1964, cityhood was approved by voters and the following month Camarillo was officially recognized as an incorporated city. At the time, the City had approximately 12,000 residents, and an area of 5.5 square miles.

2.2.3 Governing Body

Camarillo is a general law city. The five-member City Council is the governing body with the responsibility of adopting the HMP. The responsibility for implementing the plan is shared by the Office of the City Manager, and the Community Development and Public Works Departments.

2.3 CURRENT TRENDS

2.3.1 Population

Camarillo has an estimated population of 70,261 (California Department of Finance estimate 2020). Camarillo is currently growing at a rate of 1.42% annually (https://worldpopulationreview.com).

2.3.2 Development

Table 2-2 summarizes development trends in the period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

Table 2	Table 2-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends						
Criterion	Respons	se					
 Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan? If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or structures. 	Yes Annexations since the County's last HMP update included a 3-acre parcel, initiated by the City, for the Camarillo LDS Church (n/e corner of Las Posas Road and Camino Alvarez); also, properties near the n/w corner of Lewis (Hwy 34) and Las Posas Roads were annexed for the development of the City's new desalter plant. Construction is underway, and the desalter could be operational by early 2022. The City annexed 7.81-acres for the project from the Ventura Co. Resource Conservation District, 4.5-acres of which is under the purview of the Camarillo Sanitary District.						
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan?	No						
 Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years? If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas 	Yes. Over the past five years Camarillo has had significant residential construction activity, which is expected to continue for several years. A prominent commercial development is also underway just south of the 101 Freeway, and a steady progression of reuse and new industrial projects is anticipated. The primary natural hazard concerns for Camarillo include earthquakes and liquefaction, and wildland fires. Ongoing drought and dry vegetation continue to pose an elevated risk for fires, though the main areas of concern are in existing hillside communities in the northern portions of the City. The main faults in/near Camarillo include the Bailey, Simi-Santa Rosa, and Wright Faults. While these faults have limited intersection with properties proposed for development, major ruptures along the state's larger fault lines could generate substantial ground movement though to what extent is difficult to forecast. As is the case in much of Ventura County, liquefaction is a potential threat connected to earthquakes. Approximately 25% of Camarillo's soil is identified as being in liquefaction zones, primarily in the southeast and southwest sections						
Permits for new construction issued		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	
since the preparation of the previous	Single Family	90	78	37	2	11	
hazard mitigation plan. (For single-	Multi-Family	67	821	619	199	53	
permit: for multi-fam., the numbers are	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	4	9	8	6	2	
total units. Multi-fam. refers to apartments, townhomes, and duplexes. A permit for one apartment building may include 20 units.)	Total	161	908	664	207	66	

Criterion	Response
Provide the number of new- construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	 Special Flood Hazard Areas: 0 Landslide: 0 High Liquefaction Areas: 0 Tsunami Inundation Area: 0 Wildfire Risk Areas: Please see clarification below. Of the considerable residential development in Camarillo over the past 5+ years, no units have been built, or are currently under construction within a 100-year flood zone. During this period, approximately 350 residences (low-medium-high density) have been built in 500-yr. areas, and another high-density project (385 units) is pending approval. There is a low-income project (75 units) proposed for a 2.5-acre site that is owned by the City; if these apartments are ultimately constructed, the project would likely require flood mitigation measures (100-yr.). As noted, areas of greatest concern for wildland fire, and those most involved in PSPS events, are in the northwest section of Camarillo. and parts outside (north of) the City. A large project
	with 281 homes (single-family and duplexes) is under construction approximately 0.8-miles west of a high fire risk zone, with a very-high zone just beyond. This development, for persons 55 years and older, is located east of Hwy 34, on the north side of Upland Road. Another project that is currently under review would result in 248 low-medium density homes in a section of the Camarillo Springs Golf Course, which lies in a very-high fire risk zone.
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	Under current zoning, and considering sites under construction or entitled for building, about 60- acres of land is under review for potential housing projects. Over 150-acres are proposed for changes in zoning for industrial projects. There are also 46-acres of commercially-zoned land just off (south of) the 101 Freeway, at Las Posas Road. This site has the potential for 325,000 sq. ft. of retail, though internet sales have changed the brick/mortar outlook for many retailers. Additionally, another 25-acres of vacant land could be considered for recreational uses (ice rinks, bowling, etc.) in the future.

2.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 2-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 2-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 2-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 2-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 2-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 2-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 2-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 2-10.

	Table 2-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability							
		Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?			
Codes, Ord	inances, & Requirements							
Building Co	de	Yes	No	Yes	Yes			
Comment:	2019 CA Building Code, as amended by the City of Ca	amarillo (Ord. 11	67), adopted Oct. 23, 2	2019				
Zoning Cod	e	Yes	No	No	Yes			
Comment:	Title 19 of the Camarillo Municipal Code, as amended including subsequent amendments.	by the City of C	amarillo (Ordinance 9),	adopted Febru	ary 10, 1965,			
Subdivision	S	Yes	Yes	Yes	No			
Comment:	Camarillo Municipal Code Title 18, Subdivisions (Ord. amendments	570), adopted N	lay 23,1984 including s	ubsequent add	itions and			
Stormwater	Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes			
Comment:	Camarillo Municipal Code Chapter 9.32, Stormwater C additions and amendments	Quality (Ord. 107	4), adopted December	12, 2012 inclua	ling subsequent			
Post-Disast	er Recovery	No	No	No	No			
Comment:								
Real Estate	Disclosure	No	Yes	Yes	No			
Comment:	California Civil Code §1102							
Growth Mar	nagement	Yes	No	No	Yes			
	through the Residential Development Evaluation Boar units per year to projects that meet the evaluation crite effective January 1, 2020 and prevents the City from e extends the term of SB 330 five years from January 1,	d process in whi eria with exempti enforcing Title 20 2025, to Januar	ch the City Council ma ons allowed for low-inc) until January 1, 2025. y 1, 2030.	y award up to 4 come units. SB 3 SB 8 was signe	00 residential 330 became ed into law and			
Site Plan Re	eview	Yes	No	No	Yes			
Comment:	Title 19 of the Camarillo Municipal Code, as amended including subsequent amendments.	by the City of C	amarillo (Ordinance 9),	adopted Febru	ary 10, 1965,			
Environmer	tal Protection	No	No	Yes	Yes			
Comment:	California Environmental Quality Act, signed into law b	y the State of C	alifornia in 1970.					
Flood Dama	ge Prevention	Yes	Yes	No	Yes			
Comment:	Camarillo Municipal Code Chapter 16.34, Flood Dama subsequent additions and amendments	nge Protection (C	Drd 616), adopted Augu	ıst 27, 1986 inci	luding			
Emergency	Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes			
Comment:	Camarillo Municipal Code, Chapter 2.32—Emergency	Management S	ystems, 2004					
Climate Cha	ange	Yes	No	No	Yes			
Comment:	The City currently does not have any adopted ordinan developing a Climate Action Plan in the near future.	ce related to Clir	mate Change, however	the City is plan	ning on			
Planning Do	ocuments							
General Pla	n	Yes	No	Yes	Yes			
Is the plan of Comment:	compliant with Assembly Bill 2140? No The City is currently updating its Safety Element, in co	mpliance with A	В 2140.					
Capital Imp	rovement Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes			
How often i Comment:	s the plan updated? Every 5 years City of Camarillo FY 2021-2026 Capital Improvement.	Programs, adopi	ted 6/23/21					
Disaster De	bris Management Plan	No	No	No	No			
Comment:								

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?				
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	Yes	Yes	No	Yes				
Comment: FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Maps, first Effective Sept	ember 29, 1986	including subsequent	additions and ai	mendments				
Stormwater Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes				
<i>Comment:</i> Ventura County Technical Guidance Manual, approved July 13, 2011 by LARWQCB. The manual provides guidance on the Planning and Land Development requirements in the Ventura County MS4 Permit, adopted July 8, 2010 by LA Regional Water Quality Control Board. City catch basin program prioritizes maintenance of catch basins as required by the VC MS4 Permit, adopted July 8, 2010.								
Urban Water Management Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes				
Comment: City of Camarillo 2020 Urban Water Management Plan	n, adopted June	23, 2021.						
Habitat Conservation Plan	Yes	Yes/ Federal	No	Yes				
<i>Comment:</i> A habitat conservation plan is required as part of an ap Act, however the City does not currently have any hab	oplication for an itat conservation	incidental take permit ι πplans.	under the Endar	ngered Species				
Economic Development Plan	Yes	No	No	No				
Comment: City of Camarillo Economic Development Strategic Pla	an, September 5	,2018						
Shoreline Management Plan	No	No	No	No				
Comment: No shoreline								
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	No	Yes	No	Yes				
Comment: Ventura County Community Wildfire Protection Plan, 2	2010							
Forest Management Plan	No	Yes	No	No				
Comment: City of Camarillo does have a Comprehensive Tree Pl	an and Approve	d Street List.						
Climate Action Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes				
Comment: The City currently does not have a Climate Action Plan	n, however the C	ity is planning on deve	loping one in th	e near future.				
Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes				
<i>Comment:</i> The City Manager's Office oversees emergency mana operations plan (EOP). Section Eight-Hazard Summar is subject to and references the Ventura County Multi- approved October 13, 2021.	<i>gement and our</i> y for City of Can Hazard Mitigatio	EOC. We are currently narillo presents a sumn n Plan for more specifi	<i>y updating the e</i> nary of all the ha c information. T	mergency azards the City his Plan was				
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	No	No	No	Yes				
Comment:								
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	No	No	No	Yes				
Comment:								
Continuity of Operations Plan Comment:	No	No	No	No				
Public Health Plan	No	Yes	Yes	No				
Comment: Ventura County Public Health Emergency Response F	Plan, 2019							
Other								
Comment:								

Table 2-4. Development and Permitting Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits? Yes				
If no, who does? If yes, which department? Planning, and the Building/Safety Divisions.				
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	No			
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	Yes			

Table 2-5. Fiscal Capability				
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?			
Community Development Block Grants	Yes			
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes			
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes			
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service Yes				
If yes, specify: Public Works user fees pertain to sewer and water connection.				
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes			
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes			
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	Yes			
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	Yes			
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes			
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes			

Table 2-6. Administrative and Technical Capability					
Staff/Personnel Resource					
Planners or engineers with kno	wledge of land development and land management practices	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Community Development Department (Planning + Building and Safety), and Public Works land development).	(engineers in			
Engineers or professionals trai	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	If Yes, Department /Position: Building and Safety Division, and Public Works for infrastructure projects (streets, sewer, water, storm drains).				
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position: Community Development and Public Works, though consultants are also hired for certain projects.					
Staff with training in benefit-co	st analysis	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position: Building and Safety, and Public Works for infrastructure projects (streets, sewer, water, storm drains). Again, consultants are hired for certain projects.					
Surveyors		No			
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Administrative Services, GIS Specialist				
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	No			
Emergency manager		Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	The Sr. Management Analyst in the City Manager's Office serves as the EOC Coordinator.				
Grant writers		Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Sr. Management Analyst, City Manager's Office.				
Other		Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Civil Engineer, Public Works Dept.				

Table 2-7. Education and Outreach Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes			
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes			
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? <i>If yes, briefly describe:</i> Links to several emergency preparedness websites are available on the City's website (https://www.ci.camarillo.ca.us/departments/fire/emergencies.php).	Yes			
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe: City of Camarillo Government Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, LinkedIn.	Yes			
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? If yes, briefly describe: The City has an active Community Emergency Response Team.	Yes			
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? <i>If yes, briefly describe:</i> VC Alert, City "Notify Me!" Emergency Email Distribution, City website (www.cityofcamarillo.org)	Yes			
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe: VC Alert	Yes			

Table 2-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance					
Criterion	Response				
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Public Works				
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	City Engineer (Public Works)				
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	Yes				
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	1993				
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements?	Meets				
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	September 2018				
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed?	No				
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction?	No				
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction?	Yes				
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program?	No				
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program? Yes	No				
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction?aWhat is the insurance in force?\$203,471,400What is the premium in force?\$534,728	664				
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction? ^a What were the total payments for losses? \$1,135,612	21				
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021					

Table 2-9. Community Classifications					
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified		
FIPS Code	Yes	111-10046			
DUNS #	Yes	070207006			
Community Rating System	No				
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	Yes	Grading Class-2			
Public Protection	Yes	03/3X	12/21/2018		
Storm Ready	No				
Firewise	No				
Tsunami Ready	No				

Table 2-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change				
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a			
Technical Capacity	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near future	re.			
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near future	re.			
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near future	re.			
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near future	re.			
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near future	re.			
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near future of the second	re.			
Implementation Capacity				
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near futu	re.			
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near future	re.			
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near futu	re.			
Champions for climate action in local government departments	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near future	re.			
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near futu	re.			
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	Low			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near future	re.			
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near future of the second	re.			
Public Capacity				
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near future	re.			
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts	Medium			
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near future	re.			

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near fut	ure.
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near fut	ure.
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium
Comment: To be further evaluated in the Climate Action Plan that the City is planning on developing in the near fut	ure.

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

2.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

2.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- City of Camarillo General Plan, Safety Plan, Policy SAF-1.1a– Incorporate new and updated hazards information relevant to the City of Camarillo into the Safety Element, Emergency Operations Plan, and/or Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, as appropriate.
- City of Camarillo, Emergency Operations Plan (EOP), 2021 (pending approval)—Section Eight-Hazard Summary for City of Camarillo presents a summary of all the hazards the City is subject to and references the Ventura County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan for more specific information.
- **Capital Improvement Plan**—The capital improvement plan includes projects that can help mitigate potential hazards. The City will act to ensure consistency between the hazard mitigation plan and the current and future capital improvement plans. The hazard mitigation plan may identify new possible funding sources for capital improvement projects and may result in modifications to proposed projects based on results of the risk assessment.
- Building Code, Title 16, Chapter 16.34.340, Hazard Mitigation Plan—Identifies that the planning commission shall consider whether proposed development is in or affects a known floodplain, practical alternatives to the proposed development if in a floodplain, impacts of the project on the floodplain and plans to mitigate the impact of the development on the floodplain.

2.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- **Climate Action Plan**—The Climate Action Plan is a comprehensive roadmap that outlines the specific activities that an agency will undertake to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Currently, the City does not have a Climate Action Plan but is planning to develop one in the near future.
- **Capital Improvement Projects**—Capital improvement project proposals may take into consideration hazard mitigation potential as a means of evaluating project prioritization.
- **Post-Disaster Recovery Plan**—The City does not have a recovery plan but may consider developing one as a mitigation planning action if funds become available. The plan will build on the goals and objectives identified in the hazard mitigation plan.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

2.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

2.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 2-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	January 20, 2020 and continuing	City did not experience any property damages from COVID19 just emergency protective measures response related costs total approximately \$30,176.
Maria Fire	FM-5302	November 1, 2019	City was not directly impacted by this fire, however, The Arc of Ventura County opened a community shelter at the Camarillo Community Center.
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows (Thomas Fire)	DR-4353	December 4, 2017- January 31, 2018	Although this fire burned 281,893 acres in both Ventura County and Santa Barbara County, the City was only indirectly impacted by smoke.
Camarillo Springs Mudflow		November 1 and December 12, 2014	Nov. 1 -Twenty homes were evacuated, including two homes that were severely damaged. Dec. 12. Sixteen homes were damaged, including 10 homes that were red-tagged
Springs Fire	FM-5024	May 2 – 11, 2013	24,251 acres burned; 10 outbuildings destroyed; 6 commercial properties and 6 outbuildings damaged.

Table 2-11. Past Natural Hazard Events

Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows	DR-1731	October 21 – March 31, 2008	Although Ventura County was impacted by the Ranch Fire, the City of Camarillo was not directly impacted except for heavy smoke.
Severe Freeze	DR-1689	January 11 – 17, 2007	This disaster impacted mainly the citrus and avocado crops throughout Ventura County, but no crops in the City were impacted.
Shekell Fire	FM-2681	December 3 – 6, 2006	This fire burned in Fillmore and Moorpark. Camarillo had no direct impacts from the fire only indirectly from smoke.
Day Fire	FM-2677	September 25 – 30, 2006	City of Camarillo was not directly impacted except for heavy smoke.
Topanga Fire	FM-2583	September 28 – October 10, 2005	City of Camarillo was not directly impacted except for smoke.
Severe Storms, Flooding, Landslides, and Mud and Debris Flows	DR-1585	February 16 – 23, 2005	City experienced localized flooding. No significant losses were documented.
Severe Storms, Flooding, Debris Flows, and Mudslides	DR-1577	December 27, 2004 – January 11, 2005	Water and mudslides damaged at least two homes after debris jammed a city storm drain.
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflow and Debris Flow	DR-1498	October 21, 2003 – March 31, 2004	City of Camarillo was not directly impacted from the fires in Piru and Fillmore except for heavy smoke. Flooding caused downed trees and blocked roads.
Severe Winter Storms and Flooding	DR-1203	February 2 – April 30, 1998	Channel at Las Posas Rd. and Ventura Blvd. damaged (\$500,000), clogged storm drains. Camarillo Springs Golf course was damaged. It took 31 men about 10 full days of work to bring the course back to playability. Backed up storm drains impacted several homes. City Hall flooded.
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding, Landslides, Mud Flows	DR-1046	February 13 – April 19, 1995	Large agricultural losses. Localized flooding and clogged storm drains. No major impact to the City of Camarillo.
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding, Landslides, Mud Flows	DR-1044	January 3 – February, 1995	Localized flooding and clogged storm drains. No major impact to the City of Camarillo.
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	January 17 – November 30,1994	Drywall sustained large cracks; exterior concrete block walls sustained hairline cracks; a few chimneys were cracked; a few windows cracked; several small objects overturned and fell; light furniture overturned; heavy furniture was displaced; hanging objects and doors swung violently; many items were thrown from store shelves; masonry fences or retaining walls were partially fallen; underground pipes were broken.
Fires, Mud & Landslides, Soil Erosion, Flooding	DR-1005	October 26 – April 22, 1994	Multiple fires around Ventura County and subsequent flooding. Camarillo was not directly impacted except for smoke from the surrounding fires and backed up storm drains.
Severe Storm, Winter Storm, Mud & Landslides, Flooding	DR-979	January 5 – March 20, 1993	Camarillo trailer park flooded (Casa del Norte). Localized street flooding.
Snow Storm, Heavy Rain, High Winds, Flooding, Mudslide	DR-935	February 10 – 19, 1992	Countywide agricultural damages. City experienced localized street flooding.

Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
Severe Freeze	DR-894	December 19, 1990 – January 3, 1991	Countywide agricultural damages. Agricultural crops within the City suffered losses to their crops. More than \$100 million worth of avocados, oranges, strawberries and other fruits were destroyed.
Grass, Wildlands, Forest Fires	DR-739	June 26 – July 19, 1985	City of Camarillo was not directly impacted except for heavy smoke.
Coastal Storms, Floods, Slides, Tornadoes	DR-677	January 21 – March 30, 1983	Countywide crop damage. Flood flows broke through the leveed banks of Calleguas Creek in the lower reach below U.S. 101 and caused an estimated \$21.5 million in damage to agricultural properties. The City estimate of damages was \$160,000.
Severe Storms, Mudslides, Flooding	DR-615	January 8, 1980	Flooding countywide. No significant damage in the City of Camarillo
Coastal Storms, Mudslides, Flooding	DR-547	February 15, 1978	Evacuation of Leisure Village (150 homes) due to weakened earthen catch basin. Fallen trees (65-75) throughout the City totalling \$500,000 loss.
Severe Storms, High Tides, Flooding	DR-364	February 8, 1973	Countywide rain and flooding. Minor damages in the City of Camarillo
Forest, Brush Fires	DR-295	September 29, 1970	5 dwellings destroyed in the Camarillo Hills area, historic structure Rancho Lomita mansion destroyed and 10-15 outbuildings.
Severe Storms, Flooding	DR-253	January 26, 1969	Downed trees. Flooded streets, bridge damage (Calleguas Road Bridge) curb and gutter damage. Flood Control damages estimated at \$2,150, roads, streets and bridges damage is estimated at \$110,979.
Heavy Rains, Flooding	DR-211	December 7, 1965	Countywide flooding, Minimal damage to City of Camarillo.

2.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 2-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 2-12. Hazard Risk Ranking					
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category		
1	Earthquake	32	Medium		
2	Severe Storms	24	Medium		
3	Severe Weather	24	Medium		
4	Dam Failure	22	Medium		
5	Flooding	18	Medium		
6	Landslide ^a	18	Medium		
7	Wildfire	12	Medium		
8	Drought	9	Low		
9	Tsunami	0	Low		
10	Sea Level Rise	0	Low		
a. Landslide ranking is based only on the Very High susceptibility category.					

2.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: 0

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources: N/A

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

2.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 2-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 2-13. Status of Previous Plan Actions						
		Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update			
Action Item	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update		
OA 7 —Develop a water conservation public outreach program to increase awareness about the drought, fines and penalties for overuse and solutions for conserving water.			~	CAM-1		
Comment: Ongoing. Water conservation information is on the City's website reg	arding the City	/'s Stage 1 me	asures:			

- Including a rebate program to retrofit indoor plumbing fixtures with water-efficient versions.
 - Rebates for landscaping controllers and replacement of hose nozzles.
 - Daily inspections throughout the City's water service area to ensure compliance with Stage 1 measures.
 - Best management tools for water conservation.

OA 11—Develop and implement plans to increase the building owner's general	\checkmark	CAM-2
knowledge of and appreciation for the value of seismic upgrading of the		
building's structural and nonstructural elements.		

Comment: Ongoing. For several years, the City has been contacting the owners of apartment complexes (and one hotel) regarding the importance of retrofitting their soft-story carports. In March 2021, the City applied to Cal OES to retrofit the carports at four of these properties. Unfortunately, the grant did not get funded, but staff has continued to reach out to the owners about future grant applications and financing options.
		Removed;	Carried C Up	over to Plan date				
Action Item	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update				
OA 13 —Reinforce roads/bridges from flooding through protection activities, including elevating the roads/bridges and installing/widening culverts beneath the roads/bridges or upgrading storm drains.			~	CAM-3				
Comment: While no projects are currently planned, this may change in the near	future.							
CA 1—Broaden outreach efforts to get as many residents as possible registered with the VC Alert system.			~	CAM-4				
Comment: Ongoing. The City continues to disseminate information on the VC Alert and Pulse-Point programs through our CityScene and CERT-Scene newsletters, on our government TV channel programming, via social media, and on our website.								
CA 2 —Develop a vegetation restoration/enhancement program for areas that have shown to be susceptible to landslides.	~							
Comment: A vegetation restoration program was implemented for the hillsides a efforts were in response to extensive damage caused first by the Spi	bove the Cam	arillo Springs o later by landsl	communitie	es. These				

Camarillo Springs. No programs are currently planned for other sites in Camarillo.

2.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 2-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 2-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 2-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 2-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix						
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Benefits New or Estimate Sources of Existing Assets Objectives Met Lead Agency Support Agency d Cost Funding Timeline ^a					

Action CAM-1—Develop a water conservation public outreach program to increase awareness about the drought, fines and penalties for overuse and solutions for conserving water.

Hazards Mitigated: Drought

New & Existing	1, 17	Public Works	None	Medium	Staff time and	Ongoing
					General Funds	
					HMGP, BRIC	

Action CAM-2—Develop and implement plans to increase the building owner's general knowledge of and appreciation for the value of seismic upgrading of the building's structural and nonstructural elements.

Hazards Mitigated: Earthquake

New & Existing	1, 9, 12, 16, 17	Community	None	Medium	Staff time and	Ongoing
		Development/			General Funds	
		Building & Safety				

Action CAM-3—Reinforce roads/bridges from flooding through protection activities, including elevating the roads/bridges and installing/widening culverts beneath the roads/bridges or upgrading storm drains.

Hazards Mitigated: Flooding

Existing	2, 6, 9	Public Works	None	High	Staff Time, General Funds, HMGP, BRIC, FMA	Ongoing
					FIVIA	

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimate d Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a
Action CAM-4—Bro	aden outreach efforts	to get as many resi	idents as possible registered	with the VC	C Alert system. Wildfire Tsupami	Drought Soa
<u>Tiazaius miliyaleu.</u>	Level Rise	Storms, Severe we	ather, Dani Fallure, Floouling	, Lanusiiue,	wiiulite, Tsunaini,	Diouyni, Sea
New & Existing	1, 7, 17	Community Relations Officer	None	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing
Action CAM-5—Intecommunity.	egrate the hazard mitic	gation plan into othe	er plans, ordinances and proc	grams that c	lictate land use dec	isions in the
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	Earthquake, Flood, V	Vildfire, Landslide		1		
New	19	City Manager's Office	Community Development / Building and Safety, Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing
Action CAM-6—Act	ively participate in the	plan maintenance	protocols outlined in Volume	1 of this ha	zard mitigation plar	1.
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	Earthquake, Severe Level Rise	Storms, Severe We	ather, Dam Failure, Flooding	, Landslide,	Wildfire, Tsunami,	Drought, Sea
New & Existing	17, 19	City Manager's Office	Public Works/Community Development/ Building & Safety	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term
 Programs that, at a r Enforce the flood Participate in floo Provide public as <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> 	ninimum, meet the NF damage prevention o dplain identification ar sistance/information o Flood	TP requirements: rdinance. nd mapping updates n floodplain require	s. ments and impacts.	ugirinipieni		шпападеттет
New & Existing	1, 4, 17, 18	Public Works	FEMA	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing
Action CAM-8—Ide Plan. Hazards Mitigated:	ntify and pursue strate Drought, Sea Level F	egies to increase ad Rise, Severe Storms	aptive capacity to climate ch	ange includ	ing developing a C	imate Action
New & Existing	1, 2, 6, 12, 15, 17, 19	Community Development	Public Works	Medium	Staff Time, General Funds, HMGP, BRIC	Short-term
Action CAM-9—Pur Corporation Yard, Sa	chase generators for anitation Plant.	critical facilities and	infrastructure that lack adeq	luate backuj	p power, including (City Hall, Library,
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Existing	Earthquake, Severe 2, 6	Storms, Severe We Public Works	ather, Dam Failure, Flooding None	, Landslide, Medium	Wildfire, Tsunami Staff Time, General Funds, HMGP, BRIC	Short-term
Action CAM-10—Ar	nalyze the feasibility o	f developing a Post-	Disaster Recovery Pan and	develop Pla	an should funds bed	come available.
Hazards Mitigated: New & Existing	Earthquake, Severe 2, 6, 8, 19	Storms, Severe We City Manager's Office	ather, Dam Failure, Flooding	j, Landslide, Low	HMGP, PDM, FMA	Short-term
Action CAM-11—Ar	nalyze the feasibility o	f developing a Debr	is Management Plan and de	velop Plan s	should funds becon	ne available.
Hazards Mitigated: New & Existing	Earthquake, Severe	Storms, Severe We Public Works	ather, Dam Failure, Flooding None	, Landslide, Low	Wildfire, Tsunami Staff Time.	Ongoing
	_ 0 .0				General Funds	

	1				1	
Benefits New or	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimate	Sources of	Timelinea
Action CAM 12 Ar	aluzo the feasibility of	f doveloping a Cont	inuity of Operations Plan and	dovolon Di	an should funds ho	
Hazarda Mitigatod	Earthquaka Sovera	storms Sovoro Wo	athor Dam Eailura Eloadina		Mildfiro Tsupami	
Now & Existing		City Managor's	attict, Datti i allute, i looulity		Staff Time	Short torm
New & Existing	0, 10	Office		LOW	General Funds	Short-term
Action CAM-13—Co	ontinue analyzing the	cost/benefit of joinir	ng the Community Rating Sys	stem progra	m	
Hazards Mitigated:	Flooding					
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 9, 10, 16, 17	Public Works	FEMA	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing
Action CAM-14—Co	ontinue to participate i	n updating the Cou	nty's Community Wildfire Pro	tection Plan	I.	
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire	1 5	, ,			
New & Existing	2, 5, 8, 12, 17, 18	Ventura County	Community Development	Low	Staff Time,	Ongoing
-		Fire Protection District			General Funds	
Action CAM-15-U	odate Building Code to	o reference better th	ne HMP for building in all haz	ard areas.		
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Dam Fa	ilure, Flooding, Lan	dslide, Wildfire, Tsunami			
New & Existing	4	Community	None	Low	Staff Time,	Short-term
		Development/			General Funds	
Action CAM 1/ D	avalan a Threat and L	Building & Salety	and Diale Accomment anali	Fig. to the Cit	u chauld funda haa	ama ayailahla
ACTION CAIN-16-De	Evelop a Threat and H	Storma, Source Ma	and RISK Assessment speci	lic to the Cit	y should lunds bec	Ome available.
Hazarus miliyaleu:	Sea Level Rise	Storms, Severe we	ather, Dam Fallure, Flooding	, Lanusiide,	wiidille, Tsunami,	Drought and
New & Existing	1, 17	City Manager's	Community Development	Low/Medi	Staff Time,	Short-term
, i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i		Office		um	General Funds,	
Action CAM-17—Ar	nalyze the feasibility o	f developing a City-	specific Stormwater Manage	ment Plan.		
Hazards Mitigated:	Flooding, Severe Sto	orms				
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 9, 15, 17,	Public Works	Ventura County	Low	Staff Time,	Short-term
5	18		Watershed Protection		General Funds	
Action CAM-18-W	here appropriate, sup	port retrofitting, pure	chase or relocation of structu	res located	in hazard areas, pr	ioritizing those
that have experience	ed repetitive losses an	d/or are located in f	high- or medium-risk hazard	areas.		
Hazards Mitigated:	Earinquake, Flood, V	vildill'e, Landslide, L		Llieb		Chartter
Existing	9, 11	Office	Community Development	High	hivigp, pdivi, FMA	Snort-term
a Short-term - Co	mnlation within 5 year	rs: Long-term – Con	nolation within 10 years: One	noina- Conti	nuina now or ovisti	na program with

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

	Table 2-15. Mitigation Action Priority							
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	ls Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	2	Low	Medium	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium
2	5	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	No	Medium	Low
3	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
4	3	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low

Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
5	1	Medium	Low	Yes	No	No	Low	Low
6	2	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Low
7	4	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
8	7	Low	Medium	No	Yes	Yes	Low	Medium
9	2	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
10	4	Low	Low	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
11	3	Low	Low	Yes	No	No	Low	Low
12	2	Low	Low	Yes	No	No	Low	Low
13	7	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
14	6	Medium	Low	Yes	No	No	Low	Low
15	1	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
16	2	Low	Low	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
17	8	Low	Low	Yes	No	No	Low	Low
18	2	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High

See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities. а.

Table 2-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions									
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a							
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building ^b	
High-Risk Hazar	ds								
None									
Medium-Risk Ha	zards								
Earthquake	CAM-2, 5, 15	CAM-18	CAM-2, 4, 6		CAM-3, 4, 9			CAM-2, 6, 10, 11, 12, 16	
Severe Storms	CAM-8	CAM-3	CAM-4, 6		CAM-4, 17, 9	CAM-3	CAM-8, 16	CAM-6, 8, 10, 11, 12, 16, 17	
Severe Weather	CAM-8		CAM-4, 6	CAM-17	CAM-4, 9		CAM-8, 16	CAM-6, 8, 10, 11, 12, 16	
Dam Failure	CAM-15	CAM-18	CAM-4, 6		CAM-4, 10, 9			CAM-6, 10, 11, 12, 16	
Flooding	CAM-5, 7, 8, 13, 15	CAM-3, 18	CAM-4, 6, 7, 13	CAM-17	CAM-3, 4, 10, 9	CAM-3	CAM-8, 16	CAM-6, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 16, 17	
Landslide	CAM-5, 15	CAM-18	CAM-4, 6		CAM-4, 10, 9			CAM-6, 10, 11, 12, 16	
Wildfire	CAM-5, 14, 15	CAM-14, 18	CAM-4, 6, 14		CAM-4, 10, 9		CAM-8, 16	CAM-6, 10, 11, 12, 14, 16	
Low-Risk Hazards									
Drought	CAM-1, 8		CAM-1, 4, 6				CAM-8, 16	CAM-6, 8, 16	
Tsunami	CAM-15		CAM-4, 6		CAM-4, 9, 10			CAM-6, 10, 11, 12, 16	
Sea Level Rise	CAM-8		CAM-4, 6				CAM-8, 16	CAM-6, 8, 16	

а.

See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this b. hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

2.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 2-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 2-17. Local Public Outreach							
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved					
CityScene newsletter (Hard-copy Print)	Quarterly	22,000 Households					
CityScene newsletter (Email)	Quarterly	1,005					
CERTScene Newsletter (Email)	Four issues per year	989					
Cable TV channel	Ongoing	Unknown					
Official City of Camarillo Government Website	Ongoing	Unknown					
Social Media: Facebook	Ongoing/ As Needed	3,813 Followers					
Social Media: Instagram	Ongoing/ As Needed	480 Followers					
Social Media: LinkedIn	Ongoing/ As Needed	256 Followers					
Social Media: Twitter	Ongoing/ As Needed	50 Followers					
Marquee Sign (Carmen Drive/Paseo Camarillo)	Ongoing	Visible to Passersby					

2.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **City of Camarillo Municipal Code**—The Municipal Code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for HMP integration.
- City of Camarillo General Plan, Safety Plan, Policy SAF-1.1a– The Safety Plan was reviewed for identifying risk assessment information and for identifying opportunities for HMP integration.
- **City of Camarillo, Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)**—The EOP was used to gather risk assessment information and to assess the City's capabilities associated with response in addition to identifying opportunities for HMP integration.
- **City of Camarillo 2020 Urban Water Management Plan**—The Urban Water Management Plan was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for HMP integration.
- **City of Camarillo Economic Development Strategic Plan**—The Economic Development Strategic Plan was reviewed for the full capability assessment.
- **Capital Improvement Plan**—The Capital Improvement Plan was used to identify possible hazard mitigation actions to add to the HMP and to identify opportunities for HMP integration.
- <u>https://www.cityofcamarillo.org/departments/administrative_services/gis_maps.php</u>, accessed October 4, 2021—Used to document location and features for the Jurisdictional Profile.
- City of Camarillo, Resolution to Accompany Application for State Aid Under the Emergency Flood Relief Law, Resolution 585, May 28, 1969 -- Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.

• City of Camarillo, Resolution to Accompany Application for State Aid Under the Emergency Flood Relief Law, Resolution 586, May 28, 1969-—Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

- Ventura County Fire Protection District, Unit Strategic Fire Plan, May 2020, page 6—Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.
- Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.
- Levin, Charles, "Storm's fury: flooding", *Ventura County Star*, January 10, 2005, Main News, pg.1-- Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.
- Dodge, Dani and Levin, Charles, "County gets a wet Christmas", Ventura County Star, December 26, 2003, Main News, pg. 1-- Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.
- Mansfield, Gregg, "Airport can see light at ditch's end—Repairs on flood-damaged channel near completion EL NINO'S WAKE: Camarillo, county wrangle over who must come up with \$500,000 to pay for work", *Ventura County Star*, March 19, 1998, News, A3-- Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.
- Zintel, Ed, "Out of bounds on the fairway—RAIN: Pre-planning helps courses survive deluge", *Ventura County Star*, March 18, 1998, Sports, B4-- Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.
- Mansfield, Ed, "Camarillans say city lagged in dealing with severe flooding—Neighborhood angry: Residents complain to council, but city defends its handling of job, says it couldn't be everywhere at once during last Friday's downpour", *Ventura County Star*, February 13, 1998, New, A3-- Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.
- Dewey, James, et.al., U.S. Department of the Interior U.S.Geological Survey, "Intensity Distribution and Isoseismal Maps for the Northridge, California, Earthquake Of January 17,1994", 1995- Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.
- Lozano, Carlos, "Storm Floods Camarillo Trailer Park : Weather: Rising water surrounds mobile home residents. Sheriff's deputies airlift farm workers stranded in a field. More rain is expected", Los Angeles Times, February 19, 1993, accessed digitally on October 18, 2021- Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.
- Gorman, Gary, "1990 in Ventura County: Year in Review: Slow Economy: Freeze Ruins Crops", Los Angeles Times, December 31, 1990, LA Times Archives- Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.
- Federal Emergency Management Agency, *Flood Insurance Study, Volume 1 of 3*, Ventura County, California, January 20, 2010- Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.
- Bevol, Steve. "Weary county cleans up", *Camarillo Daily News*, February 12, 1978, p.A1- Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.
- "Worst Fire in History Hits City", *Camarillo Daily News* September 28, 1970, p.A1- Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.

Sacramento Associated Press, "President Johnson Declares County Disaster Area", *Camarillo Daily News*, December 9, 1965, p.A2- Used to document natural hazard event damage assessment.



























3. CITY OF FILLMORE

3.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

D. Keith Gurrola, Fire Chief 250 Central Ave Fillmore, CA 93015 805-524-1500 keithg@fillmoreca.gov

Alternate Point of Contact

David Rowlands, City Manager 250 Central Ave Fillmore, CA 93015 805-524-1500 drowlands@fillmoreca.gov

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 3-1.

 Table 3-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members

Name	Title
D. Keith Gurrola	Fire Chief
David Rowlands	City Manager
Kevin McSweeney	City Planning Director
Ines Ebell	Planning Department Admin Assistant

3.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

3.2.1 Location and Features

The City of Fillmore is in the western portion of the County of Ventura, California.

The current boundaries generally extend from the Santa Clara River going north, the Sespe Creek going east, slightly east of Pole Creek going west and the northern city boundary is the start of the foothills to the Los Padres National Forest. Fillmore is bordered on three sides by waterways, encompassing an area of 4.3 square miles.

Fillmore is located in the historic Santa Clara River Valley which is primarily all agricultural land, used to grow a wide variety of fair weather crops. As mentioned, the City is bordered by three separate waterways and open wildlands to the north.

3.2.2 History

The City of Fillmore was incorporated in 1914. The town was established in the late 1800s and was known primarily as a railroad stop for travelers. With its fertile soils, the town quickly became an agricultural community. Oil was discovered years later in the hills that surround the Community and Fillmore started supporting businesses associated with oil production and support services. With the decline of the oil industry, Fillmore was able to diversify with light industry. The agricultural image of Fillmore has never gone away and is still quite robust. Fillmore is now known as a "bedroom community" where the majority of its working class residents commute to other nearby cities to work.

3.2.3 Governing Body Format

The City of Fillmore is governed by a Council–Manager form of government.

The Fillmore City Council assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the Fillmore City Manager will oversee its implementation through the oversight of the various City Departments.

3.3 CURRENT TRENDS

3.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of the City of Fillmore as of January 2020 was 15,566. Since 2010, the population has grown at an average annual rate of 0.37 percent.

3.3.2 Development

General development, overall has been primarily single family dwellings with an occasional multi-family unit. An industrial business park has had only one project developed. Currently there are several plans for in-fill of multi-family structures.

Table 3-2 summarizes development trends in the period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

3.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions.

Table 3-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends						
Criterion	Response					
 Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan? If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or 	Yes 3 acres, 0 structures					
structures.						
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan?	No					
Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years?If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas	Yes Industrial Park, no known hazard areas					
How many permits for new construction were		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
issued in your jurisdiction since the	Single Family	30	73	19	124	133
preparation of the previous hazard mitigation	Multi-Family	0	0	0	0	0
	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	0	1	0	0	0
	Total	30	74	19	124	133
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	All of the permits issued were in the flood hazard area. There was no new development in the wildland-urban interface zone.					
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	85%					

The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 3-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 3-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 3-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 3-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 3-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 3-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 3-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 3-10.

Table 3-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability					
	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?	
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements					
Building Code	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: 2019 CA Building Code, (Ord. No. 20-925, § 2, 1-28-20	020)				
Zoning Code	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Chapter 6.04, (Ord. No. 19-904, § 1, 3-26-2019)					
Subdivisions	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: Chapter 6.08, (Ord 467 § 1 (part), 1975)					
Stormwater Management	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Chapter 8.06, (Ord. No. 14-845, §§ 2, 3, 2-25-2014)					
Post-Disaster Recovery	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: 1994 City of Fillmore Zoning Code, County of Ventura Disaster Management Plan					
Real Estate Disclosure	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: California State Civil Code 1102 requires full disclosure property. 1994 City of Fillmore Zoning Code	e on natural haz	ard exposure of the sa	le/re-sale of any	and all real	
Growth Management	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	
Comment: Chapter 6.09 (Ord. 509 § 1 (part), 1980), County Green November 7, 2017)	n Belt Agreemei	nt Ventura County Ordi	nance No. 4512	? (Adopted	
Site Plan Review	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Chapter 6.08, Title IV (Ord. 467 § 1 (part), 1975)					
Environmental Protection	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Chapter 6.08.070 (Ord. 467 § 1 (part), 1975)					
Flood Damage Prevention	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Chapter 6.16 (Ord. 602 § 1 (part), 1988)					
Emergency Management	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Chapter 15.04.050 (Ord. 401 § 5, 1971)					
Climate Change	No	No	No	No	
Comment: None					
Planning Documents					
General Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Is the plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140? No Comment: 2003 Plan Needs Updating					
Capital Improvement Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
How often is the plan updated? Every 5 Years Comment: City of Fillmore					
Disaster Debris Management Plan	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Ventura County Disaster Recovery Plan, Adopted by B	OS in April 201	9			
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: City of Fillmore participates in the National Flood Insur	ance Program (l	NFIP)			
Stormwater Plan	No	No	No	No	
Comment: None					
Urban Water Management Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: City of Fillmore 2015 Urban Water Management Plan					
Habitat Conservation Plan	No	No	No	No	
Comment: None					

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Economic Development Plan	Yes	No	No	No
Comment: Economic Development Collaborative of Ventura Court	nty Partnership			
Shoreline Management Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment: N/A				
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment: None				
Forest Management Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment: N/A				
Climate Action Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment: None				
Emergency Operations Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: City of Fillmore Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)				
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	No	No	No	No
Comment: None				
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: Covered in the EOP				
Continuity of Operations Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Covered in the EOP				
Public Health Plan	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: County of Ventura Health Care Agency Public Health Emergency Response Plan (ERP)				

Table 3-4. Development and Permitting Capabil
--

Criterion	Response
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits? If no, who does? If yes, which department? Planning, Building, Fire	Yes
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	Yes
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	Yes

Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?
Community Development Block Grants	Yes
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service Yes	
If yes, specify: All utilities	
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	Yes
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes
Other	Yes (Maintenance Assessment Districts)

Table 3-6. Administrative and Technical Capability		
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?
Planners or engineers with know	owledge of land development and land management practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Planning, Engineering	
Engineers or professionals tra	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Planning, Engineering	
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Planning, Engineering	
Staff with training in benefit-co	ost analysis	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Planning, Engineering, Finance	
Surveyors		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Engineering	
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Engineering	
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	No
Emergency manager		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Fire	
Grant writers		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Finance, Fire	

Table 3-7. Education and Outreach Capability

Criterion	Response
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? If yes, briefly describe: Both the Police and Fire Department websites contain information.	Yes
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe: Yes, the major providers are all used for information sharing	Yes
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?	No
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? If yes, briefly describe: The City participates with County OES to disseminate emergency information	Yes
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events?	Yes
If yes, briefly describe: Yes, we utilize County OES along with neighborhood notification via Police/Fire	

Table 3-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance			
Criterion	Response		
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Engineering		
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Engineering		
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	No		
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	1998		
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements?	Meets		
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	unknown		

Criterion	Response
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed? <i>If so, state what they are.</i>	No
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction?	No
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? <i>If no, state why.</i>	Yes
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program?	No
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program? Unknown, would hav	No e to learn more
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? ^a What is the insurance in force? \$22,517,800 What is the premium in force? \$34,315	74
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction? ^a What were the total payments for losses? \$226,509	37
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021	

Table 3-9. Community Classifications				
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified	
FIPS Code	Yes	0611124092	N/A	
DUNS #	Yes	363056201	N/A	
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A	
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A	
Public Protection	Yes	04/4X	2018	
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A	
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A	
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A	

Table 3-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change				
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a			
Technical Capacity				
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	High			
Comment: Members of City Staff participate in local, regional, state and national committees				
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	High			
Comment: Members of City Staff participate in local, regional, state and national committees				
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	High			
Comment: Through committee contacts, unlimited to access via internet				
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	High			
Comment: Fillmore is a small geographical city with specifically known sources of emission				
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	High			
Comment: Fillmore implements an extensive review process, the total number of projects are manageable				
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	High			
Comment: City Staff participates at many levels				

	Jurisdiction
Criterion	Ratinga
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	High
Comment: Planning Commission and City Council advocate	
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Low
Comment: Currently addressing vehicle exhaust emissions	
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Medium
Comment: Costs effectiveness	
Champions for climate action in local government departments	Medium
Comment: Looking at opportunities for all new vehicles and equipment	
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Medium
Comment: All levels of decision making are to embrace	
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	Medium
Comment: Looking for grants, new purchases	
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	High
Comment: The City has full authority over all Departments	
Public Capacity	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Low
Comment:	
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts	Medium
Comment: General support, no negative reports	
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium
Comment: General support, no negative reports	
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium
Comment: Limited impact in short term	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium
Comment: Limited impact in short term, some impact from agriculture	

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

3.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

3.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

• Fillmore Municipal Code

- Developer Impact Fees
- 1994 City of Fillmore Zoning Code
- 2015 County of Ventura Disaster Management Plan
- General Plan Land Use Element 2005

3.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- Central Ventura County Regional Fire Safe Council Wildland Fire Mitigation Plan—In future updates, the Wildfire Mitigation Plan may use or reference applicable wildfire hazard maps and risk data presented in this hazard mitigation plan.
- **City of Fillmore Capital Improvement Plan 2021**—Capital improvement project proposals may take into consideration hazard mitigation potential to evaluate project prioritization.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

3.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

3.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 3-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

3.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 3-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

3.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Table 3-11. Past Natural Hazard Events						
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment			
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	Jan 20, 2020-current	N/A			
Thomas Fire	FM-5302	Dec 4, 2017-Jan 2018	No structural damage, but air quality issues and provided mutual aid. Opened evacuation centers at the high school and the recreation facility.			
Guiberson Fire	FM-2839	Sept 2009	No structural damage, but air quality issues and provided mutual aid.			
Day Fire	FM-2677	Sept 2006	No structural damage, but air quality issues and provided mutual aid.			
Wildfires	DR-1498	Oct 2003	No structural damage, but air quality issues and provided mutual aid.			
Severe Fires	EM-3120	Oct 1996	No structural damage, but air quality issues and provided mutual aid.			
Winter Storm	DR-1046	Feb 1995	Economic impacts affecting agricultural packinghouses			
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	Jan 1994	\$50 million in damage and building inspectors red-tagged about 200 buildings and homes as too dangerous to inhabit.			
Severe Storm	DR-935	Feb, 1992	N/A			
Severe Storm	DR-615	Jan 1980	N/A			
Flooding	DR-547	Feb 1978	Evacuations			
Sylmar Earthquake	N/A	Feb 9, 1971	N/A			
Brush Fires	DR-295	Sept 1970	Packing house within the city limits burned, but may have been an arson of opportunity.			
Flooding	DR-253	Jan 1969	Evacuations			
Flooding	N/A	Numerous pre 1964	N/A			
St Francis Dam Disaster		March 12, 1928	\$7 Million (1928)—Inundation of nearly the entire city, flooding, debris flows, destruction of infrastructure, high loss of life			

_	Table 3-12. Hazard Risk Ranking							
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category					
1	Dam Failure	36	High					
2	Earthquake	32	Medium					
3	Severe Storm	24	Medium					
4	Severe Weather	24	Medium					
5	Wildfire	18	Medium					
6	Flooding	18	Medium					
7	Landslide	18	Medium					
8	Drought	9	Low					

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: 0

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources: N/A

- Two large-scale evacuations due to hazardous material fires. Both events triggered evacuations of 25 percent of the city's population.
- City recreation facility is used as an evacuation center but lacks showers.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

3.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 3-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 3-13. Status of Previous Plan Actions							
		Removed;	Carrie Plan	d Over to Update			
Action Item	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update			
F 1—Construction of Pole Creek Debris Basin. The basin is awaiting Ventura County Watershed District approval for improvements to Final and to accept construction. The Basin will accept mud and debris flow from the Pole Creek watershed in a 100 year rain event and protect all future homes in the Heritage Valley Parks Specific Plan consisting of 750 residential units. The debris basin project includes levees, basin maintenance roads and water flow to the Santa Clara River. The Basin is proposed to be owned and operated by Ventura County Water Shed Protection District.	~						
Comment: The Basin was completed in 2009, it is maintained by the Developer until Ventur	a County Wat	ershed acce	pts				
F 2—Completion of the Heritage Valley Parks Levees. Over 1.5 miles of soil cement levee was constructed for protection of a 100 year storm and water flow from the Santa Clara River. Parks and streets about the levee in order to avoid any emergency conflict with proposed residential units. The Levee system protects the 750 proposed residential units in the Heritage Valley Parks Specific Plan and a proposed 110 condominium project proposed by KB Homes.	V						
Comment: The levee was completed in 2006 but not yet certified, awaiting final construction of the last few remaining residential units	1						
F 3 —Completion of the Lower Sespe Creek Levee. A ½ mile in length soil cement levee was constructed south of Hwy 23 to protect the newly constructed Water Recycling Plant and protect the future Business Park Master Plan.	~						
Comment: This levee was completed in 2008 from Hy 126 south to the City limits							
F 4—Completion of the Central Avenue Storm Drain. A large storm drain was installed in Central Ave to protect the Central Business District from floods that historically threatened downtown.	~						
Comment: This storm drain project was completed in 2008 and drains into the Santa Clara River, improvements will be made on last 100 yards							
F 5—Continue to monitor the need to demolish abandoned and dilapidated buildings.	✓						
Comment: This is an ongoing project, numerous buildings have been demolished, looking for opportunities as they present themselves for additional structures							

3.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 3-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 3-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 3-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 3-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix									
Benefits New or		Lead		Estimat					
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Agency	Support Agency	ed Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a			
Action FIL-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.									
Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide									
Existing	2, 6, 9, 10, 11	Public Works.	Community Development	High	Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term			
Action FIL-2—Inte community.	grate the hazard mitiga	tion plan into c	other plans, ordinances an	d program	is that dictate land use decisions in	n the			
Hazards Mitigated.	Dam Failure, Earthqu	uake, Severe S	Storm, Severe Weather, W	ildfire, Flo	oding, Landslide, Drought				
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 17, 19	Community Development	Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing			
Action FIL-3—Act	ively participate in the p	lan maintenan	ce protocols outlined in Vo	olume 1 of	this hazard mitigation plan.				
Hazards Mitigated.	Dam Failure, Earthqu	uake, Severe S	Storm, Severe Weather, W	ildfire, Flo	oding, Landslide, Drought				
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15	Public Works	Community Development	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term			
Enforce the floo Participate in flo Provide public a Hazards Mitigated.	d damage prevention o odplain identification au issistance/information c Flooding	nd mapping up nd mapping up n floodplain re	dates. quirements and impacts.						
New & Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 17	PUDIIC WORKS	Development	LOW	Statt Time, General Funds	Ungoing			
Action FIL-5—Ide	ntify and pursue strateg	ies to increase	adaptive capacity to climate	ate change	е.				
Hazards Mitigated.	Severe Storm, Sever	e Weather, Wi	Idfire, Flooding, Drought						
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 19	Community Development	Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds, Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term			
Action FIL-6—Pur	chase generators for cr	itical facilities a	and infrastructure that lack	adequate	e backup power.				
Hazards Mitigated.	Dam Failure, Earthqu	uake, Severe S	Storm, Severe Weather, W	ildfire, Flo	oding, Landslide				
Existing	2, 19	Public Works	Community Development	High	Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC and HMGP)	Short-term			
Action FIL-7—Stu individual capacity	dy feasibility of develop while also supporting a	ing a resilience nd strengtheni	e hub in the city to provide ng the community before a	the resou and during	rces residents need to enhance th a disaster event.	eir own			
Hazards Mitigated.	Dam Failure, Earthqu	uake, Severe S	Storm, Severe Weather, W	ildfire, Flo	oding, Landslide				
New	2, 3, 7, 8, 12, 17	Community Development		High	Staff Time, General Funds, Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term			

Benefits New or		Lead		Estimat		T'			
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Agency	Support Agency	ed Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline			
Action FIL-8—Study feasibility of developing an alternative Emergency Operations Center (EOC) location to use during a disaster.									
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Severe	Storm, Severe	Weather, Wildfire, Floodir	ng, Terrori	sm				
New	2, 3, 7, 8, 12, 17	Community Development		High	Staff Time, Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Long-term			
Action FIL-9—Har	dening of the City Wate	er Delivery Sys	tem and computerized up	grade.					
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam Failure, Severe	Storm, Severe	e Weather, Drought, Wildfi	re, Floodir	ng, Terrorism				
New	2, 6, 9, 10, 11	Public Works		High	Staff Time, Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term			
Action FIL-10—Co general community	ontinue and enhance th	e public outrea	ch program for wildfire ed	ucation ar	nd prevention among school childre	en and the			
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire								
New & Existing	2, 5, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 17	Fillmore Fire Department	Fire Safe Council	Low	Staff Time, Fillmore Volunteer Firefighter Foundation, Grant Funding—Edison International Utility Grant	Ongoing			
Action FIL-11—Ma and weeds to redu resistance is part o Hazards Mitigated:	aintain wildfire hazard fi ce the potential for tree f the program. (Coordir Wildfire	uel reduction p to-tree ignition ates with VCF	rogram for areas that have Ensure that a "maintena PD Action VFP-6)	e been ide nce now"	ntified with overgrown or dead bru component to provide continued fi	ish, trees re			
Now & Evisting	2 4 5 6 8 10 11	Fillmora Fira	CAL FIRE Ventura	Low	EEMA HMA (BRIC EMAP and	Ongoing			
NOW & EXISTING	13, 14, 15, 18, 19	Department	County Fire Protection District, Fire Safe Council	LOW	HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Unguing			

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 3-15. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	5	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
2	16	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
3	12	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
4	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
5	17	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Medium
6	2	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
7	6	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium
8	6	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium
9	5	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium
10	11	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
11	12	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 3-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
			Action Ad	dressing Haz	ard, by Mitigat	tion Type ^a		
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazards								
Dam Failure	FIL-2	FIL-1, 9	FIL-3		FIL-6			FIL-2, 3, 7
Medium-Risk Hazard	s							
Earthquake	FIL-2	FIL-1	FIL-3		FIL-6			FIL-2, 3, 7, 8
Severe Storm	FIL-2	FIL-1, 9	FIL-3		FIL-6		FIL-5	FIL-2, 3, 7, 8
Severe Weather	FIL-2	FIL-1, 9	FIL-3		FIL-6		FIL-5	FIL-2, 3, 7, 8
Wildfire	FIL-2	FIL-1, 9	FIL-3, 10	FIL-10, 11	FIL-6		FIL-5	FIL-2, 3, 7, 8
Flooding	FIL-2, 4	FIL-1, 9	FIL-3, 4		FIL-6		FIL-5	FIL-2, 3, 4, 7, 8
Landslide	FIL-2	FIL-1	FIL-3		FIL-6			FIL-2, 3, 7
Low-Risk Hazards								
Drought	FIL-2	FIL-9	FIL-3				FIL-5	FIL-2, 3

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

3.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 3-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 3-17. Local Public Outreach						
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved				
Disaster preparedness	Every September	500				
Earth Day	Every April	500				
Hazardous vegetation chipping days	May & September	100				
Fire department children education	10 times a year	10,000				

3.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **City of Fillmore Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **City of Fillmore Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance**—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.
- City of Fillmore General Plan—The GP was reviewed for the capability assessment.
- **City of Fillmore Capital Improvement Program**—The CIP was reviewed for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.


























4. CITY OF MOORPARK

4.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Mack Douglass, Program Manager 799 Moorpark Ave. Moorpark, CA 93021 Telephone: 805-517-6241 e-mail Address: mdouglass@Moorparkca.gov

Alternate Point of Contact

Kambiz Borhani, Finance Director 799 Moorpark Ave. Moorpark, CA 93021 Telephone: 805-517-6249 e-mail Address: kborhani@Moorparkca.gov

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 4-1.

Table 4-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members			
Name	Title		
Mack Douglass	Program Manager, Emergency Management		
Robert Valery	Parks and Facilities Supervisor		
Leonard Mendez	Public Works Supervisor		
PJ Gagajena	Assistant City Manager		
Douglas Spondello	Interim Community Development Director		

4.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

4.2.1 Location and Features

Founded by Robert Poindexter in 1900 and incorporated in July 1983, the City of Moorpark is one of ten incorporated cities of Ventura County and is located in the eastern portion of the County. The City encompasses approximately 12.4 square miles and a population of 36,278 as of 2020. It is generally bounded by the City of Simi Valley to the east, the Tierra Rejada Valley and City of Thousand Oaks to the south, and unincorporated lands to the west and north. Lands west of the city are largely agricultural and protected from development by the Save Open Space and Agricultural Resources voter approved initiatives requiring the public's vote before any agricultural or open space lands are rezoned for development. Lands to the north of City's boundary are largely mountainous. It is connected to the region by two freeways, SR-118 to the east and SR-23 to the south, and Los Angeles Avenue (SR-118) to the west. Moorpark is home to Moorpark Community College, and is served by the Moorpark Unified School District for grades K-12.

Significant geographical features include the Arroyo Simi, which runs from east to west through central Moorpark. The City is also bisected by State Routes 118 and 23.

4.2.2 History

What is known about the settled history of Moorpark begins with the Chumash tribe of Native Americans, who lived and traded in the area prior to the arrival of Spanish explorers in the 16th century and missionaries in the centuries that followed. The Chumash village of Quimisac was located northeast of present-day Moorpark in the vicinity of what is now known as Happy Camp Canyon Park. Permanent settlement of the area can be traced back to successive eras of land ownership, starting with the gifting of the Rancho San Jose de Nuestra Señora de Altagarcia y Simi (Rancho Simi) to Francisco Javier Pico and his brothers by Governor Diego de Borica in 1795. When Moorpark was founded, the small farming communities of Fremontville and Epworth were already established in the area. In 1900, Robert W. and Madeleine Poindexter established a town site in anticipation of the arrival of the Southern Pacific Railroad and named it Moorpark, after the apricot variety that grew in the region. A depot was constructed that year, and several buildings originally constructed in Fremontville and Epworth were relocated to the burgeoning town. Growth began in earnest after 1904, when the railroad tunnels through the Santa Susana Mountains were completed to the east, connecting the area to the Los Angeles basin. Early development in Moorpark was concentrated in the downtown area along High Street, with the area south of the railroad tracks remaining largely farmland for many years.

The railroad and its connection to faraway markets facilitated the growth of the agriculture industry, the economic lifeblood of Moorpark. In the City's early years, dry land crops such as apricots, black-eyed beans, hay, and lima beans were the primary farming staples. Though agriculture remained an economic engine after World War II, the growth of turkey, chicken, and egg ranches fed the development of the poultry industry and a diversifying economy.

Moorpark became one of the first cities in the world to run off commercial nuclear power in 1957. Moorpark Community College opened on September 11, 1967.

Moorpark was incorporated as a city on July 1, 1983, marking the most dramatic period of growth of new homes and businesses in the City's history. This period saw a substantial shift in the Moorpark's center of activity, with large-scale development occurring in many areas that had heretofore been used for agriculture. High Street and the surrounding area remained the social and retail center of Moorpark through the 1980s until commercial activity began to shift to the south and suburban-style, multitenant retail centers grew along Los Angeles Avenue. Significant growth in home construction began in the late 1970s and accelerated through the 1980s as subdivisions such as Mountain Meadows and Peach Hill expanded the city's built footprint from the flatlands into the surrounding hillsides. Despite this growth, vestiges of the City's history still remain. Moorpark contains three locally significant resources, nine Points of Historic Interest, and one built environment resource listed in the California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR). Locally significant resources include the Taylor House, the First Southern Baptist Church and High Street's Pepper Trees. The highest level of significance conferred on a historical resource in the City is applied to Tanner's Corner, which is listed in the CRHR as an individual property.

4.2.3 Governing Body Format

The City of Moorpark operates under a council-manager form of government. The City Council assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the City of Moorpark will oversee its implementation.

4.3 CURRENT TRENDS

4.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of the City of Moorpark as of January 2020 was 36,278. Since 2010, the population has grown at an average annual rate of 0.54 percent. Moorpark's median age of 37.6 is close to the County median of 37.9, but younger that the neighboring cities. The percentage of the population under 18 years old is 23.1 percent, close to the state and County and higher than its three neighbors. Its percentage of population 65 years and above is lower than the state and County and substantially lower than the neighboring cities.

4.3.2 Development

Table 4-2 summarizes development trends in the period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends. Figure 4-1 describes the existing land uses and development characteristics within the City of Moorpark.

Table 4-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends						
Criterion	Re	sponse				
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?	No					
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan?	No					
 Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years? If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas 	Yes There are several major development projects that have been entitled in various locations within Moorpark, including approximately 1,200 housing units, commercial and industrial projects. There are also several significant applications that are pending entitlement. Each site is unique but generally potential risks that have been assessed and mitigated with each project include areas of known liquefaction, potential flooding, and designated Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones. The Moorpark Community Development Department maintains a list of pending development projects on the Cibric website					
How many permits for new construction were	re 2016 2017 2018 2019 202				2020	
issued in your jurisdiction since the	Single Family	87	66	27	4	21
preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?	Multi-Family	0	0	0	0	185
	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	16	10	7	6	10
	Total	103	76	34	10	216

Criterion	Response
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	The majority of the City is within a designated Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone. Many properties near the Arroyo Simi are also within a FEMA Special Flood Hazard Area. Large areas of the City are also vulnerable to liquefaction, primarily along the Arroyo Simi and tributary streams.
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	Moorpark is approaching build out, with infill and redevelopment projects comprising the bulk of our construction activity. Limited numbers of development projects located around the periphery of the City, such as Hitch Ranch are moving through the entitlement process, but may not break ground in the near future.

Land Has	A	Destact
Land Use	Acres	Percent
Residential	2,274	28%
 Single-Family 	1,744	22%
Multifamily	202	3%
Mobile Home	41	.5%
 Rural Residential 	287	4%
Right of Way	1,155	14%
Office	37	0.5%
Commercial and Services	152	2%
Public Facilities and Quasi-Public	101	1%
Education	296	4%
Industrial	280	4%
Transportation, Communications, and Utilities	217	3%
Open Space and Recreation	2,240	28%
Agriculture	29	.5%
Vacant	1,069	13%
Water	141	2%
TOTAL	7,991	100%
RESIDENTIAL BUILDOUT*		
Туре	Dwelling Units	Percent
Single-Family Residential	9,859	86%
Multifamily Residential	1,412	12%
Mobile Homes	144	1%
TOTAL	11,415	100%
Source: SCAG and PlaceWorks 2020		

Figure 4-1. Moorpark Land Use and Development Characteristics

4.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 4-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 4-4. •
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 4-5. ٠
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 4-6. •
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 4-7. ٠
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 4-8. •
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 4-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 4-10.

i able 4-5. Flatilling a		y Capability		
	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements				
Building Code	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: California Building Code, 2019 Edition, adopted in Mor 2019)	orpark Municipa	I Code, Chapter 15.08	Building Code (Ord. 474 § 3,
Zoning Code	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: Moorpark Municipal Code Title 17, (Ord. 189 § 3 (810	1-0), 1994)			
Subdivisions	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: Moorpark Municipal Code Title 16, (Ord. 334 § 1 Exh.	A, 2006)			
Stormwater Management	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Moorpark Municipal Code Title 8, (Ord. 240 § 2, 1997)			
Post-Disaster Recovery	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: City of Moorpark Emergency Operations Plan. Last up	dated 2015, upo	date currently underway	у	
Real Estate Disclosure	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: California State Civil Code 1102 requires full disclosure on natural hazard exposure of the sale/re-sale of any and all real property.				
Growth Management	Yes	No	No	No
Comment: City of Moorpark General Plan. Last updated in 1992, comprehensive update is currently underway				
Site Plan Review	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Moorpark Municipal Code Chapter 17.44 Application Review Procedures. (Ord. 297 Exh. A, 2003)				

Table 4-3 Planning and Regulatory Canability

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?	
Environmental Protection	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	
Comment: CEQA (California Code of Regulations Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3) is implemented by the City for all land use impacts. On July 21, 2004, the City Council adopted Resolution Number 2004-2224 and on September 15, 2004, the Moorpark Redevelopment Agency adopted Resolution Number 2004-142, establishing Procedures of the City of Moorpark and Moorpark Redevelopment Agency to Implement the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The ongoing Comprehensive General Plan Undate will include a program EIR					
Flood Damage Prevention	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Moorpark Municipal Code Section 15.24 Floodplain M	anagement (Ord	l. 279 § 1, 2002)			
Emergency Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Moorpark Municipal Code Chapter 2.48 (Ord. 89-106)	§ 1, 1989)				
Climate Change	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Comprehensive General Plan update will contain a cli	mate change ele	ement.			
Planning Documents	Mar	Mar	N/s s	Mar	
General Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Is the plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140? Yes Comment: Comprehensive General Plan update is currently under	erway				
Capital Improvement Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
How often is the plan updated? CIP is approved by City Counc Comment: City of Moorpark Capital Improvement Program FY 20	cil every seven ye 16/17-2022/23	ears and updated by st	aff annually		
Disaster Debris Management Plan	No	Yes	No	No	
Comment: Ventura County Disaster Recovery Plan, Adopted by I	BOS in April 201	9			
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Moorpark Municipal Code Section 15.24. This code is supplement. The City participates in the National Floor	current through d Insurance Prog	Ordinance 20-488 and gram (NFIP)	the March 202	1 code	
Stormwater Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
<i>Comment:</i> Moorpark Municipal Code Section 8.52 This code is ca supplement.	urrent through O	rdinance 20-488 and th	ne March 2021 d	code	
Urban Water Management Plan	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	
Comment: City of Moorpark is not a water purveyor					
Habitat Conservation Plan Comment:	No	No	No	No	
Economic Development Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: Comprehensive General Plan update will contain an e	conomic develop	oment chapter.			
Shoreline Management Plan	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	
Comment: N/A	1				
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	No	No	No	No	
Comment: The city does not have this plan					
Forest Management Plan	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	
Comment: N/A					
Climate Action Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Climate Action Plan Element will be part of the ongoin	g General Plan l	Jpdate			
Emergency Operations Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: 2014 Moorpark Emergency Operations Plan. Comprel	nensive EOP Up	date currently underwa	iy.	N	
Inreat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (FHIRA)	No	Yes	No	No	
comment: The city does not have this assessment		N -	N -	N _c -	
Comment: This is part of the City of Moorpark Emergency Operation	res tions Plan (EOP)	NO 2014	NO	res	

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?	
Continuity of Operations Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: 2014 Moorpark Emergency Operations Plan. Comprehensive EOP Update currently underway.					
Public Health Plan	No	Yes	Yes	No	
<i>Comment:</i> The General Plan Update will include an Element regarding Public Health however the City does not currently have a Public					

Health Plan. County of Ventura Health Care Agency Public Health Emergency Response Plan (ERP)

Table 4-4. Development and Permitting Capability		
Criterion	Response	
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits?	Yes	
If no, who does? If yes, which department? Community Development		
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	No	
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	Yes	

Table 4-5. Fiscal Capability			
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?		
Community Development Block Grants	Yes		
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes		
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes		
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	No		
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes		
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes		
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	Yes		
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	Yes		
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes		
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes		

Table 4-6. Administrative	and Technical Cap	ability
---------------------------	-------------------	---------

Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?
Planners or engineers with kno	owledge of land development and land management practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Community Development and Public Works	-
Engineers or professionals tra	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works	
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Community Development and Public Works	
Staff with training in benefit-co	ost analysis	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Finance	
Surveyors		No
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	No
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	No
Emergency manager		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Program Manager, Finance Department	
Grant writers		No

Table 4-7. Education and Outreach Capability			
Criterion	Response		
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes		
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes		
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website?	No		
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach?	No		
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?	No		
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information?			
If yes, briefly describe: Community Emergency Response Team			
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events?	No		
If yes, briefly describe:			

Table 4-8.	National Flood	Insurance I	Program (Compliance	

Criterion	Response
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Public Works
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Public Works Director
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	No
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	2002
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements?	Meets
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	Unknown
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed?	No
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction?	No
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction?	Yes
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program?	No
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program? No	No
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? ^a What is the insurance in force? \$39,692,000 What is the premium in force? \$114,239	117
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction? ^a What were the total payments for losses? \$33,576	2
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021	

Table 4-9. Community Classifications								
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified					
FIPS Code	Yes	0611149138	N/A					
DUNS #	Yes	628053464	N/A					
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A					
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A					
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A					
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A					
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A					
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A					

Table 4-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change						
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a					
Technical Capacity	5					
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts Comment: Staff and elected officials understand potential climate change impacts.t	Medium					
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts Comment:	Low					
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities Comment:	Low					
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory Comment:	Low					
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts Comment: General Plan Update will include a climate action plan element.	High					
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks Comment:	Low					
Implementation Capacity						
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes Comment: City Council and the City Manager have the authority to consider and direct action to address potential of impacts	High Iimate change					
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts Comment: City Council recently enacted an SB 1383 compliant ordinance, which will reduce GHG emissions from a	High organic waste					
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Low					
Champions for climate action in local government departments Comment:	Unsure					
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies Comment:	Unsure					
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation Comment:	Low					
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted Comment:	Low					
Public Capacity						
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk Comment: Evidence of climate change is obvious in Moorpark and directly affects the lives of residents through sus frequent wildfires, high wind events and Public Safety Power Shutoffs.	Medium stained droughts,					
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts Comment:	Unsure					
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Unsure					
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Low					
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Unsure					
a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvem	ent;					

Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

4.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

4.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- County of Ventura Hazard Mitigation Plan
- City of Moorpark Emergency Operations Plan
- City of Moorpark General Plan, Safety Element (2001)

4.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

• **City of Moorpark General Plan**—The City of Moorpark is engaged in a comprehensive update to the General Plan and zoning ordinance that will include a full evaluation of potential hazards, climate issues, and Program Environmental Impact Report.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

4.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

4.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 4-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 4-11. Past Natural Hazard Events							
Type of Event	pe of Event Disaster # Date		Damage Assessment				
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	January 20, 2020 and continuing	COVID-19 Pandemic				
Maria Fire	FM-5302-CA	11/1/2019	\$6,199,112.56				
Easy Fire	FM-5298-CA	10/30/2019	\$2,833,870.64				
Heat Event	N/A	7/4/2018 to 7/6/2018	Extreme 2-day heat event broke records across the county.				
Thomas Fire	FM-5224	December 4, 2017	Unknown				
Winter Storms	N/A	2/17/2017 to 2/18/2017	Rainfall amounts from 2 to 6 inches across coastal areas with up to around 10 inches in the local mountains produced numerous reports of flash flooding as well as mud and debris flows. Strong southerly winds with gusts up to 70 mph reported in some areas.				
Guiberson Fire	FM-2839-CA	9/22/2009	\$8,033,270.01				
Flash Flood	sh Flood N/A January 25, 2008		California Highway Patrol reported heavy rain and flash flooding near the community of Moorpark. Reports indicated flash flooding along Tierra Rejada Drive at Hillside Drive.				
Severe Freeze Event	DR-1689	1/11/2007 to 1/17/2007	4 nights of below freezing temperatures.				
Shekell Fire	FM-2681-CA	12/3/2006	\$1,153,198.47				
Winter Storms	DR1577	1/7/2005 to 1/11/2005	Major roads including Highways 101, 126, 33 and 150 were closed for more than a week due to severe flooding				
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflow and Debris Flow	DR-1498	October 21, 2003 – March 31, 2003	Unknown				
1928 St. Francis Dam Failure	N/A	3/12/1928	>530 people died; bridges, orchards, farms, homes all eradicated in flood's path down the Santa Clara river valley to the Pacific Ocean.				

4.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 4-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 4-12. Hazard Risk Ranking						
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category			
1	Wildfire	36	High			
1	Landslide	36	High			
3	Earthquake	32	Medium			
4	Dam Failure	26	Medium			
5	Severe Weather	24	Medium			
5	Severe Storms	24	Medium			
7	Flooding	18	Medium			
8	Drought	9	Low			

4.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: 0

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Loss of power due to human action (PSPS).
 - At least 10 PSPS events affected the city during 2020, including several events that lasted for multiple days.
 - Traffic signals were affected.
 - > City Hall itself was left on backup power for several days.
 - > Police Service Facility has a lack of reliable power due to a faulty power switchover device.
 - > City was unable to provide a cooling center to residents due to a lack of power.
 - A charity using a City Facility to conduct food bank operations is susceptible to loss of perishable items due to power outages.
- Frequent urban flooding at the intersection of Millard St. and Sherman Ave.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

4.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 4-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 4-13. Status of Previous Plan Actions							
Action Item	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update			
OA 1 —Integrate the hazard analysis and mitigation strategy with the General Plan's Safety Element.			\checkmark	MPK-2			
OA 6 —Develop a public outreach program that informs property owners located in the			✓	MPK-7			
dam and levee failure inundation areas about voluntary flood insurance.							
Comment: Public works requires additional stail resources to complete this Action.	1						
about the drought, fines and penalties for overuse and solutions for conserving water.	v						
Comment: Done in concert with Calleguas MWD. Most recently implemented a drought	impact plan o	n 7/01/15.					
OA 8 —Adopt emergency water conservation measures and/or water conservation ordinance to limit irrigation.	~						
Comment: MMC 15.23.010 was amended most recently on 12/18/19.							
OA 10 —Seismically retrofit or upgrade seismically deficient government facilities and pre-identified shelter facilities.			~	MPK-1			
Comment: City Hall will likely be changing location to a seismically suitable facility in the	e near future						
OA 19 —Maintain vegetation management program that provides vegetation management services to elderly, disabled, or low-income property owners who lack the resources to remove flammable vegetation from around their homes.			~	MPK-8			
Comment: City requires additional staff resources to complete this action item.							
MP 1 —Generators: Purchase and install back-up generators for 3 facilities, one of which is often used by Ventura County Fire and Sheriff as an Incident Command Center and serves as an alternate Emergency Operation Center (EOC) for the City (Capital Improvement Project 7710)	~						
Comment: Completed in 2009.							
MP 2 —Hazardous Mitigation Planning: Modify current Neighborhood and Business Watch Programs with focus on electronic format including real-time information exchange between law enforcement and the community	✓						
Comment: Completed in 2016.							
MP 3 —Wildfire Mitigation: Work with Ventura County Fire to consider siting/planning for a new fire station by Moorpark College (east end of City)	✓						
Comment: Placement of new fire station under consideration by City and VCFPD.							
MP 4 —Mitigation Reconstruction: Reconstruct fire sprinkler system for the Community Center facility		\checkmark					
Comment: Use of Community Center Facility may be modified or discontinued when Cit longer feasible.	y Hall change	s location so	this actior	is no			

4.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 4-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 4-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 4-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 4-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix									
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Obiectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Fundina	Timeline ^a			
Action MPK-1—W that have experien	Action MPK-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.								
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Existing	Wildfire, Landslide, Earthquake, Da 2, 6, 9, 10, 11	am Failure, Severe City of Moorpark	e Weather, Sev N/A	vere Storms, High	Flooding Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term			
Action MPK-2—In community, includi	tegrate the hazard mitigation plan into ng the City's Emergency Operations F	o other plans, ordir Plan and General I	nances and pro Plan.	ograms that c	lictate land use decision	is in the			
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> New & Existing	Wildfire, Landslide, Flooding 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 17, 19	City of Moorpark	N/A	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing			
Action MPK-3—A	ctively participate in the plan maintena	ance protocols out	lined in Volum	e 1 of this ha	zard mitigation plan.				
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire, Landslide, Earthquake, Da	am Failure, Severe	e Weather, Sev	ere Storms,	Flooding, Drought				
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15	City of Moorpark	N/A	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term			
 Action MPK-4—Continue to maintain good standing and compliance under the NFIP through implementation of floodplain management programs that, at a minimum, meet the NFIP requirements: Enforce the flood damage prevention ordinance. Participate in floodplain identification and mapping updates. Provide public assistance/information on floodplain requirements and impacts. 									
New & Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 17	City of Moorpark	N/A	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing			
Action MPK-5—Identify and pursue strategies to increase adaptive capacity to climate change including but not limited to the following: • Climate Action Element of General Plan Update. • Consider a goal or policy to establish Reach Building Codes with the General Plan Update • Consider inclusion of a Climate Action Plan following the General Plan Update • Hazards Mitigated: Severe Weather, Severe Storms, Wildfire, Flooding, Drought New & Existing 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, City of Moorpark N/A Low Staff Time, General Short-term									
Action MPK-6-P	urchase generators for critical facilities	s and infrastructur	e that lack ade	quate backu	p power.				
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Existing	Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flooding 2, 6, 19	, Landslide, Sever City of Moorpark	e Weather, Wi N/A	ildfire, Severe Medium	e Storms Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP), Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term			
Action MPK-7—P	rovide reliable back up power for the I	Police Service Fac	ility.						
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Existing	Wildfire, Landslide, Earthquake, Da 2, 6, 19	am Failure, Severe City of Moorpark	e Weather, Sev N/A	vere Storms, Medium	Flooding Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP), Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term			
Action MPK-8—D about voluntary floe <u>Hazar</u> ds Mitigated:	evelop a public outreach program tha od insurance. Flooding	t informs property	owners located	d in the dam	and levee failure inunda	tion areas			
New & Existing	7, 17	City of Moorpark	N/A	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing			

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action MPK-9—Maintain vegetation management program that provides vegetation management services to elderly, disabled, or low- income property owners who lack the resources to remove flammable vegetation from around their homes. <i>Hazards Mitigated</i> : Wildfire							
New & Existing	5, 10, 13, 17	City of Moorpark	VCFPD	Medium	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing	
Action MPK-10—Proceed with construction of a storm drain to address flooding issues at Millard St. and Sherman Ave (CIP #504) Hazards Mitigated: Flooding							
Existing	2, 6, 8	City of Moorpark	Caltrans	Medium	Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), Staff Time, General Funds	Long-term	

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 4-15. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	5	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
2	16	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
3	12	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
4	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
5	17	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Medium
6	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
7	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
8	2	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
9	4	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
10	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 4-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
			Action Ad	dressing Haz	ard, by Mitigat	tion Type ^a		
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazards								
Wildfire	MPK-2	MPK-1	MPK-2, 3	MPK-9	MPK-6, 7		MPK-5	MPK-2, 3, 5, 9
Landslide	MPK-2	MPK-1	MPK-2, 3		MPK-6, 7			MPK-2, 3
Medium-Risk Hazard	s							
Earthquake		MPK-1	MPK-3		MPK-6, 7			MPK-3
Dam Failure	MPK-4	MPK-1	MPK-3		MPK-6, 7			MPK-3, 4
Severe Weather		MPK-1	MPK-3		MPK-6, 7		MPK-5	MPK-3, 5
Severe Storms		MPK-1	MPK-3		MPK-6, 7		MPK-5	MPK-3, 5
Flooding	MPK-2, 4	MPK-1	MPK-2, 3, 8		MPK-6, 7	MPK-10	MPK-5	MPK-2, 3, 4, 5
Low-Risk Hazards	Low-Risk Hazards							
Drought			MPK-3				MPK-5	MPK-3, 5

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

4.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 4-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 4-17. Local Public Outreach						
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved				
Community Emergency Response Team	Ongoing	10-20				

4.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **Moorpark Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **Moorpark Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance**—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.
- **Moorpark Emergency Operations Plan**—the Emergency Operations plan was examined for consistency with the County EOP and this Hazard Mitigation Plan.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.


























5. CITY OF OJAI

5.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

James Vega, City Manager 401 S. Ventura Street Ojai, CA 93023 Telephone: (805) 646-5581 ext. 102 e-mail Address: james.vega@ojai.ca.gov

Alternate Point of Contact

Alma Quezada, Interim Public Works Director 408 S. Signal Street Ojai, CA 93023 Telephone: (805) 646-5581 ext. 209 e-mail Address: alma.quezada@ojai.ca.gov

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 5-1.

Table 5-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members				
Name Title				
James Vega	City Manager			
Lucas Seibert	Community Development Director			
Alma Quezada	Interim Public Works Director			
Andrea Mackey	Management Analyst			
James Hahn	Technical Support Specialist			
Juan Morales	Interim Public Works Supervisor			

5.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

5.2.1 Location and Features

The City of Ojai is located in the Ojai Valley. The current boundaries generally extend from Villanova Road to Boardman Road, encompassing an area of 4.37 square miles.

Ojai is a small town that is a known as a tourist destination for its boutique hotels, recreation opportunities, hiking, and farmer's market of local organic agriculture. It is home to the annual Ojai Music Festival and the Ojai Tennis Tournament.

5.2.2 History

City of Ojai was incorporated in 1921. The town was originally named Nordhoff in 1874 but was later changed to Ojai in 1917. Edward Libbey of Libbey Glass Company built the Spanish-style downtown Arcade and park that exist today.

5.2.3 Governing Body Format

The City of Ojai is a Council-Manager form of government with five Council members elected by district. The City consists of five departments: Community Development, Finance, Public Works, Recreation, and the City Manager's office. The City Council assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the City Manager will oversee its implementation.

5.3 CURRENT TRENDS

5.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of the City of Ojai as of January 2020 was 7,450. Since 2010, the population has grown at an average annual rate of 0.13 percent.

5.3.2 Development

Anticipated future development for the City of Ojai is low to moderate. Recent development has been mostly infill. There has been a focus on accessory dwelling units. Future growth in the City will be managed as identified in the City's upcoming General Plan. City Actions such as those relating to land use, annexations, zoning, subdivision and design review, redevelopment, and capital improvements, must be consistent with the plan.

Table 5-2 summarizes development trends in the period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

5.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions.

Table 5-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends					
Criterion	Response				
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?		No			
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan?		No			
Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years?			Yes		
• If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of	Chaparral School si	te at 414 E. Oj	ai Avenue		
the areas are in known hazard risk areas	DESIGN CONCEPT				
	 Ojai Town Square development celebrates Ojai as the unique and special place that it is. The development responds to this character as a bookend to the Arcade and town center, enhancing the pedestrian neighborhood linked with outdoor spaces and surrounding public-oriented program uses. The architectural expression is inspired by historic structures on the site as well as the statement of theme defined by City Ordinance. The concept finds the balance of history and future in a way that is distinctly "of Ojai." PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS Establish a ±200 room hotel. Provide Residential Housing: Market Senior, Affordable. Creating pedestrian-friendly gardens throughout the site. Activate historic structures on Ojai Avenue for retail and restaurant use. Provide ample parking to support the on-site activities. Maintain the skate park as built Provide additional community programming opportunities. 				
How many permits for new construction were issued	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
in your jurisdiction since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?	437	419	438	432	23
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	One replacement si construction, 7 by c	ngle-family dwe onversion, 13 le	elling, 22 Acces egalized throug	sory Dwelling L h the Complian	Inits, 2 by new ce program.
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	The City is largely built out within city limits. The remaining pockets of infill land development opportunities within city limits are sprinkled throughout the City and respective zoning districts with smaller lots, which typically present some level of developable challenges.				

The findings of the capability assessment are presented as follows:

- Table 5-3 presents an assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities
- Table 5-4 presents development and permitting capabilities
- Table 5-5 presents an assessment of fiscal capabilities
- Table 5-6 presents an assessment of administrative and technical capabilities
- Table 5-7 presents an assessment of education and outreach capabilities
- Table 5-8 presents information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance
- Table 5-9 presents classifications under various community mitigation programs
- Table 5-10 presents the community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change

Table 5-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability						
	Local	Other Jurisdiction	State	Integration		
	Authority	Authority	Mandated	Opportunity?		
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements						
Building Code	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
Comment: OMC 9-1.102 (§ 1, Ord. 718, eff. April 25, 1997)			1			
Zoning Code	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment: OMC 10-2.202 (§ 3, Ord. 771, eff. February 13, 2004, 827, eff. June 28, 2013)	as amended by	§ 1, Ord. 787, eff. Febi	ruary 10, 2006, .	§ 2, Ord. No.		
Subdivisions	Yes	Yes	Yes	No		
Comment: OMC 10-3.301 (§ 2, Ord. 637, eff. January 9, 1986)						
Stormwater Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
Comment: OMC 5-12.101 Co-permittee with the Ventura County	Flood Control Di	istrict				
Post-Disaster Recovery	No	No	No	No		
Comment: None						
Real Estate Disclosure	No	Yes	Yes	No		
Comment: OMC 4-11.12 (§ 1, Ord. 738, eff. July 22, 1999, as am Ord. 800, eff. August 8, 2008)	ended by § 1, O	rd. 744, eff. March 24,	2000, as renum	bered by § 2,		
Growth Management	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment: OMC 10-6.101 (§ 1, Ord. 769, eff. January 8, 2004)						
Site Plan Review	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment: OMC 10-2.101 (§ 3, Ord. 771, eff. February 13, 2004)						
Environmental Protection	No	No	No	No		
Comment: None						
Flood Damage Prevention	Yes	Yes	No	Yes		
Comment: OMC 9-9.101 (§ 1, Ord. 655, eff. May 19, 1988, as am	ended by § 2, C	ord. 914, eff. March 24,	2021)			
Emergency Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
Comment: OMC 3-1.01 (Part 2, Ord. 468, eff. March 29, 1973)						
Climate Change	No	No	No	No		
Comment: None						
Planning Documents						
General Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
Is the plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140? No Comment: Currently being updated						
Capital Improvement Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes		
How often is the plan updated? Annually Comment:						
Disaster Debris Management Plan	No	No	No	No		
Comment: None						
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	Yes	Yes	No	Yes		
<i>Comment:</i> The city participates in the NFIP.						
Stormwater Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
<i>Comment:</i> Ventura Countywide Storm Water Quality Management Program to discharge wastes for municipal storm water and urban runoff discharges under waste discharge requirements contained in Order No. 94-082. adopted on July 27. 2000						
Urban Water Management Plan	No	Yes	Yes	No		
Comment: Casitas Municipal Water District						
Habitat Conservation Plan	No	No	No	No		
Comment: None						

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Economic Development Plan	Yes	No	No	No
Comment: General Plan guides economic growth				
Shoreline Management Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment: None				
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	No	Yes	No	No
Comment: Ventura County Community Wildfire Protection Plan, 2	2010			
Forest Management Plan	Yes	No	No	No
Comment: City of Ojai Community Forest Management Plan				
Climate Action Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment: None				
Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Emergency Operations Plan (EOP), 2013				
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	No	No	No	No
<i>Comment:</i> Not a stand-alone plan, but addressed in the EOP				
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment: None				
Continuity of Operations Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment: Not a stand-alone plan, but addressed in the EOP				
Public Health Plan	No	Yes	Yes	No
Comment: Ventura County Public Health Emergency Response I	Plan, 2019			

Table 5-4. Development and Permitting Capability				
Criterion Response				
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits? Yes				
If no, who does? If yes, which department? Community Development Department				
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area? Yes				
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory? No				

Table 5-5. Fiscal Capability			
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?		
Community Development Block Grants	Yes		
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes		
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes		
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	No		
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	No		
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	No		
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No		
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No		
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes		
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes		

Table 5-6. Administrative and Technical Capability			
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?	
Planners or engineers with know	wledge of land development and land management practices	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Community Development Dept./ City Planner		
Engineers or professionals training	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Community Development Dept./ Building Official		
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Community Development Dept. / City Planner		
Staff with training in benefit-co	st analysis	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Finance Dept./ Finance Director		
Surveyors		No	
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	No	
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	No	
Emergency manager		Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	City Manager's Office/ City Manager		
Grant writers		No	
Other		No	
If Yes, Department /Position:			

Table 5-7. Education and Outreach Capability			
Criterion	Response		
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	No		
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	No		
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? If yes, briefly describe: ojai.ca.gov > emergency-preparedness	Yes		
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe: Post pertinent information as required	Yes		
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? If yes, briefly describe: The City of Ojai Disaster Council	Yes		
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? If yes, briefly describe: City Website, City smart phone App, government access TV channel, AM radio station	Yes		
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe: City Website, City smart phone App, government access TV channel, AM radio station	Yes		

Table 5-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance				
Criterion	Response			
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Public Works Department			
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Public Works Dept. / Public Works Director			
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	No			
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	3/24/2021			
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements?	Meet			
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	N/A			

Criterion	Response
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed?	No
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction?	No
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction?	Yes
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program? If so, what type of assistance/training is needed? Ongoing training	Yes
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program? Possibly	No
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? ^a What is the insurance in force? \$25,299,000 What is the premium in force? \$41,007	79
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction?aWhat were the total payments for losses?\$223,301	43
A coording to EENIA statistics as of March 21, 2021	

d.	ACCORDING TO FEIMA STATISTICS AS OF MALCH ST, 2021	
-		

Table 5-9. Community Classifications					
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified		
FIPS Code	Yes	0611153476	N/A		
DUNS #	Yes	085921781	N/A		
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A		
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A		
Public Protection, contract with VCFPD	Yes	03/3X	12/21/2018		
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A		
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A		
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A		

Table 5-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	High
Comment: City is aware of current drought issues and potential wildfire issues	
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	Low
Comment:	
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities Comment:	Low
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory Comment:	Low
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts Comment:	Low
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks Comment:	Low

Criterion	Jurisdiction
Implementation Capacity	Katinga
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes Comment:	Low
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts Comment:	Low
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts Comment:	Low
Champions for climate action in local government departments Comment:	Low
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies Comment:	Low
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation Comment:	Low
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted Comment:	Low
Public Capacity	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk Comment: Water use reduction due to drought	High
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts Comment: Installation and use of solar power	High
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment: Water conservation	High
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Low
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Unsure

 a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

5.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

5.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- Building Code 9-1.102
- Capital Improvement Plan—Includes projects that can help mitigate potential hazards.

5.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- General Plan—Consider new update to the Housing Element
- Emergency Operations Plan (EOP), 2013—Assesses threats from natural hazards that could impact the City.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

5.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

5.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 5-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 5-11. Past Natural Hazard Events							
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment				
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	1/20/2020 and continuing	\$3-4 million in lost revenue				
Thomas Fire	FM-5224	12/4/2017	No structures lost, City activated Emergency Operation Center, major impact to City				
Pine Fire		6/30/2016	Unknown				
Severe Storms, Flooding, Debris Flows, and Mudslides	DR-1577	1/9/2005	Impacted City. Daly park and surrounding homes in neighborhood affected by mud				
Wolf Fire		6/1/2002	Unknown				
Lightning Strike		4/18/2000	One residential home struck				
Flood/Landslide		2/20/2000	Unknown				
Ranch Fire		12/21/1999	Unknown				

5.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 5-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings. The drought hazard has been increased from low to high to match Casitas Municipal Water District, City of Ojai's water purveyor, and to better reflect local knowledge. The City is vulnerable to drought as it is dependent on Lake Casitas for water. As of October 2021, Lake Casitas is at 33% capacity—a Stage 3 drought. If lake level is reduced to 30% or less, CMWD would implement Stage 4.

Table 5-12. Hazard Risk Ranking							
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category				
1	Landslide	33	High				
2	Earthquake	32	High				
3	Drought	30	High				
4	Severe Storms	24	Medium				
5	Severe Weather	24	Medium				
6	Wildfire	18	Medium				
7	Flooding	18	Medium				
8	Dam Failure	12	Low				

5.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of Repetitive-Loss or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: 0

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- The City Recreation Department is the only Cooling Center in the City. If there is a Public Safety Power Shut-off (PSPS) then a generator is necessary.
- Urban flooding with storm drain issues

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

5.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 5-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 5-13. Status of Previous Pla	n Actions				
		Removed;	Carried C Up	Carried Over to Plan Update	
Action Item	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update	
OA 10 —Seismically retrofit or upgrade seismically deficient government facilities and pre-identified shelter facilities.			✓	OJC-1	
Comment: No action. Lack of funding				1	
OA 11 —Develop and implement plans to increase the building owner's general knowledge of and appreciation for the value of seismic upgrading of the building's structural and nonstructural elements.			~	OJC-2	
Comment: No action. Lack of staffing					
OA 14 —Acquire, relocate, or elevate residential structures, in particular those that have been identified as RL properties, within the 100-year floodplain. Comment: No action. Lack of funding/staff			~	OJC-1	
OA 21 —Maintain hazards fuel treatment program for areas that have been identified with overgrown/dead brush/trees to reduce the potential for tree-to-tree ignition. Ensure that a "maintenance now" component to provide continued fire resistance is part of the program.			*	OJC-8	
Comment: Ongoing tree and brush clearing for fire abatement					

5.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 5-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 5-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 5-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 5-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix								
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a		
Action OJC-1—W have experienced in	Action OJC-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.							
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthqua	ke, Severe Storms,	Severe Weather, Wild	dfire, Flooding,	, Dam Failure			
Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 9, 10, 11, 16	Community Development Dept	Public Works Dept	High	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, PDM and HMGP)	Short-term		
Action OJC-2—De seismic upgrading	evelop and implement of the building's struct	plans to increase the ural and nonstructura	e building owner's ger al elements.	neral knowledg	e of and appreciation for the	value of		
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake			1	1			
Existing	1, 9, 12, 16, 17	Community Development Dept	Public Works Dept	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term		
Action OJC-3—Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, ordinances and programs that dictate land use decisions in the community, including General Plan Update, Emergency Action Plan								
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthqua	ke, Severe Storms,	Severe Weather, Wile	dfire, Flooding,	, Dam Failure			
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 17, 19	Community Development Dept	Public Works Dept	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		

Benefits New or	Objectives Met		Support Agonov	Estimated	Sources of Eunding	Timolinoa		
Action O IC 4	Objectives wet		Support Agency	CUSI	sources or Funding	TIMEIMe		
Action OJC-4—Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in volume 1 of this nazard mitigation plan.								
<u>Hazarus Miliyaleu.</u> Now ⁹ Evicting		City of Oioi		unie, Flooding,	Staff Time Conoral Funde	Chart torm		
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15		Development Dept	LUW	Stall Time, General Fullus	Short-term		
 Action OJC-5—Continue to maintain good standing and compliance under the NFIP through implementation of floodplain management programs that, at a minimum, meet the NFIP requirements: Enforce the flood damage prevention ordinance. Participate in floodplain identification and mapping updates. Provide public assistance/information on floodplain requirements and impacts. 								
New & Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 17	Public Works Dept		Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		
Action OJC-6—Id	entify and pursue strate	egies to increase ada	aptive capacity to clin	nate change.		0 0		
Hazards Mitigated.	Severe Storms, Sev	ere Weather, Wildfir	e, Flooding, Drought	5				
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 19	Enter Response	Enter Response	Low	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term		
Action OJC-7—Pu Dept. and Recreati	urchase generators for on Dept.	critical facilities and	infrastructure that lac	k adequate ba	ackup power, including Public	Works		
Hazards Mitigated.	Earthquake, Floodin	g, Landslide, Severe	e Weather, Wildfire					
Existing	2, 19	Public Works Dept	Enter Response	High	FEMA HMA (BRIC and HMGP), Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term		
Action OJC-8-M	aintain wildfire hazard t	fuel reduction progra	m for areas that have	e been identifie	ed with overgrown or dead br	ush, trees		
and weeds to redu resistance is part of Hazards Mitigated	ce the potential for tree of the program. (Coordi	e-to-tree ignition. Ens nates with VCFPD A	sure that a "maintena ction VFP-6)	nce now" com	ponent to provide continued f	ire		
Now & Evicting		VCEDD	City of Oiai CAL	Modium		Ongoing		
	2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19	VCFPD	FIRE & USDA	Medium	and HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing		
Action OJC-9—Determine feasibility of the City of Ojai joining the Community Rating System (CRS) program to enhance public safety, reduce flood damage to property and infrastructure, and reduce flood insurance rates in the community. <i>Hazards Mitigated:</i> Flooding								
New & Existing	1, 2, 19	City of Ojai	None	Low	Staff Time & General Funds	Short-term		
a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date								

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 5-15. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	8	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
2	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
3	16	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
4	12	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
5	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
6	17	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
7	2	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
8	12	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
9	3	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 5-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a						
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazards								Ĭ
Landslide	OJC-3	OJC-1	OJC-4		OJC-7			OJC-4
Medium-Risk Hazards	S							
Earthquake	OJC-3	OJC-1	OJC-2, 4		OJC-7			OJC-4
Severe Storms	OJC-3	OJC-1	OJC-4				OJC-6	OJC-4
Severe Weather	OJC-3	OJC-1	OJC-4		OJC-7		OJC-6	OJC-4
Wildfire	OJC-3	OJC-1	OJC-4	OJC-8	OJC-7		OJC-6	OJC-4
Flooding	OJC-3, 5	OJC-1	OJC-4, 5		OJC-7		OJC-6	OJC-4, 5, 9
Low-Risk Hazards								
Dam Failure	OJC-3	OJC-1	OJC-4					OJC-4
Drought			OJC-4				OJC-6	OJC-4

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

5.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 5-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 5-17. Local Public Outreach					
Local Outreach Activity Date Number of People Involved					
Social Media	8/2020	1,000			

5.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **City of Ojai Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **City of Ojai Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance**—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.
- **Capital Improvement Projects Program**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.



























6. CITY OF OXNARD

6.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Scott Brewer, Emergency Services Manager 360 West Second Street Oxnard, CA 93030 Telephone: 805-385-7717 e-mail Address: scott.brewer@oxnard.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Alexander Hamilton, Fire Chief 360 West Second Street Oxnard, CA 93030 Telephone: 805-385-7700 e-mail Address: alexander.hamilton@oxnard.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 6-1.

Table 6-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members				
Name	Title			
Alexander Nguyen	City Manager			
Jason Benites	Police Chief			
Eric Sonstegard	Assistant Police Chief			
Alexander Hamilton	Fire Chief			
John Colamarino	Assistant Fire Chief			
Brian Yanez	Assistant Public Works Director			
Mike More	Risk Manager			
Scott Kolwitz	Planning Manager			
Betsy George	Chief Financial Officer			
Terrel Harrison	Cultural/Community Services Director			
Stephen Fischer	City Attorney			
Tatiana Arnaout	City Engineer/Floodplain Manager			
Mike Shaffer	GIS Manager			
Katie Casey	Communications Manager			
Kathleen Mallory	Planning & Sustainability Manager			
Scott Brewer	Emergency Services Manager			

6.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

6.2.1 Location and Features

The City is located about 60 miles northwest of Los Angeles along a beautiful stretch of the Pacific Ocean coastline. The largest city within Ventura County, Oxnard is the center of a regional agricultural industry and a progressive business center while, at the same time, a relaxed seaside destination with a variety of neighborhoods and community services. Bordered by mountains and the Pacific Ocean, West Ventura County provides a seaside environment with expansive mountain views. Oxnard incorporates both of these attributes through its pattern of relatively compact urban development focused on the downtown, coastline and harbor, and the Highway 101 corridor. The moderate Mediterranean climate, fertile topsoil, and generally adequate groundwater supply lead to year-round agricultural production in the surrounding Oxnard Plain.

The City of Oxnard is located in the County of Ventura. The current boundaries generally extend from the Santa Clara River on the west to Del Norte Blvd on the east, as well as just north of the Highway 101 to the Pacific Ocean on the South, encompassing an area of 27.12 square miles.

6.2.2 History

Oxnard Incorporated: The City Oxnard was incorporated in 1903 by the Ventura County Board of Supervisors, who officially named the city after the Oxnard brothers. The city grew steadily into what is now the largest city in Ventura County, with a population of just over 207,000 residents.

Oxnard History: In 1896, local farmers began experimenting with sugar beets in addition to barley and lima beans. A prominent local farmer, Albert Maulhardt, visited Henry T. Oxnard and his three brothers' American Beet Sugar factory in Chino, which led him to plant sugar beets for shipment to the plant. Maulhardt's success persuaded other ranchers to switch from grain to sugar beets.

Encouraged by a pledge of 18,000 acres of sugar beets from local farmers, the Oxnard brothers completed construction of a sugar beet factory adjacent to the beet fields in 1898 on what was then known as Rancho Colonia. The massive brick factory, with its 150-foot smokestacks, was located a few blocks northeast of a town-site that, five years later, would become the City of Oxnard.

The sugar beet factory was responsible for another significant event—bringing a spur line of the Southern Pacific Railroad to the plant site and passenger service to the community.

6.2.3 Governing Body Format

The City of Oxnard was incorporated as a general law city on June 30, 1903 and operates under a council-manager form of government. The City Council consists of the Mayor and six other Councilmembers. The term of office is four years for all elected officials, with elections held every two years for three City Council seats at a time. All Councilmembers are elected by district except for the Mayor, who is elected at large during presidential election years. The City Treasurer, who is elected Citywide at the same time as the Mayor, invests idle cash and manages the City's investment portfolio. The City Clerk, also elected Citywide at the same time as the Same time as the Mayor and City Treasurer, manages the City Council and Committee meeting agenda process, official records, and elections.
The Oxnard City Council assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the Oxnard Fire Department along with designated City departments will oversee its implementation.

6.3 CURRENT TRENDS

6.3.1 Population

According to the United States Census Bureau, the population of the City of Oxnard as of January 2020 was 207,887. Since 2010, the population has grown at an average annual rate of 0.48 percent.

6.3.2 Development

The Planning Division coordinates the City's review of residential, commercial, office, and industrial development projects. This includes working with property owners, developers, business owners, and residents to ensure that their development proposals conform to City policies and guidelines.

Table 6-2 summarizes development trends in the period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

Table 6-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends			
Criterion	Response		
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?	Yes		
 If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or structures. 	Local Agency Formation Commission 18-07, Ocean View School District: 5.31 Acres, 1 Parcel		
	Local Agency Formation Commission 16-01, City of Oxnard Reorganization: 0.77 Acres, 1 Parcel		
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan?	Yes		
If yes, describe land areas and dominant uses.	Teal Club Annexation—990 single and multifamily dwelling units, 132,000 square-feet of business park, 60,000 square-feet of commercial space, 17.76 acres of parks and open space. The project also includes annexation of 11.4 acres that is pre-zoned for light manufacturing uses.		
	Rio Urbana Annexation—The Rio Urbana annexation would allow the construction of a new mixed-use development that includes 182 condominium residential units and a 15,000-square-foot office building containing the Rio School District administrative offices.		
 If yes, who currently has permitting authority over these areas? 	The County of Ventura currently has permitting authority over the Teal Club area and the Rio Urbana project site.		
Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years?	Yes		
 If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas 	Downtown adding up to 2800 units, The Village Specific Plan buildout, Northshore Development, Riverpark Specific Plan buildout, continued industrial development in Sakioka Farms Specific Plan. All areas are within city limits and all areas are in the liquefaction zone. One annexation approval with 167 housing units is expected in 2021. One large specific plan annexation (Teal Club) with 990 units is under consideration.		

Criterion	Response					
How many permits for new construction were		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
issued in your jurisdiction since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?	Single Family	140	86	36	59	19
	Multi-Family	26	27	18	34	42
	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	17	12	10	7	7
	Total	183	125	64	100	68
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	 Special Flood Hazard Areas: 0—Based on FEMA National Flood Hazard Layer (NFHL) downloaded June 9, 2021 Using zones A, A99, AE, AH, AO, & VE as S and excluding zones X & D Landslide: 0—Based on Webservice of Seismic Hazard Zone Maps for Landslide produced by the Seismic Hazards Program, California Geological Survey, Califo Department of Conservation and downloaded from open data site on June 17, 2 High Liquefaction Areas: 540—Based on information contained hereon was obta from California Department of Conservation, Division of Mines and Geology via t County of Ventura GIS Tsunami Inundation Area: 51—Based on information contained hereon was obta from California Department of Conservation, Division of Mines and Geology via t County of Ventura GIS 				ver Is SFHA slides alifornia 7, 2021 obtained via the obtained via the	
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	Almost entire city (26 sq miles) is first or second generation construction 's acres of farming remain within city limits in areas zoned for industrial of yet built. Planning capacity for about 8,000 units and 8 million sf indust remains under the 2030 General Plan.		tion. About 500 l or housing but not ustrial/commercial			

6.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 6-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 6-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 6-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 6-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 6-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 6-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 6-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 6-10.

Table 6-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability					
		Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Codes, Ord	inances, & Requirements				
Building Co	ode	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment:	2019 California Building Code as adopted by the City	of Oxnard Ordin	ance No. 2968		
Zoning Cod	le	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment:	omment: Chapter 16 (Inland Zoning Ordinance) and Chapter 17(Coastal Zoning Ordinance) of the Oxnard City Code (OCC) Pursuant to the California Coastal Act (Public Resources Code Division 20, Chapter 6, Article 1, 30500), the City shall prepare a Local Coastal Program for the portion of the coastal zone within its jurisdiction. The LCP is comprised of a Land Use Plan and a Local Implementation Plan which is the Coastal Zoning Ordinance.				(OCC) Pursuant prepare a Local se Plan and a
Subdivision	15	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment:	Chapter 15 of the OCC regulates and control the design supplement the provisions of the Subdivision Map Act et seq. concerning the design, improvement and surve by the Subdivision Map Act, and the procedure to be maps.	gn and improver t of the State of (ey data of subdir followed in secu	ment of subdivisions of California set forth at G visions, the form and c ring the official approva	land within the overnment Cod ontent of all map al of the City reg	city and e Section 66410 os provided for arding the
Stormwater	Management	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment:	Chapter 22, Article 12 implements the Federal Water seq., as amended, and Division 7 of the California Wa waters of the United States from a point source unless Metropolitan required by Clean Water Act Section 40 discharges into the storm drain system.	Pollution Contro ater Code by pro s the discharge i 02 (33 U.S.C. Se	l Act (the Clean Water hibiting the discharge o is authorized by a pern ection 1342), and by pro	Act), 33 U.S.C. of any pollutant t nit issued pursua ohibiting non-sto	Section 1251 et to navigable ant to the orm water
Post-Disast	er Recovery	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	The City of Oxnard does not have a separate disaster in the Oxnard Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)	recovery plan, g	guidance and direction	for disaster reco	overy is provided
Real Estate	Disclosure	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment:	California State Civil Code 1102 requires full disclosur property. To be implemented by sellers and realtors. (an agreement of sale or exchange of any building, the of the building record showing the regularly authorized	re on natural haz City of Oxnard O owner or autho d use, occupanc	zard exposure of the sa Irdinance 2383 require: rized representative sh y and zoning classifica	ale/re-sale of any s that at the time nall obtain from t tion of such prop	y and all real e of entering into he city a report perty.
Growth Mai	nagement	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: California state law requires that every county and city prepare and adopt a comprehensive long-range plan to serve as a guide for community development. The General Plan for the City of Oxnard was amended and adopted in July 2011. The General Plan contains 10 elements that address many aspects of the community including: land use, housing, parks and open space, community design, circulation, infrastructure, safety, sustainability and conservation of resources. The General Plan is the City's overarching policy document. All City policies and ordinances must be consistent with the General Plan. The Planning Division is responsible for maintaining the General Plan and preparing amendments to the document as directed by the City Council. The City is preparing a Climate Action and Adaptation Plan consistent with SB39.					
Site Plan R	eview	Yes	No	No	No
Comment:	Chapter 15 of the OCC regulates the form and conten- five (5) or more parcels and tentative parcel maps for provisions of this chapter. Chapters 16 and 17 of the or regulate development within the City.	ts, submittal and the subdivision OCC identify allo	d approval of tentative of four (4) or fewer par owed uses and provide	tract maps for th cels shall be gov development st	ne subdivision of verned by the andards that

		Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Environmer	ntal Protection	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	: The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires state and local agencies to identify the significant environmental impacts of their actions and to avoid or mitigate those impacts, if feasible. On June 28, 2017, the City Council adopted Resolution 15,040 approving an update to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.				
	Chapter 22 ,Article 12 implements the Federal Water seq., as amended, and Division 7 of the California Wa waters of the United States from a point source unless National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System requ by prohibiting non-storm water discharges into the sto Chapter 18, Article 4 recently updated in December 2	Pollution Contro tter Code by pro s the discharge i ired by the Clea rm drain system 020 with the auti	I Act (the Clean Water hibiting the discharge o is authorized by a pern n Water Act Section 40 n. hority conferred by Cal	Act), 33 U.S.C. of any pollutant nit issued pursua 02 (33 U.S.C. Se d. Gov't Code se	Section 1251 et to navigable ant to the ection 1342), and ctions 65302,
	65560 and 65800 to adopt regulations designed to pro	omote the public	health, safety, and ge	neral welfare.	
Flood Dama	age Prevention	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	Chapter 18, Article 4 recently updated in December 2 65560 and 65800 to adopt regulations designed to pro	020 with the aution of the second s	hority conferred by Cal health, safety and ger	. Gov't Code se neral welfare.	ctions 65302,
Emergency	Management	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	Oxnard Emergency Operations Plan—City Ordinance	No. 2916			
Climate Cha	ange	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	The City is currently preparing a Climate Action and A innovative to help the City plan for future climate goals the City. The Climate Action and Adaptation Plan is a 2022.	daptation Plan v s and develop vi nticipated to culi	which intends to be cor ision for how sustainab minate with adoption by	nprehensive, ro ility should be in y the City Counc	bust and nplemented in cil in mid/late-
Planning Do	ocuments				
General Pla	n	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Is the nlan	compliant with Assembly Rill 2140? Ves				
Comment:	The City's current 2030 General Plan contains Safety subsidence risk: coastline and beach preservation: en	Element that ind	cludes goals and polici edness: and hazardou	es that address s materials and	liquefaction and uses.
Capital Imp	rovement Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
How often i	s the plan updated? Once a year				
Comment:	The City Council adopts a 5-year Capital Improvement	nt Plan with the C	Citv Council making am	nendments on al	n annual basis.
Disaster De	bris Management Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment:	Ventura County Disaster Recovery Plan, Adopted by	BOS in April 201	19		
Floodplain	or Watershed Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment:	Chapter 18, Article 4 recently updated in December 24 65560 and 65800 to adopt regulations designed to pro participates in the National Flood Insurance Program	020 with the auti omote the public (NFIP) Commun	hority conferred by Cal health, safety and ger ity Rating System (CR	. Gov't Code se neral welfare. Th S)Class 7	ctions 65302, ne City
Stormwater	Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	The City is developing the Public Works Integrated Ma programs, and projects that successfully address and term water needs, reducing dependence upon costly concerns, pursuing aggressive goals for energy efficient regulatory requirements, and the ongoing loss of seas	aster Plan to dev respond to imm imported water, ency and sustain soned staff and p	velop long-term recomi ediate drought conditio addressing aging infra: able solutions, maintai personnel.	mendations for pons while also platter where and restructure and r	policies, lanning for long- liability e with changing

		Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Urban Wate	r Management Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
<i>Comment:</i> The City has an adopted Urban Water Management Plan. The plan details long-term resource planning to ensure that adequate water supplies are available to meet existing and future water needs. In conjunction with the Urban Water Management Plan, a separate Water Shortage Contingency Plan, is also being prepared. The Water Shortage Contingency Plan outlines how an urban water supplier will respond to various stages of a drought or a prolonged shortage caused by other events.					
Habitat Con	servation Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment:	Not applicable for the City of Oxnard				
Economic D	Development Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment:	The City's 2030 General Plan contains an Economic I The City created a draft strategic plan which was press Chamber of Commerce in 2020 before the pandemic. Iandscape, staff will be working on a new strategic plan based development.	Development Ch cented to the Hou However, given In to emphasize	apter within the Comm using and Economic Du that COVID significant business retention, wo	unity Developm evelopment Cor tly impacted the rkforce develop	ent Element. nmittee and the business ment, and site-
Shoreline M	lanagement Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment:	The City of Oxnard is currently updating the City's Loo	cal Coastal Prog	ram to address Sea Le	evel Rise and co	astal hazards.
Community	Wildfire Protection Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment:	Not applicable for the City of Oxnard				
Forest Mana	agement Plan	No	Yes	No	Yes
Comment:	Not applicable for the City of Oxnard				
Climate Act	Climate Action Plan Yes No Yes Yes				Yes
Comment:	The City is currently preparing a Climate Action and A innovative to help the City plan for future climate goals the City. The Climate Action and Adaptation Plan is a	daptation Plan v s and develop vi nticipated to culr	vhich intends to be con sion for how sustainab ninate with adoption by	nprehensive, rol ility should be in / the City Counc	bust and nplemented in :il in mid 2022.
Emergency	Operations Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	Oxnard Emergency Operations Plan				
Threat & Ha	zard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	No	Yes	No	Yes
Comment:	We are currently evaluating the need to complete a Tr	HIRA for the City	of Oxnard.		
Post-Disast	er Recovery Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	Disaster Recovery Operations are covered in the Oxn	ard Emergency	Operations Plan		
Continuity of	of Operations Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	Continuity of Government—Section within the Oxnard	Emergency Op	eration Plan		
Public Heal	th Plan	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment:	County of Ventura Health Care Agency Public Health	Emergency Res	ponse Plan (ERP)		
Other-Cou	ntywide Tsunami Plan	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment:	The County of Ventura has an existing plan that descr document is required within the coming year.	ribes each City's	role and has been add	opted locally. A	revision of this

Table 6-4. Development and Permitting Capability

Criterion	Response
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits?	Yes
If no, who does? If yes, which department? Building and Safety Division of	f the Community Development Department
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	No The City does not currently track building permits issued by hazard area.
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	No

Table 6-5. Fiscal Capability			
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?		
Community Development Block Grants	Yes		
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes		
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	No. Requires a vote of the people		
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes		
If yes, specify: Water and Sewer			
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	No. Requires a vote of the people		
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes		
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	Yes		
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	Yes		
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes		
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes		
Other	Yes		
If yes, specify: Federal-sponsored grant programs			

Table 6-6. Administrative and Technical Capability			
Staff/Personnel Resource Availab			
Planners or engineers with know	Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Community Development, all Planners) Public Works—City Engineer; Supervising Civil Engineer		
Engineers or professionals trai	ned in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works—City Engineer; Supervising Civil Engineer; Project Manager; Senior Civil Engineering Tech	gineer;	
Planners or engineers with an u	understanding of natural hazards	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works—City Engineer		
Staff with training in benefit-co	st analysis	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works—Transportation Planner and Grants Coordinator		
Surveyors		Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works (Consultant)		
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Information Technology—GIS Manager, GIS Technician III, GIS Systems Analyst, GIS Programmer Analyst		
Scientist familiar with natural h	azards in local area	No	
If Yes, Department /Position:	None		
Emergency manager		Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Fire Department—City Emergency Services Manager		
Grant writers		Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works—Grants Coordinator and Transportation Planner		

Table 6-7. Education and Outreach Capability		
Criterion		Response
Do you have a public info	ormation officer or communications office?	Yes
Do you have personnel s	killed or trained in website development?	Yes
Do you have hazard mitig	pation information available on your website?	Yes
If yes, briefly describe:	City website has disaster preparedness and fire prevention information in English and Spanish	
Do you use social media	for hazard mitigation education and outreach?	Yes
If yes, briefly describe:	We have in the past used social media to address specific hazard mitigation issues.	
Do you have any citizen l	boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?	Yes
If yes, briefly describe:	Yes, the Fire Chief has an advisory "Team" that address emergency preparedness and hazard i issues. Organized "Neighborhood Councils" are also used to disseminate emergency preparedri hazard mitigation information.	reduction ness and
Do you have any other pr	rograms in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information?	Yes
If yes, briefly describe:	Community events such as: neighborhood fairs, emergency preparedness fairs, CERT training, council meetings, homeowners' association meetings are all used to disseminate emergency pr and hazard mitigation information.	neighborhood eparedness
Do you have any establis If yes, briefly describe:	Shed warning systems for hazard events? "Alert and Warning" procedures as described in the Oxnard Emergency Operations Plan and the System	Yes e VC Alert

Table 6-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance			
Criterion	Response		
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Public Works		
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	City Engineer		
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	No		
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	December 2020		
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements? <i>If exceeds, in what ways?</i>	Meets		
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	2017 Community Assistance Visit		
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed?	No		
If so, state what they are.			
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction?If so, state what they are.RiskMAP, Ventura County Levees	Yes		
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? <i>If no, state why.</i>	Yes		
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program?	Yes		
If so, what type of assistance/training is needed? Admin training			
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)?If yes, is your jurisdiction interested in improving its CRS Classification?NoIf no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program?N/A	Yes, Class 7		
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction?aWhat is the insurance in force?\$166,210,700What is the premium in force?\$323,235	497		
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction?aWhat were the total payments for losses?\$244,574	71		
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021			

Table 6-9. Community Classifications					
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified		
FIPS Code	Yes	06-111-54652	N/A		
DUNS #	Yes	081790214	N/A		
Community Rating System	Yes	7	N/A		
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	Yes	Residential: 3 Commercial Industrial: 2	2015/2016		
Public Protection	Yes	02/2X	December 1, 2017		
Storm Ready	Yes	N/A	July 2021		
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A		
Tsunami Ready	Yes	N/A	July 2021		

1. A.

0.11

.

I able 6-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion	Jurisdiction Ratings
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts Comment: The City is preparing a Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP). Community engagement has highly knowledge of climate impacts.	Medium ghted interest in and
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts Comment: The CAAP will establish programs and monitoring protocols.	Low
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities Comment: Documentation prepared for CAAP and SLR and vulnerability study	Low
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory Comment: Through the CAAP this has occurred.	High
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts Comment: This will come out of the CAAP.	Medium
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks Comment: Professional planner and focused position	High
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes <i>Comment:</i> This will come out of CAAP implementation.	Medium
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts Comment: The CAAP includes this information including strategies	High
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts Comment: The CAAP includes this information including strategies	High
Champions for climate action in local government departments Comment: The CAAP includes this information including strategies	High
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies Comment: Financial support for CAAP study.	High
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation Comment: The CAAP includes this information including strategies	Low
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted Comment: Addressed in CAAP engagement	Medium

Critorion	Jurisdiction
Public Capacity	Katings
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Medium
Comment: Addressed in CAAP engagement	
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts	Medium
Comment: Addressed through CAAP engagement	
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: Input provided during sea level rise engagement and CAAP efforts	
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment:	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Low

 High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

6.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

6.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- **Oxnard Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)**—The Emergency Operations Plan addresses the City of Oxnard's planned response to extraordinary emergency situations associated with natural disasters, technological incidents, and national security emergencies.
- Ventura County Mass Care and Shelter Plan—This document is intended for use during the preparedness phase to help guide care and shelter planning. It provides all the planning information and guidelines that are relevant for government's consideration before opening disaster shelters. This document is intended to help cities plan for shelter operations, while also providing an overview of the complete scope of care and shelter services.
- Ventura County Operational Area Emergency Operations Plan—The County of Ventura Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) provides the structure and processes that all key partner agencies within the county use to respond to, and initially recover from, a major emergency or disaster event.
- California Tsunami Evacuation Playbook (Ventura County, City of Oxnard)—This playbook is designed to help the emergency managers with tsunami evacuation and

response activities. The goal is to protect the residents within the local Tsunami Inundation Zone by providing guidance for early warning and coordinated evacuations.

• **2030 City of Oxnard General Plan**—The General plan contains a Safety Element that includes goals and policies that address liquefaction and subsidence risk; coastline and beach preservation; emergency preparedness; and hazardous materials and uses.

6.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- **2030 City of Oxnard General Plan**: The 2030 General Plan should be revised to address hazard mitigation plan elements as needed in the 2022 HMP program and consider integration opportunities by adopting relevant policies in future Safety Element. updates
- Local Coastal Program (LCP) Update: The City is in the process of a comprehensive LCP update. One of the goals of the City's LCP update is to consider and address Sea Level Rise (SLR) and to ensure that policies to implement adaptation options occur in a way that protects the City's coastal economic vitality, community character, public and private property, coastal resources and public safety.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

6.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

6.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 6-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

6.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 6-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 6-11. Past Natural Hazard Events									
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment						
Rain and High Wind Event		January 19, 2021	Trees down, road closures, power outages, damage to structures						
Pandemic Influenza COVID-19	4482-DR-CA	January 20, 2020 Continuing	Ongoing						
Atmospheric River Storm System	CA Disaster 109	January/February 2019	Local stream and street flooding, trees down, power outages						
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows	DR-4353	December 4, 2017- January 31, 2018	Post Thomas Fire debris flows in local rivers, large deposits of debris on local beaches, road closures						
Thomas Fire	4224-DR-CA	December 4, 2017	Public Health issues due to smoke, power outages, sewage spill due to power outage						
February Winter Storm	CA Disaster 77.1	February 2017	Local stream and street flooding, trees down, power outages, debris deposits in local stream and on beaches						
January Winter Storm	CA Disaster 77	January 2017	Local stream and street flooding, trees down, power outages, debris deposits in local stream and on beaches						
Extreme Windstorm		February 2016	Trees down, power outages, street closures, damage to structures, debris						
Erratic Weather (frost, heat, drought)		Winter 2013	Damage to crops, economic loss						
Tsunami (7.1 earthquake in Japan)		March 11, 2011	Damage to local harbors, marinas and docks						
Tsunami (8.8 Quake in Chile)		February 27, 2010	Damage to local harbors, marinas and docks						
Storm and Flood		January 18 – 22, 2010.	Local stream and street flooding, trees down, power outages						
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows	DR-1731	October 21 – March 31, 2008	Post burn, flooding, debris and mud flows.						
Severe Storm	DR-1267	January 7 – 11, 2005	Flooding and debris flows						
"El Nino" Storm and Flood		February 1998	Street and stream flooding, debris flows						
Storms and Floods		January and March, 1995	Unknown						
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	January 17 – November 30, 1994	Power and communications disruptions, damage to structures						
Storm and Flood		February 10-15, 1992	Street and stream flooding, debris flows						
Earthquake (Whittier Narrows Earthquake)		October 1, 1987	Unknown						
Storm and Flood		February 25-March 3, 1983	Street and stream flooding, debris flows						
Storm and Flood		February 13-22, 1980	Street and stream flooding, debris flows						
Sespe Creek Flood		March 4, 1978	Street and stream flooding, debris flows						
Storms and Floods (Calleguas Creek Flood)		February 28-March 5, 1978	Street and stream flooding, debris flows						
St Francis Dam Disaster		March 12, 1928	\$7 Million (1928)—Inundation of nearly the entire city, flooding, debris flows, destruction of infrastructure, high loss of life						

	Table 6-12. Hazard Risk Ranking									
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category							
1	Dam Failure	36	High							
2	Earthquake	32	Medium							
3	Severe Storm	24	Medium							
4	Severe Weather	24	Medium							
5	Flooding	18	Medium							
6	Landslide	18	Medium							
7	Sea Level Rise	18	Medium							
8	Tsunami	12	Low							
9	Drought	9	Low							
10	Wildfire	0	Low							

6.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 7
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: N/A
- Number of Repetitive-Loss or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: N/A

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Unreinforced Masonry and Soft Story Structures—Oxnard has numerous unreinforced masonry and soft story buildings within the city limits. These buildings are subject to severe damage or structural collapse during a moderate to severe earthquake.
- **Homeless Population**—A significant number of persons commonly defined as "Homeless" live in the Santa Clara River and other undeveloped areas. During wildland fires, storms and flooding these individuals are at great risk.
- Street and Urban Flooding—There are numerous areas of the city that flood to varying degrees during periods of high rain. The effects of this flooding range from street closures to damage to property, vehicles and buildings.
- **Power Outages/Emergency Power**—Local power outages have resulted from high winds and storm conditions as well as from the effects of wildland fire in the region. Many key city buildings including the Main City Hall and Council Chambers buildings have no back-up power or emergency generators.

- **Debris Flows**—Following heavy rains and winter storms, substantial debris flows have occurred in the Santa Clara River as well as other local streams and culverts. Debris flows following wildland fires are particularly bad and can require removal of material from streams, streets, culverts and beaches.
- Liquefaction Potential—Nearly the entire City of Oxnard is located in a "Liquefaction Zone". The effects and damage caused by seismic activities can be amplified resulting in increased damage to buildings and infrastructure.
- **Tsunami Awareness and Notification**—Oxnard has a large visitor and tourist population who may not be aware of the tsunami risk.
- Sea Level Rise (SLR)—SLR is an identified flooding threat to the future of the City of Oxnard. Therefore, planning for local adaptation and resiliency is an identified City Council priority and part of the Local Coastal Program update. It is a complex and difficult issue that will require strong coordination at the federal, State, and local level over the long term to effectively plan for and adapt to changing variables over time. Adaptation strategies are based upon various SLR projections anticipated to occur in years 2030, 2060, and 2100.
- **Drought**—Much of California, Ventura County and the City of Oxnard has been experiencing a multiyear drought. Continued drought can directly impact land use, development options, as well as economic development in the city. This includes negatively impacting business development, including expansion and retention and support for agricultural resources and industries. More prolonged and severe drought conditions could potentially impact potable water supplies to the point of creating a public health and safety emergency.
 - For background: The City of Oxnard purchases 40-50% of its total water supply from Calleguas Municipal Water District. This water is State Water Project water supplied by Metropolitan Water District. In addition to State water, the City of Oxnard supplements its remaining water needs from groundwater that is pumped by the City (20-30%) and by the United Water Conservation District (20-30%). According to the 2021 Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP), the Oxnard Subbasin water has experienced drier than average conditions since 2015 and anticipates little change to the water elevation level due to the current drought. The subbasin is currently at a level categorized as being in overdraft per the GSP.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

6.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

The following table summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 6-13. Status of Previous Pla	n Actions			
		Removed; No Longer	Carried C Up Check if	Over to Plan date Action # in
Action Item	Completed	Feasible	Yes	Update
 OX 3—Increase participation in the NFIP by maintaining a CRS rating Class 9, which through enhanced floodplain management activities would allow property owners to receive a discount on their flood insurance. Comment: Increased participation by upgrading CRS rating from Class 9 to Class 7 Class 7. 	✓ . The City will co	ontinue to main	tain CRS ra	ating
OX 4 —Develop a tool to collect and analyze post-flood disaster risk assessment information to allow the City of Oxnard to analyze the effects of the flood and implement future mitigation projects. Information to be collected will include: number and location of structures, including RL properties, flooded; identification of flooded areas outside of the SFHA and floodwater heights at these locations; number and location of failed gages; etc.			✓	OXN-19
Comment: Information is being collected as required by CRS program. The tool is to requested in FY 21-22 for this purpose	be developed	once funding is	available.	Funding was
OX 5 —Continue to participate in the NWS TsunamiReady Program through continued implementation of Guideline 4: Community Preparedness measures, including public outreach material and curriculum.			~	OXN-10
Comment: Oxnard continues to participate in the TsunamiReady Program and will b year. This is an ongoing program.	e updating and	renewing its ap	plication aç	gain this
OX 6 —Evaluate Santa Clara Levees 1, 2 and 3 for upgrade and construction.	✓ County-owned			
OX 7 —Construct a Mandalay Beach storm drainage system to the Channel Islands Harbor. During rain events, stormwater accumulation along Mandalay Beach Road is caused by wind and sand blocking the drainage to the ocean outfall.	obunty owned.		~	OXN-20
Comment: This is currently being mitigated with a dedicated portable pump that is d station construction is estimated at \$30M+ and has not been completed	eployed and tur due to lack of fu	ned on during s Inding.	storm even	ts. Pump
OX 8 —Construct a permanent lift station for Ventura Road @ Wagon Wheel Road. Water in the low point in the roadway must be manually pumped with each rain event.	✓			
Comment: The improvements are currently in the design phase. Wagon Wheel Dev	elopment condi	tioned to constr	uct.	
OX 9 —Construct a stormwater lift station at Perkins Road. Flooding occurs at the point in Perkins Road which is caused by an undersized sump pump. The proposed stormwater lift system will transport stormwater to the Advanced Water Purification Facility and recycle the storm water for agricultural use along Hueneme Road.			\checkmark	OXN-20
Comment: Currently being mitigated with a portable pump that is turned on during s due to lack of funding. The discharge location may change so discharge	torm events. Pu location is not i	imp station has ncluded in the u	not been c updated act	ompleted ion plan.
OX 10 —Construct a permanent flood protection pump station at Dodge Road. Flooding occurs at the low point in Dodge Road at the intersection with Maulhardt Road.			✓	OXN-20
Comment: Currently being mitigated with a portable pump that is turned on during s due to lack of funding.	torm events. Pu	imp station has	not been c	ompleted

		Removed:	Carried C Up	over to Plan date
Action Item	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
OX 11 —As part of the Memorandum of Agreement / Memorandum of Understanding with The Nature Conservancy (TNC): continue to partner with TNC on acquisition, restoration and mitigation planning processes; partner on grant proposals; participate in negotiations with land use owners; carry-out restoration projects; hold titles to floodplain properties as appropriate; and hold or co-hold with TNC multipurpose easements.			~	OXN-21

Comment: In 2016, the California State Coastal Conservancy, City of Oxnard, and The Nature Conservancy (collectively known as the Ormond Beach Partners) entered into a Memorandum of Understanding to actively coordinate and collaborate across the Ormond Beach Partners' respective properties that total over 630 acres in order to protect, manage, and restore the Ormond Beach Area. The Project Partners are leading the Ormond Beach Restoration and Public Access Plan (OBRAP), with the goals of restoring the natural ecosystem and habitats and improving public access and enjoyment of Ormond Beach while protecting nature. The Ormond Beach Partners have held two public outreach meetings soliciting public input on the OBRAP in 2017 and 2019. The Ormond Beach Partners will conduct a public outreach meeting in 2021 to highlight the Preferred Alternative and Preliminary Design. The next phases of the OBRAP will be the environmental review, gap assessment, final design, permitting, funding and construction.

6.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 6-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 6-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 6-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

	Table 6-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix								
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline			
Action OXN-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.									
Hazards Mitigated	Dam Failure, Earthqu	uake, Flooding, I	Landslide, Sea Level Rise	e, Tsunami					
Existing	2, 6, 9, 10, 11	Public Works.	Community Development	High	HMGP, PDM, FMA	Short-term			
Action OXN-2—A areas identified by data associated wi (CAAP) Hazards Mitigated.	Action OXN-2—Amend General Plan Safety and Hazard Element text and as needed hazard maps, to reflect updated mapping of hazard areas identified by this Hazard Mitigation Plan, FEMA, Cal Fire, or the CA Seismic Hazard Mapping Program, in addition to background data associated with Local Coastal Plan update and background work associated with the City's Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP)								
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 17, 19	Community Development	Public Works	\$500,000	Staff Time, General Fund, Grant Funding, FEMA HMA, BRICK, Pre and Post Disaster Mitigation Grant Funding	Short-term			
Action OXN-3—A	ctively participate in the	plan maintenan	ce protocols outlined in V	olume 1 of this	Hazard Mitigation Plan.				
Hazards Mitigated	: Dam Failure, Drough	it, Earthquake, F	looding, Sea Level Rise,	Severe Weathe	er, Tsunami, Wildfire				
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15	Public Works	Community Development	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term			

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline		
 Action OXN-4—Continue to maintain good standing and compliance under the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) through implementation of floodplain management programs that, at a minimum, meet the NFIP requirements: Enforce the flood damage prevention ordinance. Participate in floodplain identification and mapping updates. Provide public assistance/information on floodplain requirements and impacts. 								
Hazards Mitigated	: Dam Failure, Severe	Storm, Severe	Weather, Flooding					
New & Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 17	Public Works	Community Development	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short term and ongoing		

Action OXN-5—Develop, approve, and implement the City's Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP); including adaptive strategies to address hazards.

Hazards Mitigated: Sea Level Rise, Flooding, Wildfire, Severe Storms, Severe Weather, Drought

10 11 12 13 14 15 Dovelopment and on	New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9,	Community	Public Works	High	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term
		10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15,	Development				and on
16, 19 going		16, 19					going

Action OXN-6—Purchase generators for critical facilities and infrastructure that lack adequate backup power, & as recommended by the City's CAAP.

Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Tsunami, Wildfire

New & Existing	2, 19	Public Works	Community	Estimated:	Staff Time, General	Short-term
			Development	\$500,000 per	Funds, Enterprise Funds,	
				generator	HMGP, PDM	
				(avg.)		

Action OXN-7—Retrofit existing Seawalls at Mandalay Bay in order to withstand seismic events per the latest provisions in the California Building Code (CBC, 2019)

Hazards Mitigated: Earthquake

Existing	2, 4, 6, 9, 11, 19	Public Works	Community Development	Estimated: \$200,000,000	Staff Time, General Funds, HMGP, PDM,	Short-term
					FMA	

Action OXN-8—Replace existing 45-inch diameter water transmission main that is critical as a lifeline for residents, industry, and national defense, including the region's military base. This project will prevent seismic-related failure of the transmission line of State Water Project water that provides potable water to a population of approximately 245,000. This pipeline supplies 60% of the City of Oxnard's water and 50% of the City of Port Hueneme's water which is then purveyed to Naval Base Ventura County's Point Mugu and Port Hueneme installations.

Hazards Mitigated: Earthquake

Existing	2, 4, 6, 9, 11, 19	City of Oxnard	City of Port Hueneme	Estimated: \$50,000,000	Staff Time, Enterprise Funds, HMGP, PDM,	Short-term
				ψ50,000,000	FMA	

Action OXN-9—Develop a comprehensive Sea Level Rise (SLR) Adaptation Plan to be implemented in the four identified coastal planning areas located within the City's coastal zone to adopt long term adaptation policies and strategies to identify, manage, and reduce SLR impacts on coastal resources, private property and critical City facilities. The SLR adaptation policies and strategies included in the Local Coastal Program update would also be coordinated with the Climate Action and Adaptation Plan to address SLR vulnerabilities.

Hazards Miltigated	Sea Level Rise					
New & Existing	Enter Response	Public Works	Community	High	Grant	Long Term
-	1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10,		Development;	-	State	-
	11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16,		County of Ventura and		Federal	
	17, 18, 19		Harbor Department;			
			City of Port Hueneme;			
			U.S. Department of			
			Defense (Navy)			

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline	
Action OXN-10—Continue to participate in the NWS TsunamiReady Program through continued implementation of Guidelines for Community Preparedness measures, including public outreach material and curriculum. In 2021 Oxnard updated its application and has received approval from the NWS as a TsunamiReady Community. This is an ongoing program							
Hazards Mitigated	: Tsunami						
New & Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 8, 12, 17, 18, 19	Emergency Services Manager	Oxnard Fire and Public Works Departments	Low	Staff Time, Enterprise Funds, EMPG, DHS	Ongoing	
Action OXN-11—Construction of Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) wells in order to ensure future reliable and affordable supply of high-quality water for the Oxnard Plain.							
Existing	2, 4, 6, 9, 11, 19	City of Oxnard	State Division of Drinking Water	High	Staff Time, Enterprise Funds, HMGP, PDM, FMA	Short-term	
Action OXN-12—Develop and implement a resident and visitor tsunami awareness and safety public education and outreach program. Provide tsunami awareness, hazard, safety, and evacuation information at visitor locations including hotels, vacation rentals, campgrounds and day use recreational areas. Program would include signs, posters, handouts and public presentations. <i>Hazards Mitigated:</i> Tsunami							
New	1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 17, 18, 19	Oxnard Police and Fire Departments	Oxnard Community Development	Low	Staff Time, Enterprise Funds, EMPG, DHS	Short-term	
Action OXN-13—Engage in a study to determine the best methods and strategies to communicate hazards and warnings to the city's homeless population, particularly those living in undeveloped areas such as fields, creeks and riverbeds. Warnings would include notification of impending or immediate dangers.							
<u>Hazarus iniligateu</u> New	2 Dam Failure, Earingt 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 17, 18, 19	City of Oxnard	Lanuside, Severe weath	er, rsunami, w High	Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), Staff Time, Enterprise Funds	Short-Term	
Action OXN-14— and tsunami hazar Hazards Mitigated	Engage in a feasibility s ds. : Earthquake, Tsunam	tudy to determin i	e if Oxnard Fire Station 6	can be retrofit	ted, replaced or relocated du	le to seismic	
Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 8, 9, 18, 19	Oxnard Fire Department	City Planning Department	High	Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP), Staff Time, Enterprise Funds	Short-Term	
Action OXN-15—Engage in a feasibility study to determine if Oxnard Fire Stations 2, 3, 4 & 5 can be retrofitted, replaced or relocated due to seismic hazards.							
<u>Hazards Mitigated</u> Existing	<u>:</u> Earthquake 1, 2, 6, 7, 8, 9, 18, 19	Oxnard Fire Department	City Planning Department	High	Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP), Staff Time, Enterprise Funds	Short-Term	
Action OXN-16—Implement the findings of the feasibility studies with retrofits to, relocation of, or replacement of existing City Fire Stations including, Stations # 2, 3, 4, 5, 6. These stations were built between 1954 and 1978 prior to current building standards. Damage to these stations could seriously impact fire, rescue and EMS service within the City.							
Existing	<u>.</u> – саничиаке, тяйлал 1, 2, 6, 7, 8, 9, 18, 19	Oxnard Fire Department	City Planning Department	High	Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP), Staff Time, Enterprise Funds	Short-Term	

Describe Manager				E a Para da al				
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline		
Action OXN-17—Engage in a feasibility study to determine if the Oxnard Police Headquarters building, including the Dispatch facilility,								
can be retrofitted or should be replaced due to seismic hazards.								
<u>Hazarus Miligaleu:</u> Ealinquake Now 1, 2, 7, 9, 10, 12, 17, City of Ovpord Delico, Lich Cropt Funding FEMA Short Term								
New	1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 17, 18, 19	City of Oxnard	Department	High	HMA (BRIC,HMGP), Staff Time, Enterprise Funds	Short-Term		
Action OXN-18— include expansion communications.	Action OXN-18—Implement the findings of the feasibility study by retrofitting or replacing Oxnard Police Headquarters building. This will include expansion of the Dispatch facility to accommodate equipment for the radio and data traffic needed to support disaster response communications							
Hazards Mitigated	: Earthquake, Tsunam	i, Severe Storm	s, Dam Failure, Wildfires,	Flooding				
Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 8, 9, 18, 19	Oxnard Police Department	Oxnard Fire Department	High	Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP), Staff Time, Enterprise Funds	Short-Term		
Action OAN-19—Develop a too to collect and analyze post-hood disaster risk assessment information to allow the City of Oxnard to analyze the effects of the flood and implement future mitigation projects. Information to be collected will include: number and location of structures, including RL properties, flooded; identification of flooded areas outside of the SFHA and floodwater heights at these locations; number and location of failed gages; etc.								
New & Existing	1, 2, 17	City of Oxnard		High	Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), Staff Time, Enterprise Funds	Short-Term		
Action OXN-20-	Construct pump station	s for roadway ar	eas affected by chronic fle	ooding includin	g, but not limited to:			
 Mandalay Beac Beach Road is 	h storm drainage syste caused by wind and sau	m to the Channe nd blocking the c	el Islands Harbor. During i drainage to the ocean out	rain events, sto fall.	rmwater accumulation along	j Mandalay		
Construct a stor	rmwater lift station at Pe	erkins Road. Flo	oding occurs at the point	in Perkins Roa	d which is caused by an unc	lersized		
 Construct a permanent flood protection pump station at Dodge Road. Flooding occurs at the low point in Dodge Road at the intersection with Maulhardt Road. 								
Hazards Mitigated: Flooding, Severe Storms								
Existing	2, 6, 10, 11	Public Works		High	Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), Staff Time, Enterprise Funds	Short-Term		

Benefits N	New or		bioctivos l	Mot		c	upport Agono	•	Estimated	Sou	roos of Eunding	Timolino
Existing AssetsObjectives MetLead AgencySupport AgencyCostSources of FundingTimelineAction OXN-21—As part of the Memorandum of Agreement / Memorandum of Understanding with The Nature Conservancy (TNC):• Continue to partner with TNC on acquisition, restoration and mitigation planning processes• Partner on grant proposals• Participate in negotiations with land use owners• Carry-out restoration projects• Hold titles to floodplain properties as appropriate• Hold or co-hold with TNC multipurpose easements.Secure a Consolidated Coastal Development Permit to cover conservation and preservation activities over the next five years (2021-2026)that consist of the following:• Nesting shorebird protection activities• Invasive plant removal activities• Field data collection and research.Collaborate with Ventura County Public Works Agency-Watershed Protection, TNC, and State Coastal Conservancy to advance planning, design, and implementation of the Ormond Beach Restoration and Access Plan (OBRAP), particularly those components alleviating												
flooding al VCPWA-1	ong the C 3.	Ormo	nd Lagoon	Waterw	vay and creating	g publ	lic access alon	g tšui	maš Creek. This	s suppo	rts the VCPWA-WP	Action
<u>Hazards M</u> Existing ar	Hazards Mitigated: Existing and NewDrought, Flood, Severe Weather, Severe Storms, Sea Level Rise, TsunamiExisting and New1, 2, 3, 9, 12, 13, 14, 15, 17, 18, 19City of OxnardVCPWA-WPMediumStaff Time, Enterprise Funds, FEMA Grants (BRIC), ODECOngoing									Ongoing		
a. progr progr Acronyms	a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.											
	# of						le Drojoet	Cor	Droiget Do Eu	undod		Crant
Action #	# 01 Objectiv Met	/es	Benefits	Costs	Equal or Exceed Cos	st?	Grant- Eligible?	Pr	Under Existin ograms/ Budg	g ets?	Implementation Priority	Pursuit Priority
OXN 1	5		High	High	Yes		Yes		No		Medium	High
OXN 2	16		Medium	Low	Yes		No		Yes		High	Low
OXN 3	12		Low	Low	Yes		No		Yes		High	Low
OXN 4	5		Medium	Low	ow Yes		No		Yes		High	Low
OXN 5	17		Medium	Low	Yes		No		Yes		High	Medium
OXN 6	2		High	Mediur	n Yes		Yes		No		Medium	High
OXN 7	6		High	High	Yes		Yes		No		High	High
OXN 8	6		High	High	Yes		Yes		No		High	High
OXN 9	17		Medium	High	No		Yes		No		Low	Medium
OXN 10	9		Hiah	Low	Yes		Yes		Yes		High	Low
OXN 11	6		Hiah	High	Yes		Yes		No		High	High
OXN 12	9		High	Low	Yes		Yes		No		High	High

OXN 13

OXN 14

OXN 15

9

8

8

Medium

Medium

Medium

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

Low

Medium

Medium

.

High

High

High

Medium

Medium

Medium

Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority	Grant Pursuit Priority
OXN 16	8	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
OXN 17	9	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
OXN 18	8	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
OXN 19	3	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
OXN 20	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
OXN 21	11	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
OXN 21	11	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium

a. See the introduction to this volume for an explanation of priorities.

Table 6-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions										
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Types ^a								
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building		
High-Risk Hazards										
Dam Failure	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 6	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 18	OXN-2, 3, 4, 13	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 6	OXN-2, 3, 4, 6, 13, 18	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 18	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 6	OXN-4, 13, 18		
Medium-Risk Hazards	s									
Earthquake	OXN-2, 3, 6, 8, 14, 15, 16	OXN-2, 3, 6, 8, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18	OXN-2, 3, 8, 13	OXN-2, 3, 6	OXN-2, 3, 6, 8, 16, 17, 18	OXN-3, 6, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18	OXN-2, 6	OXN-8, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18		
Severe Storm	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 20, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 18, 20	OXN-2, 3, 4, 5, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 20, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 18, 20	OXN-1, 2, 3, 18, 20	OXN-1, 2, 4, 5, 20, 21	OXN-4, 5, 18, 21		
Severe Weather	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6	OXN-3, 4, 5, 6, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 6	OXN-1, 3, 5	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 21	OXN-4, 5, 6, 21		
Flooding	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 20, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 18, 20, 21	OXN-2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 13, 19	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 20, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 18, 20	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 18, 20	OXN-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 20, 21	OXN-4, 5, 6, 7, 13, 15, 18, 19, 21		
Sea Level Rise	OXN-1, 2, 5, 9, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 5, 9, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 5, 9	OXN-1, 2, 3, 5, 9, 21	OXN-2, 3	OXN-1, 2, 3, 5, 9	OXN-1, 2, 3, 5, 9, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 5, 9, 21		
Low-Risk Hazards										
Drought	OXN-5, 11, 21	OXN-21	OXN-2, 5	OXN-2, 5, 11, 21	OXN-5		OXN-2, 3, 5, 11, 21	OXN-2, 3, 5, 11, 21		
Wildfire	OXN-1, 2, 3, 6	OXN-1, 2, 3, 6	OXN-2, 3, 5, 6, 20	OXN-2, 3, 5, 6	OXN-2, 5, 6, 13		OXN-2, 3, 5, 6	OXN-2, 3, 5, 6, 13		
Tsunami	OXN-1, 2, 3, 6, 10, 14, 16, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 6, 10, 14, 16, 18, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 6, 10, 12, 13	OXN-1, 2, 3, 6, 10, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 6 10, 13, 14, 16, 18	OXN-1, 2, 3 10, 14, 16, 18	OXN-1, 2, 3, 6, 10, 21	OXN-1, 2, 3, 6, 10, 13, 14, 16, 18, 21		
a. See the introduction to this volume for an explanation of mitigation types.										

6.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 6-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 6-17. Local Public Outreach								
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved						
Virtual Emergency Preparedness Worship	September 16, 2021	70						
Adaptation Plan, outreach								
Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Assessment Report Results and Adaptation Strategies Workshop	August 9, 2017	Approximately 25						
Sea Level Rise Adaptation Strategy Results & Conceptual Policies	March 14, 2018	Approximately 25						

6.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **City of Oxnard Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **City of Oxnard Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance**—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.
- City of Oxnard 2021-2026 Five Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP)—The CIP was reviewed for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- Flood Info Community Rating System Website (Ventura County): <u>https://www.vcfloodinfo.com/programs/flooding-and-flood-risk/vc-flood-history</u>
- City of Oxnard Sea Level Rise Atlas: As required by the adopted California Coastal Commission Sea Level Rise Guidance Policy, a risk and vulnerability assessment using the best-available information and science regarding coastal erosion, flooding, wave impacts, tidal inundation and tsunamis is needed to identify potential physical impacts in the City's coastal zone. In this way, the City can determine what areas are vulnerable to impacts from these five coastal hazards individually and combined, and with projected sea level rise. <u>https://www.oxnard.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/OXNARD-FINAL-LCP-Sea-Level-Rise-Map-Atlas-Task-2.pdf</u>
- Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Assessment and Fiscal Impact Report: This study included a cost-benefit analysis of the adaptation strategies to allow comparison. The aim of the economic analysis was to provide a common metric against which the trade-offs between the costs and benefits of each adaptation strategy may be evaluated. The analysis accounts for the physical changes, economic benefits, and damages associated with each adaptation strategy, including th
- City of Oxnard Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)—The EOP was used to obtain the listing of official natural hazards that can impact the City, reference materials such as tsunami and dam inundation maps as well emergency management priorities, and public alert and warning procedures.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

6.11 FUTURE NEEDS TO BETTER UNDERSTAND RISK/VULNERABILITY

The City of Oxnard Fire Department is currently developing a Strategic Plan composed of numerous elements including a community risk analysis, infrastructure assessment, and community planning prioritization process. These elements are being created with significant input from key stakeholders including Fire Department personnel, City departments, external agencies, and the residential and business communities. It is anticipated that the Department's Strategic Plan, anticipated for release in 2022, will strengthen the City's understanding of risk and vulnerabilities and serve as a foundation for additional hazard mitigation project development during the next planning cycle.






























7. CITY OF PORT HUENEME

7.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Brad Conners, City Manager 250 N. Ventura Road Port Hueneme, CA 93041 Telephone: 805-986-6501 e-mail Address: BConners@ci.port-hueneme.ca.us

Alternate Point of Contact

Charles Peretz, Deputy City Manager 250 N. Ventura Road Port Hueneme, CA 93041 Telephone: 805-986-6501 e-mail Address: CPeretz@ci.porthueneme.ca.us

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 7-1.

Table 7-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members		
Name	Title	
Don Villafana	Public Works Director	
Lupe Acero	Deputy Finance Director	
Andrew Salinas	Chief of Police	
Tony Stewart	Director of Community Development	
Scott Matalon	Emergency Preparedness Manager	
Brad Conners	City Manager	
Charles Peretz	Deputy City Manager	

7.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

7.2.1 Location and Features

Port Hueneme is a small coastal town located in Ventura County, just south of the City of Oxnard and east of Channel Islands Harbor. The City is home to Naval Base Ventura County (NBVC) and the Port of Hueneme and about five miles to the south is Naval Air Station Point Mugu. Port Hueneme is primarily built out and has a total land area of 4.5 square miles with a population of 23,647 people. Regional access to the City is provided by Highway 101 and State Route 1. The City also includes beach front properties, parks, and public beaches visited from residents and non-residents alike.

7.2.2 History

The City of Port Hueneme was incorporated on March 24, 1948. The City of Port Hueneme (pronounced "Why-nee-mee") is a unique community along Ventura County's Gold Coast just south of the City of Oxnard and Channel Islands Harbor. Port Hueneme is unique because of its rich history, culture, and traditions, dating back to the Chumash Indians who made their home here for centuries and because of its long-established, close relationship with the U.S. Navy's Port Hueneme and Point Mugu naval facilities.

7.2.3 Governing Body Format

The City of Port Hueneme is governed by a five-member city council. The City consists of six departments: Finance, Housing and Facilities, Community Development, Public Works, Police, and the City Manager's Office. The City has 2 commissions which report to the City Council. The City currently employs a total of 170 employees (full-time equivalent).

The City Council assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the City Manager will oversee its implementation.

7.3 CURRENT TRENDS

7.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of the City of Port Hueneme as of January 2020 was 23,607. Since 2010, the population has grown at an average annual rate of 0.85 percent.

7.3.2 Development

Anticipated future development for Port Hueneme includes creating and sustaining a strong, viable economic base for the City. The City encourages development of diversified housing types that will meet our community's needs. This includes establishing a mix of housing types in local neighborhoods to avoid economic stratification and enhance community diversity. Future growth in the City will be managed as identified in the City's 2045 general plan. City actions, such as those relating to land use, annexations, zoning, subdivision and design review, redevelopment, and capital improvements, must be consistent with the plan.

Table 7-2 summarizes development trends in the period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

7.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were

identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions.

Table 7-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends						
Criterion	Re	Response				
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?	No					
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan?	No					
 Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years? If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas 	Yes Parcel located Victoria and Channel Islands, not in hazard area.					
How many permits for new construction		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
were issued in your jurisdiction since the	Single Family	0	0	0	0	0
preparation of the previous hazard mitigation	Multi-Family	0	0	0	0	0
	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	0	0	0	0	0
	Total	0	0	0	0	0
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	From 2016 to current, there have been zero new permits issued as the City of Port Hueneme is built out to capacity.					
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	ç	99.5%				

The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 7-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 7-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 7-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 7-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 7-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 7-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 7-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 7-10.

Table 7-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability				
	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements				
Building Code	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Article 8 Municipal Code starting 8001. (Ord. 637 § 5 E Residential Building Code", and the "California Green E	xh. A (part), 200 Building Standai	01) "California Building rds Code", 2019 Editior	Code", the "Cal ns	lifornia
Zoning Code	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Article 10 Section 10,000 (Ord. 579 § 6 (1), 1992)				
Subdivisions	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Article 9, Section 9,000 (Ord. 579 § 5 (1), 1992)				
Stormwater Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Follow County's Reports				
Post-Disaster Recovery	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: No Official plan				
Real Estate Disclosure	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Report of Building Records. California State Civil Code sale/re-sale of any and all real property. To be implement	1102 requires i ented by sellers	full disclosure on natura and realtors.	al hazard expos	ure of the
Growth Management	No	No	No	No
<i>Comment:</i> City is built out				
Site Plan Review	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Section 10350				
Environmental Protection	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requi impacts of their actions and to avoid or mitigate those in	ires state and lo mpacts, if feasil	ocal agencies to identify ble.	the significant	environmental
Flood Damage Prevention	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Section 10590				
Emergency Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Police Department Emergency Manager				
Climate Change	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: In Development				
Planning Documents				
General Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Is the plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140? 1998 Not Con Comment: 2045 Will Be set for October 2021 Release	npliant			
Capital Improvement Plan How often is the plan updated? 5 years Comment: Under Development	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Disaster Debris Management Plan	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment:	_			
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	No	Yes	Yes/No	Νο
Comment: The Ventura County Watershed Protection creates and	I maintains cour	ntvwide plans		
Stormwater Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: Ordinance #775				
Urban Water Management Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: City of Port Hueneme Urban Water Management Plan				

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Habitat Conservation Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: Local Costal Program				
Economic Development Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment: No Official				
Shoreline Management Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment: General Plan				
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	No	Yes	Yes	No
Comment: Not in wildfire area, no current plan				
Forest Management Plan	No	Yes	No	No
Comment: Urban Forestry				
Climate Action Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: In Process for General Plan 2045				
Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: EOP Plan Scheduled to finished 12/21				
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	No	Yes	No	No
<i>Comment:</i> The County of Ventura has performed a THIRA within the past 5 years. We are currently assessing the timing and requirements for the City of Ventura.				
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: EOP December 2021				
Continuity of Operations Plan	No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: EOP December 2021				
Public Health Plan	No	Yes	No	No
Comment: County of Ventura Public Health Department has a plan				
Other: Tsunami Plan	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: The County of Ventura has an existing plan that descudent document is required within the coming year 2022.	ribes each City r	ole and has been adop	ited locally. A re	evision of this

Table 7-4. Development and Permitting Capability

Criterion	Response
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits?	Yes
If no, who does? If yes, which department? Community Development	
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	No
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	Yes

Table 7-5. Fiscal Capability			
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?		
Community Development Block Grants	Yes		
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes		
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes		
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service Yes			
If yes, specify: Water/Sewer			
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes		
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	No		
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No		
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No		
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes		
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	No		

	Table 7-6. Administrative and Technical Capability	
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?
Planners or engineers with know	owledge of land development and land management practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Community Development	
Engineers or professionals tra	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works, Charles Cable, Don Villafana	
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Community Development and Don Villafana	
Staff with training in benefit-co	ost analysis	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	City Contractor	
Surveyors		No
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	No
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	No
Emergency manager		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Emergency and Communications Manager, Police Department	
Grant writers		No

Table 7-7. Education and Outreach Capability	
Criterion	Response
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website?	No
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe: Facebook Postings	Yes
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? If yes, briefly describe: Currently re-developing our CERT team.	Yes
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? If yes, briefly describe: VC Alert, Everbridge, email, Door Knocking, Website	Yes
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe: VC Alert	Yes

Table 7-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance				
Criterion	Response			
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Community Dev, PW			
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Tony Stewart, Charles Cable			
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	No			
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	1/21			
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements?	Meets			
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	Not had one			
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed?	No			
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction?	No			
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? <i>If no, state why.</i>	Yes			
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program?	No			
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program? Yes	No			
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? ^a What is the insurance in force? \$17,732,000 What is the premium in force? \$37,235	57			
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction?aWhat were the total payments for losses?\$846	7			
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021				

Table 7-9. Community Classifications				
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified	
FIPS Code	Yes	0611158296	N/A	
DUNS #	Yes	157675430	N/A	
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A	
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A	
Public Protection	Yes	03/3X	12/21/2018	
Storm Ready	Yes	N/A	N/A	
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A	
Tsunami Ready	Yes	N/A	N/A	

Table 7-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change			
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a		
Technical Capacity	<u>y</u>		
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	Low		
Comment: Addressed in 2045 Plan			
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	Low		
<i>Comment:</i> No current ability / Port of Hueneme itself conducts studies and publishes results to public			
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Low		
Comment: No resources identified at this time.			
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	Low		
Comment: None available at this time			
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Medium		
Comment: Community Development/Public Works			
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	Low		
Comment: Public Works / Environmental Sustainability			
Implementation Capacity			
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	Low		
Comment: Considerations outlined in General Plan			
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Low		
Comment: Continued research for adoption is needed for General Plan			
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	High		
Comment: The current update to the General plan has addressed strategies for adaptation to impacts.			
Champions for climate action in local government departments	Low		
Comment: Local non-profits and groups address issues			
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Medium		
Comment: City Council is supportive as well as many local organizations			
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	Low		
Comment: Non identified, however grants could be looked into			
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Low		
Comment: None that we are aware of at this time			
Public Capacity			
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Low		
Comment: Many environmentalists in our community who monitor and report			
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts	Low		
Comment: Local residences are concerned with issues and are generally supportive			
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium		
Comment: High likelihood to adapt based on our environmental position			
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low		
Comment: None seen.			
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium		
Comment: Not a lot of ecosystems			

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

7.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

7.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- City of Port Hueneme: General Plan
- City of Port Hueneme: Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)
- Ventura County: Operational Area Emergency Operations Plan

7.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- **City of Port Hueneme: General Plan**—This comprehensive effort is underway and will be integrated into this effort to be compliant with AB2140.
- **City of Port Hueneme: Citizen Emergency Response Team (CERT)**—This effort will be a collaboration between the following: CERT volunteers, City staff, community-based organizations, with the existing CERT team manual.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

7.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

7.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 7-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 7-11. Past Natural Hazard Events				
	FEMA			
Type of Event	Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment	
Erosion Events	N/A	Biennially, 2021 most recent	Every two years 2 million cubic yards of sand is dredged from the Port of Hueneme and deposited onto the east side of the Port. This erosion is ongoing and threatens roads and other infrastructure and leads to habitat disruption of local species of birds.	
Pandemic COVID-19	4482-DR	January 20, 2020 Continuing	Ongoing	
High Wind	N/A	2020	Strong surface high pressure in the Great Basin along with strong north to northeast flow aloft generated strong Santa Ana winds across Ventura and Los Angeles counties. North to northeast wind gusts up to 83 mph were reported in the mountains while gusts to 59 mph were reported across the coastal plain.	
Wind Event	N/A	2018	Strong surface high pressure building in the Great Basin generated strong and gusty Santa Ana winds across sections of Ventura and Los Angeles counties.	
Winter Storm	N/A	2018	Strong surface high pressure in the Great Basin helped to generate a moderate Santa Ana wind event across Southern California. Strong northeast winds were reported across the mountains and valleys of Ventura and Los Angeles Counties.	
Tornado	N/A	2018	A powerful winter storm brought significant rain, snow and wind to the area. Rainfall totals ranged from 1 to 2 inches across coastal and valleys areas with 2 to 4 inches in the foothills and mountains. With snow levels dropping to between 2500 and 3500 feet, significant snowfall was reported in the mountains (up to 1 to 2 feet) and even the Antelope Valley (4 to 8 inches). Numerous road closures due to winter storm conditions were reported, including Interstate 5 through the Grapevine as well as Highways 14 and 138. Additionally, thunderstorms generated a waterspout over the coastal waters as well as a very weak tornado over Ventura Harbor.	
Flash Flood	N/A	2018	High pressure over the four-corners region resulted in an extended monsoonal flow pattern across Southern California. For several days, strong thunderstorms produced heavy rain, flash flooding and large hail across parts of Southern California.	
Debris Flow	N/A	2018	A powerful early-season winter storm moves across Southwestern California on Halloween night. The storm produced some significant rainfall with amounts in the coastal areas ranging from 0.25 to 1.50 while the mountains received up to 2.00. In the Camarillo area, near the Springs burn scar, a mud/debris flow occurred. Otherwise just some minor nuisance flooding was reported.	
Thunderstorm	N/A	2017	A powerful winter storm brought heavy rain and snow, flash flooding and gusty winds to the area. Rainfall totals from this storm generally ranged between 2 and 6 inches with locally higher amounts in some foothill areas. With such rainfall amounts, there was significant snowfall totals in the local mountains with up to 28 inches of snow reported at the resort level. Additionally, the heavy rain did generate several flash flooding events including several mud and debris flows.	
High Surf	N/A	4/2014	High tides and strong surf damaged the pier, beach and local streets causing road damage, pipe damage and damage to the pier.	
Tsunami		March 11, 2011	7.1 earthquake in Japan. Damage to local harbors, marinas and docks	
Tsunami		February 27, 2010	8.8 Quake in Chile. Damage to local harbors, marinas and docks	
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	January 17 – November 30, 1994	Power and communications disruptions, damage to structures	
St Francis Dam Disaster		March 12, 1928	\$7 Million (1928)—Inundation of nearly the entire city, flooding, debris flows, destruction of infrastructure, high loss of life	

7.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 7-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 7-12. Hazard Risk Ranking							
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category				
1	Dam Failure	36	High				
2	Earthquake	32	Medium				
3	Severe Storms	24	Medium				
4	Severe Weather	24	Medium				
5	Landslide	18	Medium				
6	Flooding	15	Low				
7	Tsunami	14	Low				
8	Drought	9	Low				
9	Sea Level Rise	6	Low				

7.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: 0

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Street and Urban Flooding—There are numerous areas of the city that flood to varying degrees during periods of high rain. The effects of this flooding range from street closures to damage to property, vehicles and buildings.
- **Power Outages/Emergency Power**—Local power outages have resulted from high winds and storm conditions as well as from the effects of wildland fire in the region. Many key city buildings including the Main City Hall and Council Chambers buildings have no backup power or emergency generators.

- **Debris Flows-** Following heavy rains and winter storms, substantial debris flows have occurred in the Santa Clara River, Ventura River, as well as local streams and culverts. Debris flows following wildland fires are particularly bad and can require removal of material from streams, streets, culverts and beaches.
- Liquefaction Potential—Nearly the entire City of Port Hueneme is in a "Liquefaction Zone". The effects and damage caused by seismic activities can be amplified resulting in increased damage to buildings and infrastructure.
- Homeless Population- A significant number of persons commonly defined as "Homeless" live on and around our local beach. During high tides and significant tidal pushes, the homeless are at greater risk.
- **Tsunami Awareness and Notification**—Port Hueneme has many visitors to its beach who may not be aware of the tsunami risk. The City does not have tsunami warning sirens.
- Wildfire Smoke—During wildfire events in the region the air quality in the City can become hazardous, especially when the Santa Ana winds push wildfire smoke toward the coast. Wildfire can trigger PSPS events, which amplify the hazard when city buildings lacking backup power cannot operate air conditioning systems.

Actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

7.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 7-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 7-13. Status of Previous Pla	n Actions				
		Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update		
Action Item	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update	
OA 6 —Develop a public outreach program that informs property owners located in the dam and levee failure inundation areas about voluntary flood insurance.			~	PHE-7	
Comment: Action status unknown due to staff turnover					
OA 10 —Seismically retrofit or upgrade seismically deficient government facilities and pre-identified shelter facilities.			~	PHE-1	
Comment: Not completed due to lack of funding and staff capacity					
OA 11 —Develop and implement plans to increase the building owner's general knowledge of and appreciation for the value of seismic upgrading of the building's structural and nonstructural elements.			✓	PHE-9	
Comment: Action status unknown due to staff turnover					
OA 13 —Reinforce roads/bridges from flooding through protection activities, including elevating the roads/bridges and installing/widening culverts beneath the roads/bridges or upgrading storm drains.			•	PHE-10	
Comment: City does not have bridges but storm drain upgrades are in process in a continue on other parts of the city.	the location of th	he beach. Con	tinued work	needs to	
OA 18 —Continue to participate in the NWS TsunamiReady Program through continued implementation of Guideline 4: Community Preparedness measures, including public outreach material and curriculum. Comment: Continued participation in the program			~	PHE-11	

7.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 7-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 7-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 7-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

	Та	able 7-14. Hazard Mitig	ation Action	Plan Matrix	(
Benefits New or			Support	Estimated		Time alline 2
EXISTING ASSetS	tigate beach erosion to	Lead Agency	Agency	COSI	Sources or Funding	
endangered specie	engale beach erosion to	protect shoreline roads, pro	per lies, narbur	iaciiilies, anu	i the hatural habitat, incluuin	iy
Hazards Mitigated:	Flooding, Sea Level	Rise, Tsunami, Severe Stor	ms			
New & Existing	2, 13, 14, 18	USACE	Public Works	Medium	General Funds, FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Ongoing
Action PHE-2—W have experienced r	here appropriate, supp repetitive losses and/or	ort retrofitting, purchase or r are located in high- or med	elocation of stru ium-risk hazard	ictures locate areas.	d in hazard areas, prioritizin	ig those that
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthqual	ke, Severe Storms, Severe	Weather, Floodi	ng, Wildfire, I	Dam Failure, Sea Level Rise	e, Tsunami
Existing	1, 4, 6, 9, 10, 11, 16	Public Works	Community Development	High	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term
Action PHE-3—Int community, including	tegrate the hazard mitig	ation plan into other plans, ent.	ordinances and	programs that	at dictate land use decisions	s in the
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthqual	ke, Severe Storms, Severe	Weather, Floodi	ng, Wildfire, I	Dam Failure, Sea Level Rise	e, Tsunami,
New & Existing	1, 2, 10, 11, 12, 15, 16, 19	Community Development	Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing
Action PHE-4—Ac	tively participate in the	plan maintenance protocols	s outlined in Volu	ume 1 of this	hazard mitigation plan.	
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Severe S	torms, Severe Weather, Flo	oding, Wildfire, I	Dam Failure,	Sea Level Rise, Tsunami, E	Drought
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 10, 15, 17, 19	Community Development	Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term
Action PHE-5—Co programs that, at a • Enforce the floo • Participate in flo • Provide public a Hazards Mitigated:	ontinue to maintain goo minimum, meet the NI d damage prevention c odplain identification a issistance/information c Severe Storms, Sev	d standing and compliance FIP requirements: rdinance. nd mapping updates. on floodplain requirements a ere Weather, Flooding, Dam	under the NFIP nd impacts. 1 Failure, Sea Le	through imple	ementation of floodplain ma unami	nagement
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 17, 18, 19	Public Works		Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing
 Action PHE-6—Identify and pursue strategies to increase adaptive capacity to climate change including but not limited to the following: Adopt a Climate Action Plan to reflect new State legislation, changing priorities, and environmental sustainability and greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction policies and goals. Adopt modifications to existing plans and procedures to meet climate change issues and impacts. 						
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Severe S	torms, Severe Weather, Flo	oding, Wildfire, I	Dam Failure,	Sea Level Rise, Tsunami, L	Drought
New & Existing	1, 3, 4, 9, 10, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 19	Community Development	Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term
Action PHE-7—PL Operations Center	and other critical facilit	critical facilities and infrastru	icture that lack a	adequate bac	kup power, including the En	nergency
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam Failure, Earthq	uake, Flooding, Landslide, S	Severe Weather	, Tsunami, W	ildfire	
Existing	1, 2, 7, 10	Public Works	City Manager	Medium	General Funds, FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP)	Long-term

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a		
Action PHE-8—Develop a public outreach program that informs property owners located in the dam and levee failure inundation areas about voluntary flood insurance.								
Hazards Mitigated:	Severe Storms, Seve	ere Weather, Flooding, Dam	n Failure, Sea Le	evel Rise, Tsu	unami			
Existing	1, 2, 7, 10, 17, 19	Community Development		Low	Staff Time/ General Funds	Short-Term		
Action PHE-9 De seismic upgrading de Hazards Mitigated:	evelop and implement of the building's structu Earthquake	plans to increase the buildin Iral and nonstructural eleme	g owner's gener nts.	ral knowledge	e of and appreciation for the	e value of		
Existina	1, 2, 7, 10, 17, 19	Community Development	Public Works	Low	Staff Time / General Fund	Short-Term		
Action PHE-10—Reinforce roads from flooding through protection activities, including elevating the roads and installing/widening culverts beneath the roads/bridges or upgrading storm drains.								
Hazards Mittigated:	Severe Storms, Severe	ere weather, Flood, Sea Le	vei Rise, Tsunar	mi				
Existing	2, 4, 6, 9, 11	Public Works		Medium	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Long-Term		
Action PHE-11—C Guideline 4: Comm	Continue to participate i Junity Preparedness m	n the NWS TsunamiReady a easures, including public ou	and StormRead	y Programs th and curriculu	hrough continued implemen m.	itation of		
Hazards Mitigated:	Severe Storms, Seve	ere Weather, Flood, Sea Le	vel Rise, Tsunar	mi				
New & Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 8, 12, 17, 18, 19	Public Works		Low	General Funds	Ongoing		
Action PHE-12-Ir	nstall City tsunami warr	ning siren network.						
Hazards Mitigated:	Tsunami							
New & Existing	1, 2, 7	Public Works		Medium	Fema HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-Term		
a. Short-term = C	ompletion within 5 yea date	rs; Long-term = Completion	within 10 years;	; Ongoing= C	continuing new or existing pl	rogram with		

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table	7-15.	Mitigation	Action	Priority
-------	-------	------------	--------	----------

Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	ls Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
2	7	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
3	8	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
4	9	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
5	13	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
6	11	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Medium
7	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
8	6	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
9	6	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
10	5	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
11	9	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Medium
12	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 7-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions											
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a									
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building ^b			
High-Risk Hazard	High-Risk Hazards										
Dam Failure	PHE-5	PHE-2	PHE-8		PHE-7		PHE-6	PHE-3, 4, 5, 6			
Medium-Risk Haz	ards										
Earthquake		PHE-2	PHE-9		PHE-7		PHE-6	PHE-3, 4, 6			
Severe Storms	PHE-5	PHE-2, 10	PHE-8	PHE-1		PHE-10	PHE-6	PHE-3, 4, 5, 6, 11			
Severe Weather	PHE-5	PHE-2, 10	PHE-8		PHE-7	PHE-10	PHE-6	PHE-3, 4, 5, 6, 11			
Landslide		PHE-2			PHE-7		PHE-6	PHE-3, 4, 6			
Low-Risk Hazard	S										
Flooding	PHE-5	PHE-2, 10	PHE-8	PHE-1	PHE-7	PHE-10	PHE-6	PHE-3, 4, 5, 6, 11			
Tsunami	PHE-5, 12	PHE-2, 10	PHE-8, 12	PHE-1	PHE-7, 12	PHE-10	PHE-6	PHE-3, 4, 5, 6, 11			
Drought		PHE-2					PHE-6	PHE-3, 4, 6			
Sea Level Rise	PHE-5	PHE-2, 10	PHE-8	PHE-1			PHE-6	PHE-3, 4, 5, 6, 11			

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

7.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 7-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 7-17. Local Public Outreach						
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved				
Social media and website (in coordination with General Plan)	9-02	45				

7.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **City of Port Hueneme Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- City of Port Hueneme General Plan—The General Plan is under revision and had been aligned to be compliant with AB2140. It was reviewed for the capability assessment and action plan development.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.































8. CITY OF SANTA PAULA

8.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Scott Varner, Support Services Commander 214 S. 10th Street Santa Paula, CA 93060 805-525-4474 ext. 105 svarner@spcity.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Kate Bader, CSO 214 S. 10th Street Santa Paula, CA 93060 805-525-4474 ext. 113 kbader@spcity.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 8-1.

Table 0-1. Local Willyallon Flamming Team Members	Table 8-1. Local	Mitigation	Planning	Team	Members
---	------------------	------------	----------	------	---------

Name	Title
Dan Singer	City Manager
James Mason	Community & Economic Development Director
Jeff Mitchem	Planning Manager
Tom Tarantino	Associate Planner
Alexander Wallsten	Administrative Analyst

8.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

8.2.1 Location and Features

The City of Santa Paula is in Ventura County, California, United States.

The current boundaries generally extend out from 34.3542° N, 119.0593° W, encompassing an area of 5.69 square miles.

The City of Santa Paula, California is located 65 miles northwest of Los Angeles and 14 miles east of Ventura and the coastline of the Pacific Ocean. Santa Paula is near the geographical center of Ventura County, situated in the rich agricultural Santa Clara River Valley. The City is surrounded by rolling hills and rugged mountain peaks in addition to orange, lemon, and avocado groves. In fact, Santa Paula is referred to as the "Citrus Capital of the World."

8.2.2 History

The city of Santa Paula was incorporated in 1902. The original community that has become known as Santa Paula was established by the Chumash Indians as the villages of Mupu and Srswa. The land was later given away as part of a Spanish land grant to Rancho Santa Paula and Saticoy in 1840. In the 1860s the area was subdivided into small farms. In 1880, oil was discovered in Santa Paula leading to the formation of the Union Oil Company in 1890. The City of Santa Paula was incorporated on April 22, 1902. In the early 1900s Santa Paula was considered the pre-Hollywood film capital, the "Queen of the Silver Screen." Even today, Santa Paula is noted for its movie personalities (silent and sound) who resided in and adjacent to the city and a TV or movie crew is not an unusual sight in the community.

8.2.3 Governing Body Format

The City of Santa Paula assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the City Manager will oversee its implementation.

The City of Santa Paula is governed by a five-member city council. The City consists of eight departments: Administration, City Clerk, Community and Economic Development, Finance, Human Resources, Parks & Recreation, Police, and Public Works. The city has 10 commissions and task forces, which report to the City Council. The City currently employs a total of 126 employees, 98 of which are full-time.

8.3 CURRENT TRENDS

8.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of the Santa Paula as of January 2020 was 30,389. Since 2010, the population has grown at an average annual rate of 0.27 percent.

8.3.2 Development

Development interest in Santa Paula has greatly increased in recent years, particularly since construction began on the highly visible East Area 1 / Harvest at Limoneira project. As Santa Paula is surrounded by a mix of greenbelt and urban curb restrictions, the majority of development proposals are for infill and adaptive reuse projects—areas where Santa Paula offers numerous opportunities. Recent legislation aimed at streamlining the entitlement process for housing projects has also generated a great deal of interest from developers.

Table 8-2 summarizes development trends in the period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

Table 8-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends						
Criterion		Respo	onse			
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?	No					
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan? <i>If yes, describe land areas and dominant uses.</i>	Yes, Santa Paula West Business Park The Santa Paula West Business Park is located on 53 acres of agricultural land, currently zoned AE-40 (Agricultural Exclusive, 40 ac minimum parcel size) in the County of Ventura, on the southwestern boundary of the City of Santa Paula. It is bound to the north by Telegr Road and residential property (zoned MHP and R-2), to the east by existing industrial and commercial development (zoned CG and C-LI) the south by agriculture (zoned AE 40 in the County of Ventura) and t west by the Adams Creek and agriculture (zoned AE-40 in the County Ventura). The area is identified as SP-6, West Area 2 in the City of Santa Paula General Plan. It is within the Sphere of Influence and the city urban restriction boundary of the City of Santa Paula with frontage along Sta Route 126 and Telegraph Road and is bisected by the railroad right-o way. While it is just west of the Santa Paula City limits, the area is out of the Santa Paula -Ventura Greenbelt. Annexation of the Santa Paula West Business Park into the City of Santa Paula has been approved the City Council, and is currently under review by Ventura County LA					
If yes, who currently has permitting authority over these areas?	County of Ventura					
Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years? If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas	Yes Santa Paula West Business Park (SP-6/West Area 2), see above. East Area 1 / Harvest at Limoneira—500-acres on eastern end of the City. Remaining 1,100 homes (of approved 1,500) to be constructed under adopted Specific Plan, along with commercial areas and park facilities.					
How many permits for new construction were issued in	The contract of the second s	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
your jurisdiction since the preparation of the previous	Single Family	4	10	2	41	174
hazard mitigation plan?	Multi-Family	8	0	11	0	0
	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	1	2	1	1	0
	Total	13	12	14	42	174
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	ch Hillside residences along northerly city boundary are either within or abutting high-fire risk areas as defined by CAL FIRE/VCFPD. Residence and businesses, including a portion of those in the new East Area 1/Harvest at Limoneira development, on the east end of the city are with FEMA flood hazard areas of Santa Paula Creek and/or Santa Clara Riv These flood/liquefaction hazards have been mitigated by requirements applicable Specific Plan(s) or development conditions.					
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	Santa Paula is largely built-o developable land within city l southwest corners. These ar hazard mitigation) under revi including hazard mitigation).	out within o limits are reas eithe iew, or an	city limits. situated r r have de adopted	Remaini near the s velopmer Specific I	ng pocket outheast it proposa Plan (also	ts of and als (with

8.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 8-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 8-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 8-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 8-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 8-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 8-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 8-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 8-10.

I able 8-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability					
	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?	
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements					
Building Code	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: 2019 California Building Code					
Zoning Code	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: COSP Municipal Code, Chapter 16					
Subdivisions	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: State Subdivision Map Act COSP Municipal Code, Chapter 16.80 Subdivision Reg	gulations	· · ·			
Stormwater Management	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: COSP Municipal Code, Chapter 54					
Post-Disaster Recovery	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: COSP Municipal Code, Chapter 150					
Real Estate Disclosure	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: COSP Municipal Code, Chapter 156.043					
Growth Management	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: COSP Municipal Code, Chapter 16.106 (7-19-04)					
Site Plan Review	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: COSP Municipal Code, Chapter 16.226					
Environmental Protection	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: COSP Municipal Code, Chapter					
	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?	
---	------------------------	---------------------------------------	-------------------	-----------------------------	
Flood Damage Prevention	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: COSP Municipal Code, Chapter 151	Vac	No	Vac	Vac	
Comment: COSP Emergency Operations Plan 2019	103		153	103	
Climate Change	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: COSP 2040 General Plan 4-6 Environmental and Cult	ural Resources,	C. Air Quality and Gree	enhouse Gases		
Planning Documents					
General Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Is the plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140? Yes Comment: COSP 2040 General Plan					
Capital Improvement Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
How often is the plan updated? Annually (Five Years)	Conoral Dian				
Disaster Dehris Management Plan	Vas	Vec	Yes	Vac	
Comment: Ventura County Disaster Recovery Plan Adonted by F	30S in Anril 201	9	103	103	
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment : The City participates in the National Flood Insurance F	Program (NFIP)	110	105	105	
Stormwater Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: Ventura County Storm Water Quality Management Pro Resources, H. Water Quality	ogram, COSP 20	024 General Plan 4-6 E	nvironmental ar	nd Cultural	
Urban Water Management Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: COSP 2020 Urban Water Management Plan					
Habitat Conservation Plan	No	No	No	Yes	
Comment: N/A				,	
Economic Development Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes	
Comment: City Council Strategic Goals Approved July 2021//Eco	nomic Developm	nent Strategic Plan und	ler development	f	
Shoreline Management Plan	No	No	No	No	
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	Vcc	Vcc	Vcc	Vac	
Comment: COSD Emergency Operations Dan 2010 Section 9 T	Tes Threat Assocsmo	Yes nts 8_Wildland Fire	res	res	
Forest Management Plan			Unknown	Ves	
Comment: No forest area unknown on plans or jurisdiction if requ	lired.	UTIKITUWIT	UNKIUWI	103	
Climate Action Plan	No	Unknown	Unknown	Yes	
Comment: N/A			Charlowin		
Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: COSP Emergency Operations Plan 2019		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		-	
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: COSP Emergency Operations Plan 2019 Section 8, Threat Summary and Assessments					
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: COSP Emergency Operations Plan 2019					
Continuity of Operations Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: COSP Emergency Operations Plan 2019 Part one-35				,	
Public Health Plan	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: COSP Emergency Operations Plan 2019 addressed P Public Health Emergency Response Plan (ERP)	Public Health Em	ergencies, County of V	'entura Health C	Care Agency	

Table 8-4. Development and Permitting Capability		
Criterion	Response	
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits? If no, who does? If yes, which department? Building and Safety	Yes	
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	Yes	
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	Currently being developed	

Table 8-5. Fiscal Capability			
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?		
Community Development Block Grants	Yes		
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes		
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes		
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes		
If yes, specify: Water and Sewer			
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes		
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes		
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No		
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No		
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes		
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes		

Table 8-6. Administrative and Technical Capability				
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?		
Planners or engineers with know	owledge of land development and land management practices	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works/Assistant City Engineer/Community Development /Director & Manager			
Engineers or professionals tra	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works/City Engineer			
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards				
Staff with training in benefit-cost analysis				
Surveyors		No		
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Planning Department / Associate Planner			
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	No		
Emergency manager		Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Scott Varner, Commander, Santa Paula PD			
Grant writers		No		

Table 8-7. Education and Outreach Capability			
Criterion	Response		
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes		
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes		
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? If yes, briefly describe: Will be in development	No		
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe: In process of developing education	Yes		
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? If yes, briefly describe: Although not a decision making body, the Citizen Corp meets monthly	Yes		
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? If yes, briefly describe: Social Media, Nixle	Yes		
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If ves. briefly describe: 1610 AM. Social Media. County reverse 911. Nixle	Yes		

Table 8-8.	National Flood	Insurance F	Program (Compliance

Criterion	Response
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Public Works
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Public Works/Public Works Director
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	No
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	May 4, 2009
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements? If exceeds, in what ways? Enter Response	Meets
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	June 18, 2018
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed? If so, state what they are. Enter Response	No
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction? If so, state what they are. Enter Response	No
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? If no, state why. The current FIRM's received from FEMA are being appealed for a variety of within the City's jurisdictional boundary. The City will be conducting its own for the conducting its own for the current flood risk within the City's jurisdictional boundary.	No reasons, including significant A99 zones lood study in the coming months.
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program? If so, what type of assistance/training is needed? Enter Response	No
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program? Yes	No
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? ^a What is the insurance in force? \$306,954,400 What is the premium in force? \$604,233	1,021
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction? ^a What were the total payments for losses? \$134,387	63
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021	

Table 8-9. Community Classifications				
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified	
FIPS Code	Yes	0611170042	N/A	
DUNS #	Yes	085937027	N/A	
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A	
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	Yes	Unknown	Unknown	
Public Protection	Yes	03/3X	12/21/2018	
Storm Ready	N/A	N/A	N/A	
Firewise	N/A	N/A	N/A	
Tsunami Ready	N/A	N/A	N/A	

	Table 8-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical C	Capacity	
Jurisdictior Comment:	n-level understanding of potential climate change impacts City's General Plan acknowledges understanding of potential climate change impacts. The City does not adaptation plan. However, per the General Plan, the City has policies and procedures that will be in force developments, entailing strict rules that will not allow for development or construction in high risk wildfire respectively (HPS 2.1 & 3.1). The City's Storm Drain Master Plan was also created to address deficiencie drainage systems and identify proposed facilities needed to address deficiencies. The City also participa Flood Insurance Program (HPS 2.2) which covers over 1,000 residences and has CIPs addressing poter hazards such as the Water Recycling Facility Floodwall, project #9039, funded through SB1.	Medium t currently have an e for future and flood areas, es in existing tes in the National ntial climate change
Jurisdiction Comment:	n-level monitoring of climate change impacts City itself does not have a committee or task force that monitors climate change impacts. The City does informed decisions based on risk zones identified by external sources, such as FEMA, CAL Fire, Ventura USGS. The City updates risk zones as new data is supplied by these external sources and applies the up to future decision-making and land use.	Low however make a County Fire, and pdated information
Technical r Comment:	esources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities City does not have any resources specifically dedicated to climate change impacts. City works in collabo County Watershed Protection to protect watercourses, public highways, life, and property from damage of floodwaters, and Ventura County Fire District in efforts to mitigate future fire risks as guided by the Ventu Strategic Fire Plan.	Low ration with Ventura or destruction from ira County Unit
Jurisdictior Comment:	n-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory City does not have resources dedicated to greenhouse gas inventory. City would cooperate with Ventura Pollution Control District under guidelines imposed by AB 617 to develop and implement emissions repor and reduction plans and measures.	Low County Air rting, monitoring,
Capital plar Comment:	nning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts City's General Plan outlines policies and procedures that will be in force for future development that bars designated high risk zones, and for other developments outside those zones requires current Federal, Si parameters be met during construction (HPS 2.1 & 3.1). The City has been informed of risk zones as hav FEMA's Flood Hazard Zones map (2018), Ventura County's Countywide Dam Failure Inundation Areas in Paula Safety Element Fire History map (2015) detailing Wildland Fire History, and CAL Fire's Wildland F (2020) detailing fire risk zones in the Santa Paula area.	Medium construction in tate, and City ve been identified in map (2014), Santa ire Hazard Areas
Participatio Comment:	n in regional groups addressing climate risks City complies with Ventura County ordinances and participates in the Ventura County Watershed Protect protect watercourses and property from damage or destruction from floodwaters and the Ventura County Plan to mitigate future fire risks.	Low tion Program to Unit Strategic Fire

		Jurisdiction
Criterion	Here Connaithe	Ratinga
	ilion Capacity	Low
Comment:	City does not have a direct mandate that states decision-making must consider climate change impacts. the City's General Plan outlines policies and procedures for future development and CIPs that take into a mitigate climate change hazards. City Council meets every other week and is open to the public to vote and CIP related issues. The Public Works Director is present to provide and inform Council and the publi information as it pertains to project proposals and budge dispensations.	Notwithstanding, account and seek to on city budgetary lic of climate related
Identified st	trategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Low
Comment:	City is in the process of exploring EV technology options and allowing third party alternative energy comperate to install and maintain EV charging stations and solar panels.	panies licenses to
Identified st	trategies for adaptation to impacts	Medium
Comment:	City General Plan outlines risk zones and policies for development going forward. Land use policies outl development in areas deemed high risk flood zones or high risk wildfire zones (HPS 2.1 & 3.1). The Ger CIPs to be developed and funded that address climate induced hazards related to flooding (HPS 2.c), pr	lined will bar new neral Plan outlines rograms to be .
Champions	for climate action in local government departments	Low
Comment:	City does not have a dedicated department or staff to climate action initiatives. Although there are no dir dedicated to this task, Public Works is focused on complying with federal, state, and county regulations. a General Plan that acknowledges and plans around known risk zones with the goal of mitigating future restricting further development into high risk zones.	ect committees PW has developed hazards and
Political su	pport for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Medium
Comment:	City Council is on board with climate change adaptation projects if they are projects that would reduce en increase energy efficiency. An Energy Efficiency Program will go before Council in Dec 2021 to vote on implement. Council members are supportive of projects and initiatives if they will provide the community return value or if they will directly aid further development of the city.	nergy usage and energy programs to with a measurable
Financial re	sources devoted to climate change adaptation	Low
Comment:	City does not allocate resources specifically to climate change adaptation projects. Portions of the budge future CIPs related to climate change adaptation.	et may be spent on
Local author	prity over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Medium
Comment:	City has emergency shelters in place that have basic resources that have been used in the recent past of Fire. Santa Paula Police have developed evacuation protocols that are enacted when necessary and in Ventura County Office of Emergency Services and Ventura County Human Services Agency.	during the Thomas coordination with
Public Capa	acity	
Local resid	ents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Medium
Comment:	The City does not currently send out informational media content related to climate risks. City residents Flood Insurance Program and are aware of the potential flood risks in their area.	pay into the National
Local reside	ents' support of adaptation efforts	Medium
Comment:	Residents are supportive of adaptation efforts that directly benefit them. Residents may not be as supporting adaptation efforts were to take funding from projects that would impact them in a short term time frame, streets that are in a state of disrepair.	rtive if these such as repaving of
Local reside	ents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment:	The City's per capita income is 68% of the national, and the poverty rate is greater than the national ave (Census Bureau). Residents have a limited capacity for adaptation and are reliant upon the city to make fund projects that would mitigate climate induced hazards such as floods or wildfires.	rage at 14.2% preparations and
Local econo	omy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment:	Scope of climate impact will dictate the economy's capacity to adapt. Based on FEMA's updated Venture for communities along Santa Clara River the base floodplain level has risen and portions of the city sout exist in a FEMA identified base floodplain zone. Significant portions of the city to the west and east of Sa well as to the north of Hwy 126 fall within a federally protected A99 zone having met specific requirement the one of four dams located northeast of the city could incur significant cost damages. Also the breaking incur damages and rebuilding of said levee would require significant public funding that may not be read	a County flood maps h of Hwy 126 now anta Paula Creek as nts. The breaking of g of a levee could lily reallocated.

Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts Low Comment: The local ecosystem consists largely of the Santa Clara River watershed which is protected in cooperation with Ventura County Watershed Protection. Wildfires have burned through the foothills to the north and east of the city, including the Thomas Fire (2017) and Simi Fire (2003), respectively. Extensive research and study has not been conducted to ascerti	Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Comment: The local ecosystem consists largely of the Santa Clara River watershed which is protected in cooperation with Ventura County Watershed Protection. Wildfires have burned through the foothills to the north and east of the city, including the Thomas Fire (2011) and Simi Fire (2003), respectively. Extensive research and study has not been conducted to ascert	Local ecos	ystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
the long-term ecosystem damage or recovery of the region.	Comment:	The local ecosystem consists largely of the Santa Clara River watershed which is protected in cooperatic County Watershed Protection. Wildfires have burned through the foothills to the north and east of the cit Thomas Fire (2017) and Simi Fire (2003), respectively. Extensive research and study has not been cond the long-term ecosystem damage or recovery of the region.	ion with Ventura ty, including the ducted to ascertain

 High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

8.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

8.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- 2040 General Plan—four-year update process recently completed (late 2021).
- Draft Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) and Water Shortage Contingency Plan updated documents in final stages of review.

8.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

• 2029 Housing Element—draft HE Update currently under review w/CA HCD

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

8.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

8.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 8-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 8-11. Past Natural Hazard Events				
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment	
Thomas Fire	FM-5224	2017	281,893 acres burned over the course of 38 days across the Santa Barbara and Ventura Counties. 280 structures were damaged and 1,063 structures were destroyed. Residents were evacuated and significant smoke covered the area. A hazard shelter was set up with basic resources in Santa Paula for evacuees.	
Simi Fire	N/A	2003	108,204 acres burned over the course of 10 days in the Simi Valley. Significant smoke billowed over the valley.11 structures were damaged, 315 structures destroyed, 21 injuries. No property damages in Santa Paula.	
Maria Fire	FM-5302	November 1, 2019	9,999 acres burned over 5 days. 4 structures were destroyed. Residents were evacuated and diverted by Santa Paula PD. Significant smoke lingering causing respiratory irritation.	
Flash Flood	N/A	January 4, 2008	Rainfall totals between January 4th and 6th ranged from 5 to 11 inches in the foothills and mountains. The total amount of rainfall, combined with rainfall rates around 1 inch per hour, produced numerous reports of flooding as well as mud and debris flows.	
SC River Flood/SP Airport	DR-1585	2005	Flooding closed all ingress and egress from the city. Santa Paula airport was closed for several months due to flood damage to the runwaysouthern portion of the airport and runway was washed away by flood waters.	
Flash Flood	N/A	November 30, 2002	An intense thunderstorm produced heavy rain and flash flooding near the community of Santa Paula. Law enforcement officials reported the intersection of Foothill Boulevard and Briggs Road as well as the intersection of Telegraph Road and Briggs Road were inundated with over 2 feet of water.	
Wildfire	N/A	December 25, 2000	Gusty Santa Ana winds fueled a wildfire in the hills between the cities of Santa Paula and Somis. The fire, which burned over 360 acres, was started by downed power lines.	
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	1994	6.7 magnitude earthquake centered in Northridge. 57 fatalities reported during caused by earthquake with injuries over the thousands. Damages caused were over \$20 billion in costs with double that in economic loss. Marked the costliest earthquake in U.S. history.	
SC River Flood	DR-253	1969	13 reported deaths. 5 bridge crossings destroyed. Property damage was estimated at \$60 million.	
St. Francis Dam Flood	N/A	1928	Countywide, more than 530 people died; bridges, orchards, farms, homes all eradicated in flood's path down the Santa Clara river valley to the Pacific Ocean.	

8.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 8-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

	Table 8-12. Hazard Risk Ranking							
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category					
1	Flooding	48	High					
2	Dam Failure	36	High					
3	Earthquake	32	Medium					
4	Severe Storms	24	Medium					
5	Severe Weather	24	Medium					
6	Landslide	18	Medium					
7	Wildfire	12	Low					
8	Drought	9	Low					

8.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 3
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: 0

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

No jurisdiction-specific issues were identified by the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, or other available resources.

8.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 8-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

8.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 8-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 8-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 8-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 8-13. Status of Previous Pla	n Actions			
Removed				Over to Plan odate
Action Item	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
OA 6 —Develop a public outreach program that informs property owners located in the dam and levee failure inundation areas about voluntary flood insurance. Comment: Ongoing initiative, Public Works			•	SP-4
OA 7 —Develop a water conservation public outreach program to increase awareness about the drought, fines and penalties for overuse and solutions for conserving water.			~	SP-11
Comment: Ongoing initiative, Public Works				
OA 11 —Develop and implement plans to increase the building owner's general knowledge of and appreciation for the value of seismic upgrading of the building's structural and nonstructural elements.			✓	SP-1
Comment: Ongoing initiative, Building & Safety / Public Works				
OA 14 —Acquire, relocate, or elevate residential structures, in particular those that have been identified as RL properties, within the 100-year floodplain.			~	SP-1
Comment: Origoning initiative, Public Works				

Table 8-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix								
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a		
Action SP-1—Whe have experienced	Action SP-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.							
Hazards Mitigated:	Flooding, Dam Failur	e, Earthquake, Sev	ere Storms, Severe \	Neather, Land	slide, Wildfire	I		
Existing	2, 6, 9, 10, 11	City of Santa Paula	None	High	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, PDM and HMGP)	Short-term		
Action SP-2—Inte community, includi Hazards Mitigated:	Action SP-2—Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, ordinances and programs that dictate land use decisions in the community, including the East Area 1 development. Hazards Mitigated: Elooding Dam Failure Farthquake Severe Storms Severe Weather Landslide Wildfire Drought							
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 17, 19	City of Santa Paula	None	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		
Action SP-3—Acti	vely participate in the p	lan maintenance pro	otocols outlined in Vo	olume 1 of this	hazard mitigation plan.			
Hazards Mitigated:	Flooding, Dam Failur	e, Earthquake, Sev	ere Storms, Severe \	Neather, Land	slide, Wildfire, Drought			
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15	City of Santa Paula	None	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term		
 Action SP-4—Continue to maintain good standing and compliance under the NFIP through implementation of floodplain management programs that, at a minimum, meet the NFIP requirements: Enforce the flood damage prevention ordinance. Participate in floodplain identification and mapping updates. Provide public assistance/information on floodplain requirements and impacts. Hazards Mitigated: Flooding 								
New & Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 17	City of Santa Paula	None	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action SP-5—Ider	ntify and pursue strategi	es to increase adap	otive capacity to clima	ate change inc	luding but not limited to the fo	llowing:	
• Outlining floodp	lains and identifying are	as under threat of l	iquefaction and subsi	dence that bo	rder the Santa Clara River	C C	
Hazards Mitigated:	Flooding, Severe Sto	rms, Severe Weath	er, Wildfire, Drought				
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 19	City of Santa Paula	VCPWA-WP	Low	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term	
Action SP-6—Pure Station, Community	chase generators for cri y Center, City facilities y	tical facilities and in /ards, water pumpir	frastructure that lack ng stations, sewer lift	adequate bac stations.	ckup power, including City Hal	l, Police	
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam Failure, Earthqu	ake, Flooding, Lan	dslide, Severe Storm	s, Severe We	ather, Wildfire		
Existing	2, 19	City of Santa Paula		High	FEMA HMA (BRIC and HMGP), Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term	
Action SP-7—Poli	cies and procedures (H	PS 1.1-4 & HPS 1.a	a-i) to reduce severity	and damage	caused by geologic hazards,	including	
codes are used in a by development ap	reviewing development oplicants	proposals, establist	id by State regulation ning of geotechnical i	s, annual revi nvestigation s	ew of building codes to ensure tandards and requirements to	e State be followed	
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake						
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, 16	City of Santa Paula	None	Medium	FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing	
Imited to flood hazard mitigation planning that locates development areas where such risk can be mitigated to acceptable levels, locating development for any new public or emergency facilities outside flood hazard zones, participation in the National Flood Insurance Program and the Community Rating System to ensure the city is incentivized to reduce risk of damage from flooding and improve flood preparedness, support of flood control projects on the Santa Clara River, Santa Paula Creek, and other waterways, inter-agency cooperation with Army Corps of Engineers and VCPWA-WP <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Flooding, Dam Failure							
	12, 16	Paula			HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds		
Action SP-9—Policies and procedures (HPS 3.1-4 & HPS 3.a-i) to address risk of wildland fire including but not limited to locating development in areas where wildland fire risks can be mitigated to an acceptable level, locating new public and emergency facilities outside high fire hazard zones, enforcement of new State fire safe and defensible space regulations and standards (Public Resource Code Sec. 4290-4291 and Government Code Sec. 51182), ensuring adequate water supply for firefighting is available in all new development, consideration of a future fire station along the urban wildland interface along State Route 150, identification of effective methods to establish buffer zones separating residential development in foothills from chaparral and other native vegetation.							
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, 16	City of Santa Paula	Ventura County	Medium	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP and HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing	
Action SP-10—Ma and weeds to redu resistance is part o <u>Hazards Mitigated</u> :	aintain wildfire hazard fu ce the potential for tree f the program. (Coordin Wildfire	el reduction progra to-tree ignition. Ens ates with VCFPD A	m for areas that have sure that a "maintena ction VFP-6)	e been identifie nce now" com	ed with overgrown or dead bru ponent to provide continued fi	sh, trees re	
New & Existing	2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19	VCFPD	City of Santa Paula, CAL FIRE & USDA	Medium	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP and HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing	

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Tim <u>eline^a</u>
Action SP-11-Co	ntinue developing the v	vater conservation	public outreach progra	am to increase	e awareness about the drough	it, fines and
penalties for overus	se and solutions for cor	serving water.				
Hazards Mitigated:	Drought					
New & Existing	2, 12, 14, 16, 17	City of Santa Paula	None	Low	Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing
Action SP-12—De safety, reduce floor Hazards Mitigated:	termine feasibility of the damage to property an Flooding	e City of Santa Paul nd infrastructure, ar	la joining the Commu nd reduce flood insura	nity Rating Sy ance rates in t	istem (CRS) program to enhar he community.	nce public
New & Existing	1, 2, 19	City of Santa Paula	None	Low	Staff Time & General Funds	Short-term
Action SP-13—Wa	ater Recycling Facility F	loodwall. Construct	a Floodwall to protect	ct the Water R	ecycling Facility, as required b	by FEMA.
The project will cos	t an estimated \$550,00	0 with funds fully se	ecured from the Sewe	er budget.		
Hazards Mitigated:	Flooding		1			
Existing	2, 6, 11	City of Santa Paula	None	High	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Short-term
Action SP-14—Wa	ater Main Replacement	Program. Replace	water mains deficient	in capacity a	nd not up to current seismic st	andards, as
outlined in the City	s Potable Water Syster	n Master Plan.				
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Flooding	g, Severe Storms				
Existing	2, 6, 9, 11, 19	City of Santa Paula	None	Low	Sewer Budget, FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Ongoing
Action SP-15—Co Regional Water Qu Discharge Permit w infrastructure desig proposed transmiss partially (43%) secu	nstruct an Advanced R ality Board to construct vas issued to the city Fe In, CEQA/Permitting, ar sion line, as required by ured through Sewer buc	everse Osmosis Tro a recycled water d eb. 8, 2019, coverin ad additional Admin the LARWQCB in dget.	eatment Facility. The elivery system to be o g a 10-year period wi istrative/Financing in the Waste Discharge	project is part completed no th mandated i the amount of Requirement	of a mandate by the Los Ang later than May 1, 2022. A Wat milestones. The City complete f \$1,490,000 in FY 2019/2020 s and Cease and Desist Order	eles Area er d for the r. Funding
Now & Existing	2381/	City of Santa	None	Madium	Sower Rudget EEMA HMA	Short_torm
New & Existing	2, 3, 0, 14	Paula	None	Mculum	(BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term
Action SP-16—Well Rehabilitation Program. Rehabilitate groundwater wells [18, 11, 12, 13, 14] as recommended by the City's Potable Water System Master Plan. The Decant Pump will require rebuilding or replacement of one well per year. Funding is fully secured through Water Department budget from FY 2021/2022 to FY 2025/2026.						
Existing	2, 3, 14, 19	City of Santa Paula	None	Low	Sewer Budget, FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term
Action SP-17—Wa Recycling Facility. water pump and wa through Sewer bud Hazards Mitigated	ater Recycling Facility C Past emergency events astewater processing op get. Elooding Drought	Capital Expenditures have identified a n peration sustainabil	s. Replacement of or eed to upgrade and r ity during emergency	plant improve aise elevation events and p	ments to critical equipment for of the motor control center ar ower outage. Funding is fully s	the Water ad improve secured
Existing	2, 3, 11, 14	City of Santa Paula	None	Low	Sewer Budget, FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Ongoing

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action SP-18—FEMA Floodplain Restudy. Develop alternative floodplain study with associated hydrologic and hydraulic analysis to address deficiencies in current FEMA study in key areas of the City. This project will take 6 months to complete and will provide specific detail that builds upon the more general countywide study that was performed by Ventura County.							
Hazards Mitigated:	Flooding						
New & Existing	1, 8, 19	City of Santa Paula	None	High	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Short-term	
Action SP-19—Foothill/Cameron Drainage Improvements. Construct drainage and retaining wall improvements to address safety issues at intersection. Construct: approximately 75' of a 6' maximum height retaining wall to match existing adjacent wall along Foothill Dr; debris inlet and associated piping to address drainage and debris flows from steep adjacent agricultural property. Remove existing concrete barrier from roadway and restore two-way vehicular travel. This area has been identified as a critically affected area during flooding events.							
Hazards Mitigated:	Flooding						
Existing	6, 11, 14, 18	City of Santa Paula	None	Low	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), Staff Time &	Short-term	

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date

General Funds

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

	Table 8-15. Mitigation Action Priority							
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	5	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
2	16	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
3	12	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
4	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
5	17	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
6	2	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
7	9	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
8	9	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
9	10	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
10	12	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
11	5	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
12	3	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
13	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
14	5	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
15	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
16	4	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
17	4	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
18	3	Medium	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
19	4	High	Low	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
o Coot	Coo the introduction to this volume for evaluation of priorities							

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 8-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a						
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazards								
Flooding	SP-2, 4, 8	SP-1, 8, 17			SP-6	SP-8, 13, 14, 19	SP-5, 17	SP-2, 3, 4, 8, 12, 18
Dam Failure	SP-2, 8	SP-1, 8			SP-6	SP-8		SP-2, 3, 8
Medium-Risk Hazard	s							
Earthquake	SP-2, 7	SP-1, 7			SP-6	SP-14		SP-2, 3, 7
Severe Storms	SP-2	SP-1			SP-6	SP-14	SP-5	SP-2, 3
Severe Weather	SP-2	SP-1			SP-6		SP-5	SP-2, 3
Landslide	SP-2	SP-1			SP-6			SP-2, 3
Low-Risk Hazards								
Wildfire	SP-2, 9	SP-1		SP-9, 10	SP-6		SP-5	SP-2, 3, 9
Drought	SP-2		SP-11			SP-15	SP-5, 15, 16, 17	SP-2, 3

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

8.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 8-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 8-17. Local Public Outreach					
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved			
Seismic Upgrade Handouts/Guides, Building & Safety	Ongoing	Citywide			
Water Conservation Handouts/Guides, Building & Safety	Ongoing	Citywide			
Participant, California State 'Save Our Water' Program	Ongoing	Citywide			

8.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **City of Santa Paula Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **City of Santa Paula Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance**—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.
- **City of Santa Paula 2040 General Plan**—The 2040 General Plan (focusing on Section 5, Hazards & Public Safety Element) was reviewed for opportunities for action plan integration. 2040-General-Plan-Section-5---Hazards-and-Public-Safety-Element (spcity.org)

• **City of Santa Paula Fiscal Year 2021/2022 & 2022/2023 Proposed Budget**—The budget was reviewed for capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

- Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.
- Census Bureau, Santa Paula U.S. Census Bureau QuickFacts: United States
- CAL FIRE Incidents <u>Welcome to Stats & Events (ca.gov)</u>
- Department of Conservation Northridge Earthquake, January 17, 1994 (ca.gov)
- Ventura County Public Works <u>Santa Clara River</u>, Ventura County Public Works Agency (vcpublicworks.org)
- Ventura County Flood Info <u>VC Flood History (vcfloodinfo.com)</u>
- Ventura County Community Air Protection AB 617, 2020 Annual Report <u>Ventura County Air</u> Pollution Control District Community Air Protection (AB 617)
- Tetra Tech Loss Matrix—risk assessment spreadsheet provided by consultant.



























9. CITY OF SIMI VALLEY

9.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Eileen Connors, Emergency Services Manager 3901 Alamo Street Simi Valley, CA 93063 Telephone: 805-583-6982 e-mail Address: econnors@simivalley.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Sean Gibson, Deputy ES Director/City Planner 2929 Tapo Canyon Rd. Simi Valley, CA 93063 Telephone: 805-583-6383 email Address: sgibson@simivalley.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 9-1.

Table 9-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members				
Name	Title			
Chris Oberender	Deputy Public Works Director			
Brent Siemer	Deputy Public Works Director			
Samantha Argabrite	Deputy City Manager, City Manager's Office			
Sean Gibson	Deputy ES Director/City Planner, Planning			
Eileen Connors	Emergency Services Manager			
Alison Phagan	Deputy Director, Administrative Services			
Marvin Lopez	Administrative Services			
Jeff Pike	Ventura County Fire Dept.			

9.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

9.2.1 Location and Features

The City of Simi Valley is in southeast Ventura County.

The current boundaries generally extend from the Santa Susana Mountains in the north to the Simi Hills in the south and east to the San Fernando Valley, encompassing an area of forty-two square miles.

Located just minutes from Los Angeles, Simi Valley offers a vibrant city full of cultural diversity, historical landmarks and beautiful rolling hills with the charm of a small town close to Southern California's most famous attractions. Simi Valley is Southern California's best kept secret, the perfect choice for a getaway, meeting, or wedding. The City is home to a variety of business industries,

including Aerospace, Commercial Aircraft, and Defense Manufacturing, software and technology, warehouse and distribution and auto and transportation.

9.2.2 History

The City of Simi Valley was incorporated in 1969 under the general laws of the State of California. It is believed that the name of the Chumash Indian Village "Shimiji" is the origin of the City's name. Ta'apu is the origin of the names of Tapo Street and Tapo Canyon. The official City tree is the Coast Live Oak, whose acorns were used by the Chumash Indians for food. The official City flower is the California Wild Rose, from which the Chumash Indians ate vitamin-rich rosehips. In 1795, San José de Nuestra Señora de Altagracia y Simí was granted to Santiago Pico, one of 240 colonists from Mexico, by Spanish Governor Diego de Borica. This land grant, approximately 113,000 acres in size, was one of the largest ever made.

9.2.3 Governing Body Format

The City of Simi Valley operates under a General-Law/council-manager form of government.

The City Council of Simi Valley assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the Emergency Services department will oversee its implementation.

9.3 CURRENT TRENDS

9.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of the City of Simi Valley as of January 2020, was 125,115. Since 2010, the population has grown at an average annual rate of 0.06 percent.

9.3.2 Development

Early development in Simi Valley was agricultural in nature with a variety of crops and cattle grazing on much of the valley floor. As the City grew, development on the valley floor was characterized by a continuous pattern of suburban construction dominated by one and two-story buildings, schools, housing, shopping centers, community facilities, and places of employment, interspersed with parks and open spaces. As growth continued, available vacant land on the valley floor became more limited, and outward expansion of residential development into nearby hillsides occurred. Specific plans have been prepared for several larger-scale projects, in order to preserve the hillside areas as an important natural and visual resource and to provide for the orderly growth of these areas. Examples include the Wood Ranch Specific Plan, Runkle Canyon Specific Plan, and the Whiteface Specific Plan. Commercial development has also occurred in the community, the most recent being the region-serving Simi Valley Town Center.

The City has developed a region-serving shopping center, the Simi Valley Town Center, and a large residential development in the north-central part of the City called the Big Sky Ranch. Both projects incorporated significant hazard mitigation in the development process; they represent a major success story in the use of hazard mitigation policies to build a safe community. The North Simi Detention basin

was built to mitigate flooding in both developments, and in the process, removed downstream homes from the FEMA FIRM areas. The strict enforcement of building codes in the developments incorporated current seismic, fire, and flooding mitigation standards.

Simi Valley's land use pattern reflects the City's identity as a residential community with significant protected open space and parklands. Residential development represents the predominant land use in the City, making up more than 71 percent of its total land area. Parks and other public and semi-public uses such as schools, cemeteries, a regional landfill, and transportation rights-of-way make up just over 20 percent of the land uses. Industrial and commercial are the remaining land uses in the City, occupying approximately 5 percent and 3 percent, respectively, and represent the smallest component of the City's overall land use pattern.

Table 9-2 summarizes development trends in the period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

Table 9-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends							
Criterion	Res	sponse					
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?		No					
 If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or structures. 		N/A					
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan?		Yes					
 If yes, describe land areas and dominant uses. 	icross 44 iround Sir ell as lanc	7 parcels naloa Lak I improved	located o e. The us d with sin	n the nort es in thes gle family	h west se areas		
 If yes, who currently has permitting authority over these areas? 	Ventura County						
Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years?	Yes						
 If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas 	The Lost Canyons Residential Development consisting of 364 single-family dwellings located on the northern outskirts of the City Limits is located in a Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone and pockets of landslide and liquefaction hazards. These areas have been studied in the project's Environmental Impact Report and Mitigation Measures are in place to protect the public safety.						
	Boundary is located in a Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone and small areas of landslide and liquefaction hazard areas. The project's EIR will address safety issues and mitigation measures to address these hazards						
How many permits for new construction were		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	
issued in your jurisdiction since the	Single Family	101	87	91	51	53	
preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?	Multi-Family	35	8	29	27	3	
Pierr	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	16	5	6	5	3	
	Total	152	100	126	83	59	

Criterion	Response
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	 Special Flood Hazard Areas: 0 (New development is prohibited in the SFHA) Landslide: * High Liquefaction Areas: * Tsunami Inundation Area: 0 Wildfire Risk Areas: * *The City of Simi Valley includes substantial areas of earthquake-induced landscape and liquefaction areas, and wildfire-risk areas. Pursuant to the General Plan, Building Codes and geotechnical standards have been adopted to provide protection for new and renovated structures in these hazard areas. For Special Flood Hazard Areas, all new construction, substantial repair/improvements, and grading are prohibited. The City does not have any Tsunami Inundation Areas.
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	The City is virtually built out, with little undeveloped land remaining. The hillside open space areas surrounding the community are expected to remain substantially unchanged as development in these areas is regulated through the City's Hillside Performance Standards, which are designed to preserve the natural resources surrounding the community.

9.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 9-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 9-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 9-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 9-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 9-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 9-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 9-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 9-10.

Table 9-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability					
	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?	
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements					
Building Code	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Simi Valley Municipal Code, Title 8, Simi Valley Bui Code of Regulations	lding Code; Ca	lifornia Building Code	es, Title 24 of t	he California	
Zoning Code	Yes	No	Portions	Yes	
Comment: Simi Valley Municipal Code, Title 9, Planning and Z	oning				
Subdivisions	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Simi Valley Municipal Code, Title 9, Planning and Z 66499.58), Title 7, Chapter 5 Flood Damage Prevent	oning/ State Su ion	ubdivision Map Act (G	ovt. Code Sec	. 66410-	
Stormwater Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Simi Valley Municipal Code, Title 7, Chapter 5 Flood NFIP Community Rating System, California State W	l Damage Prev ater Quality Co	ention, National Floo ontrol Board MS4 Per	d Insurance Pr mit	ogram (NFIP),	
Post-Disaster Recovery	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Mandated by CalOES and FEMA for funding.					
Real Estate Disclosure	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: SFHA & All-Hazards declaration (State, City)					
Growth Management	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Simi Valley General Plan					
Site Plan Review	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	
Comment: (Rancho Simi Recreation and Park District, VC Fire, Zoning	VCPWA-WP)	Simi Valley Municipal	Code, Title 9,	Planning and	
Environmental Protection Comment: CEQA	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Flood Damage Prevention	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	
Comment: Simi Valley Municipal Code, Title 7, Chapter 5 Flood Damage Prevention, National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), NFIP Community Rating System SFHA (FEMA, City)					
Emergency Management	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Mandated by CalOES and FEMA for funding.					
Climate Change	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: CEQA					
Planning Documents					
General Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Is the plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140? Yes Comment: Once Safety Element is updated in October 2021, this will comply with AB2140.					
Capital Improvement Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes	
How often is the plan updated? Every Year Comment: City of Simi Valley Proposed Five Year Capital Impr	ovement Plan				
Disaster Debris Management Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes	
Comment: Must meet requirements for CalOES and FEMA fund	ding				
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	No	No	No	Yes	
Comment: Both plans are in currently in conceptual form (FEN	IA, VCPWA-WI	P, City)			
Stormwater Plan	Yes	No	No	No	
Comment: 2016 Master Plan of Drainage requires update (City)					
Urban Water Management Plan Comment: 2020 Plan recently adopted	Yes	No	Yes	No	

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?		
Habitat Conservation Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
Comment: General Plan/CEQA addresses portions of this						
Economic Development Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment: City of Simi Valley Economic Development Plan						
Shoreline Management Plan	No	No	No	No		
Comment: The City doesn't have shoreline.						
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment: VCFPD's Ready, Set, Go! Wildfire Action Plan; Ven Modification and Vegetation Management Plans an	itura County Fi nd FHRP	re Code Section W100	5- Fire Protecti	on, Fuel		
Forest Management Plan	No	No	No	No		
Comment: The City doesn't have forests.	Comment: The City doesn't have forests.					
Climate Action Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
Comment: General Plan/CEQA addresses portions of this.						
Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
Comment: Updating in 2022. Required by CalOES and FEMA for funding.						
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment: The City relies on Ventura County's THIRA.						
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
Comment: Opportunity to expand it in 2022 EOP update. Required by CalOES and FEMA for funding.						
Continuity of Operations Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
Comment: Opportunity to expand it in 2022 EOP update. Required by CalOES and FEMA for funding.						
Public Health Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
Comment: Opportunity to expand it in 2022 EOP update						

Table 9-4. Development and Permitting Capability			
Criterion		Response	
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits? If no, who does? If yes, which department? Public Works iss SFHA. Environm	opment permits? Yes artment? Public Works issues Flood Area Development Permits for development within the SFHA. Environmental Services.		
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area? Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?		No Yes	

Table 9-5. Fiscal Capability

Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?
Community Development Block Grants	Yes
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes
If yes, specify: Water and Sewer Fees	
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	Yes
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	Yes

Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes
Other	Yes (Traffic Mitigation fees)

Table 9-6. Administrative and Technical Capability			
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?	
Planners or engineers with know	owledge of land development and land management practices	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works/Deputy Director (Development Services) Public Works/Senior Engineer (Development Services) Environmental Services/Planning Division		
Engineers or professionals tra	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works/Deputy Director (Development Services) Public Works/Senior Engineer (Development Services)		
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works/Deputy Director (Development Services)		
Staff with training in benefit-co	ost analysis	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works/Deputy Director (Development Services)		
Surveyors		Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	The City contracts surveying services with outside consultants.		
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works/GIS Coordinator, Police Dept/Emergency Services Manager		
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works/Deputy Director (Development Services)		
Emergency manager		Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Police Dept/Emergency Services Manager		
Grant writers		Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Police Dept/Emergency Services Manager. Administrative Services also contracts these set through an outside consultant	ervices	

Table 9-7. Education and Outreach Capability			
Criterion	Response		
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes		
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes		
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? If yes, briefly describe: The City's 2015 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan is posted.	Yes		
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe: The City and SVPD use Twitter, Next Door and other outlets.	Yes		
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? Yes If yes, briefly describe: NFIP CRS Program for Public Information Program and Committee; CERT and Disaster Service Worker volunteer teams.			
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? Yes If yes, briefly describe: NFIP CRS Program for Public Information Program and Committee; AM530 Radio; Portable digital signs and SVTV cable channel.			
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe: The County of Ventura uses VC Alert and we encourage residents to sign up.	Yes		

Table 9-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance			
Criterion	Response		
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Public Works		
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Public Works/Public Works Director		
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	Yes		
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	February 27, 2017		
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements?ExceedsIf exceeds, in what ways?All development within the SFHA, including fill, is prohibited. Additional higher regulatory design and construction standards have been codified in the SVMC.			
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	December 3, 2021		
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed?	No		
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction?	No		
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? No If no, state why. The Flood Insurance Study and FIRMs do not accurately represent true flood risk and are overtly conservative. The City is working with FEMA Region 9 to identify funding for either a RiskMap to correct these mapping issues or a Flood Hazard Study to support a subsequent City sponsored mapping change application to EEMA			
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program? If so, what type of assistance/training is needed? City staff needs training in grant mana Information Platform (MIP) in order to projects.	Yes Igement (NDGrants) and the Mapping pursue FEMA grant funding for mapping		
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If yes, is your jurisdiction interested in improving its CRS Classification? Yes	Yes		
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction?What is the insurance in force?\$425,325,500What is the premium in force?\$1,337,947	1,624		
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction?What were the total payments for losses?\$116,840	82		
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021			

Table 9-9. Community Classifications				
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified	
FIPS Code	Yes	0611172016	N/A	
DUNS #	Yes	076238211	N/A	
Community Rating System	Yes	5	10/01/19	
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	Yes	2	10/2/17	
Public Protection	Yes	03/3X	12/21/2018	
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A	
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A	
Tsunami Ready	N/A	N/A	N/A	
	Table 9-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change			
--------------------------	--	------------------------		
Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating		
Technical C	Capacity			
Jurisdiction	n-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	Medium		
Comment:	The General Plan Safety & Noise Chapter update was adopted on October 25, 2021, and includes new Preparedness Goals and Policies to respond to climate change.	Emergency		
Jurisdictior Comment:	n-level monitoring of climate change impacts City of Simi Valley Climate Action Plan	High		
Technical r	esources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	High		
Comment:	City of Simi Valley Greenhouse Gas Inventory Policy, Climate Action Plan; City of Sim Valley Green Cor	nmunity Action Plan		
Jurisdiction	n-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	High		
Comment:	City of Simi Valley Climate Action Plan			
Capital plar	nning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	High		
Comment:	Appendix A of General Plan, Policies Addressing Climate Change			
Participatio	n in regional groups addressing climate risks	Medium		
Comment:	Ventura County Fire Protection District, Ventura County Health Department, Ventura County OES			
Implementa	tion Capacity			
Clear autho	rity/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	High		
Comment:	General Plan was adopted on October 25, 2021			
Identified st	trategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts City of Simi Valley Climate Action Plan	High		
Identified of		Lliab		
Comment:	City of Simi Valley Climate Action Plan	піўн		
Champions	for climate action in local government departments	High		
Comment:	Planning, Public Works and City Manager's Office staff through the implementation of the General Plan, Climate Action Plan and efforts to enhance resiliency of City Buildings.	U U		
Political su	pport for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	High		
Comment:	The City Council voted to join the Clean Power Alliance, a Community Choice Aggregator, focused On providing clean energy to communities in Southern California.	U U		
Financial re	sources devoted to climate change adaptation	High		
Comment:	The City has undertaken a multi-million dollar project at the Wastewater Treatment Plant to Enhance the City's resiliency; has invested in solar, battery back-up systems for City facilities, LED lighting, and similar projects.	rngn		
Local autho	rity over sectors likely to be negative impacted	High		
Comment:	Businesses must abide by the California Green Building Code, the City's General Plan. However, Many sectors are regulated by the State and Federal government.	5		
Public Capa	acity			
Local reside	ents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Medium		
Comment:	Staff does consistent outreach to the community regarding the need for water conservation due to Drought, preparation for PSPS events due to severe weather and possible Wildfire, but there is opportuin	nity for improvement.		
Local reside	ents' support of adaptation efforts	Medium		
Comment:	Some Simi Valley residents have adopted the use of solar panels to be less reliant on the grid but there opportunities that can be explored.	are other		
Local reside	ents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium		
Comment:	Residents have been installing solar panels and buying electric vehicles, but there are other opportunitie explored.	es that can be		

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium
<i>Comment:</i> The City has a diversified economy, which can adapt to climate impacts, but much of the workford current.	ce needs training to stay
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: The City does not have the specialized staff and funding to revamp the ecosystem to be more res	silient.

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

9.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

9.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- **2016 Master Plan of Drainage**—SVMC 7-5.605, Flood Damage Prevention, Standards for subdivisions and other proposed development.
- NFIP CRS Program for Public Information—NFIP CRS PPI Plan adopted by the City Council.
- **Emergency Operations Plan**—The EOP explains how the City will plan for, respond to and recover from hazards and disasters. Disaster Debris Management is included in the EOP.
- **Simi Valley General Plan**—Safety Element addresses integration of hazard mitigation into the overall development of the City's and identifies policies and implantation programs.
- Simi Valley Municipal Code, Title 9, Planning and Zoning—Planning and Building Code integrate safe building and land use practices to mitigate risk.
- California Environmental Quality Act—Requires the assessment of wildlife risk, climate change impacts and environmental impacts on land development projects in the City of Simi Valley.

9.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and

programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- **Post-Disaster Recovery Plan**—The City can expand the 2015 HMP recovery plan into a more detailed version.
- **Continuity of Operations Plan**—The City can expand the current recovery plan to build on the goals and objectives identified in the hazard mitigation plan.
- **Public Health Plan**—The City can expand the current recovery plan to build on the goals and objectives identified in the hazard mitigation plan.
- Economic Development Plan—The City can look for mitigation opportunities in private sector partnerships.
- Home Rehabilitation Program—The City can investigate expanding the program to incorporate clean energy technology.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

9.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

9.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 9-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 9-11. Past Natural Hazard Events						
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment			
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	01/20/20 – contin uing	N/A			
Severe Weather	N/A	02/28/2021	Strong and gusty Santa Ana winds impacted the coastal valleys of Ventura County. Some peak north to northeast wind reports from the local mesonet included east Simi Valley (gust 61 mph).			
Wildfire (Easy Fire)	FM-5298	10/30-11/2/2019	The three-day fire burned 1,806 acres in west Simi Valley and threatened the Reagan Presidential Library.			
Wildfire (Woolsey Fire)	DR-4407	11/8-25/2018	This fire was active for 56 days in Ventura and LA counties. It burned over 96,000 acres south of Simi Valley and is the eighth most destructive fire in California history.			
Wildfire (Peak Fire)	N/A	11/12/2018	This one-day fire burned 186 acres east of Simi Valley off Hwy 118 and Rocky Peak Road.			
Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide	DR-4353	12/4/2017- 1/31/2018	Wildfire, Mudflows and Debris Flows			

Tune of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Data	Damaga Assassment
Wildfire (Thomas Fire)	FM-5224	12/4/2017	Rancho Simi Recreation and Park District \$4M, SVPD \$35K in SVPD overtime. This fire was active for 38 days in Ventura and Santa Barbara counties. It was started by power lines and burned over 280,000 acres and destroyed 1,063 structures. Rye Fire burned 12/5- 12/2017 in Santa Clarita but didn't reach Simi Valley.
Wildfire (Kuehner Fire)	N/A	7/1/2016	This one-day fire burned 45 acres off Hwy 118 at Rocky Peak Road, northeast of Simi Valley.
Wildfire (Rustic Fire)	N/A	8/16/2015	This one-day fire threatened 500 homes in southwest Simi Valley before being extinguished. Residents were advised to prepare to evacuate their animals, especially livestock, but no evacuation orders were issued.
Flooding	N/A	12/12/2014	Heavy rain produced flash flooding and mud and debris flows in the community of Simi Valley. Law enforcement reported mud flows across Hwy 118 at Kuehner Drive.
Wildfire (Springs Fire)	FM-5024	5/2-11/2013	Impacted Ventura County.
Severe Storm and Flooding	N/A	1/18-22/2010	Heavy rain, gusty winds, and heavy snow were witnessed in Ventura County. Rainfall totals ranged from 4-8 inches over coastal areas to 8-16 inches in the foothills and mountains. Flash flood watches were issued in areas of Ventura County that were damaged by wildfires in 2008.
Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide	DR-1731	10/21/2007- 3/31/2008	Minor flooding of streets; First Street bridge flooded, which is common with heavy rain. Los Angeles Ave/Madera Road intersection flooded. A blocked storm drain near Santa Susana Park at Katherine Road resulted in the flooding of a few homes.
Wildfire (Sesnon Fire)	N/A	10/13-18/2008	EOC activated 10/13-15/2008. Fire active from 10/13 – 18/2008.
Severe Weather	DR-1689	1/11-17/2007	Freeze.
Wildfire (Day Fire)	FM-2677	9/25-30/2006	Burned 162,000 acres over 28 days north of Simi Valley.
Wildfire (School Fire)	FM-2586	11/18-23/2005	Burned almost 4,000 acres over four days near the City of Ventura.
Wildfire (Topanga Fire)	FM-2583	9/28-10/10/2005	This Chatsworth-area fire burned along the LA/Ventura counties border for seven days, destroying over 24,000 acres.
Flooding	DR-1585	2/16-23/2005	Madera Rd/Los Angeles Ave flooded
Severe Storms and Flooding	DR-1577	12/27/2004- 1/11/2005 (Simi Valley: 1/7- 11/2005)	\$21,588. In January 2005, winter storms brought heavy rains to the region. The Ventura River reached a maximum stage of 17.5 feet and maximum discharge of 152,560 cfs. High water flows, scouring, and washouts in the Ventura River damaged several water wells and exposed water lines owned by the Ojai Valley Sanitary District. Severe erosion occurred along both embankments of the Ventura River. The Calleguas Creek topped its banks near the state hospital in Camarillo. Damage from the January 2005 storms totaled more than \$200 million.
Wildfire (Simi Fire)	FM-2504	10/24 – 11/11/20 03	Per CAL FIRE: 108K acres burned, 315 structures destroyed, 11 structures damaged.
Wildfire	DR-1498	10/21/2003- 3/31/2004	Impacted Ventura County.

Tupo of Evont	FEMA	Data	Domage Accessment
Sovere Storme, Ternade			Damage Assessment
High Winds and Flooding	DK-1207	12/20-28/1998	impacied ventura County.
Severe Winter Storms and Flooding ("El Nino" winter)	DR-1203	2/2 – 4/30/1998	In this "El Nino" winter, Simi Valley received 17.2 inches of rain during February. The maximum flow in Calleguas Creek as recorded at the California State University Channel Islands was 21,600 ft ³ /s, which caused overtopping of the bridges at Pacific Coast Highway.
Wildfires (Calabasas/Malibu Fires)	EM-3120	10/21-31/1996	Impacted Ventura County.
Severe Storms and Flooding	DR-1046	2/13-4/19/1995 (Simi Valley: 1/3- 10/1995; 3/10/1995)	Rainfall intensities in some locations were equivalent or greater than 100- year frequency precipitation. Significant local flooding occurred as a result of channels and local storm drains being overtaxed. On March 10, a cooler winter storm brought significant amounts of precipitation with damaging results due to the saturated soil conditions. The peak flow recorded on Calleguas Creek at the stream gauge above Highway 101 was 9,120 ft ³ /s and at the CSUCI gauge, it was 14,900 ft ³ /s.
Earthquake (Northridge)	DR-1008	1/17-11/30/1994	The Simi Valley Police station was badly damaged and eventually had to be abandoned. Hwy 118 was badly damaged and unusable for months. In the greater Los Angeles area, the 6.7 earthquake caused 57 deaths; 9,253 injuries and displaced over 20,000 people.
Wildfires, Mud & Landslides, Soil Erosion & Flooding	DR-1005	10/26-4/22/1994	Impacted Ventura County.
Severe Storm, Mud & Landslides, Flooding	DR-979	1/5-3/20/1993	Impacted Ventura County.
Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Mud & Landslide	DR-935	2/10-19/1992	The storm lasted five days, leaving flood control structures damaged, full of debris, and vulnerable to future storms. Of primary concern in Ventura County was erosion of channels and removal of debris following flood flows. The seven-day depths in Ventura County ranged from 6 to 13 inches, which represented about 60-65 percent of the mean annual rainfall. Although the peak flow in Calleguas Creek was estimated to be about a 10-year event, approximately one million cubic yards of sediment was deposited in the channel system. Conejo Creek contributed much of the sediment, as it was running higher than Calleguas Creek at the confluence of the two streams. On Calleguas Creek, the Lewis Street bridge abutments were undermined and required stone placement on them to prevent further damage.
Severe Weather (Severe Freeze)	DR-894	12/19/1990- 1/3/1991	Minor flooding of streets, including the First Street bridge and Los Angeles Ave/Madera Road.
Severe Storm and Flooding	DR-677	1/21-3/30/1983 (Ventura County: 2/25-3/3/1983)	With the ground wet from a January storm, heavy precipitation produced high flows in most creeks in southern California. On Collogues Creek, at the CSUCI stream gage, Madera St. stream gauge, and the stream gauge above Highway 101, the peak discharges of record occurred, 26,600 ft ³ /s, 10,570 ft ³ /s and 17,200 ft ³ /s, respectively. As in 1980, the Calleguas Creek levee was breached. The maximum peak discharge on Conejo Creek at the stream gauge above Highway 101 was 14,000 ft ³ /s.

Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
Severe Storm and Flooding	N/A	2/13-22/1980	A series of varying intensity fronts coming from the west soaked southern California with eight days of nearly continuous rain. Six storms moved through southern California during February 13-22. The strongest front passed the area midday on Saturday February 16, producing the second highest peak discharge of record on Calleguas Creek of 25,300 ft ³ /s at the CSUCI stream gauge, 9,310 ft ³ /s at the Madera St. stream gauge, and 14,000 ft ³ /s at the stream gauge above Highway 101. This storm caused a breach of the west levee of Calleguas Creek below Hueneme Road, with an estimated total of 24,000 acre-ft of water flowing through the breach before it was repaired. The maximum peak discharge on Conejo Creek at the stream gauge above Highway 101 was 11,800 ft ³ /s.
Severe Storms and Flooding	DR-547	2/15/1978 (Simi Valley: 2/28-3/5/1978)	Storms and accompanying flooding throughout February saturated the ground. A last front on March 4 brought heavy rain, thunderstorms and gale force winds. Measurements were 7,730 ft ³ /s at the Madera St. stream gauge and 8,600 ft ³ /s at the Moorpark stream gauge.
Severe Storms and Flooding	DR-364	2/8/1973	Impacted Ventura County.
Wildfire	DR-295	9/29/1970	Impacted Ventura County.

9.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 9-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 9-12. Hazard Risk Ranking						
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category			
1	Wildfire	36	High			
1	Landslide	36	High			
3	Earthquake	32	Medium			
4	Flooding	24	Medium			
4	Severe Storms	24	Medium			
4	Severe Weather	24	Medium			
5	Dam Failure	22	Medium			
6	Drought	9	Low			

9.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: 0

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Water tanks and system could be attacked by terrorists using chemical, biological, radiological, nuclear, explosive or other weapons.
- Frequent wildfires along the 118 Freeway, mostly caused by humans.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

9.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 9-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 9-13. Status of Previous PI	an Actions				
		Removed;		Carried Over to Plan Update	
Action Item	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update	
1.A.1 Modify the City's zoning ordinance as necessary to address development in hazard areas and reflect changes in the General Plan.			\checkmark	SIM-2	
<i>Comment:</i> This is an ongoing process. Safety Element of the Simi Valley General update, this action has been reworded for a broader application.	Plan update was	s adopted in Oc	tober, 2021	. In the	
1.B.1 Modify local building codes to address development issues in hazard areas. <i>In the update, this action has been reworded for a broader application.</i>			~	SIM-2	
Comment: This is an ongoing process. Ordinance 1268 was adopted in 2017 rewr. Prevention Ordinance to codify historic City policy and practice as higher regulatory within the Special Flood Hazard Areas.	iting and signific. v standards for d	antly expanding evelopment cit	g the Flood ywide and p	Damage particularly	
1.B.2 Actively participate in the state and national building code development groups to ensure that development issues in hazard areas are properly addressed.			√	SIM-2	
Comment: This is an ongoing process. In the update, this action has been reworded	ed for a broader	application.		-	
1.B.3 Require site-specific studies to evaluate specific hazards in hazard-prone areas and identify alternative site design criteria to mitigate hazards to the maximum extent possible.			~	SIM-8	
Comment: Geotechnical, Soils, and Drainage studies are required for all developm studies mostly through the CEQA process to evaluate hazards and promote alterna Code, Geotechnical (Soils) Reports, SVMC 7-5.602, Flood Damage Prevention, Stathe update, this action has been reworded for a broader application.	nent. The Plannii htive site design andards of Cons	ng process requ criteria. SVMC truction. This is	uires site-sp 9-64.100, E s an ongoing	pecific Development g action. In	

		Removed;	Carried O Up	ver to Plan date
Action Item	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
1.C.1 Review General Plan, Zoning Codes, Fire Codes, Subdivision Ordinance, and Building Code for consistency.			v	SIM-2
<i>comment:</i> The municipal code is routinely reviewed to ensure consistency with NF current floodplain management state of practice. This is an ongoing action. In the u application.	pdate, this action	ndards and red n has been rev	quirements a vorded for a	along with broader
1.C.2 Establish hazard mitigation training for development staff.			\checkmark	SIM-8
Comment: PW Development Services staff maintains competency in floodplain ma staff member holds a Certified Floodplain Manager certificate from the American Se action. In the update, this action has been reworded for a broader application.	anagement throu ociety of Floodpl	igh continual tr ain Managers.	aining and a This is an c	it least one ingoing
1.D.1 Update databases/Geographic Information System (GIS), with particular attention to maintaining hazard overlay layers.			✓ 	SIM-8
<i>comment:</i> The City's NFIP SFHA GIS layers are updated whenever FEMA issues perform annual maintenance on GIS system. In the update, this action has been re	FIRM updates a worded for a bro	and on an ongo pader application	oing basis. E on.	SRI WIII
2.A.1 Assist local mobile home parks with their community preparedness plans.			\checkmark	SIM-10
Comment: SVOES can conduct outreach via a preparedness campaign. Not compaction has been reworded for a broader application.	leted due to lack	k of staff capac	ity. In the up	odate, this
2.A.2 Develop and conduct a variety of community workshops to educate about earthquake preparedness and the benefits of retrofitting buildings for improved seismic performance. <i>In the update, this action has been reworded for a broader application.</i>			~	SIM-10
Comment: SVOES can conduct outreach via a preparedness campaign in partners of staff capacity.	ship with Building	g & Safety. No	t completed	due to lack
2.A.3 Increase awareness among at-risk populations of emerging earthquake damage mitigation techniques.			~	SIM-10
<i>Comment:</i> SVOES can conduct outreach via a preparedness campaign. Not compaction has been reworded for a broader application.	leted due to lack	k of staff capac	ity. In the u	odate, this
2.A.4 Develop a program that identifies the needs of senior citizens and assists them to meet those needs.		✓		
<i>Comment:</i> The County is responsible for keeping updated records on seniors who This is not a responsibility of the City.	may need assis	tance evacuati	ing in an em	ergency.
$\ensuremath{\textbf{2.B.1}}$ Provide hazard mitigation links on the Chamber of Commerce's website and the City's website.			~	SIM-10
<i>Comment:</i> SVOES can conduct outreach via a preparedness campaign. Not compaction has been reworded for a broader application.	oleted due to lack	k of staff capac	ity. In the u	odate, this
3.A.1 Promote the upgrade of buildings to provide acceptable performance during an earthquake and adopt cost-effective mitigation techniques for both structural and non-structural elements.			~	SIM-1 SIM-9
<i>Comment:</i> SVOES can conduct outreach via a preparedness campaign in partners of staff capacity. In the update, this action has been reworded for a broader application of the staff capacity of the s	ship with Building tion.	g & Safety. Noi	t completed	due to lack
3.A.2 Conduct a seismic safety survey/assessment of the City's facilities to ensure that heavy furniture and equipment are properly secured.			\checkmark	SIM-9
<i>Comment:</i> Ongoing as personnel are added and moved. In the update, this action has been reworded for a broader application.				

		Removed;		Carried Over to Plan Update	
Action Item	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update	
3.A.3 Support legislative efforts to provide funding for hospital earthquake retrofit projects.		✓			
Comment: This is not currently in our Legislative Platform and would need to be in without going to the Council for approval first.	cluded in order i	for the City to ta	ake action o	n legislation	
3.B.1 Retrofit water system infrastructure to seismic safety standards.			\checkmark	SIM-9	
Comment: A seismic evaluation of water system infrastructure was completed in 2 replace facilities based on public safety and operational importance. In the update, application.	021. The Distric this action has b	t will schedule been reworded	projects to i for a broade	mprove and er	
3.B.2 Retrofit sanitation system infrastructure to seismic safety standards	✓			SIM-1	
<i>Comment:</i> The building seismic retrofit projects that were identified in the 2011 Sa completed. In the update, this action has been reworded for a broader application.	nitation Asset R	eliability Asses	sment have	been	
3.B.3 Conduct seismic non-structural and structural retrofit of critical facilities and infrastructure.			~	SIM-1 SIM-9	
Comment: Construction has begun on a project to repair and replace structural ele Facility. Anticipated completion is Spring 2022. In the update, this action has been	ements at the Cit reworded for a b	ty's Public Serv proader applica	vices Center tion.	and Garage	
3.C.1 Identify multi-unit buildings (e.g. soft story construction) that may suffer structural failures in earthquakes.			~	SIM-9	
<i>Comment:</i> This is an opportunity for earthquake mitigation. Not completed due to l action has been reworded for a broader application.	ack of staff capa	acity and fundin	ng. In the up	date, this	
4.A.1 Implement a fuel reduction program, such as the collection and disposal of dead fuel, within open spaces and around critical facilities and residential structures with high or very high wildfire zones.			✓	SIM-12	
Comment: VCFPD Ordinance 31 and Fire Hazard Reduction Program, which is an reworded for a broader application and to align with VCFPD's lead.	n ongoing progra	m. In the upda	te, this actio	on has been	
4.A.2 Create a vegetation management program that provides vegetation management services to the elderly, disabled, or low income property owners who lack the resources to remove flammable vegetation near their homes.			~	SIM-12	
<i>Comment:</i> This is an opportunity for wildfire mitigation. Not completed due to lack reworded for a broader application and to align with VCFPD's lead.	of staff capacity.	In the update,	this action	has been	
4.A.3 Implement a fuel modification program that includes maintenance requirements, plan submittal and approval process and enforcement.	✓			SIM-12	
Comment: Ventura County Fire Code Section W106- Fire Protection, Fuel Modifica Ongoing program. In the update, this action has been reworded for a broader appli	ation and Vegeta cation and to alig	ation Managem gn with VCFPD	ent Plans a Vs lead.	nd FHRP	
5.A.1 Limit uses in floodways to those tolerant of occasional flooding, including but not limited to agriculture, outdoor recreation and natural resource areas.			~	SIM-4	
<i>Comment:</i> Development within floodways is prohibited. Maintenance of open space agriculture is encouraged. SVMC 7-5.601, Flood Damage Prevention, Prohibitions. Ongoing. In the update, this action has been reworded for a broader application.	e as a natural re Simi Valley Ger	esource area al neral Plan Ope	nd/or for rec n Space Ele	reation and ement.	
5. B.1 Discourage the disruption of natural flowage patterns and encourage the use of natural drainage ways in new development.			~	SIM-4	
<i>Comment:</i> Disruption of natural flowage patterns is prohibited and maintenance of enforced. SVMC 9-32.120, Development Code, Drainage Standards. Ongoing. In trapplication.	natural drainage he update, this a	e ways within n action has been	new develop n reworded f	ment is for a broader	

		Removed;	Carried O Up	Carried Over to Plan Update	
Action Item	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update	
5.C.1 Submit Letters of Map Revision/ Letters of Map Amendment to FEMA within a prescribed period of time upon completion of drainage improvements or flood-proofing. SVMC 7-5.605, Flood Damage Prevention, Standards for subdivisions and other proposed development			~	SIM-4	
<i>Comment:</i> SVMC 7-5.605, Flood Damage Prevention, Standards for subdivisions update, this action has been reworded for a broader application.	and other propo	sed developme	ent. Ongoing	ı. In the	
6.A.1 Create and maintain a mailing list of all addresses with dam inundation areas for mailings and public information documents.			✓	SIM-14	
Comment: Creation of the mailing list is pending CalOES approval of VCPWA-WP EAPs for each of the 3 State jurisdictional dams with the City. Inundation maps and EAPs for jurisdictional dams owned by the Calleguas Municipal Water District and the Sinaloa Lake homeowners' association are also pending. In the update, this action has been reworded for a broader application					
6.A.2 Create and maintain a special grouping for emergency notification system users within the dam inundation areas for emergency information delivery.			√	SIM-14	
<i>Comment:</i> OES will leverage VC Alert. Ongoing. In the update, this action has been reworded for a broader application.					
7.A.1 Increase field personnel's awareness of hazardous materials incidents and the proper response.			√	SIM-11	
Comment: SVPD conducts regular trainings during briefings and will continue thes broader application.	se. In the update,	this action has	s been rewo	rded for a	
7.B.1 Establish and maintain relationships with operators and regulators involved in the transport, extraction, processing and use of hazardous materials.			\checkmark	SIM-11	
Comment: City code Title 6 Chapter 10 addresses hazardous wastes. Title 9 Chapter 13 describes the need for plans to prevent releases of hazardous material. Transportation regulates rail cars. The Ventura County Certified Unified Program A	oter 9-26.070 reg s/wastes into the gency regulates	ulates industri sewer system the storage of	al storage. T n. Dept. Of hazardous	Fitle 6 materials on	

commercial properties. Ongoing. In the update, this action has been reworded for a broader application.

9.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 9-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 9-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 9-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 9-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix								
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline		
Action SIM-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.								
Hazards Mitigate	ed: Wildfire, Lands	lide, Earthquake, Flo	oding, Severe Storms, Sev	ere Weather	, Dam Failure			
Existing	9, 10, 11, 16	City of Simi Valley	Ventura County OES	High	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, PDM and HMGP)	Short-term		
Action SIM-2—Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, ordinances and programs that dictate land use decisions in the community, including Simi Valley General Plan, Municipal Code, Zoning Ordinance.								
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 16	City of Simi Valley	Ventura County Fire Dept, VCSOES	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		

Benefits New				Ectimated				
Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline		
Action SIM-3—	Actively participate in	the plan maintenar	nce protocols outlined in Vol	ume 1 of this	s hazard mitigation plan			
Hazards Mitigate	$d \sim Wildfire I and sl$	ide Farthquake Flo	nodina Severe Storms Seve	ere Weather	Dam Failure Drought			
New & Existing	1_10	City of Simi Valley	Ventura County Fire Dent		Staff Time General Funds	Short-term		
New a Existing	1 1 7		VCSOES	Low		onort term		
 Action SIM-4—Continue to maintain good standing and compliance under the NFIP through implementation of floodplain management programs that, at a minimum, meet the NFIP requirements: Enforce the flood damage prevention ordinance. Participate in floodplain identification and mapping updates. Provide public assistance/information on floodplain requirements and impacts. 								
Hazaros Miligale	<u>ea:</u> Flooding, Dam	Fallure, Severe Stor	MS Dublia Warko	Low	Stoff Time Constal Funda	Ongoing		
New & Existing	1, 4, 11	City of Simi valley	Pudiic Works	LOW	Statt Time, General Funds	Ungoing		
 Action SIM-5—Identify and pursue strategies to increase adaptive capacity to climate change including but not limited to the following: Update the Climate Action Plan and other City plans, when necessary and applicable to remain in compliance and leverage opportunities. Explore clean air technologies for City equipment and infrastructure. 								
New & Existing	1 3 4	City of Simi Valley	Interdenartmental	Low	Staff Time General Funds	Short-term		
Action SIM-6—	Purchase generators	for critical facilities	and infrastructure that lack :	adequate ha	ckup power, including City Ha	II Police		
Station and Sen	ior Center.			uucquute bu	endp power, melduning only ric			
<u>Hazards Mitigate</u> Existing	e <u>d:</u> Wildfire, Landsl 2, 6, 9	ide, Earthquake, Flo City Manager's Office	ooding, Severe Storms, Seve Public Works	ere Weather High	, Dam Failure Staff time, General and enterprise funds, HMGP,	Long-term		
Action SIM 7	Dovelop oversition	routes and plans, pr	rthoring with polabboring ci	tion and cou	DIVIC			
Hazards Mitigat	Develop evacuation nd: Wildfiro Landsl	ido. Earthquako. Ele	nding Dam Failuro	lies and cou	11115.			
Existing	1, 2, 8, 17	City of Simi Valley	Cities of Thousand Oaks & Moorpark; VCSOES; VCFPD	Low	Staff Time, CDBG20, FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP),	Short-term		
Action SIM-8-	Increase knowledge	of hazard areas and	l understanding of vulnerabi	lity and risk	to life and property in hazard-	orone		
 areas, including but not limited to these items: Conduct site-specific studies to evaluate hazards and identify alternative site design criteria. Continue ongoing training for development staff. Update GIS hazard overlay layers. Map new earth movement hazards and make information available to staff, developers, and residents so that soil types, slope percentage, drainage, or other critical factors are used to identify landslide prone areas Develop fload after fire appendix for wildland fires to identify risks and develop mitigation measures 								
Hazards Mitigate	ed: Earthquake Wi	ldfire. Landslide. Flo	oding, Dam Failure, Severe	Storms. Se	vere Weather			
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 19	Public Works	Environmental Services	Medium	General Fund/Staff time, HMGP, BRIC, FMA	Ongoing		
Action SIM-9-	Perform structure-sp	ecific, all-risk, vulne	rability assessment of all Cit	y-owned crit	ical facilities (including bridge	, water,		
sanitation and st Identify potentia	orm drain infrastruct ly vulnerable private	ure). utility systems inclu	ding electric, gas, oil, water,	, sewer, com	munications and internet.			
Hazards Mitigate	ed: Earthquake, Flo	oding, Severe Storr	ns, Severe Weather, Dam F	ailure				
Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 9, 18, 19	Building & Safety	Public Works	Low	General Fund/Staff time,	Long-term		

HMGP, BRIC, FMA

	1		1	1	1	1		
Benefits New				Fotimated				
Assets	Obiectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline		
Action SIM-10- income and Spa	-Create and conduct anish-speaking comm	t hazard mitigation a nunities then adapt a	and emergency preparednes and expand these campaign	ss outreach o is to other de	campaigns for the low-to-mod emographics and the whole co	erate ommunity.		
<u>Hazarus Iviiligai</u> Evicting	<u>eu:</u> Earinquake, wi		City of Simi Vallov	e Storms, Se		Chart torm		
Existing	1, 2, 4, 5, 7, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18	SVUES	VCSOES, VCFPD	LOW	HMGP	Ongoing		
Action SIM-11- compliance proc materials regula <u>Hazards Mitigat</u>	-The City shall contin cedures in the commi- tions and continue to <u>ed:</u> Earthquake, Wi	nue to provide inspe unity. The City shall conduct household ldfire, Flooding, Dar	ections, emergency respons continue to work with releva I hazardous waste collectior n Failure	e, and enform ant agencies n events.	cement of hazardous material regarding enforcement of ha	s and waste zardous		
Existing	1, 4, 16, 18, 19	Public Works	Ventura County Certified Unified Program Agency	Low	Staff Time	Ongoing		
Action SIM-12- and weeds to re resistance is pa <u>Hazards Mitigat</u>	Action SIM-12—Maintain wildfire hazard fuel reduction program for areas that have been identified with overgrown or dead brush, trees and weeds to reduce the potential for tree-to-tree ignition. Ensure that a "maintenance now" component to provide continued fire resistance is part of the program. (Coordinates with Ventura County Fire Protection District Action VFP-6) <i>Hazards Mitigated:</i> Wildfire							
New & Existing	2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19	VCFPD	CAL FIRE & USDA	Medium	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP and HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing		
Action SIM-13- such as includin preparation for i Hazards Mitigat	-The City shall amer Ig flood proofing for in ncreased wildfire risk ed: Wildfire, Floodin	nd the local building ntermittent inundatio c. ng. Severe Storm. S	code to account for addition on, building materials to redu	nal climate cl uce the impa	hange-induced stressors on b cts of high heat days, and fire	uildings, proofing in		
New & Existing	4, 9, 10, 11, 12, 16, 17	Environmental Services	Public Works	Low	Staff time, HMGP, BRIC, FMA	Ongoing		
Action SIM-14- Assess downstr Develop a publi flood insurance.	-Create a levee and eam impacts associa c outreach program t	dam failure elemen ted with dam incide hat informs property	t for the City's emergency rents. v owners located in the dam	esponse plar and levee fa	n, including but not limited to t ailure inundation areas about	hese items: voluntary		
Hazards Mitigat	<u>ed:</u> Dam Failure							
New & Existing	1, 7, 9, 17, 19	SVOES, Public Works	Calleguas Water, Ventura County Watershed Protection	Low	GF/Staff Time, HMGP, BRIC, FMA	Short- Term; Ongoing		
Action SIM-15- Retrofit or upgra essential system Reinforce roads beneath the roa	Assess and retrofit ade at-risk and deficient to reasonable leve /bridges from floodin ds/bridges or upgrad	or upgrade City-owr ent government facil els of service. g through protectior ing storm drains.	ned facilities with identified r ities and public utility syster activities, including elevatir	isks, includir ns to ensure ng the roads,	ng but not limited to these iten the operation and timely rest /bridges and installing/widenir	ns: pration of ng culverts		
<u>Hazards Mitigat</u>	ed: Earthquake, Flo	ooding, Severe Stor	ms, Severe Weather, Dam I	Failure				
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 9, 18, 19	Environmental Services, Public Works	FEMA, CalOES	High	General Fund, Staff Time, HMGP, BRIC, FMA	Long Term		
a. Short-term no completi Acronyms used	= Completion within to on date here are defined at th	5 years; Long-term =	= Completion within 10 year volume.	s; Ongoing=	Continuing new or existing pr	ogram with		

	Table 9-15. Mitigation Action Priority									
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority	Grant Pursuit Priority		
1	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High		
2	12	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low		
3	19	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low		
4	3	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low		
5	3	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low		
6	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Low	Medium		
7	4	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium		
8	14	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Low		
9	7	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium		
10	13	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium		
11	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low		
12	12	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High		
13	7	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High		
14	5	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium		
15	7	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Low	Medium		
o Coot	Cas the introduction to this volume for surlangtion of micritics									

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 9-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions											
			Action Add	ressing Haza	ard, by Mitigati	on Type					
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building ^b			
High-Risk Hazard	High-Risk Hazards										
Wildfire	SIM-1, 2, 3, 5, 10, 11, 12, 13	SIM-1, 2, 3, 5, 10, 11, 12, 13	SIM-2, 3, 5, 7, 10, 11, 12, 13	SIM-2, 3, 11	SIM-3, 6, 7, 10, 11, 12	SIM-1, 2, 3, 5, 13	SIM-3, 5, 13	SIM-2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10			
Landslide	SIM-1, 2, 3, 5, 14	SIM-1, 2, 3, 5	SIM-2, 3, 5, 7	SIM-2, 3, 5	SIM-3, 6, 7	SIM-1, 2, 3, 5	SIM-3, 5	SIM-2, 3, 5, 7, 8			
Medium-Risk Haz	zards										
Earthquake	SIM-1, 2, 3, 9, 10, 11, 15	SIM-1, 2, 3, 10, 11, 15	SIM-3, 7, 10, 11, 15	SIM-3, 11	SIM-3, 6, 7, 10, 11	SIM-1, 2, 3, 9, 15	SIM-3	SIM-2, 3, 6, 7, 8, 10, 15			
Flooding	SIM-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 9, 10, 11, 13, 15	SIM-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 10, 11, 13, 15	SIM-3, 4, 5, 7, 10, 11 13, 15	SIM-3, 5, 11	SIM-3, 6, 7, 10, 11	SIM-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 9, 13, 15	SIM-3, 5	SIM-2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 15			
Severe Storms	SIM-3, 4, 9, 10, 13, 15	SIM-3, 4, 10, 13, 15	SIM-3, 4, 10, 13 15	SIM-3	SIM-3, 6, 10	SIM-3, 4, 6, 9, 15	SIM-3	SIM-3, 4, 6, 8, 10, 15			
Severe Weather	SIM-3, 9, 10, 13, 15	SIM-3, 10, 13, 15	SIM-3, 10, 13, 15	SIM-3	SIM-3, 6, 10	SIM-3, 6, 9, 15	SIM-3	SIM-3, 6, 8, 10, 15			
Dam Failure	SIM-3, 4, 9, 10, 11, 14, 15	SIM-3, 4, 10, 11, 15	SIM-3, 4, 8, 10, 11, 14, 15	SIM-3, 11	SIM-3, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, 14, 15	SIM-3, 4, 6, 9, 15	SIM-3	SIM-2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 14, 15			

		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type						
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building ^b
Low-Risk Hazard	s							
Drought	SIM-3, 5	SIM-3, 5	SIM-3, 5	SIM-3, 5	SIM-3, 5	SIM-3, 5	SIM-3, 5	SIM-3, 5

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

9.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 9-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 9-17. Local Public Outreach						
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved				
Presented at four Neighborhood Council meetings	9/9, 9/14, 9/16, 9/21	N/A				
HMP info & survey link via SVPD Nixle sent to residents and posted on social media	7/27/21	N/A				
HMP info & survey link via SVPD Tweet	8/17/21	N/A				
HMP info & survey link sent to Neighborhood Councils 1-4 E-Notify List.	8/18/21	1, 400				
Emergency Services Manager discussed HMP in radio interview	10/25/21	N/A				

9.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **Simi Valley Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **City of Simi Valley Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance**—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.
- **2015 Hazard Mitigation Plan**—The mitigation strategy action items were used to assess planning and regulatory capabilities and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **2018 Emergency Operations Plan**—The EOP was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration and improvement.
- **Simi Valley General Plan**—The General Plan was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

- FIPS Code—<u>https://www.census.gov/geographies/reference-files/2018/demo/popest/2018-fips.html</u>
- DUNS #---https://www.dnb.com/duns-number.html
- Community Rating System—<u>https://www.fema.gov/floodplain-management/community-rating-</u> system
- Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule—<u>https://www.isomitigation.com/bcegs/iso-s-building-code-effectiveness-grading-schedule-bcegs.html</u>
- Public Protection Classification—<u>https://www.isomitigation.com/ppc/</u>
- Storm Ready—<u>https://www.weather.gov/stormready/communities</u>
- Firewise—<u>http://www.firewise.org/usa-recognition-program/map-of-active-participants.aspx</u>
- Tsunami Ready—<u>https://www.weather.gov/tsunamiready/communities</u>
- **CEQA statute** (Public Resources Code Section 21000 and following), the **CEQA Guidelines** (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15000 and following)
- State Subdivision Map Act (Govt. Code Sec. 66410-66499.58)



























10. CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS

10.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Grahame Watts, Emergency Services Manager 2100 Thousand Oaks Blvd. Thousand Oaks, CA 91362 805-449-2453 gwatts@toaks.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Nader Heydari, Deputy Public Works Director 2100 Thousand Oaks Blvd. Thousand Oaks, CA 91362 805-449-2392 nheydari@toaks.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 10-1.

Table 10-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members					
Name	Title				
Grahame Watts	Emergency Services Manager (Project Manager)				
Jim Taylor	Senior Civil Engineer				
John Brooks	Senior Analyst				
Michael Devlahovich	Utilities Maintenance Supervisor				
Kari Finley	Planning Division Manager				
lain Holt	Senior Planner				
David Chavez	Landscape Maintenance Supervisor				

10.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

10.2.1 Location and Features

Thousand Oaks is the second-largest city in Ventura County and is 40 miles northwest of Downtown Los Angeles. The City is named after the many oak trees present in the area. The City forms the central populated core of the Conejo Valley and includes two-thirds of master-planned community of Westlake Village and most of Newbury Park, which were annexed by the city during the late 1960s and 1970s.

The City of Thousand Oaks has a population of 126,484 and is nearly built out, placing emphasis upon in-fill development, redevelopment and maintenance of aging infrastructure. The Downtown Core Master Plan provides the blueprint for a centralized, walkable shopping, dining and entertainment area adjacent to the Civic Arts Plaza/City Hall, and land use alternatives under the General Plan were

updated for increased density and mixed-use development along the Thousand Oaks Boulevard corridor.

10.2.2 History

Thousand Oaks was incorporated in 1964 and has evolved from a rural Ventura County settlement into an attractive and desirable Southern California city. Thousand Oaks offers the ideal mixture of commercial, industrial, residential and recreational space in an exceptional location.

The City's history dates to the Chumash Native Americans who dwelled in the Conejo Valley hundreds of years ago. In 1542, the area was discovered by Spanish explorer Juan Rodriguez Cabrillo, who claimed the land for his Spanish king. The area remained virtually unsettled until the early 1800s when the Spanish governor granted 48,671 acres of land grants to loyal soldiers—land which included the Conejo Valley (Conejo is the Spanish word for rabbit which are abundant in the area).

Throughout the 19th Century, early pioneers migrated to the area. The first post office was built in 1875, and the small settlement became a stop on the stagecoach route between Los Angeles and San Francisco. With the invention of the motor car and the construction of a highway between those two major cities, the Conejo Valley began to evolve.

10.2.3 Governing Body Format

Thousand Oaks is a General Law city with a Council/Manager form of government. This type of government structure designates the City Council as the policy making body, who appoint the City Manager to carrying out Council policy.

The Council consists of five members elected from residents at large. Council members serve four-year staggered terms. Municipal elections are held in November of even numbered years. The City Council annually selects a Mayor who serves as the presiding officer during City Council meetings that are scheduled on Tuesdays approximately two times per month.

The Thousand Oaks City Council is responsible for the adoption of this plan and the Public Works Department oversees its implementation.

10.3 CURRENT TRENDS

10.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of the Thousand Oaks as of January 2020 was 126,484. Since 2010, the population has decreased at an average annual rate of 0.02 percent.

10.3.2 Development

The development mission of Thousand Oaks is to be stewards of the City's General Plan, and to assist the community with land development, housing, construction, code compliance, open space, and regional issues, all of which are balanced with the City's environment and resources.

Table 10-2 summarizes development trends in the period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

Table 10-2. Red	ecent and Expected Future Development Trends					
Criterion	Re	sponse				
Has the City annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?	Yes					
 If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or structures. 	2015—Kelly Estates A & B: Parcel; "A" = 20.32 ac., Parcel "B" = 1.26 ac. (existing developed single-family lots in former County "island") 2021—Edward-Ventu Park Parcels A & B: Parcel "A" = 0.18 ac., Parcel "B" = 0.22 ac. (2- single-family lots)					
Is the City expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan?	No					
 Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years? If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas 	Yes These areas primarily consist of larger scale residential projects along Thousand Oaks Boulevard as included in the Community Development Department's Development Activity Report (May 2021). Projects in the High Fire Severity Hazard Zone include The Lakes Residential, One Baxter Way residential and the Shapell Industrial Project (49.64 acres and 754.222 SF of building floor area) at northern section of Rancho Coneio Blvd.					
How many permits for new construction were		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
issued in your jurisdiction since the	Single Family	2,124	1,984	1,870	1,947	1,870
nlan?	Multi-Family	315	239	244	369	154
P	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	501	427	379	381	285
	Total	2,940	2,650	2,493	2,697	2,179
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	 Special Flood Hazard Areas: 75 Landslide: 274 High Liquefaction Areas: 132 Tsunami Inundation Area: 0 Wildfire Risk Areas: 9,934 					
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	Currently, the City does not have an inventory of buildable lands. There is a theoretical residential capacity for the City of 81,124 dwelling units based on an evaluation of 1996 General Plan land use map governed by Measure E. This maximum capacity does not consider constraints that may result in less buildable area. Based on SCAG's 2020 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy growth projections out to 2045, Thousand Oaks population will increase by 15,229, households will increase by 5,269 and employment will increase 9,897. The City is currently undergoing a General Plan Update and the Environmental Impact Report will evaluate new growth projections based on the revised land use map and economic analysis. The anticipated adoption date of the General Plan is in FY 2022-23.					

10.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were

identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 10-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 10-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 10-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 10-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 10-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 10-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 10-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 10-10.

Table 10-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability					
	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?	
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements					
Building Code	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: TOMC Title 8 Ch.1 Building Code amended to reflect 2	2019 California E	Building Code			
Zoning Code	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	
Comment: TOMC Title 9 Chapter 1 Flood Control requires buildin TOMC Title 9 Chapter 4 Zoning and Chapter 5 Environ	g permit fees for nmental Impact /	r Ventura County flood Assessment	control facilities		
Subdivisions	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	
Comment: TOMC Title 9 Chapter 3 Subdivisions. Article 14 Enviro	onmental Impact	t and Grading and Eros	sion Control		
Stormwater Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: TOMC 4-7 (Public Safety, Flood Damage Prevention)					
Post-Disaster Recovery	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: The City Emergency Operations Plan was adopted on	February 25, 20	20, which includes a s	ection on Disast	ter Recovery.	
Real Estate Disclosure	No	Yes	No	No	
<i>Comment:</i> The Community Development Department Building Di Chapter 12.	vision prepares	residential re-sale disc	losure reports p	er TOMC Title 8	
Growth Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
<i>Comment:</i> Measure E requires voter approval for any amendme residential land use density beyond the City's General acreage beyond the City's General Plan of November	nt to the Land L al Plan of Nove 5, 1996. City Co	Jse Element of the City mber 5, 1996 or increa puncil Ordinance No. 12	y's General Plar ases the amour 280-NS	n that: increases nt of commercial	
Site Plan Review	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
<i>Comment:</i> The Community Development Department Planning entitlements and subdivisions. County Fire and Police	Division and F Departments als	Public Works Enginee so review projects.	ring Division re	eviews land use	
Environmental Protection	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
<i>Comment:</i> The result of a completed Visioning 2064 process was expected to be adopted in FY 2022-23 . The Plan is finadaptation, zero waste, zero net energy usage, reduced	s the developme or the City to be ed water use, an	ent of a Climate and E an environmental lead d greenhouse gas redu	nvironmental Ac Jer and promote uction, including	ction Plan that is e climate change allocation of the	
necessary resources. New development is subject to e	environmental re	view in accordance wit	h CEOA.		

		Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?	
Flood Dama	age Prevention	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment:	<i>Comment:</i> The City's Water Emergency Operations Plan was adopted in June 2021, which includes a section on Flood Damage Prevention. The City and County of Ventura Public Works also developed a Flood Prevention & Preparedness manual that is posted on the City website. The Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance comprises the TOMC 4-7 (Public Safety, Flood Damage Prevention)					
Emergency	Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment:	The City completed a Risk and Resiliency Assessment to the EPA in December 2020. The City's Water Eme Thousand Oaks Municipal Code Title 4 Section 404.01	as part of Amer rgency Operatic describes the (ica's Water Infrastructu ons Plan was certified t City emergency organiz	re Act (2018) that hrough the EPA zation, functions	at was submitted in June 2021 and authorities.	
Climate Cha	ange	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment:	An anticipated City goal is to reduce greenhouse gas or exceed the State goals. The City's Climate and Env	by a minimum o ironmental Actic	f 40 percent by 2030 a on Plan is expected to b	nd 80 percent b be adopted in FN	y 2050 to match / 2022-23	
Planning Do	ocuments					
City Genera	ıl Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Is the City's Comment:	plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140? Yes The Thousand Oaks City General Plan is being update	ed and is expect	ed to be adopted in FY	2022-23.		
Capital Imp	rovement Plan	Yes	Yes	No	No	
How often is Comment:	the plan updated? The City's Capital Improvement Plan is part of the City	Budget process	s and is updated every	two years.		
Disaster De	bris Management Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment:	The City has a Disaster Debris Management procedur Debris Management Plan.	e in its adopted	EOP, which is complim	nentary to the Co	ounty's Disaster	
Floodplain	Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment:	In January 2010, the FEMA National Flood Insurance (floodplains). The City's Capital Improvement Plan doe eliminating 100-year floodplains.	Program mappe es not directly ac	d the City's 100-year " Idress a strategized ap	Areas of Special proach to reduc	Flood Hazard" ing or	
Stormwater	Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment:	The City is participating in a Watershed Management Program that are being developed and implemented in Permit.	Program and the compliance wit	e Countywide Stormwa h the new State Region	ter Quality Mana nal Board Munic	agement ipal Stormwater	
Urban Wate	r Management Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment:	In June 2021, the City adopted the 1) 2020 Urban Wat 3) Addendum to the 2015 Urban Water Management F water use data through 2045: a description of current a City's water conservation program, and background in	er Management Plan. Included in and future water formation on the	Plan, 2) 2020 Water S the 2020 UWMP are p supply sources and al city water system and	hortage Conting bast, present, an locations, inform d service area.	jency Plan, and d projected nation on the	
Habitat Cor	servation Plan	No	No	No	No	
Comment:	The City does not have a Habitat Conservation Plan b Plan. State and Federal agencies are involved as part Conservancy Agency (COSCA), a joint-powers author implements conservation projects and manages habita	ut relies on polic CEQA review a ity between the at lands.	ies within the Conserv. nd permitting process. City and the Conejo Re	ation Element of The Conejo Ope ecreation and Pa	the General en Space Irk District that	
Economic I	Development Plan	Yes	Yes	No	No	
Comment:	The City Council adopted its Economic Development F	Plan on Novemb	er 7, 2017			
Shoreline M	lanagement Plan	No	No	No	No	
Comment:	Thousand Oaks is inland and does not have a shorelin	1e.				
Community	Wildfire Protection Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment:	Wildfire protection is described in the City's EOP in a Protection District. The City's Water Emergency Ope zones, specifically within the City's water infrastructure	ddition to fire pr rations Plan an e.	otection services provi d Risk and Resiliency	ded by the Ven Assessment ac	tura County Fire Idresses wildfire	

		Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?		
Forest Man	agement Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
Comment:	Comment: The City Forestry Master Plan was adopted in 2017 and applies to City-maintained plantings and provides histo background, design and management and community participation.						
Climate Act	tion Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
Comment:	<i>imment:</i> One of the City Council goals is to consider a plan to reduce greenhouse gas by a minimum of 40 percent by 2030 and 80 percent by 2050 to meet or exceed the state goals. The City's Climate and Environmental Action Plan is expected to be considered in FY 2022-23.						
Emergency	Management Planning	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
Comment:	<i>Comment:</i> The City's Water Emergency Operations Plan was adopted in June 2021. Thousand Oaks Municipal Code Title 4 Section 404.01 describes the City emergency organization, functions and authorities.						
Threat & Ha	azard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	Yes	No	No	No		
Comment:	In December 2017 the City contracted for the completed for the Cive 2019, a similar assessment was completed for the Cive Hill Canyon Treatment Plant. The City completed a Rise	tion of a City fac ric Arts Plaza/Cit sk and Resilienc	cilities security for the t ty Hall, both libraries, M y Assessment in Dece	wo City Theater Aunicipal Service mber 2020.	rs. In September e Center and the		
Post-Disast	ter Recovery Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	No		
Comment:	The City's Water Emergency Operations Plan was add	opted in June 20	21, which includes a se	ection on Disast	er Recovery		
Continuity	of Operations Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	No		
Comment:	The City's Water Emergency Operations Plan was add	pted in June 202	21 which includes a sec	ction on Continui	ty of Operations.		
Public Heal	th Planning	No	Yes	Yes	No		
Comment:	<i>Comment:</i> The City's Water Emergency Operations Plan was adopted in June 2021, which includes a section on public health which as managed by the Ventura County Public Health Department.						

Table 10-4. Development and Permitting Capability						
Criterion		Response				
Does the City issue development permits?	Yes					
If no, who does? If yes, which department?	Public Works Depa	rtment, Community Development Department				
Does the City have the ability to track permits by hazard	Yes					
Does the City have a buildable lands inventory?	No					

Table 10-5. Fiscal Capability				
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?			
Community Development Block Grants	Yes- City Council approval of application/acceptance and award by U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development			
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes-City Council approval.			
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes-City Council and voter approval.			
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes City Council approval and Proposition 218 protest ballot.			
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes City Council and voter approval.			
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes City Council and voter approval.			
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	Yes City Council approval.			
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No			
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes City Council approval of application/acceptance and award by State			
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes City Council approval.			

Accessible or Eligible to Use?

Financial Resource

Other

Yes ht through Lease Revenue Bonds with City Counci

If yes, specify: Incur debt through Lease Revenue Bonds with City Council approval. Public-Private Partnerships with City Council approval.

Table 10-6. Administrative and Technical Capability				
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?		
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices				
If Yes, Department /Position:	Community Development Department & Public Works Department. Senior Planners, Ser Engineers and Division Managers.	nior		
Engineers or professionals train	ed in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Community Development Department, Building and Safety Division plan checkers and in	spectors		
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards		Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Community Development Department and Public Works Department. Senior Planners, Senior Engineers and Division Managers.			
City staff with training in benefit-cost analysis		Yes		
Surveyors		Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works Department, Engineering Services Division			
City personnel skilled or trained in GIS applications		Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works Department and Finance Department, IT Division			
Scientist familiar with natural hazards in local area		No		
Emergency Services Manager		Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works Department, Emergency Services Manager.			
Grant writers		Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works, Community Development, Finance & Library Departments—The City has in multiple departments that are skilled in writing and administering state and federal gra programs.	several staff nt funded		

l able 10-7. Education and Outreach Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Does City have a public information officer or communications office?				
Does City have personnel skilled or trained in website development?				
Does City have hazard mitigation information available on your website? <i>If yes, briefly describe:</i> Hazard mitigation is part of the City's Emergency Management Program administered by the Department, which includes the posting of the City's current Hazard Mitigation Plan	Yes e Public Works			
Does City use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? Yes If yes, briefly describe: The City utilizes several electronic community newsletters as well as Social Media for Facebook, Instagrar LinkedIn and Twitter.				
Does City have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?				
Does City have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? If yes, briefly describe: Social media posts, newsletters and the City website				
Does City have any established warning systems for hazard events?				
<i>If yes, briefly describe:</i> The Cities and County of Ventura all subscribe to VC Alert, a mass notification system for local emergency warnings, incidents and hazards.	and statewide			

Table 10-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance					
Criterion	Response				
What City I department is responsible for floodplain management?	Public Works Department				
Who is your City floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Jim Taylor, Senior Civil Engineer, Public Works				
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff for your City?	Yes; Jim Taylor, Senior Civil Engineer				
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	February 11, 2010				
Does the City floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements?ExceedsIf exceeds, in what ways?Pursuant to Thousand Oaks Municipal Code Ordinance (TOMC) 1995-20, the City ensures newly- developed building pads are protected from a 100-year flooding event, regardless of whether the location is within a FEMA NFIP-designated floodplain					
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact? Salomon Miranda, California DWR	April 24, 2018				
Does the City have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed?	No				
Are any Risk MAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction?	No				
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? <i>If no, state why.</i>	Yes				
Does the City floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program?	No				
Does the City participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program? No	No				
How many flood insurance policies are in force in the City? <i>a</i> What is the insurance in force? \$109,948,800 What is the premium in force? \$253,564	336				
How many total loss claims have been filed in the City? <i>a</i> What were the total payments for losses? \$341,390	62				
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021					

Table 10-9. Community Classifications						
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified			
FIPS Code	Yes	95-2367314	N/A			
DUNS No.	Yes	055751937	N/A			
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A			
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A			
Public Protection (VCFPD)	Yes	03/3X	12/21/18			
Storm Ready	Yes	N/A	N/A			
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A			
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A			
Table 10-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change						
---	--					
Criterion	Jurisdiction					
Technical Canacity	Kating					
City level understanding of potential climate change impacts	Modium					
<i>Comment:</i> Staff and City Council are aware of potential climate change impacts and actions to address these issue the General Plan update and the City's Climate and Environmental Action Plan.	es will be included in					
City -level monitoring of climate change impacts	Medium					
<i>Comment:</i> Staff and the City Council are aware of potential climate change impacts and actions to address these is in the General Plan update and Climate and Environmental Action Plan.	sues will be included					
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	High					
<i>Comment:</i> The City has capacity internally and the ability to engage consultants for specialized tasks.						
City -level capacity for development of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions inventory Comment: The City has an internally developed GHG inventory.	High					
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Medium					
<i>Comment:</i> The City's General Plan will include Sustainability components throughout the document and is being de coordination with the City's Climate & Environmental Action Plan	eveloped in					
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	Medium					
<i>Comment:</i> The City is a member of the Ventura County Regional Energy Alliance which addresses climate change Thousand Oaks and Ventura County.	issues within					
Implementation Capacity						
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	Medium					
<i>Comment:</i> On January 12, 2021 the City Council meeting directed staff to develop a Climate and Environmental Ac exceeds the state goals. Concurrently, the General Plan is being updated to include strategies and record to climate change mitigation.	tion Plan that mmendations related					
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Medium					
<i>Comment:</i> Staff has drafted green-house gas mitigation strategies after hosting four stakeholder meetings and add events to receive recommendations and input from the public.	itional community					
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Medium					
<i>Comment:</i> Staff has drafted the strategies now after hosting four stakeholder meetings and additional community e recommendations and input from the public.	vents to receive					
Champions for climate action in local government departments	Medium					
<i>Comment:</i> The City Public Works Department established an internal green team of employees from City department development and rollout of internal green policies.	ents to assist in the					
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Medium					
Comment: The City Council adopts goals annually and environmental leadership is always included as shown by th "Provide and enhance essential infrastructure to ensure the goals and policies of the City's General Plan the City retains its role and reputation as a leader in protecting the environment and preserving limited r The City Council also approved participation in the Clean Power Alliance at the 100% renewable level w lowered GHG emissions.	ie following goal. n are carried out and latural resources." /hich dramatically					
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	Medium					
<i>Comment:</i> The City is supportive of cost-effective environmental initiatives.						
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Low					
<i>Comment:</i> The City has local authority over housing, water resources and land use issues.						

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a				
Public Capacity					
Local resident's knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Medium				
Comment: Thousand Oaks residents and business owners are knowledgeable and engaged.					
Local resident's support of adaptation efforts	Medium				
Comment: Thousand Oaks residents are informed and active on climate and environmental issues.					
Local resident's capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium				
Comment: The City's Climate & Environmental Action Plan documents residents' interests and priorities.					
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium				
<i>Comment:</i> Many residents have the resources to make GHG reduction and resiliency reduction measures at home. However, Thousand Oaks also has an aging population with many seniors on a fixed income and unable to complete home improvements on their own.					
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts Unsure					
Comment:					
a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improven	nent;				

Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

10.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

10.5.1 Existing Integration

Integration has been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following local plans and programs:

- **City Emergency Operations Plan**—Adopted in 2020, this Plan describes the City's preparedness, response, mitigation and recovery from local and national emergency incidents
- **City General Plan**—Scheduled for adoption in FY 2022-23, this Plan describes the long-term goals, policies and development of Thousand Oaks, including a Safety Element that addresses hazard mitigation.
- City Climate & Environmental Action Plan—Scheduled for adoption in FY 2022-23, this Plan describes the City's on-term strategies for reducing greenhouse gas emissions, reduce air pollution and improve public health.
- **Building Code**—The City routinely updates the Thousand Oaks Municipal Code (TOMC) and as part of a review of the hazard mitigation in the Building Section of the TOMC.
- **Stormwater Management**—The City is part of a Countywide Stormwater Pollution Management Plan and when possible the Cities and County of Ventura collaborate upon local stormwater management with hazard mitigation policies.

- **Post-Disaster Recovery**—The City addresses disaster recovery in its Emergency Operations Plan (EOP), which includes hazard mitigation as part of the Plan.
- **Growth Management**—The General Plan addresses future growth in Thousand Oaks and during the update, hazard mitigation is incorporated into the final Plan.
- **Site Plan Review**—The Community Development Department and the Public Works Department jointly consider hazard mitigation issues as part of each project review.
- Environmental Protection—Hazard mitigation is part of the City's review of programs, policies and projects as they relate to land, air, water and waste.
- Flood Damage Protection—All existing and proposed development projects are reviewed to address existing and future hazards.
- **Disaster Debris Plan**—The County has a Disaster Debris Plan and the City addressees' disaster debris in its Emergency Operations Plan in addition to hazard mitigation.
- Floodplain Management— The City EOP addresses flooding as well as the TOMC which is updated routinely
- **Urban Watershed Plan**—As part of a 2021 update, urban watershed policies and the City's program was updated, and hazard mitigation issues are part of that review.
- Wildfire Protection Plan— The City's EOP includes a wildfire protection element that includes hazard mitigation.
- **Forest Management Plan**—The 2017 adopted plan addresses City-maintained plantings, background, design and management. Hazard mitigation will continue to be part of the Plan.

10.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- **Countywide Stormwater Pollution Control Plan**—This Plan describes how the Cities and County of Ventura will reduce pollution of local waterways. The integration of this Plan with hazard mitigation includes a review of policies and programs of both plans to ensure consistency and compliance.
- Urban Water Management Plan This Plan describes the City's long-term water resource and planning principles for reducing water use. The integration of this Plan with hazard mitigation includes a review of policies and programs of both plans to ensure consistency and compliance.
- Economic Development Strategic Plan—This Plan was developed as a policy guide for guiding the City's short, medium and long-term economic development planning. The integration of this Plan with hazard mitigation includes a review of policies and programs of both plans to ensure consistency and compliance.

Acting to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

10.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

10.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 10-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 10-11. Past Natural Hazard Events						
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment			
Wind/PSPS Event	N/A	1/20	\$2 million			
Hill Fire	DR 4407	11/8/18 -11/9/18	\$1 million			
Woolsey Fire	DR 4407	11/8/18-11/9/18	\$8 million			
Borderline Active Shooter	N/A	11/18/18	\$5 million			
Winter Storm Event	DR 4353	12/4/17- 1/31/18	\$2 million			
Springs Fire	DR 5024	5/2/13 – 5/11/13	\$10 million			
Wildwood I Fire	N/A	1995	\$ 500,000			
Northridge Earthquake	DR 1008	1/17/94	\$6 million			
Green Meadow Fire	N/A	10/26/93 – 11/3/93	\$12 million			
Sherwood Fire	N/A	1985	\$ 1 million			
Dayton Canyon Fire	N/A	10/25/82	\$4 million			
Winter Storm Event	N/A	2/21/80	\$2 million			
Winter Storm Event	N/A	2/15/78	\$1.5 million			
Winter Storm Event	N/A	1/26/69	\$200,000			
Winter Storm Event	N/A	12/7/65	\$100,000			
Wind/PSPS Event	N/A	1/20	\$2 million			

10.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 10-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 10-12. Hazard Risk Ranking						
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category			
1	Landslide	51	High			
2	Wildfire	36	High			
3	Earthquake	32	Medium			
4	Severe Storm	24	Medium			
5	Severe Weather	24	Medium			
6	Flooding	18	Medium			
7	Dam Failure	12	Low			
8	Drought	9	Low			

10.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for Thousand Oaks. Available Thousand Oaks-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 5
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: N/A
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties mitigated: N/A

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Urban Area Flooding—Urban area flooding of specific neighborhoods in Thousand Oaks is an
 ongoing hazard that continues to be addressed through the City's Capital Improvement
 Program. The Public Works Department has identified hazard priorities and through City, State
 and Federal funding resources, many of the known hazards are being mitigated. Each project
 includes a public outreach component before, during and after the completion of each project.
- Power Outages—Scheduled and un-scheduled SCE power outages continue to be a hazard in Thousand Oaks, especially during excessive heat and wind. The Public Works Department has implemented a Red Flag-PSPS Policy that includes the use of permanent and portable back-up generators at critical City facilities. The City also encourages residents and business owners to secure back-up power.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

10.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 10-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

10.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 10-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 10-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 10-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 10-13. Status of Previous Plan Actions								
			Removed;	Carried C Up	over to Plan date			
Action Item		Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update			
TO 1—Deve awareness a conserving v	lop a water conservation public outreach program to increase about the drought, fines and penalties for overuse and methods for vater.	~						
Comment:	The Public Works Department developed a public outreach program over the last decade that includes a monthly e- newsletter to over 10,500 recipients and use of Facebook, Instagram and Twitter. The Sustainability Division in the Public Works Department maintains the City's Water webpage which provides updates related to drought conditions, fines and penalties for overuse and strategies for conserving water. The City finished its Automatic Meter Reader Upgrade in June 2021 which provides customer access to water consumption data and monitoring of customer water leaks. The City's annual Arbor/Earth Day event includes water conservation booths from all three local water purveyors. During periods of significant water shortage, the City hosts monthly meetings with the three local water purveyors to coordinate programs and messaging. The City is also a member of the California Data Collaborative and has access to a dashboard that identifies high water users in Thousand Oaks that have accepted water rebates. Currently the City is preparing a Climate and Environmental Action Plan, which includes a water conservation component. The plan is being developed in conjunction with an update to the City's General Plan and it will be CEQA qualified. Several stakeholder meetings were held in 2021 and the							
TO 2—Adop ordinance to	t emergency water conservation measures and/or water conservation reduce irrigation.	✓						
Comment:	The City's Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) was adopted by Ci conservation measures (3 tier to 6 tier) November 2021. Update of wate Shortage Contingency Plan and municipal code updates.	ty Council in Ju er conservation	ne 2021. Muni levels from 3 t	cipal code i o 6 tiers wi	update th Water			
TO 3—Evalu adequacy.	uate City bridges for structural, seismic, functional, and safety	~						
Comment:	Comment: Caltrans performs biennial evaluation of all City and State's bridges for structural, seismic, functional and safety adequacy. Caltrans provides inspection reports and repair and maintenance recommendations for each bridge that was inspected. In November 2020 Caltrans inspected City of Thousand Oaks bridges and rated them to indicate deficiencies, structural adequacy, safe load carrying capacity and general condition							
TO 4—Upda seismic impr Controllers a turnouts.	ate Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) Master Plan with rovements, including design, integration of new Programmable Logic and communication systems at City pump stations, reservoirs, and	✓						
Comment:	CI 5284 SCADA Upgrades—New SCADA program, update of seismic e programing. New communications system. Project completion target da	equipment prog te: June 2022.	rammable logi	c controllers	s and			
TO 5—Remi identify caus	ove and/or repair the interior of reservoir tanks and perform analysis, ses, and mitigate hazards to ensure tanks achieve seismic standards.	✓						
Comment:	Water reservoirs are inspected and cleaned every 5 years and rehability priorities include 2019 Lang Ranch Reservoir, 2020 Tara Reservoir Seis addressed at these sites and all reservoir rehabilitation projects. As par	ated every 20-2 smic upgrades, t of CIP 5284, S	25 years. Reha ventilation and SCADA Upgrad	bilitation pro I structural les	oject safety were			

	Tal	ble 10-14. Haza	rd Mitigation Action Pla	n Matrix			
Benefits New or			Compart Agenesi	Estimated		Timesline 2	
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	COST	Sources of Funding		
have experienced repetitive losses and/or located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.							
Hazards Mitigated	Landslides, Wildfire,	Earthquake, Sever	e Storms, Severe Weather, I	-looding, Dai	m Failure		
New & Existing	4, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 19	City Public Works Department	City Community Development Department	High	Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Ongoing	
Action CTO-2—In community, includi	tegrate the hazard mitig ng Urban Water Manage	ation plan into othe ement Plan, Genera	r plans, ordinances and prog al Plan Update, Climate & Er	rams that did	ctate land use decisions Action Plan	in the	
Hazards Mitigated	Flooding, Earthquak	es, Climate Change	9				
New & Existing	4, 8, 9, 11, 19	City Public Works Department	City Community Development Department	Low	Staff Time, General Fund	Ongoing	
Action CTO-3—A	ctively participate in the	plan maintenance p	protocols outlined in Volume	1 of this haza	ard mitigation plan.		
Hazards Mitigated	Landslides, Wildfire,	Earthquake, Sever	e Storms, Severe Weather, I	looding, Dai	m Failure, Drought		
New & Existing	9, 10, 11	City Public Works Department	City Community Development Department	Low	Staff Time, General Fund	Short-term	
Action CTO-4—Co programs that, at a in floodplain identif Hazards Mitigated.	ontinue to maintain good minimum, meet the NF ication and mapping upo Flooding	I standing and com IP requirements tha dates, and provide	pliance under the NFIP throu at include enforcing the City f public assistance/informatior	ugh implemer lood damage n on floodplai	ntation of floodplain man e prevention ordinance, p n requirements and impa	agement participate acts.	
New & Existing	8, 9, 10, 13, 14, 15, 19	Public Works	Ventura County Water Protection District	Low	Staff Time, General Fund	Ongoing	
Action CTO-5—Id projects:	entify and pursue strate	gies to increase ada	aptive capacity to climate cha	ange includin	g but not limited to the fo	ollowing	
• CI 5395,	Groundwater Utilization	Project—Alternativ	e source of water.				
 CI 5450, de los Ar 	Emergency Water Inter boles).	connects—2 new ir	terconnects with California A	American Wa	ter Service (Adrian Drive	e & Avenida	
Hazards Mitigated	Drought, Earthquake						
New & Existing	1, 13, 14, 19	City Public Works Department		Low	Staff Time, General Fund	Short-term	
Action CTO-6—Pt projects:	urchase generators for c	ritical facilities and	infrastructure that lack adequ	uate backup	power, including the follo	owing	
• CI 5292,	La Granada Reservoir I	mprovements-Re	dundant supply pumps, eme	rgency fire p	ump (Pump #3) and eme	ergency	
backup ç	enerator installed at La	Granada Reservoir					
• CI 5454,	Pressure Reducing Sta	tions—1 new PRS	& existing upgrade. Water su	ipply redunda	ancy, reduced pumping.		
 CI 5452, 	Lone Oak Emergency (Senerator—Install n	iew generator at Lone Oak P	ump Station	with an automatic transf	er switch	
	Site Improvements at P	III. Josonyoir and Dump	Stations Erbos Dood Emo	raoney back	in concrator		
Hazards Mitigated	Dam Failure Farthou	uakes Flooding La	Indslide Severe Weather W	ildfires	up generator.		
New and Existing	2, 8, 10, 19	City Public Works Department	Community Development Department		Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term	

Benefits New or	Obiactives Mat		Current Ageney	Estimated	Courses of Funding	Timeline
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	COSI	Sources of Funding	Timelinea
Action CTO-7—M and weeds to redu resistance is part of Parks District Action	aintain wildfire hazard fu ce the potential for tree- if the program. (Coordin n CRP-1)	uel reduction progra to-tree ignition. Ens ates with Ventura C	m for areas that have been i sure that a "maintenance nov county Fire Protection Distric	dentified with v" componen t Action VFP	n overgrown or dead bru t to provide continued fir -6 and Conejo Recreatio	sh, trees e n and
Hazards Mitigated	Wildfire					
New & Existing	2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19	VCFPD	City of Thousand Oaks, COSCA (Conejo Open Space Conservancy Agency), Conejo Recreation and Parks District (CRPD), CAL FIRE & USDA	Medium	Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP and HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing
Action CTO-8—Th backup power syst projects are funded	he City is developing pla ems include the Erbes F d by state HMGP funding	ns to install two Cit Road Pump Station g.	y Hall emergency power batt Battery Back-Up Project and	ery backup s the Peders	systems. Two other emer on Battery Back Up Proje	gency ect. Both
<u>Hazards Mitigated</u>	Landslides, Wildfire,	Earthquake, Sever	e Storms, Severe Weather, I	Flooding, Da	m Failure	Chart tarres
New and Existing	1, 0, 11, 19	Department	VCPWA-WP	LOW	Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP) and General Fund	Snort-term
Action CTO-9— T capacity of 128-act downstream. The r <u>Hazards Mitigated</u> .	he Lake Eleanor (Banni re-feet. Dam failure wou reduction of water storag Dam Failure, Earthq	ng) Dam was built i ld be a flood risk fo ge volume would he uakes, Flooding, Se	n 1889 is operated by COSC r the Westlake community ar Ip mitigate the hazard poten evere Weather	CA and is 37 nd has a sen tial of the Da	feet high and has a stora timent load that cannot b m.	ige ie released
New and existing	4, 5, 8, 9, 11, 14, 15, 16, 17, 19	City Public Works Department	COSCA, CRPD	Low	Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Long Term
Action CTO-10—(Ventura Regional I safety, defensible area. Currently, the <u>Hazards Mitigated</u> New and Existing	Community outreach pro Fire Safe Council to prov space, and home harder ese are funded through Wildfire 1, 5, 8, 11, 14, 17	gram for wildfire sa vide educational out ning. Also offered a COSCA Board appr City Community Development	fety. Home losses associate reach and services promotir re Home Ignition Zone asses opriations for funding from C COSCA, CRPD	d with wildfir ng wildfire sa ssments for h COSCA's Wo Low	es. COSCA contracts wi fety. These include webi nomeowners in COSCA's olsey Fire Recovery Fun Grant Funding- FEMA HMA	th the nars on fire s service d. Ongoing
					(BRIC, FMAP and HMGP), Cal-OES & Utility Settlement	
Action CTO-11—\ of Westlake Bouley <u>Hazards Mitigated</u>	Vestlake Boulevard Floo vard at Cloverleaf Street Dam Failure, Earthq	od Damage Mitigation to mitigate debris a uakes, Flooding, Se	on. Install retaining walls and and mud flows from adjacent evere Weather.	l upgrade the hillsides from	e drainage inlet along the mentering the roadway.	e west side
New and Existing	4, 14, 11, 15, 16, 19	City Public Works Department	N/A	Medium	General Fund, Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP and HMGP)	Ongoing

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action CTO-12- Continue implementation of City Drainage Protection Program. Positive drainage away from structures is achieved in accordance with the City's adopted building codes development discharges to be safely conveyed to stable channels and/or dispersed into natural channels via energy dissipators/rip-rap to avoid scour of unstable areas in accordance with TOMC 1995-20 Section 4 (Commercial/Industrial) and Section 5 (Residential). Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flooding, Severe Weather							
New and Existing	1, 11, 15, 16, 19	City Public Works Department	City Community Development Department	Low	General Fund	Ongoing	
Action CTO-13—Continue to participate in Countywide FEMA Coordination by meeting quarterly to discuss program enhancements, studies, and other floodplain matters. <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Flooding New and Evidence 1, 0, 10, 12, 12, 12, 12, 12, 12, 12, 12, 12, 12							
New and Existing	1, 8, 10, 13	Department	N/A	LOW		Ungoing	

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 10-15. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	7	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	High	High
2	5	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
3	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Low
4	7	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Low	Low
5	4	High	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Low
6	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	High
7	12	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
8	4	Medium	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
9	10	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
10	6	Low	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	Low	Medium
11	5	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	Low	Medium
12	5	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Low	Low
13	4	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Low	Low

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 10-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
			Action Addre	ssing Hazard, b	y Mitigation T	ype ^a		
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Ha	azards							
Landslide	CTO-6, 11	CTO-1, 2, 6		CTO-1, 3, 5	CTO-6, 8	CTO-5, 6, 8	CTO-1, 5	CTO-3, 8
Wildfire	CTO- 6, 7, 8, 10	CTO- 1, 3, 6, 7, 10	CTO- 7, 10	CTO- 1, 7	CTO-6, 8, 10	CTO-3, 6, 7	CTO-10	CTO-3, 7, 10
Medium-Ris	k Hazards							
Earthquake	CTO-2, 3, 6, 8, 9	CTO-1, 2, 6, 8, 9	CTO-5, 10	CTO-1, 2, 5, 9, 11, 12	CTO-1, 2, 6, 8, 9	CTO-1, 2, 3, 8, 9, 12	CTO-5, 7, 9, 11	CTO-1, 2, 3, 8, 12
Severe Storms	CTO-3, 6, 8, 11	CTO-1, 3, 6, 8		CTO-1	CTO-8	CTO-1, 6, 8		CTO-1, 3, 6
Severe Weather	CTO-3, 6, 9, 11, 12	CTO-1, 6, 9, 11, 12	CTO-10, 13	CTO-1, 9, 12	CTO-1, 6, 8, 11	CTO-1, 6, 8, 11, 12	CTO-9	CTO-1, 3, 9, 12
Flooding	CTO-2, 3, 4	CTO-1, 2, 4, 8, 9	CTO-7, 11	CTO-1, 2, 9, 11, 12	CTO-6, 8, 11, 12	CTO-1, 2, 6, 8, 9, 11, 12	CTO-2, 9, 11, 12, 13	CTO-1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 12, 13
Low-Risk Hazards								
Dam Failure	CTO-11, 12	CTO-1, 3, 6, 8, 9, 11, 12	CTO-9	CTO-1, 8, 9	CTO-1, 6, 8	CTO-1, 6, 11, 12	CTO-8, 9	CTO-1, 3, 6, 8
Drought					CTO-5	CTO-5		CTO-3

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

10.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 10-17 lists public outreach activities for Thousand Oaks which includes citywide communications and civic engagement activities for City departments, the press, and community members. Public outreach includes:

- City Websites
- Social Media
- Emergency Communications
- Media Relations
- Citywide Branding
- Press Releases
- Community Relations
- City Newsletters
- TOTV—Government Access Television
- Community Attitude Survey

Table 10-17. Local Public Outreach						
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved				
City Emergency Management E-Newsletter	6/29/21	1,100 subscribers				
City Sustainability E-Newsletter & Blog	6/29/21	10,400 subscribers				
City Scene E-Newsletter	7/1/21	1,500 subscribers				
Hazard Mitigation Description/Survey Link on City Website	7/1/21	N/A				
Chamber of Commerce E-Newsletter	8/21/21	2,500 subscribers				
American Public Works Association, Ventura County Chapter	8/22/21	900 subscribers				

10.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **Thousand Oaks Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **Emergency Operations Plan**—The EOP was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **Thousand Oaks General Plan**—This plan is being updated and is scheduled to be adopted by the City in FY 2022-23. Several sections of the Plan, including the Safety Element and its relation to the Climate and Environmental Action Plan were referenced in this Hazard Mitigation Plan.
- Climate Action & Environmental Plan—This plan was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

10.11 ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

The City transitioned to a new solid waste hauler (Athens) on January 1, 2022. The new residential and commercial hauler provides improved collection services and has added organics collection and composting. In addition, Athens offers pickup of household hazardous waste (HHW) from residences citywide. A new service that will reduce illegal HHW disposal and improve the City's recovery of unwanted chemicals out of the waste stream and homes.

The addition of residential HHW curbside supplements the existing City HHW facility at 2010 Conejo Center Drive, which offers free drop-off of HHW to Thousand Oaks residents and unincorporated county residents every Friday 9 am – 1 pm. Small businesses also use the facility 1-3 pm and pay for the cost of disposal further reducing the illegal disposal of toxic chemicals into the waste stream.

In November 2021 the City adopted a Water Shortage Contingency Ordinance and Resolution for a 15 percent voluntary water conservation level.



























11. CITY OF VENTURA

11.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Daniel Wall, Emergency Services Manager 501 Poli St. Ventura, CA 93001 Telephone: 805-223-1030 email: dwall@cityofventura.ca.gov

Alternate Point of Contact

Barry Fisher, Deputy City Manager 501 Poli St. Ventura, CA 93001 Telephone: 805-223-6873 Email: bfisher@cityofventura.ca.gov

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 11-1.

Name	Title				
Peter Gilli	Director, Community Development				
Neda Zayer	Deputy Director, Community Development				
Jonathan Wood	Permit Services Manager, Planning Development				
Phil Nelson	Director, Public Works				
Mary Joyce Ivers	Deputy Director, Public Works				
Jeff Hereford	Principal Civil Engineer				
Cody Stults	Environmental				
Susan Rungren	General Manager Ventura Water				
Linda Sumansky	Director, Ventura Water Pure				
Brett Reed	Fire Marshal, Ventura Fire Department				

Table 11-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members

11.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

11.2.1 Location and Features

The city of San Buenaventura is in Ventura County, California. The boundaries generally extend from Santa Barbara to Los Angeles along state route 101, the city, encompassing an area of 32.09 square miles. A California coastal community with its phenomenal climate, friendly people and spectacular coastline make Ventura a locale for those who appreciate and enjoy the outdoors.

11.2.2 History

Ventura is a coastal City, set against undeveloped hills and flanked by two free-flowing rivers, has been inhabited for thousands of years. Originally European explorers encountered the Chumash, while traveling along the Pacific coast. They witnessed the ocean navigation skill of the native people and their use of the abundant local resources from sea and land. In 1782, the eponymous Mission San Buenaventura was founded nearby, where it benefitted from the water of the Ventura River. The town grew around the mission compound and incorporated in 1866. The development of nearby oil fields began in the 1920s during which many designated landmark buildings were constructed. The mission and these buildings are at the center of a downtown that have become a cultural, retail, and residential district and visitor destination.

11.2.3 Governing Body Format

There are 7 members of the Ventura City Council, each serving a four-year term. Starting with the 2018 Election, four (4) Councilmembers were elected by Districts with the remaining three (3) Councilmembers elected by Districts in 2020. While elected by Districts, each member represents the interests of the City as a whole. The Ventura City Council assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; City Administration will oversee its implementation.

11.3 CURRENT TRENDS

11.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of Ventura as of January 2020 was 106,276. Since 2010, the population has decreased at an average annual rate of 0.09 percent.

11.3.2 Development

Development trends in the City of Ventura are focused on infill development, versus new land/hillside development. The City is looking towards main corridors for increased density and mixed-use development to accommodate the balance of residential and commercial needs. Adaptative reuse of industrial properties is also being considered for last mile distribution centers. Increase housing demands with available property will likely result in more multi-family projects. More flexible zoning will increase commercial and industrial development.

Table 11-2 summarizes development trends in the period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

11.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Table 11-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends						
Criterion	Response					
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?	No					
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan?	Yes					
If yes, describe land areas and dominant uses.	A 25.37-acre property located at the western terminus of Thille Street, just east of the Highway 101/ Highway 126 interchange and 75-acre property adjacent to Valentine road.				st of the lentine	
If yes, who currently has permitting authority over these areas?	County of Ventura					
Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years?	Yes					
If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas	Most of the redevelopment is occurring within the downtown area and the major corridors such as Main Street and Thompson Blvd. The projects are occurring on infill sites that are building multi-story mixed use or residential projects. Some of the development in the downtown area is close to fault lines. Most of the redevelopment areas are generally outside of the high fire areas.					
How many permits for new construction were		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
issued in your jurisdiction since the	Single Family	56	255	60	7	4
preparation of the previous hazard mitigation	Multi-Family	31	59	11	14	36
	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	1	1	5	0	4
	Total	88	315	76	21	44
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	 Special Flood Hazard Areas: 36 Landslide: 12 High Liquefaction Areas: 62 Tsunami Inundation Area: 21 Wildfire Risk Areas: 398 					
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	Development trends in the City of Ventura are focused on infill development, (versus new land/hillside development). Looking towards main corridors for increased density and mixed-use development to accommodate to balance residential and commercial needs. Adaptative reuse of industrial properties for last mile distribution. Increase housing demands with available property will likely result in more multi-family projects. More flexible zoning will increase commercial and industrial development.			rersus Jensity nercial se projects.		

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions.

The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 11-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 11-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 11-5.

- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 11-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 11-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 11-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 11-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 11-10.

Table 11-3. Planning a	and Regulator	ry Capability		
	Local	Other Jurisdiction	State	Integration
	Authority	Authority	Mandated	Opportunity?
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements				
Building Code	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<i>Comment:</i> Sec. 12.115.010, Adoption of California Building Code	, 2019 Edition. (Ord. No. 2019-011, § 2	2, 10-7-19)	
Zoning Code	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Division 24 of the Municipal Code (Code 1971, update	d numerous tim	es, last updated Ord. N	lo. 2020-021, §	1, 8-3-2020)
Subdivisions	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Division 26 of the Municipal Code (Code 1971, § 8211 2015-006, 6-8-15)	through 8231.1	8, updated numerous t	imes, last updat	ed Ord. No.
Stormwater Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Chapter 8.600, Stormwater Quality Management Ordin	nance 99-1 adop	oted 1-11-99		
Post-Disaster Recovery	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Emergency Management Sec. 2.370.080., Emergency	response May	2021		
Real Estate Disclosure	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: Division 24 of the Municipal Code (Code 1971, update	d numerous tim	es, last updated Ord. N	lo. 2020-021, §	1, 8-3-2020)
Growth Management	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Save Open Space and Agricultural Resources initiative	e adopted 1995.	Sec. 24.550.010 (Cod	e 1971, § 15.85	0.010)
Site Plan Review	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Division 24 of the Municipal Code (Code 1971, update	d numerous tim	es, last updated Ord. N	lo. 2020-021, §	1, 8-3-2020)
Environmental Protection	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Sec. 2R.450.750 (Res. No. 2002-57, § 4, 9-9-02)				
Flood Damage Prevention	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Floodplain Regulations, Municipal Code Part 4 Chapte	er 12.430 (Ord.)	No. 2021-001, § 1, 1-1	1-21)	
Emergency Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Emergency Management Sec. 2.370.080, Emergency	response May 2	2021		
Climate Change	No	No	No	Yes
Comment: None				
Planning Documents				
General Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Is the plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140? No Comment: Undergoing comprehensive General Plan that will brin	g the Plan into c	compliance with AB 214	10	
Capital Improvement Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
How often is the plan updated? Annually Comment: Current plan covers 6-year period from 2020-2026		-		

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Disaster Debris Management Plan	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Ventura County Disaster Recovery Plan, Adopted by I	BOS in April 201	9		
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: The Ventura County Watershed Protection creates an	d maintains coui	ntywide plans		
Stormwater Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<i>Comment:</i> The City of Ventura has joined other jurisdictions to for and is named as a co-permittee under a revised count permit for stormwater discharges issued by the Region	rm the Ventura (tywide municipal nal Water Quality	Countywide Stormwate National Pollutant Disc Control Board in 2010	r Quality Manag charge Eliminati) (Order R4-201	ement Program ion System 10-0108)
Urban Water Management Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan approved June	14, 2021			
Habitat Conservation Plan	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
Comment: The city does not have an existing habitat plan				
Economic Development Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Existing Gap plan developed 2018, funded Econ Dev	plan request for	proposals anticipated 2	2022 Spring	
Shoreline Management Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: General Plan. Surfers Point Managed Retreat Project	Chapter 24.310,	Coastal Protection (CI	P) Overlay Zone))
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: Current effort to develop a plan due Jan 2022				
Urban Forest Management Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: City of San Buenaventura Master Tree Plan, November	er 9, 2020			
Climate Action Plan	Yes	No	No	No
<i>Comment:</i> Preparation and adoption of a Climate Action Plan is p adopted in 2023.	part of the compr	ehensive General Plan	update that is s	scheduled to be
Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: Emergency Operations Plan was published and appro	ved May 10, 202	21		
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: The city does not have a complete THIRA.				·
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: Incorporated into the EOP May 2021				-
Continuity of Operations Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
<i>Comment:</i> Incorporated into the EOP June 2021				
Public Health Plan	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: County of Ventura Health Care Agency Public Health Emergency Response Plan (ERP), 2019				
Other—Tsunami Plan	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
<i>Comment:</i> The County of Ventura has an existing plan that descr document is required within the coming year 2022.	ibes each City ro	ple and has been adopt	ted locally. A re	vision of this

Table 11-4. Development and Permitting Capability		
Criterion	Response	
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits? If no, who does? If yes, which department? Community Development	Yes	
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	Yes	
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	No	

Table 11-5. Fiscal Capability		
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?	
Community Development Block Grants	Yes	
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes	
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes	
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes	
If yes, specify: Water, Sewer, Electrical Services fees for new construction		
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes	
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes	
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	Yes	
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No	
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes	
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes	

	Table 11-6. Administrative and Technical Capability	
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Community Development / Chief Building Official and Public Works / Principal Civil Engine	er
Engineers or professionals tra	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works/ Principal Civil Engineer, Community Development/Planner/inspector	
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works/ Principal Civil Engineer, Community Development/Planner/inspector	
Staff with training in benefit-cost analysis		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Finance / Finance Director	
Surveyors		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Works/ Surveyor	
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Finance and Technology Department GIS/ Senior GIS Analyst	
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	No
Emergency manager		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	City Manager's Office, Emergency Services Manager	
Grant writers		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	City Manager's Office and Multiple other departments	

Table 11-7. Education and Outreach Capability		
Criterion	Response	
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes	
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes	
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? If yes, briefly describe: On our website, there are references to the County OES website wherein centralized training and can be found related to hazard mitigation education.	Yes nd outreach	
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe: On our website, there are references to the County OES website wherein centralized training and can be found related to hazard mitigation education.	Yes nd outreach	
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? If yes, briefly describe: The city of Ventura is currently developing a CERT team	Yes	
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? If yes, briefly describe: VCALERT, EVERBRIDGE, Email, Mail and Door Knocking	Yes	
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe: VCALERT, Emergency Notification System, VCSOES, WEA system	Yes	

Table 11-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance				
Criterion	Response			
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Public Works			
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Public Works/Senior Engineer			
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	Yes			
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	January 11, 2021			
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements?	Meets			
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	12-4-17 Thomas Fire			
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed?	No			
Are any Risk MAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction? If so, state what they are. and Santa Clara River flooding	No udying the Ventura			
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction?	Yes			
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program?	No			
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program? No	No			
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? <i>a</i> What is the insurance in force? \$161.828,500 What is the premium in force? \$374,421	471			
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction?What were the total payments for losses?\$660,191	62			
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021				

Table 11-9. Community Classifications			
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified
FIPS Code	Yes	00611165042	N/A
DUNS #	Yes	039974761	N/A
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A
Public Protection	Yes	ISO3	2019
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A
Tsunami Ready	Yes	N/A	2012

I able 11-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change			
Criterion	Jurisdiction Ratings		
Technical Capacity			
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts Comment:	Low		
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts Comment:	Low		
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities Comment:	Low		
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory Comment: City of Ventura has a current Greenhouse Gas inventory.	Medium		
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts Comment: Community Development/Public Works	Medium		
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks Medium Comment: Public Works / Environmental Sustainability—The City has partnerships with a number of regional organizations that support greenhouse gas reduction efforts, including the Ventura County Regional Energy Alliance, Clean Power Alliance, and Tri-County Regional Energy Network (3CRen). The City has also partnered with the Beach Erosion Authority for Clean Oceans and Nourishment (BEACON), Surfrider and other organizations to complete the Surfers Point Managed Retreat Project.			
Implementation Capacity			
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes Comment:	Low		
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts Comment: Draft Energy Action Plan completed in July 2021	Low		
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts Comment: The current update to the General plan has addressed strategies for adaptation to impacts.	Medium		
Champions for climate action in local government departments Comment: Environmental Sustainability leads the effort on behalf of the city.	Low		
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies Comment: City of Ventura city council is supportive as well as local community-based organizations and environment	Low ntal organizations.		
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation Comment:	Low		
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted Comment:	Unsure		

Criterion	Jurisdiction Ratings	
Public Capacity	Ĭ	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Low	
Comment:		
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts	Medium	
<i>Comment:</i> Residents are supportive of adaptation efforts, but when implementation become restrictive, they are rel course of action.	ticent to advance the	
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts Medium		
Comment: The vulnerable populations within the city may not be able to relocate out of a flood-prone area (homeles but residents with more resources may be more able to rebuild, retrofit, or otherwise protect their home.	ss encampments),	
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium	
<i>Comment:</i> The City has water shortage surcharge rates in addition to the base water rates. These surcharges help budget during drought stages.	to fund the water	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts Low		
Comment:		
a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist but is not used or could use some improvement Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known	ent; to assign a rating.	

11.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

11.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- City of Ventura: General Plan
- City of Ventura: Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)
- Ventura County: Operational Area Emergency Operations Plan

11.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- **City of Ventura: General Plan**—This comprehensive effort is underway and will be integrated into this effort to be compliant with AB2140.
- **City of Ventura: Evacuation plan**—This comprehensive effort is predicated on grant funds and will be initiated in FY20/21 and will encompass a multi-hazard perspective and routes with appropriate stakeholder/community input.
- Visit Ventura: Tourist and Visitor disaster plan—This effort will be a collaboration between the following: Visit Ventura, Chamber of Commerce, Hoteliers and City Emergency Management.
- **City of Ventura: Citizen Emergency Response Team (CERT)**—This effort will be a collaboration between the following: CERT volunteers, City staff, community-based organizations, with the existing DRAFT CERT team manual.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

11.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

11.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 11-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 11-11. Past Natural Hazard Events			
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
Wind Event	N/A	January 19, 2021	Strong surface high pressure in the Great Basin helped to generate a moderate Santa Ana wind event across Southern California.
Wildfire	N/A	2020	Strong surface high pressure building in the Great Basin generated strong and gusty Santa Ana winds across sections of Ventura and Los Angeles counties.
COVID-19	DR-4482	January 20, 2020. Continuing	Ongoing
High Wind	N/A	2020	Strong surface high pressure in the Great Basin along with strong north to northeast flow aloft generated strong Santa Ana winds across Ventura and Los Angeles counties. North to northeast wind gusts up to 83 mph were reported in the mountains while gusts to 59 mph were reported across the coastal plain.
Wildfire	N/A	2019	Strong surface high pressure building in the Great Basin generated strong and gusty Santa Ana winds across sections of Ventura and Los Angeles counties.
Wind Event	N/A	2018	Strong surface high pressure building in the Great Basin generated strong and gusty Santa Ana winds across sections of Ventura and Los Angeles counties.

Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment	
Winter Storm	N/A	2018	Strong surface high pressure in the Great Basin helped to generate a moderate Santa Ana wind event across Southern California. Strong northeast winds were reported across the mountains and valleys of Ventura and Los Angeles Counties.	
Tornado	N/A	2018	A powerful winter storm brought significant rain, snow and wind to the area. Rainfall totals ranged from 1 to 2 inches across coastal and valleys areas with 2 to 4 inches in the foothills and mountains. With snow levels dropping to between 2500 and 3500 feet, significant snowfall was reported in the mountains (up to 1 to 2 feet) and even the Antelope Valley (4 to 8 inches). Numerous road closures due to winter storm conditions were reported, including Interstate 5 through the Grapevine as well as Highways 14 and 138. Additionally, thunderstorms generated a waterspout over the coastal waters as well as a very weak tornado over Ventura Harbor.	
Flash Flood	N/A	2018	High pressure over the four-corners region resulted in an extended monsoonal flow pattern across Southern California. For several days, strong thunderstorms produced heavy rain, flash flooding and large hail across parts of Southern California.	
Debris Flow	N/A	2018	A powerful early-season winter storm moves across Southwestern California on Halloween night. The storm produced some significant rainfall with amounts in the coastal areas ranging from 0.25 to 1.50 while the mountains received up to 2.00. In the Camarillo area, near the Springs burn scar, a mud/debris flow occurred. Otherwise just some minor nuisance flooding was reported.	
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows	DR-4353	December 4, 2017- January 31, 2018	Strong surface high pressure building in the Great Basin generated strong and gusty Santa Ana winds across sections of Ventura and Los Angeles counties. North to northeast wind gusts up to 73 mph were reported. During this event, the Thomas Fire ignited across Ventura County, eventually spreading into Santa Barbara County. The Thomas Fire burned 500+ homes in the City of Ventura and destroyed infrastructure including roads, utilities, and utility distribution networks including telecom.	
Thunderstorm	N/A	2017	A powerful winter storm brought heavy rain and snow, flash flooding and gusty winds to the area. Rainfall totals from this storm generally ranged between 2 and 6 inches with locally higher amounts in some foothill areas. With such rainfall amounts, there was significant snowfall totals in the local mountains with up to 28 inches of snow reported at the resort level. Additionally, the heavy rain did generate several flash flooding events including several mud and debris flows.	
Severe Storm	DR-1267	January 7 – 11, 2005	Flooding and debris flows	
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	January 17 – November 30, 1994	Power and communications disruptions, damage to structures	

11.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 11-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 11-12. Hazard Risk Ranking					
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category		
1	Landslide	33	High		
2	Earthquake	32	Medium		
3	Severe Storm	24	Medium		
4	Severe Weather	24	Medium		
5	Flooding	18	Medium		
6	Wildfire	18	Medium		
7	Dam Failure	12	Low		
8	Sea Level Rise	12	Low		
9	Tsunami	10	Low		
10	Drought	9	Low		

11.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 4
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: N/A
- Number of Repetitive-Loss or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: N/A

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Unreinforced Masonry and Soft Story Structures—Ventura has several unreinforced masonry buildings and Soft Story buildings within the city limits. These buildings are subject to severe damage or structural collapse during a moderate to severe earthquake.
- Street and Urban Flooding—There are numerous areas of the city that flood to varying degrees during periods of high rain. The effects of this flooding range from street closures to damage to property, vehicles and buildings.
- **Power Outages/Emergency Power**—Local power outages including public safety power shutoffs (PSPS) have resulted from high winds and storm conditions as well as from the effects of wildland fire in the region. Many key city buildings including the Main City Hall and Council Chambers buildings have no back-up power or emergency generators.
- **Debris Flows**—Following heavy rains and winter storms, substantial debris flows have occurred in the Santa Clara River, Ventura River, as well as other local streams and culverts. Debris flows following wildland fires are particularly bad and can require removal of material from streams, streets, culverts and beaches.
- Liquefaction Potential—Nearly the entire City of Ventura is in a "Liquefaction Zone". The effects and damage caused by seismic activities can be amplified resulting in increased damage to buildings and infrastructure.
- **Homeless Population**—A significant number of persons commonly defined as "Homeless" live in the Santa Clara River and other undeveloped areas. During wildland fires, storms, and flooding these individuals are at great risk.
- **Tsunami Awareness and Notification**—Ventura has a large visitor and tourist population who may not be aware of the tsunami risk.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

11.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 11-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 11-13. Status of Previous Pla	n Actions			
		Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update	
Action Item	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
OA 4 —Relocate or reinforce bike trails, parking lots and other beach access amenities away from the shoreline to restore the beach/shoreline in sea-level rise/coastal erosion areas.			✓	VEN-1
Comment: The Surfers Point Managed Retreat Project Phase 1 has been complete complete. The City is pursuing grants for construction. Seaside Wastewa	d. The Phase 2 ater Transfer S	2 design and p tation relocatio	ermitting is n in explora	nearly atory phase.
OA 9 —Identify potentially vulnerable public and private utility systems including electric, gas, oil, water, sewer and communication. Upgrade vulnerable systems to ensure the operation and timely restoration of essential systems to reasonable levels of service.			~	VEN-11
Comment: City of Ventura has multiple projects that meet criteria Southern Calife hardening their utility infrastructure. SoCalGas is also upgrading their fa assessed through current Master Plan evaluations and projects develop	ornia Edison h cilities in the ci ed for City CIP	as identified a ity. Water and to address vul	nd is in the Wastewate nerabilities	e process of r utilities are
OA 11 —Develop and implement plans to increase the building owner's general knowledge of and appreciation for the value of seismic upgrading of the building's structural and nonstructural elements. Comment: Due to staffing changes this action was not performed			~	VEN-22
 OA 19—Maintain vegetation management program that provides vegetation management services to elderly, disabled, or low-income property owners who lack the resources to remove flammable vegetation from around their homes. Comment: Due to limited funding this initiative was not completed. 			✓	VEN-17

11.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 11-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 11-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 11-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

	-	Table 11-14. ⊦	lazard Mitigat	ion Action	Plan Matrix	
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline
Action VEN-1—Wh have experienced re	ere appropriate, suppropriate, suppropriate, suppropriate, suppropriate, suppropriate, suppropriate, suppropri	pport retrofitting, /or are located in	purchase or reloc high- or medium	ation of stru -risk hazard	ctures located in hazard areas, prioritizir areas.	ng those that
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthqu	ake, Severe Stor	m, Severe Weath	ner, Flooding	, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Sea Level Rise,	Tsunami
New & Existing	1, 4, 6, 9, 10, 11, 16	Public Works		High	Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Long Term
Action VEN-2—Incorporate consideration of the FEMA 100-year tide and sea level rise, and climate change-driven extreme storms, into land use planning, shoreline development and dredging. This includes new policies by local jurisdictions, and County and City actions regarding their General Plans, visit Ventura tourist plan, Climate-related Plans, and the development applications.						
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 10, 15, 17, 19	Community Development	Public Works	Medium	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing
Action VEN-3—Inte community, includin General Plan, and o	egrate the hazard m g Emergency Opera ngoing plan mainte	itigation plan into ations Plan, Com nance	other plans, ordi munity Climate A	nances and ction plan, d	programs that dictate land use decisions owntown specific plan, Citywide Evacua	s in the tion Plan,
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	Landslide, Earthqu Drought	iake, Severe Stor	m, Severe Weat	ner, Flooding	g, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Sea Level Rise,	Tsunami,
New & Existing	1, 2, 10, 11, 12, 15, 16, 19	Community Development	City Manager	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing
Action VEN-4—Corprograms that, at a ridentification and ma	ntinue to maintain g minimum, meet the apping updates, and Severe Storm, Sev	ood standing and NFIP requiremer d provide public a vere Weather, Flo	l compliance und hts: Enforce the fl ssistance/information oding, Dam Failu	er the NFIP ood damage ation on floo ure. Sea Lev	through implementation of floodplain ma prevention ordinance, participate in floo dplain requirements and impacts. el Rise. Tsunami	nagement Idplain
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 17, 18, 19	Public works		Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing
 Action VEN-5—Identify and pursue strategies to increase adaptive capacity to climate change including but not limited to the following: Adopt a Climate Action Plan to reflect new State legislation, changing priorities, and environmental sustainability and greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction policies and goals. Adopt modifications to existing plans and procedures to meet climate change issues and impacts. 						following: ៅ
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	Severe Storm, Sev	vere Weather, Flo	oding, Wildfire, S	Sea Level Ris	se, Drought	I
New & Existing	1, 3, 4, 9, 10, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 19	Community Development (for the Climate Action Plan) Public Works	Ventura Water	Medium	Water and Sanitation Funds	Short Term
Action VEN-6—Adv the communities and shoreline, as well as <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	vance long-term res d critical assets adja s provide environme Landslide, Severe	ilience to the pop acent to San Bue ental, recreation, of Storm, Severe W	ulation (including naventura Beach community/conne /eather, Flooding	homeless ir , Santa Clara ectivity enhar , Sea Level I	ndividuals) to sea level rise and extreme a River, Ventura River, and nearby area ncements where possible. Rise, Tsunami	storms for s of the
Existing	1, 3, 4, 9, 10, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 19	City Manager office		Medium	General Funds, Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Long lerm
Action VEN-7—City facilities, including c purchasing stational	y Energy, Power, ar ommunications equ ry generators for cri	nd Communication ipment, for contir tical facilities.	n Systems Reliat	bility. Ensure ent and servi	adequate emergency power and fuel at ces. Reliability will include but is not limi	critical City ted to
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthqu	lake, Severe Stor	m, Severe Weath	ner, Flooding	J, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Ísunami	Chart Tame
INEW & EXISTING	1, 2, 7, 10, 19	City Manager		wealum	EIVIPG, DHS, Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP), CDBG Mitigation, General Funds	SHULLIEL

Action VEN-8—Identify appropriate facility/location for of the City's Emergency Operations Center to ensure state of readiness and designate a back-up Emergency Operations Center and associated systems. This should include the rebuilding or replacement of the current facility to maintain the Emergency Operations Capacity. Hazards Mitigated: Landslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Tsunami New & Existing 1, 8, 12, 17, 19 City Manager N/A Low EMPG, DHS, BRIC, CDBG Mitigation, General Funds Short Tegeneral Funds Action VEN-9—Consider participation in incentive-based programs such as Tree City, TsunamiReady, and StormReady. Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Tsunami New 1, 2, 19 City Manager N/A Low Staff Time, General Funds Short Tegeneral Funds Action VEN-10—Develop and implement a program to capture perishable data after significant events (e.g., high water marks, preliminary damage estimates, damage photos, snapshot in time status) to support future mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the hazard mitigation plan Hazards Mitigated: Landslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Tsunami New 1, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10, 11, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19 City Manager NA Medium EM Budget, Staff Time Short Tegeneration and timely restoration of essential systems to reasonable levels of service. Including equipmen and critical facilities, (e.g. pump stations, generators, t	line							
Hazards Mitigated: New & ExistingLandslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, TsunamiShort TerNew & Existing1, 8, 12, 17, 19City ManagerN/ALowEMPG, DHS, BRIC, CDBG Mitigation, General FundsShort TerAction VEN-9—Consider participation in incentive-based programs such as Tree City, TsunamiReady, and StormReady.Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, TsunamiShort TerNew1, 2, 19City ManagerN/ALowStaff Time, General FundsShort TerAction VEN-10—Develop and implement a program to capture perishable data after significant events (e.g., high water marks, preliminary damage estimates, damage photos, snapshot in time status) to support future mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the hazard mitigation planCity ManagerNAMediumEM Budget, Staff TimeShort TerHazards Mitigated: New1, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10, 11, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19City ManagerNAMediumEM Budget, Staff TimeShort TerAction VEN-11—Identify and upgrade potentially vulnerable public and private utility systems, including electric, gas, oil, sewer, and communication, to ensure the operation and timely restoration of essential systems to reasonable levels of service. Including equipmen and critical facilities, (e.g. pump stations, generators, tide gates, stream gages, open channel, and culvert/pipeline infrastructure), toImprove community resilience and response to emergencies.Hazards Mitigated: Landslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, TsunamiLowShort Ter	Action VEN-8—Identify appropriate facility/location for of the City's Emergency Operations Center to ensure state of readiness and designate a back-up Emergency Operations Center and associated systems. This should include the rebuilding or replacement of the current facility to maintain the Emergency Operations Capacity.							
New & Existing 1, 8, 12, 17, 19 City Manager N/A Low EMPG, DHS, BRIC, CDBG Mitigation, General Funds Short Tere Action VEN-9—Consider participation in incentive-based programs such as Tree City, TsunamiReady, and StormReady. Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Tsunami Mexicon VEN-9—Consider participation in incentive-based programs such as Tree City, TsunamiReady, and StormReady. Measure N/A Low Staff Time, General Funds Short Tere New 1, 2, 19 City Manager N/A Low Staff Time, General Funds Short Tere Action VEN-10—Develop and implement a program to capture perishable data after significant events (e.g., high water marks, preliminary damage estimates, damage photos, snapshot in time status) to support future mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the hazard mitigation plan Hazards Mitigated: Landslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Tsunami New 1, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10, 11, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19 City Manager NA Medium EM Budget, Staff Time Short Tere Action VEN-11—Identify and upgrade potentially vulnerable public and private utility systems, including electric, gas, oil, sewer, and communication, to ensure the operation and timely restoration of essential systems to reasonable levels of service. Including equipment and critical facilities, (e.g. pump stations, generators, tide gates, stream gages, open channel, and cul								
Action VEN-9—Consider participation in incentive-based programs such as Tree City, TsunamiReady, and StormReady. Hazards Mitigated: Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Tsunami New 1, 2, 19 City Manager N/A Low Staff Time, General Funds Short Te Action VEN-10—Develop and implement a program to capture perishable data after significant events (e.g., high water marks, preliminary damage estimates, damage photos, snapshot in time status) to support future mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the hazard mitigation plan Hazards Mitigated: Landslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Tsunami New 1, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10, 11, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19 City Manager NA Medium EM Budget, Staff Time Short Te Action VEN-11—Identify and upgrade potentially vulnerable public and private utility systems, including electric, gas, oil, sewer, and communication, to ensure the operation and timely restoration of essential systems to reasonable levels of service. Including equipment and critical facilities, (e.g. pump stations, generators, tide gates, stream gages, open channel, and culvert/pipeline infrastructure), to Improve community resilience and response to emergencies. Hazards Mitigated: Landslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Tsunami	īerm							
Hazards Mitigated: NewSevere Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, TsunamiNew1, 2, 19City ManagerN/ALowStaff Time, General FundsShort TerAction VEN-10—Develop and implement a program to capture perishable data after significant events (e.g., high water marks, preliminary damage estimates, damage photos, snapshot in time status) to support future mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the hazard mitigation planHazards Mitigated: Hazards Mitigated: NewLandslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, TsunamiNew1, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10, 11, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19City ManagerNAMediumEM Budget, Staff TimeShort TerAction VEN-11—Identify and upgrade potentially vulnerable public and private utility systems, including electric, gas, oil, sewer, and communication, to ensure the operation and timely restoration of essential systems to reasonable levels of service. Including equipment and critical facilities, (e.g. pump stations, generators, tide gates, stream gages, open channel, and culvert/pipeline infrastructure), to Improve community resilience and response to emergencies.Hazards Mitigated: Hazards Mitigated: Landslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Tsunami	Action VEN-9—Consider participation in incentive-based programs such as Tree City, TsunamiReady, and StormReady.							
New1, 2, 19City ManagerN/ALowStaff Time, General FundsShort TerAction VEN-10—Develop and implement a program to capture perishable data after significant events (e.g., high water marks, preliminary damage estimates, damage photos, snapshot in time status) to support turue mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the hazard mitigation planHazards Mitigated: NewLandslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, TsunamiNew1, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10, 11, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19City ManagerNAMediumEM Budget, Staff TimeShort TerAction VEN-11—Identify and upgrade potentially vulnerable public and private utility systems, including electric, gas, oil, sewer, and communication, to ensure the operation and timely restoration of essential systems to reasonable levels of service. Including equipment and critical facilities, (e.g. pump stations, generators, tide gates, stream gages, open channel, and culvert/pipeline infrastructure), to Improve community resilience and response to emergencies.Hazards Mitigated: Landslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Tsunami								
Action VEN-10—Develop and implement a program to capture perishable data after significant events (e.g., high water marks, preliminary damage estimates, damage photos, snapshot in time status) to support future mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the hazard mitigation plan Hazards Mitigated: Landslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Tsunami New 1, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10, 11, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19 City Manager NA Medium EM Budget, Staff Time Short Teme Action VEN-11—Identify and upgrade potentially vulnerable public and private utility systems, including electric, gas, oil, sewer, and communication, to ensure the operation and timely restoration of essential systems to reasonable levels of service. Including equipment and critical facilities, (e.g. pump stations, generators, tide gates, stream gages, open channel, and culvert/pipeline infrastructure), to Improve community resilience and response to emergencies. Hazards Mitigated: Landslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Tsunami	ſerm							
Action VEN-11—Identify and upgrade potentially vulnerable public and private utility systems, including electric, gas, oil, sewer, and communication, to ensure the operation and timely restoration of essential systems to reasonable levels of service. Including equipmen and critical facilities, (e.g. pump stations, generators, tide gates, stream gages, open channel, and culvert/pipeline infrastructure), to Improve community resilience and response to emergencies. <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Landslide, Earthquake, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Tsunami	on Ferm							
	₽nt,							
New & Existing 9, 10, 11, 13 Public Works NA Medium Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP), City Capital Project Funding Long-te	erm							
Action VEN-12—Support green infrastructure projects that enhance resiliency to natural disasters and incorporate green design eleme into hazard mitigation projects where feasible. <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Flooding, Wildfire, Sea Level Rise, Drought	ients							
New & Existing 1, 5, 13, 14, 15, Public Works N/A Medium DHS, EMPG, General Funds, Clean Short Te California, Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	īerm							
Action VEN-13—CIP Complete construction and oversee ongoing operation, maintenance, and mitigation efforts for the Ventura Water Pure Program, which will result in the Identification of strategies to enhance potable reuse infrastructure planning/implementation.								
New & Existing1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 13, 15Ventura WaterCommunity DevelopmentMedium SeriesGeneral Funds, Water Grants, Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP)Long ter	erm							
Action VEN-14—CIP Complete permitting and construction of the Hall Canyon Channel, Drainage Basin Improvement Project, which will address storm-related flooding.								
Initial and similar and severe storm, severe storm, severe weather, hoodingNew & Existing6, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15Public WorksN/AMediumGeneral Funds, Grant Funding-FEMALong Te HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	erm							
Action VEN-15—CIP Emergency Egress. Main Street Bridge replacement project, Olivas Park drive extension and associated infrastructure. Existing bridge is not up to current seismic standards. <i>Hazards Mitigated:</i> Earthquake								
New & Existing6, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15Public WorksN/AHigh Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP)Long Te Long Te	erm							

Benefits New or	Obiectives Met		Support	Estimated		
Existing Assets		Lead Agency	Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline
Action VEN-16—CI	P Continue to Ident	ify and plan upgr	ades to existing a	and potentia	water wells and resources.	
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthqu Drought	ake, Severe Stor	m, Severe Weatl	ner, Flooding	g, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Sea Level Rise,	Tsunami,
New & Existing	3, 9, 10, 13	Ventura Water	N/A	High	Water Grants, State Grants, General Funds, Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Long Term
Action VEN-17—Develop a targeted wildfire awareness public information program for property owners, including managing potential fuel sources on their privately owned property. (e.g. Developing a program that assists elderly, disabled, or low-income property owners who lack the resources to remove flammable vegetation from around their homes)						
New & Existing	2 4 5 8 10 12	Fire	Parks	Medium	General Funds, Clean California Grant	Short Term
Action VEN-18_Im	2, 4, 5, 6, 10, 12	asuras on develo	nors Incroaso of	forts to rodu	ce landslides and erosion in existing and	d futuro
 development throug Educating desig Adopting codes Hazards Mitigated: 	h continuing educat gn professionals an and standards to l Landslide, Severe	d developers on d developers on mit new developi Storm, Flooding,	fessionals on mit mitigation strateg ment in areas ide Sea Level Rise,	igation strate lies for existi entified as high Tsunami	egies. Ing development in identified hazard area gh-risk for landslides or erosion.	3S.
	10, 17, 19	Development	PUDIIC WORKS	LOW	Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short Term
Action VEN-19-M	utual Aid, Participat	e in general mutu	ial-aid agreemen	ts with adjoi	ning jurisdictions for cooperative respons	se to fires,
floods, earthquakes,	, and other disaster	S				
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthqu	ake, Severe Stor	m, Flooding, Wild	dfire, Dam F	ailure, Tsunami	
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 8, 12, 19	Fire	N/A	Low	Staff Time	Short Term
Action VEN-20—Through the City's Joint Powers Authority Fire/Rescue provider, the City of Ventura Fire Department, adopt the most current California codes and local regulations, conduct annual inspections of mandated occupies including multi-family dwellings (I.e. apartments, condos), hotels/motels, and schools to ensure compliance with fire/life safety and hazardous materials requirements, and including inspections of residential care facilities done as requested by of the Department of Social Services. Additionally, perform hazardous materials annual or three-year inspections of sites containing hazardous materials over specified thresholds as a Participating Acanev in the Colifornia Lifed Department of approximate applicable other participating.						the most igs (I.e. nts, and form Participating
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire	0 ,				
New & Existing	1, 2, 12, 16, 17, 19	Fire	N/A	High	General Funds, Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP), DHS, Fire funds	Long Term
Action VEN-21—Retrofit Fire Facilities in accordance with identified gaps found in the Fire Department facilities Structural Analysis, which shows each City fire facility and its associated compliance-related deficits related to local regulations and industry standards.						
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthqu	ake, Severe Stor	m, Severe Weatl	ner, Flooding	g, Wildfire, Dam Failure, Sea Level Rise,	Tsunami
New & Existing	1, 2, 12, 16, 17, 19	Fire	N/A	High	Fire Budget, General Fund, Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP), DHS grants	Short Term
Action VEN-22—St masonry, and soft s including but not lim	udy the City's existi story building, and ir ited to unreinforced	ng infrastructure, nstall new infrastr masonry building	identify sources ucture to the late gs.	of potential st seismic si	funding to upgrade its older facilities, Un tandards under its Seismic Improvement	reinforced Plan
New & Existing	1, 4, 6, 9, 10, 11, 19	Community Development	Public Works	High	General Funds, Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP), DHS, Fire funds	Short Term

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline
Action VEN-23-Im	prove Tsunami Awa	areness and Notif	ication capacity	within popula	ation and visitors to the City of Ventura.	
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Tsuna	imi				
New & Existing	1, 4, 6, 9, 10, 11,	City Manager		High	General Funds, Grant Funding-FEMA	Short Term
	19				HMA (BRIC, HMGP), DHS, Fire funds	

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 11-15. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
VEN-1	7	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Low	Medium
VEN-2	9	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	No	Medium	Low
VEN-3	8	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
VEN-4	13	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
VEN-5	11	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	No	Medium	Low
VEN-6	11	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Low	Medium
VEN-7	5	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
	5	High	Medium	Ves	Ves	Ves	Medium	High
	2	Modium	Low	Voc	No	Vos	High	Low
	3	Medium	LUW	Tes	NO	fes	піўн	LOW
VEN-10	13	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	No	Medium	Low
VEN-11	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Low	Medium
VEN-12	6	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
VEN-13	7	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Low	Medium
VEN-14	7	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Low	Medium
VEN-15	7	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Low	Medium
VEN-16	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Low	Medium
VEN-17	6	Low	Medium	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium
VEN-18	3	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
VEN-19	6	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
VEN-20	6	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium
VEN-21	6	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
VEN-22	6	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Low	High
VEN-23	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Low	High
- C								

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 11-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a								
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazar	ds							
Landslide	VEN-18	VEN-1, 6, 11, 21	VEN-6, 18		VEN-7, 8, 19		VEN-16	VEN-3, 10
Medium-Risk Ha	zards							
Earthquake		VEN-1, 11, 15, 21, 22	VEN-23		VEN-7, 8, 19		VEN-16	VEN-3, 10, 22, 23
Severe Storms	VEN-4, 18	VEN-1, 6, 11, 21	VEN-6, 18	VEN-12	VEN-7, 8, 19	VEN-14	VEN-12, 16	VEN-2, 3, 5, 9, 10
Severe Weather	VEN-4, 18	VEN-1, 6, 11, 21	VEN-6, 18	VEN-12	VEN-7, 8, 19	VEN-14	VEN-12, 16	VEN-3, 5, 9, 10
Flooding	VEN-4	VEN-1, 6, 11, 21	VEN-6, 18	VEN-12	VEN-7, 8, 19	VEN-14	VEN-12, 16	VEN-2, 3, 5, 9, 10
Wildfire	VEN-20	VEN-1, 11, 21	VEN-17	VEN-12	VEN-7, 8, 19		VEN-12, 16	VEN-3, 5, 9, 10
Low-Risk Hazar	ds							
Dam Failure	VEN-4	VEN-1, 11, 21			VEN-7, 8, 19		VEN-16	VEN-3, 10
Sea Level Rise	VEN-4, 18	VEN-1, 6, 21	VEN-6, 18	VEN-12			VEN-12, 16	VEN-2, 3, 5
Tsunami	VEN-4, 18	VEN-1, 6, 11, 21	VEN-6, 18, 23		VEN-7, 8, 19	VEN-13		VEN-3, 9, 10, 23
Drought				VEN-12			VEN-12, 16	VEN-3, 5

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

11.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 11-17 lists public outreach activities in connection with this hazard mitigation plan update for this jurisdiction.

Table 11-17. Local Public Outreach			
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved	
Social media link and website outreach for the public survey	9-28	118	

11.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **City of San Buenaventura General Plan**—The General plan is under revision and has been aligned to be compliant with AB2140.
- **City of San Buenaventura Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.

- Health and Safety Code Section 13146—Specifies the inspections the Fire Department is mandated by state law to perform annually.
- California Code of Regulations Title 27—Specifies hazardous materials regulations enforced by the Ventura Fire Department as a Participating Agency in the statewide Certified Unified Program.
- California Government Code 51179-82—Specifies fire defensible requirements around structures.
- California, Amending Division 12, Part 4, of the San Buenaventura Municipal Code, entitled "Floodplain Regulations" to comply with FEMA revisions to those regulations to meet the FEMA Model Ordinance in conjunction with the new California Coastal Analysis and Mapping Project that provides new maps for the coastal communities in Southern California that will be adopted by FEMA on January 29, 2021
- Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

11.11 FUTURE NEEDS TO BETTER UNDERSTAND RISK/VULNERABILITY

The City of Ventura will perform a Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment (THIRA) process to help the community understand the normal set of risks it faces. By identifying and prioritizing those threats, a community can then prioritize revisions and realignment of actions in this plan over time.

11.12 ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

The City of Ventura intends to continuously review and adjust this document annually.

































12. CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, CHANNEL ISLANDS

12.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Maggie Tougas, CSUCI Emergency Manager One University Drive Camarillo, CA 93012 Telephone: 805-415-0020 e-mail Address: Margaret.federico@csuci.edu

Alternate Point of Contact

David Carlson One University Drive Camarillo, CA 93012 Telephone: 805-437-8472 e-mail Address: david.carlson@csuci.edu

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 12-1.

Table 12-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members			
Name	Title		
Maggie Tougas	Emergency Manager		
Tom Hunt	Assistant Vice President Facilities Services		
Joyce Spencer	Director, Environmental Health and Safety		
Wesley Cooper	Senior Director, Facilities Services		
Roxanne Coryell-Biegel	Sustainability and Energy Manager		
Terry Tarr	Assoc. Architect		
Carlos Miranda	Assoc. Director Information Security		
Dave Carlson	Planning Design & Construction		

12.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

12.2.1 Overview

The California State University Channel Islands (CSUCI) is a public university in Ventura County, California. CSUCI opened in 2002 as the 23rd campus in the California State University system. CSUCI is located midway between Santa Barbara and Los Angeles near Camarillo, at the intersection of the Oxnard Plain and northernmost edge of the Santa Monica Mountains range. The Channel Islands are nearby where the university operates a scientific research station on Santa Rosa Island.

The campus is located about two miles south of the city of Camarillo, at the base of Long Grade Canyon. The school is set on rich agricultural land at the edge of the Oxnard Plain bordered by farms and nestled into the base of the Santa Monica Mountains. The flat site is marked by a lone peak called

Round Mountain (the Chumash name is Sathwiwa). The campus is situated on land historically inhabited by the Chumash.

The site was originally a state hospital and operated from 1936 to 1997. The state hospital was built in a remote area so roads were improved to provide for the campus traffic. The university developed a bus transit network to serve the campus with VISTA buses providing access to Gold Coast Transit in Oxnard and the Camarillo train station. After gaining official possession of the land in 1998, improvements began in 1999 on the 634-acre existing campus-style facility, primarily one to two-story buildings organized around three primary quads. In 2007, the campus acquired an additional 153 acres. Many of the buildings are in the Mission Revival and Spanish Colonial Revival architectural styles, although there are a few "modern" buildings. The campus is split into two primary sections: North Quad and South Quad. In 2012, Del Norte and Madera halls were opened in the North Quad; some of the buildings in the North Quad are still uninhabited and unsafe due to age, which became CSU Channel Islands University Park located adjacent to the campus. The university is a <u>Hispanic-serving institution</u>. Channel Islands offers 54 types of Bachelor's degrees, 6 different graduate (Master's) degrees, 19 teaching credentials, and an Ed.D degree. In the fall of 2018, the university enrolled the largest number of students in its history with 7,095 undergraduate and postgraduate students. Since its establishment, the university has awarded over 11,000 students with degrees.

CSUCI is the only four-year public university in Ventura County and in 2010 it received Hispanic Serving Institution status (HSI). The university achieved this status by moving past the threshold of having at least a 25 percent Hispanic student population. The Hispanic/Latino student population was 50% as of the fall of 2017.

Planning for the University began in 1965, when State Senator Robert J. Lagomarsino co-authored Senate Bill 288 calling for establishment of a four-year public college in Ventura County, and Governor Pat Brown signed a bill authorizing a study for a state college for the county. In 1974, Dr. Joyce Kennedy established the UC/CSU Ventura Learning Center in Ventura as a partnership between UC Santa Barbara and California State University, Northridge. The Ventura Learning Center became the CSU Northridge Ventura Campus in 1988.

In 1996, J Handel began as the campus planning president to begin development of a public four-year university for the region. In 1997 the CSU Board of Trustees voted to accept the former Camarillo State hospital site for the purpose of transforming it into the CSU's 23rd campus. At this time the hospital closed. In August 1999, the Ventura Learning Center moved to the Camarillo site as a CSU Northridge satellite facility.

In 2001, the CSU Board of Trustees appointed Richard R. Rush, Ph.D., as Founding President of California State University Channel Islands. While establishing the University structures, Dr. Rush has overseen and participated in the hiring of faculty and the university's senior staff. On August 16, 2002, CSUCI opened to upper division transfer students and in the fall of 2003, accepted its first freshman class.

The CSUCI Campus President assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; Public Safety Staff will oversee its implementation.

12.2.2 Service Area

The District service area covers 1.85 square miles serving a population of approximately 7,000 combined students, faculty, and staff.

12.2.3 Assets

Table 12-2 summarizes the assets of the District and their value.

Table 12-2. Special-Purpose District Assets				
Asset	Value			
Property				
1,187 acres of land	Unknown			
Equipment				
2014 Chevrolet Impala, 1417560	\$40,150			
2012 Ford Crown Victoria, 139072	\$6,000			
2014 Chevrolet Tahoe, 1322719	\$14,250			
2015 Chevrolet Tahoe, 1463257	\$65,000			
2017 Chevrolet Tahoe, 1506693	\$65,000			
2017 Chevrolet Tahoe, 1526913	\$65,000			
2018 Chevrolet Tahoe, 1561135	\$65,000			
2011 Ford Crown Victoria, 1362925	\$6,000			
2018 Chevrolet Impala, 1551846	\$48,550			
2005 4 Seat GEM Cart 1172160	\$4,000			
2014 Chevrolet 2500, 1417575 Admin EOC Parking	\$62,000			
2016 Chevrolet Colorado, 14698 PSO	\$37,050			
Critical Facilities (all default to 1 University Drive, Camarillo)				
Aliso Hall (Science/Lab), West of Central Mall	\$8,636,406			
Anacapa Village (Student Housing A, B, C, Pool House), East of Petrero Road	\$28,350,319			
Arroyo Hall (Gym)	\$6,121,457			
Bell Tower Central (Education), West of South Quad	\$27,368,019			
Bell Tower East (Office of Dean Pena), East of South Quad	\$7,276,728			
Bell Tower West (Office of the Provost), West of South Quad	\$6,531,890			
Broome Library (Library/Classrooms), East of Central Mall	\$60,337,738			
Carden School, Camarillo Street	Unknown			
Central Plant (HVAC/Facilities), Rear of Ironwood Hall	\$2,778,517			
Chaparral Hall (General)	\$813,354			
CI Power (Cogen), South of Central Plant	\$15,905,657			
Del Norte Hall (Fiscal Resources), South End of North Quad	\$27,651,627			
El Dorado Hall (Recreation Center)	\$1,818,956			
Ironwood Hall (Facilities Services), East of Central Plant	\$6,300,580			
Islands Cafe (Food Service), North of Topanga Hall	\$3,172,669			
Lindero Hall (Administration)	\$2,490,846			
Malibu Hall (General)	\$4,769,335			
Manzanita Hall (General)	\$1,636,032			
Martin V. Smith Decision Center (Lecture Hall, Conference Rooms)	\$1,596,020			
Modoc Hall (Science Labs, Classrooms)	\$880,258			

Asset	Value
Napa Hall (Administrative Office)	\$5,055,083
Ojai Hall (Data/Tech/EOC), North of Bell Tower	Unknown
OPC Shops (Corp Yard)	\$2,084,347
Placer Hall (General)	\$3,421,414
PD and Dispatch, Placer Hall	Unknown
Sage Hall (General)	\$8,014,973
Santa Cruz Village (Student Housing D, E, F) West of South Quad	\$32,250,010
Santa Rosa Village (Student Housing), East of South Quad	\$60,122,800
Sierra Hall (Science/Lab), East of Central Mall	\$33,254,128
Solano Hall (HR/Employment), West of North Quad	\$5,427,456
Student Union (Food/Recreation), North of Bell Tower West	\$11,312,460
Topanga Hall (Art Studio)	\$2,548,247
Town Center (Housing/Food Service), East of Broome Library	Unknown
University Hall (Office of the President), North of Central Mall	\$6,027,735
Water Storage Tank, Channel Islands Drive/Camarillo Street	Unknown
Yuba Hall (Student Health Services), South of Rincon Drive	Unknown
Total:	\$383,955,061

12.3 CURRENT TRENDS

The campus is under continuing construction to accommodate the projected growth of the university. While there are about 7,000 registered students, projected enrollment for the year 2025 is 15,000 full-time students.

12.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 12-3.

An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 12-4.

An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 12-5.

An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 12-6.

Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 12-7.

The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 12-8.

Table 12-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability				
Plan, Study or Program	Most Recent Update	Comment		
Executive Order 987	2019	Building Operations and Maintenance		
California Building Code	2019	Building design standards		
Policy Number: FA.32.003 Strategic Risk Management	2019	Identifies and Assesses risks to the campus		
Communicable Disease Response Plan	2020	Addresses communicable disease management.		
CSU Channel Islands Exterior Building Management Plan	2014	Exterior buildings management; stormwater management.		
Executive Order 1039	2017	Policy on Occupational Safety		
Emergency Operations Plan	2018	Preparation, Response and Recovery.		
Executive Order 1014	2017	Business Continuity Plan		

Table 12-4. Fiscal Capability

Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?
Community Development Block Grants	No
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	No
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	No
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	No
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	No
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes

	Table 12-5. Administrative and Technical Capability	
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?
Planners or engineers with know	owledge of land development and land management practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Facilities services, use consultants from Chancellor's Office	
Engineers or professionals tra	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Engineering consultants, Facilities Services Director. Enter Response	
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Facilities Services, consultants.	
Staff with training in benefit-co	ost analysis	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Dept. of Business and Finance, Assistant Vice President Budget and Planning	
Surveyors		No
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Facilities Services, Environmental Health and Safety	
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Facilities Services, Environmental Health and Safety, CSUCI Faculty ESRM	
Emergency Manager		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Public Safety	
Grant writers		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Academic Affairs	
Other		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Facilities Services Environmental Impacts 2004	

Table 12-6. Education and Outreach Capability						
Criterion	Response					
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes					
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes					
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? If yes, briefly describe: COVID prevention and mitigation, Evacuation Plan	Yes					
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe: Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram for emergency preparedness activities	Yes					
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?	No					
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? If yes, briefly describe: Public Safety Fair, Flood and Fire Prevention	Yes					
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe: Informacast, CI Alert Notification Systems	No					

Table 12-7. Community Classifications									
Participating? Classification Date Classifi									
FIPS Code	No	N/A	N/A						
DUNS#	Yes	796879943	N/A						
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A						
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A						
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A						
Storm Ready	Yes	N/A	September 19, 2019						
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A						
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A						

Table 12-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	Medium
Comment: Climate change is taught in ESRM and biology classes, faculty have been doing research in climate change for a number of years, utilization of solar lighting, electric carts and buses, a climate change action plan is in process.	
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	Medium
Comment: Faculty and staff are conducting research and continue to monitor and address impacts	
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Low
Comment:	
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	High
<i>Comment:</i> CI consistently conduits inventory for GH emissions . The CSU requires the campus to exceed California Green Building Code standards.	
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Medium
Comment: Continued implementation of solar lighting, generators and batteries	
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	Medium
Comment: CI holds meetings discussing climate issues once a month, conducts research with the National Park 'Service and State parks, Dept. of Fish and Game	(

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	Medium
<i>Comment:</i> There is a system-wide goal to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Currently working on a plan. More classes will be offered on this subject in ESRM and biology.	
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Medium
Comment: There is a system-wide goal to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Currently working on a plan. More classes will be offered on this subject in ESRM and biology.	
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Low
Comment:	
Champions for climate action in local government departments	Low
Comment:	
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Low
Comment:	
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	Low
Comment: We have no budget for this at CI.	
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Low
Comment:	
Public Capacity	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Medium
Comment: Conducted presentations on climate impact to faculty, staff and students	
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts	Low
Comment: N/A	
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: Unknown	
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: Unknown	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: Unknown	
Comment: Public Capacity Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk Comment: Conducted presentations on climate impact to faculty, staff and students Local residents' support of adaptation efforts Comment: N/A Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment: Unknown Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment: Unknown Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment: Unknown Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment: Unknown	Medium Low Low Low Low

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

12.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

12.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- CSU Channel Islands Capital Improvement Plan, Facilities Plan—Incorporate new and updated hazards information relevant to the CSUCI Campus sand University Glen Neighborhood. The hazard mitigation plan may identify new possible funding sources for capital improvement projects and may result in modifications to proposed projects based on results of the risk assessment.
- **CSUCI Emergency Operations Plan (EOP), 2018 (pending approval)**—Hazard Summary for the campus needs updating. Hazards referenced in the Ventura County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan for more specific information.
- Wildfire Reduction and Preparedness Plan—Year round recommendations for defensible space remediation and smoke intrusion into campus buildings.
- Capital Improvement Plan—The capital improvement plan includes projects that can help mitigate potential hazards.
- Exterior Building Management Plan—CSU Channel Islands property maintains a comprehensive exterior and hardscape management plan, using as a guideline, the standards developed by the US Green Building's Council's LEED program. The plan incorporates best management practices which significantly reduce the use of harmful chemicals, energy waste, water waste, air pollution, solid waste and/or chemical runoff as compared to traditional practices

12.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- Climate Action Plan—Adopting a formal plan indicates the institution's commitment to reducing its global warming impact. Since multiple facets of an institution's operations can help reduce emissions, developing a climate action strategy can help an institution realize its sustainability goals as well as climate targets. Currently, the Campus is in the process of writing a Climate Action Plan.
- **Capital Improvement Projects**—Capital improvement project proposals may take into consideration hazard risks and provide mitigation recommendations as a means of evaluating project prioritization.
- **Post-Disaster Recovery Plan**—The campus addresses recovery and is part of the Ventura County Long Term Recovery Group and Ventura County VOAD (Voluntary Organizations Active in Disaster). The campus utilizes the specific goals, objectives and processes from the Long-Term Recovery Group and VC VOAD. The campus will also utilize particular aspects that are included in the Ventura County EOP.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

12.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

12.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 12-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

	Table 12-9. Past Natural Hazard Events							
Turne of Excent	FEMA	Dete	Domoso Accessment					
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	January 20, 2020 and continuing	The campus did not experience any property damages from COVID19 just emergency protective measures response related costs, telecommuting costs, testing, workplace safety inserts (plexiglass, HVAC upgrades) total approximately \$5,000,000.00					
Maria Fire	FM-5302	November 1, 2019	Campus was not directly impacted by this fire, however, The Arc of Ventura County opened a community shelter at the Camarillo Community Center.					
Hill/Woolsey Fire		November 2018	Campus directly affected, Fire approached campus, campus impacted by smoke. Campus was closed for numerous days.					
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows (Thomas Fire)	DR-4353	December 4, 2017- January 31, 2018	Although this fire burned 281,893 acres in both Ventura County and Santa Barbara County, the campus was only indirectly impacted by smoke, however, faculty, staff and students were unable to go to work or class due to the compromised 101 corridor in Montecito.					
Flooding		February 18, 2017	Localized flooding of the campus due to a severe storm closed the campus for several days.					
Springs Fire	FM-5024	May 2 – 11, 2013	24,251 acres burned; The campus was surrounded by fire, lots of smoke damage, melted cell towers and irrigation lines, one outbuilding destroyed and several buildings damaged. Campus was closed for numerous days.					
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows; Springs Fire		December 14, 2014	Camarillo Springs near campus had a significant mudslide. Campus had moderate flooding on the roads in and out of campus.					
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows	DR-1731	October 21 – March 31, 2008	Although Ventura County was impacted by the Ranch Fire, the campus was not directly impacted except for heavy smoke.					
Shekell Fire	FM-2681	December 3 – 6, 2006	This fire burned in Fillmore and Moorpark. The campus had no direct impacts from the fire only indirectly from smoke.					
Day Fire	FM-2677	September 25 - 30, 2006	The campus was not directly impacted except for heavy smoke.					
Topanga Fire	FM-2583	September 28 – October 10, 2005	The campus was not directly impacted except for smoke.					
Severe Storms, Flooding, Landslides, and Mud and Debris Flows	DR-1585	February 16 – 23, 2005	City experienced localized flooding. No significant losses were documented. The campus was affected due to road closures.					

Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
Severe Storms, Flooding, Debris Flows, and Mudslides	DR-1577	December 27, 2004 – January 11, 2005	Water and mudslides damaged structures in the city.
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflow and Debris Flow	DR-1498	October 21, 2003 – March 31, 2004	The campus was not directly impacted from the fires in Piru and Fillmore except for heavy smoke
CSUCI opened in 2002.	Therefore, da	mage prior to 2002 affected	the area now known as CSUCI.
Severe Winter Storms and Flooding	DR-1203	February 2 – April 30, 1998	Backed up storm drains caused flooding.
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding, Landslides, Mud Flows	DR-1046	February 13 – April 19, 1995	Localized flooding and clogged storm drains.
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding, Landslides, Mud Flows	DR-1044	January 3 – February, 1995	Localized flooding and clogged storm drains.
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	January 17 – November 30,1994	Structure and infrastructure damages.
Fires, Mud & Landslides, Soil Erosion, Flooding	DR-1005	October 26 – April 22, 1994	Multiple fires around Ventura County and subsequent flooding. Smoke and flooding impacts
Severe Storm, Winter Storm, Mud & Landslides, Flooding	DR-979	January 5 – March 20, 1993	Localized street flooding.
Snow Storm, Heavy Rain, High Winds, Flooding, Mudslide	DR-935	February 10 – 19, 1992	City experienced localized street flooding.
Severe Freeze	DR-894	December 19, 1990 – January 3, 1991	Countywide damages.
Grass, Wildlands, Forest Fires	DR-739	June 26 – July 19, 1985	Area was not directly impacted except for heavy smoke.
Coastal Storms, Floods, Slides, Tornadoes	DR-677	January 21 – March 30, 1983	Flooding
Severe Storms, Mudslides, Flooding	DR-615	January 8, 1980	Flooding countywide.

12.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 12-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 12-10. Hazard Risk Ranking								
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category					
1	Earthquake	32	Medium					
2	Severe Storms	24	Medium					
2	Severe Weather	24	Medium					
4	Dam Failure	22	Medium					
5	Flooding	18	Medium					
5	Landslide	18	Medium					
7	Wildfire	12	Medium					
8	Drought	9	Low					

12.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Wildfire frequently affects the campus. Campus structures and communication towers have been burned or been damaged. Smoke damage is the most frequent event.
- Flooding regularly occurs during periods of heavy rainfall. One campus dormitory regularly floods.
- Climate Change amplified in the future.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

12.7 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 12-11 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 12-12 identifies the priority for each action. Table 12-13 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 12-11. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix						
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a
Action CSU-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.						
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, F	looding, Sev	vere Storms, L	andslide		
Existing	9, 10, 11	Facilities		High	Staff Time, General Funds,	Short-term
		Services			Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	
Action CSU-2—Ac	tively participate	in the plan	maintenance	protocols out	lined in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.	
Hazards Mitigated:	All hazards					
New & Existing	8, 19	Public Safety		Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term
Action CSU-3-PL	irchase solar ba	ck up batteri	ies and solar p	anels to sus	tain adequate power in campus buildings.	
Hazards Mitigated:	All hazards					
New & Existing	2, 6	Facilities Services	Chancellor's Office	Medium	Staff Time, General Funds, Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a
Action CSU-4—Ha	arden earthen da	m by way o	f debris basin	infrastructure	e and spillway located above University Glen commu	inity and
student housing in	Town Center.					
Hazards Mitigated:	Flooding, Seve	ere Storms	1			1
Existing	2, 9, 10, 11,	Facilities		High	Staff Time, General Funds,	Short-term
	14, 15	Services			Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	
Action CSU-5—Re	eplace undersize	d reclaimed	water lines to	increase ca	pacity, create sustainability and mitigate flooding.	
Hazards Mitigated:	Flooding, Seve	ere Weather	r, Drought			
Existing	6, 9, 10, 11, 14	Facilities		High	Staff Time, General Funds,	Short Term
		Services	• •	D.11	Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	
Action CSU-6—Ha	arden infrastructu	ire of two br	ridges on cam	pus. Bridges	are compromised during storm events and rip rap is	eroding at
Line Dase of the Dift	iyes. Elooding Sour	ara Waatha	~			
<u>Frazarus Miliyaleu:</u>				Madium	Stoff Time, Conorol Funde	Chart Torm
Existing	0, 9, 10, 11, 15	Services		weulum	Grant Funding, FEMA HMA (BRIC EMA HMGP)	SHOLLTEITH
Action CSU-7-C	reate and maintai	in defensible	e snace arour	nd structures	and other infrastructure to coordinate with existing F	mergency
Operations Plan ac	ctions.					mergeney
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire					
New & Existing	5, 6, 9	Facilities	Cal Fire,	Low	Staff Time, General Funds,	Short Term
5		Services	Chancellor's		Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP and	
			Office		HMGP)	
Action CSU-8-Re	etrofit Modoc Hal	l by replacir	ng windows wi	th energy-eff	icient tempered glass that will not shatter during seis	mic activity
or severe windstor	ms, and will redu	ce energy lo	oss from heati	ng and air co	nditioning.	
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, S	evere Storn	ns			1
Existing	6, 9, 11	Facilities		High	Staff Time, General Funds,	Short Term
		Services			Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP)	
a. Short-term = C	Completion within	5 years; Lo	ong-term = Co	mpletion with	in 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing pr	ogram with
no completion	date					

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 12-12. Mitigation Action Priority

Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
2	2	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
3	2	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
4	6	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
5	5	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
6	5	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
7	3	High	Low	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
8	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
a Seet	the introduction	n to this vo	lume for e	xplanation of prior	ities			

See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities. a.
Table 12-13. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a						
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building ^b
Medium-Risk Hazard	S							
Earthquake		CSU-1, 8	CSU-2	CSU-3	CSU-3			CSU-2
Severe Storms		CSU-1, 8	CSU-2	CSU-3	CSU-3	CSU-4		CSU-2
Severe Weather		CSU-6	CSU-2	CSU-3, 5	CSU-3	CSU-5	CSU-5	CSU-2
Dam Failure			CSU-2	CSU-3	CSU-3			CSU-2
Flooding		CSU-1, 6	CSU-2	CSU-3, 5	CSU-3	CSU-4, 5	CSU-5	CSU-2
Landslide		CSU-1	CSU-2	CSU-3	CSU-3			CSU-2
Wildfire			CSU-2	CSU-3, 7	CSU-3			CSU-2, 7
Low-Risk Hazards								
Drought			CSU-2	CSU-3, 5	CSU-3	CSU-5	CSU-5	CSU-2

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of technical and administrative or financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

12.8 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 12-14 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 12-14. Local Public Outreach					
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved			
VC VOAD General Membership Meeting	June 17, 2021	40			
VC VOAD Executive Board Meeting	June 9, 2021	7			
VC VOAD General Membership Meeting	September 16, 2021	50			
Postings on Facebook, Twitter	July 2021-September 2021	400+			

12.9 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- Executive Order 987, Building Operations and Maintenance—Reviewed for the capabilities assessment and action plan development.
- Policy Number: FA.32.003 Strategic Risk Management—Reviewed for the capabilities assessment.
- Communicable Disease Response Plan—Reviewed for the capabilities assessment.
- **CSU Channel Islands Exterior Building Management Plan**—Reviewed for the capabilities assessment and action plan development.
- Executive Order, Policy on Occupational Safety—Reviewed for the capabilities assessment.

- **Emergency Operations Plan**—Reviewed for the capabilities assessment and action plan development.
- Executive Order, Business Continuity Plan—Reviewed for the capabilities assessment.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

- Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.
- Ventura County Hazard Mitigation Plan 2015—The previous hazard mitigation plan was reviewed when developing mitigation actions.
- Cal OES Hazard Mitigation Plan 2018—The state hazard mitigation plan was reviewed when developing mitigation actions.

12.10 FUTURE NEEDS TO BETTER UNDERSTAND RISK/VULNERABILITY

- Workshops, training and education for the campus community.
- Develop and strengthen a campus Hazard Mitigation Planning Team.
- Hire a Risk Manager for the campus.

13. CALLEGUAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

13.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Daniel Cohen, Emergency Response Coordinator 2100 E. Olsen Road Thousand Oaks, CA 91360 Telephone: 805-579-7134 e-mail Address: <u>dcohen@calleguas.com</u>

Alternate Point of Contact

Rob Peters, Manager of Operations and Maintenance 2100 E. Olsen Road Thousand Oaks, CA 91360 Telephone: 805-579-7136 e-mail Address: <u>rpeters@calleguas.com</u>

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 13-1.

Table 13-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members				
Name	Title			
Daniel Cohen	Emergency Response Coordinator			
Rob Peters	Manager of Operations and Maintenance			
Kristine McCaffrey	Manager of Engineering			
Dan Drugan	Manager of Resources			
Sue Taylor	Accounting Supervisor			
Julio Reyes	Operations Supervisor			

13.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

13.2.1 Overview

The Calleguas Municipal Water District (Calleguas, District) was formed in 1953 as voters in southern Ventura County were faced with limited local water supplies, recurring droughts, and an expanding population and economy. In 1960, Calleguas joined the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan) as a way of securing water from the state water system. The District's mission is to provide its service area with a reliable supplemental supply of regional and locally developed water in an environmentally and economically responsible manner.

Calleguas is an independent special district with 70 employees who work in Administrative Services, Engineering, Operations and Maintenance, and Resources divisions. The District operates on funding that comes primarily through operating revenues and water rates, and is supplemented by non-operating revenues and investment earnings.

Calleguas is governed by an elected five-member Board of Directors, which assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan. The General Manager will oversee the plan's implementation.

13.2.2 Service Area

Calleguas is a wholesale water provider that imports and distributes water from Metropolitan through the State Water Project. A majority of the District's water supply is treated at Metropolitan's Jensen Treatment Facility in Granada Hills and conveyed into Calleguas' distribution system. Calleguas does not deliver water directly to consumers, but serves high quality drinking water to 19 retail purveyors within its service area that then deliver water to residents and municipal and agricultural customers.

The District serves an area of approximately 366 square miles in southeast Ventura County and an estimated 635,000 residents, or roughly three quarters of Ventura County's population. Communities served by Calleguas include the cities of Camarillo, Moorpark, Oxnard, Port Hueneme, Simi Valley, and Thousand Oaks; and the unincorporated areas of Bell Canyon, Camarillo Estates, Camarillo Heights, Lake Sherwood, Naval Base Ventura County, Oak Park, Santa Rosa Valley, and Somis.

Calleguas' distribution system is made up of 140 miles of large diameter transmission pipelines, 12 potable water reservoirs, 6 potable water pump stations, 5 hydroelectric generators, 20 pressure regulating stations, and 91 service connections (turnouts). The District also owns and operates Lake Bard, an earthen open-surface reservoir, and associated water filtration plant, as well as an aquifer storage and recovery (ASR) project with 18 ASR wells and an associated disinfection facility.

13.2.3 Assets

Table 13-2 summarizes the assets of the District and their value.

I able 13-2. Special-Purpose District Assets				
Asset	Value			
Property				
887 acres	Unknown			
Equipment				
Calleguas Conduit Surge Relief Facility	\$267,749			
Conejo Generating Station	\$1,627,029			
Conejo Mobile Standby Generators	Unknown			
Conejo Standby Generators	\$3,337,558			
Crestview Interconnection	\$1,560,585			
Distribution System Pipelines: 140 miles, various diameters (14"-78")	Unknown			
East Portal Standby Generator	\$71,822			
Emergency Pipe Yard	\$1,759,356			
Fairview Standby Generator	Unknown			
Grandsen Generating Station	\$1,166,850			
Grandsen Standby Generators	\$2,908,577			
Grandsen Surge Tank	\$612,825			
Mesa Pressure Relief Station	\$2,187,000			
Pressure Regulating Station 1	\$35,034			

Asset	Value
Pressure Regulating Station 1A	\$35,034
Pressure Regulating Station 2	\$219,790
Pressure Regulating Station 3	\$42,621
Pressure Regulating Station 4	\$69,781
Pressure Regulating Station 5	\$42,621
Pressure Regulating Station 6	\$133,355
Pressure Regulating Station 6A	\$42,621
Pressure Regulating Station 7	\$42,621
Pressure Regulating Station 8	\$42,621
Pressure Regulating Station 9	\$52,286
Reg Station 6 Standby Generator	\$9,965
Reg Station 9 Standby Generator	Unknown
Santa Rosa Generating Station	\$952,557
Santa Susana Tunnel	Unknown
Salinity Management Pipeline (SMP) Phase 1A	\$13,579,369
SMP Phase 1B	\$13,617,662
SMP Phase 1C	\$8,978,601
SMP Phase 1D	\$4,858,495
SMP Phase 1E	\$32,756,801
SMP Phase 2A	\$8,636,675
SMP Phase 2B	\$13,260,190
SMP Phase 2C	\$5,743,806
SMP Phase 2D	\$4,939,862
SMP Hueneme Outfall	\$21,352,277
Springville Flow Control Facility	\$1,440,415
Springville Generating Station	\$3,053,878
Springville Standby Generators	Unknown
Vehicle Fleet	Unknown
Well 1	\$777,480
Well 2	\$777,480
Well 3	\$777,480
Well 4	\$777,480
Well 5	\$773,964
Well 6	\$1,143,577
Well 7	\$1,141,924
Well 8	\$836,705
Well 9	\$1,154,833
Well 10	\$881,306
Well 11	\$768,269
Well 12	\$773,964
Well 13	\$774,560
Well 14	\$836,705
Well 15	\$1,066,882

Asset	Value
Well 16	\$1,066,883
Well 17	\$806,428
Well 18	\$814,091
Wellfield Standby Generators	Unknown
Total:	\$165,388,300
Critical Facilities	
Calleguas Administration Building	\$4,909,768
Conejo Pump Station	\$4,225,361
Conejo Reservoir	Unknown
East Portal	\$3,513,041
Fairview Pump Station	\$1,584,922
Grandsen Pump Station 1	\$5,344,699
Grandsen Pump Station 2	\$2,486,828
Grimes Canyon Disinfection Facility	\$3,235,725
Lake Bard	\$2,795,730
Lake Bard Water Filtration Plant	\$14,377,027
Lake Sherwood Pump Station	Unknown
Lake Sherwood Reservoir	\$1,503,910
Lindero Pump Station	\$2,526,679
Lindero Reservoir	\$3,198,563
Newbury Park Reservoir	\$1,900,000
SMP Control Tank	\$3,708,277
Springville Reservoir A	\$1,109,000
Springville Reservoir B	\$4,139,655
Thousand Oaks Reservoir	\$12,980,000
TOD Pump Station	\$2,064,923
West Portal Overflow Structure	\$1,463,000
Westlake Reservoir	\$12,745,905
Wood Ranch Dam	Unknown
Total:	\$89,813,013

13.3 CURRENT TRENDS

When Calleguas joined Metropolitan in 1960, its service area was approximately 270 square miles. The Calleguas service area reached 366 square miles in 2010. Since 2000, the frequency and size of annexations into Calleguas' service boundary have slowed considerably. Future annexations are anticipated to continue at a relatively small size and rate, and Calleguas has no plans to significantly expand its service area.

13.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 13-3.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 13-4.

.

- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 13-5.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 13-6.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 13-7.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 13-8.

l able 13-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability						
Plan, Study or Program	Date of Most Recent Update	Comment				
Capital Improvement Program	2021	Updated at least annually, covers a 5-year timeframe.				
Emergency Action Plan & Inundation Maps for Wood Ranch Dam	2020-21	Updated at least every 10 years in accordance with California Water Code 6160-6161.				
Emergency Response Plan	2020	Updated regularly and self-certified with EPA at least every 5 years in accordance with America's Water Infrastructure Act of 2018.				
Master Plan	2017	Updated as needed.				
Risk and Resilience Assessment	2020	Updated and self-certified with EPA every 5 years in accordance with America's Water Infrastructure Act of 2018.				
Urban Water Management Plan	2021	Updated every 5 years in accordance with the Urban Water Management Planning Act.				
Water Supply Alternatives Study	Ongoing	Evaluation of potential approaches to meet water supply needs during a 6-month outage of imported water.				

Table 13-4. Fiscal Capability					
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?				
Community Development Block Grants	No				
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes				
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	No				
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	No				
<i>If yes, specify:</i> Calleguas does not directly provide water to homes or businesses, therefore customer user fees are not directly collected. User fees are collected by the District's purveyors, which ultimately contribute to funding sources used by those purveyors to purchase water from Calleguas.					
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes				
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	No				
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No				
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No				
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes				
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	No				

Table 13-5. Administrative and Technical Capability				
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?		
Planners or engineers with knowled If Yes, Department /Position:	edge of land development and land management practices This resource is available through contract support.	Yes		
Engineers or professionals trained If Yes, Department /Position:	I in building or infrastructure construction practices Engineering Department / Manager of Engineering, Project Managers, and Inspectors.	Yes		
Planners or engineers with an und If Yes, Department /Position:	lerstanding of natural hazards Engineering Department / Manager of Engineering, Project Managers, and Inspectors.	Yes		
Staff with training in benefit-cost a <i>If Yes, Department /Position:</i>	nalysis This resource is available through contract support.	Yes		
Surveyors If Yes, Department /Position:	This resource is available through contract support.	Yes		
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS If Yes, Department /Position:	applications Administrative Services Department / Information Technology Specialist.	Yes		
Scientist familiar with natural haza If Yes, Department /Position:	rds in local area This resource is available through contract support.	Yes		
Emergency manager If Yes, Department /Position:	Operations & Maintenance Department / Emergency Response Coordinator.	Yes		
Grant writers If Yes, Department /Position:	Engineering Department / Manager of Engineering.	Yes		
Procurement Services and Management <i>If Yes, Department /Position:</i> Administrative Services Department, Operations & Maintenance Department / General Services Division.				

Table 13-6. Education and Outreach Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes			
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes			
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? <i>If yes, briefly describe:</i> Information is available regarding specific plans and capital projects that relate to specific hazard r activities.				
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe: Public education through social media is focused on drought mitigation and water conservation.				
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?				
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? Ye If yes, briefly describe: Calleguas organizes a banner distribution program and displays signage related to drought mitigation in coordination with water purveyors throughout Ventura County.				
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? <i>If yes, briefly describe:</i> Public warning notification procedures are established for potential safety incidents involving a dar failure, as well as hazards not included in this HMP.				

Table 13-7. Community Classifications						
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified			
FIPS Code	No	N/A	N/A			
DUNS#	Yes	010726883	N/A			
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A			
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A			
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A			
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A			
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A			
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A			

Table	13-8. Adaptive	Capacity for	Climate Change	

Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical C	Capacity	
Jurisdiction-	level understanding of potential climate change impacts	High
Comment:	Calleguas' elected officials and managerial staff understand that climate change is real and requires plan mitigate its impacts.	nned actions to
Jurisdiction-	level monitoring of climate change impacts	High
Comment:	Calleguas regularly monitors climate change impacts on snowpack, water supply conditions, drought, and	nd wildfires.
Technical re	sources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	High
Comment:	Calleguas has organized and participated in plans and programs that assess mitigation strategies, in ad contract support.	dition to utilizing
Jurisdiction-	level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	High
Comment:	The Calleguas distribution system is primarily a gravity-fed system that generates more power than it us basis.	es on an annual
Capital plan	ning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	High
Comment:	Calleguas complies with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for projects, which includes an climate impacts.	n evaluation of
Participation	in regional groups addressing climate risks	High
Comment:	Calleguas Directors and staff actively participate in multiple groups focused on addressing climate risks including the Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County and the Ventura County Regional Energy Alliance	and impacts, e.
Implementa	ition Capacity	
Clear author	ity/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	High
Comment:	Processes in CEQA require climate change impacts to be considered.	
Identified str	ategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	High
Comment:	Strategies to mitigate greenhouse gas emissions have been identified and continue to be explored, inclu- hydroelectric power generation, water use efficiency programs, and eventual transition of the District's fl- vehicles.	iding additional eet to electric
Identified str	ategies for adaptation to impacts	High
Comment:	Calleguas actively participates in integrated water resource planning and local water resource developm resilience and reduce reliability on imported water.	ent to increase local
Champions	for climate action in local government departments	High
Comment:	Water resources personnel at Calleguas actively organize and coordinate water conservation efforts with special districts, and the public across Ventura County.	h local cities, utilities,

Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating ^a					
Political sup	port for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	High					
Comment:	Comment: The District's elected officials actively support strategies that direct preparedness and support measures that encourage adaptability to climate change impacts. Additionally, state and federal representatives serving regions in the District's service area traditionally support legislation intended to mitigate impacts created by climate change.						
Financial re	sources devoted to climate change adaptation	High					
Comment:	Water use efficiency programs financially incentivize efforts to conserve water. Financial resources are a capital improvement planning projects, such as development of local water resources and resiliency of w components, that may be impacted by climate change.	also dedicated to vater system					
Local autho	rity over sectors likely to be negative impacted	High					
Comment:	Calleguas has jurisdiction over its water supply.						
Public Cap	acity						
Local reside	ents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Medium					
Comment:	Public capacity is measured in accordance with municipalities and unincorporated areas of Ventura Cou District's service area.	nty located in the					
Local reside	ents' support of adaptation efforts	Medium					
Comment:	Public capacity is measured in accordance with municipalities and unincorporated areas of Ventura Cou District's service area.	nty located in the					
Local reside	ents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium					
Comment:	Public capacity is measured in accordance with municipalities and unincorporated areas of Ventura Cou District's service area.	nty located in the					
Local econo	my current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium					
Comment:	Public capacity is measured in accordance with municipalities and unincorporated areas of Ventura Cou District's service area.	nty located in the					
Local ecosy	stems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium					
Comment:	Public capacity is measured in accordance with municipalities and unincorporated areas of Ventura Cou District's service area.	nty located in the					
a. High = Low = (Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known	ent; to assign a rating.					

13.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

13.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

• Capital Improvement Program—The Capital Improvement Program includes projects that can help mitigate potential hazards, as well as address the potential impacts of those hazards on operations and water supply. The District will act to ensure consistency between the HMP and

the current and future capital improvement program. The HMP may identify new possible funding sources for capital improvement projects and may result in modifications to proposed projects based on results of the risk assessment.

- Emergency Response Plan—The Emergency Response Plan describes procedures and operations to be executed by Calleguas staff in the event of various types of disasters or emergency situations. Response procedures and action plans, specifically for natural hazards, incorporate mitigation planning efforts recognized in the HMP in order to minimize the impacts to District facilities, infrastructure, equipment, staff, and the public.
- Master Plan—The Master Plan includes projects that can help address the potential impacts of hazards on operations and water supply. The District will act to ensure consistency between the HMP and the Master Plan.
- Risk and Resilience Assessment—The Risk and Resilience Assessment identifies and evaluates hazards that present the highest risk to the District's infrastructure and measures the resiliency of the District's system against those hazards, including natural hazards. Countermeasures that mitigate impacts and vulnerabilities associated with high-risk hazards are evaluated, including potential mitigation actions that are also recognized and described in the HMP.
- Urban Water Management Plan—The Urban Water Management Plan outlines and assesses long-term water resource planning as local and state supplies continually experience highly variable hydrology and impacts of climate change. Water service reliability, water use efficiency efforts, and contingency planning aspects of the Urban Water Management Plan integrate the HMP by incorporating potential mitigation actions.
- Water Supply Alternatives Study—The Water Supply Alternatives Study includes projects that can help address the potential impacts of hazards on operations and water supply. The District will act to ensure consistency between the HMP and Water Supply Alternatives Study.

13.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- Business Continuity Plan—The District may assess its existing Business Continuity Plan to expand the plan and update it in accordance with the HMP.
- Post-Disaster Recovery Plan—The District may consider preparing a Post-Disaster Recovery Plan that would emphasize the planning goals and strategies identified in the HMP during longterm recovery efforts.
- Power Outage Response Plan—The District plans to develop an action plan specifically for responding to various types of power outages, including Public Safety Power Shutoffs (PSPS) and extended blackouts. This plan will incorporate mitigation objectives and other measures identified in the HMP.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

13.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

13.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 13-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 13-9. Past Natural Hazard Events						
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment			
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	01/20/2020	Ongoing.			
Easy Fire	FM-5298	10/30/2019	The Easy Fire occurred just north of the District's main facility, interrupting normal operations and requiring most staff to evacuate the property. Although no District facilities were directly impacted, the District's water supply was used for firefighting efforts via distribution pipelines and aerial surface water dips in Lake Bard.			
2018 Fires	DR-4407	11/08/2018	The Hill and Woolsey Fires both occurred inside separate areas of the District's service territory. Although no District facilities were directly impacted, the District's water supply was used for firefighting efforts via distribution pipelines and aerial surface water dips in Lake Bard. Power outages caused by the fire also created operational challenges and complications.			
Thomas Fire	FM-5224	12/04/2017	District staff provided mutual aid and support to water agencies impacted by this fire, including staffing the water infrastructure liaison position in the County EOC.			
Springs Fire	FM-5024	05/02/2013	The District's water supply was used for firefighting efforts.			
Guiberson Fire	FM-2839	09/22/2009	The District's water supply was used for firefighting efforts.			
Shekell Fire	FM-2681	12/03/2006	The Shekell Fire burned through the District's Wellfield facility but caused minimal damage to equipment and infrastructure. The District's water supply was used for firefighting efforts.			
Topanga Fire	FM-2583	09/28/2005	The District's water supply was used for firefighting efforts.			
Severe Storms	DR-1577	12/27/2004	\$121,296.45			
Simi Fire	DR-1498	10/21/2003	The District's water supply was used for firefighting efforts.			
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	01/17/1994	The District incurred multiple significant pipeline failures and suffered damages on other components related to the distribution system, reaching costs totaling several hundreds of thousands of dollars to repair or replace assets.			

13.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 13-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on

people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 13-10. Hazard Risk Ranking						
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category			
1	Earthquake	32	High			
1	Wildfire	32	High			
3	Drought	31	High			
4	Severe Weather	24	Medium			
4	Severe Storms	24	Medium			
6	Dam Failure	21	Medium			
7	Landslide	18	Medium			
8	Flooding	15	Low			
9	Sea Level Rise	2	Low			
9	Tsunami	2	Low			

13.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Strong to severe ground shaking and liquefaction produced by an earthquake on one of many nearby faults could result in significant simultaneous damages to several assets and critical facilities across the District's service area.
- Numerous District assets and critical facilities are located in a very high wildfire severity zone, including multiple pump stations, reservoirs, and water treatment facilities containing hazardous materials.
- Long-term statewide and regional drought could impact the District's imported water supply and strain local water resources and emergency reserves.
- The Santa Susana Tunnel conveys imported water from Metropolitan Water District into the Calleguas distribution system. An impact to the tunnel caused by an earthquake or other natural hazard could completely cut off imported water until the tunnel is repaired or temporary infrastructure is installed.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

13.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 13-11 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 13-11. Status of Previous Pla	an Actions			
	Carried Over to Plan Update			
Action Item from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
OA 9 —Identify potentially vulnerable public and private utility systems including electric, gas, oil, water, sewer and communication. Upgrade vulnerable systems to ensure the operation and timely restoration of essential systems to reasonable levels of service.			~	CAL-6
Comment: Although Calleguas has completed several projects to mitigate earthqualways remain relevant to Calleguas.	ake hazards, th	is action item i	s evergreel	n and will
OA 16 —Implement landslide stabilization and/or protection measures. Stabilization measures include grading the unstable portion of the slope to a lower gradient, construction of rock buttresses and retaining walls, and drainage improvements. Protection measures include containment and/or diversion of the moving debris, such as walls, berms, ditches and catchment basins.			✓	CAL-7
<i>Comment:</i> Calleguas has completed several efforts to mitigate hazards related to always remain relevant to Calleguas.	erosion and dra	ninage. Howeve	er, this actio	on item will
OA 21 —Maintain hazards fuel treatment program for areas that have been identified with overgrown/dead brush/trees to reduce the potential for tree-to-tree ignition. Ensure that a "maintenance now" component to provide continued fire resistance is part of the program.			~	CAL-8
Comment: Calleguas maintains a brush clearing and defensible space program to completed regularly and will always remain relevant to Calleguas.	mitigate wildfir	e risks. These	mitigation e	fforts are

13.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 13-12 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 13-13 identifies the priority for each action. Table 13-14 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 13-12. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix								
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a		
Action CAL-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.								
Hazards Mitigated	Earthquake, W	/ildfire, Dam Failur	e, Landslide, Floo	ding				
Existing	2, 6, 9, 18	Calleguas MWD	Various	TBD	CIP Funds, HMGP/BRIC Grant Funding	Long-term		
Action CAL-2—Im constructed in the	prove imported vearly 1960s.	vater supply reliabi	lity by seismically	upgrading Cal	lleguas' Santa Susana Tunnel, whi	ch was		
Hazards Mitigated.	Earthquake							
Existing	2, 6, 9, 18	Calleguas MWD	N/A	\$4M	CIP Funds, HMGP/BRIC Grant Funding	Long-term		
CAL-3—Improve water supply reliability and reduce risk of critical pipeline failure during an earthquake by rehabilitating and/or strengthening segments of Prestressed Concrete Cylinder Pipe (PCCP) in the District's distribution system that are vulnerable to "broken back" failures.								
Hazards Mitigated	Earthquake							
Existing	2, 6, 9, 18	Calleguas MWD	N/A	\$10M	CIP Funds, HMGP/BRIC Grant Funding	Short and long-term (phased project)		

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a
Action CAL-4—Ac	tively participate:	in the plan mainter	nance protocols ou	utlined in Volu	me 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.	
Hazards Mitigated:	All Hazards				1	
New/Existing	1, 4, 6, 8, 19	Calleguas MWD	N/A	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term
Action CAL-5-Pu	irchase generato	rs for critical faciliti	es and infrastructu	ure that lack a	dequate backup power as listed be	low.
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, W	/ildfire, Severe We	ather, Severe Stor	rms, Dam Failu	ure, Landslide, Flooding	
Existing, Lindero Pump Station	2, 6, 18	Calleguas MWD	N/A	\$1.3M	CIP Funds, BRIC Grant Funding (pending)	Short-term
Existing, Lake Sherwood Pump Station	2, 6, 18	Calleguas MWD	N/A	\$340,000	CIP Funds, HMGP/BRIC Grant Funding	Short-term
Action CAL-6—Ide ensure the operation	entify potentially on and timely rest	vulnerable public w toration of essentia	ater utility system I systems to reaso	s. Upgrade vu onable levels o	Inerable systems under the District of service.	's authority to
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> New/Existing	All Hazards 2, 6, 9	Calleguas MWD	N/A	Medium	General Funds, HMGP/BRIC Grant Funding	Ongoing
Action CAL-7—Im of the slope to a low include containmer	plement landslid wer gradient, con nt and/or diversio	e stabilization and/ struction of rock bu n of the moving de	or protection meas uttresses and retai bris, such as walls	sures. Stabiliza ining walls, an s, berms, ditch	ation measures include grading the d drainage improvements. Protections es and catchment basins.	e unstable portion on measures
New/Existing	2, 6, 9	Calleguas MWD	N/A	Medium	CIP Funds, HMGP/BRIC Grant Funding	Ongoing
Action CAL-8—Ma and weeds to reduce resistance is part of <u>Hazards Mitigated</u> :	aintain wildfire ha ce the potential fo f the program. (C Wildfire	zard fuel reduction or tree-to-tree igniti Coordinates with Ve	program for area on. Ensure that a entura County Fire	s that have be "maintenance Protection Dis	en identified with overgrown or dea now" component to provide contine strict Action VFP-6)	ad brush, trees ued fire
Existing	5, 13, 14	Calleguas MWD	N/A	Low	General Funds, HMGP/BRIC Grant Funding	Ongoing
Action CAL-9—Im Hazards Mitigated:	plement projects Earthquake, Dro	to help address w	ater supply needs	during a 6-mc	onth imported water outage.	
New	2, 6, 18	Calleguas MWD	Various	TBD	CIP Funds, IRWM/HMGP/ BRIC Grant Funding	Long-term
Action CAL-10—The Las Virgenes-Calleguas Interconnection is a cost-effective, mutually beneficial pipeline that can deliver water between agencies if one were to experience a complete or partial water supply interruption that did not significantly affect the other agency.						
New	2, 3, 6, 8, 18	Calleguas MWD	Las Virgenes Municipal Water District	\$30M	CIP Funds, Proposition 1 IRWM Grant Funding	Short-term
Action CAL-11—T water system reliab time.	he Calleguas-Ve bility for both age	entura Interconnect ncies during water	ion is a cost-effect supply shortages	tive, mutually t that may not s	peneficial pipeline that will be utilize ignificantly affect both jurisdictions	ed to improve at the same
New	2, 3, 6, 8, 18	Calleguas MWD	City of Ventura	\$21M	CIP Funds, IRWM/HMGP/ BRIC Grant Funding	Short-term

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a		
Action CAL-12—The Crestview Well No.8 project involves construction and installation of a new groundwater well, associated components and system connections necessary to deliver water from Crestview Mutual Water Company to Calleguas during an imported water outage.								
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake							
New	2, 6, 8, 18	Crestview Mutual Water Company	Calleguas MWD	\$2.4M	CIP Funds	Short-term		
Action CAL-13—Lake Bard Pump Station will enable the treatment of approximately 30% of water in Lake Bard that cannot currently be treated by the Lake Bard Water Filtration Plant due to insufficient hydraulic head by pumping that water through the treatment process. This water would likely only need to be treated during a major imported water outage, which could be caused by an earthquake. <i>Hazards Mitigated</i> : Farthquake								
New	2, 6, 18	Calleguas MWD	N/A	\$6M	CIP Funds	Short-term		
Action CAL-14—Fairview Well Rehabilitation will help the District meet demands during imported water outages by rehabilitating and performing upgrades on system components to enable operation of Fairview Well, an aquifer storage and recovery well that has not operated since 1998. <u>Hazards Mitigated</u> : Earthquake								
New	2, 6, 18	Calleguas MWD	N/A	\$2M	CIP Funds, HMGP/BRIC Grant Funding	Short-term		

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date; Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 13-13. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
CAL-1	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
CAL-2	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
CAL-3	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
CAL-4	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
CAL-5	3	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
CAL-6	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
CAL-7	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
CAL-8	3	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
CAL-9	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
CAL-10	5	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
CAL-11	5	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
CAL-12	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
CAL-13	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
CAL-14	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 13-14. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
			Action A	ddressing H	azard, by Miti	gation Type ^a		
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazard	S							
Earthquake	CAL-9	CAL-1, 2, 3, 9	CAL-4		CAL-5, 6	CAL-1, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13		CAL-4, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14
Wildfire	CAL-8	CAL-1, 8	CAL-4	CAL-8	CAL-5, 6, 8	CAL-1		CAL-4, 6, 8
Drought	CAL-9		CAL-4			CAL-9, 11	CAL-9, 11	CAL-4, 6, 9, 11
Medium-Risk Haz	ards							
Severe Weather			CAL-4		CAL-5, 6			CAL-4, 6
Severe Storms			CAL-4		CAL-5, 6			CAL-4, 6
Dam Failure		CAL-1	CAL-4		CAL-5, 6	CAL-1		CAL-4, 6
Landslide		CAL-1, 7	CAL-4	CAL-7	CAL-5, 6	CAL-1, 7		CAL-4, 6, 7
Low-Risk Hazards	5							
Flooding		CAL-1			CAL-5, 6	CAL-1		CAL-4, 6
Sea Level Rise								CAL-4, 6
Tsunami								CAL-4, 6

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

13.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 13-15 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 13-15. Local Public Outreach						
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved				
Calleguas board resolution calling for water conservation to reduce demand by 15%	11/17/2021	15				
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (to shift-off state water project supplies), Metropolitan, Las Virgenes, and Calleguas drought press release	10/05/2021	15				
Calleguas social media blast promoting public participation in the multi-hazard mitigation plan update	08/02/2021	N/A				
Calleguas board adoption of stage 2 drought condition	08/18/2021	15				
Calleguas board adoption of stage 4 drought condition—implementation of mandatory conservation	04/15/2015	15				
Calleguas board resolution calling for increased water use efficiency	02/05/2014	25				

13.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

• **Capital Improvement Program**—The Capital Improvement Program prioritizes projects that have been identified to improve District facilities, infrastructure, and equipment, including

potential mitigation projects. The Capital Improvement Program was used as a source of information while preparing this annex.

- Emergency Response Plan—The District's Emergency Response Plan provides response procedures to various emergency incidents, including natural disasters. Several emergency response procedures and operations are intended to mitigate impacts of the incident. This information was reviewed and supported the development of this annex.
- **Master Plan**—The District's Master Plan includes projects that could mitigate the impacts of natural hazards on the water supply and distribution system. This information was referenced during the development of this annex.
- **Risk and Resilience Assessment**—The Risk and Resilience Assessment identifies the natural hazards that pose the largest risk to the District's water supply and infrastructure. Additionally, potential countermeasures to prevent or mitigate risks are included in the assessment. These aspects of the Risk and Resilience Assessment supported the development of this annex.
- **Urban Water Management Plan**—The Urban Water Management Plan provides information on water supplies, demands, and strategies to conserve water and mitigate impacts from natural hazards that could impact the distribution system. Information from the Urban Water Management Plan was utilized to support this annex.
- Water Supply Alternatives Study—The Water Supply Alternatives Study focuses on potential projects that could improve the District's water supply portfolio and ultimately increase local resiliency. Ideas in the Water Supply Alternatives Study were used to assist in the creation of this annex.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

- California State Hazard Mitigation Plan (SHMP)—The 2018 SHMP was referenced in order to understand the state's focus, objectives, and strategies related to hazard mitigation. The SHMP also includes an overview of disaster history, statewide risks, successful mitigation actions, and best practices.
- Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.
- Integrated Water Resources Plan (IRP) developed by Metropolitan Water District of Southern California—The 2020 IRP was prepared in concert with Metropolitan's Urban Water Management Plan and addresses the complexity of developing, maintaining, and delivering water to meet changing demands in face of uncertainties that the Southern California region faces. Climate change experts were consulted throughout the creation of the 2020 IRP, which creates multiple scenarios that could foreseeably occur due to climate change and other factors affecting water resources and demands. The IRP was referenced during development of this annex.
- **Projected Changes in Ventura County Climate**—The 2019 climate change report directed by the Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County projects local climate change impacts from 2021-2040. Climate factors that were assessed include projected changes in temperature, projected changes in precipitation, projected changes in evaporative demand, and considerations regarding atmospheric rivers, projected snowpack, drought, and wildfire. Calleguas participated in the development of the 2019 report as a wholesale water agency, and referenced the report during the development of this annex in the HMP.

- Ventura County Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)—The Ventura County EOP identifies countywide procedures for response to a largescale disaster or emergency incident. The County EOP was used as a resource throughout preparation of this annex.
- Water Surplus and Drought Management Plan (WSDM Plan)—Metropolitan Water District's WSDM Plan provides principles, goals, and potential actions to manage various water supply conditions. The WSDM Plan was used as a supporting document during development of this annex.

14. CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

14.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Julia Aranda, PE, Engineering Manager 1055 Ventura Avenue Oak View, California 93022 Telephone: 805-649-2251 x107 e-mail Address: jaranda@casitaswater.com

Alternate Point of Contact

Greg Romey, Safety Officer 1055 Ventura Avenue Oak View, California 93022 Telephone: 805-649-2251 x125 e-mail Address: gromey@casitaswater.com

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 14-1.

 Table 14-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members

Name	Title
Julia Aranda	Engineering Manager
Greg Romey	Safety Officer
Kelley Dyer	Assistant General Manager

14.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

14.2.1 Overview

The Casitas Municipal Water District was formed in 1952 (as the Ventura River Municipal Water District). In 1956, the Ventura River Project was authorized by Congress, which included the Robles Diversion facility on the Ventura River, the Robles Canal, and the Casitas Dam. The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors. Funding is primarily from water rates and revenue bonds.

The Casitas Board of Directors assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; Casitas Municipal Water District will oversee its implementation.

14.2.2 Service Area

Casitas provides wholesale and retail water service to western Ventura County and is governed by a five-member elected Board of Directors. Communities served include the City of Ojai, Upper Ojai, the Ventura River Valley area, the City of Ventura (west of Mills Road) and the beach communities of Solimar, La Conchita, and Rincon. Originally named the Ventura River Municipal Water District in 1952,

Casitas was formed to provide supplemental water to the agricultural communities in its service area. The service area also includes residential, commercial, and industrial uses. Wholesale customers include the City of Ventura and several special districts and mutual water companies. Casitas has 60 full-time employees, not including those employed at the Lake Casitas Recreation Area.

Casitas' service area covers 136 square miles of land (177 square miles including ocean area). As of December 31, 2020, Casitas had 6,130 service connections. In 2017, Casitas acquired the Ojai Water System from Golden State Water Company (GSWC); this did not increase the service area as GSWC was a wholesale customer of Casitas.

14.2.3 Assets

Table 14-2 summarizes the assets of the District and their value. Many of the District's facilities are on land owned by the United States of America as they were acquired by the US Bureau of Reclamation; these parcels are not included in the table. Casitas operates and maintains the facilities (tanks, pump plants, etc.) on this land.

Table 14-2. Special-Purpose District Assets			
Asset	Value		
Property			
98.28 acres of land (\$750,000/acre)	\$73,710,000		
Equipment			
163.52 miles of pipeline (\$1.25M/mile)	\$204,400,000		
28.19 million gallons of storage tanks (\$3/gal)	\$84,570,000		
16 pump plants (PP) (75,075 gpm total capacity x \$1,000 per gpm)	\$75,075,000		
Generators	\$972,000		
Vehicles/Heavy Equipment	\$3,000,000		
Total:	\$441,727,000		
Critical Facilities			
Avenue No. 1 PP	\$17,950,000		
Gardens PP	\$80,000		
Avenue No. 2 PP	\$18,800,000		
Fairview PP	\$4,670,000		
4M PP	\$5,300,000		
Grand Avenue PP	\$1,120,000		
Upper Ojai PP	\$4,850,000		
3M PP	\$1,425,000		
Ojai Valley PP	\$10,800,000		
Rincon PP	\$5,150,000		
Fortress PP	\$400,000		
San Antonio PP	\$3,000,000		
Signal PP	\$200,000		
Arbolada PP	\$390,000		
Valley View PP	\$700,000		
Heidelberger PP	\$240,000		
Oak View Tank	\$21,000,000		

Asset	Value
Gardens Tank	\$33,000
Villanova Tank	\$19,500,000
Fairview Tank	\$6,000,000
4M Tank	\$6,000,000
Upper Ojai Tank	\$5,400,000
3M Tank	\$3,000,000
Ojai East Tank	\$9,000,000
Rincon Control Tank	\$750,000
Rincon Balancing Tank	\$7,500,000
Fortress	\$405,000
San Antonio Forebay	\$1,500,000
Signal Tank	\$900,000
Arbolada Tank	\$3,000,000
Running Ridge Tank	\$282,000
Heidelberger Tank	\$300,000
Marion Walker Water Treatment Facility	\$15,000,000
San Antonio Wellfield Treatment Facility	\$5,000,000
District Office	\$5,000,000
Robles Diversion and Fish Passage Facility	\$20,000,000
San Antonio Plant Generator (500 kW)	\$500,000
Marion Walker Water Treatment Plan Generator (350 kW)	\$350,000
Robles Diversion Facility Generator (60 kW)	\$60,000
Heidelberger PP Booster Generator (37 kW)	\$37,000
Signal PP Booster Generator (25 kW)	\$25,000
Vehicles and Heavy Equipment	\$3,000,000
Total:	\$208,617,000

14.3 CURRENT TRENDS

Population is not expected to significantly increase over the next ten years and the District has no plans to expand its service area.

14.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions.

The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 14-3.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 14-4.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 14-5.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 14-6.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 14-7.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 14-8.

Table 14-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability			
Plan, Study or Program	Date of Most Recent Update	Comment	
Emergency Action Plan	2021	Prepared by USBR for Casitas Dam	
Standard Specifications and Details	2021	Prepared by District	
Emergency Response Plan	2021	Prepared by District	
Standard Operating Procedures	2007	Prepared by USBR for Casitas Dam	
10 Year Capital Improvement Program	2021	Updated annually by District	

Table 14-4. Fiscal Capability			
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?		
Community Development Block Grants	No		
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes		
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes		
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes		
If yes, specify: Water			
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes		
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes		
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No		
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No		
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes		
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	No		

Table 14-5. Administrative and Technical Capability			
Staff/Personnel Resource	Available?		
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position: Engineering/Manager			
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position: Engineering/Manager			
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position: Engineering/Manager			
Staff with training in benefit/cost analysis	Yes		

Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?
If Yes, Department /Position:	Administration/Chief Financial Officer	
Surveyors		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Through Contract	
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS	applications	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Engineering/GIS Technician	
Scientist familiar with natural haza	ards in local area	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Engineering/Manager	
Emergency manager		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Management/General Manager	
Grant writers		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Through Contract	
Other		Yes (Operations and Maintenance/Manager)

Table 14-6. Education and Outreach Capability			
Criterion	Response		
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes		
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes		
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website?	No		
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach?	No		
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?	No		
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information?			
If yes, briefly describe: Casitas uses our website to post emergency information related to interruptions in service caused b	y disasters.		
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events?	No		

	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified
FIPS Code	No	N/A	N/A
DUNS#	Yes	072927973	N/A
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A

Table 14-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	High
Comment: Casitas understands climate change impacts on local, regional, and Statewide water supplies	
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	High
Comment: Casitas monitors local surface water flows, evaporation rates, and water demands regularly	
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Medium
Comment: Casitas engages consultants for assistance with water supply alternatives as needed	
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	High
Comment: Casitas staff has this capacity	
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Medium
Comment: Casitas manages its own capital planning; Casitas does not have jurisdiction over land use	
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	Medium
Comment: Casitas participates in Upper Ventura River Groundwater Agency, Ojai GMA, and Watersheds Coalition	of Ventura County
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	High
Comment: The Board of Directors considers climate change impacts during environmental review of projects under	r their jurisdiction.
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Low
Comment: GGs have not been a priority for Casitas	
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Medium
Comment: Casitas uses its Water Efficiency Allocation Program to implement water conservation requirements bas	sed on lake level
Champions for climate action in local government departments	Medium
Comment: The Board participates in regional organizations advocating groundwater management, drought mitigati	on, and water
resources.	
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Medium
Comment: Casitas' Board considers climate change in planning efforts.	
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	Low
Comment: Casitas' funds for capital projects are limited	
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	High
Comment: Casitas is a wholesale and retail agency. The Water Efficiency Allocation Program allows Casitas to imp	oose conservation
Public Canacity	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Medium
Comment: Residents seem to be informed of climate change and impacts to water supply	Mediam
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts	Hiah
Comment: Residents are very vocal about the need for additional water supplies	riigri
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Hiah
Comment: The majority of customers have surpassed conservation goals	· ···g··
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium
Comment: Agricultural customers may have difficulty adapting to climate change impacts to water supply	monum
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Unsure
Comment:	
- Uich Conseity sylists and is in use. Medium Conseity may sylist but is not used as sould use some improvem	

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

14.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

14.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- **10-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)**—Mitigation projects are identified and included in the 10-year CIP. Funding may not be available each year to implement mitigation.
- Emergency Response Plan (ERP)—Casitas' ERP identifies all vulnerable facilities and includes response actions to hazards such as earthquake, wildfire, etc.
- Emergency Action Plan (EAP)—The EAP prepared by the US Bureau of Reclamation is updated annually and exercises are held on a regular basis with local emergency response agencies.
- Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP)—The UWMP describes the District's water supplies and demands, and identifies water supply projects to mitigate drought
- Water Efficiency Allocation Program—The Water Efficiency Allocation Program includes implementation of water conservation goals depending on the level of Lake Casitas to assist with drought mitigation.

14.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- **Capital Improvement Projects**—Capital improvement project proposals may take into consideration hazard mitigation potential as a means of evaluating project prioritization.
- **Post-Disaster Recovery Plan**—The District does not have a recovery plan and intends to develop one as a mitigation planning action during the next five years. The plan will build on the mitigation goals and objectives identified in the mitigation plan.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

14.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

14.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 14-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 14-9. Past Natural Hazard Events				
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment	
California COVID-19	4482	2020	Ongoing	
Thomas Fire	FM-5224	2017	\$692,821	
Severe Storms, Flooding, Debris Flows, and Mudslides	DR-1577	2005	\$454,822	
Severe Winter Storms and Flooding	DR-1203	1998	\$200,493	
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding, Landslides, Mud Flows	DR-1044	1995	\$298,414	
Grass, Wildlands, Forest Fires	DR-739	1985	\$43,230	
Coastal Storms, Floods, Slides, Tornadoes	DR-677	1983	\$211,950	
Severe Storms, Mudslides, Flooding	DR-615	1980	\$186,619	
Coastal Storms, Mudslides, Flooding	DR-547	1978	\$1,078,867	
Severe Storms, High Tides, Flooding	DR-364	1973	\$97,341	
Severe Storms, Flooding	DR-253	1969	\$245,005	

14.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 14-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 14-10. Hazard Risk Ranking			
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category
1	Landslide	39	High
2	Severe Storms	35	High
3	Earthquake	32	High
4	Drought	30	High
4	Severe Weather	30	High
6	Wildfire	24	Medium
7	Flooding	18	Medium
8	Dam Failure	12	Low
9	Sea Level Rise	8	Low
10	Tsunami	7	Low

To develop the Risk Ranking Score for Casitas, first the scores for each category for City of Ojai, City of Ventura, and Unincorporated Ventura County were averaged. Next, for categories for which Casitas has specific experience and damages, the scores were adjusted to be more representative for Casitas'

service area and facilities. This specifically applies to the scores for Dam Failure, Drought, Severe Storms, and Severe Weather for the following reasons:

- Dam Failure—The average score was 16 and was adjusted to 12. Casitas Dam is owned by the US Bureau of Reclamation. The original dam was constructed in 1959 and a seismic stability berm was constructed in 1998. The dam is monitored regularly and has an extremely low chance of failure.
- Drought—The average score was 9 and was adjusted to 30. Casitas is particularly vulnerable to drought as all water sources are local and dependent on weather. As of October 25, 2021, Lake Casitas is at 33% capacity. If no inflows are received, this represents approximately five years of supply for customer demands. Casitas is currently in Stage 3 of its Water Efficiency Allocation Program and will reevaluate this stage after the 2021/22 winter season. In the event lake capacity is reduced to 30% or less, Casitas would implement Stage 4 of the Water Efficiency Allocation Program.
- Severe Storms—The average score was 24 and was adjusted to 35. Due to the topography and geographic location of District facilities, specifically pipelines in canyons and the Robles Diversion Facility adjacent to the Ventura River, damage from severe storms has been significant.
- Severe Weather—The average score was 24 and was adjusted to 30. Severe rain causes erosion and landslides where District pipelines are located. Severe hot weather increases evaporation at Lake Casitas as well as customer water demands.

14.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Over the past 60 years, the Rincon 2(M) Main, an 18-inch pipeline through mountainous terrain serving the coastal communities, has been washed out by severe storms/landslides, requiring multiple replacement and relocation projects.
- The District's Marion Walker Pressure Filtration Plant, Administration Building/Operations Center and 19 water storage tanks are in need of seismic assessment and potential retrofits.
- Lake Casitas relies on local water sources and is at 33% capacity as of October 2021. The ongoing drought has strained both surface water diversions and groundwater supplies.
- The Robles Diversion Facility has required several rehabilitation projects due to severe flooding along the Ventura River in 1969, 1973, 1978, 1980, 1995, and 1998 and was damaged in the Thomas Fire.
- The Thomas Fire impacted multiple District facilities resulting in a nearly \$700,000 FEMA claim. Rented mobile generators were used to power pump plants when electrical lines burned.
- The Marion Walker Pressure Filtration Plant, located at the base of Casitas Dam, is at risk of flooding from Coyote Creek, which would impact potable water treatment to all 65,000 District customers.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

14.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 14-11 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 14-11. Status of Previous Plan Actions							
		Removed;	Carried C Up	Over to Plan Indate			
Action Item from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update			
CMWD-3—Replace and relocate pipes in vulnerable areas.			\checkmark	CAS-1			
Comment: Rincon Main at Ayers Creek relocated in 2020. Additional vulnerable pi	pelines remain.						
CMWD-4—Seismic retrofit of Ojai East and Rincon Control Reservoirs.			\checkmark	CAS-4			
Comment: Incomplete pending completion of Casitas Master Plan.							

14.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 14-12 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 14-13 identifies the priority for each action. Table 14-14 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 14-12. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix							
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action CAS-1-R	eplace and relocation	ate pipes in vulnerab	ole areas. (pre	eviously CMWD-	3)		
Hazards Mitigated.	Landslide, Sev	vere Storms, Severe	Weather				
Existing	9, 10, 11	Casitas Municipal Water District	NA	High	Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), General Funds	Short-term	
Action CAS-2—A	ctively participate	e in the plan mainten	ance protocol	s outlined in Vo	lume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.		
Hazards Mitigated.	Landslide, Sev	vere Storms, Earthqu	uake, Drough	t, Severe Weath	ner, Wildfire, Flooding, Dam Failure, Sea L	evel Rise,	
	Tsunami			I			
New & Existing	2, 7, 8, 11, 18, 19	County of Ventura	Casitas Municipal Water District	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term	
Action CAS-3—Purchase generators for critical facilities and infrastructure that lack adequate backup power, including Administration Building/Operations Center and pump plants							
Fricting		Casitas Municipal		Madium	Creat Funding FEMALIMA (DDIC	Chart torm	
Existing	Ζ, Ο	Water District	NA	medium	FMA, HMGP), General Funds	Short-term	
Action CAS-4—Seismic evaluation and potential retrofit of Marion Walker Pressure Filtration Plant, Administration Building/Operations Center, District reservoirs (previously CMWD-4 Seismic Retrofit of Ojai East and Rincon Control Reservoirs)							
Hazards Mitigated.	Earthquake					a	
Existing	2, 6, 9, 18	Casitas Municipal Water District	NA	High	Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), General Funds	Short-term	

Benefits New or	Objectives Met		Support	Estimated	Sources of Funding	Timolinoa	
Action CAS E M	ntura Santa Par	bara Countios Intort	io which will c	llow Casitas ac	coss to 2 000 acro foot por yoar of its Stat	ninenneu Mator	
Project allocation (through facilitios	owned and operator	d by Carninto	iiiuw Casilas du ia Vallov Wator	District) and provides a means to supply	wator	
across County line	s in the event of	an emergency in the	event of a si	innly interruntion	n that did not significantly affect the other	adency	
Hazards Mitigated	Drought Wildf	fire Landslide			in that and not significantly affect the other	ugeney.	
<u>Now</u>	2 6 8 18	Casitas Municinal	NΛ	High	Grant Funding (USBR_DW/P) General	Short-torm	
INCW	2,0,0,10	Water District	NA	riigii	Funds	Short-term	
Action CAS-6-M	arion Walker Pre	ssure Filtration Plan	t Flood Prote	ction			
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood, Severe	Storms					
Existing	2, 6, 9, 18	Casitas Municipal	NA	High	Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC,	Short-term	
		Water District			FMA, HMGP), General Funds		
Action CAS-7—La	ike Casitas Recr	eation Area Vegetat	ion Managem	ent			
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire						
Existing	5, 13, 14, 18	Casitas Municipal	US Bureau	Medium	Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC,	Short-term	
		Water District	of		FMAP and HMGP), General Funds		
			Reclamatio				
			n				
Action CAS-8—Add a mitigation page to the Casitas website that references the Ventura County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan and provide applicable updates on action status							
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Sev	vere Storms, Earthq	uake, Drough	t, Severe Weath	ner, Wildfire, Flooding, Dam Failure, Sea L	evel Rise,	
	Tsunami		. 0		.		
Existing	17, 19	Casitas Municipal	NA	Low	General Funds	Short-term	
		Water District					
a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with							
no completion date							
Acronyms used her	Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.						

Table 14-13. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
CAS-1	3	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium
CAS-2	6	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
CAS-3	2	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
CAS-4	4	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium
CAS-5	4	Medium	High	No	Yes	Yes	Low	Medium
CAS-6	4	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium
CAS-7	4	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
CAS-8	2	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Low	Low
a See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities								

See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities. а.

Table 14-14. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
	Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a							
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazard	ls							
Landslide	CAS-1	CAS-1	CAS-8				CAS-1, 5	CAS-2, 5, 8
Severe Storms	CAS-1	CAS-1	CAS-8			CAS-6	CAS-1, 6	CAS-2, 6, 8
Earthquake		CAS-3, CAS-4	CAS-8		CAS-3	CAS-3, CAS-4		CAS-2, 4, 8
Drought			CAS-8				CAS-5	CAS-2, 5, 8
Severe Weather	CAS-1	CAS-1	CAS-8		CAS-3		CAS-1	CAS-2, 8
Medium-Risk Hazards								
Wildfire	CAS-7	CAS-7	CAS-8	CAS-7	CAS-3		CAS-5, 7	CAS-2, 5, 8
Flooding		CAS-6	CAS-8			CAS-6	CAS-6	CAS-2, 8
Low-Risk Hazards								
Dam Failure			CAS-8					CAS-2, 8
Sea Level Rise			CAS-8					CAS-2, 8
Tsunami			CAS-8					CAS-2, 8

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

14.9 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **2020 Urban Water Management Plan**—This plan was used to inform the capability assessment.
- CMWD Emergency Response Plan—This plan was used to inform the capability assessment.
- USBR Emergency Action Plan—This plan was used to inform the capability assessment.
- **CMWD 10-Year Capital Improvement Plan**—This plan was used to inform the capability assessment and develop the action plan.
- **CMWD Standard Specifications and Details**—This plan was used to inform the capability assessment.
- Casitas Dam Standard Operating Procedures—This plan was used to inform the capability assessment.
- Water Efficiency and Allocation Program—This plan was used to inform the capability assessment.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

14.10 FUTURE NEEDS TO BETTER UNDERSTAND RISK/VULNERABILITY

- Seismic Analysis of Administration Building/Operations Center, Marion Walker Pressure Filtration Plant, and District reservoirs
- Technical and permitting assistance to scope flood protection improvements at Marion Walker Pressure Filtration Plant

15. CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

15.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Peter Martinez, General Manager 353 Santa Monica Dr Oxnard, CA 93035 (805) 985-6021 pmartinez@cibcsd.com

Alternate Point of Contact

Jesus Navarro, Operations Manager 353 Santa Monica Dr Oxnard, CA 93035 (805) 985-6021 jnavarro@cibcsd.com

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 15-1.

Table 15-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members				
Name	Title			
Peter Martinez	General Manager			
Jesus Navarro	Operations Manager			
CJ Dillon	Office Manager			
Erika Davis	Clerk of the Board			

15.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

15.2.1 Overview

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District (CIBCSD) was created on December 13, 1982, as a result of the demand of the citizens of the beach community for an independent governmental entity to provide solutions to their need for various services, including but not limited to water, sewer, and trash services. A five member elected board governs the District. The District currently employs a staff of 8. Funding comes primarily through water, sewer, and trash rates.

The Channel Islands Beach Community Services District Board of Directors assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the General Manager for CIBCSD will oversee its implementation.

15.2.2 Service Area

The Channel Islands Beach Community Services District serves the unincorporated areas of Ventura County southwest of Port Hueneme and the beach communities south of Oxnard, including the Silverstrand, Hollywood Beach, Hollywood by the Sea, and Channel Islands Harbor. The total current service area is approximately 1 square mile and serves about 10,000 customers via approximately 2,240 service connections.

15.2.3 Assets

Table 15-2 summarizes the assets of the District and their value.

Table 15-2. Special-Purpose District Assets						
Asset	Value					
Property						
43 acres of land, District owns 9 lots at estimated \$400,000 each	\$3,600,000 (estimated)					
Equipment						
Backhoe	\$40,000					
Wach's Valve Turning Trailer	\$50,000					
Ford 350 Crane Truck	\$25,000					
4 light work trucks 2008-2015 in age	\$32,000					
Large Generator	\$18,000					
Total:	\$165,000					
Critical Facilities						
Well House & Pumping Station 4200 W. Baracuda Way	\$165,000					
Sewer Lift Station 529 Ocean Drive & Corner Panama/Highland	\$116,000					
Sewer Lift Station 1729 Ocean Drive & 3384 Ocean Drive	\$116,000					
Pump Station A-Corner Highland/Roosevelt	\$121,489.00					
Pump Station B- 3765 Ocean Drive	\$121,489.00					
Pump Station H- Channel Islands Blvd. and Peninsula Rd	\$79,857.00					
Total:	\$719,835.00					

15.3 CURRENT TRENDS

The population within the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District boundaries is not expected to significantly increase over the next five years and the District has no plans to expand its service area.

The District is legally authorized, but not obligated to provide street maintenance and improvement, street lighting, undergrounding of overhead utilities, fire protection, and police protection. The District does not provide these additional services at this time as the District does not have sufficient revenues for any of these services. The ability of the District to provide these services in the future will depend on upon available revenues and decisions by the Board of Directors and the District electors. These additional services are currently provided by the County of Ventura in the unincorporated areas of the District and by the City of Oxnard within its boundaries.
15.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 15-3.

An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 15-4.

An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 15-5.

An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 15-6.

Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 15-7.

The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 15-8.

Table 15-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability						
Plan, Study or Program	Date of Most Recent Update	Comment				
Capital Improvement Plan	FY 2021-2022	Through FYE 2026				
Emergency Response Plan	December 2021					
Urban Water Management Plan	Adopted June 2021	In coordination with Port Hueneme Water Agency				
Sewer System Management Plan	2019					

Table 15-4. Fiscal Capability

Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?
Community Development Block Grants	No
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	No
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes
If yes, specify: Water, Sewer, Refuse Collection	
Incur Debt through Wasterwater Bonds	Yes
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	No
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Cap fees for water and sewer

	Table 15-5. Administrative and Technical Capability	
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?
Planners or engineers with know	owledge of land development and land management practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contracted	
Engineers or professionals tra	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contracted	
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contracted	
Staff with training in benefit/co	st analysis	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contracted	
Surveyors		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contracted	-
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contracted	
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	No
Emergency manager		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	General Manager	
Grant writers		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contracted	

Table 15-6. Education and Outreach Capability

Criterion	Response				
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?					
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes				
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? If yes, briefly describe: Drought information, Tsunami information, VC Resilient Coastal Adaptation Project	Yes				
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe: NextDoor	Yes				
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? If yes, briefly describe: The Channel Islands Beach Emergency Response Team operates under the Channel Islands Community Services District (CIBCSD). The team is made up of concerned residents who have completed the basic CERT training.	Yes Beach				
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? If yes, briefly describe: Mobile electronic message board, bulletin boards	Yes				
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If ves, briefly describe: NextDoor, Website, Reverse 911	Yes				

Table 15-7. Community Classifications								
Participating? Classification Date Classified								
FIPS Code	N/A	N/A	N/A					
DUNS#	Yes	085392637	N/A					
Community Rating System	N/A	N/A	N/A					
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	N/A	N/A	N/A					
Public Protection	N/A	N/A	N/A					
Storm Ready	N/A	N/A	N/A					
Firewise	N/A	N/A	N/A					
Tsunami Ready	N/A	N/A	N/A					

Table 15-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts Comment:	Low
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts Comment:	Low
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities Comment:	Low
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory Comment:	Low
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts Comment:	Low
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks Comment:	Low
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes Comment:	Low
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts Comment:	Low
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts <i>Comment:</i> CIP addresses strategies	Medium
Champions for climate action in local government departments Comment: Regularly discussed in board meetings	Medium
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies Comment:	Unsure
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation Comment: Designated rate fees for construction projects	Medium
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted Comment:	Low
Public Capacity	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk Comment: Often shared in board meetings	High
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts Comment: Support voluntary water use reduction	High
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Low
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Low
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Low

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

15.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

15.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

Capital Improvement Plan—The capital improvement plan includes projects that can help mitigate potential hazards. The District will act to ensure consistency between the hazard mitigation plan and the current and future capital improvement plans. The hazard mitigation plan may identify new possible funding sources for capital improvement projects and may result in modifications to proposed projects based on results of the risk assessment.

Urban Water Management Plan—The Urban Water Management Plan addresses risks also addressed in this hazard mitigation plan including water reliability in drought years and following regional power outages and earthquakes.

15.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- **Capital Improvement Projects**—Capital improvement project proposals may take into consideration hazard mitigation potential as a means of evaluating project prioritization.
- **Emergency Response Plan**—The results of the risk assessment may be used in the next update of the emergency response plan.
- Sewer System Management Plan—The results of the risk assessment may be used in the next update of the sewer system management plan as it relates to infrastructure upgrades to protect against seismic activity and coastal hazards.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

15.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

15.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 15-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

	Table 15-9. Past Natural Hazard Events							
	FEMA							
Type of Event	Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment					
Rain and High Wind Event		January 19, 2021	Trees down, road closures, power outages, damage to structures					
COVID-19	DR-4482	January 20, 2020 Continuing	Ongoing					
Atmospheric River Storm System	CA Disaster 109	January/February 2019	Local stream and street flooding, trees down, power outages					
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows	DR-4353	December 4, 2017- January 31, 2018	Post Thomas Fire debris flows in local rivers, large deposits of debris on local beaches, road closures					
Thomas Fire	DR-4224	December 4, 2017	Public Health issues due to smoke, power outages, sewage spill due to power outage					
February Winter Storm	CA Disaster 77.1	February 2017	Local stream and street flooding, trees down, power outages, debris deposits in local stream and on beaches					
January Winter Storm	CA Disaster 77	January 2017	Local stream and street flooding, trees down, power outages, debris deposits in local stream and on beaches					
Extreme Wind Storm		February 2016	Trees down, power outages, street closures, damage to structures, debris					
Erratic Weather (frost, heat, drought)		Winter 2013	Economic loss					
Tsunami (7.1 earthquake in Japan)		March 11, 2011	Damage to local harbors, marinas and docks					
Tsunami (8.8 earthquake in Chile)		February 27, 2010	Damage to local harbors, marinas and docks					
Storm and Flood		January 18 – 22, 2010.	Local stream and street flooding, trees down, power outages					
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows	DR-1731	October 21 – March 31, 2008	Post burn, flooding, debris and mud flows.					
Severe Storm	DR-1267	January 7 – 11, 2005	Flooding and debris flows					
"El Nino" Storm and Flood		February 1998	Street and stream flooding, debris flows					
Storms and Floods		January and March, 1995	Unknown					
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	January 17 – November 30, 1994	Power and communications disruptions, damage to structures					
Storm and Flood		February 10-15, 1992	Street and stream flooding, debris flows					
Earthquake (Whittier Narrows Earthquake)		October 1, 1987	Unknown					
Storm and Flood		February 25-March 3, 1983	Street and stream flooding, debris flows					
Storm and Flood		February 13-22, 1980	Street and stream flooding, debris flows					
Tsunami (9.5 earthquake in Chile)		May 24, 1960	Damage to docks and ships in Port Hueneme					
St Francis Dam Disaster		March 12, 1928	\$7 Million (1928)—Inundation of nearly the entire area, flooding, debris flows, destruction of infrastructure, high loss of life					

15.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 15-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 15-10. Hazard Risk Ranking						
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category			
1	Dam Failure	36	High			
2	Earthquake	32	High			
3	Drought	9	High			
4	Severe Storm	24	Medium			
5	Severe Weather	24	Medium			
6	Flooding	18	Medium			
7	Landslide	18	Medium			
8	Sea Level Rise	18	Medium			
9	Tsunami	12	Low			
10	Wildfire	0	Low			

15.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Tsunami—The highest elevation in the service area is about 30 feet above sea level and the district operations facility is only about 20 feet above sea level.
- Erosion—Coastal erosion impacts the district service area especially during severe storm events. Impacts are expected to increase as the sea level rises and climate change produces stronger or more frequent coastal storms.
- Earthquake and Liquefaction Zone—Asbestos cement pipe infrastructure is known to have moderate to high vulnerability, especially in liquefaction areas. In order for the infrastructure to be more resilient to seismic activity in the liquefaction zone, it needs to be replaced with PVC C900 pipes, which have a lower vulnerability rating.
- Drought—80 percent of the water distributed by the district is pumped from wells. Only 20 percent is imported.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

15.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 15-11 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 15-11. Status of Previous Plan Actions							
		Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update				
Action Item from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update			
OA 9 —Identify potentially vulnerable public and private utility systems including electric, gas, oil, water, sewer and communication. Upgrade vulnerable systems to ensure the operation and timely restoration of essential systems to reasonable levels of service.			~	CIB-2 CIB-3			
<i>Comment:</i> Closed circuit TV assessments done in 2018, but need to continue even authority over electric, gas, oil or communication utilities.	ry 5 years. The	district does n	ot have cur	rent			
OA 18 —Continue to participate in the NWS TsunamiReady Program through continued implementation of Guideline 4: Community Preparedness measures, including public outreach material and curriculum.			~	CIB-8			
Comment: Public outreach component is part of the CERT outreach and is an ong	oing action that	needs to be c	arried forwa	ard.			
CIBCSD 1—Replace and relocate pipes in vulnerable areas.			✓	CIB-2 CIB-3			

Comment: Sewer line replacement is an ongoing action and needs to be carried forward.

15.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 15-12 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 15-13 identifies the priority for each action. Table 15-14 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 15-12. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix							
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action CIB-1—Wh have experienced	Action CIB-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.						
Hazards Mitigated.	Dam Failure, E	arthquake, Se	evere Storm, S	Severe Weather,	Flooding, Landslide, Sea Level Rise, Tsuna	mi	
Existing	2, 6, 9, 11, 19	CIBCSD		High	General Funds, Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term	
 Action CIB-2—Assess and address the vulnerability of critical sewer infrastructure through the capital improvement plan process, including, but not limited to: Inflow and Infiltration Reduction Sewer Lift Station and Pump Station Rehabilitation Sewer Improvement Projects Pump Station B Replacement Oxnard Wastewater Plant Improvements 							
Existing	2, 6, 9, 11, 19	CIBCSD		High	Staff Time, General Funds, Grant Funding-	Short-term	

LAISUNY	$Z_1 \cup Z_1 = Z_1 \cup Z_2 = Z_1 \cup Z_2 = Z_2 $	CIDCOD	i iigii Ju	ian Time, General Funus, Grant Funuing-	JIOU
				FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	and
					Ongoing

Benefits New or	Objectives Met	Lead	Support	Estimated	Sources of Funding	Timolinoa
Action CIB-3—Ass including, but not lii Easement Ris Port Hueneme Water Distribu Valve Replace Water Supply Fire Flow Impl Hazards Mitigated: Existing	sess and address mited to: k Mitigation Proje Water Agency Ir tition Improvemen ement Upgrades rovements Dam Failure, E 2, 6, 9, 11, 19	Agency the vulnerabil cts nprovements ts arthquake, Dro CIBCSD	Agency ity of critical v bught, Severe	e Storm, Severe High	re through the capital improvement plan proc Weather, Flooding, Landslide, Sea Level Ris Staff Time, General Funds, Grant Funding-	e, Tsunami Short-term
					FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	and Ongoing
Action CIB-4—Re standards	place or renovate	the Administra	ation & Opera	itions Facility to i	neet current seismic and Americans with Dis	abilities Act
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam Failure, E	arthquake, Se	vere Storm, S	Severe Weather,	Flooding, Landslide, Sea Level Rise, Tsunar	ni
Existing	2, 6, 9, 11, 19	CIBCSD		High	General Funds, Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term
Action CIB-5—Act	ively participate in	n the plan maii	ntenance prot	tocols outlined in	Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.	
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	Dam Failure, E Wildfire	arthquake, Dro	ought, Severe	e Storm, Severe	Weather, Flooding, Landslide, Sea Level Ris	e, Tsunami,
New & Existing	2, 8, 17, 19	CIBCSD		Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term
Action CIB-6—Pur	chase generators	s for critical fac	cilities and infr	rastructure that la	ack adequate backup power.	
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam Failure, E	arthquake, Se	vere Storm, S	Severe Weather,	Flooding, Landslide, Tsunami, Wildfire	
Existing	2, 6	CIBCSD		High	Staff Time, General Funds, Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP)	Short-term
Action CIB-7—Stu critical locations. D	dy the feasibility e etermine if space	of using green requirements	energy, such can be met w	as solar power, vith current or ne	for emergency backup power at pump statio w green energy technology. Elooding Landslide, Tsunami	ns and other
Evicting					Staff Time, Conoral Funds, Crant Funding	Short torm
Existing	1, 13, 19	CIBCSD		LOW	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term
Action CIB-8—Con Preparedness mea Hazards Mitigated:	ntinue to participa sures, including p Tsunami	te in the NWS public outreach	TsunamiRea material and	ndy Program thro I curriculum.	ugh continued implementation of Guideline 4	: Community
New & Existing	2, 7, 8, 17	CIBCSD		Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing
a. Short-term = C no completion	ompletion within date	5 years; Long-	term = Comp	letion within 10 y	ears; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing p	orogram with

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 15-13. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	5	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
2	5	Medium	High	No	Yes	Yes	Low	Medium
3	5	Medium	High	No	Yes	Yes	Low	Medium
4	5	High	High	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
5	4	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
6	2	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
7	3	Low	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
8	4	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 15-14. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a						
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazard	ls							
Dam Failure	CIB-2, 3	CIB-1, 2, 3, 4	CIB-5	CIB-7	CIB-6	CIB-2	CIB-7	CIB-5, 7
Earthquake	CIB-2, 3	CIB-1, 2, 3, 4	CIB-5	CIB-7	CIB-6	CIB-2	CIB-7	CIB-5, 7
Drought	CIB-3	CIB-3	CIB-5					CIB-5
Medium-Risk Haz	zards							
Severe Storm	CIB-2, 3	CIB-1, 2, 3, 4	CIB-5	CIB-7	CIB-6	CIB-2	CIB-7	CIB-5, 7
Severe Weather	CIB-2, 3	CIB-1, 2, 3, 4	CIB-5	CIB-7	CIB-6	CIB-2	CIB-7	CIB-5, 7
Flooding	CIB-2, 3	CIB-1, 2, 3, 4	CIB-5	CIB-7	CIB-6	CIB-2	CIB-7	CIB-5, 7
Landslide	CIB-2, 3	CIB-1, 2, 3, 4	CIB-5	CIB-7	CIB-6	CIB-2	CIB-7	CIB-5, 7
Sea Level Rise	CIB-2, 3	CIB-1, 2, 3, 4	CIB-5	CIB-7				CIB-5
Low-Risk Hazard	Low-Risk Hazards							
Tsunami	CIB-2, 3	CIB-1, 2, 3, 4	CIB-5	CIB-7	CIB-6	CIB-2	CIB-7	CIB-5, 7, 8
Wildfire					CIB-6			CIB-5

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

15.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 15-15 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 15-15. Local Public Outreach					
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved			
Channel Islands Beach Emergency Response Team Meetings	Monthly, every third Tuesday	Average attendance 8			
Website—tsunami evacuation and emergency preparedness outreach	Updated as needed	About 10,000 customers			

15.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **Capital Improvement Plan**—The CIP was reviewed for the capabilities assessment, plan integration analysis, and in the development of mitigation actions.
- Port Hueneme Water Agency 2020 Urban Water Management Plan—The urban water management plan was used for the capabilities assessment, plan integration analysis, and in the development of mitigation actions.
- **Emergency Response Plan**—The Emergency Response Plan was reviewed for the capabilities assessment.
- Sewer System Management Plan—The Sewer System Management Plan was reviewed for the capabilities assessment.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

- Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.
- Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Earthquake Resilience Guide for Water and Wastewater Utilities, March 2018—Reviewed for the development of the mitigation action plan.

15.11 FUTURE NEEDS TO BETTER UNDERSTAND RISK/VULNERABILITY

Groundwater Sustainability Plan will require groundwater pumping cutbacks by 50% over the next 20 years.

16. CONEJO RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

16.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Bill Palermo, Park Operations Analyst 403 West Hillcrest Drive Thousand Oaks, CA 91360 Telephone: 805-381-1201 e-mail Address: bpalermo@crpd.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Andrew Mooney, Senior Planner 403 West Hillcrest Drive Thousand Oaks, CA 91360 Telephone: 805-495-6471 e-mail Address: amooney@crpd.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 16-1.

Table 16-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members			
Name Title			
James Friedl	General Manager		
Bill Palermo	Park Operations Analyst		
Andrew Mooney	Senior Park Planner		

16.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

16.2.1 Overview

The Conejo Recreation and Park District (CRPD) is a special district created in 1963 to provide park and recreational services and facilities for the residents of the Conejo Valley. A five-member elected Board of Directors governs the District. The Board will assume responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the General Manager will oversee its implementation. The District currently employs a full-time staff of 94. Funding is obtained through property taxes, State revenue bonds, developer fees, and assessment districts.

The City of Thousand Oaks and CRPD formed the Conejo Open Space Conservation Agency (COSCA) by a Joint Powers Agreement in 1977. This agreement enables the combined agency to conserve natural open space lands and assures the coordination of local land use and resource management decisions that support the goals of the City of Thousand Oaks General Plan and the CRPD Master Plan. Additional agreements between the City of Thousand Oaks, COSCA, and CRPD provide for an extensive equestrian/hiking trail system and a citywide bicycle trail system. In cooperation with the National Park Service, the Mountains Recreation and Conservation Authority,

COSCA, CRPD, and CTO, over 15,000 acres of open space are available for public enjoyment. COSCA, CRPD, and the City of Thousand Oaks maintain approximately 13,215 acres of this amount and a 140-mile multi-use trail system.

16.2.2 Service Area and Trends

The District covers 62 square miles, and serves more than 136,000 residents of Thousand Oaks, Newbury Park, and the Ventura County portion of Westlake Village. Assets

Table 16-2 summarizes the assets of the District and their value.

Table 16-2. Special-Purpose District Assets				
Asset	Value			
Property				
3,254.1 acres of land	\$ unknown			
Equipment				
Vehicles, Blanket	\$1,563,000			
Equipment Blanket	\$2,500,000			
Total:	\$4,063,000			
Critical Facilities				
Borchard Community Center—190 Reino Road, Thousand Oaks, CA 91320	\$2,619,000			
Conejo Community Center—1175 Hendrix Avenue, Thousand Oaks, CA 91360	\$3,571,486			
Dos Vientos Community Center—4801 Borchard Road, Thousand Oaks, CA 91320	\$4,935,548			
Thousand Oaks Community Center—2525 N. Moorpark Rd, Thousand Oaks, CA 91360	\$6,483,858			
Old Meadows Center—1600 Marview Drive, Thousand Oaks, CA 91362	\$1,349,914			
Hillcrest Center—403 West Hillcrest Drive, Thousand Oaks, CA 91360	\$1,088,921 (contents only)			
Conejo Creek South Park	\$1,402,928			
Total: (value of all facilities on Property Schedule: \$60,684,717) \$21,451,655				

16.3 CURRENT TRENDS

Recent updates to the City's General Plan project a build-out population of over 145,000 by 2045. CRPD faces two distinct funding challenges. The first is the high cost of funding new facilities, and the second, the funding of ongoing maintenance and operation of new and existing facilities. Coordination with the City and updates to the District's Master Plan will enable the District to meet the projected service needs of the community.

16.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation

Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 16-3.

An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 16-4.

An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 16-5.

An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 16-6.

Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 16-7.

The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 16-8.

Table 16-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability				
Plan, Study or Program	Date of Most Recent Update	Comment		
CRPD Administration Public Policies and Documents	Continually updated	Public Policies and Documents: Finance & Audit; Forms and Documents		
Memorandum of Understanding for Emergency Care and Shelter Services	5/12/20			
American Red Cross Agreement	5/12/20			
County of Ventura Mass Care Shelter Annex	3/12/19			
CRPD Disaster Management Plan	5/07/20	Internal document not formally approved		

Table 16-4. Fiscal Capability				
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?			
Community Development Block Grants	Yes			
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes			
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes			
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	No			
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	No			
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	No			
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No			
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No			
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes			
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes			

	Table 16-5. Administrative and Technical Capability	
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?
Planners or engineers with know	owledge of land development and land management practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Andrew Mooney, Senior Planner; Bill Palermo, Park Operations Analyst	
Engineers or professionals tra	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Andrew Mooney, Senior Planner; Joe Tornero, Facility Maintenance Supervisor	
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Andrew Mooney, Senior Planner; Matt Kouba, Park Superintendent;	
Staff with training in benefit/co	ost analysis	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Andrew Mooney, Senior Planner; Bill Palermo, Park Operation Analyst	
Surveyors		No
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Bill Palermo, Park Operations Analyst	
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	No
Emergency manager		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Matt Kouba, Park Superintendent	
Grant writers		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	Bill Palermo, Park Operations Analyst	

Table 16-6. Education and Outreach Capability

Criterion	Response	
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	No	
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development? (consultant developed; staff maintained)	Yes	
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website?	Yes	
If yes, briefly describe: Information posted as needed during an event (i.e., emergency shelters; cooling centers)		
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach?		
If yes, briefly describe: Information posted as needed during an event (i.e., emergency shelters; cooling centers)		
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?		
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information?		
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events?	No	

Table 16-7. Community Classifications					
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified		
FIPS Code:	No	N/A	N/A		
DUNS#:	Yes	798289708	N/A		
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A		
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A		
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A		
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A		
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A		
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A		

Table 16-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change			
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a		
Technical Capacity			
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts Comment:	Low		
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts Low Comment:			
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities Comment:	Low		
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory Comment:	Low		
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts Comment:	Low		
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks Comment:	Low		
Implementation Capacity			
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes Comment: Processes in CEQA require climate change impacts to be considered.	Medium		
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts Comment:	Low		
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Medium		
<i>Comment:</i> Strategies include, but not limited to, capturing electrical power through solar carport, emergency backup generators, removal of non-essential turf, LED construction practices, fuel modification, fire resiliency projects, stormwater management, bioswales and planting of vegetation on slopes. An existing agreement with American Red Cross and pending shelter agreement with the County of Ventura aid in providing public assistance during a climate event			
Champions for climate action in local government departments	Medium		
Comment: Planning of development and capital improvement projects include aforementioned strategies in address impacts of climate change. Capital improvement project proposals take into consideration hazard mitigate means of evaluating project prioritization.	sing the negative tion potential as a		
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Medium		
Comment: CRPD Board of Directors and other elected City officials support strategies for implementation of climate	e change adaptation.		
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	Medium		
Comment: Funding for climate change adaptation is available through the District's General Fund and Capital Impr budget.	ovement Projects		
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Medium		
Comment: CRPD works closely with the Ventura County Fire Protection District to eliminate potential risks of wildfire. Fuel modification is managed through an annual weed abatement contract and brush clearance easements.			
Public Capacity			
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Low		
Comment:	1		
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts Low			
Low Low			
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Low		
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Low		

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

16.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

16.5.1 Existing Integration

Conejo Recreation and Park District continually integrates hazard mitigation information and strategies during planning sessions related to capital improvement projects. This includes projects of new development and those related to the major repair of existing facilities (see FY 2021-2023 Adopted Budget via 'CRPD Administration Public Policies and Documents' link, Finance and Audit Section, in Table 16-3 above).

The development of internal documents, such as the 'CRPD Disaster Management Plan', which outlines a disaster response protocol, including training, and procedures for deployment of resources during an event, is another example of this integration. The District has included, in its two-year budget, portable emergency backup generators and electrical plug-in retrofits for these units. Other examples of integration include sustainable building practices, reduction of non-essential turf in response to the ongoing drought and the adoption of facility use agreements with coordinating agencies, such as the City of Thousand Oaks and American Red Cross.

16.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment has not identified any plans or programs for future integration with hazard mitigation information.

16.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

16.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 16-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 16-9. Past Natural Hazard Events						
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment			
COVID-19	DR-4482-CA	3/2020	\$150,000; ongoing			
Woolsey / Hill Fires	DR-4407-CA	11/2018	\$712,000; mutual aid provided in fire response			
Active Shooter, Borderline Shooting	N/A	11/2018	support role; no cost damages			
Sesnon Fire	CA-LAC-08246455	10/2008	\$ 45,970, mutual aid provided in fire response			
California Wildfires	DR-1731-CA	10/2007	\$ 21,982; mutual aid provided in fire response			
California Severe Storms	DR-1577-CA	1/2005	\$131,602; flooding, power outages, debris from winds			

Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
Fire Mitigation	DR-1498-CA	10/2003	\$115,950; mutual aid provided in fire response
Wildfire	N/A	12/2000	Gusty winds fueled wildfire, 600-acres burned; mutual aid
Severe Winter Storms, El Niño	DR-1203-CA	2/1998	\$398,984; flooding, power outages; debris from winds
Winter Storms (Aggregate)	N/A	1996, 1997	Flooding, power outages; debris from heavy winds
Northridge-Simi Earthquake	DR-1008-CA	1/1994	no cost damages
California Fires	DR-1005-CA	10/1993	\$27,288; mutual aid provided in fire response

16.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 16-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

	Table 16-10. Hazard Risk Ranking					
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category			
1	Landslide	51	High			
2	Wildfire	36	High			
3	Earthquake	32	High			
4	Severe Storms	24	Medium			
4	Severe Weather	24	Medium			
5	Flooding	18	Medium			
6	Dam Failure	12	Low			
7	Drought	9	Low			
8	Sea Level Rise; Coastal Erosion	0	Low			
8	Tsunami	0	Low			

16.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern.

Irrespective of the risk ranking above, the principal hazards affecting Conejo Recreation and Park District are wildfire, severe storms and weather, and drought. The following hazard mitigation action plan will address vulnerabilities through flood and erosion control, soil stabilization, defensible space, ignition-resistant construction and infrastructure retrofits. Through independent solutions, public facilities and neighboring properties will have increased protection and full capacity of use.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

16.7 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 16-11 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 16-12 identifies the priority for each action. Table 16-13 summarizes the actions by hazard of concern and type.

		Table 16-11.	Hazard Mitigation	Action Pla	n Matrix			
Benefits New or	Objectives			Estimated		Time aliana 2		
Existing Assets	Met Nietain wildfire k	Lead Agency	Support Agency	COSI t have been i	Sources of Funding			
and weeds to reduce resistance is part of Action CTO-7)	Action CRP-1—Maintain wildfire hazard fuel reduction program for areas that have been identified with overgrown or dead brush, trees and weeds to reduce the potential for tree-to-tree ignition. Ensure that a "maintenance now" component to provide continued fire resistance is part of the program. (Coordinates with Ventura County Fire Protection District Action VFP-6 and City of Thousand Oaks Action CTO-7)							
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> New & Existing	Wildfire 2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19	Ventura County Fire Protection District	CAL FIRE, USDA, Conejo Recreation & Park District, City of Thousand Oaks	Low	General Fund, Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP and FMAP)	Ongoing		
Action CRP-2—Ac	tively participat	e in the plan mainter	nance protocols outline	ed in Volume	1 of this hazard mitigation plan.			
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> New & Existing	Landslide, W 4, 5, 6, 8, 19	ildfire, Earthquake, S County of Ventura	Severe Storms, Severe CRPD	e Weather, Flo Low	ooding, Dam Failure, Drought Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term		
Action CRP-3—Pu allow temporary po centers during a dis	wer connection	tors for critical faciliti s during emergencie d event.)	es and infrastructure thes. (Several CRPD con	nat lack adequest and the second s	uate backup power. Install transfer so ers serve as evacuation shelters or co	witches to poling		
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Existing	Dam Failure, 2, 6, 7, 8	Earthquake, Floodir Conejo Recreation & Park District	ng, Landslide, Severe N/A	Weather, Wild Medium	tfire Capital Improvement Project Budget, Staff Time, Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP)	Short-term		
Action CRP-4—Ma in conjunction with	ajor removal of soil stabilization	vegetation and sedir n and erosion control	nent debris, flood cont I measures Districtwid	rol capacity ir e, at key locat	nprovement to existing drainage infra tions within 26 parks.	astructure		
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Existing	Flooding, Wil 2, 5, 7, 8	dfire, Severe Weath Conejo Recreation & Park District	er N/A	Medium	General Fund, Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term		
Action CRP-5—Re water consumption	etrofit irrigation and runoff.	system components	with bubblers, low-and	le directional	spray heads, and smart controllers t	o reduce		
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> New & Existing	Drought 5, 8, 19	Conejo Recreation & Park District	N/A	Medium	General Fund	Ongoing		
Action CRP-6—Renecessary. All new Hazards Mitigated:	emove non-ess development v Drought	ential turf and install vill incorporate this ac	drought-tolerant plants ction into the design of	s with mulch g each park.	round cover. Irrigation modifications	as		
New & Existing	5, 8, 19	Conejo Recreation & Park District	N/A	Medium	General Fund	Ongoing		
Action CRP-7—Tr opportunities for ha	ack future haza izard awarenes	rd events and impac s.	ts to inform decisions	on future dev	elopment and provide public outreac	h		
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> New & Existing	Dam Failure, 1, 2, 5, 6, 8, 17	Earthquake, Floodir Conejo Recreation & Park District	ng, Landslide, Severe N/A	Weather, Sev Low	ere Storms, Tsunami, Wildfire General Fund	Ongoing		
a. Short-term = C no completion	ompletion withi	n 5 years; Long-term	n = Completion within 7	10 years; Ong	joing= Continuing new or existing pro	ogram with		

	Table 16-12. Mitigation Action Priority							
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	12	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
2	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	No	Low	Low
3	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
4	4	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
5	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
6	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	No	Low	Low
7	6	Low	Low	Yes	No	No	Low	Low

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities

Table 16-13. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
			Action A	Addressing H	azard, by Mitig	gation Type ^a		
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazards	5							
Landslide	CRP-7	CRP-4	CRP-2, 7		CRP-3			CRP-2, 3, 7
Wildfire	CRP-1, 7	CRP-1, 4	CRP-1, 2, 7	CRP-1, 4, 6	CRP-3		CRP-4	CRP-2, 3, 7
Earthquake	CRP-7	CRP-4	CRP-2, 7	CRP-6	CRP-3			CRP-2, 3, 7
Medium-Risk Haza	ards							
Severe Storms	CRP-7	CRP-4	CRP-2, 7		CRP-3			CRP-2, 3, 7
Severe Weather	CRP-7	CRP-4	CRP-2, 7	CRP-4	CRP-3		CRP-4	CRP-2, 3, 7
Flood	CRP-7		CRP-7		CRP-3		CRP-4	CRP-2, 3, 7
Low-Risk Hazards								
Dam Failure	CRP-7				CRP-3			CRP-2, 3, 7
Drought			CRP-2, 7	CRP-1, 5, 6	CRP-3		CRP-5, 6	CRP-2, 3, 7

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

16.8 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 16-14 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table	16-14.	Local	Public	Outreach
--------------	--------	-------	--------	----------

Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved		
Information posted on District website and social media	Ongoing	130,000		

16.9 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- American Red Cross Shelter Agreement—Reviewed for capabilities and integration.
- Center Emergency Action Plan—Reviewed for capabilities
- Memorandum of Understanding for Emergency Care and Shelter Services—Reviewed for capabilities and integration
- County of Ventura Mass Care Shelter Annex—Reviewed for capabilities and integration
- CRPD Capri Property Schedule—Used to list district assets

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

16.10 FUTURE NEEDS TO BETTER UNDERSTAND RISK/VULNERABILITY

The District will study and consider options to increasingly develop projects to reduce risk/vulnerability through climate resilient mitigation activities including, floodplain and stream restoration, green infrastructure methods, and flood diversion and storage.

17. OJAI VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

17.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Jeff Palmer, General Manager 1072 Tico Road Ojai, California 93023 Telephone: 805-646-5548 e-mail Address: jeff.palmer@ojaisan.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Alison Young, Administrative Officer 1072 Tico Road Ojai, California 93023 Telephone: 805-646-5548 e-mail Address: alison.young@ojaisan.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 17-1.

Table 17-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members

Name	Title
Jeff Palmer	General Manager
Alison Young	Administrative Officer

17.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

17.2.1 Overview

The Ojai Valley Sanitary District was established in 1985 as the result of a consolidation of the Ventura Avenue, Oak View, and Meiners Oaks sanitary districts and the Sanitation Department of the City of Ojai. It collects and transports wastewater for treatment at the Ojai Valley Treatment Plant and disposes of effluent and sludge.

The district is a public agency organized under the Sanitary District Act of 1923 and is governed by an elected seven-member board.

The Board of Directors assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; Staff will oversee its implementation.

17.2.2 Service Area

The District provides sanitary sewer service for about 20,000 residents of the City of Ojai and the unincorporated Ojai Valley. The District's collection system consists of approximately 120 miles of trunk and main sewer lines.

17.2.3 Assets

Table 17-2 summarizes the assets of the District and their value.

Table 17-2. Special-Purpose District Assets				
Asset	Value			
Property				
0 acres of land	N/A			
Equipment				
Vehicles	\$1.5 million			
Total:	\$1.5 million			
Critical Facilities				
Tico Administration Office—1072 Tico Road, Ojai CA 93023	\$2.5 million			
Santa Ana Lift Station—Santa Ana Rd, Oak View CA 93022	\$5 million			
Little Santa Ana Lift Station—Santa Ana Rd, Oak View CA 93022	\$1.5 million			
Orchard Lift Station—Ojai Ca 93023	\$5 million			
Wastewater Treatment Plant—6363 N Ventura Ave, Ventura CA 93001	\$27 Million			
Collection System—various areas, Ojai Valley, Ventura CA	\$22.8 million			
Total:	\$63.8 Million			

17.3 CURRENT TRENDS

Flows have been steady for years with little new growth.

17.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 17-3.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 17-4.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 17-5.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 17-6.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 17-7.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 17-8.

Table 17-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability					
Plan, Study or Program	Date of Most Recent Update	Comment			
Budget	7/2021	Annual Budget Adoption			
CIP	7/2021	Reviewed Monthly			
Disaster Operations Plan					
District Code of Regulations	6/2021	Updated through Ordinance No. OVSD-83			
Infiltration & Inflow Master Plan	2014				
Sewer System Management Plan	9/2019				

Table 17-4. Fiscal C	apability
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?
Community Development Block Grants	No
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	No
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes
If yes, specify: Sewer Service Fees	
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	Yes
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	No

Table 17-5. Administrative and Technical Capability				
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?		
Planners or engineers with know	owledge of land development and land management practices	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Operations Manager and General Manager			
Engineers or professionals tra	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Operations Manager and General Manager			
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Operations Manager and General Manager			
Staff with training in benefit/cost analysis				
If Yes, Department /Position:	Operations Manager and General Manager			
Surveyors		No		
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	No		
Scientist familiar with natural h	hazards in local area	No		
Emergency manager		Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Operations Manager and General Manager			
Grant writers		Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Operations Manager and General Manager			

Table 17-6. Education and Outreach Capability					
Criterion	Response				
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes				
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes				
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website?	Yes				
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach?	No				
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?	No				
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information?	No				
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events?	No				

Table 17-7. Community Classifications									
Participating? Classification Date Classified									
FIPS Code	No	N/A	N/A						
DUNS#	Yes	081077164	N/A						
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A						
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A						
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A						
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A						
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A						
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A						

Table 17-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	High
<i>Comment:</i> OVSD has engineering staff to track and record flow & loading as it changes over time. Real time data is operational decisions	available to make
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	High
<i>Comment:</i> OVSD has engineering staff to track and record flow & loading as it changes over time. Real time data is operational decisions	available to make
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities Comment:	Low
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	High
<i>Comment:</i> OVSD has engineering staff to track and record flow & loading as it changes over time. Real time data is operational decisions	available to make
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Low
Comment:	
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks Comment:	Low

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	Medium
Comment: OVSD has capability to make operational decisions to address flow conditions	
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Low
Comment:	
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Medium
Comment: OVSD has capability to make operational decisions to address flow conditions	1
Champions for climate action in local government departments	Low
Comment:	
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Low
Comment:	
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	Low
Comment:	
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Low
Comment:	
Public Capacity	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	High
Comment: Climate risks studied by County of Ventura & City of Ojai	
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts	High
Comment: Climate risks studied by County of Ventura & City of Ojai	
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment:	
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment:	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Low

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

17.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

17.5.1 Existing Integration

No level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and other local plans and programs.

17.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment did not identify any plans or programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future.

17.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

17.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 17-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 17-9. Past Natural Hazard Events						
Type of Event FEMA Disaster # Date Damage Assessment						
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	January 20, 2020 and continuing	District administrative operations were impacted due to stay-at- home orders			
Thomas Fire	FM-5224-CA	12/4/2017	\$90,000			
Wolf Fire	N/A	6/1/2002	This event impacted the Ojai area, but damages specific to the district are unknown.			
Flash Flood	N/A	2/20/2000	Heavy rain, totaling 2 to 6 inches produced flash flooding in Ventura County, but damages specific to the district are unknown.			

17.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 17-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 17-10. Hazard Risk Ranking							
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category				
1	Landslide	33	High				
2	Earthquake	32	Medium				
3	Severe Storms	24	Medium				
4	Severe Weather	24	Medium				
5	Wildfire	18	Medium				
6	Flooding	18	Medium				
7	Dam Failure	12	Low				
8	Drought	9	Low				

17.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

• OVSD has had a direct wildfire impact in the form of damages done by the Thomas Fire. Increased drought conditions make us susceptible to a similar occurrence.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

17.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

The District began to participate in the previous plan, but did not complete participation and therefore does not have a previous action plan.

17.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 17-11 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 17-12 identifies the priority for each action. Table 17-13 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 17-11. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix								
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	bjectives Met Lead Agency Support Agency Estimated Cost Funding						
Action OVS-1—W that have experience	here appropriate, suppo ced repetitive losses an	ort retrofitting, purch d/or are located in I	ase or relocation of s nigh- or medium-risk	structures located ir hazard areas.	n hazard areas, pric	pritizing those		
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthquak	ke, Severe Storms,	Severe Weather, Wild	dfire, Flooding, Dan	n Failure			
Existing	2, 6, 9, 11	OVSD	None	High	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term		
Action OVS-2—Ac	tively participate in the	plan maintenance p	protocols outlined in \	/olume 1 of this haz	zard mitigation plan	l.		
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthquak	ke, Severe Storms,	Severe Weather, Wild	dfire, Flooding, Dan	n Failure, Drought			
New & Existing	2, 8, 11, 19	OVSD	None	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term		
Action OVS-3-Pu	irchase generators for a	all critical facilities a	nd infrastructure that	lack adequate bac	kup power.			
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthquak	ke, Severe Storms,	Severe Weather, Wild	dfire, Flooding, Dar	n Failure			
Existing	2, 7, 8	OVSD	None	High	Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP)	Short-term		
a. Short-term = C no completion	a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date							

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 17-12. Mitigation Action Priority								
# of Objectives# of Equal orDo BenefitsIs ProjectCan Project Be FundedGrantAction #MetBenefitsCostsExceed Cost?Eligible?Programs/ Budgets?PriorityaPrioritya							Grant Pursuit Priority ^a	
1	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
2	4	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
3	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table	17-13. Analysis of M	itigation Actions

	Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a							
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazards								
Landslide		OVS-1, 3	OVS-2		OVS-3			OVS-2
Medium-Risk Hazard	s							
Earthquake		OVS-1, 3	OVS-2		OVS-3			OVS-2
Severe Storms		OVS-1, 3	OVS-2		OVS-3			OVS-2
Severe Weather		OVS-1, 3	OVS-2		OVS-3			OVS-2
Wildfire		OVS-1, 3	OVS-2		OVS-3			OVS-2
Flooding		OVS-1, 3	OVS-2		OVS-3			OVS-2
Low-Risk Hazards								
Dam Failure		OVS-1, 3	OVS-2		OVS-3			OVS-2
Drought			OVS-2					OVS-2

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of administrative and technical or financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

17.9 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **Budget**—as a financial reference point and pre-planning operationally and major expenditures through reserves
- CIP—Summary and tracking of Construction Projects in progress
- Disaster Operations Plan—Guide to disaster preparedness and navigation

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

18. PLEASANT VALLEY RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

18.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Mary Otten, General Manager 1605 E. Burnley Street Camarillo, CA 93010 Telephone: 805-482-1996 Ext. 114 e-mail Address: motten@pvrpd.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Leonore Young, Administrative Services Manager 1605 E. Burnley Street Camarillo, CA 93010 Telephone: 805-482-1996 Ext. 111 e-mail Address: Iyoung@pvrpd.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 18-1.

Table 18-1. Local Hazard Mitig	Table 18-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members					
Name Title						
Mary Otten	General Manager					
Leonore Young Administrative Services Manager						
Bob Cerasuolo	Park Services Manager					
Dylan Gunning	Administrative Analyst					
essica Puckett Administrative Analyst						
Nick Marienthal Park Supervisor						

18.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

18.2.1 Overview

The Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District is a Special District created in 1962 to provide recreation services and programs and to maintain park space which encompasses the city of Camarillo ("City") and surrounding areas. A five-member elected Board of Directors governs the District. The Board assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan: the General Manager will oversee its implementation. The District currently employs a staff of 48. Funding comes primarily through property taxes and fees charged for District classes and programs.

18.2.2 Service Area

The Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District serves the City of Camarillo and the unincorporated areas outside the City of Camarillo city limits to include California State University Channel Island. The

District service area covers 45 square miles with 256 acres of park land, serving a population over 78,936 (as of the latest census).

18.2.3 Assets

Table 18-2 summarizes the assets of the District and their value.

Table 18-2. Special-Purpose District Assets					
Asset	Value				
Property					
256.5 Acres of Land	\$22,732,253				
Adolfo Park 3601 N. Adolfo, Camarillo CA 93010 (3.0 Acres)					
Arneill Ranch Park 1301 Sweetwater, Camarillo CA 93010 (5.0 Acres)					
Birchview Park 5564 Laurel Ridge Lane, Camarillo CA 93012 (0.7 Acres)					
Calleguas Creek Park 675 Avenida Valencia, Camarillo CA 93012 (3.0 Acres)					
Camarillo Oak Grove Park 6968 Camarillo Springs Rd, Camarillo CA 93012 (24.55 Acres)					
Carmenita Park 1506 Sevilla Camarillo CA 93010 (1.0 Acre)					
Charter Oak Park 2500 Charter Oak Drive Camarillo CA 93010 (5.7 Acres)					
Community Center Park 1605 E. Burnley Street Camarillo CA 93010 (12.9 Acres)					
Dos Camino Park 2198 N. Ponderosa Lane Camarillo CA 93010 (4.4 Acres)					
Encanto Park 5300 Encanto Camarillo CA 93012 (3.0 Acres)					
Foothill Park 1501 Cranbrook Street Camarillo CA 93010 (2.3Acres)					
Freedom Park 275 E. Pleasant Valley Road Camarillo CA 93010 (33.9 Acres)					
Heritage Park 1630 Heritage Trail Camarillo CA 93012 (9.0 Acres)					
Las Posas Equestrian Park 2084 Via Veneto Camarillo CA 93010 (2.0 Acres)					
Laurelwood Park 2127 Dexter Camarillo CA 93010 (1.5 Acres)					
Lokker Park 848 Vista Coto Verde Camarillo CA 93010 (7.0 Acres)					
Mel Vincent Park 668 Calistoga Road Camarillo CA 93010 (5.0 Acres)					
Mission Oaks Park 5501 Mission Oaks Blvd Camarillo CA 930102 (20.2 Acres)					
Nancy Bush Park 1150 Bradford Camarillo CA 93010 (3.4 Acres)					
Pitts Ranch Park 1400 Flynn Road Camarillo CA 93012 (10.0 Acres)					
Bob Kildee Community Park 1030 Temple Ave Camarillo CA 93010 (13.0 Acres)					
Quito Park 7073 Quito Court Camarillo CA 93012 (5.0 Acres)					
Springville Park 801 Via Zamora Camarillo CA 93010 (5.0 Ares)					
Trailside Park 5462 Cherry Ridge Drive Camarillo CA 93012 (0.5 Acres)					
Valle Lindo Park 889 Aileen Street Camarillo CA 93010 (10.0 Acres)					
Pleasant Valley Fields 3777 Village at the Park Drive Camarillo CA 93010 (55.0 Acres)					
Woodcreek Park 1200 Woodcreek Road Camarillo CA 93012 (5.0 Acres)					
Woodside Park 247 Japonica Avenue Camarillo CA 93012 (5.0 Acres)					
Equipment					
20 Parks Vehicles	\$805,000				
4 Tractors	\$140.000				
3 Generators	\$15,000				
1-200 Gallon Portable Water Tank	\$500				
2-250 Portable Water Tanks	\$1,500				
	\$11 000				
Total	\$973 ЛЛЛ				

Asset	Value
Critical Facilities	
Community Center (Admin Office, Auditorium, Classrooms and Senior Center) 1605 E. Burnely St. Camarillo 93010	
Freedom Park 275 E. Pleasant Valley Road Camarillo CA 93010	
Pleasant Valley Aquatic Center 1030 Temple Ave Camarillo CA 93010	
Pleasant Valley Recreation and Parks Operation Building 480 Skyway Dr. Camarillo CA 93010	
Pleasant Valley Recreation and Parks Shop & Yard 380 Skyway Camarillo CA 93010	
Total:	\$8,712,616

18.3 CURRENT TRENDS

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District has a population of 78,936 (2020 Census) and is located in Ventura County, and encompasses the City of Camarillo and surrounding areas. The City of Camarillo is currently growing at a rate of 1.42% annually. (<u>https://worldpopulationreview.com</u>). Slated for future development, multiple new housing projects within the boundaries of the District will increase the population, impacting the capacity of existing parks and facilities the District operates. The future growth of facilities within the District includes new sports fields, new parks, pickleball courts, and a new Senior and Community Center.

Emergency services use district parks and facilities as staging locations for natural disasters, including wildfires within the region. Additionally, the District facilities are used as evacuation centers where that District staff monitor emergency operations.

18.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 18-3.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 18-4.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 18-5.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 18-6.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 18-7.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 18-8.

Table 18-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability		
Plan, Study or Program	Date of Most Recent Update	Comment
Capital Improvement Plan	6/5/2013	Plan is for 2013-2018
Strategic Plan	5/5/2021	Plan is for 2021-2026
Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance Plan		Plan being devised starting Sept 2021
Fiscal Year Budget	7/7/2021	Updated Annually
Reserve Policy	9/1/2021	Reviewed every three to five years

Table 18-4. Fiscal Capability		
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?	
Community Development Block Grants	Yes, through the City of Camarillo	
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes	
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes	
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	No	
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes	
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	No	
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No	
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No	
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes	
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes	
Other	Yes	
If yes, specify: Quimby Fees		

Table 18-5. Administrative and Technical Capability		
Staff/Personnel Resource	Available?	
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices	No	
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices		
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards	No	
Staff with training in benefit-cost analysis		
If Yes, Department /Position: Administration Dept./Admin Services Manager, Administrative Analyst		
Surveyors	No	
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS applications	No	
Scientist familiar with natural hazards in local area		
Emergency manager	No	
Grant writers	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position: Various staff dependent upon specific grant		

Table 18-6. Education and Outreach Capability		
Criterion	Response	
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes	
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes	
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website?	No	
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach?	No	
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?	No	
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information?	No	
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events?	No	

Table 18-7. Community Classifications			
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified
FIPS Code	N/A		N/A
DUNS#	Yes	077230183	N/A
Community Rating System	N/A		N/A
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	N/A		N/A
Public Protection	N/A		N/A
Storm Ready	N/A		N/A
Firewise	N/A		N/A
Tsunami Ready	N/A		N/A

Table 18-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	Medium
Comment: Water, Electricity	
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	Medium
Comment: Water, Electricity, Tankless Water heaters	
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Low
Comment:	
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	Low
Comment:	
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Low
Comment:	
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	Low
Comment:	
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	Medium
Comment: Water, Electricity, Vehicle	
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Medium
Comment: Water, Vehicle, Urban Forest	

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts Comment: Turf reduction	Medium
Champions for climate action in local government departments Comment:	Low
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies Comment:	Low
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation Comment: Turf Mitigation, LED funding	Medium
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted Comment:	Low
Public Capacity	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk Comment:	Low
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts Comment:	Low
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Low
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Low
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Low

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

18.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

18.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

• The Strategic Plan contains goals that align with hazard mitigation including green initiatives and sustainability, increased use of technology for hazard awareness and public outreach, and retrofits to facilities to meet new design standards.

- Grid Pruning—Certified arborist hired by the District has put a grid pruning schedule together to
 ensure trees are maintained in the event of high winds, branches are secure, not weak,
 diseased or dead.
- Long term plan in place to mitigate Charter Oaks windrow Eucalyptus trees (approx. 220 trees).
- Annually clear brush at Las Posas Equestrian Park and trail as well as Camarillo Grove Park.
- Annually clear and prep storm drains prior to winter storms.
- Parks Mow/Water Schedule—The district has over 256 acres of parkland that is maintained with regular maintenance. Should a disaster occur, District parks have the capability to react quickly if they are needed for emergency usage.
- Aquatics Maintenance—Showers at the aquatics center are fully maintained. If an emergency event occurred, the showers in the aquatics center could be used either for emergency personnel or citizens who have been displaced during the event.
- Community Center Auditorium/Freedom Center—Community Center and Freedom Center is available to either house emergency personnel or citizens who have been displaced. Community Center and Freedom Center is maintained at all times.
- District electronic marquee sign has the capability to display emergency situations and weather conditions.

18.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- The District does not have a generator for any of its sites. Placing a generator at the Community Center location would enable the district to provide shelter/housing for emergency personnel or citizens who have become displaced due to an emergency event
- The District does not currently have a recovery plan, but could partner with the City of Camarillo to offer resources and staffing in the event of an emergency. The District could build a Post-Disaster Recovery Plan partnering with the City of Camarillo to help lay out policies, operational strategies and roles and responsibilities that would help guide the decisions and actions of community leaders relative to long-term recovery and redevelopment following a major catastrophic disaster.
- Future Capital Improvement Projects could take hazard mitigation into consideration when evaluating project prioritization.
- Send selected staff to a Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) class.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

18.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

18.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 18-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 18-9. Past Natural Hazard Events			
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
California COVID-19	DR-4482	March 22, 2020	Ongoing
California COVID-19	EM-3428	March 13, 2020	Ongoing
Wildfire	795861	November 8, 2018	The Woolsey Fire burned 96,949 across in Ventura and Los Angeles county. In total, the Woolsey Fire destroyed 1,643 structures, damaged an additional 364 structures. Three deaths.
Wildfire	795860	November 8, 2018	The Woolsey Fire burned 96,949 across in Ventura and Los Angeles county. In total, the Woolsey Fire destroyed 1,643 structures, damaged an additional 364 structures. Three deaths.
Wildfire	729837	December 4, 2017	In all, the Thomas Fire burned 281,893 acres, making it the largest recorded fire in the state of California. One firefighter died
Flash Flood	553273	December 12, 2014	Intense rainfall over the Springs Fire burn scar generated flash flooding as well as mud and debris flow in the community of Camarillo Springs. A wall of mud and debris severely damaged ten homes.
Debris Flow	544619	October 31, 2014	Two homes were damaged by mud. The debris flow occurred near the burn scar of the Springs Fire
Wildfire	439713	May 2, 2013	The Springs Fire burned 24,251 acres. Six commercial properties were damaged and 10 firefighter injuries were reported.
Wildfire	439712	May 2, 2013	The Springs Fire burned 24,251 acres. Six commercial properties were damaged and 10 firefighter injuries were reported.
Flood	5688228	March 25, 1999	N/A
Tornado	5640770	May 13, 1998	Weak tornado. No damage reported.

18.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 18-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.
Table 18-10. Hazard Risk Ranking					
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category		
1	Landslide	33	High		
2	Earthquake	32	High		
3	Severe Storms	24	Medium		
4	Severe Weather	24	Medium		
5	Dam Failure	22	Medium		
6	Flooding	18	Medium		
7	Wildfire	12	Low		
8	Drought	9	Low		

18.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- The jurisdiction has experienced increasingly intense wildfires that threaten District land and property. The District provides emergency personnel staging areas and public evacuation locations.
- The jurisdiction has seen landslides in correlation to the burn areas loss of vegetation
- Severe storms and weather
- The jurisdiction has experience landslides due to wildfires destroying vegetation.
- One significant District asset is not equipped with a generator.
- The jurisdiction has experienced severe storms resulting in flash flooding threatening District property.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

18.7 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 18-11 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 18-12 identifies the priority for each action. Table 18-13 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 18-11. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix								
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a		
Action PLV-1—Where appropriate, provide earthquake retrofitting for hardening and to build resilience to critical infrastructure.								
Hazards Mitigated: Earthquake, Landslide								
Existing	1, 2, 5, 6, 8, 9, 11, 13, 14, 15	PVRPD	None	High	HMGP, BRIC, FMA, General Fund	Long-Term		

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timelinea		
Action PLV-2—Ac	tively participate in plar	n maintenan	ce protocols outli	ned in Volum	ne 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.			
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthquak	ke, Severe S	Storms, Severe W	eather, Dam	Failure, Flooding, Wildfire, Drought			
New & Existing	1, 4, 6, 8, 19	PVRPD	None	Low	General Funds	Short-term		
Action PLV-3—Purchase generators for critical facilities and infrastructure that lack adequate backup power, included but not limited to								
the Camarillo Com	munity Center.	.						
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	Landslide, Earthquak	ke, Severe S	storms, Severe w	eather, Dam	i Fallure, Flooding, Wildfire, Drought			
Existing	2, 6, 18	PVRPD	None	High	HMGP, BRIC, General Funds	Short-term		
Action PLV-4—De	evelop a recovery plan,	partner with	the City of Cama	rillo to offer	resources and staffing in the event of an e	emergency.		
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthquak	ke, Severe S	Storms, Severe W	eather, Dam	Failure, Flooding, Wildfire, Drought	1		
New	2, 8, 19	PVRPD	City of Camarillo	Low	HMGP, General Funds	Short-term		
Action PLV-5—Ide Disabilities Act, etc	entify features and ame .) Landslide Earthquak	nities with th	ne existing facilitie	es to be upda	ated or improved (Fire Codes, Americans	with		
New & Existing	2, 4, 9	PVRPD	None	High	HMGP, BRIC, FMA, General Fund, Quimby	Long-Term		
Action PLV-6—En	hance technology to er	ngage the co	ommunity by shar	ing informati	on more effectively and efficiently across	the		
organization and w	ith the community.							
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthquak	ke, Severe S	Storms, Severe W	eather, Dam	Failure, Flooding, Wildfire, Drought			
New & Existing	1, 7, 8, 17	PVRPD	None	Low	FMA, General Fund	Short-Term		
Action PLV-7—De	velop a drought conting	gency plan i	ncorporating utiliz	ing drought-	resistant landscapes on District-owned fa	cilities.		
New & Existing	Drougni 4, 5, 11, 13, 14, 15,	PVRPD	None	Low	HMGP, BRIC, FMA, General Fund	Short-Term		
	19							
Action PLV-8—Tra employees and ele	ain emergency respond cted officials on the pot	ers and dev ential hazar	elop a strategy to dexposures and	emergency	tage of pre- and post-disaster opportunitie response protocol.	es. Educate		
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthquak	ke, Severe S	Storms, Severe W	eather, Dam	n Failure, Flooding, Wildfire, Drought			
New & Existing	1, 4, 8	PVRPD	None	Medium	HMGP, BRIC, FMA, General Funds	Short-term		
Action PLV-9-Cr	eate and maintain defer	nsible space	e around District s	structures an	d infrastructure.			
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire, Landslide							
New & Existing	4, 5, 11, 13	PVRPD	None	Medium	HMGP, BRIC, General Funds	Short-term		
Action PLV-10-U	se performance metric:	s and data t	o evaluate and m	onitor impac	ts of climate change and natural hazard ri	sk reduction		
strategies on public	c health and social equi	ty						
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Earthquak	ke, Severe S	storms, Severe W	eather, Dam	Hallure, Flooding, Wildfire, Drought	Chart Tarre		
New OL	1, 2, 4, 15, 19	PVKPD	ivone	LOW	HIVIGP, BRIC, FMA, General Fund	Snort-Term		
a. Short-term = C no completion	completion within 5 year date	rs; Long-terr	m = Completion w	lithin 10 year	rs; Ungoing= Continuing new or existing p	program with		

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 18-12. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	10	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
2	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
3	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
4	3	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
5	3	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium
6	4	Low	Low	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
7	7	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
8	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
9	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
10	5	Low	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 18-13. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
			Action Ad	dressing Haza	ard, by Mitigat	tion Type ^a		
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazards								
Landslide	PLV-2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-1, 2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-6, 8, 9, 10	PLV-2, 5, 7, 9, 10	PLV-3, 4, 6, 8, 10	PLV-1, 2, 5, 9, 10	PLV-2, 7, 10	PLV-2, 4, 6, 8, 10
Earthquake	PLV-2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-1, 2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-6, 8, 10	PLV-2, 5, 10	PLV-3, 4, 6, 8, 10	PLV-1, 2, 5, 10	PLV-2, 7, 10	PLV-2, 4, 6, 8, 10
Medium-Risk Hazards	S							
Severe Storms	PLV-2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-6, 8, 10	PLV-2, 5, 10	PLV-3, 4, 6, 8, 10	PLV-2, 5, 10	PLV-2, 7, 10	PLV-2, 4, 6, 8, 10
Severe Weather	PLV-2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-6, 8, 10	PLV-2, 5, 10	PLV-3, 4, 6, 8, 10	PLV-2, 5, 10	PLV-2, 7, 10	PLV-2, 4, 6, 8, 10
Dam Failure	PLV-2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-6, 8, 10	PLV-2, 5, 10	PLV-3, 4, 6, 8, 10	PLV-2, 5, 10	PLV-2, 7, 10	PLV-2, 4, 6, 8, 10
Flooding	PLV-2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-6, 8, 10	PLV-2, 5, 10	PLV-3, 4, 6, 8, 10	PLV-2, 5, 10	PLV-2, 7, 10	PLV-2, 4, 6, 8, 10
Low-Risk Hazards								
Wildfire	PLV-2, 4, 5, 7, 10	PLV-2, 4, 5, 7, 10	PLV-6, 8, 9, 10	PLV-2, 5, 7, 9, 10	PLV-3, 4, 6, 8, 10	PLV-2, 5, 9, 10	PLV-2, 7, 10	PLV-2, 4, 6, 8, 10
Drought	PLV-2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-2, 4, 5, 10	PLV-6, 8, 9, 10	PLV-2, 5, 7, 10	PLV-3, 4, 6, 8, 10	PLV-2, 5, 9, 10	PLV-2, 7, 10	PLV-2, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

18.8 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **PVRPD Fee Schedule**—Fee schedule is used to determine the pricing for District indoor and outdoor facilities.
- **PVRPD Capital Improvement Plan**—Capital Improvement Plan is used to plan projects as the community grows and changes. The plan can also be adapted to include projects to mitigate hazards if needed. It was reviewed while developing the action plan for this annex.
- **PVRPD American with Disabilities Act Transition Plan**—Americans with Disabilities Act Plan is part of the FY21-22 budget. Plan will help District identify and correct barriers that limit access to programs, services, and activities by persons with disabilities. It was reviewed while developing the action plan for this annex.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

19. SATICOY SANITARY DISTRICT

19.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Tim Doyle, Engineering Analyst 1001 Partridge Drive, Suite 150 Ventura, California 93003-0704 Telephone: 805-658-4606 e-mail Address: tim.doyle@theprdgroup.net

Alternate Point of Contact

Mark Norris, General Manager 1001 Partridge Drive, Suite 150 Ventura, California 93003-0704 Telephone: 805-658-4621 e-mail Address: marknorris@vrsd.com

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 19-1.

Table 19-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members				
Name	Title			
Tim Doyle	Engineering Analyst			
Mark Norris	General Manager			
Richard Jones	Operations Manager			
Alvertina Rivera	Director of Finance			

19.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

19.2.1 Overview

The Saticoy Sanitary District is a special district created in 1941 to provide wastewater (sewer) service. A five-member elected Board of Directors governs the District. The Board assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the General Manager will oversee its implementation. The District currently has no employees and contracts via Ventura Regional Sanitation District for its administrative and operational work with direct contracts for the General Manager and Engineering Analyst services. Funding comes primarily through sewer service rates.

19.2.2 Service Area

The Saticoy Sanitary District serves an unincorporated area of the County of Ventura with the City of Ventura to the west. The current total service area is 0.35 square miles. As of May 30, 2021, the District serves approximately 3,600 wastewater customers through 292 parcels located within the District.

19.2.3 Assets

Table 19-2 summarizes the assets of the District and their value.

Table 19-2. Special-Purpose District Assets					
Asset	Value				
Property					
4.88 acres of land	\$390,500				
Equipment					
Total length of WW pipe—4.4 miles (\$2.11M/mile, includes varied sizes 6"-16" and manholes)	\$9,292,800				
Emergency Diesel Generator	\$40,000				
Three high-capacity wastewater pumps	\$30,000				
Four 3-hp blower/pump motors	\$20,000				
Total:	\$9,382,800				
Critical Facilities					
WW Treatment Plant—1419 Lirio St.	\$5,223,400				
Total:	\$5,223,400				

19.3 CURRENT TRENDS

The District only serves the unincorporated community of Saticoy. Population within the service has remained stable over the past 5 years and there have been no new developments within the District. There are 45 vacant parcels that could have dwelling units built there but the District has no information on any future plans. There is no potential expansion of the District's boundaries.

19.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 19-3.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 19-4.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 19-5.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 19-6.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 19-7.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 19-8.

Table 19-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability						
Plan, Study or Program	Date of Most Recent Update	Comment				
CA Cease and Desist Order (R4-2013-0098)	2013					
Waste Discharge Requirement (R4-2013-0092)	2013					
Emergency Response Plan	2019					
Rules and Regulations for the Sewage Collection System	1989					
Sewer System Management Plan	2015					
Ordinance SSD-14 Sewer Policy	2021					

Table 19-4. Fiscal Capability

Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?
Community Development Block Grants	Yes
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	No
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes
If yes, specify: VC Tax Rolls	
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	No
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes

	Table 19-5. Administrative and Technical Capability				
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?			
Planners or engineers with know	owledge of land development and land management practices	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contractor				
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices					
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contractor				
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contractor				
Staff with training in benefit-co	ost analysis	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contractor				
Surveyors		Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contractor				
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contractor				
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contractor				
Emergency manager		Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	General Manager or Operations Manager				
Grant writers		Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contractor				

Table 19-6. Education and Outreach Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	No			
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	No			
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website?	No			
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach?	No			
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?	No			
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information?	No			
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events?	No			

Table 19-7. Community Classifications							
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified				
FIPS Code	No	N/A	N/A				
DUNS#	Yes	149532686	N/A				
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A				
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A				
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A				
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A				
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A				
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A				

Table 19-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts Comment:	Low
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts Comment:	Low
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities Comment:	Low
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory Comment:	Low
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts Comment:	Low
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks Comment:	Low
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes Comment:	Low
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts Comment:	Low

	Jurisdiction
Criterion	Ratinga
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts <i>Comment:</i>	Low
Champions for climate action in local government departments Comment:	Low
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies Comment:	Low
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation Comment: None	Low
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted Comment:	Low
Public Capacity	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk Comment:	Low
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts Comment:	Low
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment: Unknown given the demographics but likely minimal	Low
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment: Minimal since Saticoy is a severely disadvantaged community	Low
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	Low

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

19.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

19.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

• **Capital Improvement Plan**—The capital improvement plan includes projects that can help mitigate potential hazards through rehabilitating key components. The District will act to ensure consistency between the hazard mitigation plan and the current and future capital improvement plans. The hazard mitigation plan may identify new possible funding sources for capital improvement projects and may result in modifications to proposed projects based on results of the risk assessment. Currently, the District utilizes the Department of Housing and Urban

Development CDBG program and is in the design phase for the State of California Prop1-TA Bond Program.

• **Emergency Response Plan**—The results of a risk assessment were used in the development of the emergency response plan and are so noted in the plan.

19.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- **Capital Improvement Projects**—Capital improvement project proposals may take into consideration hazard mitigation potential as a means of evaluating project prioritization. But the critical criteria remains the risk assessment and needs prioritization coupled with funding availability.
- **Post-Disaster Recovery Plan**—The District does not have a recovery plan and intends to develop one as a mitigation planning action during the next five years. The plan will build on the mitigation goals and objectives identified in the mitigation plan.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

19.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

19.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 19-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction. Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 19-9. Past Natural Hazard Events						
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment			
COVID-19	DR-4482	January 20, 2020 Continuing	Ongoing			
Atmospheric River Storm System	CA Disaster 109	January/February 2019	N/A			
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows	DR-4353	December 4, 2017- January 31, 2018	N/A			
Thomas Fire	4224-DR-CA	December 4, 2017	N/A			
February Winter Storm	CA Disaster 77.1	February 2017	N/A			
January Winter Storm	CA Disaster 77	January 2017	N/A			
Tsunami (7.1 earthquake in Japan)		March 11, 2011	N/A			
Tsunami (8.8 Quake in Chile)		February 27, 2010	N/A			
Storm and Flood		January 18 – 22, 2010.	Unknown			
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows	DR-1731	October 21 – March 31, 2008	Unknown			

	FEMA Disaster		
Type of Event	#	Date	Damage Assessment
Severe Storm	DR-1267	January 7 – 11, 2005	Unknown
Severe Storms/Flooding	DR-1577	January 2005	Unknown
"El Nino" Storm and Flood		February 1998	Unknown
Storms and Floods		January and March, 1995	Unknown
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	January 17 – November 30, 1994	Unknown
Storm and Flood		February 10-15, 1992	Unknown
Storm and Flood		February 25-March 3, 1983	Unknown
Storm and Flood		February 13-22, 1980	Unknown
Sespe Creek Flood		March 4, 1978	Unknown
Storms and Floods (Calleguas Creek Flood)		February 28-March 5, 1978	Unknown
Severe Storms/Flooding	DR-211	January 1969	Unknown

19.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 19-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 19-10. Hazard Risk Ranking						
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category			
1	Earthquake	36	High			
1	Flooding	36	High			
2	Landslide	24	Medium			
2	Dam Failure	24	Medium			
2	Severe Weather	24	Medium			
2	Severe Storms	24	Medium			
3	Wildfire	15	Low			
3	Sea Level Rise	15	Low			
3	Tsunami	15	Low			
4	Drought	9	Low			

19.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- With 80% of the District's facilities underground (wastewater pipelines, storage tanks), the Risk Ranking Score for earthquake was elevated from the County level of 24 to 36.
- Structural stability for the above ground facilities and piping to retard flooding damage.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

19.7 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 19-11 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 19-12 identifies the priority for each action. Table 19-13 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 19-11. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix						
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a
Action SAT-1—Will prioritizing those the	here appropriat at have experie	te, support retr enced repetitiv	ofitting, rehab e losses and/	oilitation, or relo or are located i	cation of structures located in potential hazard are n high- or medium-risk hazard areas.	eas,
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam Failure	, Earthquake,	Flooding, Lan	dslide, Severe	Weather, Sea Level, Tsunami	
Existing	2, 6, 9, 11	Saticoy SD	N/A	High	Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term
Action SAT-2—Ac	tively participation	te in the plan r	naintenance p	protocols outline	ed in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.	
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake,	Flooding, Lan	dslide, Dam F	ailure, Severe	Weather, Severe Storms, Wildfire, Drought	
New & Existing	2, 8, 11, 19	Saticoy SD	N/A	Low	General Funds	Short-term
Action SAT-3-Pu	irchase genera	tor for treatme	nt plant that la	acks adequate	backup power.	
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam Failure	, Earthquake,	Flooding, Lan	dslide, Severe	Weather, Tsunami	
New & Existing	2, 7, 8	Saticoy SD	N/A	Medium	CIP & Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP)	Short-term
Action SAT-4—Develop a post disaster action plan that includes assistance with grant fund writing, debris removal components, and warehousing of critical infrastructure components.						
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam Failure	, Earthquake,	Flooding, Lan	dslide, Severe	Weather, Sea Level, Tsunami	
Existing	2, 8, 19	Saticoy SD	N/A	Medium	General Funds & Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Ongoing

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 19-12. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
SAT-1	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
SAT-2	4	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
SAT-3	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
SAT-4	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 19-13. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
			Action Ad	dressing Haz	ard, by Mitigat	ion Type ^a		
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazards								
Earthquake		SAT-1	SAT-2		SAT-3, 4	SAT-1		SAT-2, 4
Flooding	SAT-1	SAT-1	SAT-2		SAT-3, 4	SAT-1		SAT-2, 4
Medium-Risk Hazards	S							
Landslide		SAT-1	SAT-2		SAT-3, 4	SAT-1		SAT-2, 4
Dam Failure		SAT-1	SAT-2		SAT-3, 4	SAT-1		SAT-2, 4
Severe weather/storms	SAT-1	SAT-1	SAT-2		SAT-3, 4	SAT-1		SAT-2, 4
Low-Risk Hazards								
Wildfire	SAT-1	SAT-1	SAT-2		SAT-3, 4	SAT-1		SAT-2, 4
Drought								SAT-2, 4

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

19.8 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **5-year CIP** was reviewed to determine if the risk assessment and hazard mitigation factors could be comingled and used to develop a more structured needs base.
- The Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) Cease and Desist Order was instrumental to prioritize the hazards the District faces due to certain system deficiencies caused by an aging infrastructure and vulnerabilities if not corrected.
- The District reviewed its **Waste Discharge Permit** and **Emergency Response Plan** along with the **Threat Assessment Matrix** to ensure that the incorporation of a Hazard Mitigation Plan could be achieved and implemented accordingly.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan. This will be incorporated as the District moves along in this process.

20. TRIUNFO WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT

20.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Timothy Doyle, Engineering Program Mgr. 1001 Partridge Dr., Suite 100 Ventura, CA 93003-0704 Telephone: 805-658-4606 e-mail Address: timdoyle@triunfowsd.com

Alternate Point of Contact

Mark Norris, General Manager 1001 Partridge Dr., Suite 100 Ventura, CA 93003-0704 Telephone: 805-658-4621 e-mail Address: <u>marknorris@triunfowsd.com</u>

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 20-1.

Table 20-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members				
Name	Title			
Timothy Doyle	Engineering Program Manager			
Mark Norris	General Manager			
Richard Jones	Operations Manager			
Vickie Dragan	Director of Finance			
Chi Hermann	Administrative Program Manager			

20.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

20.2.1 Overview

The Triunfo Water & Sanitation District is a special district created in 1963 to provide wastewater (sewer) service. The District expanded its service to the community in 1993 with the purchase of the Metropolitan Water Company located within the District's boundaries in Oak Park. A five-member elected Board of Directors governs the District. The Board assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the General Manager will oversee its implementation. The District currently has 9 employees and contracts via Ventura Regional Sanitation District for its operational services. Funding comes primarily through potable water and sewer service rates.

20.2.2 Service Area and Trends

Covering a service area of approximately 50 square miles, the District provides wastewater collection and treatment services to more than 30,000 people in Oak Park, Lake Sherwood, Bell Canyon, and the

Westlake Village and North Ranch portions of Thousand Oaks. Triunfo also supplies potable water to more than 14,000 people in Oak Park.

20.2.3 Assets

Table 20-2 summarizes the assets of the District and their value.

Table 20-2. Special-Purpose District A	ssets
Asset	Value
Property	
7.17 acres of land	\$573,900
Equipment	
Total length of PW pipe—49 miles (\$2.1M/mile, includes varied sizes 6"-30" and valves/PRVs)	\$102,900,000
Total length of WW pipe—129 miles (\$2.3M/mile, includes varied sizes 6"-18" and manholes)	\$296,700,000
Emergency Diesel Generators (7 generators with varied KVA output)	\$385,000
SCADA System	\$200,000
Total:	\$400,758,900
Critical Facilities	
Oak Canyon Reservoir 2.4 MG, 1115 Kanan Rd, 91377	\$8,100,000
Deerhill Reservoir 2.2 MG, 990-1/2 Lambourne Ct, 91377	\$2,690,000
Savoy Reservoir 1.6 MG, 322-1/2 Savoy Ct, 91377	\$1,783,000
Kilburn Reservoir 0.86 MG, 4997 Kilburn Ct, 91377	\$877,000
Deerhill Pump Station, 5000 Bishopwood Ln, 91377	\$2,700,000
Lindero Pump Station, 753 Lindero Canyon Rd, 91377	\$495,800
Savoy Pump Station, 322-1/2 Savoy Ct, 91377	\$882,000
Lambourne Booster Station, 990-1/2 Lambourne Ct, 91377	\$75,000
Smoketree Booster Station, 6613 Smoketree Ave, 91377	\$75,000
Bell Canyon Lift Station, 62-1/2 Buckskin Rd, 91307	\$532,200
Carlisle Lift Station, 2845 Calbourne Ln, 91361	\$574,000
Lakeside Lift Station, 654 Lake Sherwood Dr, 91361	\$195,000
North Ranch Lift Station, Country Valley Rd & Meadow Grove, 91362	\$170,000
Polo Lift Station, E. Potrero Rd & Polo St, 91361	\$150,000
Westlake Lift Station, Triunfo Canyon & Westshore Ln, 91361	\$150,000
Total:	\$19,449,000

20.3 CURRENT TRENDS

Population within the District's service area has remained relatively stable over the past 5 years and there have been no new major developments within the District. Although Oak Park is basically built-out, there remain portions of Lake Sherwood, Bell Canyon, and the Westlake area that have parcels available for residential dwellings. These parcels are being slowly developed with approximately 5-7 new homes per year. In addition, there are ADU (Accessory Dwelling Unit) improvements to 2-3 parcels per year. There is no potential expansion of the District's boundaries.

20.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 20-3.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 20-4.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 20-5.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 20-6.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 20-7.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 20-8.

Table 20-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability						
Plan, Study or Program	Date of Most Recent Update	Comment				
Urban Water Management Plan	2015	2020 version pending				
Emergency Response Plan	2015	2020 version pending				
Rules and Regulations for the Sewage Collection System	1989					
Ordinance TSD-202 Sewer Pretreatment Policy	2021					
Sewer System Management Plan	2015					

Table 20-4. Fiscal Capability					
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?				
Community Development Block Grants	Yes				
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes				
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	No				
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes				
If yes, specify: VC Tax Rolls					
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	No				
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes				
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No				
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No				
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes				
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes				

Table 20-5. Administrative and Technical Capability					
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?			
Planners or engineers with know	ledge of land development and land management practices	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contractor				
Engineers or professionals traine	ed in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Administrative Dept./Contractor				
Planners or engineers with an un	iderstanding of natural hazards	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Administrative Dept./Contractor				
Staff with training in benefit-cost	analysis	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Finance Dept.				
Surveyors		Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contractor				
Personnel skilled or trained in GI	S applications	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Administrative Dept./Contractor				
Scientist familiar with natural haz	ards in local area	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contractor				
Emergency manager		Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	General Manager or Operations Manager				
Grant writers		Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Contractor				
Other		Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	As needed				

Table 20-6. Education and Outreach Capability					
Criterion	Response				
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?					
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes				
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website?					
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe: Have social media but not currently used for hazard mitigation outreach					
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?	No				
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information?					
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe: Reverse 911/email/social media	Yes				

Table 20-7. Community Classifications								
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified					
FIPS Code	No	N/A	N/A					
DUNS#	Yes	156-168205	N/A					
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A					
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A					
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A					
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A					
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A					
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A					

Table 20-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion	Jurisdiction Ratinga
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	Low
Comment:	
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	Low
Comment:	
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Low
Comment:	
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	Low
Comment:	
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Low
Comment:	
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	Low
Comment:	
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	Low
Comment:	
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Low
Comment:	
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Low
Comment:	
Champions for climate action in local government departments	Low
Comment:	
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Low
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	LOW
Comment:	1
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	LOW
Public Capacity	Madium
Local residents knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	medium
	Madium
Commont: District residents are highly supportive of measures to minimize risk and address climate issues	medium
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Modium
Commont: Roing supportive of percessary changes peed by the District residents are willing to cooperate within r	ason as roquested
by the Agency or other government entities.	eason, as requested
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium
Comment: Median income level is well above the State average giving additional resources to support needed char	nges to address
impacts	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment:	
a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvem	ent;

Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

20.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

20.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- **Capital Improvement Plan**—The capital improvement plan includes projects that can help mitigate potential hazards through rehabilitating key components. The District will act to ensure consistency between the hazard mitigation plan and the current and future capital improvement plans. The hazard mitigation plan may identify new possible funding sources for capital improvement projects and may result in modifications to proposed projects based on results of the risk assessment.
- Emergency Response Plan—The results of a risk assessment were used in the development of the emergency response plan and are so noted in the plan.

20.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- **Capital Improvement Projects**—Capital improvement project proposals may take into consideration hazard mitigation potential as a means of evaluating project prioritization. But the critical criteria remains the risk assessment and needs prioritization coupled with funding availability.
- **Post-Disaster Recovery Plan**—The District does not have a completed recovery plan and intends to fully develop one as a mitigation planning action during the next five years. The plan will build on the mitigation goals and objectives identified in the mitigation plan.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

20.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

20.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 20-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 20-9. Past Natural Hazard Events							
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment				
COVID-19	DR-4482	January 20, 2020 Continuing	Ongoing				
Hill Fire	DR 4407	11/8/18 -11/9/18	N/A				
Winter Storm Event	DR 4353	12/4/17- 1/31/18	N/A				
Springs Fire	DR 5024	5/2/13 – 5/11/13	N/A				
Wildwood I Fire	N/A	1995	N/A				
Wildfires	DR-4407	November 12, 2018	\$404,424				
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	January 17, 1994	N/A				
Green Meadow Fire	N/A	10/26/93 – 11/3/93	N/A				
Sherwood Fire	N/A	1985	N/A				
Dayton Canyon Fire	N/A	October 25, 1982	N/A				
Winter Storm Event	N/A	February 21, 1980	N/A				
Winter Storm Event	N/A	February 15, 1978	N/A				
Winter Storm Event	N/A	January 26, 1969	N/A				

20.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 20-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 20-10. Hazard Risk Ranking							
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category				
1	Earthquake	36	High				
1	Wildfire	36	High				
1	Landslide	36	High				
2	Dam Failure	24	Medium				
2	Severe weather/storms	24	Medium				
3	Flooding	18	Medium				
4	Drought	9	Low				

20.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- With 90% of the District's facilities underground (water and wastewater pipelines), the Risk Ranking Score for earthquake was elevated from the County level of 24 to 36.
- The Lake Sherwood Dam poses a direct threat to District facilities downstream of its location.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

20.7 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 20-11 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 20-12 identifies the priority for each action. Table 20-13 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Benefits New or Existing AssetsObjectives MetLead AgencySupport AgencyEstimated CostSources of FundingTimeline#Action TRI-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.Sources of FundingTimeline#Hazards Mitigated: ExistingDam Failure, Earthquake, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, WildfireGrant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)Short-termAction TRI-2—Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.Short-termHazards Mitigated: New & Existing2, 8, 11, 19Triunfo WSDN/ALowGeneral Funds, Staff TimeShort-termAction TRI-3—Purchase generators for critical facilities that lack adequate backup power, including Savoy, Lambourne, and Smoketree Booster Stations.Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, WildfireCIP & Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP)Action TRI-4—Develop a post disaster action plan that includes grant funding, debris removal components.Dam Failure, Earthquake, Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Severe Storms (BRIC, HMGP)OngoingAction TRI-4—Develop a post disaster action plan that includes grant funding, debris removal components.Dam Failure, Earthquake, Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Severe Storms (BRIC, HMGP)OngoingAction TRI-5—Maintain wildfire bazard fuel reduction program for areas that have been identified with overgroup or doad burb.Ongoing
Action TRI-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas. Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Wildfire Existing 2, 6, 9, 11 Triunfo WSD N/A High Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, Short-term FMA, HMGP) Short-term FMA, HMGP) Action TRI-2—Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan. Earthquake, Wildfire, Landslide, Dam Failure, Severe Weather, Storms, Flooding, Drought Short-term Hazards Mitigated: Earthquake, Wildfire, Landslide, Dam Failure, Severe Weather, Storms, Flooding, Drought Short-term Action TRI-3—Purchase generators for critical facilities that lack adequate backup power, including Savoy, Lambourne, and Smoketree Booster Stations. Short-term Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Wildfire CIP & Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP) Ongoing Action TRI-4—Develop a post disaster action plan that includes grant funding, debris removal components, and warehousing of critical infrastructure components Dam Failure, Earthquake, Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Severe Storms Ongoing Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Earthquake, Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Severe Storms Ongoing
Hazards Miligated: Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Wildfire Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP) Short-term Action TRI-2—Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan. Hazards Miligated: Earthquake, Wildfire, Landslide, Dam Failure, Severe Weather, Storms, Flooding, Drought Short-term Hazards Miligated: Earthquake, Wildfire, Landslide, Dam Failure, Severe Weather, Storms, Flooding, Drought Short-term Action TRI-3—Purchase generators for critical facilities that lack adequate backup power, including Savoy, Lambourne, and Smoketree Booster Stations. Short-term Hazards Miligated: Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Wildfire Short-term New & Existing 2, 7, 8 Triunfo WSD N/A Low General Funds, Staff Time Short-term Action TRI-4—Develop a post disaster action plan that includes grant funding, debris removal components, and warehousing of critical infrastructure components Dam Failure, Earthquake, Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Severe Storms Ongoing Hazards Miligated: Dam Failure, Earthquake, Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Severe Storms Ongoing Hazards Miligated: Dam Failure, Earthquake, Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Severe Storms Ongoing Hazards Miligated: Dam Failu
Action TRI-2—Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan. Hazards Mitigated: Earthquake, WildFire, Landslide, Dam Failure, Severe Weather, Storms, Flooding, Drought New & Existing 2, 8, 11, 19 Triunfo WSD N/A Low General Funds, Staff Time Short-term Action TRI-3—Purchase generators for critical facilities that lack adequate backup power, including Savoy, Lambourne, and Smoktree Booster Stations. Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Wildfire CIP & Grant Funding- FEMA HMA Ongoing Medium CIP & Grant Funding- FEMA HMA Ongoing Ongoing Critical facilities and slide, Severe Weather, Severe Storms CIP & Grant Funding- FEMA HMA Ongoing Action TRI-4—Develop a post disaster action plan that includes grant funding, debris removal components, and warehousing of critical infrastructure components Dam Failure, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Severe Storms Cip & Grant Funding- FEMA HMA Ongoing Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Retributes, Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Severe Storms Ongoing Ongoing Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Severe Storms 2, 8, 19 Triunfo WSD N/A Medium General Funds & Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP) Ongoing Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Severe Storms 2,
Action TRI-3—Purchase generators for critical facilities that lack adequate backup power, including Savoy, Lambourne, and Smoketree Booster Stations. Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Wildfire New & Existing 2, 7, 8 Triunfo WSD N/A Medium CIP & Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP) Ongoing Action TRI-4—Develop a post disaster action plan that includes grant funding, debris removal components. Dam Failure, Earthquake, Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Severe Storms Ongoing Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Earthquake, Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Severe Storms Ongoing Existing 2, 8, 19 Triunfo WSD N/A Medium General Funds & Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP) Ongoing Action TRI-5—Maintain wildfire bazard fuel reduction program for areas that have been identified with overcrown or doad brush troos Ongoing
Action TRI-4—Develop a post disaster action plan that includes grant funding, debris removal components, and warehousing of critical infrastructure components Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Earthquake, Wildfire, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Severe Storms Existing 2, 8, 19 Triunfo WSD N/A Medium General Funds & Grant Funding-FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP) Ongoing Action TRI-5—Maintain wildfire bazard fuel reduction program for areas that have been identified with overgrown or doad brush troos
Action TRL5_Maintain wildfire bazard fuel reduction program for areas that have been identified with overgrown or dead brush troos
Action Trice - Indiminant winding frazilitation reduction program for aleas that have been identified with overgrown of dead blush, if ees and weeds to reduce the potential for tree-to-tree ignition. Ensure that a "maintenance now" component to provide continued fire resistance is part of the program. (Coordinates with Ventura County Fire Protection District Action VFP-6) <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Wildfire New & Existing 2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19 VCFPD Triunfo WSD, CAL FIRE & USDA Medium FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP and HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds
Action TRI-6—Acquire properties in high risk areas
Hazards Mitigated:Wildfire, Landslide, Severe Weather, Severe StormsNew5, 8, 11, 17Triunfo WSDN/AMediumGrant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, Long-term FMA, HMGP)

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a
Action TRI-7-Slo	pe stabilization an	d drainage contr	ol features aroun	d water reservoi	rs	
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide, Floor	ding, Severe We	ather			
Existing	5, 9, 11, 14	Triunfo WSD	N/A	Medium	General Funds & Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Ongoing

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 20-12. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
TRI-1	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
TRI-2	4	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
TRI-3	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
TRI-4	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
TRI-5	12	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
TRI-6	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
TRI-7	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 20-13. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a						
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazards								
Earthquake		TRI-1	TRI-2	TRI-5	TRI-3, 4			TRI-2, 4
Wildfire	TRI-5, 6	TRI-1	TRI-2, 5	TRI-5, 6	TRI-3, 4		TRI-5	TRI-2, 4, 5
Landslide	TRI-6	TRI-1	TRI-2	TRI-5, 6, 7	TRI-3, 4	TRI-7		TRI-2, 4
Medium-Risk Hazards	S							
Dam Failure		TRI-1	TRI-2	TRI-5	TRI-3, 4			TRI-2, 4
Severe Weather	TRI-5, 6	TRI-1	TRI-2	TRI-5, 7	TRI-3, 4			TRI-2, 4
Severe Storms	TRI-5	TRI-1	TRI-2	TRI-5	TRI-4	TRI-7		TRI-2, 4
Flooding	TRI-5, 6	TRI-1	TRI-2	TRI-5, 7	TRI-3, 4	TRI-7		TRI-2, 4
Low-Risk Hazards								
Drought			TRI-2					TRI-2

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

20.8 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **Capital Improvement Plans**—The 5-year and 10-year CIPs were reviewed to determine if the risk assessment and hazard mitigation factors could be comingled and used to develop a more structured needs base.
- The District reviewed its **Urban Water Management Plan**, **Emergency Response Plan** along with the **Threat Assessment Matrix**, and **District Ordinances** to ensure that the incorporation of a Hazard Mitigation Plan could be achieved and implemented accordingly.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• **Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit**—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan. This will continue to be utilized as the District moves along in this process.

21. UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

21.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Brian Collins, Chief Operations Officer 3561 N. Rose Avenue Oxnard, CA 93036 Telephone: 805-525-4431 e-mail Address: brianc@unitedwater.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Michel Kadah, Engineer 1701 N. Lombard Street, Suite 200 Oxnard, CA 93030 Telephone: 805-525-4431 e-mail Address: michelk@unitedwater.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 21-1.

I able 21-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members					
Name	Title				
Brian Collins	Chief Operations Officer				
Maryam Bral	Chief Engineer				
Craig Morgan	Engineering Manager				
Josh Perez	Human Resources Manager				
Tony Huynh	Safety and Security Program Coordinator				
John Carman	O&M Program Supervisor				
Michel Kadah	Engineer				
Adrian Quiroz	Associate Engineer				

21.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

21.2.1 Overview

Local landowners formed the Santa Clara River Water Conservation District in 1927. As cities and agricultural areas grew, water usage increased rapidly. By 1950, the district was reorganized and renamed the United Water Conservation District (UWCD). The mission of UWCD is to manage, protect, conserve and enhance the water resources of the Santa Clara River, its tributaries and associated aquifers, in the most cost effective and environmentally balanced manner. UWCD constructed the Santa Felicia Dam, three spreading grounds, and distribution facilities, all of which were urgently needed to combat seawater intrusion.

UWCD is governed by seven members elected Board of Directors, one elected from each of the seven district divisions. UWCD administers a "basin management" program for the Santa Clara Valley and

Oxnard Plain, using the surface flow of the Santa Clara River and its tributaries for replenishment of groundwater and owns and operates a number of facilities within its service area. UWCD currently employs a staff of 64. Funding comes primarily through rates and revenue bonds.

The Board of Directors assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; Mr. Mauricio E. Guardado Jr. (UWCD General Manager) will oversee its implementation.

21.2.2 Service Area

UWCD operates within the Santa Clara River Valley and the Oxnard Plain and covers approximately 335 square miles in central Ventura County. UWCD owns and operates a number of facilities to recharge the groundwater basins and enhance the water supplies within UWCD boundaries including: Santa Felicia Dam and Lake Piru Reservoir; Santa Felicia Dam hydroelectric power plant; the Piru Groundwater Recharge Basins; Freeman Diversion Facility; Saticoy Groundwater Recharge Basins (Saticoy, Noble, Rose and Ferro Basins); El Rio Groundwater Recharge Facilities and Wellfield and Water Treatment Plant (El Rio); the Pleasant Valley (PV) and Pumping Trough Pipeline (PTP) (surface water deliveries in-lieu of pumping), PV and PTP reservoirs, and the Oxnard Hueneme (OH) Pipeline system which delivers domestic potable water to the City of Oxnard, Port Hueneme Water Agency, Naval Base Ventura County, several mutual water companies and the El Rio School District.

21.2.3 Assets

Table 21-2 summarizes the assets of UWCD and their value.

Table 21-2. Special-Purpose District Assets					
Asset	Value				
Property					
3421 acres of land (including Lake Piru)	Unknown				
Equipment					
43 UWCD owned vehicles(trucks and SUV's)	\$1,720.000				
1 ten yard dump truck	\$110,089				
1 2000 gallon water truck (estimated low value)	\$85,000				
1 CAT 300 SLR Excavator	\$280,190				
1 CAT 416C Backhoe	\$75,021				
1 CAT D6R Dozer	\$279,000				
1 CAT 613 Scrapper	\$193,000				
1 CAT 120H Motor Grader	\$170,177				
1 John Deere Skip Loader	\$110,000				
1 CAT Skid Steer	\$39,000				
12 Diesel Powered Emergency Generators (1 being Portable)	\$1,200,000				
4 Natural Gas Backup Booster Pumps	\$1,510,000				
17 water wells	\$15,000,000				
8 Miles of OH Pipeline (1.2 million per mile x 8) (Estimated low value)	\$9,600,000				
13 Miles of PTP Pipeline (1.2 million per mile x13) (Estimated low value)	\$15,600,000				
5 Miles of PV Pipeline (1.2 million per mile x 5) (Estimated low value)	\$6,000,000				
3 Miles of Lake Piru Campground Pipeline (1 million per mile estimated) (Estimated low value)	\$3,000,000				
Lake Piru Water Treatment Plant	\$1,219,000				

Asset		Value
	Total:	\$56,190,477
Critical Facilities		
Headquarter Building—1701 N. Lombard Street, Suite 200, Oxnard, CA 93030		\$10,000,000
Santa Felicia Dam Hydroelectric Power Plant—3838 Piru Canyon Road, Piru, CA 93040		\$630,000
Santa Felicia Dam—3838 Piru Canyon Road, Piru, CA 93040 (estimated low value)		\$200,000,000
Freeman Diversion Facility—2641 W. Los Angeles Ave. Oxnard, CA 93036 (estimated low value)		\$30,000,000
Saticoy Groundwater Recharge Basins—2641 W. Los Angeles Ave. Oxnard, CA 93036		Unknown
El Rio Groundwater Recharge Basins- 3651 N. Rose Avenue, Oxnard, CA 93036		Unknown
Piru Groundwater Recharge Basin		Unknown
Lake Piru Reservoir		Unknown
Lake Piru Recreation Area—4780 Piru Canyon Road, Piru, CA 93040		Unknown
Pleasant Valley (PV) and Pumping Trough (PTP) irrigation pipelines –		\$21,600,000
Oxnard-Hueneme booster plant system (OH System)		\$4,527,000
	Total:	\$266,757,000

21.3 CURRENT TRENDS

Originally formed as the Santa Clara Water Conservation District in 1927, voters approved the formation of United Water Conservation District in 1950. UWCD was formed to conserve and enhance water resources of the Santa Clara River. UWCD operates in the Santa Clara River Valley and the Oxnard Plain and covers 214,000 acres in central Ventura County that typically receives from 12 to 20 inches of rainfall each year.

Over the years, UWCD has constructed numerous facilities, pipelines, and recharge basins, including the Santa Felicia Dam, Lake Piru Reservoir and Freeman Diversion, to enhance the local water system and maintain sustainable water management. Today, UWCD diverts Santa Clara River surface water to recharge groundwater basins or for use in-lieu of groundwater pumping by agricultural operations on the Oxnard Plain and in Pleasant Valley basin. Groundwater recharged at United's Saticoy and El Rio facilities (in the Oxnard Forebay) over the last thirty years has averaged approximately 46, 400 acrefeet per year (AFY). During the same period, surface water deliveries have averaged approximately 13, 200 AF/yr. Lake Piru receives approximately 65,000 visitors per year, with peak season between the months of April 1st to September 15. In 2021, UWCD took over operations from the previous concessionaire, and Lake Piru welcomed to date 34,600 visitors, with daily average of 1,533 guests per day since the lake re-opened from the COVID-19 closure.

21.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 21-3.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 21-4.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 21-5.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 21-6.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 21-7.

Table 21-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability

• The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 21-8.

	0 0 ,	
Plan, Study or Program	Date of Most Recent Update	Comment
Santa Felicia Dam Emergency Action Plan (EAP)	July 16, 2021	Approved by Cal OES on September 2, 2021
Santa Felicia Dam Security Plan	June 30, 2021	
Oxnard Hueneme System Emergency Response Plan (per America's Water Infrastructure Act, EPA)	March 15, 2021	Submitted to the U.S. EPA and the State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water
Aqueous Ammonia Storage, California Accidental Release Prevention Program (CalARP)	June 2019	
Chlorine & Aqueous Ammonia Treatment Systems CalARP Seismic Assessment	May 2019	
Chlorine & Aqueous Ammonia Injection System, Process Hazard Analysis Report	May 21, 2019	

Table 21-4. Fiscal Capability			
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?		
Community Development Block Grants	No		
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes		
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes		
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes		
If yes, specify: Only groundwater extraction fees			
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	No		
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	No		
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	Yes		
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No		
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes		
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	No		

Table 21-5. Administrative and Technical Capability				
Staff/Personnel Resource				
Planners or engineers with know	owledge of land development and land management practices	No		
Engineers or professionals training	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Engineering and Water Resources Department/ Engineers			
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Engineering and Water Resources Department/ Engineers and Hydrogeologists			
Staff with training in benefit/co	st analysis	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Finance Department and Engineering Department/ Accountants and Engineers			
Surveyors		Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Engineering Department /Provided through retention of external vendors			
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Engineering and Water Resources Department/ GIS Analysts			
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Engineering and Water Resources Department/ Hydrogeologists			
Emergency manager		Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Engineering/Chief Engineer Operations and Maintenance (O&M)/Chief Operations Officer Lake Piru Park Rangers/Chief Park Ranger			
Grant writers		Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Engineering and Water Resources Department /Provided through retention of external ven	dors		
Other: Environmental and Biol	ogist	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	Environmental Services Department/ Environmental Scientists			

Table 21-6. Education and Outreach Capability

Criterion		Response
Do you have a public inf	ormation officer or communications office?	Yes
Do you have personnel s	skilled or trained in website development? Provided through retention of contractors	No
Do you have hazard miti	gation information available on your website?	No
Do you use social media	for hazard mitigation education and outreach?	No
Do you have any citizen	boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?	No
Do you have any other p	rograms in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information?	Yes
Do you have any establis	shed warning systems for hazard events?	Yes
If yes, briefly describe:	A warning siren in the town of Piru. This is used to warn the residents of dam failure incidents. tested on the first Friday of each month. UWCD utilizes the County's VC Alert (Everbridge) syst email, text, and voice options for immediate emergency notifications to a list of stakeholders inc Santa Felicia Dam EAP notification flow charts and follow up manual phone calls. Four dam fail are included in the SFD inundation maps.	The siren is em, including luded in the ure scenarios

Table 21-7. Community Classifications							
Participating? Classification Date Classifie							
FIPS Code	No	N/A	N/A				
DUNS#	Yes	121878094	N/A				
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A				
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A				
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A				
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A				
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A				
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A				

Table 21-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change

Criterion	Jurisdiction Ratinga
Technical Capacity	Ruting
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	Hiah
<i>Comment:</i> Wildfires, as a climate change indicator, may impact UWCD operations. Also, climate change could lead and the probability of having a Probable Maximum Flood (PMF) event. FEMA document titled "Selecting Accommodating Inflow Design Floods for Dams" states that recent studies have been performed to estir the climate change on the probable maximum precipitation and some climate models are consistent in s 10 percent every few decades that would correspond to 10 percent increases in probable maximum precipitate change (soil moisture, snowpack, temperature sequence, etc.) can influence on runoff and increasing flood or Probable Maximum Flood (PMF) event. UWCD is in advancing the design of a number of the existing Santa Felicia Dam spillway to be able to safely pass the Inflow Design Flood (IDF), or the PL Santa Felicia Dam by the Department of Water Resources, Division of Safety of Dams (DSOD).	I to a major storm, and nate the impact of howing increases of cipitation. The ase the likelihood of of modifications to MF determined for
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	High
<i>Comment:</i> Rainfall and hydrology are monitored on regular basis, Groundwater basin management and mon groundwater levels recording, evaporation monitoring, and sediment monitoring.	itoring through
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	High
<i>Comment:</i> Plan for drought resiliency projects and long term mitigation for climate change impacts.	5
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory <i>Comment:</i> Performed by contractor in a limited capacity.	Low
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Medium
<i>Comment:</i> Some of UWCD CIP projects are directly or indirectly addressing the climate change impacts.	
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	Medium
Comment: Member of the Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County.	
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes <i>Comment:</i> No mandate.	Low
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Low
<i>Comment:</i> Fossil fuel energy optimization efficiency is in place.	
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Medium
<i>Comment:</i> Regulatory mandated mitigation, water supply resiliency, and portfolio diversification.	
Champions for climate action in local government departments Comment: N/A	Low

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Low
Comment: N/A	
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	Medium
Comment: Construction of the drought resilience Oxnard Hueneme Iron and Manganese Treatment Plant Project in	2021/2022.
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Medium
Comment: UWCD boundaries.	
Public Capacity	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Low
Comment: N/A	
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts	Low
Comment: N/A	
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: N/A	
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: N/A	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: N/A	

 a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

21.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

21.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- Santa Felicia Dam Emergency Action Plan (EAP): The EAP defines the UWCD staff
 responsibilities and provides procedures designed to identify unusual and unlikely conditions
 that may endanger Santa Felica Dam in time to take mitigation action and to notify the
 appropriate emergency management authorities and stakeholders of possible, impending, or
 actual failure of the dam. The EAP may also be used to provide notification when flood releases
 can create major flooding. The results of the Time-Sensitive Emergency Action Plan
 Assessment associated with the Santa Felicia Dam were used to develop the EAP.
- Santa Felicia Dam Outlet Works Improvement: The purpose of the Santa Felicia Dam Outlet Works Improvement project is to replace the existing outlet works because of concerns regarding seismic stability of the intake tower and conduit through the dam. UWCD conducted a

Seismic Deformation Analyses of Santa Felicia Dam on May 11, 2015 that indicated that the computed seismic deformations of the embankment are expected to be large enough to damage the outlet works conduit, and possibly compromise the safety of the dam. In addition, based on the 2015 and 2020 bathymetric surveys of Lake Piru Reservoir performed by UWCD, the sediment level near the existing intake was approximately only 4.1 feet below the intake sill. Based on the computed average annual rate of sediment level rise, the sediment may reach the intake sill in the near future and will become inoperable. The new outlet works system will mitigate ongoing accumulation of sediment in the reservoir and includes provisions for continued operation of the facility despite the future sediment buildup in the reservoir.

• Santa Felicia Dam Probable Maximum Flood (PMF) Containment, Spillway Improvement Project: The capacity of the existing spillway at Santa Felicia Dam is inadequate to pass the inflow design flood (IDF), which for the Santa Felicia Dam is the PMF. The Spillway Improvement Project includes modifications to the existing spillway to safely pass the IDF of 220,000 cfs, which is derived from hydrologic evaluations (HMR 58/59) performed by the DSOD and approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

21.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified in the following plans and programs does not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provides opportunities to do so in the future:

- **Coastal Brackish Groundwater Extraction and Treatment Project**: The project objectives are to combat further seawater intrusion in the Oxnard Plain and provide a local supply source that can help meet the groundwater sustainability goals of the Fox canyon Groundwater Management Agency.
- **Expansion of the Ferro Basin**: The project is to be used as a groundwater recharge basin to expand UWCD's recharge capacities.
- Freeman Diversion Expansion: The project allows UWCD to increase the instantaneous diversion rate to capture more water at the peak of the hydrograph. This is necessary in the respect that regulatory agencies are requiring more flow in the river on the receding limb of the hydrograph. Ultimately the expansion project will provide the opportunity to maintain historical surface water deliveries to the Oxnard Plain when available. The project is also to comply with an Endangered Species Act (ESA) settlement as well as a mitigation measure for the Multi-Species Habitat Conservation Plan.
- **Pumping Trough Pipeline (PTP) Recycled Water Connection:** A pipeline connection to UWCD's PTP system for the delivery of recycled water. The recycled water delivered to the PTP system can significantly reduce groundwater pumping in the PTP service area and Oxnard Plain.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

21.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

21.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 21-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 21-9. Past Natural Hazard Events						
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment			
Holser Fire	N/A	August 17, 2020	Lake Piru Recreation Area operational impact			
Lime Fire	N/A	June 10, 2020	Recreation Area operational impact			
Maria Fire	FM-5302	November 1, 2019	Headquarter closer and Saticoy Facility operational impact			
Thomas Fire	FM-5224	December 4, 2017	Power outage at El Rio Facility and operational impact			
Flood	DR-1585	February 18, 2005	Debris at the upstream of SFD and landslide at the downstream			
Severe Storms, Tornadoes, High Winds and Flooding	DR-1267	December 20 – 28, 1998	Not Available			
Severe Winter Storms and Flooding	DR-1203	February 2 – April 30, 1998	Not Available			
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding, Landslides, Mud Flows	DR-1046	February 13 – April 19, 1995	Not Available			
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding, Landslides, Mud Flows	DR-1044	January 3 – February, 1995	Not Available			
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	January 17 – November 30,1994	Not Available**			
Fires, Mud & Landslides, Soil Erosion, Flooding	DR-1005	October 26 – April 22, 1994	Not Available			
Severe Storm, Winter Storm, Mud & Landslides, Flooding	DR-979	January 5 – March 20, 1993	Not Available			
Snow Storm, Heavy Rain, High Winds, Flooding, Mudslide	DR-935	February 10 – 19, 1992	Not Available			
Severe Storms, High Tides, Flooding	DR-812	January 17 – 22, 1988	Not Available			
Coastal Storms, Floods, Slides, Tornadoes	DR-677	January 21 – March 30, 1983	Not Available			
Severe Storms, Mudslides, Flooding	DR-615	January 8, 1980	Not Available			
Coastal Storms, Mudslides, Flooding	DR-547	February 15, 1978	Not Available			
Severe Storms, High Tides, Flooding	DR-364	February 8, 1973	Not Available			
Severe Storms, Flooding	DR-253	January 26, 1969	Not Available			

** Santa Felicia Dam recorded a peak ground acceleration of 0.27g during the Northridge earthquake with no visible movements or distortion of the structure. Following the Northridge Earthquake, the Santa Felicia Dam was inspected and surveyed to determine if any changes had occurred as a result of the earthquake. The conclusion of these investigations that the dam has responded well to the motions induced by the earthquake and has not experienced any changes or exhibited any behavior that indicate a reduction in the safety of the structure.

21.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 21-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

	Table 21-10. Hazard Risk Ranking					
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category			
1	Earthquake	32	High			
2	Drought	31	High			
3	Dam Failure	30	Medium			
4	Severe Storms	24	Medium			
5	Severe Weather	24	Medium			
6	Wildfire	18	Medium			
7	Flooding	18	Medium			
8	Sea Level Rise	15	Low			
9	Landslide	12	Low			
10	Tsunami	11	Low			

21.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

Santa Felicia Dam is classified as an "Extremely High Hazard" dam by the DSOD. Two of the
Dam's largest infrastructure components, Outlet Works and Spillway, will pose a significant risk
to public safety if not modernized and upgraded. Failure of these components could result in the
potential loss of life for approximately 377,000 people living downstream of the Santa Felicia
Dam, as well as property loss and damage from the flooding of the towns of Piru, Fillmore,
Santa Paula, and Oxnard, negatively impacting the area's \$2 billion dollar the agricultural
industry as well as manufacturing, retail, hospitality, health care and military operations.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

21.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 21-11 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 21-11. Status of Previous Pla	an Actions			
		Removed;	Carried C Up	ver to Plan date
Action Item from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
OA 10 —SFD Outlet Works Rehab—Replace the nearly buried and seismic-deficient intake tower at Santa Felicia Dam with a robust facility with higher elevation point(s) of intake. Replace the seismically marginal penstock with appropriate new materials.			~	UWC-4
Comment: The planned design alternative is to build a new outlet works facility on Works improvement and retrofit is currently in the design phase. The co of this project is contingent upon securing grant funding support from bo implementation of the dam safety improvements.	the left (east) al nstruction is an oth state and fee	butment of the ticipated to sta deral sources c	dam. The S rt in 2024. T ritical for th	FD Outlet The success e
OA 10 —SFD PMF Containment—The Probable Maximum Flood (PMF at all dams must be confined to the structure and spillway. Overtopping earthen dams will almost certainly lead to failure. UWCD will need to deepen the spillway and raise the height of the dam crest.			~	UWC-5
Comment: The SFD improvements of the spillway are currently in the design phase success of this project is contingent upon securing both the state and feedback	e. The construct deral grant fund	tion is anticipat ds.	ed to start i	n 2026. The
UWCD 1 —UWCD will install a generator at the Saticov Recharge Facility.	✓			
UWCD 2 —Part 12D Dam Safety Report—An independent consultant will be hired to perform the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Part 12D safety inspection and review of Santa Felicia Dam. This process includes reviewing the Potential Failure Mode Analysis (completed in 2007) and the Supporting Technical Information Document; and updating the documents as necessary.	✓			
Comment: Part 12D Dam Safety Inspection and Report for the Santa Felicia Dam v Part 12D Dam Safety Inspection in 2022 as the inspection is required to	was completed be conducted	in 2017. UWCL every 5 years.) will condu	ct the next
UWCD 3 —Evaluate and develop a public outreach program that informs and educates the public located in the inundation zone directly downstream of Santa Felicia Dam.			~	UWC-10
Comment: The public outreach program includes the required annual Emergency A enforcement coordination meetings, as well as frequent participation in	Action Plan (EA) the Piru neighb	P) seminars an orhood council	d annual la monthly me	w eetings.

21.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 21-12 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 21-13 identifies the priority for each action. Table 21-14 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 21-12. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix						
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a
Action UWC-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.						
Hazards Mitigated:	Hazards Mitigated: Earthquake, Drought, Dam Failure, Severe Storms, Severe Weather, Wildfire, Flooding					
Existing	1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9,	United Water	None	High	Local Fund, HMGP,	Short-term
	10, 11, 13, 14	Conservation District			BRIC. FMA	

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline <i>a</i>	
Action LIWC-2—A	ctively participate in the	plan maintenance protoco	Is outlined in Volur	ne 1 of this ha	zard mitigation plan	Timeinie	
Hazards Mitigated: All hazards							
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 16, 19	United Water Conservation District	None	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term	
Action UWC-3—Purchase generators for critical facilities and infrastructure that lack adequate backup power.							
Hazards Mitigated: Earthquake, Drought, Dam Failure, Severe Storms, Severe Weather, Wildfire, Flooding							
Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 10	United Water Conservation District	None	High	Local Fund, HMGP, BRIC, FMA	Short-term	
Action UWC-4—Santa Felicia Dam Outlet Works Improvement and Retrofit. Replace the existing Santa Felicia Dam Outlet Works due to							
seismic deficiencies of the intake tower and conduit through the dam and to mitigate ongoing accumulation of sediment in Lake Piru reservoir that will impact operation of the outlet works in the near future with a robust facility with higher elevation point(s) of intake.							
Hazards Mitigated: Earthquake, Drought, Dam Failure, Severe Storms, Flooding							
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, 13, 18	United Water Conservation District	None	High	Local Fund, HMGP, BRIC, FMA, HHPD	Long-term	
Action UWC-5—Santa Felicia Dam PMF Containment, Spillway Improvement Project– The Probable Maximum Flood (PMF) at all dams must be confined to the structure and spillway. Overtopping earthen dams will almost certainly lead to failure. The existing SFD spillway is inadequate to pass the inflow design flood (IDF), which for this dam is the PMF. The existing spillway will be deepened and the dam crest will be raised to allow for safely passing the IDF.							
Hazarus Iviiligaleu:	Dam Fallure, Severe	Storms, Flooding	Nono	Lliah	Local Fund LIMCD	Long torm	
Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, 13, 18	Conservation District	None	High	BRIC, FMA, HHPD	Long-term	
Action UWC-6—Coastal Brackish Groundwater Extraction and Treatment Project. The project objectives is to combat further seawater intrusion in the Oxnard Plain and provide a local supply source that can help meet the groundwater sustainability goals of the Fox canyon Groundwater Management Agency. <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Drought							
New	1, 2, 3, 4, 13, 14, 18	United Water Conservation District	None	High	Local Fund, HMGP, BRIC, FMA	Long-term	
Action UWC-7—Pumping Trough Pipeline (PTP) Recycled Water Connection. Potential pipeline connections to UWCD's PTP system for the delivery of recycled water. The recycled water delivered to the PTP system can significantly reduce groundwater pumping in the PTP service area and Oxnard Plain.							
New	1, 2, 3, 4, 14, 18	United Water Conservation District	None	Medium	Local Fund, HMGP, BRIC, FMA	Long-term	
Action UWC-8—Freeman Diversion Rehab—The Freeman Diversion Dam is used to divert and efficiently manage run-off water from the Santa Clara River. The project allows UWCD to increase the instantaneous diversion rate to capture more water at the height of the hydrograph. This is necessary in the respect that regulatory agencies are requiring more flow in the river on the receding limb of the hydrograph. Ultimately the project will provide the opportunity to deliver additional surface water when available. <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Drought							
Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 13, 14, 18	United Water Conservation District	None	High	Local Fund, HMGP, BRIC, FMA	Long-term	
Action UWC-9—Twelfth Part 12D Dam Safety Inspection—An independent consultant will be hired to perform the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Part 12D safety inspection and review of Santa Felicia Dam. This process includes reviewing the Potential Failure Mode Analysis (completed in 2007) and the Supporting Technical Information Document; and updating the documents as necessary.							
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Dam Fa	liure, Severe Storms, Floor	aing				
Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 9, 10, 17, 18	United Water Conservation District	None	Low	Local Fund	Ongoing	
Benefits New or Support Estimated							
--	---	--	--	--	--	--	--
	alinaa						
Existing Assets Objectives wet Lead Agency Agency Cost Sources of Funding Thin	ennea						
Action UWC-10—UWCD will re-evaluate current public outreach efforts and develop a program to educate and inform the public w	Action UWC-10—UWCD will re-evaluate current public outreach efforts and develop a program to educate and inform the public within						
the inundation zone directly downstream of Santa Felicia Dam.							
Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Severe Storms, Flooding							
Existing 1 2 4 7 8 12 17 United Water None Low Local Fund Sho	t-term						
18 Conservation District	t torrin						
Action LIWC-11_Implement landslide stabilization and/or protection measures. Stabilization measures include grading the unstable	ρ						
nortion of the slope to a lower gradient construction of rock buttresses, and drainage improvements. Drotection measures include	5						
containment and construction of walls, berms, ditches, and or diversion of moving debris							
<u>Hazards Miligated:</u> Landslide							
Existing 1, 2, 13, 14 United Water None Low Local Fund, HMGP, One	going						
Conservation District BRIC, FMA							
Action UWC-12—Vegetation Management. Maintain vegetation management program within UWCD facilities to reduce the risk of							
wildfire and avoid creation of wind acceleration corridors within vegetated areas.							
Hazards Mitigated: Severe Weather, Wildfire							
Existing 1.2.5.13.1/ United Water None Low Local Fund HMGP On	noina						
Conservation District RPIC FMΔP	Joing						
Action LIMC 12 Lindete Cente Folicie Dem Emergency Action Disnet							
Action UWC-13—Update Santa Felicia Dam Emergency Action Plan (EAP)							
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Dam Failure, Severe Storms, Flooding							
Existing 1, 2, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 19 United Water None Low Local Fund, HMGP, One	going						
Conservation District BRIC, FMA							
a Short-term = Completion within 5 years: Long-term = Completion within 10 years: Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with							

no completion date

HHPD = Rehabilitation of High Hazard Potential Dams FMA = Flood Mitigation Assistance Grant Program HMGP = Hazard Mitigation Grant Program

BRIC = Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities Grant Program

Table 21-13. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	7	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
2	10	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	High
3	7	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
4	5	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
5	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
6	2	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
7	1	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
8	1	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
9	4	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Medium
10	3	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Medium
11	1	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
12	2	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
13	3	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium

See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities. а.

Table 21-14. Analysis of Mitigation Actions									
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a							
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building ^b	
High-Risk Hazards									
Earthquake	UWC-4	UWC-4				UWC-4		UWC-9	
Drought	UWC-4	UWC-4, 8		UWC-6, 7, 8		UWC-4, 6, 7, 8	UWC-6		
Medium-Risk Hazards	S								
Dam Failure	UWC-4, 5	UWC-4, 5	UWC-10		UWC-13	UWC-4, 5	UWC-5	UWC-9, 10, 13	
Severe Storms	UWC-4, 5	UWC-4, 5	UWC-10		UWC-13	UWC-4, 5	UWC-5	UWC-9, 13	
Severe Weather	UWC-1, 5	UWC-3, 5	UWC-10		UWC-13	UWC-1, 3, 5	UWC-2		
Wildfire	UWC-12			UWC-12					
Flooding	UWC-4, 5	UWC-4, 5	UWC-10		UWC-13	UWC-4, 5	UWC-5	UWC-9, 13	
Low-Risk Hazards									
Landslide	UWC-11			UWC-11		UWC-11			

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

21.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 21-15 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 21-15. Local Public Outreach				
Local Outreach Activity Date Involved				
Annual Emergency Action Plan seminar	December 16, 2020 October 28, 2021	31 Expected to be 30+		
Monthly Board Of Director meetings	Monthly	Varies		

21.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **Capital Improvement Plan**: The Capital Improvement Plan prioritizes projects that have been identified to improve District facilities, infrastructure, and equipment, including potential mitigation projects. The Capital Improvement Plan was used as a source of information while preparing this annex.
- Santa Felicia Dam Emergency Action Plan (EAP): Describes protocol for response activities to be conducted in the event of an emergency that threatens or damages the structural integrity of the Santa Felicia Dam. Includes procedures for training and preparedness, and notification and response actions to be conducted in the event of an emergency including procedures for

coordination with outside agencies. The EAP was reviewed during the development of the hazard mitigation action plans.

- **Time-Sensitive Emergency Action Plan Assessment:** This assessment was used to develop the Santa Felicia Dam EAP during the development of the hazard mitigation action plans.
- Santa Felicia Dam Safety Improvement Project, Technical Memorandums (TMs) and Design Reports: UWCD conducted and completed feasibility studies and multiple design phases for the existing outlet works improvement and retrofit project and the spillway improvement project, collectively referred to as the Santa Felicia Dam Safety Improvement Project. The TMs and design reports developed during these design phases included structural, hydraulic, and geotechnical analyses. These analyses were the basis of the development of the hazard mitigation action plans (UWC-4 and UWC-5).
- Santa Felicia Dam 2017 Potential Failure Mode Analysis Study Report: The purpose of the PFMA is to identify and describe potential failure modes (PFMs) at the Santa Felicia Dam and its appurtenant structures that could be failed under postulated loading conditions. Knowledge of the PFMs can be used to better understand the potential safety concerns, develop a project specific surveillance and monitoring program, and identify potential risk reduction measures. The 2017 PFMA was reviewed during the development of the hazard mitigation plan.
- Oxnard Hueneme System Emergency Response Plan: This plan describes protocol for response activities to be conducted in the event of an emergency that threatens or damages UWCD's El Rio Facility and the Oxnard-Hueneme Pipeline. Includes procedures for decontamination, pipeline isolation, and notification and response actions to be conducted in the event of an emergency. This document was reviewed during the development of the capability assessment.
- **Risk and Resilience Assessment:** The purpose of this assessment was to assess the risks to, and resilience of, the District's Oxnard-Hueneme system, covering: the risk of malevolent acts and natural hazards; the resilience of the pipes and constructed conveyances, physical barriers, source water, water collection and intake, pretreatment, treatment, storage and distribution facilities, electronic, computer, or other automated systems (including the security of such systems) which are utilized by the system; the monitoring practices of the system; the financial infrastructure of the system; the use, storage, or handling of various chemicals by the system; and the operation and maintenance of the system. This document was reviewed during the development of the capability assessment.
- California Accidental Release Prevention (CalARP) Program: As part of the program's effort in preventing and/or minimizing damage to the accidental releases of chlorine and ammonia that can cause serious harm to the public, hazard and seismic assessments were completed. The hazard assessments for chlorine and ammonia examined worst-case and alternative scenarios while the seismic assessment ensured chlorine and aqueous ammonia equipment and piping, their supports and their anchoring met CalARP seismic requirements. This document was reviewed during the development of the capability assessment.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• **2015 Ventura County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan:** The 2015 HMP document addresses the local hazard mitigation planning requirements for Unincorporated Ventura County and other local participants. The 2015 VC HMP was reviewed and used during the development of the mitigation action plan.

- Selecting and Accommodating Inflow Design Floods for Dams, FEMA P-94, Dated August 2013: The main objectives of this document is to recommend appropriate procedures for selecting and accommodating the Inflow Design Flood based on current and accepted practices and to promote a reasonable degree of consistency and uniformity among state and federal agencies. Appropriate selection of the Inflow Design Flood is the first step in evaluating and designing a dam to address hydrologic potential failure modes and reduce risks to the public. This document was reviewed during the development of the capability assessment and the Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change.
- Hydrometeorological Reports (HMR 58 and 59), California Department of Water Resources, Division of Safety of Dams (DSOD): The Santa Felicia Dam Inflow Design Flood (IDF) of 220,000 cfs was developed using DSOD interim Hydrology Policy Modified HMR 58/59 (2012). The IDF was approved by the regulatory agencies. These reports were reviewed and used during the development of the hazard mitigation action plan (UWC-5).
- Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit: The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

21.11 FUTURE NEEDS TO BETTER UNDERSTAND RISK/VULNERABILITY

UWCD will update the Santa Felicia Dam Vulnerability and Risk Assessment in 2022 in accordance with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission's dam safety requirements. The Vulnerability and Risk Assessment includes evaluation of structures and facilities to identify weaknesses and or potential single or multiple points of failures. The outcome will include recommended mitigation measures to address these concerns.

21.12 ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

UWCD is currently coordinating with the Emergency Management Agencies (EMAs) of the Santa Felicia Dam impacted jurisdictions including the Ventura County Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services (VCSOES) to determine if they need assistance in developing local evacuation plans. UWCD will offer support, including technical support, to the EMAs as needed.

22. VENTURA COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

22.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Dustin Gardner, Fire Chief 165 Durley Ave Camarillo, CA 93010 Telephone: 805-389-9704 e-mail Address: dustin.gardner@ventura.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Jeff Shea, Division Chief 165 Durley Ave Camarillo, CA 93010 Telephone: 805-437-9400 e-mail Address: jeff.shea@ventura.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 22-1.

Table 22-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members			
Name	Title		
Dustin Gardner	Fire Chief		
Chad Cook	Assistant Fire Chief		
Jeff Shea	Division Chief		
Gene Fong	Battalion Chief		
John Spykerman	Assistant Fire Chief		
Massoud Araghi	Fire Marshal		
Tom Kasper	Business Services Manager		
Corina Cagley	Fire Prevention Officer		
Celine Moomey	Pre-Fire Specialist		
Ryan Matheson	Fire Captain, Vegetation Management		
David Kirby	Manager- Facilities and Construction		
Debbie Conner	Management Assistant		

22.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

22.2.1 Overview

In 1928, the VCFPD was formed as a special district to provide fire protection to the county, with the exception of the four established cities. Since that time, six additional cities have become incorporated. Today, the VCFPD acts as the county fire department for unincorporated Ventura County and as the city fire department for seven cities (Camarillo, Moorpark, Ojai, Port Hueneme, Santa Paula, Thousand Oaks, and Simi Valley).

Composed of approximately 600 dedicated men and women, the Ventura County Fire Protection District is an all-hazard, full-service agency. VCFPD proudly provides fire protection, medical aid, rescue, hazardous materials response, and a variety of other services to the public. The Ventura County Board of Supervisors acts as the fire protection district's board of directors. These five elected supervisors appoint the fire chief and task him with providing fire protection services for the district.

VCFPD responds to calls from 33 strategically placed fire stations located throughout Ventura County. VCFPD firefighters are trained to provide the highest level of firefighting, rescue, and emergency medical care. In addition to fighting fires, VCFPD responds to medical emergencies, traffic accidents, land and water rescues, hazardous materials calls, environmental hazards, and a variety of public service requests.

The Ventura County Board of Supervisors assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; Ventura County Office of Emergency Services will oversee its implementation.

The District participates in the Public Protection Class Rating System and currently has a rating of 5.

22.2.2 Service Area

The District service area covers 848 square miles, serving a population of 850,000.

22.2.3 Assets

Table 22-2 summarizes the assets of the District and their value.

Table 22-2. Special-Purpose District Assets				
Asset	Value			
Property				
N/A acres of land	Included with Critical Facilities values below			
Equipment				
Aerials 7 @ \$1,500,000.00 ea. =	\$10,500,000.00			
Type 1 Pumpers 52 @ \$710,000.00 ea. =	\$36,920,000.00			
Type 3 Pumpers 11 @ \$350,000.00 ea. =	\$3,850,000.00			
Heavy Rescue 1 @ \$1,000,000.00 ea. =	\$1,000,000.00			
Rescues 6 @ \$450,00.00 ea. =	\$2,700,000.00			
Squads 4 @ \$215,000.00 ea. =	\$215,000.00			
Utilities 10 @ \$70,000.00 ea. =	\$700,000.00			
Total:	\$56,530,000.00			
Critical Facilities				
Old Fire Station 20-12727 Santa Paula-Ojai Road, Santa Paula, CA 93060	\$1,571,908			
Fire Station 20—12000 Santa Paula-Ojai Road, Ojai, CA 93023	\$6,193,994			
Fire Station 21—1201 E Ojai Ave, Ojai, CA 93023	\$3,674,182			
Fire Station 22—466 S La Luna Ave, Ojai, CA 93023	\$3,061,690			
Fire Station 23—15 Kunkle St, Oak View, CA 93022	\$6,501,775			
Fire Station 25-5674 W Pacific Coast Highway, Ventura, CA 93001	\$4,549,938			
Old Fire Station 26—12391 W Telegraph Rd, Santa Paula, CA 93060	\$2,963,446			

Asset	Value
Fire Station 26—536 W Main St, Santa Paula, CA 93060	\$2,034,731
Old Fire Station 27—613 Old Telegraph Rd, Fillmore, CA 93015	\$2,693,274
Fire Station 27—133 C St, Fillmore, CA 93015	\$11,565,960
Fire Station 28—513 N Church St, Piru, CA 93040	\$2,618,824
Fire Station 29—114 S 10th St, Santa Paula, CA 93060	\$2,836,803
Fire Station 30—325 W Hillcrest Dr, Thousand Oaks, CA 91360	\$7,904,826
Fire Station 31—151 Dusenberg Dr, Thousand Oaks, CA 91362	\$3,030,222
Fire Station 32—830 S Reino Rd, Newbury Park, CA 91320	\$3,199,846
Fire Station 33—33 Lake Sherwood Dr, Thousand Oaks, CA 91361	\$2,867,504
Fire Station 34—555 E Avenida de los Arboles, Thousand Oaks, CA 91360	\$2,798,426
Old Fire Station 35—2500 W Hillcrest Dr, Newbury Park, CA 91320	\$2,608,846
Fire Station 35—751 Mitchell Rd, Newbury Park, CA 91320	\$8,621,702
Fire Station 36-855 Deerhill Rd, Oak Park, CA 91377	\$3,290,415
Fire Station 37—2010 Upper Ranch Rd, Thousand Oaks, CA 91362	\$4,724,168
Fire Station 40—4185 Cedar Springs St, Moorpark, CA 93021	\$6,494,099
Fire Station 41—1910 Church St, Simi Valley, CA 93065	\$6,633,790
Fire Station 42—295 E High St, Moorpark, CA 93021	\$7,316,128
Fire Station 43—5874 E Los Angeles Ave, Simi Valley, CA 93063	\$8,554,926
Fire Station 44—1050 Country Club Dr, Simi Valley, CA 93065	\$6,098,820
Fire Station 45–790 Pacific Ave, Simi Valley, CA 93065	\$2,855,991
Fire Station 46—3265 N Tapo St, Simi Valley, CA 93063	\$2,995,683
Fire Station 47—2901 Erringer Rd, Simi Valley, CA 93065	\$5,505,516
Fire Station 50–189 S Las Posas Rd, Camarillo, CA 93010	\$10,717,068
Fire Station 51—3302 Turnout Park Circle, Oxnard, CA 93036	\$7,139,595
Fire Station 52-5353 Santa Rosa Rd, Camarillo, CA 93012	\$3,285,043
Fire Station 53—304 N Second St, Port Hueneme, CA 93041	\$4,681,186
Fire Station 54—2160 Pickwick Dr, Camarillo, CA 93010	\$6,989,158
Fire Station 55—403 Valley Vista Dr, Camarillo, CA 93010	\$2,789,216
Fire Station 56—11855 Pacific Coast Highway, Malibu, CA 90265	\$4,202,245
Fire Station 57—3356 Somis Rd, Somis, CA 93066	\$2,989,542
Fire Communications Center—160 Durley Ave, Camarillo, CA 93010	\$17,731,555
Headquarters—165 Durley Ave, Camarillo, CA 93010	\$21,716,588
Supply—2451 Latigo Ave, Oxnard, CA 93030	\$36,362,659
Training Center—102 Durley Ave, Camarillo, CA 93010	\$9,697,783
Total:	\$264,069,071

22.3 CURRENT TRENDS

The current (2021) population of Ventura County is estimated at 841,734, with a growth of -0.25% in the past year according to the most recent United States Census Data. Ventura County is the 14th largest county in California. And over the last ten-year period, Ventura County's population has seen growth of 2.02% since its 2010 population of 825,097.

22.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 22-3.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 22-4.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 22-5.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 22-6.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 22-7.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 22-8.

Table 22-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability				
Plan, Study or Program	Most Recent Update	Comment		
The California Fire Code 2019	2019	Updated every three years at state-level		
District Ordinances #29 and #31	2019	District-Specific Fire Code Amendments		
Fire Hazard Reduction Program (FHRP)	continuous	Annual Program		
Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) Program	continuous	Disaster Preparedness Education and Training		
Ready, Set, Go! Program	continuous	Ventura County Emergency Preparedness Guide		
VCFPD Regional Fire Services Standards of Cover	2017	To determine the distribution of the agency's resources		
Emergency Plans—Area Command	11/23/2015			
Emergency Plans—Brush Plan	02/28/2019			
Emergency Plans—Civil Unrest	12/19/2016			
Emergency Plans—Communications Failure Plan	05/27/2010			
Emergency Plans—Department Operations Center	10/13/2015			
Emergency Plans—Earthquake	10/20/2016			
Emergency Plans—Flooding	06/14/2016			
Emergency Plans—Heat	01/14/2014			
Emergency Plans—High Surf	06/14/2016			
Emergency Plans—Pandemic Plan	03/12/2020			
Emergency Plans—Staffing	10/26/2015			
Emergency Plans—Tsunami	05/03/2017			
Emergency Plans—Unit Strategic Fire Plan	05/25/2021	Updated annually		
Emergency Plans—Urban Terrorism	05/20/2016			
Operational Procedure 1002—Response Levels	11/18/2020			

	Most Recent	
Plan, Study or Program	Update	Comment
Operational Procedure 1006—Water Tender Response Staffing	08/09/2013	
Operational Procedure 1009—Mutual Aid, Ventura Op Area	10/24/2005	
Operational Procedure 1012—Emergency Coordinators	02/01/2008	
Operational Procedure 1100—Emergency Plans 1,2,3 and 4	11/15/2006	
Operational Procedure 2001—Incident Safety	01/15/2013	
Operational Procedure 2004—Contingency Planning/Accountability	07/10/2015	
Operational Procedure 3001—Incident Command	12/28/2005	
Operational Procedure 3003—Staging	09/09/2014	
Operational Procedure 3004—Evacuation of Citizens	06/02/2008	
Operational Procedure 3003—Road Closures	09/18/2007	
Operational Procedure 3009—Cal-OSHA Notification	04/14/2017	
Operational Procedure 3010—Incident Rehabilitation	12/06/2010	
Operational Procedure 3014—Juvenile Fire Setter Advisor	01/15/2013	
Operational Procedure 3015—Critical Incident Stress Debriefing	12/05/2001	
Operational Procedure 4006—Emergency Medical Dispatch	02/11/2004	
Operational Procedure 4008—Multi-Casualty Incidents	12/19/2013	
Operational Procedure 4011—Haz-Mat Patients, Pre Hospital Care	11/13/2013	
Operational Procedure 4500—Rescue Doctrine	11/29/2005	
Operational Procedure 4510—Collapse Rescue	11/29/2005	
Operational Procedure 4520—Rope Rescue	11/29/2005	
Operational Procedure 4530—Trench Rescue	11/29/2005	
Operational Procedure 4540 – Confined Space Rescue	11/29/2005	
Operational Procedure 4550—Water Rescue	11/29/2005	
Operational Procedure 4560—Geologic Incidents	02/05/2007	
Operational Procedure 5200—Wildland Fire Doctrine	06/06/2015	
Operational Procedure 5202—Wildland Fire Operations	06/09/2015	
Operational Procedure 5203—Night Flying Fire Suppression	12/16/2016	
Operational Procedure 5204—Ventura Situational Awareness Tool	08/24/2016	
Operational Procedure 5205—ECP Support Package	08/12/2014	
Operational Procedure 5206—Unmanned Aerial Systems	09/14/2016	
Operational Procedure 6000—Hazardous Materials Response Doctrine	02/05/2007	
Operational Procedure 6007—Radiological Incidents	08/25/2011	
Operational Procedure 7003—Operational Worksheets	03/26/2019	

	Most Recent	
Plan, Study or Program	Update	Comment
Operational Procedure 7003—Appendix 2 Wildland Fire Incident Command Work Sheet	01/12/2006	
Operational Procedure 7003—Appendix 3 Confined Space Rescue Resource Assignment Sheet Work Sheet	01/12/2006	
Operational Procedure 7003—Appendix 4 Collapse Rescue Resources Assignment Sheet Work Sheet	01/12/2006	
Operational Procedure 7003—Appendix 5 Trench Rescue Resource Assignment Sheet Work Sheet	01/12/2006	
Operational Procedure 7003—Appendix 6 Surf Rescue Resource Assignment Sheet Work Sheet	01/12/2006	
Operational Procedure 7003—Appendix 7 Swiftwater Rescue Resource Assignment Sheet/Work Sheet	01/12/2006	
Operational Procedure 7003—Appendix 8 Marine Disaster Resource Assignment Sheet Work Sheet	01/12/2006	
Operational Procedure 7003—Appendix 9 Area Hospitals	09/06/2005	
Operational Procedure 7003—Appendix 13 Hazardous Materials Incident Command Work Sheet	01/12/2006	
Operational Procedure 8010—Commercial Vessel Fires	02/05/2007	
Operational Procedure 8040—Camarillo Airport Aircraft Operations	02/05/2007	
Operational Procedure 8050—Railroad Incidents	02/05/2007	
AP 10103—Records Retention Schedule	06/13/2014	
AP 10105—Daily Journal, Fire Company	10/26/2016	
AP 10106—Significant Incident Documentation	12/23/2013	
AP 10501—Computer Technology Use	10/18/2019	
AP 10503—Technical Services, Request for	08/31/2001	
AP 10504—Internet Access and Use	10/18/2019	
AP 10610—Mapping and GIS System Modifications	10/10/2013	
AP 10611—Helispots	06/09/2014	
AP 10612—Tactical Pre-Plans and Supplemental Maps	06/09/2014	
AP 11100—Uniforms, General	11/05/2020	
AP 11118—Personal Protective Equipment, Maintenance & Inspection of	04/05/2021	
AP 11126—Body Armor, Care and Inspection of	02/17/2011	
Appendix 1—Body Armor, Care and Inspection of	02/17/2011	
AP 11201—Combined Leave	11//09/2007	
AP 11202—Shift Trades	08/10/2021	
AP 11203—Summons/Subpoena	04/25/2001	
AP 11205—Sick/Bereavement Leave, Usage of	03/09/2000	
AP 11206—Family Medical Leave	02/14/1994	
AP 11301—Staffing Levels	02/05/2002	
AP 11307—Apparatus Staffing, Personal Emergencies	02/28/2001	
AP 11401—Injury and Illness Prevention Program	03/29/2016	
AP 11502—Live-Fire Training	12/19/2016	

	Most Recent	
Plan, Study or Program	Update	Comment
AP 11504—Captain Mentoring Program	04/09/2020	
AP 11505—California Incident Command Certification System	03/04/2021	
AP 11506—Paramedic Internship Program	03/05/2021	
AP 11508—Fire District California Incident Command	03/04/2021	
Certification System Mentoring Team		
AP 11509—Incident Management Team Participation	03/04/2021	
AP 11510—Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) Prog.	01/07/2016	
AP 11511—Staff Rides	12/19/2018	
AP 11804—Industrial Injury/Illness	09/05/2002	
AP 11806—Physical Fitness Program	02/11/2019	
AP 11808—National Fire Academy	05/24/2018	
AP 11810—Driver License	11/20/2017	
AP 12101—Tractor-Drawn Aerial Engineer and Operator	01/31/2017	
AP 12102—Vehicles and Apparatus, Operating	04/05/2018	
AP 12103—Water Rescue Equipment	05/30/2002	
AP 12104—Flight Request, Non-Emergency Incident	11/08/2006	
AP 12302—Inventory, Apparatus	07/11/2005	
AP 12300—Inventory, Apparatus: Appendices 1 – 6	04/29/2015	Engine 1, Engine Type 3, Quint, Ladder Truck, Rescue, PM Squad
AP 12300—Inventory, Apparatus: Appendix 7	02/16/2021	BC Vehicle
AP 12300—Inventory, Apparatus: Appendices 8 – 11	04/29/2015	Water Tender, Patrol, Utility, Light and Air
AP 12300—Inventory, Apparatus: Appendix 14	08/29/2016	HazMat 50
AP 12300—Inventory, Apparatus: Appendices 15 – 18	01/03/2017	US&R 40, US&R 54, US&R 54 (Cache Trailer, US&R 154
AP 12303—Fire Hose Inventory and Configuration	10/18/2019	
AP 12405—Tools/Equipment, Fire Station	12/18/2012	
AP 12406—Emergency Food & Water Supplies	11/17/2020	
AP 12501—Controlled Substances	07/08/2020	
AP 13003—Mandatory Worksite Postings	10/27/2016	
AP 13004 – Fire District Property, Disposal of	05/08/2012	
AP 13005—Complaints	05/08/2020	
AP 13006—Security of Department Facilities	05/23/2013	
AP 13008—Department Equipment & Facilities, Use of	12/22/2016	
AP 13009—Theft, County Property	11/05/2012	
AP 13010—Libraries, Fire Station and Appendix 1 (Inventory)	02/16/2017	
AP 13014—Public Records Act Requests	05/22/2009	
AP 13015—Grant Management	02/23/2017	
AP 13103—Maintenance and Construction	10/26/2016	
AP 13105—Fire Hydrants, Inspection and Maintenance of	06/11/2001	
AP 13107—Knox Rapid Entry System	02/17/2017	
AP 13109—Fire Hydrants, Reflective Markers for	03/15/2004	

	Most Recent	
Plan, Study or Program	Update	Comment
AP 13109—Appendix 2: Encroachment Permit Information	04/04/2016	
AP 13114—Incident Response Reporting	06/20/2013	
AP 13115—Fire Locks	08/09/2018	
AP 13202—Security of Fire Communications Center	12/04/2001	
AP 14001– Inspection Authority	09/02/2014	
AP 14002—Fire Safety Inspector Program	09/02/2014	
AP 14004—Movie Safety Officer	07/30/2001	
AP 14102—Community Service Volunteers	02/18/2016	
AP 14202– Burning Permits	04/19/2016	
AP 14301—Administrative Citation Program	07/22/2021	
AP 14302—Criminal Citations	07/22/2021	
AP 14303—Outdoor Fires for Recreation and Other Uses	03/28/2019	
AP 15008—Fire Communications Center Minimum Staffing Levels	02/06/2019	
AP 15010—Fire Communications Center Special Assignments and Training Opportunities	12/28/2017	
Fire Prevention Standards:		
501—Fire Apparatus Access	09/30/2019	Provides the minimum requirements for fire apparatus access roads. This standard also includes requirements for access road gates, fire lanes, and turnarounds/turnouts.
502—Premises Identification	10/18/2018	Provides the minimum requirements for property identification.
506—Knox Rapid Entry System	04/01/2017	Provides the minimum requirements for installation and use of the Knox Rapid Entry System.
509—Residential Fire Sprinklers	02/07/2020	Provides the minimum requirements for the design and installation of automatic fire sprinkler systems in one and two-family dwellings and manufactured homes
509C—Plan Submittal Sheet for Residential Fire Sprinklers	09/25/2020	Plan submittal sheet to be used on all residential fire sprinkler systems.
515—Defensible Space and Fuel Modification Zones	11/20/2020	Provides the minimum requirements for installation and maintenance of defensible space and fuel modification zones.
516—Composting, Mulch, and Organic Processing	02/05/2020	Provides the minimum requirements for processing, storage and application of composting, mulch and organic materials.
517—Application of Mulch and Chips in Defensible Space	11/20/2020	Provides the minimum requirements for application of mulch and wood chips within the defensible space of a structure.
518—Alternate Materials and Methods	12/21/2020	Provides requirements for filing a request for alternate materials and methods
519—Fire Watch	12/17/2020	Identifies when a fire watch is required and the minimum requirements for the fire watch.
14.5.3—Fire Hydrants	06/11/2011	Provides the minimum requirements for fire hydrants
14.6.10—Access and Water Supplies for Public Schools	05/27/2011	Provides the minimum requirements for access roads and water supply.

Plan, Study or Program	Most Recent Update	Comment
14.7.2—Installation of Commercial Fire Sprinklers	07/07/2011	Provides the minimum requirements for the design and installation of automatic fire sprinkler systems in commercial, industrial and multi-family dwellings.
14.7.3—Installation of Fire Alarms	02/23/2011	Provides the minimum requirements for the design and installation of automatic and manual fire alarm systems and fire sprinkler monitoring systems.
14.7.4—Fire Extinguishing Systems for Commercial Cooking Operations	05/13/2011	Provides the minimum requirements for the design, installation, testing and inspection of fire extinguishing systems for commercial cooking operations.
14.7.5—High-Piled Combustible Storage	03/30/2011	Provides the minimum requirements for high-piled combustible storage.
14.9.3—Fireworks Requirements	05/21/2014	Provides the minimum requirements for the public display of fireworks.
Fire Prevention Guidelines:		
401—Special Event Guideline	02/13/2020	Provides a summary of the Fire District's standard conditions for special events.
403—FHRP Abatement Assessment and Appeal Process Guideline	01/01/2020	Provides a summary of the process to file an appeal to a FHRP abatement assessment.
404—Recreational Fire Safety Guideline	02/14/2019	Provides a summary of safety guidelines for the use of recreational fires.
414—Re-Opening of Assembly Occupancies During COVID-19 Guideline	05/22/2020	Provides a summary of fire safety requirements for the re- opening of an assembly occupancy during the COVID-19 pandemic.
Crop and Orchard Warming Directive	01/29/2020	Provides a guide for the use of small warming fires during frost prevention activities. (VCFPD and Ventura County Air Pollution Control District)

Table 22-4. Fiscal Capability

Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?		
Community Development Block Grants	Yes		
Capital Improvements Project Funding	No		
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	No		
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	No		
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	No		
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	No		
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No		
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No		
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes		
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes		
Other	Yes		
If yes, specify: Fire Prevention Fees, Emergency Incident Reimbursement, State Contracts, Federal Grants			

Table 22-5. Administrative and Technical Capability			
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?	
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Fire Prevention Bureau		
Engineers or professionals tra	ined in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Fire Prevention Bureau		
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Emergency Services Bureau-Wildland and Fire Prevention/Planner		
Staff with training in benefit/co	ost analysis	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Business Services Bureau		
Surveyors		Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Damage Inspection Specialists and Managers for fire damage assessment and all hazards		
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Emergency Services Bureau / GIS Specialists and Analysts		
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	No	
Emergency manager		Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	Fire Chief, and all VCFPD Managers		
Grant writers		No	
Other		Yes	
If Yes, Department /Position:	IT, RNs, HR Professionals, Fiscal Staff		

Table 22-6. Education and Outreach Capability

Criterion		Response	
Do you have a public inf	ormation officer or communications office?	Yes	
Do you have personnel s	killed or trained in website development?	Yes	
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? If yes, briefly describe: Fire Hazard Reduction Plan is on website			
Do you use social media If yes, briefly describe:	for hazard mitigation education and outreach? Ready, Set, Go! Program and FHRP	Yes	
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? Yes If yes, briefly describe: Ojai Valley Fire Safe Council, Ventura Regional Fire Safe Council, Bell Canyon Fire Safe Council, Ventura Park Fire Safe Council and the Ventura Resource Conservation District. Also a non-profit called the C.R.E.W has received funding from CAL FIRE California Climate Investments grants for a community chipper program. Piru Wildfire Prevention Education is another group			
Do you have any other p If yes, briefly describe:	rograms in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? Signage Boards for FHRP Community Alerts; VC Alert and Ready, Set, Go! brochures	Yes	
Do you have any establis If yes, briefly describe:	shed warning systems for hazard events? Dam Inundation Alarm at Station 28, Alert Wildfire Cameras throughout the County, and remote automated weather stations throughout the County	Yes	

Table 22-7. Community Classifications				
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified	
FIPS Code	Yes	111-91041	UNK	
DUNS#	Yes	175795681	UNK	
Community Rating System	No	No	N/A	
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	No	N/A	
Public Protection	Yes	03/3X	12/21/2018	
Storm Ready	Yes	N/A	UNK	
Firewise	Yes	N/A	UNK	
Tsunami Ready	Yes	N/A	UNK	

Table 22-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change				
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a			
Technical Capacity				
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts Comment: We monitor fuel moistures throughout the region and we have remote automated weather stations to mo temperatures and relative humidity, rainfall and wind.	Medium onitor			
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts Comment:	Low			
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities <i>Comment:</i> GIS, Wildfire Pre-Planner, Vegetation Management Planner	Medium			
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory Comment:	Low			
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts Comment:	Low			
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks Comment:	Low			
Implementation Capacity				
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes Comment:	Low			
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts Comment:	Low			
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts Comment:	Low			
Champions for climate action in local government departments Comment:	Low			
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies Comment:	Low			
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation Comment:	Low			
Local authority over sectors likely to be negatively impacted Comment:	Low			

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Public Capacity	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Unsure
Comment:	
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts	Unsure
Comment:	
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Unsure
Comment:	
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment:	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment:	

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

22.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

22.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- Cal Fire Danger Rating Tiers—Fire severity regional maps
- Dam Inundation Plan—Emergency Plan for response to dam failure/flooding
- **GIS-based pre-application review process**—Maintain a GIS-based (Accella) pre-application review for new construction and major remodels in hazard areas, such levee break, high and/or very high wildfire areas.
- Integration of the 2015 HMP into current/future planning documents—Integrate the 2015 HMP, in particular the hazard analysis and mitigation strategy sections, into local planning documents, including general plans, emergency operations plans, and capital improvement plans.
- Fuel Reduction Program, Chipper Program—Maintain a fuel reduction program, such as the collection and disposal of dead fuel, within open spaces and around critical facilities and residential structures located within a SRA or LRA high or very high wildfire zone
- **Post-Fire Debris Flow Treatments**—Maintain post-fire debris flow hillslope and channel treatments, such as mulching, check dams, and debris racks, as needed.

- Fuel Modification Program, Fire Hazard Reduction Plan—Maintain a fuel modification program, which also includes residential maintenance requirements and enforcement, plan submittal and approval process, guidelines for planting, and a listing of undesirable plant species. Require builders and developers to submit their plans, complete with proposed fuel modification zones, to the local fire department for review and approval prior to beginning construction.
- **Public Education Program, Ready, Set, Go**—Continue to develop and promote public education programs in wildland fire safety and survival for all residents adjacent to wildland areas.
- Water Reduction and Restrictions & Public Education—Continue to implement water reduction and restrictions at district facilities; reduced or removed landscape vegetation and replaced it with drought tolerant vegetation. Also created a public viewing area at a fire station starting with a walking tour and plant identification for the public to use while planting their own yards.
- National Terrorism Advisory System Bulletin—Rating level, Department of Homeland Security (DHS) for threat preparation and planning as applied for preparatory action by the Fire District.
- MARSEC USCG (Maritime Security U.S. Coast Guard)—Threat rating system for our local Port of Hueneme, a Maritime Transportation Security Act regulated port as applied for preparatory action by the Fire District.
- Integrate the hazard analysis and mitigation strategy into the General Plan's Safety Element.
- Continue to participate in the NWS Tsunami Ready Program.
- Maintain a new vegetation management program that provides vegetation management services to elderly, disabled, or low- income property owners who lack the resources to remove flammable vegetation from around their homes.
- Maintain a fuel modification program for new construction by requiring builders and developers to submit their plans, complete with proposed fuel modification zones, to the local fire department for review and approval prior to beginning construction.
- Maintain a hazards fuel treatment program for areas that have been identified with overgrown/dead brush/trees to reduce the potential for tree-to-tree ignition. Ensure that a "maintenance now" component to provide continued fire resistance is part of the program.
- Maintain a vegetation management program in areas within and adjacent to rights-of-way and in close proximity to critical facilities to reduce the risk of tree failure and property damage and avoid creation of wind acceleration corridors within vegetated areas.
- Continue to work with local ranchers and oil fields to identify and create additional exit corridors for employees to use in the event of a wildfire.
- Continue to implement the hazard analysis and mitigation strategy into the district's emergency plans.
- Maintain post-fire debris flow hillslope and channel treatments, such mulching, check dams, and debris racks, as needed.

22.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

• AB-38—Applying the Wildland Fire Disclosure Act on Home Sales

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

22.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

22.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 22-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 22-9. Past Natural Hazard Events				
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment	
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	January 20, 2020 – present September 30,2021	\$181,280.00	
Holser Fire		August 17, 2020	\$880,836.32 3, 000 acres burned	
Lime Fire		June 10, 2020	\$1,257,780.92 803 acres burned	
Maria Fire	FM-5302	November 1, 2019 October 31, 2019	\$1,431,058.00 9,999 acres burned	
Easy Fire	FM-5298 DR-5298	October 30, 2019	\$1,266,729.00 1,806 acres burned	
Getty Fire	FM-5297	October 28, 2019	\$93,205.78	
Saddleridge Fire	FM-5293	October 10, 2019	\$85,897.02	
Wildfires (Hill/Woolsey)	DR-4407	November 8 – 25, 2018	\$10,718,300.00 Woolsey, LA & VC 96,949 acres	
Thomas Fire	FM-5224 DR-4353	December 4, 2017	\$8,538,253.00	
Springs Fire	FM-5024 DR-5024	May 2 – 11, 2013	\$369,392.00 24,251 acres burned	
Guiberson Fire	FM-2839 DR-2839	September 22 – 29, 2009	\$533,819.00	
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows (October 2007 Fires)	DR-1731	October 21 – March 31, 2008	\$81,578.00	
Sesno Fire	DR-2789	October 13, 2008	\$142,434.00	

	FEMA		
Type of Event	Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
Shekell Fire	FM-2681 DR-2861	December 3 – 6, 2006	\$2,193,118.00 13,600 acres burned 7 structures burned
Day Fire	FM-2677 DR-2677	September 4, 2006	\$382,215.00
School Fire	FM-2586 DR-2568	November 17, 2005	\$1,013,284.30
Topanga Fire	FM-2583 DR-2583	September 28 – October 10, 2005 September 28	\$1,749,843.47 24, 175 acres burned 6 structures burned
Hurricane Katrina Evacuation	EM-3248	August 29 – October 1, 2005	\$621,740
Severe Storms, Flooding, Landslides, and Mud and Debris Flows	DR-1585	February 16 – 23, 2005	Data not available
Severe Storms, Flooding, Debris Flows, and Mudslides La Conchita	DR-1577	December 27, 2004 – January 11, 2005	\$1,828,411.00
Simi Fire		October 25, 2003	107,560 acres burned 48 structures lost
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflow and Debris Flow	DR-1498	October 21, 2003 – March 31, 2003	Data not available
Westlake Fire		June 29, 2001	278 Acres burned
Severe Storms, Tornadoes, High Winds and Flooding	DR-1267	December 20 – 28, 1998	Data not available
Severe Winter Storms and Flooding	DR-1203	February 2 – April 30, 1998	Data not available
Severe Fires	EM-3120	October 21 – 31, 1996	Data not available
Grand Fire	Unknown	April 28, 1996	10,949 acres burned
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding, Landslides, Mud Flows	DR-1046	February 13 – April 19, 1995	Data not available
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding, Landslides, Mud Flows	DR-1044	January 3 – February, 1995	Data not available
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	January 17 – November 30,1994	Data not available
Fires, Mud & Landslides, Soil Erosion, Flooding	DR-1005	October 26 – April 22, 1994	Data not available
Green Meadows Fire		October 26, 1993	38,477 acres burned 45 structures burned
Severe Storm, Winter Storm, Mud & Landslides, Flooding	DR-979	January 5 – March 20, 1993	Data not available
Snow Storm, Heavy Rain, High Winds, Flooding, Mudslide	DR-935	February 10 – 19, 1992	Data not available
Severe Freeze	DR-894	December 19, 1990 – January 3, 1991	Data not available
Bates Fire		April 4, 1989	193 acres burned
Piru Fire		January 1, 1988	12,068 acres burned
Severe Storms, High Tides, Flooding	DR-812	January 17 – 22, 1988	Data not available
Bradley Fire		November 11, 1986	9,229 acres burned
Ferndale Fire		October 14, 1985	46,809 acres burned 20 structures burned
Black Mountain Fire		July 3, 1985	1,324 acres burned
Wheeler Fire		July 1, 1985	122,724 acres burned

	FEMA		
Type of Event	Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
Grass, Wildlands, Forest Fires	DR-739	June 26 – July 19, 1985	Data not available
Grimes Fire		May 7, 1984	11,164 acres burned 3,000 avocado & citrus trees burned
Coastal Storms, Floods, Slides, Tornadoes	DR-677	January 21 – March 30, 1983	Data not available
Severe Storms, Mudslides, Flooding	DR-615	January 8, 1980	Data not available
Happy Camp Fire		August 28, 1978	463 acres burned
Coastal Storms, Mudslides, Flooding	DR-547	February 15, 1978	Data not available
Carlisle Fire		November 15, 1977	1,368 acres burned
Los Robles Fire		June 22, 1976	2,245 acres burned 1 structure burned
Potrero Fire		September 26, 1973	12,297 acres burned 3 structures burned
Severe Storms, High Tides, Flooding	DR-364	February 8, 1973	Data not available
Forest, Brush Fires	DR-295	September 29, 1970	Data not available
Camarillo Heights Fire		September 26, 1970	183 acres burned 3 structures burned
Foothill Fire		September 25, 1970	4,731 acres burned 12 structures burned
Severe Storms, Flooding	DR-253	January 26, 1969	Records not kept
Timber Canyon Fire		October 16, 1967	10,841 acres burned 8 structures burned
Ditch Road Fire		October 16, 1967	1,245 acres burned 13 structures burned
Sence Ranch Fire		October 15, 1967	18,354 acres burned 76 structures burned
Devonshire-Parker Fire		October 15, 1967	23,088 acres burned 48 structures burned VC&LA Counties
Warring Canyon Fire		August 28, 1967	4,003 acres burned 1 structure burned
Heavy Rains, Flooding	DR-211	December 7, 1965	Records not kept
Polo Fire		March 7, 1964	684 acres burned
Flood ^a	DR-145	February 25, 1963	No data on file
Creek Road Fire		August 20, 1963	4,533 acres burned
Squaw Flats Fire		August 20, 1963	439 acres burned
Red Mountain Fire		January 5, 1963	1,389 acres burned
Culbert Lease Fire		December 4, 1962	5,314 acres burned 4 structures burned
Severe Storm ^a	DR-138	October 24, 1962	No data on file
Flood ^a	DR-122	March 6, 1962	No data on file
Donlon & Fletcher Fire		January 15, 1961	2,426 acres burned
Calumet Fire		October 21, 1958	17,212 acres burned 5 structures burned
Flood ^a	DR-82	April 4, 1958	No data on file
Fire ^a	DR-65	December 29,1956	No data on file

Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment	
Lake Sherwood Fire		December 28, 1956	35,164 acres burned 20 structures burned	
Flood ^a	DR-47	December 23,1955	No data on file	
Ventu Park Fire		November 7, 1955	13,956 acres burned 8 structures burned	
Houston Fire		February 10, 1955	500 acres burned	
Flood ^a	DR-15	February 5, 1954	No data on file	
Wheeler Springs Fire		September 12, 1948	22,503 acres burned 17 structures burned	
Thatcher Fire		June 1, 1947	44,003 acres burned 60 structures burned	
Matilija Fire		September 7, 1932	220,000 acres burned	
a EEMA did not begin distinguishing declarations by county until 1964. Declarations prior to then are statewide not county-				

 FEMA did not begin distinguishing declarations by county until 1964. Declarations prior to then are statewide, not county specific.

Source: FEMA 2021

22.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 22-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Calculations are from Unincorporated County areas and all cities, except Ventura, Oxnard, and Fillmore. Rankings were adjusted by Chief Fong with THIRA process, professional knowledge, and experience.

Table 22-10. Hazard Risk Ranking					
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category		
1	Wildfire	34	High		
2	Severe Weather	24	Medium		
2	Severe Storms	24	Medium		
4	Flooding	23	Medium		
5	Drought	22	Medium		
5	Earthquake	22	Medium		
5	Dam Failure	22	Medium		
8	Landslide	16	Low		
9	Sea Level Rise	4	Low		
9	Tsunami	4	Low		

22.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Wildfires—Ventura County has experienced the largest, most destructive, and longest duration wildfires in State recorded history, with 3 of the top 20 in the County according to CAL FIRE.
- Severe Weather—The extremes of climate change have induced long duration wind-events, freezing temperatures with frost kill, record high temperatures, increased lightning activity, and prolonged drought resulting in increased calls for service.
- Severe Storms—The jurisdiction has seen extreme storm systems bring the majority of precipitation in very condensed periods, which have impacted communities and infrastructure causing flooding, with associated mudslides in prior burn areas, and coastal flooding aggravated by storm surge and rising tides.

Actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

22.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 22-11 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 22-11. Status of Previous Pla	In Actions			
		Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update	
Action Item from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
OA 1— Integrate the hazard analysis and mitigation strategy with the General Plan's Safety Element.			~	VFP-4
Comment: Hazard analysis and mitigation strategy is continuous.				
OA 17 —Implement post-fire debris flow hillslope and channel treatments, such as seeding, mulching, check dams, and debris racks, as needed.			~	VFP-5
Comment: Current programs following recent fires (Thomas Fire 2017 and Woolsey continue, following impacted wildland fire areas.	y Fire, 2018) ha	ve been comp	leted. Progi	am will
OA 21 —Maintain hazards fuel treatment program for areas that have been identified with overgrown/dead brush/trees to reduce the potential for tree-to-tree ignition. Ensure that a "maintenance now" component to provide continued fire resistance is part of the program.			~	VFP-6
Comment: Continuing program, indefinitely; as part of the VCFPD Fire Hazard Red	uction Program	1.		
OA 22 —Develop a vegetation management program in areas within and adjacent to rights-of-way and in close proximity to critical facilities to reduce the risk of tree failure and property damage and avoid creation of wind acceleration corridors within vegetated areas.			~	VFP-7
Comment: Continuing program as areas are identified.				
VCFPD 1 –Work with local ranchers and oil fields to identify and create additional exit corridors for employees to use in the event of a wildfire.			✓	VFP-8
Comment: Continuing program.				

22.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 22-12 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 22-13 identifies the priority for each action. Table 22-14 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 22-12. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix							
Benefits New or		Lead		Estimated			
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Agency	Support Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	l imeline ^a	
Action VFP -1—Where appropriate, support retrotiting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.							
Hazards Mitigated	I: Wildfire, Severe S	torms, Seve	ere Weather, Lands	lide, Sea Leve	el Rise, Tsunami, Earthquake, Dam Failure	e, Flooding	
Existing	2, 6, 9, 11	VCFPD	GSA & Public Works	High	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), Staff Time, and General Funds	Short-term	
Action VFP-2—A	ctively participate in th	ne plan mai	ntenance protocols	outlined in Vo	plume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.		
Hazards Mitigated	<u>I:</u> Wildfire, Severe S Flooding	torms, Seve	ere Weather, Lands	lide, Sea Leve	el Rise, Tsunami, Drought, Earthquake, Da	m Failure,	
New & Existing	1, 4, 6, 8, 19	VCFPD	GSA & Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term	
Action VFP-3-P	urchase generators for	or critical fac	cilities and infrastrue	cture that lack	adequate backup power, including the Ve	hicle	
Maintenance Unit,	which will be installe	d sometime	e between the end o	f 2021 and be	eginning of 2022.		
Hazards Mitigated	<u>l:</u> Dam Failure, Eart	hquake, Flo	oding, Landslide, S	evere Weathe	er, Severe Storms, Wildfire		
Existing	2, 6, 7	VCFPD	GSA & Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds, FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP)	Short-term	
Action VFP-4—In	tegrate the hazard ar	alysis and	mitigation strategy v	with the Ventu	ra County General Plan's Safety Element.		
Hazards Mitigated	<u>I:</u> Wildfire, Severe S Flooding	Storms, Sev	ere Weather, Lands	slide, Sea Lev	rel Rise, Tsunami, Drought, Earthquake, D	am Failure,	
New & Existing	1, 4, 6, 8, 19	VCFPD	GSA, Public Works, CAL FIRE	Medium	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing	
Action VFP-5—In racks, as needed.	nplement post-fire del	oris flow hill	slope and channel t	reatments, su	ich as seeding, mulching, check dams, and	debris	
Hazards Mitigated	: Earthquake, Dam	Failure, Se	vere Storms, Sever	e Weather, Fl	ooding, Wildfire, Landslide, Drought		
New & Existing	2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 18	VCFPD	GSA, Public Works, CAL FIRE	Medium	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP and HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing	
Action VFP-6-M	aintain wildfire hazar	d fuel reduc	tion program for are	eas that have	been identified with overgrown or dead bru	ish, trees	
and weeds to redu	ice the potential for tr	ee-to-tree ig	gnition. Ensure that	a "maintenan	ce now" component to provide continued fi	re	
resistance is part of	of the program.						
Hazards Mitigated	<u>/:</u> Wildfire			Mariliana		0	
New & Existing	2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19	VCFPD	USDA	iviedium	Staff Time & General Funds	Ungoing	
Action VFP-7-D	evelop a vegetation n	nanagemen	t program in areas	within and adj	acent to rights-of-way and in close proximi	ty to critical	
facilities to reduce	the risk of tree failure	e and prope	rty damage and avo	pid creation of	f wind acceleration corridors within vegetate	ed areas.	
Hazards Mitigated	: Severe Storms, S	evere Weat	her, Flooding, Wildf	ire, Landslide	, Drought		
New & Existing	2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19	VCFPD	CAL FIRE & USDA	Medium	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP and HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing	
Action VFP-8-W	/ork with local ranche	rs and oil fie	elds to identify and o	create addition	nal exit corridors for employees to use in th	e event of	
a wildfire.							
Hazards Mitigated	<u>/:</u> Wildfire						
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19	VCFPD	CAL FIRE & USDA	Low	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP and HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing	
Action VFP-9—A	t select Fire Stations	in the distric	ct, continue using re	claimed wate	r and promoting water-saving measures by	1	
maintaining droug Hazards Mitigated	ht-tolerant demonstra I: Drought	tion garden	s for community ed	ucation and a	wareness.		
Existing	1, 2, 4, 13, 14, 15,	VCFPD	Local Water	Low	Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing	
	17, 18, 19		Utility Purveyors				

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Age <u>ncy</u>	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action VFP-10—Implement a fuel modification program for new construction by requiring builders and developers to submit their plans, complete with proposed fuel modification zones, to the local fire department for review and approval prior to beginning construction.							
<u>Hazards Mitigated</u> New & Existing	<u>2:</u> Wildlire 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19	VCFPD	CAL FIRE & Local City Fire Depts.	Low	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP and HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing	
Action VFP-11 Develop and implement a Home Ignition Zone Assessment Program (Reference NFPA 1144) throughout the County's Fire Hazard Severity Zones.							
Hazards Mitigated	<u>d:</u> Wildfire						
New	1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19	VCFPD	Ventura County Resource Conservation District	Medium	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), General Funds & Staff Time	Ongoing	
Action VFP-12 Maintain new vegetation management program that provides vegetation management services to elderly, disabled, or low-income property owners who lack the resources to remove flammable vegetation from around their homes.							
Hazards Mitigated	<u>l:</u> Wildfire						
New & Existing	2, 4, 5, 8, 10, 13, 14, 15, 19	VCFPD		Medium	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP and HMGP), Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing	
a Short torm -	Completion within 5 y	oars: Long	torm - Complotion	within 10 yoar	rs: Ongoing - Continuing now or ovisting pr	oaram with	

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 22-13. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	ls Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
2	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
3	3	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
4	5	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
5	11	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
6	12	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
7	12	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
8	18	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
9	9	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
10	17	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
11	17	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
12	9	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
a. See t	he introductio	n to this vo	lume for e	xplanation of prior	ities.			

Table 22-14. Analysis of Mitigation Actions									
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a							
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building ^b	
High-Risk Hazard	ls								
Wildfire	1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12	1, 3, 5, 6, 10, 11, 12	4, 6, 11, 12	5, 6, 7, 8, 11, 12	3, 5, 6, 8, 11, 12	5	5, 6, 7, 12	2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12	
Medium-Risk Haz	zards								
Dam Failure	1, 2, 4, 5	1, 3, 5	4	5	3, 5	5	5	2, 4, 5	
Severe Weather	1, 2, 4, 5, 7	1, 3, 5	4	5, 7	3, 5	5	5, 7	2, 4, 5, 7	
Severe Storms	VFP-1, 2, 4, 5, 7	VFP-1, 3, 5	VFP-4	VFP-5, 7	VFP-3, 5	VFP-5	VFP-5, 7	VFP-2, 4, 5, 7	
Flooding	VFP-1, 2, 4, 5, 7	VFP-1, 3, 5	VFP-4	VFP-5, 7	VFP-3, 5	VFP-5	VFP-5, 7	VFP-2, 4, 5, 7	
Drought	VFP-2, 4, 5, 7		VFP-4, 9	VFP-5, 7, 9	VFP-5	VFP-5	VFP-5, 7, 9	VFP-2, 4, 5, 7	
Earthquake	VFP-1, 2, 4, 5	VFP-1, 3, 5	VFP-4	VFP-5	VFP-3, 5	VFP-5	VFP-5	VFP-2, 4, 5	
Landslide	VFP-1, 2, 4, 5, 7	VFP-1, 3, 5	VFP-4	VFP-5, 7	VFP-3, 5	VFP-5	VFP-5, 7	VFP-2, 4, 5, 7	
Low-Risk Hazards									
Sea Level Rise	VFP-1, 2, 4	VFP-1	VFP-4					VFP-2, 4	
Tsunami	VFP-1, 2, 4	VFP-1	VFP-4					VFP-2, 4	

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

22.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 22-15 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 22-15. Local Public Outreach						
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved				
Tweet about OES updating the HMP	08/05/2021	7				
Retweet of OES updating the HMP	08/04/2021	23				
Facebook post about OES updating the HMP	08/05/2021	4,312				
Instagram post about OES updating the HMP	08/05/2021	9,656				
Retweet of OES updating the HMP (English and Spanish)	08/16/2021	14				
Nextdoor	08/05/2021	7,279				

22.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- VCFPD Administrative Policies Manual was used to list planning and regulatory capabilities for Table 22-3.
- VCFPD Operational Procedures Manual was used to list planning and regulatory capabilities for Table 22-3.

- VCFPD Emergency Plans Manual was used to list planning and regulatory capabilities for Table 22-3.
- Fiscal and Facilities Records Systems were used to list assets in Table 22-2 and damages in Table 22-8.
- **District Records on Hazards and Loss** were used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

- Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.
- CAL FIRE Archives were used to gather data for Table 22-8 Past Natural Hazard Events.

23. VENTURA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

23.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Russ Olsen, Director of Risk Management Ventura County Schools Self-Funding Authority 5189A Verdugo Way Camarillo, CA 93012 Telephone: 805-383-1970 e-mail Address: rolsen@vcoe.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Michelle Kelly, Risk Manager Ventura County Schools Self-Funding Authority 5189A Verdugo Way Camarillo, CA 93012 Telephone: 805-437-1504 e-mail Address: mkelly@vcoe.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 23-1.

Table 23-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members					
Name	Title				
Eric Reynolds, Ventura Unified SD	Director of Risk Management				
Julie Tedder, Moorpark Unified SD	Administrative Assistant, Business Services				
Martha Corona, Fillmore Unified SD	Director of Fiscal Services				
Russ Olsen, Ventura County Schools Self-Funding Authority	Director of Risk Management				
Michelle Kelly, Ventura County Schools Self-Funding Authority	Risk Manager				

23.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

23.2.1 Overview

Ventura County comprises 19 public K-12 school districts, 11 public charter schools, and the Ventura County Office of Education (VCOE), collectively called local educational agencies. The VCOE provides facility planning, construction, and maintenance oversite and guidance to the other local educational agencies. VCOE also operates specialized schools in the county.

Ventura County Schools Self-Funding Authority (VCSSFA) provides insurance programs, risk management programs, and emergency management programs assistance to the public K-12 school districts, 8 charter schools, and VCOE.

The Ventura County Board of Education/Ventura County Superintendent of Schools assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; VCSSFA will oversee its implementation.

23.2.2 Service Area

The Ventura County public school service area covers 258 school district locations including schools, offices, maintenance facilities, warehouses and transportation facilities serving a population of 132,000 students and 12,410 staff. Local educational agencies provide educational instruction, extracurricular activities, transportation and meals to students.

23.2.3 Assets

Table 23-2 summarizes the assets of the District and their value.

Table 23-2. Special-Purpose District Assets	
Asset	Value
Property	
242 school locations and school district auxiliary locations	\$3,915,649,556
Equipment	
827 vehicles including buses, maintenance trucks, passenger cars, trailers, and mobile equipment	Unknown
Total:	Unknown
Critical Facilities	
Ventura County Office of Education, Administrative Office; 5189 Verdugo Way, Camarillo, CA 93012	\$11,602,900
Briggs Elementary School District, District Office; 12465 Foothill Road, Santa Paula, CA 93060	\$1,452,400
Conejo Valley Unified School District, Educational Center; 1400 E Janss Road, Thousand Oaks, CA 91362	\$4,835,400
Fillmore Unified School District, District Office; 627 Sespe Avenue, Fillmore, CA 93015	\$6,723,780
Hueneme Unified School District, District Office; 205 N Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, CA 93041	\$2,746,957
Mesa Union School District, District Office; 3901 N Mesa School Road, Somis, CA 93066	\$707,200
Moorpark Unified School District, District Office; 5297 Maureen Lane, Moorpark, CA 93021	\$20,800,600
Oak Park Unified School District, , District Office; 5801 Conifer Street, Oak Park, CA 91377	\$3,398,600
Ocean View School District, , District Office; 4200 Olds Road, Oxnard, CA 93033	\$3,262,300
Ojai Unified School District, , District Office; 414 East Ojai Avenue, Ojai, CA 93023	\$2,016,200
Oxnard School District, , District Office; 1051 South A Street, Oxnard, CA 93030	\$12,389,000
Oxnard Union High School District, , District Office; 1800 Solar Drive, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93036	\$15,575,317
Pleasant Valley School District, , District Office; 600 Temple Street, Camarillo, CA 93010	\$3,333,800
Rio Elementary School District, , District Office; 1800 Solar Drive, 3rd Floor, Oxnard, CA 93036	\$7,775,983
Santa Paula Unified School District, District Office; 201 South Steckel Drive, Santa Paula, CA 93060	\$2,926,478
Simi Valley Unified School District, , District Office; 101 West Cochran Street, Simi Valley, CA 93065	\$46,598,400
Ventura Unified School District, , District Office; 255 West Stanley Avenue, Ventura, CA 93001	\$35,842,500
Total:	\$181,987,815

23.3 CURRENT TRENDS

The current (2021) population of Ventura County is estimated at 841,734, with a growth of -0.25% in the past year according to the most recent United States Census Data. Ventura County is the 14th largest county in California. And over the last ten-year period, Ventura County's population has seen growth of 2.02% since its 2010 population of 825,097.

23.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- Table 23-3 presents an assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities
- Table 23-4 presents an assessment of fiscal capabilities
- Table 23-5 presents an assessment of administrative and technical capabilities
- Table 23-6 presents an assessment of education and outreach capabilities
- Table 23-7 presents classifications under various community mitigation programs
- Table 23-8 Presents the community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change

I able 23-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability					
Plan, Study or Program	Date of Most Recent Update	Comment			
California Education Code, sections 17280 et seq.	2018	Design and approval of school buildings			
California Building Code	2019	Standards for building design			
Board Policy 3511	2019	Energy and Water Management			
Board Policy 7110		Facilities Master Plan			
Board Policy 7214		General Obligation Bonds			
Emergency Operations Plan	2020	Preparation, response, recovery			
California Department of General Services, Division of State Architect		Review and approval of new and modernized school buildings			

Table 23-4. Fiscal Capability					
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?				
Community Development Block Grants	No				
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes				
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	No				
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	No				
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes				
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	No				
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No				
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No				
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes				
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	No				
Other	Yes				
If yes, specify: Self-insurance program credit for safety and emergency pr	reparation.				

Table 23-5. Administrative and Technical Capability					
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?			
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices					
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices					
If Yes, Department /Position:	Varies by local educational agency/Director of Facilities, Bond Manager				
Planners or engineers with an	understanding of natural hazards	No			
Staff with training in benefit/cost analysis					
If Yes, Department /Position:	VCSSFA/Risk Manager				
Surveyors		No			
Personnel skilled or trained in	GIS applications	No			
Scientist familiar with natural h	nazards in local area	No			
Emergency manager		Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Varies by local educational agency/Risk Manager, Emergency Technician				
Grant writers		Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position:	Department and title varies by local educational agency				

Table 23-6. Education and Outreach Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes			
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes			
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website?				
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach?				
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?				
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? If yes, briefly describe: Various mass notification systems telephone, text, e-mail	Yes			
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe: Various mass notification systems telephone, text, e-mail	Yes			

Table 23-7. Community Classifications								
Participating? Classification Date C								
FIPS Code	Yes	N/A	N/A					
DUNS#	Yes	078294390	N/A					
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A					
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A					
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A					
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A					
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A					
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A					

Table 23-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	Medium
Comment: Climate change taught in some science classes, widespread use of solar panels, electric buses	
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	Low
Comment: Impact of local educational agency efforts difficult to measure or monitor	
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Low
Comment: Such in-house resources do not exist	
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	Low
Comment: Such in-house resources do not exist	
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Medium
<i>Comment:</i> Continued implementation of new solar panels, electrical storage batteries, electric buses	
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	Low
Comment: Such in-house resources do not exist	
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	Low
Comment: Authority/mandate centered on education, which can include climate change taught in some science cla	sses
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Medium
Comment: solar panels, electrical storage batteries, electric buses	
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Medium
<i>Comment:</i> solar panels, electrical storage batteries, electric buses	
Champions for climate action in local government departments	Low
Comment: Local educational agencies have had energy conservation specialists, but grants have expired.	
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Low
Comment: Local authomy infined to school sites	Low
Comment: As allowed by the state or supported by grant funding	LOW
Lecal authority over sectors likely to be perative impacted	Low
Commont: Local authority limited to students and staff on school campusos	LOW
Public Canacity	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Medium
Comment: Climate change taught in some science classes	Weddin
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts	Low
Comment: Local educational agencies have little influence beyond school sites	Low
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: Local educational agencies have little influence beyond school sites	
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: Local educational agencies have little influence beyond school sites	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: Local educational agencies study ecosystems, but have little influence beyond school grounds	

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

23.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

23.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- Emergency Operations Plan—A plan for preparing, responding, recovery from emergencies which includes mitigation.
- Recommendations and Requirements for Wildfire: Preparation and Response—Includes strategies for preventing property damage due to wildfire and strategies for preventing smoke intrusion into school buildings.

23.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

• **Comprehensive School Safety Plan**—Includes strategies for the education, prevention and response to crime, violence and emergencies on school campuses and at school-related events.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

23.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

23.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 23-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 23-9. Past Natural Hazard Events							
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment				
Severe Weather	N/A	February 28, 2021	Strong and gusty Santa Ana winds impacted the coastal valleys of Ventura county. Minor roof damage at some school sites				
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	01/20/20 - continuing	N/A				
Easy/Maria Fires	FM-5298/FM-5302	October 30, 2019	\$325,000				
Heat Event		7/4/2018 to 7/6/2018	Extreme 2-day heat event broke records across the county.				
Woolsey Fire / Hill Fire	DR-4407	November 8, 2018	\$7,932,865				
Thomas Fire	DR-4353	December 4, 2017	\$12,451,877				
Winter Storms	N/A	2/17/2017 to 2/18/2017	Rainfall amounts from 2 to 6 inches across coastal areas with up to around 10 inches in the local mountains produced numerous reports of flash flooding as well as mud and debris flows. Strong southerly winds with gusts up to 70 mph reported in some areas.				
Springs Fire	FM-5024	May 2, 2013	Smoke damage to district buildings. 24,251 acres burned countywide.				
Guiberson Fire	FM-2839	9/22/2009 to 9/29/2009	Smoke damage to district buildings. 17,500 acres burned countywide.				
2007 Ranch Fire	FM-1731	October 21, 2007	Smoke damage to district buildings. 58,401 acres burned in both L.A. and eastern Ventura county near Piru				
Severe Freeze Event	DR-1689	1/11/2007 to 1/17/2007	4 nights of below freezing temperatures				
Shekell Complex Fire	FM-2681	12/3/2006 to 12/6/2006	Smoke damage to district buildings. 13,600 acres burned countywide.				
Day Fire	FM-2677	9/4/2006 to 10/9/2006	Smoke damage to district buildings. 162,702 acres burned countywide.				
Winter Storms	DR-1577	1/7/2005 to 1/11/2005	Flooding and erosion throughout the county.				
Simi Fire	DR-1498/FM-2504	October 24, 2003	Smoke damage to district buildings. 108,204 acres burned countywide.				
Ranch Fire	N/A	December 27, 1999	Smoke damage to district buildings. 4,372 acres burned countywide				
Freeze Event	DR-1267	December 20, 1998	Unknown				
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	January 17, 1994	Non-structural damage to a limited number of school sites in the eastern areas of the county				
Sylmar Earthquake	N/A	February 9, 1971	Unknown				
St. Francis Dam Failure	N/A	March 12, 1928	>530 people died; infrastructure and buildings throughout the county all eradicated in flood's path down the Santa Clara river valley to the Pacific Ocean.				

23.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 23-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Calculations are from Unincorporated County areas and all cities, then adjusted based on the location of district properties within those jurisdictions, and local experience.

	Table 23-10. Hazard Risk Ranking						
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category				
1	Earthquake	33	High				
2	Wildfire	24	Medium				
2	Severe Storm	24	Medium				
2	Severe Weather	24	Medium				
5	Dam Failure	18	Medium				
5	Flooding	18	Medium				
7	Drought	9	Low				
8	Landslide	7	Low				
9	Sea Level Rise	2	Low				
9	Tsunami	2	Low				

23.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- School buildings are built to withstand strong earthquakes. Non-structural hazards can still cause serious injury.
- Smoke intrusion has been the biggest cleanup expense due to wildfire. A small number of schools are located near open space, making them vulnerable to burning.
- Many child nutrition storage areas are without generators to preserve food during power outages.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

23.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 23-11 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

23.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 23-12 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 23-13 identifies the priority for each action. Table 23-14 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 23-11. Status of Previous Plan Actions					
	Removed;		Carried C Up	Carried Over to Plan Update	
Action Item from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update	
OA 1 —Integrate the hazard analysis and mitigation strategy with the General Plan's Safety Element.			✓	VOE-5	
Comment: Still needs to be implemented					
OA 8 —Adopt emergency water conservation measures and/or water conservation ordinance to limit irrigation.		\checkmark			
Comment: Not adopted					
OA 11 —Develop and implement plans to increase the building owner's general knowledge of and appreciation for the value of seismic upgrading of the building's structural and nonstructural elements.			✓	VOE-6	
<i>Comment:</i> School buildings are designed to withstand strong earthquakes. Efforts earthquake safety.	continue to impl	lement and ma	intain non-s	structural	
OA 21 —Maintain hazards fuel treatment program for areas that have been identified with overgrown/dead brush/trees to reduce the potential for tree-to-tree ignition. Ensure that a "maintenance now" component to provide continued fire resistance is part of the program.			~	VOE-7	
<i>Comment:</i> Schools adjacent to open space continue to maintain brush clearance a District	s required by th	ne Ventura Cou	inty Fire Pro	otection	
VCOE 1 —Convert high water volume landscape to native and other drought tolerant plants, hardscape, and synthetic turf in non-play areas.			~	VOE-8	
Comment: Efforts continue to implement and maintain drought tolerant plants and l	hardscape.				

Table 23-12. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix						
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a
Action VOE-1—W repetitive losses an	here appropriate, suppo nd/or are located in high	ort retrofitting of stru - or medium-risk ha	ictures located in haz azard areas.	zard areas, pri	oritizing those that have expe	rienced
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Wildfire,	Severe Storm, Sev	vere Weather, Dam F	ailure, Floodir	ng, Landslide, Sea Level Rise	, Tsunami
Existing	2, 6, 9, 11	Facilities		High	General Funds, FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP)	Short-term
Action VOE-2—Act	tively participate in the	plan maintenance p	protocols outlined in \	/olume 1 of th	is hazard mitigation plan.	
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Wildfire, Tsunami	Severe Storm, Sev	vere Weather, Dam F	ailure, Floodir	ng, Drought, Landslide, Sea L	evel Rise,
New & Existing	1, 4, 6, 8, 19	Administration		Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term
Action VOE-3—Purchase generators for critical facilities and infrastructure that lack adequate backup power, including computer networks and child nutrition storage facilities						
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam Failure, Earthqu	uake, Flooding, Sev	ere Weather, Wildfire	<u>;</u>		
Existing	2, 6, 11	Facilities		Medium	Staff Time, General Funds, FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term

Benefits New or				Estimated		
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	l imeline ^a
Action VOE-4—Ha	arden structures with se	ecure door seals and	d windows to prevent	smoke and a	sh intrusion during wildfire eve	ents.
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire					
Existing	2, 6, 9, 11	Facilities		High	Staff Time, General Funds, FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP), Obligation Bonds	Ongoing
Action VOE-5-In	tegrate the hazard anal	ysis and mitigation s	strategy with the Gen	eral Plan's Sa	afety Element.	
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Wildfire, Tsunami	Severe Storm, Sev	ere Weather, Dam F	ailure, Floodir	ng, Drought, Landslide, Sea Le	evel Rise,
New & Existing	1, 4, 6, 8, 19	Administration		Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term
Action VOE-6—Continue to develop and implement plans to comply with existing seismic mandates for structural elements and increase the general knowledge, appreciation for, and implementation of seismic upgrading of the building's nonstructural elements. <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Earthquake						nd increase
New & Existing	1, 4, 6, 19	Facilities		High	Staff Time, General Funds, FEMA HMA (BRIC HMGP)	Ongoing
Action VOE-7—M and weeds to reduce resistance is part of <i>Hazards Mitigated</i> :	aintain wildfire hazard f ce the potential for tree f the program. (Coordir Wildfire	uel reduction progra -to-tree ignition. Ens nates with Ventura C	m for areas that have sure that a "maintena County Fire Protection	e been identifi nce now" com n District Actic	ied with overgrown or dead br nponent to provide continued f on VFP-6)	ush, trees ire
New & Existing	2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19	VCFPD	Facilities, CAL FIRE & USDA	Medium	FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMAP and HMGP), Staff Time & General Funds	Ongoing
Action VOE-8—Co play areas.	onvert high water volum	e landscape to nation	ve and other drought	tolerant plant	s, hardscape, and synthetic tu	ırf in non-
Existing	4, 13, 15	Facilities		Medium	Staff Time, General Funds, FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP)	Ongoing

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 23-13. Mitigation Action Priority									
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a	
VOE-1	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	
VOE-2	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
VOE-3	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	
VOE-4	4	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium	
VOE-5	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
VOE-6	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	
VOE-7	12	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	
VOE-8	3	Low	Medium	No	Yes	Yes	Low	Medium	

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.
Table 23-14. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a						
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazards								
Earthquake		VOE-1, 6	VOE-2, 5, 6		VOE-3			VOE-2, 5
Wildfire	VOE-7	VOE-1, 4, 7	VOE-2, 5, 7	VOE-7	VOE-3, 7		VOE-7	VOE-2, 3, 5, 7
Severe Storm		VOE-1	VOE-2, 5					
Severe Weather		VOE-1	VOE-2, 5		VOE-3			VOE-2, 3, 5
Dam Failure		VOE-1	VOE-2, 5		VOE-3			VOE-2, 5
Flooding		VOE-1	VOE-2, 5		VOE-3			VOE-2, 5
Drought			VOE-2, 5	VOE-8				VOE-2, 5, 8
Landslide		VOE-1	VOE-2, 5					VOE-2, 5
Sea Level Rise		VOE-1	VOE-2, 5					VOE-2, 5
Tsunami		VOE-1	VOE-2, 5					VOE-2, 5

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

23.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 23-15 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 23-15. Local Public Outreach						
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved				
Post VCSSFA Risk Management Committee meeting announcements at VCSSFA Office, VCOE Outdoor posting and VCSSFA website	First Monday of each month	15 to 18 representative from various school districts				
Allow public to comment during meetings	First Monday of each month	No members of the public have attended meetings where hazard mitigation has been discussed				

23.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

 VCSSFA Statement of Values -- a list of properties and structures including values of structures and modeled values of contents

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

- Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.
- Grants Portal—contains documents about costs in response to cleanup after recent wildfires.

24. VENTURA COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS AGENCY— WATERSHED PROTECTION

24.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Glenn Shephard, Director, VCPWA-Watershed Protection 800 So. Victoria Avenue Ventura, CA 93009-1610 Telephone: (805) 654-2040 e-mail Address: glenn.shephard@ventura.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Gerard Kapuscik, Mgr. SRG, VCPWA-Watershed Protection 800 So. Victoria Avenue Ventura, CA. 93009-1610 Telephone: (805) 648-9284 e-mail Address: gerard.kapuscik@ventura.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team for Ventura County Public Works Agency—Watershed Protection (VCPWA-WP), whose members are listed in Table 24-1.

Table 24-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members					
Name	Title				
Eric Alger	Staff Services Specialist II, O&M, VCPWA-WP				
Angela Bonfiglio Allen	Planner IV, ESS, WP&PD, VCPWA-WP				
Deby Cisneros	Adm. Asst. II, SRG, VCPWA-WP				
Masood Jilani	Eng. Mgr. II, D&CD, VCPWA-WP				
Gerard Kapuscik	Mgr. SRG, VCPWA-WP				
Pam Lindsey	Mgr. ESS, WP&PD, VCPWA-WP				
Ewelina Mutkowska	Mgr. County Stormwater Program-VCPWA-WP				
Kirk Norman	Eng. Mgr. II. D&CD, VCPWA-WP				
Gabriel Ramirez	Eng. Tech IV, SRG, VCPWA-WP				
Bruce Rindahl	Eng. Mgr. II, WR&TS, WP&PD, VCPWA-WP				
Lara Shellenbarger	WRS III, WR, VCPWA-WP				
Glenn Shephard	Director, VCPWA-WP				
Yunsheng Su	Eng. IV, APS, WP&PD, VCPWA-WP				
Nathan Summerville	Eng. IV, APS, WP&PD, VCPWA-WP				
Martha Symes	Grants Specialist, SRG, VCPWA-WP				
Mark Yaftali	Eng. III, O&MD, VCPWA-WP				

24.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

24.2.1 Overview

The VCPWA-WP, formerly known as the Ventura County Flood Control District, was initially formed on September 12, 1944, by an act of the California State Legislature. VCPWA-WP is a Dependent County Special District, governed by the Board of Supervisors, and administratively housed in the Ventura County Public Works Agency.

The mission of VCPWA-WP is to protect life, property, and community infrastructure from flood events, improve water resources management, and enhance the health and natural function of watersheds in Ventura County.

VCPWA-WP is the responsible local agency sponsor for federal flood control projects throughout Ventura County. VCPWA-WP also serves as the principal co-permittee and manages the implementation of the Ventura Countywide Stormwater Quality Management Program under the municipal National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit for urban stormwater runoff discharges in Ventura County. Finally, VCPWA-WP also manages FEMA's NFIP and CRS for unincorporated Ventura County.

The Ventura County Watershed Protection Board of Supervisors assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan, and the Ventura County Public Works Director, through his designee, Glenn Shephard, acting in his capacity as Director of VCPWA-WP, will oversee its implementation.

24.2.2 Service Area

VCPWA-WP's service area is coterminous with boundaries of Ventura County, except for the offshore islands of Anacapa and San Nicholas. VCPWA-WP's service area is approximately 1,800 square miles and encompasses all 10 cities and the unincorporated areas of Ventura County.

24.2.3 Assets

Table 24-2 summarizes the assets of VCPWA-WP and their estimated current replacement value.

Table 24-2. VCPWA-WP Assets					
Asset	Value				
Property					
N/A	N/A				
Equipment					
Flood Warning System (FWS) Equipment	\$3,454,500				
Total:	\$3,454,500				
Critical Flood Protection Infrastructure Facilities					
Dams, Debris and Detention Basins	\$244,316,058				
Flood/Stormwater Conveyance Channels	\$2,057,616,000				
Levees	\$371,086,917				
Pump Stations	\$22,799,085				
Total:	\$2,699,272,560				

24.3 CURRENT TRENDS

The current (2021) population of Ventura County is estimated at 841,734, with a growth of -0.25% in the past year according to the most recent United States Census Data. Ventura County is the 14th largest county in California. And over the last ten-year period, Ventura County's population has seen growth of 2.02% since its 2010 population of 825,097.

24.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- Table 24-3 presents an assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities
- Table 24-4 presents an assessment of fiscal capabilities
- Table 24-5 presents an assessment of administrative and technical capabilities
- Table 24-6 presents an assessment of education and outreach capabilities
- Table 24-7 presents classifications under various community mitigation programs
- Table 24-8 Presents the community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change

Plan, Study or Program	Date of Most Recent Update	Comment
Annual Capital Improvement Plan Project Sheet Submittals	4/31/2021	5-Year Planning Horizon (FY 22-26)
District Detention Dams and Debris Basins Update	In Progress	Evaluation of 53 Debris and Detention Basins
District Facility Design Manual	In Progress	Guidance Standards Governing Flood Protection Projects Designed and Constructed by the VCPWA- Watershed Protection
District Design Hydrology Manual	July 2017	Design Hydrology Computational Guidelines and Input Data Parameters
Emergency Operations Roles & Responsibilities Matrix	March 2017	Categorization of Employees' Emergency Operations Roles and Responsibilities
Flood Mitigation Plan for Ventura County	3/1/2005	OES Planning Grant to VCPWA-WP to Prepare County's Plan Document
Flood Safety Plan for Ventura County	March 2017	Flood Safety Plan Outlines Ventura County's planned response to flood emergencies affecting Ventura County
Dam Inundation Mapping Studies for 8 State Sized Dams	1-2-20 thru 11-11-20	State Mandated Emergency Action Plans with Inundation Maps for Emergency Preparedness
VC Watershed Protection Ordinance No. WP-2	9/10/2013	Ordinance Codifying VCPWA-WP's Statutory Authorities, Powers, and Operational Practices

Table 24-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability

Table 24-4. Fiscal Capability					
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?				
Community Development Block Grants	Yes				
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes				
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes				
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes				
If yes, specify: VCPWA-WP, in accordance with applicable provisions found in the Ventura County Watershed Protection Act, (California Water Code Appendix, Chapter 46) is authorized to levy and collect taxes, assessments, and fees for its statutory powers to provide for the control of the flood and storm waters of the district, and to conserve such waters for beneficial and useful purposes as stipulated in Section 7 of its enabling act					
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes				
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes				
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No				
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No				
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes				
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes				

Table 24-5. Administrative and Technical Capability				
Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?		
Planners or engineers with know	ledge of land development and land management practices	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	VCPWA-WP Engineers I-II-II-IV Engineering Managers I-II-III Environmental Planners VCPWA-WP Director and Deputy Directors			
Engineers or professionals traine	d in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes		
If Yes, Department /Position:	VCPWA-WP Engineers I-II-III-IV Engineer Managers I-II-III Environmental Planners VCPWA-WP Director and Deputy Directors			
Planners or engineers with an un If Yes, Department /Position:	derstanding of natural hazards VCPWA-WP Engineers I-II-III-IV Engineering Managers I-II-III Environmental Planners VCPWA-WP Director and Deputy Directors	Yes		
Staff with training in benefit/cost a If Yes, Department /Position:	analysis VCPWA-WP Engineers I-II-III-IV Engineering Managers I-II-III Staff Services Manager III VCPWA-WP Director and Deputy Directors	Yes		

Staff/Personnel Resource		Available?
Surveyors		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	VCPWA-WP relies on the VCPWA-Engineering Services Department-County Surveyors Office to perform survey work required in the development of flood protection pr engineering design and development efforts. Depending on County Surveyors Office workl considerations, and certain specialized survey work required by VCPWA-WP, the County S Office may perform the requested survey work utilizing in-house staff, or contract with outs service vendors.	oject oad Surveyors ide survey
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS	S applications	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	VCPWA-WP Engineering Techs III & IV Engineers I-II-III-IV Engineering Managers I-II-III Environmental Planners VCPWA-WP Director and Deputy Directors	
Scientist familiar with natural haz	ards in local area	Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	VCPWA-WP Environmental Planners	
Emergency manager		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	VCPWA-WP Pursuant to the 2010 VCPWA-WP National Incident Management System Implementation Director of Watershed Protection is tasked to coordinate all VCPWA-WP operations during emergencies, including serving as VCPWA-WP Primary Point of Contact with the VCPWA- and the VCSOES Emergency Operations Center Commander and/or VCSOES Duty Office	Plan, the Duty Officer Pr.
Grant writers		Yes
If Yes, Department /Position:	VCPWA-WP Engineers I-II-III Engineer Managers I-II-III Environmental Planners Staff Services Specialist I Staff Services Manager III	

Table 24-6. Education and Outreach Capability

Criterion		Response		
Do you have a p	ublic information officer or communications office?	Yes		
If yes, briefly VCPWA contracts with Consortium Communications, to help craft and disseminate public information and outreach describe: campaigns. VCPWA-WP, as one of the 5-departments in VCPWA, regularly avails itself of Consortium's public information and outreach technical support services, including an active, vigorous, and robust VCPWA social media presence on Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram. VCPWA Online Facebook Twitter				
Do you have per	sonnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes		
Do you have haz If yes, briefly describe:	ard mitigation information available on your website? VCPWA-WP was responsible for the creation and is responsible for the maintenance of the County of Ver Information Website (vcfloodinfo.com) through the National Flood Insurance Program's Community Rating (CRS). That website features FEMA's flood insurance rate maps which allows the public to determine if th affected by flood hazards, information about flood safe requirements for building in a floodplain, become b on how to hire a contractor, obtain information on flood insurance, and much more. Additionally, there is a webpage to the 2015 Ventura County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan which will be updated to reflect the cur County Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2021 Plan Update process currently underway. (http://www.vcfloodinfo.com/resources/ventura-county-hazards-mitigation-plan)	Yes ntura's Flood g System heir property is better informed a link on this rent Ventura		

Criterion		Response
Do you use soci If yes, briefly describe:	al media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? VCPWA-WP, as one of 20+ planning partners in the HMP 2021 Plan Update process, has partnered with ongoing, evolving, and interactive proactive social media outreach regarding hazard mitigation plan devel information and outreach initiatives. Recently, VCPWA-WP provided VCSOES with photos of the complet Canyon Diversion Project which was funded by \$5M in FEMA HMGP Grant Funding. Project photos and is both English and Spanish, were featured in a VCSOES Twitter post this week showcasing the County's F Diversion Project under the messaging theme: "Hazard Mitigation in Action!" https://twitter.com/Venturaoes/status/1427391467534704640?s=20 (English) https://twitter.com/Venturaoes/status/1427391498052505646?s=20 (Spanish) VCPWA-WP is partnering with VCSOES to develop a 4-5 minute long video, in both English and Spanish provide viewers with a pithy explanation of hazard mitigation as a thought construct, provide an overview hazard mitigation plan 2021 update planning process underway, including milestone timelines and progre highlighting key mitigation projects that have been accomplished in Ventura County with FEMA HMGP gra (such as the Fresno Canyon Diversion Project) to bring these planning concepts more tangible and closer video will be posted on the readyventuracounty.org website and will be made available to planning partner distribution via their existing social media, online, and texting messaging ecosystems.	Yes VCSOES in opment public ed Fresno information in resno Canyon , which will of the current ss, and ant funding to home. The rs for
Do you have any If yes, briefly describe:	y citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? VCPWA-WP actively participated in the 2015 VC HMP Plan Development process and currently is activel in the HMP-2021 Plan Update Process managed by the Ventura County Sheriff's Office of Emergency Se (VCSOES). VCPWA-WP's Director, Glenn Shephard, and SRG Manager Gerard Kapuscik are both mem- participants in the Core Planning Team and the Steering Committee tasked with advisory support to the te	Yes y participating rvices bers and active eam.
Do you have any If yes, briefly describe:	y other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? Ventura County's VC Alert Emergency Notification System allows members of the public to send a text m VCNOTIFY to 888777 which will allow them to receive real-time alerts and advisories directly from the Co can register multiple contact methods and request to be alerted to a home phone, cell phone, business pl and/or hearing-impaired receiving device. Residents can also register up to five different addresses such address, work address, school address, or business address. Additionally, VCPWA has a similar text noti for all Public Works Employees which can be used for similar real-time text alerts and advisories.	Yes essage to unty. Residents none, e-mail as a home fication system
Do you have any If yes, briefly describe:	y established warning systems for hazard events? VCPWA-WP operates a Flood Warning System (FWS) composed of 90 self-reporting rain gages and 30 s stream gages countywide. The FWS also receives telemetered data for 65 additional rain gages and 23 s operated by other agencies including the United States Geological Survey, Los Angeles Department of Pu and the California Department of Water Resources. The critical rain and stream gage information collecte in real time are used in the hydrologic models for determining the amount of runoff from storm events info provided to VCSOES in real time and is an important data source utilized for potential emergency event e notifications triggered by high-flow rate storm flood events.	Yes self-reporting tream gages ublic Works, d and reported rmation is vacuation

Table 24-7. Community Classifications						
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified			
FIPS Code	Yes	111-91042	Pre-2005			
DUNS#	Yes	066691122	Unknown			
Community Rating System	Yes	Class 5 Rating	5/1/2016			
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	Yes	Class 3 Rating	2019			
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A			
Storm Ready	Yes	N/A	2011			
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A			
Tsunami Ready	Yes	N/A	2012			

	Table 24-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical C	apacity	
Jurisdiction-	level understanding of potential climate change impacts	High
Comment:	Given the nature of the diverse interdisciplinary teams (engineers, environmental scientists, hydrologists keen situational awareness of climate change impacts on flood protection facilities and the need to mitig VCPWA-WP Staff contributed to the Projected Changes in Ventura County Climate Study completed in Regional Climate Center, Desert Research Institute (wrcc.dri.edu/climate/reports). VCPWA-WP also con Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County's Integrated Regional Water Management Plan updates, include Change Vulnerability Assessment and project selection process. Furthermore, VCPWA-WP has incorpor improvement process the planning for one percent annual chance (formerly 100-year) flood protection percent to address the uncertainty of climate change impacts.	s, etc.), there is a late those hazards. 2019 by the Western htributes to the ling the Climate prated into its levee lus an additional 10
Jurisdiction-	level monitoring of climate change impacts	High
Comment:	VCPWA-WP operates and maintains a system of 100 self-reporting rain gages,47 self-reporting stream reporting weather gages. VCPWA-WP also receives telemetered data from 65 additional rain gages and operated by other agencies including the U.S.G.S., Los Angeles Department of Public Works, and Calife Water Resources (DWR). All the data from this system is maintained by VCPWA-WP and includes reco years. The continuing long term data sets will be used to analyze and quantify the long-term impacts of hydrologic processes.	gages, and 16-self- 1 23 stream gages ornia Department of rds of over 150 climate change on
Technical re	sources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Medium
Comment:	VCPWA-WP utilizes its Flood Warning System (FWS) system data to populate and continuously update hydraulic modeling in support of flood control facility improvement designs.	its hydrologic and
Jurisdiction-	level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	Low
Comment:	VCPWA-WP obtains assistance from environmental consultants to evaluate the potential GHG emission associated with specific projects, both temporary and long-term impacts. These analyses are presented Impact Reports prepared for flood protection projects. These results inform mitigation measures needed GHG impacts.	ns that would be in the Environmental I to reduce potential
Capital plan	ning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	High
Comment:	With respect to capital planning decisions, see answers above. With respect to land use decisions, VCF have land use decision-making power. However, VCPWA-WP staff reviews applications submitted under for unincorporated Ventura County and all cities in the County, as well as adjoining counties. The applic evaluate their projects' flood risk impacts using the Ventura County Hydrology Manual. Based on the rest required to retain storm runoff exceeding pre-project levels.	PWA-WP does not er the CEQA process ants are required to sults, they are also
Participation	n in regional groups addressing climate risks	High
Comment:	VCPWA-WP staff participates in decision-making by the Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County (local implements state-level Integrated Regional Water Management planning), Ventura County General Plan updates and implementation of strategies for action, Beach Erosion Authority for Control and Nourishme relating to sea level rise and increasing coastal erosion impacts along the Ventura County coast. VCPW countywide effort among all City and County floodplain managers addressing coastal and riverine flood mapping technical review and comments to FEMA, partners with local non-governmental organizations Conservancy and others) to advance preservation of floodplain properties to prevent development on la countywide.	body that n climate adaptation ent (BEACON) /A-WP leads the modeling and (The Nature nds at risk of flooding

Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating ^a			
Implementation Capacity					
Clear author	rity/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	High			
Comment:	VCPWA-WP, as a state-created, county-dependent special district is required to comply with several sta climate change impacts, including but not limited to the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 enacted in 2007 to amend the CEQA statute to address GHG emissions and impacts. Additionally, VCP to comply with the 2040 General Plan for Ventura County, which notes: "the County developed an inte addressing climate change in the General Plan by incorporating related policies and programs throughou elements, such that the General Plan will also serve as the County's Climate Action Plan. VCPWA-WP s as staff for several groundwater sustainability agencies, including the Fox Canyon Groundwater Manage tasked with developing Groundwater Sustainability Plans for medium and high priority over drafted groun compliance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).	te laws addressing and Senate Bill 97 WA-WP is required egrated approach to ut the General Plan staff also functions ement Agency, ndwater basins, in			
Identified str	rategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Low			
Comment:	 Interim VCPWA Teleworking policy in place. Hybrid and electric models are replacing aging fleet vehicle feasible, as administered by the Ventura County General Services Agency. Agricultural trigation efficien Fox Canyon Groundwater Management Agency. A GHG inventory with 2015 as the baseline year was prepared to support the Ventura County General F be updated every five years. The greatest contribution was transportation (3%). VC General Plan 2040 Policies created for the purpose of mitigating GHGs are listed below. Please refe for the numerous related Implementation Programs (FB-Financing and Budgeting; IGC-Inter-Governme JP=Joint Partnerships with the Private Sector: RDR=Regulation and Development Review; SO=Services Conservation and Open Space Element (COS) COS-1.13: The County shall continue to work in partnership with agencies, organizations, and entities reprotection, management, and enhancement of the county's biological resources. (IGC) COS-1.15: The County shall establish and support a countywide target for the County, clies in Ventura 4 organizations, businesses, and citizens to plant two million trees throughout the county by 2040. (SO, JF COS-3.2: The County shall encourage the planting of trees and the protection of existing urban forests a woodlands, savannahs, and tree canopy throughout the county, including along State or County designa and in residential and commercial zones throughout the county, especially those located within designat communities. (MPSP, RDR) COS-3.7: The County shall require discretionary development for oil and gas exploration and production powered equipment from 100 percent renewable sources and cogeneration, where feasible, to reduce a greenhouse gas emissions from internal combustion engines and cognities to convey oil and produce produced water shall not be trucked. (RDR) COS-8.1: The County shall encourage the State, community choice aggregation programs, and energy toroide pro	s to the extent cy assistance by Plan update and will r to the General Plan ental Coordination; s and Operations): sponsible for the County, agencies, P, IGC) and native ated scenic roadways ed disadvantaged c Resource Areas to use electrically ir pollution and ed water; oil and ar, thermal, wind, R) utility companies to atenance with the wide collaboration on boring communities, g local customer nts. (SO, IGC) ewable energy iding electrification of oproach for design ilitation passive			

Criterion	Juri	sdiction Rating ^a
	COS-8.8: The County shall encourage the integration of features that support the generation, transmission, e storage of renewable energy sources in discretionary development (RDR)	efficient use, and
	COS-8.9: The County shall encourage discretionary development to include the planting of shade trees on ea and within parking areas to reduce radiation heat production (RDR)	ach property
	COS-8.10: The County shall encourage battery energy storage systems as an option for optimizing the mana electricity generated by renewable resources (RDR)	agement of
	COS-9.1: The County shall preserve natural open space resources through: the concentration of development Areas and Existing Communities; use of cluster or compact development techniques in discretionary develop	nt in Urban oment adjacent
	to natural open space resources; maintaining large lot sizes in agricultural, rural, and open space areas; disc conversion of lands currently used for agricultural production or grazing; limiting development in areas constr hazards; and encouraging agricultural and ranching interests to maintain natural habitat in open space areas terrain or soil is not conducive to agricultural production or grazing. (RDR)	ouraging ained by natural where the
	COS-9.3: The County shall place a high priority on preserving open space lands for recreation, habitat protect overall community benefit. (MPSP)	ction, and
	COS-10.1: The County shall maintain and refer to the General Plan and its integrated greenhouse gas (GHG Strategy as the County's comprehensive plan for reducing community-wide GHG emissions in the unincorpor (RDR)) Reduction rated County.
	COS-10.2: The County shall work toward achieving a community-wide GHG emissions reduction target of 41 2015 levels by 2030. (RDR)	percent below
	COS-10.3: The County shall work toward achieving longer-term, post-2030 community-wide GHG emissions	reduction
	COS-10.4: The County shall reduce GHG emissions in both existing and new development through a combin	nation of
	programs, community outreach and education programs, partnerships with local or regional agencies, and ot actions. (RDR)	her related
Identified st	strategies for adaptation to impacts	High
Comment:	The 2015 Ventura County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan identified the following overarching mitigation acti could be implemented	ons (OA) that
	OA 4: Relocate or reinforce bike trails, parking lots, and other beach access amenities away from the shorelin beach/shoreline in sea.level rise/coastal erosion areas	ne to restore the
	OA 5: Restore habitat and improve flood protection factors.	uch as
	OA 7: Develop a water conservation public outreach program to increase awareness about the drought, fines	s, and penalties
	TOF OVERUSE AND SOLUTIONS TOF CONSERVING WATER.	
	OA 13: Reinforce roads/bridges from flooding through protection activities, including elevating the roads/bridg installing/widening culverts beneath the roads/bridges or upgrading storm drains	ges and
	OA 14: Acquire, relocate, or elevate residential structures, particularly those that have been identified as repe	etitive loss

OA 14: Acquire, relocate, or elevate residential structures, particularly those that have been identified as repetitive loss properties, within the 100-year floodplain.

OA 16: Implement landslide stabilization and/or protection measures. Stabilization measures include grading the unstable portion of the slope to a lower gradient, construction of rock buttresses and retaining walls, and drainage improvements. Protection measures include containment and/or diversion of the moving debris, such as walls, berms, ditches, and catchment basins.

OA 19: Create a new vegetation management program that provides vegetation management services to elderly, disabled, or low-income property owners who lack the resources to remove flammable vegetation from around their homes. OA 20: Implement a fuel modification program for new construction by requiring builders and developers to submit their plans, complete with proposed fuel modification zones, to the local fire department for review and approval prior to beginning construction.

OA 21: Develop a hazards fuel treatment program for areas that have been identified as overgrown or contain dead brush and trees to reduce the potential for tree-to-tree ignition. Ensure that the program includes a "maintenance now" component to provide continued fire resistance.

VC General Plan 2040 Policies are listed below (FB=Financing and Budgeting; IGC=Inter-Governmental Coordination; JP=Joint Partnerships with the Private Sector; MPSP=Master Plans, Strategies, and Programs; PI=Public Information; PSR=Planning Studies and Reports; RDR=Regulation and Development Review; SO=Services and Operations):

Conservation and Open Space Element (COS)

COS-2.2: The County shall support activities that trap or add sand through beach nourishment, dune restoration, and other adaptation strategies to enhance or create beaches in areas susceptible to sea-level rise and coastal flooding. (MPSP) COS-2.10: The County shall work with Federal, State, and local jurisdictions, agencies, and organizations to monitor saltwater intrusion and take proactive steps to reduce intrusion, including: working to maintain and restore coastal wetlands buffers; enhancing groundwater management to prevent excessive pumping in order to restore groundwater levels needed to reduce saltwater intrusion; and implementing mitigation measures to prevent saltwater intrusion into estuaries and groundwater basins including, but not limited to, implementation of reactive barriers and use of pumps to divert saltwater. (PSR, IGC, JP)

COS-3.2: The County shall encourage the planting of trees and the protection of existing urban forests and native woodlands, savannahs, and tree canopy throughout the county, including along State or County designated scenic roadways and in residential and commercial zones throughout the county, especially those located within designated disadvantaged communities. (MPSP, RDR)

COS-3.3: The County shall give overhead utility undergrounding within high fire hazard areas and Scenic Resource Areas priority when allocating County Utility Undergrounding Funds. (MPSP, FB)

COS-5.3: The County shall encourage landowners to participate in voluntary programs that reduce soil erosion and increase soil productivity. To this end, the County shall promote coordination between the Natural Resources Conservation Service, Ventura County Resource Conservation District, University of California Cooperative Extension, and other similar agencies and organizations. (RDR)

Land Use and Community Character Element (LU)

LU-1.1: The County shall continue to promote orderly and compact development by: working with cities in Ventura County and the Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission to promote and maintain reasonable city boundaries and Spheres of Influence to prevent growth-inducing urban development in unincorporated areas; and require unincorporated urban development to be located in areas designated as Existing Communities and unincorporated urban centers consistent with the Guidelines for Orderly Development and as defined in Policy LU-1.2. (RDR, IGC)

LU-11.3: The County shall require new commercial and industrial developments to be designed to be generally compact, grouped and consolidated into functional units providing for sufficient off-street parking and loading facilities, maximize pedestrian and vehicle safety, reduce vehicle miles traveled (VMT), encourage electric vehicle charging, and minimize land use conflicts and traffic congestion. The County shall require that commercial and industrial discretionary development is designed to provide adequate buffering (e.g., walls, landscaping, setbacks) and operational conditions (e.g., hours of operation, and scheduling of deliveries) to minimize adverse impacts (e.g., noise, glare, and odors) on adjoining and adjacent residential areas. (RDR

LU-11.4: The County shall encourage discretionary development on commercial- and industrial-designated land to incorporate sustainable technologies, including energy- and water-efficient practices and low- and zero-carbon practices. (RDR)

LU-16.5: The County shall encourage discretionary commercial development to promote ease of pedestrian/bicycle access to encourage walk-in business, while providing sufficient off-street parking. (RDR)

LU-16.9: The County shall encourage discretionary development to be oriented and landscaped to enhance natural lighting, solar access, and passive heating or cooling opportunities to maximize energy efficiency. (RDR)

LU-18.5: The County shall encourage stakeholders in designated disadvantaged communities who are vulnerable to sea level rise or other climate change impacts to have the opportunity to learn about and participate in the decision-making process for adaptation planning within Ventura County. (PI)

LU-22.2: The County shall maintain and annually review the General Plan Implementation Programs before the preparation of the County's Annual Budget. As part of this process, the County shall update the prioritization of programs based on applicability, relevance, timing of initiation, and availability of funding. (PSR, SO)

Circulation, Transportation, and Mobility Element (CTM)

CTM-2.1: The County shall prepare and adopt Complete Streets Design Guidelines to be used when constructing new roadways or improving existing roadways where Complete Streets would be appropriate/feasible. The Complete Streets Design Guidelines shall employ a context-sensitive approach to planning and designing the road and street network to reflect the distinct agricultural, rural, or urban character of a particular location. (MPSP)

CTM-2.2: The County shall plan a roadway system that has adequate capacity and is designed to provide reasonable and safe use by vehicles, public transportation, bicycles, and pedestrians with minimum delay pursuant to LOS standards described in Policy CMT-1.2. The road system should follow Federal Highway Administration classification as identified on Figure 4-4. (MPSP)

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating	а
	CTM-2.3: The County shall require discretionary development with access onto a County road to have the access point(s) designed and built to County standards. (RDR)	_
	CTM-2.4: The County shall strive to provide safe operating conditions for all appropriate modes and uses of County roadways. (RDR. MPSP. SO)	
	CTM-2.5: The County shall coordinate the development and maintenance of all transportation facilities with emergency service providers to ensure continued emergency service operation and service levels. (ICG)	
	Transportation Commission (VCTC), and cities in the county to plan, develop, and maintain regional transportation facilities and services, and to identify existing and future transportation corridors that should be linked across jurisdictional boundarie so that sufficient right-of-way may be preserved. (IGC)	S
	CTM-2.7: The County shall coordinate with VCTC to implement and update the Congestion Management Plan (CMP). The County shall also encourage consideration of multimodal performance measures as part of future updates to the CMP. (MPSP, IGC)	
	CTM-2.8: For those portions of the County's Regional Road Network currently not designated as part of the CMP, the County shall coordinate with VCTC to formally designate applicable County maintained roadways as part of the CMP. (MPSP, IGC)	
	CTM-2.9: The County shall work with the VCTC and Caltrans to reprioritize the re-striping of SR 118 from Vineyard Avenue to Darling Road on the CMP and the Caltrans list of projects to provide for an additional lane in each direction of travel. (IGC CTM-2.10: The County shall work with public and private schools to identify and expand safe routes to school, where feasible. (IGC)	<i>;</i>)
	CTM-2.11: The County shall establish land use patterns that promote shorter travel distances between residences, employment centers, and retail and service-oriented uses to support the use of public transportation, walking, bicycling, and other forms of transportation that reduce reliance on single-passenger automobile trips. (RDR, MPSP)	I
	lanes and multi-use trails that link the cities, unincorporated communities, schools including colleges and universities, commercial/retail, employment centers, health care service facilities, public transportation, and other points of interest. (MPSP, IGC)	
	CTM-2.13: The County shall strive to eliminate "gaps" in roadways, bikeways, and pedestrian networks by planning for and seeking funding to construct necessary improvements to remove barriers and improve transportation system connectivity as well as connections that support first and last mile accessibility to and from public transportation. (MPSP, PSR, FB) CTM-2.14: When designing new bicycle facilities, or modifying existing roadways with bicycle facilities, the County shall prioritize and install features to improve the safety and visibility of bicyclists. (MPSP)	5
	CTM-2.15: The County shall rely on the guidelines and design standards for bicycle and pedestrian facilities established by the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CAMUTCD) and supporting guidelines provided by the Federal Highway Administration, Caltrans, and American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO). (MPSP, PSR, SO)	
	CTM-2.16: The County shall consider the safety and accessibility of pedestrians when preparing transportation plans, studies, and reports. (MPSP)	
	residents and tourists. (IGC, SO, JP) CTM-2.18: The County shall require discretionary development in designated Existing Communities to construct roadways t	0
	urban standards and Complete Streets principles, including curb, gutter, sidewalks, and bike lanes when there is a nexus for improvement. The County shall rely on the guidelines and design standards for the CAMUTCD, Caltrans in the Highway Design Manual, and Complete Streets Guidelines (pursuant to Deputy Directive-64-R2), Federal Highway Administration, AASHTO. (RDR)	r
	CTM-2.19: The County shall continue to examine and update safety metrics for CEQA impact analysis as appropriate. Options include but are not limited to queue spill-back at intersections; mid-block unprotected crossings; and increased crossing distances. (RDR)	
	CTM-2.20: The County shall improve pedestrian safety at intersections and mid-block locations in Existing Communities through approved features consistent with the CAMUTCD, Highway Design Manual, Federal Highway Administration, AASHTO, and the National Cooperative Highway Research Program Report 498 (Application of Pedestrian Crossing	

Treatments for Streets and Highways. (RDR, SO) CTM-2.21: Within Existing Communities, the County shall provide/retrofit separated or buffered pedestrian and bicycle paths from the outside travel lane along County Road Network roads that are designated Overweight Vehicle Corridors and

Assistance Act designated truck routes. (MPSP)
CTM-2.22: The County shall seek funding sources first for construction of new sidewalks in designated disadvantaged
communities and then for sidewalk maintenance, particularly in low-income areas. (FB)
CTM-2.23: The County shall continue to work with VCTC, Naval Base Ventura County, and local public transportation
regional bus service providers to promote the expansion of a safe, efficient, convenient, integrated, and cost-effective
intercommunity and countywide public transportation and bus service that provides county residents with access to
employment, commercial services, health and medical facilities, social services, educational facilities and institutions, and
nersonal husiness destinations (IGC)
$CTM_2 24$. The County shall work with VCTC and local public transportation providers to address the needs of non-drivers
living in rural areas to provide public transportation and paratransit service (IGC)
CTM-2.25: The County shall support the recommendations of the California State Rail Plan for Amtrak trains including track
and signalization ungrades, increasing service frequencies by additional round trip service to regional destinations north and
and signalization upgrades, increasing service inequencies by additional round-inp service to regional destinations normanic
Sould of Ventura County, improving passenger information and county chall evaluate the feasibility of acquiring the land for
CTW-2.20: When rainoad rights-of-way are abandoned, the County Shall evaluate the reastolity of acquiring the rand for
public use as public transportation, dicycle, pedestrian, or equestrian patris. (MPSP)
CTM-2.27. The County shall require that discretionary development be subject to the following permit conditions of approval,
where reasible, to minimize trainic impacts by incorporating pedestrian and bicycle pathways, bicycle racks and lockers,
ridesnaring programs, transit improvements (bus turnouts, sneiters, benches), and/or transit subsidies for employees or
residents of the proposed development. (RDR)
CTM-3.1: The County shall identify and prioritize components of a bicycle network to increase public access and ridership on
bicycle routes. (MPSP, SO)
C1M-3.2: The County shall develop a bicycle network for all user types and routes across the county. (MPSP, SO, PI)
CTM-3.3: The County shall encourage the development of a bicycle network that connects to regional destinations such as
parks, trails, educational institutions, employment centers, transit, park, and ride lots, and tourist destinations. (IGC)
CTM-3.4: The County shall promote bicycle network connectivity between Ventura County communities as well as Santa
Barbara and Los Angeles Counties. (IGC)
CTM-3.5: The County shall plan for bicycle network connectivity in rural, agricultural, and open space areas in a way that
supports and complements business and agricultural activities in those areas. (JP)
CTM-3.6: The County shall support the Complete Streets effort by, when feasible, constructing bicycle lanes on County
maintained roads listed in the VCTC Bicycle Wayfinding Plan. (SO, JP, IGC)
CTM-3.7: The County shall encourage the construction of a bicycle trail along the Santa Paula Branch Line Railroad in the
unincorporated area between the cities of Ventura and Santa Paula. (SO, JP, IGC)
CTM-3.8: The County shall use clear and consistent message and placement for on- and off-street regional bikeways and to
regional destinations. (PI, SO)
CTM-3.9: The County shall actively pursue outside funding opportunities for bicycle network improvements. (FB, JP)
CTM-3.10: The County shall require adequate bicycle storage facilities (e.g., bicycle racks, lockers) for discretionary
development as determined by allowable land uses at a given site. (RDR)
CTM-4.1: The County shall work with Caltrans and VCTC to reduce VMT by facilitating the efficient use of existing
transportation facilities; striving to provide viable modal choices that make driving alone an option rather than a necessity;
supporting variable work schedules to reduce peak period VMT; and providing more direct routes for pedestrians and
bicyclists. (MPSP, SO)
CTM-4.2: The County shall encourage bicycling, walking, public transportation, and other forms of alternative transportation
to reduce VMT, traffic congestion, and GHG emissions. (PI)
CTM-4.3: The County shall work with a broad range of agencies (e.g., Caltrans, VCTC, Amtrak, Ventura County APCD

Surface Transportation Assistance Act designated Terminal Access Routes. Where the application or retrofitting of separated or buffered facilities is not feasible, the County shall prioritize alternative pedestrian and bicycle connections that encourage and attract pedestrian and bicycle traffic off designated Overweight Vehicle Corridors or Surface Transportation

CTM-4.3: The County shall work with a broad range of agencies (e.g., Caltrans, VCTC, Amtrak, Ventura County public transportation providers, and shared mobility vendors) to encourage and support programs that increase vehicle occupancy including the provision of traveler information, shuttles, and preferential parking for carpools/vanpools. (IGC, PI) CTM-4.4: The County shall coordinate with Caltrans and VCTC to identify future park-and-ride lots within the unincorporated areas of Ventura County to facilitate more carpooling, vanpooling, and public transportation use. (IGC)

CTM-6.1: The County shall support the integration of emerging technologies that increase the routine use of alternative transportation options to decrease single-passenger automobile travel. (MPSP)

Jurisdiction Rating^a

Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating ^a
	CTM-6.3: As part of new roadway planning and design as part of discretionary development, the County use of permeable paving and other passive drainage features such as bio-swales to prevent flooding, pa	shall promote the articularly in urban
	areas. (RDR, SO)	tragon) and vohiclo
	to-infrastructure (V2I) technology for emerging technologies. (SO)	
	parking lots, park-and-ride lots, truck stops, and new development. (RDR, SO)	it County facilities,
	CTM-6.6: The County shall encourage developments and street systems that support the use of properly Neighborhood Electric Vehicles where appropriate. (MPSP)	y licensed
	CTM-6.7: The County shall encourage and support car share operators at multimodal facilities including passenger rail stations, and park-and-ride lots. (RDR)	transportation hubs,
	CTM-6.8: The County shall evaluate the feasibility and work to establish requirements for shared micro-i sharing) vendors within unincorporated areas (RDR)	nobility (e.g., bike
	CTM-6.9: The County shall encourage Mobility-as-a-Service (MaaS) providers to park between service of within unincorporated communities (RDR_SO)	calls versus driving
	CTM-6.10: The County shall encourage Mobility-as-a-Service (MaaS) providers to coordinate with public	transportation
	or subsidized public transportation patron first and last mile connections within unincorporated communi. Public Facilities. Services, and Infrastructure Flement (PFS)	ties. (IGC, JP)
	PFS-1.2: The County shall monitor the projected impacts of climate change and natural disasters to mak improvements and upgrades to public facilities and services. (SO)	e adaptive
	PFS-1.3: The County shall review plans for constructing new essential public facility, such as a hospital, emergency shelter, emergency command center, or emergency communications facility, so that these facility is the second	health care facility, acilities are located
	outside of at-risk areas whenever feasible. If such a location is infeasible, then the County shall require t construction methods and site design features to minimize potential damage to these facilities. (RDR, SC	he use of C)
	PFS-1.10: The County shall operate and maintain County facilities in an efficient manner that meets con conserving financial and natural resources. (SO)	munity needs while
	PFS-2.1: The County shall encourage energy efficiency, GHG reduction features, and resiliency planning and service plans and operations. (PSR, SO)	g into County facility
	PFS-2.2: The County shall encourage the incorporation of sustainable design features in community fact energy demand and environmental impacts, such as solar reflective roofing, permeable pavement, and i shade troos (SO IGC)	ilities to reduce incorporation of
	PFS-2.3: The County shall prioritize energy efficiency and water conservation as key design features when purchasing leasing retrofitting or expanding County facilities (SO)	ien constructing,
	PFS-2.4: The County shall provide recycling and composting receptacles and use of biodegradable or reproducts at County facilities and events where feasible (SQ)	ecycled-material
	PFS-2.5: The County shall encourage its employees to reduce the number and distance of single-occup trips. (SO)	ancy vehicle work
	PFS-2.6: The County shall review market-available technologies for alternative fuel vehicles and prioritiz vehicles to reduce GHG emissions where economically feasible. (SO)	e purchase of
	PFS-2.8: The County shall include electrical vehicle charging station infrastructure in a new County-initia construction to the extent feasible. The County shall also look for opportunities to install EV charging station and county feasible.	ited facility tions as part of any
	PFS-4.4: The County shall encourage wastewater treatment facilities to provide the maximum feasible p enhancement of groundwater resources (SQ_IGC)	rotection and
	PFS-4.6: The County shall encourage public wastewater system operators to upgrade existing wastewark systems to reclaim water suitable for reuse for landscaping, irrigation, and groundwater recharge. (SO, I	ter treatment GC)
	PFS-5.4: The County shall continue to provide educational and informational materials to restaurants, gr other food providers, as part of food facility inspections, to support donation of safe, unused food to non-	ocery stores, and profit service
	agencies. PFS-5.5: The County shall support the beneficial reuse of agricultural wastes for activities such as comp	osting and energy
	PFS-5.6: The County shall promote value-added alternatives to solid waste management, such as comp and wood products to avoid open burning of agricultural biomass wastes. (SO, PI)	ost, energy, biochar,

Jurisdiction	Rating ^a
Jungulou	runng

PFS-6.3: The County shall monitor projected climate change impacts, and coordinate with local, regional, state, and federal agencies to identify existing and potential projected impacts and develop strategies to maintain and improve flood control facilities accordingly. (SO, IGC)

PFS-6.4: The County shall coordinate with local, regional, state, and federal agencies to identify existing and potential infrastructure improvements to increase water retention to respond to drought conditions. (SO, IGC)

PFS-7.2: The County shall work with utility companies to modernize and upgrade transmission lines and associated equipment to reduce the risk of fire in areas with a high wildfire hazard risk. (JP)

PFS-7.6: The County shall work with utility providers to implement smart grid technologies as part of new developments and infrastructure projects. (JP)

PFS-12.4: The County, in coordination with local water agencies and the Fire Protection District, shall require new discretionary development to comply with applicable standards for fire flows and fire protection. (RDR, IGC)

Hazards and Safety Element (HAZ)

HAZ-1.1: The County shall continue to require development to incorporate design measures that enhance fire protection in areas of high fire risk. This shall include but is not limited to incorporation of fire-resistant structural design, use of fire-resistant landscaping, and fuel modification around the perimeter of structures. (RDR, PI)

HAZ-1.2: The County shall require adherence to defensible space standards, or vegetation "clear zones," for all existing and new structures in areas that are designated as Hazardous Fire Areas by the Ventura County Fire Protection District and High Fire Hazard Severity Zones by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. (CAL FIRE) (IGC, PI, RDR) HAZ-1.3: The County shall continue to recognize the role of fire in local ecosystems by supporting controlled burns and other fire prevention measures. (IGC)

HAZ-1.4: The County shall require the recordation of a Notice of Fire Hazard with the County Recorded for all new discretionary entitlements (including subdivisions and land use permits) within areas designated as Hazardous Fire Areas by the Ventura County Fire Department or High Fire Hazard Severity Zones by CAL FIRE. (RDR)

HAZ-1.6: The County shall continue to develop and distribute educational materials and conduct educational outreach activities informing the public about wildfire risk and protection strategies. (PSR, IGC, PI)

HAZ-3.1: The County shall continue to actively plan for sea level rise by using the best available science to analyze critical vulnerabilities, identify measures to conserve coastal resources, minimize impacts on residents and businesses, maintain public services, and strengthen resiliency. (MPSP)

HAZ-3.2: County-initiated infrastructure projects sited along or seaward of Highway 101, such as bridges and levees, that will provide 100 years or more of service, shall be planned with the potential to be easily modified to accommodate 100-years of projected sea level rise in accordance with the H++ extreme risk aversion sea level rise scenario. (PSR, IGC) HAZ-3.3: To the extent feasible, the County shall incorporate education elements into coastal adaptation projects to inform

the public about the risks of sea level rise and option for adaptation. (RDR, SO, JP) HAZ-10.1: The County shall strive to reduce air pollutants from stationary and mobile sources to protect human health and welfare, focusing efforts on shifting patterns and practices that contribute to the areas with the highest pollution exposures and health impacts. (MPSP, RDR, SO, IGC, PI, JP)

HAZ-10.5: The County shall work with applicants for discretionary development projects to incorporate bike facilities, solar water heating, solar space heating, incorporation of electric appliances and equipment, the use of zero and/or near zero emission vehicles and other measures to reduce air pollution impacts and reduce GHG emissions. (RDR)

HAZ-10.6: The County shall continue to work with the APCD and VCTC to develop and implement Transportation Control Measures (TCM) programs consistent with the APCD's Air Quality Management Program (AQMP) to facilitate public transit and alternative transportation modes within the county. (IGC, FB)

HAZ-10.7: When purchasing new County vehicles, the County shall give strong preference to fuel efficient vehicles, including the use of zero emission vehicles when feasible. (SO, FB)

HAZ-10.8: The County shall promote alternative modes of transportation that reduce single-occupancy vehicle (SOV) travel and enhance "last mile" transportation options to improve air quality. (IGC, JP, PI)

HAZ-11.1: The County shall identify and protect critical infrastructure locations that are vulnerable to damage from extreme heat. (SO, FB, PSR, IGC)

HAZ-11.2: The County shall partner with SCAG, utilities, nonprofit organizations, and other entities to implement future and ongoing heat-related climate change initiatives. The County's partnership in ongoing programs and future initiatives could include helping other organizations increase participation in existing programs through education and promotion, and by using and integrating them in County programs and activities, where feasible. (JP)

HAZ-11.3: The County shall work with public, private, and nonprofit partners to limit impacts of climate change on Designated Disadvantaged Communities by focusing planning efforts and interventions on communities with the highest

Jurisdiction Rating^a

need and ensuring representatives of these communities have a role in the decision-making process for directing climate change response. (MPSP, SO)

HAZ-11.4: The County shall support efforts of agencies and organizations that provide effective education and outreach to Designated Disadvantaged Communities on the effects of climate change, including increasing temperatures, wildfires, flooding, sea level rise, poor air quality, extreme weather events, disease prevention, and other public health effects. (PI) HAZ-11.5: The County shall work with State and County health agencies and local organizations to provide educational programs and resources targeted at reducing the impacts of exposure to sun and heat. (ICG, JP, PI)

HAZ-11.6: The County shall expand partnerships with local governments, non-government organizations, churches, and businesses to provide additional cooling centers, particularly in designated disadvantaged communities. (SO, IGC, JP, PI) HAZ-11.7: The County shall encourage development to include new building designs or retrofits to improve building partnerships including inculation to reduce operative scalar reflective white

performance through strategic building design features, including insulation to reduce energy usage, solar-reflective white roofs, solar panels, green roofs (vegetation on roofs), and battery storage for energy. (RDR)

HAZ-11.8: The County shall work with utility providers to underground overhead power lines (both existing and as part of discretionary development) to increase the resilience of the energy grid and reduce wildfire potential, especially in Existing Communities. (JP)

HAZ-11.9: The County shall promote the use of urban greening techniques, such as cool pavement technology, parking lot shading, landscaping, and other methods to offset climate change impacts and reduce GHG emissions for discretionary development and County-initiated projects. (RDR, FB, SO)

HAZ-11.10: The County shall promote the use of solar photovoltaic carports for discretionary development and County initiated projects. (RDR)

Agriculture Element (AG)

AG-1.1: The County shall continue to protect and preserve agricultural land by directing growth away from productive agricultural lands into cities, unincorporated urban areas, or existing communities and by supporting the acquisition or voluntary dedication of agriculture conservation easements. (RDR, MPSP)

AG-3.2: The County shall encourage and support the use of Integrated Pest Management practices to reduce pesticide use and human health risks. (JP, PI)

AG-3.3: The County shall collaborate with the agricultural community to provide information on Integrated Pest Management and agricultural products and practices in Ventura County. (JP, PI)

AG-4.1: The County shall strive to enhance access to and consumption of fresh, local produce by encouraging direct connections between local farmers/ranchers and markets, restaurants, institutions, schools, hospitals, food banks, and other businesses. (JP)

AG-4.3: The County shall encourage the use of technology that supports agricultural production, while enhancing environmental sustainability and natural resource conservation. (JP)

AG-5.1: The County shall encourage farmers to reduce fertilizer application and transition to products that reduce or avoid nitrous oxide (N_20) emissions, such as organic composting and enhanced efficiency fertilizers. (MPSP)

AG-5.2: The County shall encourage and support the transition to electric- or renewable-powered or lower emission agricultural equipment in place of fossil fuel-powered equipment, when feasible. (PI, JP)

AG-5.3: The County shall encourage farmers to convert fossil fuel-powered irrigation pumps to systems powered by electric or renewable energy sources, such as solar-power, and encourage electric utilities to eliminate or reduce stand-by charges. (SO)

AG-5.4: The County shall encourage farmers to continue and enhance the water-saving irrigation techniques designed to reduce water consumption. (RDR, JP)

AG-5.5: The County shall encourage and support the efforts of resource conservation districts, farmers, and other stakeholders to expand carbon farming practices, such as reduced tilling, cover-cropping, composting, biochar, and other activities that both reduce GHG emissions and increase carbon sequestration and storage, when feasible. (JP) AG-6.1: The County shall support and monitor research on the effects of a changing climate on the agricultural industry within Ventura County. (PSR)

AG-6.2: The County shall engage the agricultural sector to understand the tolerance of current crop mixes to withstand the impacts of climate change, including increased temperatures, disease, and pests, and explore options to diversify crops. (JP)

Water Resources Element (WR)

WR-3.1: The County shall encourage the use of non-potable water, such as tertiary treated wastewater and household graywater, for industrial, agricultural, environmental, and landscaping needs consistent with appropriate regulations. (RDR)

Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating ^a
	 WR-3.2: The County shall require the use of water conservation techniques for discretionary developmed Such techniques include low flow plumbing fixtures in new construction that meet or exceed the Californi use of graywater or reclaimed water for landscaping, retention of stormwater runoff for direct use and/or recharge, and landscape ordinance. WR-3.3: The County shall require discretionary development to incorporate low impact development dest best management practices, including integration of stormwater capture facilities, consistent with County Permit. (RDR) WR-3.4: The County shall strive for efficient use of potable water in County buildings and facilities throug measures and technological advancements. (SO) WR-4.1: The County shall work with water suppliers, water users, groundwater management agencies, sustainability agencies to implement the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) and managersources within the sustainable yield of each basin to ensure that county residents, businesses, agricuit and the environment have reliable, high-quality groundwater to serve existing and planned land uses du drought years. (IGC, RDR, SO) WR-4.3: The County shall support groundwater recharge and multi-benefit projects consistent with SGM. Regional Water Management Plan to ensure the long-term sustainability of groundwater. (IGC, RDR, SC) WR-4.4: The County shall support the appropriate agencies in their efforts to effectively manage and equatity and quality to ensure long-term, adequate availability of high quality and economically viable water supplies or in-stream water flow and recycled water for groundwater balancing the needs or urban and agricultural uses, and healthy ecosystems, including in-stream water flow and recycled water for groundwater balancing the needs or urban and agricultural uses, and healthy ecosystems, including in-stream water flow and recycled water for groundwater waterse, econsistent with water use efficiency programs. (IGC)<td>nt, as appropriate. ia Plumbing Code, groundwater Model Water sign features and y's Stormwater gh conservation and groundwater ge groundwater ture, government, ring prolonged A and the Integrated D) er recharge while lows needed for enhance water ater for agricultural d secure long-term ter for agricultural able water supplies. eneration and storage cluding solar power, sources and storage</td>	nt, as appropriate. ia Plumbing Code, groundwater Model Water sign features and y's Stormwater gh conservation and groundwater ge groundwater ture, government, ring prolonged A and the Integrated D) er recharge while lows needed for enhance water ater for agricultural d secure long-term ter for agricultural able water supplies. eneration and storage cluding solar power, sources and storage
Champions	and distribution systems. (IVIFSF, JF) for climate action in local government departments	High
Comment:	The Ventura County Board of Supervisors adopted the 2040 General Plan on September 15, 2020, whic above referenced reduction measures and adaptation strategies. As a result, effective October 15, 2020 other County departments are directed to incorporate climate action in their policies, procedures, and op	ch includes the b, VCPWA-WP, and berational practices.
Political sup	port for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	High
Comment:	See above.	
Financial re	sources devoted to climate change adaptation	Medium
Comment:	Pursuant to the Board of Supervisors policy direction to all County departments, including VCPWA-WP, climate action in their policies, procedures, and operational practices, it is anticipated that additional fina be required to accomplish this policy directive. And those additional financial resources, be they repurpor existing VCPWA-WP revenue streams or new, climate action dedicated grant revenue funding streams, future fiscal year budgets for consideration and adoption by the Ventura County Watershed Protection E	to incorporate ncial resources will sing a portion of will be identified in Board of Supervisors.
Local author	rity over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Medium
Comment:	VCPWA-WP has proprietary authority over flood protection facilities that it designs, constructs, operates flood protection asset portfolio. It also has permitting authority over watercourses designated as red line	, and maintains in its channels by its

ordinance (WP-2). VCPWA-WP provides staffing and technical assistance to the VCPWA-Engineering Services Department in their role of implementation of the Ventura County Floodplain Management Ordinance No. 4521 and Well Ordinance No. 4468.

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Public Capacity	
Local Residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Unsure
Comment: Not enough objectively credible information is known to VCPWA-WP staff to assign a rating.	
Local Residents' support of adaptation efforts	Unsure
Comment: Not enough objectively credible information is known to VCPWA-WP staff to assign a rating.	
Local Residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Unsure
Comment: Not enough objectively credible information is known to VCPWA-WP staff to assign a rating.	
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Unsure
Comment: Not enough objectively credible information is known to VCPWA-WP staff to assign a rating.	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: Local ecosystems are stressed by the current multi-year drought that has created favorable conditions f since 2017, Thomas, Woolsey, Easy, Maria, etc.). Once fire devastates local ecosystems, they are unal in the absence of sufficient rainfall. Non-native, invasive vegetation then can quickly gain a foothold, pot fires.	or repeated fires (just ble to quickly recover tentially fueling future

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

24.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

24.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- VCPWA-WP's Integrated Watershed Protection Plan Project Prioritization Process
- VCPWA-WP 5 Year Capital Improvement Projects Plan—Annual Update and Prioritized Project Ranking Process
- VCPWA-WP's Preparation of Annual Recertifications and Cycle Verification of Class V Rating for Unincorporated Ventura County under FEMA's Community Rating System Program
- Ventura County Flood Safety Plan
- Ventura County 2040 General Plan Implementation Actions Under the Following Plan Elements:
 - > Public Facilities, Services, and Infrastructure
 - Conservation and Open Space
 - Hazards and Safety
 - Water Resources
 - Economic Vitality

- Unincorporated Communities' Area Plans
- > Appendix B, Climate Change
- Ventura County Integrated Regional Water Management Plan Updates (IRWM) and Eligible Project List Development for IRWM Grant Funding Opportunities Provided by the State
- Ventura River Watershed Management Plan
- Ventura County Transportation Commission Transportation Emergency Preparedness Plan
- Ventura County Local Coastal Plan Update, VC Resilient Coastal Adaptation Project

24.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- Ventura County Integrated Regional Water Management Plan Updates (IRWM) Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment (new section in IRWMP 2019)
- Ventura County Active Transportation Plan (ongoing)
- Climate resiliency, Fire Safe Council, programs led by Ventura County Resource Conservation
 District
- Groundwater Sustainability Plans (FCGMA, Mound Basin, Fillmore and Piru groundwater sustainability agency, Cuyama groundwater sustainability agency, Upper Ventura groundwater sustainability agency)
- Naval Base of Ventura County
- Urban Water Management Plans (County of Ventura, its 10 cities, and water districts required to develop them)
- Prop 1 IRWM Disadvantaged Community Involvement Program Needs Assessment Report (completed by fall 2021). Includes surveys and meetings with community members to identify water management needs of disadvantaged communities and tribal communities.
- Watershed Management Program (WMP) for Ventura County including Ventura River, Calleguas Creek, Santa Clara River, upper Malibu Creek, and Coastal Watersheds of Ventura County. WMP development results from a Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (Region 4) decision that by September 11, 2023, Ventura County is required to meet compliance with the 2021 Regional Municipal Stormwater (MS4) National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit Order No. CAS004004, Order No. R4-2021-0105. The Ventura County WMP will be developed by the County, Watershed Protection, and 10 incorporated cities.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

24.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

24.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 24-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 24-9. Past Natural Hazard Events					
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment		
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	January 20, 2020 and continuing	\$Unknown		
Maria Fire	FM-5302	November 1, 2019	\$Unknown		
Easy Fire	FM-5298	October 1, 2019	\$Unknown		
Saddleridge Fire	FM-5293	October 10, 2019	\$Unknown		
Severe Storms & Flooding	State	February 3, 2019	\$Unknown		
Wildfires	DR-4407	November 8-25, 2018	\$Unknown		
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows	DR-4353	Dec 4, 2017-January 31, 2018	\$165,110-PA & HMGP-Gauges		
Thomas Fire	FM-5224	December 4, 2017	\$Unknown		
Wildfire	FM-5189	July 9, 2017	S5,000,000-HMGP-Fresno Cyn.		
Winter Storms	State	February 1, 2017	\$Unknown		
Springs Fire	FM-5024	May 2-11, 2013	\$Unknown		
Winter Storms	State	February 20, 2013	\$Unknown		
Winter Storms	State	February 19 – 26, 2011	\$Unknown		
Ormond Beach Breach	None	January 18, 2010	\$162,933 VCPWA-WP Internal Data		
Guiberson Fire	FM-2839	September 22-29, 2009	\$Unknown		
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflows, and Debris Flows	DR-1731	October 21, 2007-March 31, 2008	\$16,650-CDAA-Gauges		
Severe Freeze	DR-1689	January 11-17, 2007	\$Unknown		
Shekell Fire	FM-2681	December 3 - 6, 2006	\$Unknown		
Day Fire	FM-2677	September 25-30, 2006	\$55,867-CDAA-Gauges & Stop Log		
School Fire	FM-2586	November 18-23, 2005	\$Unknown		
Topanga Fire	FM-2583	September 28-October 10, 2005	\$Unknown		
Severe Storms, Flooding, Landslides, Mud and Debris Flows	DR-1585	February 16, 23, 2005	\$735,657 HMGP North Simi, FEMA, \$3,656,067, CDAA \$973,722, PDM Fresno Canyon Diversion \$55,499		
Severe Storms, Flooding, Debris Flows and Mudslides	DR-1577	December 27, 2004 – January 11, 2005	FEMA \$13,293,182 CDAA \$110,636		
Wildfires, Flooding, Mudflow and Debris Flow	DR-1498	October 31, 2003 – March 31, 2004	\$46,875-HMGP Gauges FEMA \$265,310, CDDA \$1,740,850		
Severe Storms, Tornadoes, High Winds, and Flooding	DR-1267	December 20 – 28, 1988	\$Unknown		
Severe Winter Storms and Flooding	DR-1203	February 2 – April 30, 1998	\$ 5,464,863 FEMA \$1,742,593 CDAA		

	FEMA		
Type of Event	Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
Severe Fires	EM-3120	October 21 – 31, 1996	\$Unknown
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding, Landslides, and Mud Flows	DR-1046	February 13 – April 19, 1996	\$Unknown
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding, Landslides, and Mud Flows	DR-1044	January 3 – February, 1995	\$Unknown
Northridge Earthquake	DR-1008	January 17 – November 30, 1994	\$Unknown
Fires, Mud & Landslides, Soil Erosion, and Flooding	DR-1005	October 26, 1993 – April 22, 1994	\$881,390
Severe Storm, Winter Storm, Mud & Landslides and Flooding	DR-979	January 5 – March 20, 1993	\$Unknown
Snow Storm, Heavy Rain, High Winds, Flooding and Mudslide	DR-935	February 10-19, 1992	\$5,335,410
Severe Freeze	DR-894	December 19, 1990 – January 3, 1991	\$Unknown
Severe Storms, High Tides & Flooding	DR-812	January 17 – 22, 1988	\$Unknown
Grass, Wildlands, & Forrest Fires	DR-739	June 26 – July 19, 1985	\$Unknown
Coastal Winter Storms, Floods, Slides and Tornadoes	DR-677	January 21 – March 30, 1983 February 26 – March 1, 1983	\$4,098,650 \$14,181,650
Severe Storms, Mudslides & Flooding	DR-615	January 8, 1980	\$5,464,869
Coastal Storms, Mudslides & Flooding	DR-547	February 15, 1978	\$Unknown
Severe Storms, High Tides & Flooding	DR-364	February 8, 1973	\$1,800,000
Forest & Brush Fires	DR-295	September 29, 1970	\$Unknown
Severe Storms & Flooding	DR-253	January 26, 1969	\$15,770,000
Heavy Rains & Flooding	DR-211	February 25, 1965	\$Unknown

24.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 24-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 24-10. Hazard Risk Ranking						
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category			
1	Dam Failure	34	High			
2	Severe Storms ^a	24	High			
2	Severe Weathera	24	High			
4	Flooding ^a	18	High			
5	Earthquake	32	Medium			
6	Wildfire	24	Medium			
7	Landslide ^b	18	Medium			
8	Sea Level Rise	12	Low			
8	Tsunami	12	Low			

Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category
10	Drought	9	Low

a. Risk Category adjusted based on local knowledge and past natural hazard events

b. Score based only on Very High susceptibility category

24.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Based on the fact that virtually all of VCPWA-WP's critical facility assets were constructed to
 provide flood protection and/or are geospatially located proximate to and/or in flood plains, and
 as documented in Table 1.8 Past Natural Hazard Events above, during the aforementioned 56year period, VCPWA-WP's critical facility flood protection assets experienced \$81 Million in
 damage from flooding, severe storms and severe weather events, VCPWA-WP has ranked
 Flood risks as "High" in Table 1.9 above.
- Matilija Dam in the Ventura River watershed is vulnerable to seismic failure. Many communities are at risk of inundation. Implementation of the Matilija Dam Ecosystem Restoration Project (MDERP) would address this risk while also opening 17 miles of habitat for endangered steelhead trout. MDERP comprises several downstream flood protection and water supply reliability components that must precede removal of the dam, some of which have been completed or are at various stages of completion (alternatives analysis, design, or construction).
- VCPWA-WP is currently engaged in preliminary design engineering and CEQA work in support • of levee retrofit and/or flood-protection enhancement projects required to certify all its levees in full-compliance with Federal Levee Certification requirements. Major levee rehabilitation and ultimate certification projects in Ventura County mentioned in the Action Plan Items below include: Calleguas Creek Levee-Somis Flood Wall (CC-2) located in the City of Camarillo, the Santa Clara River Levee upstream of Hwy 101 (SCR-1) located in the City of Oxnard, the Ventura River Levee (VR-1) located in the City of San Buenaventura, the Ventura River Levee (VR-2) located in the unincorporated community of Casitas Spring, and the Live Oak Acres Levee located in the near the unincorporated community of Oak View. VCPWA-WP is working closely with FEMA, the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), as well as affected cities, residents, and property owners throughout Ventura County to marshal scarce Federal, State, and local funding resources necessary to complete five very important levee retrofit public safety and flood protection projects. Once all VCPWA-WP's levee retrofit projects are completed, VCPWA-WP's levees will fully comply with applicable Federal Levee Certification requirements found in 44 CFR 65.10. At best, full completion of VCPWA-WP's five levee rehab projects will require a minimum of five to ten years, and could take longer, depending on final engineering design plan results, environmental considerations, and availability of project funding required to construct the rehab projects.
- San Nicholas, Santa Monica, and Santa Paula Pump Stations lift stormwater from low elevation coastal neighborhoods and discharge directly to the Pacific Ocean. The Santa Monica and Santa Paula Pump Station outlets are frequently clogged during high tide and heavy surf events, causing the pumps to shut off and requiring manual removal of sand to ensure the coastal communities do not flood. With sea level rise, the risk increases. While not currently afflicted with the propensity for sand to clog its outlet, San Nicholas Pump Station is vulnerable to failure as sea level rises. In addition, San Nicholas Pump Station was retrofitted in 2004 to

include a secondary pumping system to divert urban runoff into the sewer conveyance system operated by Channel Island Beach Community Services District for treatment at the Oxnard Wastewater Treatment Plant. This diversion system allows the County and Watershed Protection to meet compliance with dry weather Bacteria Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) for Channel Island Harbor Beaches (Resolution No. R2007-017). The diversion system does not work during wet days, defined as rain event of 0.1 inch or more and within 72 hours after eligible rain event stops. The County and Watershed Protection are in the process of evaluating feasible options to stop stormwater discharge from San Nicholas Pump Station into Kiddie Beach to comply with the TMDL during wet weather. The pumps in each facility are over 40 years old and do not have on site backup generators, making them vulnerable to power failures, which cause alarms to sound signaling the need for immediate emergency response. All three facilities need constant repair due to corrosive salt air and water. Upgrades are needed, but more land is required for truly effective solutions, and adjacent land is occupied by high value coastal residences.

Ormond Lagoon is a coastal estuary open to the ocean only during rain events and for a variable period thereafter depending on time between rain events, tides, etc. Sea level rise may reduce the ability of storm runoff from Ormond Lagoon Waterway and *tšumaš* Creek to breach the lagoon and flow into the Pacific Ocean. Without a Beach Elevation Management Plan (BEMP), the adjacent Oxnard Wastewater Treatment Plant, Advanced Water Purification Facility, New Indy paper recycling plant, Halaco Superfund Site, local residences, and roads are all vulnerable to flooding from storm water backed up in the lagoon. It is likely that the current BEMP will need to be adjusted as sea level rise occurs to avoid flooding to the adjacent areas. Restoration of a large Ormond Wetlands complex may help reduce flood potential.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

24.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 24-11 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 24-11. Status of Previous Pla	In Actions			
		Removed:	Carried O	ver to Plan date
Action Itom from Drovious Dlan	Completed	No Longer	Check if	Action #
ACTION ITEM FOR PREVIOUS Plan	Completed	Feasible	res	in opdate
VCWPD 1—Complete the General Plan Update. In 2015, the Resource Management Agency, Planning Division initiated a General Plan Update project that is expected to take 5 years to complete. As part of the General Plan Update, the County will be considering the adoption of a number of new elements that will include land use policies that will apply to new land use development projects within the Unincorporated area of the County. In addition, the Resource Management Agency, Planning Division is currently working on Phase II of an update to its Local Coastal Program ("LCP Update").	v			
The relevant issues that the General Plan Update and LCP Update will address include the following:				
 Climate change, including (but not limited to) sea level rise and coastal resiliency policies for new development along the coast. Wildlife movement overlay zone that will limit new development within flood-prone areas (e.g., riparian corridors). Limitations on new development within Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas (e.g., the Santa Monica Mountains that are characterized by steep slopes, relatively intact native habitat, and coastal areas subject to flooding hazards); and Changes to the permitting requirements for brush removal in open space areas (e.g., areas with steep slopes that are prone to erosion, mudslide, and flood hazards). Comment: The Ventura County General Plan Update was completed and approved update addressed climate change and sea level rise. A Habitat Connect the Board of Supervisors in 2019, which established development stand overlay zones. Development requirements in the unincorporated areas of Management Agency as part of the normal planning and building permited. 	l by the Board o ivity and Wildlif lards intended t of the County an process. The C	of Supervisors i e Corridors ora o preserve wild re enforced by Coastal Area Pl	n October 2 Iinance was Ilife corridor the County's an which is	2020. The passed by s in certain s Resource part of the
Local Coastal Program was updated in April 2017 and approved by the updated Coastal Area Plan includes policies to protect Environmentally.	California Coas Sensitive Habit	tal Commission at Areas such a	n in July 201 as coastal d	17. The unes
 VCWPD 2—Revise existing landslide/debris flow maps to include potential runout areas and include the runout area with a classification scheme for probability. Present landslide/debris flow maps only include the main slide mass or body and not the potential areas of effect from potential future movement. Comment: After the Thomas, Woolsey, and Maria fires Debris Flow maps were prepurposes for major Watershed Protection jurisdictional channels signific impacted by the Thomas, Woolsey, Maria, and Easy Fires were all map. 	✓ pared in early 2 antly impacted ped. The mapp	2018 for emerge by the wildfires ing focuses on	ency repair , . Major strea identifying a	olanning ams at-risk
Areas resulting from 1% annual chance flood flows with after fire debris	bulking applied.			1
development to include stormwater runoff, sediment transport, and alluvial fan geomorphology from geologic perspective. Alluvial fans are presently considered only from hydrologic/hydraulic models.	·			
Comment: Alluvial fan management is regulated by the Ventura County Public Wor Department, Land Development Division with support from VCPWA-WF associated with agricultural, oil and development projects. Geology and	ks Agency Eng as part of the s Engineering dis	ineering Servic site review for g sciplines are ut	es (VCPWA grading pern ilized during	A-ES) nits these

			Removed;	Carried O	ver to Plan date			
Action Item	from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if	Action #			
VCWPD 5— ALERT (Auto technology fr	Upgrade the County of Ventura's Flood warning system. The existing omated Local Evaluation in Real Time) system is utilizing radio from the 1980s.	√ v	reasible	163				
 Comment: VCPWA-WP successfully secured a total of \$3,174,181 in three rounds of Flood Emergency Response Grants in 2014, and 2018. These three grants which funded the update of older ALERT legacy flood warning systems throughout South California to a new radio protocol called ALERT2. All three Flood Emergency Response Grants for Southern California to managed by Ventura County. Participating agencies included: Ventura County, County of Orange, Los Angeles County, Bernardino County, Riverside County, San Diego County, National Weather Service Oxnard, National Weather Service Diego, Santa Barbara County, San Luis Obispo County and Coachella Valley Water District 								
	ALER 12 incorporates the use of GPS timing with timed transmissions a rates. The faster rates facilitate sending more data in a shorter time slot of the timed data check ins being received are now at a higher frequence receiving 5-minute data every hour. ALERT2 also makes the warning sy reduce the radio signal collusions where data can be lost to almost noth when it comes to data loss. The timed transmissions during an event armore than two minutes old.	mong other en . This makes th ry rate in some (stem much mo hing making the e still considere	nancements like radio transm. cases going fro re reliable. The ALERT2 a mu ed real time as l	e faster tran issions shor om 12-hour o e timed trans ch more relia no transmiss	smission ter. Some check-ins to smissions able system sions are			
VCWPD 6— Protection's sharing, mult and organiza floodplain ma sustainable w	Continue modernizing and streamlining the Ventura County Watershed Integrated Watershed Protection Plan and establish collaborative, cost- i-benefit project partnerships with public and private sector agencies tions, aimed at improving community resiliency to flood risk hazards, anagement, groundwater, and environmental protection, and securing a vater supply for urban and agricultural customers.			~	VCPWA- WP-2			
Comment:	An Integrated Watershed Protection Plan is used by VCPWA-WP to ran VCPWA-WP's 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan. The plan encourages private sector agencies and organizations on multi-purpose projects wh floodplain management, groundwater recharge, recreation, and environ Runkle Canyon resulted in completed improvements to rehabilitate infra sustainable funding source through a special assessment to properties has also been used for an area impacted by flood risks from Santa Paul the City of Oxnard, a linear park is planned together with the improvement capacity of tšumaš Creek.	k projects for p collaboration a ich integrate pro mental enhance structure and in that benefit from la Creek. Throu ent to the flood	rioritizing fundi nd cost-sharing oject objectives ement. A cost s ncrease flood s n the improven gh collaboratio channel convey	ng and inclu among pub for flood co sharing colla afety by crea nents. A sim n and cost-s yance	sion in olic and ontrol, boration for ating a ilar model sharing with			
VCWPD 7— owner aware rise and action damage.	Undertake public outreach initiatives aimed at increasing property ness of the risks of flooding, including coastal flooding from sea-level ons that residents can take to reduce the risk of loss of life and property	1						
Comment:	VCPWA-WP actively participates in CA Flood Preparedness Week activ provides helpful information to residents, businesses, and schools on pr their risk to loss of life and property damage from flood events, including mails flood safety information to all properties within a FEMA defined flo vulnerable to coastal erosion and sea level rise. Another outreach activi lenders who serve residents looking for new housing.	vities during the roactive steps th g coastal floodir odplain which d ty is to provide	month of Octo hat everyone sl ng from sea lev often includes c flood risk inforr	ber annually hould take to el rise. The coastal resid mation to rea	<i>v, which</i> o reduce County also ents altors and			
VCWPD 8—2 measures, in subdrains, re	Stabilize landslide-prone areas through stability improvement cluding interceptor drains, in situ soil piles, drained earth buttresses, emoval of slide areas, and dewatering ground.	V						
Comment:	Landslide prone areas are stabilized as development is proposed within development be proposed in these areas and are not able to be relocate engineering studies are required to provide recommendations for mitiga factors of safety against future movement.	these areas. S ed away from th tion strategies	hould developi ne hazard then to stabilize the	ment or acce geologic an ground that	ess to d include			

			Removed;	Carried O Up	ver to Plan date
Action Item	from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
VCWPD 9— 100-year floo Ventura Cou feasible, acq <i>Comment:</i>	 Acquire, relocate and/or floodproof critical facilities located within the odplain, as financially feasible. Projects will be undertaken by the nty Public Works Agency and other applicable County agencies. Where uired lands will be considered for passive open space. VCPWA-WP and other County Agencies routinely consider the feasibilit floodproofing critical facilities located within the 100-year flood plain dur the preparation of project alternatives analyses in applicable CEQA doc General Plan provides the following two policies providing direction to floor in areas subject to sea-level rise Public Facilities, Services, and Infrastructure Element (PFS): PFS-new essential public facility, such as a hospital, health care facility, emergency communications facility, so that these facilities are located clocation is infeasible, then the County shall require the use of constructing potential damage to these facilities. Hazards and Safety Element (HAZ): HAZ-3.2: County-initiated infrastructure of easily modified to accommodate 100-years of projected sea level rise 	y, practicality, a ing routine projumentation. Fu ood-proof critica 1.3: The County rgency shelter, putside of at-risk on methods and ucture projects service, shall bu	and affordability ect engineering rther, the Ventu al facilities loca shall review p emergency co areas whenev d site design fe sited along or e planned with the H++ ext	✓ ✓ of relocatin f design effo ura County 2 ted within flo lans for con: mmand cen ver feasible. vatures to mi seaward of l the potentia reme risk av	VCPWA- WP-5 Ing and or rts, and in 2040 Dood plains structing ter, or If such a inimize Highway I to be ersion sea
VCWPD 10-	level rise scenario –Reinforce and maintain County roads, bridges, ditches, and culverts			✓	VCPWA-
Comment:	Ventura County Public Works Agency Roads and Transportation Depar and maintenance of County roads, bridges, ditches, and culverts in the conducts annual ditch cleaning and culvert cleaning before winter storm proper drainage flow to mitigate roadway flooding in rural areas of the c and culverts, the VCPWA-RT is actively working to rehabilitate Bridge R environmental permitting phase and is expected to be completed in 202 completed in May 2020 and replacement of Casitas Vista Road Bridge 2020. Mupu Road Bridge and the Wheeler Canyon Road Bridge improv 2017. The VCPWA-RT is developing a Bridge Management Program to and prioritize VCPWA-RT's 158 bridge structures which include 81 bridg structures. This program will identify budget needs, and schedules for p rehabilitation or replacement of VCPWA-RT maintained bridges for shou Management Program is expected to be completed in calendar year 20. flood control channels and catch basins to prepare for winter storm seas funding for the Santa Ana Bridge and Camino Cielo Bridge replacement are components of the MDERP). The design of Camino Cielo Bridge is Ana Bridge project, a construction contract was awarded in March 2021 2022.	tment (VCPWA unincorporated season to mai ounty. In additio 20ad Bridge (#4 3. Replacement (#327) was con ements projects maintain Coun ges on the Natio reventive maint trand long-term 21. In 2020-202 sons. VCPWA-t progressing tov with an estima	-RT) is respons areas of Ventu- ntain the capac on to the annua 42) which is cu- tof Catalina D opleted in Septe swere complet ty bridges. The onal Bridge Inv- enance as well planning need 1, VCPWA-WI NP also secure are managed vards 30% mile ted completion	sible for the ra County. city of ditche al cleaning o irrently in de rive Bridge (ember ender 2016- program wi entory and 5 l as budget i ds. The Bridge continued by VCPWA- estone. For t date of Dec	viP-5 operation VCPWA-RT s and f ditches sign and '#384) was 'Il identify 77 other for required ge to clean on 1 grant RT (both he Santa cember

			Removed;	Carried O Up	ver to Plan date
Action Item	I from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if	Action #
VCWPD 11 issues that in Assessment	—Work with FEMA Region IX to address any floodplain management nay have arisen/arise from the countywide DFIRM, Community t Visits, and/or DWR.	completed	reasible	√	VCPWA- WP-10
Comment:	VCPWA-WPD staff have worked closely with FEMA Region IX and CA regular basis to address floodplain management issues. In coordination county and cities meet quarterly to discuss and address issues facing th continues to work with FEMA in moving forward with the Physical Map I The mapping projects for the Ventura River watershed and the Californi completed with maps effective 1/29/2021. County staff worked closely w mapping projects ahead of the effective dates to inform residents and e worked closely with FEMA and DWR on the dam break analysis and mat (8) state sized dams Ventura County maintains have approved inundati	Department of with FEMA Re ne floodplain ma Revisions (PMF ian Coastal Ana vith FEMA on th ncourage flood apping and succon on maps.	Water Resourc gion IX, floodpl anagement con for Santa Cla lysis and Mapp ne public outrea insurance purc cessfully achiev	es (DWR) si lain manage nmunities. T ara River wa bing Project ach for the c chase. Coun ved approva	aff on a rs from the he County tershed. were ompleted ty staff I. All eight
VCWPD 12- NFIP by ma better rating property ow premiums.	—Increase the Unincorporated Ventura County's participation in the intaining a CRS Class 6 CRS rating, if not improving to a Class 5 or , which through enhanced floodplain management activities allows ners to receive increasing discounts on their NFIP flood insurance			~	VCPWA- WP-7
Comment:	Since May 1, 2016, unincorporated Ventura County has achieved a Cla A CRS rating reflects the extent to which a community has exceeded th mitigation and credits those efforts through flood insurance premium dis floodplain properties in the unincorporated Ventura County to receive an premiums. FEMA listed the county's class 5 rating in the CRS program Cycle Verification confirming Class 5 status. The next Cycle Verification program protocols, yearly recertification documentation continues to be Verifications. The most recent recertification was submitted July 28, 202 1st of 2022.	ss 5 rating in the e NFIP's minim counts. This Cannual discounts on April 1, 202° is due in 2023 submitted by V 21 and the next	e NFIP's CRS um standards i lass 5 rating all of up to 25% o 1. In May of 20 Additionally, in CPWA-WP to recertification	administered for flood haz ows owners on flood insu 18, FEMA pe n compliance FEMA betwee will be due b	d by FEMA. ard of rance erformed a e with CRS een Cycle y August
VCWPD 14 and CEQA River Levee Ventura Riv	-Engage in preliminary design engineering, project feasibility analysis, work for the Calleguas Creek Levee (CC-2) in Camarillo, the Santa Clara (SCR-1) in Oxnard, the Ventura River Levee (VR-1) in Ventura, and the er Levee (VR-2) in the Unincorporated area of Casitas Springs.			✓	VCPWA- WP-6
Comment:	The County of Ventura, working in close coordination with federal and s engineering and environmental permitting, and in some cases, the cons owned by the County. A DWR Local Levee Assistance Program (LLAP) hydraulic analysis, geologic investigation, and alternative analysis for the rehabilitation of the <i>Calleguas Creek and Somis Drain Levee System</i> (<i>C</i> <i>River Levee</i> (VR-2) in the unincorporated community of Casitas Springs levees by the County, and accreditation of that certification by FEMA. T 2021. That LLAP grant also provided funding to advance design engine environmental permitting approvals for both the Santa Clara River Levee (VR-1) in Ventura. Finally, the Sespe Creek Levee (SC-2) rehabilitation completed in the fall of 2017. Phase I levee rehabilitation construction w the Santa Clara River Levee (SCR-3) in Oxnard was completed by the for construction beginning in the 2022-23 fiscal year. Ongoing coordinate Section 408 Permit envelope, is underway for both the SCR-1 and VR- plans to USACE for review in early 2021	tate agencies, of grant provided e preliminary de CC-2) in the City s, which will ulti- he predesign si- ering work, CE- e (SCR-1) in O- from HWY 126 vork required to County in June tion between th 1 levees. For Vi	continues to pro ects required to funding for the esign of the of Camarillo, a mately lead to of tudy for CC-2 w QA report preport to Old Telegra support the ev of 2018. Phase e County and the R-1, the County	pgress the d rehabilitate hydrologic and for the V certification of vas complete aration, and Ventura Riv ph Road wa entual certif e II of SCR-3 he USACE, v submitted of	esign levees and /entura of these ed in March required er Levee s ication of cation of s planned under the 50% design

		Removed;	Carried O Up	ver to Plan date
Action Item from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
VCWPD 15—As part of the Memorandum of Agreement / Memorandum of Understanding with The Nature Conservancy (TNC): partner with TNC on acquisition, restoration, and mitigation planning processes; partner on grant proposals; participate in negotiations with land use owners; carry-out restoration projects; hold titles to floodplain properties as appropriate; and hold or co-hold with TNC multipurpose easements.			✓	VCPWA- WP-8

Comment: In November 2020, VCPWA-WP collaborated with TNC as well as the Santa Clara River Conservancy and the University of California at Santa Barbara to identify privately-owned parcels within the Santa Clara River one-percent annual chance flood zone that could be acquired, preserved with a conservation easement, and whose habitat quality could be enhanced. VCPWA-WP included acquisition and enhancement of the parcels in its SCR-3 Levee Rehab and Habitat Enhancement Project grant application to the California Department of Water Resources' Coastal Watershed Flood Risk Reduction grant program. TNC and SCRC submitted letters of support. On June 1, 2021, DWR issued a recommendation to fund five grants, including \$3.125 million for the SCR-3 Project, of which \$625,000 is budgeted for the habitat acquisition and enhancement. A 15-day public comment period regarding this recommendation ended on June 15, 2021.

VCPWA-WP also coordinated with TNC and other NGOs such as Ojai Valley Land Conservancy and Friends of the Santa Clara River during preparation of its original (2010) and follow up (2015 & 2018) Community Rating System applications, Activity 420-Open Space, to document and quantify all lands preserved as open space within the one-percent annual chance flood zone throughout Ventura County. Through its participation in the Santa Clara River Watershed Committee and other organizations, VCPWA-WP also encourages all entities considering acquisition and preservation of open space to prioritize those parcels within the one-percent annual chance floodplain.

In 2019, TNC reached out to VCPWA-WP to assist in developing multi-benefit project ideas to enhance stream water quality, in compliance with National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System /MS4 permit requirements. TNC, in collaboration with the City of Oxnard and State Coastal Conservancy, is developing the Ormond Beach Restoration and Access Plan (OBRAP). VCPWA-WP has provided input on the plan, including recommendations on approaches to incorporate its existing flood control facilities such as the Ormond Lagoon Waterway into the project while still protecting adjacent developed areas from flooding. In January 2021, VCPWA-WP began enlarging a portion of tšumaš Creek, another tributary to Ormond Lagoon. Project completion is anticipated by February 2022 and VCPWA-WP continues to seek grant funding to continue the channel enlargement upstream. The tšumaš Creek project is also covering the channel from Hueneme Road northward to provide a surface on which the City of Oxnard could install a linear park connecting an underserved community to Ormond Beach and coastal recreation areas (VCPWA-WP has assisted the City in preparation of three grant applications for this purpose, though to date no grant has been awarded). This linear park feature is reflected in the OBRAP.

VCPWA-WP has carried out several habitat restoration projects, including removal of giant reed (Arundo donax) and other invasive species and either native plant installation or passive recruitment in the Ventura River, Santa Clara River, and Calleguas Creek watersheds. This work is ongoing.

		Removed;	Carried O Up	ver to Plan date
Action Item from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
VCWPD 16—Develop a Post Disaster Assessment and Planning Data Base. WPD will collect Ventura County's OES Post Disaster Damage Reports. This information will be geo-referenced and stored in a special database as a shape file. VCPWA-WP will compare the disaster information with existing DFIRM maps, and existing repetitive loss inventory data for monitoring and identification of flood prone areas (Hot Spots). Following the identification of damaged structures, VCPWA-WP will research and document if damaged structures were affected by local drainage problems, such as a plugged culvert, or unintended drain blockage. If not, consider the type of drainage system. If drainage system is local, refer the problem to PWA-Transportation for future mitigation, or if it is within VCPWA-WP's facilities, VCPWA-WP to assess problem and potential solution.			✓	VCPWA- WP-3

Comment: In January of 2018, VCPWPD piloted the creation of a geospatially referenced post disaster damage assessment storyboard after the Thomas Fire which captured many of the features mentioned in this action plan item. Efforts to refine, improve, and standardize that storyboard to cover critical facility-assets found in the asset management portfolios of VCPWA-Roads and Transportation, Water and Sanitation Department, and Watershed Protection will be explored and further developed in an action item entry for the next five-year plan development period.

24.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 24-12 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 24-13 identifies the priority for each action. Table 24-14 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

		Table 24-12	. Hazard Mitigation A	ction Plan	Matrix	
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a
Action VCPWA- the hazard mitiga repetitive losses <u>Hazards Mitigate</u>	WP-1—Support and a ation plan, prioritizing and/or are in high- or <u>cd:</u> Drought, Dam F Wildfire	actively participa VCPWA-WP's ir medium-risk ha Failure, Earthqua	te in countywide initiatives wolvement in geographica zard areas identified in Wa ike, Flood, Landslide, Sea	s and plan m al areas of th atershed Pro I Level Rise,	aintenance protocols identified in the county which have experienced tection's jurisdictional annex. Severe Storm, Severe Weather, T	Volume 1 of severe sunami, and
Existing & New	1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19	VCSOES and Ventura County Departments	VCPWA-WP	Low	VCPWA-WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC and HMGP) and County General Funds, as required	Ongoing

Benefits New or				Estimated						
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	l'imeline ^a				
Action VCPWA-WP-2—Refine the Integrated Watershed Protection Plan to update the identification and prioritization of multi-hazard mitigation projects, which incorporate dam failure, drought, earthquake, landslide, sea-level rise, server storm and weather, and tsunami hazard mitigation features to advance the inclusion of multi-hazard mitigation projects in Capital Improvement Project (CIP) project planning, design, and implementation actions. Ensure that the unique vulnerabilities of disadvantaged, socially vulnerable, and historically underrepresented communities are identified, considered, and reflected appropriately in the project prioritization ranking process through coordination and engagement with representatives of these communities, multi-stakeholder watershed groups, and nonprofit partners. Hazards Mitigated: Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flooding, Landslide, Sea Level Rise, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, and Tsunami										
New & Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments, Cities, Special-Purpose Districts, and NGOs.	Medium	VCPWA-WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC, FMA, and HMGP) and County General Funds, as required	Ongoing				
Action VCPWA- reference perisha future hazard mit Online) to captur document and ar pursuit of grant fu <u>Hazards Mitigate</u>	Action VCPWA-WP-3—Implement a Post Disaster Critical Facilities Risk Impact Assessment Program designed to capture and geo- reference perishable data after significant events (e.g., preliminary damage estimates, damage photos, event mapping, etc.) in support of future hazard mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the HMP. Leverage applications (Maintstar v15, ArcGIS Online) to capture information related to VCPWA-RT, W&S, and WP critical facility asset impacts, and establish a centralized location to document and archive critical facilities geospatial data related to disaster events which will facilitate the development and optimize the pursuit of grant funding for future hazard mitigation projects. <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Landslide, Sea Level Rise, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Tsunami, and									
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments, Cities, Special-Purpose Districts, and NGOs.	Low	VCPWA-WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC) and County General Funds, as required	Short Term				
Action VCPWA- the Flood Warnir targeted marketin found in Ventura Hazards Mitigate	WP-4—Improve publing System (FWS) opting based on web-site County communities.	ic awareness an mized to leverag analytics and do	Id community response to ge multi-social media venu evelop multiple language in se. Severe Storms. Severe	flood event les. Expand nterfaces to Weather T	emergencies by upgrading and mo the public outreach of the FWS the better reflect the linguistic and cult sunami	odernizing ough ural diversity				
New & Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 12, 17, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	DWR, NOAA, VCSOES, Ventura County Departments, Cities, Special-Purpose Districts, community and tribal leaders, community councils, and NGOs	Medium	VCPWA-WP Structural Revenues augmented by DWR and FEMA Grants (BRIC and HMGP) and County General Funds, as required	Short Term				
Action VCPWA-WP-5—Prioritize efforts to upgrade County bridges, culverts, dams, debris and detention basins, flood conveyance channel and pipeline infrastructure, pump stations, roads, water and wastewater community infrastructure, and other critical facilities required to provide adequate flood-proofing protection and enhance the resiliency of vital community lifelines in Ventura County. <i>Hazards Mitigated;</i> Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flood, Landslide, Sea Level Rise, Severe Storm, Severe Weather, Tsunami and Wildfire										
New & Existing	1, 2, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 16, 18, 19	VCPWA Departments	Ventura County Departments, Cities, Special-Purpose Districts	High	VCPWA-WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC, HMGP) DWR, VCTC, Caltrans and County General Funds, as required	Long Term				

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a				
Action VCPWA-WP-6—Complete project feasibility analyses, design engineering and CEQA work for the Calleguas Creek Levee (CC-2) in Camarillo, the Santa Clara River Levee (SCR-1) in Oxnard, the Santa Paula Creek Flood Protection Project in Santa Paula, the Ventura River Levee (VR-1) in Ventura, the Ventura River Levee (VR-2) in the unincorporated community of Casitas Springs, and the Live Oak Acres Levee near the unincorporated community of Oak View required to evidence local compliance with Federal Levee Certification Regulations (44 CFR 65.10)										
New & Existing	<u>u.</u> Dan Palule, Ea 1, 2, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 16, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments and Cities of Camarillo, Oxnard, and San Buenaventura	High	VCPWA-WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC and HMGP) DWR- LLAP Grants USACE, and County General Funds, as required	Long Term				
Action VCPWA- a renewed emph under FEMA's Bu properties in Ven Hazards Mitigate	WP-7—Strengthen th asis on the planning a uilding Resilient Infras tura County.	e unincorporate and implementat structure and Co	d area's participation in th ion of flood mitigation proj mmunities (BRIC) program	e NFIP by m ects for repe n with the go Weather Ts	aintaining a CRS Class 5 Rating; etitive loss properties eligible for gr oal of reducing the number of reper-	and pursue ant funding titive loss				
New & Existing	<u>a.</u> 1, 2, 4, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 16, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments, DWR, FEMA	High	VCPWA-WP Structural Revenues augmented by Grants (FMA, BRIC, HMGP) and County General Funds, as required	Ongoing				
Action VCPWA- NGOs in coopera green design ele	WP-8—Partner with t ative efforts to acquire ments included in haz	he Nature Conse floodplain proper and mitigation p	ervancy, Santa Clara Rive erties, carry out restoratio rojects where feasible.	er Conservan n projects, al	ncy, Ojai Valley Land Conservancy nd enhance resiliency to natural di	, and other sasters with				
New & Existing	<u>u.</u> Dann Fandre, Dr 1, 2, 5, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments, TNC, SCRC, OVLC, DWR, CDFW, State Coastal Conservancy	High	VCPWA-WP Structural Revenues augmented by Grants (FMA, BRIC, HMGP, DWR, SCC, etc.) and County General Funds, as required	Ongoing				
Action VCPWA-WP-9—Advance planning, feasibility analyses, preliminary design, and ultimate construction of multi-benefit stormwater capture projects through a regionally collaborative approach; as well as pursue strategies to maximize stormwater as a resource (enhance recycled water, stormwater capture and sanitary system diversion, and groundwater recharge) where possible in infrastructure planning and implementation of VCPWA-WP stormwater capital projects.										
New	<u>a.</u> 1, 2, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments, SWRCB, LARWQCB, DWR, SGMAs, NGOs and Private Landowners	High	VCPWA-WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC & HMGP) DWR, IRWM, LARWQCB, SWRCB) and County General Funds, as required	Ongoing				

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timelinea				
Action VCPWA-10—Coordinate with FEMA Region IX to proactively address flood plain management and flood risk mapping issues that could adversely impact local hazard mitigation project planning and implementation efforts which may arise from updates to the Countywide DFIRMs, Community Assistance Visits, and/or other risk mapping initiatives. <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Flood, Sea Level Rise, Severe Storm, and Weather										
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 16, 17, 18 19	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments, DWR, FEMA, Cities, NGOs, and Private Landowners	Medium	VCPWA-WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC & HMGP) DWR, and County General Funds, as required	Ongoing				
Action VCPWA- other Federal, St County.	11—Work closely with ate, and local agencie	h CA Division of es to update and	Safety of Dams (DSOD), I refine the Emergency Ac	County She tion Plans (E	riff Office of Emergency Services (EAPs) for the state size dams owner	OES), and ed by the				
<u>Hazards Mitigate</u> New & Existing	<u>a:</u> Dam Failure, Fi 1, 2,4, 7,8, 12, 17, 18	ood, Earthquake VCPWA-WP	e, Severe Storms and Wea Ventura County Departments, FEMA, DWR, Cities, NGOs, and Private Landowners	atner Medium	VCPWA-WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC), DWR, and County General Funds, as required	Short-Term				
Action VCPWA-12—Complete project feasibility analyses, design engineering, CEQA, and implementation of the removal of Matilija Dam, reconstruction of the Camino Cielo Bridge crossing, and work with the Casitas Municipal Water District to reconstruct the Robles Diversion, as well as complete the construction of flood protection projects in the unincorporated community of Meiners Oaks in compliance with DSOD requirements.										
Hazards Mitigate	<u>d:</u> Dam Failure, Dr 1, 2, 4, 6, 8, 9, 10,	ought, Earthqua VCPWA-WP	ike, Flood, Severe Storm Ventura County	and Weathei High	VCPWA-WP Structural	Long-Term				
	11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 17, 18 19		Departments, Casitas Municipal Water District, Bureau of Reclamation, Caltrans, CDFW, DSOD, DWR, FEMA, USACE, NGOs		Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC & HMGP) CDFW, DWR, NFWF, NRCS, SCC, WCB, and NGO's and County and Casitas General Funds, as required					
Action VCPWA- design, and imple flooding along the OXN-12	13—Collaborate with ementation of the Orn e Ormond Lagoon Wa	the City of Oxna nond Beach Res aterway and crea	ard, Nature Conservancy, storation and Access Plan ating public access along	and State Co (OBRAP), p <i>tšumaš</i> Cree	bastal Conservancy to advance pla articularly those components allevi k. This supports the City of Oxnard	anning, iating d's Action				
Hazards Mitigate	d: Drought, Flood,	Severe Weathe	r, Severe Storms, Sea Le	vel Rise, Tsı	unami					

nuzurus mitigute	<u>u.</u> Drought, ribbu,					
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 9, 12, 13, 14, 15, 17, 18, 19	City of Oxnard	VCPWA-WP	High	City Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC), CDFG	Ongoing

Benefits New or	Objectives Met		Support Agonov	Estimated	Sources of Funding	Timolinoa		
Existing Assets			Support Agency	COSI		Timelinea		
Action VCPWA-14—Coordinate efforts to plan, develop, and ultimately construct multi-benefit, flood resiliency and other risk hazard mitigation projects with the Watershed Coalition of Ventura County (WCVC) 3-Watershed Councils, its Disadvantaged Community Committee, and nonprofit partners by increasing outreach and engagement with disadvantaged and socially vulnerable communities and tribal groups to better understand their unique community-lifeline vulnerabilities, facilitate the development of flood hazard mitigation multi-benefit projects, and align and leverage advocacy efforts to optimize grant funding opportunities.								
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	County of Ventura Departments, Cities, Special-Purpose Districts, community and tribal leaders, community councils, WCVC, and NGOs	Medium	VCPWA-WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (BRIC & HMGP) DWR, IRWM, and City and County General Funds as required	Ongoing		
Action VCPWA-WP-15—Complete construction of the SCR-3 Levee Rehab Project consisting of 2400 linear feet of flood protection beginning from the east end of Reach 3 and ending north of the Union Pacific Railroad embankment. The flood protection consists of earthen levee embankment, sheet pile, reinforced concrete floodwalls, floodgate, rock riprap bank protection, and drainage improvements. When completed, this project will provide flood protection from a 1%-annual chance flood event to over 3,800 structures and nearly 6,400 residents of North Oxnard along the South Bank of the Santa Clara River.								
<u>Hazards Mitigate</u>	e <u>d:</u> Dam Failure, Ea	arthquake, Flood	d, Landslide, Sea Level Ris	se, Severe S	Storm, Severe Weather, and Tsuna	imi		
New & Existing	1, 2, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 16, 18, 19	VCPWA-WP	Ventura County Departments and City of Oxnard	High	VCPWA-WP Structural Revenues augmented by FEMA Grants (HMGP) DWR (Coastal Watershed Flood Risk Reduction and LLAP), and City and County General Funds as required	Short-Term		
Action VCPWA-WP-16—Continue to participate in the National Weather Service's (NWS) StormReady and TsunamiReady Programs.								
Hazards Mitigated: Severe Storms, Severe Weather, Tsunami, Flood, Dam Failure, Landslide, Sea Level Rise								
New & Existing	1, 2, 7, 8, 17	Ventura County Public Works	Ventura County Sheriff's OES	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		
a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date								

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 24-13. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	17	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes-only at a level that is "Minimally Necessary to Comply"	Medium	Medium
2	16	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
3	14	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes-only at a level that is "Minimally Necessary to Comply"	Medium	Medium
4	8	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes-only at a level that is "Minimally Necessary to Comply"	Medium	Medium
5	12	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
6	12	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium

Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
7	12	Medium	High	Yes	Yes	Maintaining Class 5-CRS Rating: Yes. Reducing Severe Repetitive Loss Property Exposure: No.	Low	Medium
8	13	High	High	Yes	Yes	Establishing Partnerships with NGOs: Yes Acquiring flood plain properties, carrying out restoration projects, and including green design elements: No	Low	Medium
9	12	High	High	Yes	Yes	Advance planning and feasibility analysis: Yes. Perform Final Design and Construction: No	Medium	High
10	13	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Coordination with FEMA: Yes. New Hazard Mitigation Project Planning and Execution: No	Medium	Medium
11	8	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Coordination with FEMA, DWR, and DSOD: Yes Emergency Action Plan Refinements: No	Medium	High
12	15	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
13	11	High	High	Yes	Yes	Collaboration with City of Oxnard: Yes. OBRAP Flood Mitigation Project Design and Implementation Actions: No	Medium	High
14	14	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Coordination efforts with WCVC, its DAC, and NGOs: Yes. Flood Mitigation Project Design and Implementation Actions: No	Medium	High
15	12	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes. Project has received \$5 Million in grant awards from FEMA and DWR, which will augment VCPWA-WP's Zone 2 project funding	High	Low
16	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Low
a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.								

			Table 24-14	Analysis of	Mitigation A	ctions		
	Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a							
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building
High-Risk Hazards								
Dam Failure	VCPWA-WP- 11	VCPWA- WP-7	VCPWA-WP- 1, 2, 16	VCPWA-WP 8, 13	VCPWA-WP- 4, 11	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6, 12, 15	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6, 8	VCPWA-WP-1, 2, 3, 14, 16
Severe Storms	VCPWA-WP- 10, 11	VCPWA- WP-7	VCPWA-WP- 1, 2, 4, 16	VCPWA-WP 8, 9, 13	VCPWA-WP- 4, 11	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6, 12, 13, 15	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6, 8	VCPWA-WP-1, 2, 3, 10, 14, 16
Severe Weather	VCPWA-WP- 10, 11	VCPWA- WP-7	VCPWA-WP- 1, 2, 4, 16	VCPWA-WP 8, 9, 13	VCPWA-WP- 4, 11	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6, 12, 13, 15	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6, 8	VCPWA-WP-1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 10, 14, 16
Flooding	VCPWA-WP- 10, 11	VCPWA- WP-7	VCPWA-WP- 1, 2, 4, 16	VCPWA-WP 8, 9, 13	VCPWA-WP- 4, 11	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6, 12, 13, 15	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6, 8, 12	VCPWA-WP-1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 10, 14, 16
Medium-Risl	< Hazards							
Earthquake	VCPWA-WP- 11		VCPWA-WP- 1, 2		VCPWA-WP- 11	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6	VCPWA-WP 12	VCPWA-WP-1, 2, 3
Wildfire			VCPWA-WP- 1	VCPWA-WP 8				VCPWA-WP-1, 2, 3
Landslides			VCPWA-WP- 1, 2, 4, 16	VCPWA-WP 8	VCPWA-WP- 4	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6		VCPWA-WP-1, 2, 3, 4, 16
Low-Risk Hazards								
Sea Level Rise	VCPWA-WP- 10	VCPWA- WP-7	VCPWA-WP- 1, 2, 4, 16	VCPWA-WP 8, 9, 13	VCPWA-WP- 4	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6, 13, 15	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6, 8	VCPWA-WP-1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 10, 14, 16
Tsunami		VCPWA- WP-7	VCPWA-WP- 1, 2, 4, 16	VCPWA-WP 8, 13	VCPWA-WP- 4	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6, 13, 15		VCPWA-WP-1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 14, 16
Drought			VCPWA-WP- 1, 2	VCPWA-WP 8, 9, 13		VCPWA-WP- 12, 13	VCPWA-WP- 5, 6, 8	VCPWA-WP-1, 2, 3, 14
<u> </u>								

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

24.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 24-15 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 24-15. Local Public Outreach							
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved					
Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 2020 Progress Report to Ventura County Board of Supervisors	7-28-20	Annual Report Approved without express Board or Public Comments during Board's Adoption of Consent Agenda Items for this Remote Zoom Meeting					
Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 2021 Progress Report to Ventura County Board of Supervisors	7-21-21	Annual Report Approved without express Board or Public Comments during Board's Adoption of Consent Agenda Items for this Remote Zoom Meeting					
Ventura County Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services' Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan Development Public Outreach/Emergency Preparedness Workshops Planned During Month of September 2021	9-15-21 9-16-21 9-22-21 9-23-21	Unknown					
24.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- Ventura County 2040 General Plan: Evaluated Plan Implementation Actions under the following Plan Elements: (a) Public Facilities, Services, and Infrastructure, (b) Conservation and Open Space, (c) Hazards and Safety, (d) Water Resources, (e) Economic Vitality, (f) Unincorporated Communities' Area Plans, and (g) Appendix B: Climate Change which helped Watershed Protection perform its capability assessment and frame the development of its Hazard Mitigation Plan Action Items with more granular-precision and purposeful-effect.
- VCPWA-WP's Integrated Watershed Protection Plan Project Prioritization Process: Explored possible opportunities to better integrate the development of multi-benefit flood protection project partnerships with public and private sector agencies and organizations aimed at improving community resiliency to flood hazard risk, flood plain management, groundwater conservation, stormwater capture, environmental protection, and helping to secure a sustainable water supply for agricultural and urban users.
- VCPWA-WP 5-Year Capital Improvement Projects Plan, Annual Update: Confirmed inclusion of flood protection projects in VCPWA-WP's current 5-year portfolio which address a mix of high, medium, and low hazard risks found in VCPWA-WP's current Jurisdiction Annex, keying-up those projects as entries in VCPWA-WP's new 5-year Action Plan portfolio, including seven levee rehabilitation projects which when completed will ultimately result in local compliance with Federal Levee Certification regulations found in 44CFR 65.10.
- Ventura County Flood Mitigation and Safety Plans: Consulted current plan documents to identify opportunities of alignment and optimization of VCPWA-WP's new 5-Year Action Plan submittal with the baseline framework found in these historical County flood mitigation and safety plan documents.
- VCPWA-WP's Preparation of Annual Recertifications and Cycle Verification of Class V Rating for Unincorporated Ventura County under FEMA's Community Rating System Program: Consulted the current Class 5 Rating program performance and reporting requirements to ensure continuation of this rating, as well as identified opportunities for renewed emphasis on the planning and implementation of flood mitigation projects for repetitive loss properties eligible for grant funding under FEMA's Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) program with the goal of reducing the number of repetitive loss properties in Ventura County.
- Ventura County Emergency Services Planning Documents: Reviewed emergency services planning documents prepared by the Ventura County Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services to gain a better understanding of how best to facilitate appropriate development of VCPWA-WP's new 5-year Action Plan submittal by complementing and supplementing countywide risk hazard emergency planning rubric defined by County's Emergency Action Plan, as well as refine Emergency Action Plans for the state-sized dams owned by the County.
- Ventura County Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (IRWMP) Updates and DAC Public Outreach Engagement Initiative:: Explored framing potential opportunities to better coordinate joint efforts to plan, develop, and ultimately construct multi-benefit, flood resiliency and other risk hazard mitigation projects contained in VCPWA-WP's new 5-Year Action Plan submittal by increasing outreach and engagement with disadvantaged and socially vulnerable communities and tribal groups to better understand their unique community-lifeline

vulnerabilities, facilitate the development of flood hazard mitigation multi-benefit projects, and align and leverage advocacy efforts to optimize grant funding opportunities.

 Watershed Management Program (WMP) for Ventura County including Ventura River, Calleguas Creek, Santa Clara River, upper Malibu Creek, and Coastal Watersheds of Ventura County due to Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (Region 4) by September 11, 2023 to meet compliance with 2021 Regional Municipal Stormwater (MS4) National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit Order No. CAS004004, Order No. R4-2021-0105. The Ventura County WMP will be developed by the County, Watershed Protection, and ten incorporated cities.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

25. VENTURA REGIONAL SANITATION DISTRICT

25.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Tina Rivera, Director of Finance 1001 Partridge Dr., Suite 150 Ventura, California 93003 Telephone: 805-658-4646 e-mail Address: tinarivera@vrsd.com

Alternate Point of Contact

Chris Theisen, General Manager 1001 Partridge Dr., Suite 150 Ventura, California 93003 Telephone: 805-658-4644 e-mail Address: christheisen@vrsd.com

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 25-1.

Table 25-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members				
Name	Title			
Sandy Warren (through 6-30-21)	Management Analyst			
Tina Rivera	Director of Finance			
Eddie Pettit	Senior Engineer			
Jo Cavanaugh	Safety Officer			
Richard Jones	Director of Operations			

25.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

25.2.1 Overview

The Ventura Regional Sanitation District (VRSD) is a special district created in 1970 to provide sanitation services to cities and unincorporated areas of Ventura County. The District provides solid waste disposal services via the Toland Road Landfill and also offers a variety of water and wastewaterrelated services under contract to selected special districts and private entities. A nine-member appointed Board of Directors oversees the District. VRSD has approximately 60 employees. The District's operations are funded solely by fees for the services it provides.

The VRSD Board of Directors assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the Executive General Manager will oversee its implementation.

25.2.2 Service Area

The District service area covers approximately 200 square miles, serving a population of approximately 600,000 in the cities of Camarillo, Fillmore, Ojai, Oxnard, Port Hueneme, Santa Paula, Thousand Oaks, and Ventura, as well as unincorporated County areas.

25.2.3 Assets

Table 25-2 summarizes the assets of the District and their value.

Table 25-2. Special-Purpose District Assets					
Asset	Value				
Property					
449 acres of land	(unknown)				
Equipment					
Landfill & water/wastewater operations equipment	\$9,121,492				
Landfill gas above-ground pipework	\$825,000				
Landfill liner	\$1,500,000				
Total:	\$11,446,492				
Critical Facilities					
Toland Road Landfill (active) 3500 Toland Road, Santa Paula, CA 93060	\$2,627,200				
Bailard Landfill (inactive) 4105 W. Gonzales Road, Oxnard, CA 93030	\$943,800				
Malibu Bay Club (Wastewater Treatment Plant) 4100 Pacific Coast Highway, Malibu CA 90265	\$3,587,976				
Total:	\$7,158,976				

25.3 CURRENT TRENDS

From 1970 to 2019, Ventura County's population grew from approximately 370,000 to 846,000, an overall increase of approximately 128 percent. VRSD expanded its solid waste disposal capacity over the years to keep pace with projected needs. In March 2021, VRSD received approval from the Ventura County Board of Supervisors to proceed with the Toland Optimization Plan, which removes the prior mandated 2027 landfill closure date, eliminates the lifetime limit of 15 million tons, and allows for the landfill to be filled to the 1,435-foot elevation approved in 1996. The landfill will be able to keep pace with any population growth.

25.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- Table 25-3 presents an assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities
- Table 25-4 presents an assessment of fiscal capabilities
- Table 25-5 presents an assessment of administrative and technical capabilities
- Table 25-6 presents an assessment of education and outreach capabilities
- Table 25-7 presents classifications under various community mitigation programs
- Table 25-8 Presents the community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change

Table 25-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability

	0	0	· ·	
Plan, Study or Program				Date of Most Recent Update
Joint Technical Document				5/21
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan				9/20
Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasure Plan				9/20
Hazardous Materials Business Plan				3/21

Table 25-4. Fiscal Capability				
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?			
Community Development Block Grants	No			
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes			
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	No			
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes			
If yes, specify: Landfill Disposal Services				
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	No			
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	No			
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No			
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No			
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes			
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	No			

Table 25-5. Administrative and Technical Capability				
Staff/Personnel Resource	Available?			
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position: Director Of Operations, Senior Engineer				
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices	No			
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position: Director of Operations, Senior Engineer				
Staff with training in benefit/cost analysis				
If Yes, Department /Position: Director of Finance				
Surveyors	No			
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS applications				
Scientist familiar with natural hazards in local area				
Emergency manager	Yes			
If Yes, Department /Position: Safety Officer				
Grant writers	No			

Table 25-6. Education and Outreach Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	No			
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	No			
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website?	No			
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach?	No			
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?	No			
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? If yes, briefly describe: Hazardous Materials Business Plan / Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasure Plan				
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe: Listed in the Hazardous Materials Business Plan and included in training	Yes			

Table 25-7. Community Classifications					
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified		
FIPS Code	No	N/A	N/A		
DUNS#	Yes	030382014	N/A		
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A		
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A		
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A		
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A		
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A		
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A		

Table 25-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	High
Comment: Participate in GHG study sponsored by NASA and the California Air Resources Board	
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	High
Comment: Required to monitor GHG at active and closed landfills	
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	High
Comment: Work with several landfill gas consultants and state and federal agencies to reduce GHG emissions at c	our sites
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	High
Comment: Required to monitor and report GHG generation at active and closed landfills	
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	High
Comment: Increase in annual budget in order to upgrade systems to reduce climate impacts	
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	High
Comment: Participate in statewide study of GHG sponsored by NASA and the California Air Resources Board	
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	High
Comment: We are required by District rule and regulation to reduce impacts to the environment	
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	High
Comment: Required to monitor and report GHG generation at active and closed landfills	

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Medium
Comment: Provide health & safety cooling stations for employees	1
Champions for climate action in local government departments	Low
Comment: Our scope of authority is specific as defined by state legislation.	
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Low
Comment: Our scope of authority is specific as defined by state legislation.	1
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	Low
Comment: Our scope of authority is specific as defined by state legislation.	
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Low
Comment: Our scope of authority is specific as defined by state legislation.	
Public Capacity	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Low
Comment: Our scope of authority is specific as defined by state legislation.	
Local residents' support of adaptation efforts	Low
Comment: Our scope of authority is specific as defined by state legislation.	
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: Our scope of authority is specific as defined by state legislation.	
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: Our scope of authority is specific as defined by state legislation.	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment: Our scope of authority is specific as defined by state legislation.	

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement;

Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

25.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

25.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- Joint Technical Document—Planning and control document for landfill operations and maintenance
- Stormwater Pollution Prevention plan—This program is how stormwater and run off are handled at the landfill
- Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasure Plan

Hazzard Materials Business Plan—this plan defines and establishes location of all hazard materials at VRSD facilities

25.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- **Capital Improvement Projects**—Capital improvement project proposals may take into consideration hazard mitigation potential as a means of evaluating project prioritization.
- **Post-Disaster Recovery Plan**—The District does not have a recovery plan and intends to develop one as a mitigation planning action during the next five years. The plan will build on the mitigation goals and objectives identified in the mitigation plan.

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan in this annex.

25.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

25.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 25-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 25-9. Past Natural Hazard Events							
Type of Event FEMA Disaster # Date Damage Assessment							
Covid- 19	DR-4482	1/20/21	\$116,525				
Easy Fire	FM-5298	10/30/2019	\$2,196,235				
Thomas Fire	FM-5224	December 4, 2017	\$1,732,810				

25.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 25-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and district operations. Mitigation actions primarily target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 25-10. Hazard Risk Ranking							
Rank	Rank Hazard Risk Ranking Score Risk Category						
1	Wildfire	36	High				
2	Landslide	33	High				
3	Earthquake	32	Medium				
4	Severe Storm	24	Medium				
4	Severe Weather	24	Medium				
6	Dam Failure	24	Medium				
7	Flooding	18	Medium				
8	Sea Level Rise	12	Medium				
9	Tsunami	10	Low				
10	Drought	9	Low				

25.6.3 Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Underground Fires.
- Wind Storms—often halts operations and spreads debris which requires additional labor to clean-up

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan in this annex.

25.7 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 25-11 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 25-12 identifies the priority for each action. Table 25-13 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 25-11. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix							
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action VRS-1-W	here appropriate, suppo	ort retrofitting, purch	ase or relocation of s	structures locat	ed in hazard areas, prioritizin	g those that	
have experienced i	repetitive losses and/or	are located in high-	or medium-risk haza	ard areas.			
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Flooding	g, Landslide, Severe	e Weather, Wildfire, S	Severe Storms,	Dam Failure		
Existing	2, 6, 9, 11	VRSD		High	Grant Funding- FEMA HMA (BRIC, FMA, HMGP)	Short-term	
Action VRS-2—Ac	tively participate in the	plan maintenance p	protocols outlined in \	/olume 1 of this	s hazard mitigation plan.		
Hazards Mitigated: Earthquake, Flooding, Landslide, Severe Weather, Tsunami, Wildfire, Severe Storms, Dam Failure, Drought, Sea Level Rise							
New & Existing	1, 4, 6, 8, 19	VRSD		Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term	

			1		1			
Benefits New or				Estimated				
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a		
Action VRS-3—Pu	Action VRS-3—Purchase generators for critical facilities and infrastructure that lack adequate backup power, including Landfill gas							
extraction and Flar	es							
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Flooding	g, Landslide, Severe	e Weather, Tsunami,	Wildfire, Seve	re Storms, Dam Failure			
Existing	2, 6, 7	VRSD		Medium	Staff Time, Grant Funding-	Long-term		
					FEMA HMA (BRIC, HMGP)			
Action VRS-4—De	evelop a post disaster a	ction plan that inclu	des grant funding, de	ebris removal c	components, and warehousing	of critical		
infrastructure comp	onents							
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthguake, Flooding	, Landslide, Severe	e Weather, Tsunami,	Wildfire, Seve	re Storms, Dam Failure			
Existing/Future	2, 8, 19	VRSD		Medium	Staff Time, General Funds,	Long-		
5					Grant Funding- FEMA HMA	Term		
					(BRIC, FMA, HMGP)			
Action VRS-5—Cr	eate/implement wildfire	preparedness plan	with emphasis on de	efensible space	and access issues			
Hazards Mitigated	Wildfire	propurounoso plan						
Existing	5 11 1/ 17 10	VRSD		Medium	Staff Time General Funds	Short-term		
Existing	$J_1 I_1 I_1 I_1 I_1 I_1$	VINSD		weatan	Grant Funding, FEMA HMA	Short-term		
					(BRIC EMAP and HMGP)			
Action VDS 6 Sk	ono stabilization and dr	ninado control fostu	iroc around water rec	onvoire				
ACLIVIT VRS-0-51	Upe stabilization and un	alliage control leatu	Noothor Wildfire C	ervors Storma				
Hazaros Miligaleo:	Earinquake, Flooding	J, Landslide, Severe	e vveatner, vviidiire, S	severe Storms		A 1		
Existing	5, 9, 11, 14	VRSD		High	Staff Time, General Funds,	Ongoing		
					Grant Funding- FEMA HMA			
					(BRIC, FMA, HMGP)			
a. Short-term = C	completion within 5 year	s; Long-term = Cor	npletion within 10 yea	ars; Ongoing=	Continuing new or existing pro	ogram with		
no completion date								
· · · ·								

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 25-12. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
2	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	No	High	Low
3	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
4	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium
5	5	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	Medium
6	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	High
-								

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 25-13. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
	Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a							
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building ^b
High-Risk Hazards								
Wildfire		VRS-1, 5	VRS-2	VRS-5, 6	VRS-2, 5, 6	VRS-6	VRS-5	VRS-2, 4
Landslide		VRS-1	VRS-2	VRS-6	VRS-2, 6	VRS-6		VRS-2, 4
Medium-Risk Hazard	s							
Earthquake		VRS-1	VRS-2	VRS-6	VRS-2	VRS-6		VRS-2, 4
Severe Storm		VRS-1	VRS-2	VRS-6	VRS-2	VRS-6		VRS-2, 4
Severe Weather		VRS-1	VRS-2	VRS-	VRS-2	VRS-6		VRS-2, 4
Dam Failure		VRS-1	VRS-2	VRS-6	VRS-2	VRS-6		VRS-2, 4
Flooding		VRS-1	VRS-2	VRS-6	VRS-2	VRS-6		VRS-2, 4
Sea Level Rise		VRS-1	VRS-2					VRS-2
Low-Risk Hazards								
Tsunami		VRS-1	VRS-2		VRS-2			VRS-2, 4
Drought		VRS-1	VRS-2					VRS-2

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

b. Note that the jurisdiction did not identify a need for expansion of administrative and technical or financial capabilities, based on existing capabilities. The intent of this hazard mitigation plan is to expand the financial capability of the jurisdiction.

25.8 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- Joint Technical Document—Used to inform the capability assessment.
- Title V Reports—Used to inform the capability assessment.
- Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan—Used to inform the capability assessment.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

Ventura County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan

Appendix A. Planning Partner Expectations

A. PLANNING PARTNER EXPECTATIONS

The federal Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) of 2000 (Public Law 106-390), commonly known as the 2000 Stafford Act amendments, was approved by Congress on October 10, 2000. This act required state and local governments to develop hazard mitigation plans as a condition for federal grant assistance. Among other things, this legislation reinforces the importance of pre-disaster infrastructure mitigation planning to reduce disaster losses nationwide. DMA 2000 is aimed primarily at the control and streamlining of the administration of federal disaster relief and programs to promote mitigation activities. Prior to 2000, federal legislation provided funding for disaster relief, recovery, and some hazard mitigation planning. The DMA improves upon the planning process by emphasizing the importance of communities planning for disasters before they occur.

The Disaster Mitigation Act defines a "local government" as:

Any county, municipality, city, town, public authority, school district, special district, intrastate district, council of governments (regardless of whether the council of governments is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under State law), regional or interstate government entity, or agency or instrumentality of a local government; any Indian tribe or authorized tribal organization, or Alaska Native village or organization; and any rural community, unincorporated town or village, or other public entity

Any local government wishing to pursue funding afforded under FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Programs must have an approved hazard mitigation plan in order to be eligible to apply for these funds.

One of the goals of the multi-jurisdictional approach to hazard mitigation planning is to achieve compliance with the Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) for all participating members in the planning effort. DMA compliance must be certified for each member in order to maintain eligibility for the benefits under the DMA. Whether the planning process generates ten individual plans or one large plan that has a chapter for each partner jurisdiction, the following items must be addressed by each planning partner to achieve DMA compliance:

- **Participate in the Process.** It must be documented in the plan that each planning partner "participated" in the process that generated the plan. Participation can vary based on the type of planning partner (i.e.: City vs. a Special-Purpose District). However, the level of participation must be defined and the extent for which this level of participation has been met for each partner must be contained in the plan context.
- **Consistency Review.** Review of existing documents pertinent to each jurisdiction to identify policies or recommendations that are not consistent with those documents reviewed in producing the "parent" plan or have policies and recommendations that complement the hazard mitigation initiatives selected (i.e.: comp plans, basin plans or hazard-specific plans).

- Action Review. For plan updates, a review of the strategies from your prior action plan to determine those that have been accomplished and how they were accomplished; and why those that have not been accomplished were not completed.
- **Update Localized Risk Assessment.** Personalize the Risk Assessment for each jurisdiction by removing any hazards not associated with the defined jurisdictional area (e.g. tsunami and coastal erosion hazards for inland jurisdictions) or redefining vulnerability based on a hazard's impact to a jurisdiction. This phase will include:
 - > A ranking of the risk
 - > A description of the number and type of structures at risk
 - > An estimate of the potential dollar losses to vulnerable structures
 - A general description of land uses and development trends within the community, so that mitigation options can be considered in future land use decisions.
- **Capability Assessment.** Each planning partner must identify and review their individual regulatory, technical, and financial capabilities with regards to the implementation of hazard mitigation actions.
- **Prioritize Mitigation Recommendations.** Identify and prioritize mitigation recommendations specific to each jurisdiction's defined area.
- Create an Action Plan.
- **Incorporate Public Participation.** Each jurisdiction must present the Plan to the public for comment at least once, within two weeks prior to adoption.
- **Plan Adoption.** The updated plan must be adopted by each jurisdiction following FEMA approval.

One of the benefits to multi-jurisdictional planning is the ability to pool resources. This means more than monetary resources. Resources such as staff time, meeting locations, media resources, technical expertise will all need to be utilized to generate a successful plan. In addition, these resources can be pooled such that decisions can be made by a peer group applying to the whole and thus reducing the individual level of effort of each planning partner. This will be accomplished by the formation of a steering committee made up of planning partners and other "stakeholders" within the planning area. The size and makeup of this steering committee will be determined by the planning partnership. This body will assume the decision-making responsibilities on behalf of the entire partnership. This will streamline the planning process by reducing the number of meetings that will need to be attended by each planning partner. The assembled Steering Committee for this effort will meet monthly on an as needed basis as determined by the planning team, and will provide guidance and decision making during all phases of the plan's development.

With the above participation requirements in mind, each partner is expected to aid this process by being prepared to develop its section of the plan. To be an eligible planning partner in this effort, each planning partner shall provide the following:

- A. *If you haven't already submitted* a "Letter of Intent (LOI) to participate" or Resolution to participate (see Exhibit A); you must submit an LOI.
- B. Designate a lead and alternate points of contact for this effort. The lead will be listed as the hazard mitigation point of contact for your jurisdiction in the plan.

- C. If requested, provide support in the form of a mailing list and public information materials, such as newsletters, newspapers, or direct mailed brochures, required to implement the public engagement strategy developed by the Steering Committee.
- D. Participate in the entire process (from first partner meeting to plan completion). There will be many ways as this plan evolves to participate. Opportunities such as:
 - a. Attending online Steering Committee meetings
 - b. Attending online public meetings
 - c. Completing the phased Jurisdiction Annex Process
 - d. Participating in public review and comment periods prior to adoption

At each of these meetings, attendance will be recorded. Attendance records will be used to document participation for each planning partner. No thresholds will be established as minimum levels of participation. However, each planning partner should attempt to attend all possible meetings and events.

- E. Designate a Local Planning Team. Each planning partner will be asked to identify a lead point of contact and an alternate point of contact for their jurisdiction as well as other resources within that jurisdiction that can support or enhance the mitigation actions from this plan. For municipal planning partners, participants should include, at a minimum, representation from Planning, Public Works and Emergency Management. For Special Purpose Districts, participants should include anyone responsible for facilities management and/or emergency management. All phases of the Jurisdictional Annex process should be conducted through these local planning teams.
- F. Complete all 3 phases of the Jurisdictional Annex process. Volume 2 of the plan consists of jurisdictional specific components of the plan required under section 2016, 44CFR for multi-jurisdictional local hazard mitigation plans. It is mission-critical to the ultimate approval of this plan update that these annexes are created or updated in accordance with the requirements. To achieve this compliance, the Core Planning Team (CPT) will deploy the Jurisdictional Annex process in the following 3 phases over the course of this plan update process:
 - Phase 1 Jurisdiction Profiles and Prior Action Review
 - Phase 2 Core Capability Assessment
 - Phase 3 Risk Ranking and Action Plan Development

Complete and thorough technical assistance will be available to all planning partners during this phased process. Phase 1 will be deployed in May 2021 with specified deadlines, and the response to each phase by the Planning Partnership will be aggregated by the CPT.

Failure to meet deadlines specified for Phases 1 and 2 will not jeopardize and planning partner's eligibility for coverage under the plan. However, it is important to note that, if a planning partner does not meet the deadline for Phase 1, it is expected that the information submitted during Phase 2 will include all of the information requested under Phases 1 and 2. The ultimate deadline for this phased process will be the deadline for Phase 3.

Failure to submit a complete Jurisdictional Annex by the specified deadline for Phase 3 will result in a planning partner's removal from the Partnership for failure to meet the specified planning partner expectations.

Phase 3 will include a mandatory workshop that will focus on action plan development and prioritization. Attendance at the Phase 3 workshop will be tracked, and each planning partner must send at least one representative to the workshop to fully meet the participation requirements defined for this plan update process.

At a minimum, two workshops will be conducted - one for municipal planning partners and one for special district planning partners to provide guidance on action plan development specific to the differing capabilities between these two planning partner types.

- G. Each partner will be asked to perform a "consistency review" of all technical studies, plans, ordinances specific to hazards to determine the existence of any not consistent with the same such documents reviewed in the preparation of the County (parent) Plan. For example, if your community has a floodplain management plan that makes recommendations that are not consistent with any of the County's Basin Plans, that plan will need to be reviewed for probable incorporation into the plan for your area.
- H. Each partner will be asked to review the Risk Assessment and identify hazards and vulnerabilities specific to its jurisdiction. Contract resources will provide the jurisdiction-specific mapping and technical consultation to aid in this task, but the determination of risk and vulnerability will be up to each partner.
- I. Each partner will be asked to review and determine if the mitigation recommendations chosen in the parent plan will meet the needs of its jurisdiction. Projects within each jurisdiction consistent with the parent plan recommendations will need to be identified, prioritized, and reviewed to determine their benefits vs. costs.
- J. Each partner will be required to create its own action plan that identifies each project, who will oversee the task, how it will be financed, and when it is estimated to occur.
- K. Each partner will be required to formally adopt the plan.

Templates and instructions to aid in the compilation of this information will be provided to all committed planning partners. Each partner will be asked to complete their templates in a timely manner and according to the timeline specified.

NOTE: Once this plan is completed, and DMA compliance has been determined for each partner, maintaining that eligibility will be dependent upon each partner implementing the plan implementation-maintenance protocol identified in the plan.

Exhibit A				
Planning Team Contact information				

Name	Representing	Address	e-mail
Bonnie Luke	Ventura County Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services	800 South Victoria Avenue Ventura, CA 93009	BonnieK.Luke@ventura.org
Kathy Gibson	Ventura County Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services	800 South Victoria Avenue Ventura, CA 93009	kathy.gibson@ventura.org
Patrick Maynard	Ventura County Sheriff's Office of Emergency Services	800 South Victoria Avenue Ventura, CA 93009	patrick.maynard@ventura.org
Glenn Shephard	Ventura County Public Works Agency Watershed Protection	800 South Victoria Avenue Ventura, CA 93009	glenn.shephard@ventura.org
Gerard Kapuscik	Ventura County Public Works Agency Watershed Protection	800 South Victoria Avenue Ventura, CA 93009	gerard.kapuscik@ventura.org
Ruth Venus	Ventura County Information Technology Services	1957 Eastman Avenue Ventura, CA 93003	Ruth.Venus@ventura.org
Cole McLaughlin	Ventura County Information Technology Services	1957 Eastman Avenue Ventura, CA 93003	cole.mclaughlin@ventura.org
Richard Paschal	Ventura County Information Technology Services	1957 Eastman Avenue Ventura, CA 93003	Richard.Paschal@ventura.org
Ashley Bautista	Ventura County CEO	800 South Victoria Avenue Ventura, CA 93009	ashley.bautista@ventura.org
Jackie Nuñez	Ventura County CEO	800 South Victoria Avenue Ventura, CA 93009	jackie.nunez@ventura.org
Rob Flaner	Tetra Tech, Inc.	90 S. Blackwood Ave Eagle, ID 83616	rob.flaner@tetratech.com
Megan Brotherton	Tetra Tech, Inc.	737 Bishop Street, Suite 2340 Honolulu, HI 96813	megan.brotherton@tetratech.com
Carol Bauman	Tetra Tech, Inc.		carol.bauman@tetratech.com

Exhibit C. Overview of Hazus

Overview of Hazus (Multi-Hazard)

Hazus, is a nationally applicable standardized methodology and software program that contains models for estimating potential losses from earthquakes, floods, tsunamis, and hurricane winds. Hazus was developed by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) under contract with the National Institute of Building Sciences (NIBS). NIBS maintains committees of wind, flood, earthquake and software experts to provide technical oversight and guidance to Hazus development. Loss estimates produced by Hazus are based on current scientific and engineering knowledge of



the effects of hurricane winds, floods, and earthquakes. Estimating losses is essential to decisionmaking at all levels of government, providing a basis for developing mitigation plans and policies, emergency preparedness, and response and recovery planning.



Hazus uses state-of-theart geographic information system (GIS) software to map and display hazard data and the results of damage and economic loss estimates for buildings and infrastructure. It also allows users to estimate the impacts of hurricane winds, floods, tsunamis, and earthquakes on populations. The latest release, Hazus 4.0, is an updated version of Hazus that incorporates many new features which improve both the speed and functionality of the models. For information on

software and hardware requirements to run Hazus 4.0, see Hazus Hardware and Software Requirements.

Hazus Analysis Levels

Hazus provides for three levels of analysis:

 A Level 1 analysis yields a rough estimate based on the nationwide database and is a great way to begin the risk assessment process and prioritize high-risk communities.

- A Level 2 analysis requires the input of additional or refined data and hazard maps that will
 produce more accurate risk and loss estimates. Assistance from local emergency management
 personnel, city planners, GIS professionals, and others may be necessary for this level of
 analysis.
- A Level 3 analysis yields the most accurate estimate of loss and typically requires the involvement of technical experts such as structural and geotechnical engineers who can modify loss parameters based on to the specific conditions of a community. This level analysis will allow users to supply their own techniques to study special conditions such as dam breaks and tsunamis. Engineering and other expertise is needed at this level.

Three data input tools have been developed to support data collection. The Comprehensive Data Management System helps users collect and manage local building data for more refined analyses than are possible with the national level data sets that come with Hazus. The system has expanded capabilities for multi-hazard data collection. Hazus includes an enhanced Building Inventory Tool allows users to import building data and is most useful when handling large datasets, such as tax assessor records. The Flood Information Tool helps users manipulate flood data into the format required by the Hazus flood model. All Three tools are included in the Hazus MR1 Application DVD.

Hazus Models

The Hazus Hurricane Wind Model gives users in the Atlantic and Gulf Coast regions and Hawaii the ability to estimate potential damage and loss to residential, commercial, and industrial buildings. It also allows users to estimate direct economic loss, post-storm shelter needs and building debris. In the future, the model will include the capability to estimate wind effects in island territories, storm surge, indirect economic losses, casualties, and impacts to utility and transportation lifelines and agriculture. Loss models for other severe wind hazards will be included in the future. Details about the Hurricane Wind Model.

The Hazus Flood Model is capable of assessing riverine and coastal flooding. It estimates potential damage to all classes of buildings, essential facilities, transportation and utility lifelines, vehicles, and agricultural crops. The model addresses building debris generation and shelter requirements. Direct losses are estimated based on physical damage to structures, contents, and building interiors. The effects of flood warning are taken into account, as are flow velocity effects. Details about the Flood Model.

The Hazus Earthquake Model, The Hazus earthquake model provides loss estimates of damage and loss to buildings, essential facilities, transportation and utility lifelines, and population based on scenario or probabilistic earthquakes. The model addresses debris generation, fire-following, casualties,



and shelter requirements. Direct losses are estimated based on physical damage to structures, contents, inventory, and building interiors. The earthquake model also includes the Advanced

Engineering Building Module for single- and group-building mitigation analysis. Details about the Earthquake Model.

The Hazus Tsunami Model represents the first new disaster module for the Hazus software in almost 15 years and is the culmination of work completed on the Hazus Tsunami Methodology Development (FEMA, 2013) by a team of tsunami experts, engineers, modelers, emergency planners, economists, social scientists, geographic information system (GIS) analysts, and software developers. A Tsunami Oversight Committee provided technical direction and review of the methodology development. New features with the model include:

- Territory Analysis: This release represents the first time that analysis will be available for U.S. territories (Guam, American Samoa, Commonwealth of Northern Mariana Islands and U.S. Virgin Islands).
- New Point Format: The Hazus General Building Stock for the Tsunami release will use a new National Structure Inventory point format (details in User Release Notes available with download).
- Case Studies: The Tsunami Module will require user-provided data, so the Hazus Team has provided five case study datasets for users, which will be available on the MSC download site.
- Two Types of Damage Analysis: Users will be able to run both near-source (Earthquake + Tsunami) and distant-source (Tsunami only) damage analysis.

Additionally, Hazus can perform multi-hazard analysis by providing access to the average annualized loss and probabilistic results from the hurricane wind, flood, and earthquake models and combining them to provide integrated multi-hazard reports and graphs. Hazus also contains a third-party model integration capability that provides access and operational capability to a wide range of natural, manmade, and technological hazard models (nuclear and conventional blast, radiological, chemical, and biological) that will supplement the natural hazard loss estimation capability (hurricane wind, flood, tsunami and earthquake) in Hazus. Ventura County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan

Appendix B. Annex Instructions and Templates

Appendix B.1

Instructions and Templates for Municipality Annexes

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING CITY/COUNTY ANNEX TEMPLATE

Jurisdictional annex templates for the 2022 Ventura County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan update will be completed in three phases. This document provides instructions for completing all phases of the template for cities and counties.

The target timeline for completion is as follows:

- Phase 1—Team, Profile, Trends, and Previous Plan Status
 - > Deploy: May 10, 2021
 - Due: June 21, 2021 by close of business
- Phase 2—Capability Assessment, Integration Review, and Information Sources
 - > **Deploy:** July 6, 2021
 - Due: August 20, 2021 by close of business
- **Phase 3**—Risk Assessment, Action Plan, Information Sources, Future Needs, and Additional Comments
 - > **Deploy:** September 9, 2021
 - Mandatory Phase 3 Workshop: September 22, 2021
 - Due: October 25, 2021 by close of business, Pacific Time. No due date extensions!

Please direct any questions and return your completed Phase 3 template in electronic format to:

Megan Brotherton Tetra Tech Phone: (808) 339-9119 E-mail: *megan.brotherton@tetratech.com*

A Note About Formatting

The template for the annex is a Microsoft Word document in a format that will be used in the final plan. Partners are asked to use this template so that a uniform product will be completed for each partner.

Content should be entered directly into the template rather than creating text in another document and pasting it into the template. Text from another source may alter the formatting of the document.

The section and table numbering in the document will be updated when completed annexes are combined into the final document. Please do not adjust any of the numbering.

For planning partners who participated in the 2015 planning effort, relevant information has been brought over to the 2022 template. Fields that require attention have been highlighted using the following color coding:

- Yellow: Text has been brought over from 2015 Plan and should be reviewed and updated as needed.
- Pink: This is a new field that will require information that was not included in 2015.

Un-highlight each field that you update so that reviewers will know an edit has been made.

New planning partners will need to complete the template in its entirety.

PHASE 1 INSTRUCTIONS

CHAPTER TITLE

In the chapter title at the top of Page 1, type in the complete official name of your municipality (e.g., City of Pleasantville, West County). Do not change the chapter number. Revise only the jurisdiction name. If your jurisdiction's name has already been entered, verify that wording and spelling are correct; revise as needed.

LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Points of Contact

Provide the name, title, mailing address, telephone number, and e-mail address for the primary point of contact for your jurisdiction. This should be the person responsible for monitoring, evaluating and updating the annex for your jurisdiction. This person should also be the principle liaison between your jurisdiction and the Steering Committee overseeing development of this plan.

In addition, designate an alternate point of contact. This would be a person to contact should the primary point of contact be unavailable or no longer employed by the jurisdiction.

Note: Both of these contacts should match the contacts that were designated in your jurisdiction's letter of intent to participate in this planning process. If you have changed the primary or secondary contact, let the planning team know by inserting a comment into the document.

Participating Planning Team

Populate Table 1-1 with the names of staff from your jurisdiction who participated in preparing this annex or otherwise contributed to the planning process for this hazard mitigation plan. Who Should Be on the Local Mitigation Planning Team

The Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team is responsible for developing your jurisdiction's annex to the hazard mitigation plan. Team membership should represent agencies with authority to regulate development and enforce local ordinances or regulatory standards, such as building/fire code enforcement, emergency management, emergency services, floodplain management, parks and recreation, planning/ community development, public information, public works/ engineering, stormwater management, transportation, or infrastructure.

JURISDICTION PROFILE

Provide information specific to your jurisdiction as indicated, in a style similar to the examples provided below. This should be information that will not be provided in the overall mitigation plan document.

Location and Features

Describe the community's location, size and prominent features, in a statement similar to the example below:

EXAMPLE: The City of Jones is in the northwest portion of Smith County, along the Pacific Coast in northern California. It is almost 150 miles northeast of San Francisco. The city's total area is 4.2 square miles, with boundaries generally extending north-south from State Highway 111 to the

Johnson River and east-west from Coast Road to East Frank Avenue. The City of Allen is to the north, unincorporated county is to the west, the City of Bethany is to the south, and the Pacific Ocean is to the west.

Jones is home to the University of Arbor, Bickerson Manufacturing, and the western portion of Soosoo National Park. Significant geographic features include the Watery River, which flows southwest across the city, Lake Splash in the city's northwest corner, and the foothills of the Craggy Mountains on the east side.

History

Describe the community's history, focusing on economy and development, and note its year of incorporation, in a statement similar to the example below:

EXAMPLE: The City of Jones was incorporated in 1858. The area was settled during the gold rush in the 1850s as a supply center for miners. As the gold rush died down, timber and fishing became the area's major economic resources. By 1913, the Jones Teachers College, a predecessor to today's University of Arbor, was founded. Recently, the presence of the college has come to shape Jones' population into a young and educated demographic. In 1981 the City developed the Jones Marsh and Wildlife Sanctuary, an environmentally friendly sewage treatment enhancement system.

With numerous annexations since its original incorporation, the city's area has almost doubled. Today it features a commercial core in the center of the city, with mostly residential areas to the north and south, the university to the west and the national park on the east.

Governing Body Format

Describe the community's key governance elements and staffing, in a statement similar to the example below:

EXAMPLE: The City of Jones is governed by a five-member city council. The City consists of six departments: Finance, Environmental Services, Community Development, Public Works, Police, and the City Manager's Office. The City has 13 commissions and task forces, which report to the City Council. The City currently employs a total of 155 employees (full-time equivalent).

The City Council assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the City Manager will oversee its implementation.

CURRENT TRENDS

Population

Provide the most current population estimate for your jurisdiction based on an official means of tracking (e.g., the U.S. Census or state agency that develops population estimates). Describe the current estimate and recent population trends in a statement similar to the example below.

EXAMPLE: According to California Department of Finance, the population of Jones as of July 2020 was 17,280. Since 2010, the population has grown at an average annual rate of 1.2 percent, though that rate is declining, with an annual average of only 0.8 percent since 2015.

Development

In the highlighted text that says "Describe trends in general," provide a brief description of your jurisdiction's recent development trends in a statement similar to the example below:

EXAMPLE: Anticipated future development for Jones is low to moderate, consisting primarily of residential growth. Recent development has been mostly infill. There has been a focus on affordable housing and a push for more secondary mother-in-law units. Future growth in the City will be managed as identified in the City's 2018 general plan. City actions, such as those relating to land use, annexations, zoning, subdivision and design review, redevelopment, and capital improvements, must be consistent with the plan.

Complete the table titled "Recent and Expected Future Development Trends." Note:

- The portion of the table requesting the number of permits by year is specifically looking for development permits for <u>new</u> construction. If your jurisdiction does not have the ability to differentiate between permit types, list the total number of permits and indicate "N/A" (not applicable) for the permit sub-types.
- If your jurisdiction does not have the ability to track permits by hazard area, delete the bullet list of hazard areas and insert a qualitative description of where development has occurred.

STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Note that this section only applies to jurisdictions that are conducting updates to previously approved hazard mitigation plans. If your jurisdiction has not previously participated in an approved plan, enter an "X" in the box at the beginning of this section and do not complete the section. We will remove this section from your final annex.

Also note that this section is further back in the annex than the rest of the Phase 1 content. Some Phase 2 sections are included before it.

All action items identified in prior mitigation plans must be reconciled in this update. Action items must all be marked as <u>ONE</u> of the following; check the appropriate box (place an X) and provide information as follows:

- **Completed**—If an action has been completed since the prior plan was prepared, check the "Completed" box and <u>provide a date of completion in the comment section</u>. If an action has been initiated and is an ongoing program (e.g. annual outreach event), you may mark it as completed and <u>note that it is ongoing in the comments</u>. If an action addresses an ongoing program you would like to continue to include in your action plan, see the "Carried Over to Plan Update" bullet below.
- Removed—If action items are to be removed because they are no longer feasible, a reason must be given. Lack of funding does not mean that it is no longer feasible, unless the sole source of funding for an action is no longer available. Place a comment in the comment section explaining why the action is no longer feasible or barriers that prevented the action from being implemented (e.g., "Action no longer considered feasible due to lack of political support."). If the wording and/or intent of a previously identified action is unclear, this can be a reason for removal. A change in community priorities may also be a reason for removal and should be discussed in the comments.
- Carried Over to Plan Update—If an action is in progress, is ongoing, or has not been initiated and you would like to carry it over to the plan update, check the "Check if Yes" column under "Carried Over to Plan Update." Selecting this option indicates that the action will be included in the mitigation action

plan for this update. If you are carrying over an action to the update, <u>include a comment describing</u> <u>any action that has been taken or why the action was not taken</u> (specifically, any barriers or obstacles that prevented the action from moving forward or slowed progress). Leave the last column, "Action # in Update," blank at this point. This will be filled in after completing the updated action plan in Phase 3.

Ensure that you have provided a status and a comment for each action.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, all action items from your jurisdiction's previous hazard mitigation plan that are marked as "Carried Over to Plan Update" will need to be included in the action plan.

THIS COMPLETES PHASE 1

PHASE 2 INSTRUCTIONS

CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

Note that it is unlikely that one person will be able to complete all sections of the capability assessment alone. The primary preparer will likely need to reach out to other departments within the local government for information. It may be beneficial to provide these individuals with background information about this planning process, as input from them will be needed again during Phase 3 of the annex development.

Planning and Regulatory Capability

In the table titled "Planning and Regulatory Capability," indicate "Yes" or "No" for each listed code, ordinance, requirement or planning document in each of the following columns:

- Local Authority—Enter "Yes" if your jurisdiction has prepared or adopted the identified item; otherwise, enter "No." If yes, then enter the code, ordinance number, or plan name and its date of adoption in the comments column. *Note: If you enter yes, be sure to provide a comment with the appropriate code, ordinance or plan and date of adoption.*
- Other Jurisdiction Authority—Enter "Yes" if another agency (e.g., a state agency or special purpose district) enforces or administers the identified item in a way that may impact your jurisdiction or if any state or federal regulations or laws would prohibit local implementation of the identified item; otherwise, enter "No." *Note: If you enter yes, be sure to provide a comment indicating the other agency and its relevant authority.*
- State Mandated—Enter "Yes" if state laws or other requirements enable or require the listed item to be implemented at the local level; otherwise, enter "No." *Note: If you enter yes, be sure to provide a comment describing the relevant state mandate.*
- Integration Opportunity—Enter "Yes" if there are obvious ways that the code, ordinance or plan can be coordinated with the hazard mitigation plan. Consider the following:
 - If you answered "Yes" in the Local Authority column for this item, then enter "Yes" for integration opportunity if any of the following are true:
 - The item already addresses hazards and their impacts and should be updated to reflect new information about risk from this hazard mitigation plan
 - The item does not address hazards and their impacts but is due for an update in the next 5 years and could be updated in a way that does address hazards and impacts
 - The item identifies projects for implementation and these could be reviewed to determine if they can be modified to help address hazard mitigation goals
 - The item identifies projects for implementation and some of these should be considered for inclusion in the hazard mitigation action plan for your jurisdiction
 - If you answered "No" in the Local Authority column for this item, then enter "Yes" for integration opportunity if your jurisdiction will develop the item over the next 5 years

Note: Each capability with a "Yes" answer to Integration Opportunity will be discussed in more detail later in the annex. You may wish to keep notes when assessing the Integration Opportunity or review the "Integration with Other Planning Initiatives" section below.

 Comments—Enter the code number and adoption date for any local code indicated as being in place; provide other comments as appropriate to describe capabilities for each entry. DO NOT OVERLOOK THIS STEP For the categories "General Plan" and "Capital Improvement Plan," answer the specific questions shown, in addition to completing the four columns indicating level of capability.

Development and Permit Capability

Complete the table titled "Development and Permitting Capabilities."

Fiscal Capability

Complete the table titled "Fiscal Capability" by indicating whether each of the listed financial resources is accessible to your jurisdiction. Enter "Yes" if the resource is fully accessible to your jurisdiction. Enter "No" if there are limitations or prerequisites that may hinder your use of this resource.

Administrative and Technical Capability

Complete the table titled "Administrative and Technical Capability" by indicating whether your jurisdiction has access to each of the listed personnel resources. Enter "Yes" or "No" in the column labeled "Available?". If yes, then enter the department and position title. If you have contract support with these capabilities, you can still answer "Yes." Indicate in the department row that this resource is provided through contract.

Education and Outreach Capability

Complete the table titled "Education and Outreach."

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, review all the above capability assessment tables and consider including actions to provide a capability that your jurisdiction does not currently have, update a capability that your jurisdiction does have, or implement an action that is recommended in an existing plan or program.

National Flood Insurance Program Compliance

Complete the table titled "National Flood Insurance Program Compliance."

Community Classifications

Complete the table titled "Community Classifications" to indicate your jurisdiction's participation in various national programs related to natural hazard mitigation. For each program enter "Yes" or "No" in the second column to indicate whether your jurisdiction participates. If yes, then enter the classification that your jurisdiction has earned under the program in the third column and the date on which that classification was issued in the fourth column; enter "N/A" in the third and fourth columns if your jurisdiction is not participating. If you do not know your current classification, information is available at the following websites:

FIPS Code <u>https://www.census.gov/geographies/reference-files/2018/demo/popest/2018-fips.html</u>

- DUNS #- https://www.dnb.com/duns-number.html
- Community Rating System— https://www.fema.gov/floodplain-management/community-rating-system
- Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule— https://www.isomitigation.com/bcegs/iso-s-building-code-effectiveness-grading-schedule-bcegs.html
- Public Protection Classification <u>https://www.isomitigation.com/ppc/</u>
- Storm Ready- <u>https://www.weather.gov/stormready/communities</u>
- Firewise <u>http://www.firewise.org/usa-recognition-program/map-of-active-participants.aspx</u>
- Tsunami Ready- <u>https://www.weather.gov/tsunamiready/communities</u>

Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change

Consider climate change impact concerns such as the following:

- Reduced snowpack
- Increased wildfires
- Sea level rise
- Inland flooding
- Threats to sensitive species
- Loss in agricultural productivity
- Public health and safety.

With those impacts in mind, complete the table titled "Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change" by indicating your jurisdiction's capacity for each listed criterion as follows:

- **High**—The capacity exists and is in use.
- Medium—The capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement.
- Low–The capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement.
- **Unsure**—Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

This is a subjective assessment, but providing a few words of explanation is useful. It is highly recommended that you complete this table with an internal planning team after reviewing the results of the other capability assessment tables.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, review all the adaptive capacity criteria and consider including actions to improve the rating for those rated medium or low, to make use of the capacity for those rated high, or to acquire additional information for those rated unsure.

INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. FEMA recommends integration as follows:

- Integrate hazard mitigation plan goals with community objectives (e.g. incorporate the goals for risk reduction and safety into the policies of other plans).
- Use the risk assessment to inform plans and policies (e.g. incorporate risk assessment findings into land use plans, site plan review, emergency operations plans).
- Implement mitigation actions through existing mechanisms (e.g. include mitigation projects in the capital improvement plan).
- Think about mitigation before and after a disaster (e.g. build recovery planning on existing mitigation plans and goals).

After reviewing the plans, programs and ordinances identified in the capability assessment tables, identify all plans and programs that have already been integrated with the hazard mitigation plan, and those that offer opportunities for future integration. The simplest way to do this is to review the Planning and Regulatory Capabilities table to see which items were marked as "Yes" under the Integration Opportunity column.

Existing Integration

In the highlighted bullet list, list items for which you entered "Yes" under the Integration Opportunity column of the "Planning and Regulatory Capability" table because the plan or ordinance already addresses potential impacts or includes specific projects that should be included as action items in the mitigation action plan. Consider listing items marked as Completed in the "Status of Previous Plan Actions" table if they were indicated as being ongoing actions. Provide a brief description of how the plan or ordinance is integrated. Examples are as follows:

- **Capital Improvement Plan**—The capital improvement plan includes projects that can help mitigate potential hazards. The City will act to ensure consistency between the hazard mitigation plan and the current and future capital improvement plans. The hazard mitigation plan may identify new possible funding sources for capital improvement projects and may result in modifications to proposed projects based on results of the risk assessment.
- **Building Code and Fire Code**—The City's adoption of the 2016 California building and fire codes incorporated local modifications to account for the climatic, topographic and geographic conditions that exist in the City.
- **General Plan**—The general plan includes a Safety Element to protect the community from unreasonable risk by establishing policies and actions to avoid or minimize the following hazards:
 - Geologic and seismic hazards
 - Fire hazards
 - Hazardous materials
 - Flood control
 - Impacts from climate change.

• **Climate Action Plan**—The City's Climate Action Plan includes projects for reducing greenhouse gas emissions and adapting to likely impacts of climate change. These projects were reviewed to identify cross-planning initiates that serve both adaptation and mitigation objectives.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, any plans that fall into the "Existing Integration" category should be reviewed and elements from them should be included in the action plan as appropriate.

Opportunities for Future Integration

List any remaining items that say "Yes" in the Integration Opportunity column in the Planning and Regulatory Capabilities table and explain the process by which integration could occur. Examples follow:

- **Zoning Code**—The City is conducting a comprehensive update to its zoning code. Additional mitigation and abatement measures will be considered for incorporation into the code.
- **Capital Improvement Projects**—Capital improvement project proposals may take into consideration hazard mitigation potential as a means of evaluating project prioritization.
- **Post-Disaster Recovery Plan**—The City does not have a recovery plan and intends to develop one as a mitigation planning action during the next five years. The plan will build on the goals and objectives identified in the hazard mitigation plan.

After you have accounted for all items marked as "Yes" under the Integration Opportunity column, consider other programs you may have in place in your jurisdiction that include routine consideration and management of hazard risk. Examples of such programs may include: tree pruning programs, right-of-way mowing programs, erosion control or stream maintenance programs, etc. Add any such programs to the integration discussion and provide a brief description of how these programs manage (or could be adapted to manage) risk from hazards.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, an action to integrate any identified "Opportunities for Future Integration" should be considered for inclusion in the action plan.

INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

Note that this section will ultimately describe all information sources used to develop this annex, but that only the sources used for Phases 1 and 2 will be listed at this point. Additional sources will be added with the preparation of the Phase 3 annex.

This section should describe what resources you used to complete the annex and how you used them. Several items are started for you, but be sure to update and enhance any descriptions. Providing this information is a requirement to pass the state and FEMA review process.

THIS COMPLETES PHASE 2

PHASE 3 INSTRUCTIONS

RISK ASSESSMENT

Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

In the table titled "Past Natural Hazard Events," list in chronological order (most recent first) any natural hazard event that has caused damage to your jurisdiction. If it was a federally declared disaster, include the FEMA Disaster #, otherwise enter N/A in that column. Include the date of the event and the estimated dollar amount of damage it caused. You are welcome to include any events, but special attention should be made to include major storms and federally declared disasters. Refer to the table below that lists hazard events in the planning area.

Table 1. Presidential Disaster Declarations for the Planning Area					
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment		
			\$		
We recommend including most large-scale disasters, unless you know that there were no impacts on your jurisdiction. Specifically, we recommend that you include these events if you have damage estimate information or can provide a brief description of impacts that occurred within your community. In addition to these events, refer to the NOAA NCDC storm events database included in the toolkit. We recommend conducting a search for the name of your jurisdiction in order to identify events with known impacts. Other potential sources of damage information include the following

- Preliminary damage estimates your jurisdiction filed with the county or state
- Insurance claims data
- Newspaper archives
- Emergency management documents (general plan safety element, emergency response plan, etc.)
- Resident input.

If you do not have estimates for costs of damage caused, list "Not Available" in the "Damage Assessment" column or list a brief description of the damage rather than a dollar value (e.g., Main Street closed as a result of flooding, downed trees and residential damage). Note that tracking such damage is a valid and useful mitigation action if your jurisdiction does not currently track such information.

Hazard Risk Ranking

Risk ranking identifies which hazards pose the greatest risk to the community, based on how likely it is for each hazard to occur (this is called the community's exposure) and how great an impact each hazard will have if it does occur (this is called the community's vulnerability). Every jurisdiction has differing degrees of risk exposure and vulnerability and therefore needs to rank risk for its own area. The risk ranking for each jurisdiction has been calculated in the "Loss Matrix" spreadsheet included in the annex preparation toolkit. The ranking is on the basis of risk ranking scores for each hazard that were calculated based on the hazard's probability of occurrence and its potential impact on people, property and the economy.

The results for your jurisdiction have already been entered into the "Hazard Risk Ranking" table in your Phase 3 annex template. The hazard with the highest risk rating is listed at the top of table and was given a rank of 1; the hazard with the second highest rating is listed second with a rank of 2; and so on. Two hazards with equal risk ranking scores were given the same rank. Hazards were assigned to "High," Medium," or "Low" risk categories based on the risk ranking score. If you wish to review the calculations in detail, the appendix at the end of these instructions describes the calculation methodology that the spreadsheet uses.

<u>Review the hazard risk ranking information that is included in your annex.</u> If these results differ from what you know based on substantiated data and documentation, you may alter the ranking and risk categories based on this knowledge. If you do so, indicate the reason for the change in your template. For example:

"Drought was ranked as low; however, the jurisdiction's economy is heavily reliant on water-using industries, such as agriculture or manufacturing, so this hazard should be ranked as medium."

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, you will need to have at least one mitigation action for each hazard ranked as "high" or "medium."

Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Repetitive Loss Properties

A repetitive loss property is any property for which FEMA has paid two or more flood insurance claims in excess of \$1,000 in any rolling 10-year period since 1978. In the space provided, the following information has been included in your annex based on data provided by FEMA:

- The number of any FEMA-identified repetitive-loss properties in your jurisdiction.
- The number of any FEMA-identified severe-repetitive-loss properties in your jurisdiction.
- The number (if any) of repetitive-loss or severe-repetitive-loss properties in your jurisdiction that have been mitigated. Mitigated for this exercise means that flood protection has been provided to the structure.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, if your jurisdiction has any repetitive loss properties, you should strongly consider including a mitigation action that addresses mitigating these properties.

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

Review the results of the risk assessment included in the toolkit, your jurisdiction's natural events history, and any relevant public comments/input, then develop a few sentences that discuss specific hazard vulnerabilities. You do not need to develop a sentence for every hazard, but identify a few issues you would like to highlight. Also list any known hazard vulnerabilities in your jurisdiction that may not be apparent from the risk assessment and other information provided.

Spending some time thinking about the results of the risk assessment and other noted vulnerabilities will be a big help in the development of your hazard mitigation action plan. The following are examples of vulnerabilities you could identify through this exercise:

- About 45 percent of the population lives in the 0.2 percent annual chance flood hazard area, where flood insurance is generally not required.
- A magnitude 7.5 earthquake on the Smithburg Fault is estimated to produce nearly 1 million tons of structure debris.
- Over the past 10 years, the jurisdiction has experienced more than \$6 million in damage from severe storm events.
- More than 50 buildings are located in areas that would be permanently inundated with 12 inches of sea level rise.
- The results of the public survey indicated that 40 percent of Smithburg residents would not be able to be self-sufficient for 5 days following a major event.
- An urban drainage issue at a specific location results in localized flooding every time it rains.
- One area of the community frequently loses power due to a lack of tree maintenance.

- A critical facility, such as a police station, is not equipped with a generator.
- A neighborhood has the potential to have ingress and egress cut off as the result of a flood or earthquake (e.g. a bridge is the only access).
- Substantial number of buildings in one area of the community are unreinforced masonry or soft-story construction.
- An area along the river is eroding and threatening public and/or private property.
- A large visitor population that may not be aware of tsunami risk.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, consider including actions to address the jurisdiction-specific vulnerabilities listed in this section.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix

The hazard mitigation action plan is the heart of your jurisdictional annex. This is where you will identify the actions your jurisdiction would like to pursue with this plan.

Select Recommended Actions

All of the work that you have done thus far should provide you with ideas for actions. Throughout these instructions, green boxes labeled "Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Input" have indicated information that needs to be considered in the selection of mitigation actions. The following sections describe how to consider these and other information sources to develop a list of potential actions.

Be sure to consider the following factors in your selection of actions:

- Select actions that are consistent with the overall purpose, goals, and objectives of the hazard mitigation plan.
- Identify actions where benefits exceed costs.
- Include any action that your jurisdiction has committed to pursuing, regardless of grant eligibility.
- Know what is and is not grant-eligible under various federal grant programs (see the fact sheet on FEMA hazard mitigation grant programs in the annex preparation toolkit and the table below).

Table 2. Federal Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Eligibility by Action Type					
Eligible Activities	Hazard Mitigation Grant Program	BRIC	Flood Mitigation Assistance		
Mitigation Projects					
Property Acquisition and Structure Demolition	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Property Acquisition and Structure Relocation	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Structure Elevation	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Mitigation Reconstruction	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Dry Floodproofing of Historic Residential Structures	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Dry Floodproofing of Non-residential Structures	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Generators	\checkmark	\checkmark			
Localized Flood Risk Reduction Projects	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Non-Localized Flood Risk Reduction Projects	\checkmark	\checkmark			
Structural Retrofitting of Existing Buildings	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Non-structural Retrofitting of Existing Buildings and Facilities	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Safe Room Construction	\checkmark	\checkmark			
Wind Retrofit for One- and Two-Family Residences	\checkmark	\checkmark			
Infrastructure Retrofit	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Soil Stabilization	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Wildland fire Mitigation					
Post-Disaster Code Enforcement					
Advance Assistance	\checkmark				
5 Percent Initiative Projects*	\checkmark				
Aquifer and Storage Recovery**	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Flood Diversion and Storage**	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Floodplain and Stream Restoration**	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Green Infrastructure**	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Miscellaneous/Other**	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Hazard Mitigation Planning	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Technical Assistance			\checkmark		
Management Costs	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		

* FEMA allows increasing the 5% initiative amount under the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program up to 10% for a presidential major disaster declaration. The additional 5% initiative funding can be used for activities that promote disaster-resistant codes for all hazards. As a condition of the award, either a disaster-resistant building code must be adopted or an improved Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule is required.

** Indicates that any proposed action will be evaluated on its own merit against program requirements. Eligible projects will be approved provided funding is available.

Material Previously Developed for This Annex

<u>Capability Assessment Section—Planning and Regulatory Capability Table, Fiscal Capability Table,</u> <u>Administrative and Technical Capability Table, Education and Outreach Table, and Community</u> <u>Classification Table</u>

Review these tables and consider the following:

- For any capability that you do not currently have, consider whether your jurisdiction should have this capability. If so, consider including an action to develop/acquire the capability.
- For any capability that you do currently have, consider whether this capability can be leveraged to increase or improve hazard mitigation in the jurisdiction.
- If any capabilities listed in the Planning and Regulatory Capabilities table have not been updated in more than 10 years, consider an action to review and update the capability and, as appropriate, incorporate hazard mitigation principles or information obtained in the risk assessment.
- Consider including actions that are identified in other plans and programs (capital improvement plans, strategic plans, etc.) as actions in this plan.

Capability Assessment Section—National Flood Insurance Program Compliance table

Review the table and consider the following:

- If you have no certified floodplain managers and you have flood risk, consider adding an action to provide key staff members with training to obtain certification.
- If your flood damage prevention was last updated in or before 2004, you should identify an action to update your ordinance to ensure it is compliant with current NFIP requirements.
- If you have any outstanding NFIP compliance issues, be sure to add an action to address them.
- If flood hazard maps do not adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction, consider actions to request new mapping or conduct studies.
- If you wish to begin to participate in CRS or you already to participate and would like to improve your classification, consider this as an action.
- If the number of flood insurance polices in your jurisdiction is low relative to the number of structures in the floodplain, consider an action that will promote flood insurance in your jurisdiction.

Capability Assessment Section— Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change Table

Consider your responses to this section:

- For criteria that you listed as medium or low, think of ways you could improve this rating (see adaptive capacity portion of the mitigation best practices catalog).
- For criteria you listed as high, think about how you can leverage this capacity to improve or enhance mitigation or continue to improve this capacity.
- For criteria that you were unable to provide responses for, consider ways you could improve your understanding of this capacity (see mitigation best practices and adaptive capacity catalog).

Integration Review Section

Review the items you identified in this section and consider an action that specifically says what the plan, code, ordinance etc. is and how it will be integrated. For items that address land use, include them in the prepopulated action in your template that reads as follows:

"Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, ordinances and programs that dictate land use decisions in the community, including ______."

Risk Ranking Section

You must identify at least one mitigation action that is clearly defined and actionable (i.e. not a preparedness or response action) for every hazard that is categorized in the risk ranking as "high" or "medium" risk.

Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities Section

Review the vulnerability issues that you identified in this section and consider actions to address them (see mitigation best practices catalog). Two examples are shown in the table below.

Table 3. Example Actions to Address Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities		
Noted Vulnerability	Example Mitigation Action	
About 45 percent of the population lives in the 0.2 percent annual chance flood hazard area where flood insurance is generally not required.	Implement an annual public information initiative that targets residents in the 0.2 percent annual chance flood hazard area. Provide information on the availability of relatively low cost flood insurance policies.	
An urban drainage issue results in localized flooding every time it rains.	 Replace undersized culverts that are contributing to localized flooding. Priority areas include: The corner of Main Street and 1st Street Old Oak subdivision. 	

Status of Previous Plan Actions Section

If your jurisdiction participated in a previous hazard mitigation plan, be sure to include any actions that were identified as "carry over" actions.

Other Sources

Mitigation Best Practices Catalog

A catalog that includes best practices identified by FEMA and other agencies, as well as recommendations from the steering committee and other stakeholders, is included in your toolkit. Review the catalog and identify actions your jurisdiction should consider for its action plan.

Public Input

Review input received during the process, specifically the public survey results included in your toolkit.

Common Actions for All Partners

The following six actions have been prepopulated in your annex template; **these six actions should be included in every annex and should not be removed**:

- Where appropriate, support retro-fitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in high hazard areas, prioritizing those structures that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high or medium ranked hazard.
- Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, ordinances and programs that dictate land use decisions within the community.
- Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.
- Continue to maintain good standing and compliance under the NFIP through implementation of floodplain management programs that, at a minimum, meet the NFIP requirements:
 - > Enforce the flood damage prevention ordinance.
 - > Participate in floodplain identification and mapping updates.
 - > Provide public assistance/information on floodplain requirements and impacts.
- Identify and pursue strategies to increase adaptive capacity to climate change.
- Purchase generators for critical facilities and infrastructure that lack adequate back-up power.

In addition, the core planning team recommends that every planning partner strongly consider the following actions:

- Develop and implement a program to capture perishable data after significant events (e.g. high water marks, preliminary damage estimates, damage photos) to support future mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the hazard mitigation plan.
- Support the County-wide initiatives identified in Volume I of the hazard mitigation plan.
- Develop a post-disaster recovery plan and a debris management plan.
- Develop and/or update plans that support or enhance continuity of operations following disasters.

The specifics of all these common actions should be adjusted as needed for the particulars of each community.

Complete the Table

Complete the table titled "Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix" for all the actions you have identified and would like to include in the plan:

- Enter the action number (see box on next page) and description. If the action is carried over from your previous hazard mitigation plan, return to the "Status of Previous Plan Actions" table you completed in Phase 1 and enter the new action number in the column labeled "Action # in Update."
- Indicate whether the action mitigates hazards for new and/or existing assets.
- Identify the specific hazards the action will mitigate (note: you must list each hazard by name; simply indicating "all hazards" is not deemed acceptable).
- Identify by number the mitigation plan objectives that the action addresses (see toolkit).
- Indicate who will be the lead in administering the action. This will most likely be a department within your jurisdiction (e.g. planning or public works). If you wish to indicate more than one department as responsible for the action, clearly identify one as the lead agency and list the others in the "supporting agency" column.

- Enter an estimated cost in dollars if known; otherwise, enter "High,"
 "Medium," or "Low," as determined for the prioritization process described in the following section.
- Identify funding sources for the action. If it is a grant, include the grant-providing agency as well as funding sources for any required cost share. Refer to your fiscal capability assessment to identify possible sources of funding and refer to the table on page 15 of these instructions for project eligibility for FEMA's hazard mitigation assistance grant programs.

Action Numbering Actions are to be numbered using the three-letter code for your jurisdiction shown below, followed by a hyphen and the action's sequential number: • Ventura, County of—VCO-1, VCO-2... • Camarillo, City of—CAM-1, CAM-2... • Fillmore, City of—FIL-1, FIL-2... • Moorpark, City of —MPK-1, MPK-2... • Ojai, City of —OJC-1, OJC-2...

- Oxnard, City of —OXN-1, OXN-2...
- Port Hueneme, City of —PTH-1, PTH-2...
- Santa Paula, City of —STP-1, STP-2...
- Simi Valley, City of —SIM-1, SIM-2...
- Thousand Oaks, City of —THO-1, THO-2...
- Ventura, City of —VEN-1, VEN-2...
- Indicate the time line as "short-term" (1 to 5 years) or "long-term" (5 years or greater) or "ongoing" (a continual program)

Mitigation Action Priority

Complete the information in the table titled "Mitigation Action Priority" as follows:

- Action #—Indicate the action number from the Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix table.
- **# of Objectives Met**—Enter the number of objectives the action will meet.
- Benefits—Enter "High," "Medium" or "Low" as follows:
 - > High—Action will provide an immediate reduction of risk exposure for life and property.
 - Medium—Action will have a long-term impact on the reduction of risk exposure for life and property, or action will provide an immediate reduction in the risk exposure for property.
 - > Low–Long-term benefits of the action are difficult to quantify in the short term.
- **Cost**—Enter "High," "Medium" or "Low" as follows:
 - High—Existing funding will not cover the cost of the action; implementation would require new revenue through an alternative source (for example, bonds, grants, and fee increases).
 - Medium—The action could be implemented with existing funding but would require a reapportionment of the budget or a budget amendment, or the cost of the action would have to be spread over multiple years.
 - Low—The action could be funded under the existing budget. The action is part of or can be part of an ongoing existing program.
- Do Benefits Exceed the Cost?—Enter "Yes" or "No." This is a qualitative assessment. Enter "Yes" if the benefit rating (high, medium or low) is the same as or higher than the cost rating (high benefit/high cost; high benefit/medium cost; medium benefit/low cost; etc.). Enter "No" if the benefit rating is lower than the cost rating (medium benefit/high cost, low benefit/medium cost; etc.)
- Is the Action Grant-Eligible?—Enter "Yes" or "No." Refer to the fact sheet on FEMA hazard mitigation grant programs in the annex preparation toolkit and the table on page 15 of these instructions.

- Can Action Be Funded Under Existing Program Budgets?—Enter "Yes" or "No." In other words, is this action currently budgeted for, or would it require a new budget authorization or funding from another source such as grants?
- Implementation Priority— Enter "High," "Medium" or "Low" as follows:
 - High Priority—An action that meets multiple objectives, has benefits that exceed costs, and has a secured source of funding. Action can be completed in the short term (1 to 5 years).
 - Medium Priority—An action that meets multiple objectives, has benefits that exceed costs, and is eligible for funding though no funding has yet been secured for it. Action can be completed in the short term (1 to 5 years), once funding is secured. Medium-priority actions become high-priority actions once funding is secured.
 - Low Priority—An action that will mitigate the risk of a hazard, has benefits that do not exceed the costs or are difficult to quantify, has no secured source of funding, and is not eligible for any known grant funding. Action can be completed in the long term (1 to 10 years). Low-priority actions may be eligible for grant funding from programs that have not yet been identified.
- Grant Pursuit Priority— Enter "High," "Medium" or "Low" as follows:
 - High Priority—An action that meets identified grant eligibility requirements, has high benefits, and is listed as high or medium implementation priority; local funding options are unavailable or available local funds could be used instead for actions that are not eligible for grant funding.
 - Medium Priority—An action that meets identified grant eligibility requirements, has medium or low benefits, and is listed as medium or low implementation priority; local funding options are unavailable.
 - > Low Priority—An action that has not been identified as meeting any grant eligibility requirements.

Actions identified as high-grant-pursuit priority actions should be closely reviewed for consideration when grant funding opportunities arise.

Note: If a jurisdiction wishes to identify an action as high priority that is outside of the prioritization scheme for high priorities, a note indicating so should be inserted and a rationale should be provided.

Analysis of Mitigation Actions

In the table titled "Analysis of Mitigation Actions," for each combination of hazard type and mitigation type, enter the numbers of all recommended actions that address that hazard type and can be categorized as that mitigation type. The mitigation types are as follows:

- **Prevention**—Government, administrative or regulatory actions that influence the way land and buildings are developed to reduce hazard losses. Includes planning and zoning, floodplain laws, capital improvement programs, open space preservation, and stormwater management regulations.
- **Property Protection**—Modification of buildings or structures to protect them from a hazard or removal of structures from a hazard area. Includes acquisition, elevation, relocation, structural retrofit, storm shutters, and shatter-resistant glass.
- **Public Education & Awareness**—Actions to inform residents and elected officials about hazards and ways to mitigate them. Includes outreach projects, real estate disclosure, hazard information centers, and school-age and adult education.

- Natural Resource Protection—Actions that minimize hazard loss and preserve or restore the functions of natural systems. Includes sediment and erosion control, stream corridor restoration, watershed management, forest and vegetation management, wetland restoration and preservation, and green infrastructure.
- **Emergency Services**—Actions that protect people and property during and immediately after a hazard event. Includes warning systems, emergency response services, and the protection of essential facilities.
- **Structural Projects**—Actions that involve the construction of structures to reduce the impact of a hazard. Includes dams, setback levees, floodwalls, retaining walls, and safe rooms.
- Climate Resilience—Actions that incorporate methods to mitigate and/or adapt to the impacts of climate change. Includes aquifer storage and recovery activities, incorporating future conditions projections in project design or planning, or actions that specifically address jurisdiction-specific climate change risks, such as sea-level rise or urban heat island effect.
- **Community Capacity Building**—Actions that increase or enhance local capabilities to adjust to potential damage, to take advantage of opportunities, or to respond to consequences. Includes staff training, memorandums of understanding, development of plans and studies, and monitoring programs.

This exercise demonstrates that the jurisdiction has selected a comprehensive range of actions. This table must show at least one action to address each "high" and "medium" ranked hazard. Planning partners should aim to identify at least one action for each mitigation type, but this is not required.

Sample Completed Table – Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type						
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building
High-Risk Hazar	ds							
Dam Failure	EX-2, 3, 4, 5, 6	EX-1, 6	EX-4, 6		EX-8, 11			EX-3, 4, 8, 9, 10
Drought	EX-2	EX-1	EX-4					EX-3, 4, 8, 9, 10
Medium-Risk Ha	zards							
Earthquake	EX-2, 3, 4, 5, 7	EX-1, 7	EX-4		EX-8, 11			EX-3, 4, 8, 9
Flooding	EX-2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7	EX-1, 6, 7	EX-4, 6	EX-9	EX-8, 11	EX-6		EX-3, 4, 8, 9, 10
Landslide	EX-2, 3, 4, 5, 7	EX-1, 7	EX-4		EX-8, 11			EX-3, 4, 8, 9, 10
Low-Risk Hazards								
Severe Weather	EX-2, 3, 4, 5, 7	EX-1, 7, 9	EX-4		EX-8, 9, 11		EX-8, 7	EX-3, 4, 8, 9, 10
Wildfire	EX-2, 3, 4, 5, 7	EX-1, 7, 9	EX-4, 9	EX-9	EX-8, 11			EX-3, 4, 8, 9, 10

An example of a completed "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table is provided below. Note that an action can be more than one mitigation type.

PUBLIC OUTREACH

FEMA requirements for public outreach will be met by the County's engagement efforts and are included in the main part of the plan. These may include public meetings, a StoryMap, surveys, etc. If individual jurisdictions want to have a more robust outreach for their local community, the public outreach table in each annex may be used to memorialize those local efforts.

This table should record local public outreach efforts made by your jurisdiction to inform the community of the plan update process. Examples may include local surveys on hazard awareness/preparedness, social media blasts, press releases, and outreach to local groups (CERT, senior citizen organizations, etc.) **This section is optional.**

INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

This section should describe what resources you used to complete the annex and how you used them. The sources used for Phases 1 and 2 should have been entered previously. List any additional sources used for the preparation of the Phase 3 annex. Review to ensure that all materials used in all three phases are identified. Providing this information is a requirement to pass the state and FEMA review process.

FUTURE NEEDS TO BETTER UNDERSTAND RISK/VULNERABILITY

In this section, identify any future studies, analyses, reports, or surveys your jurisdiction needs to better understand its vulnerability to identified or currently unidentified risks. These could be needs based on federal or state agency mandates. **This section is optional.**

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Use this section to add any additional information pertinent to hazard mitigation and your jurisdiction not covered in this template. **This section is optional.**

THIS COMPLETES PHASE 3

APPENDIX— Risk Ranking Calculation Methodology

The instructions below describe the methodology for how risk rankings were derived in the "Loss Matrix" spreadsheet provided with the annex preparation toolkit. The risk-ranking for each hazard assessed its probability of occurrence and its potential impact on people, property, and the economy. Refer to the Loss Matrix spreadsheet in order to follow along.

Probability of Occurrence

A probability factor is assigned based on how often a hazard is likely to occur. The probability of occurrence of a hazard event is generally based on past hazard events in an area, although weight can be given to expected future probability of occurrence based on established return intervals and changing climate conditions. For example, if your jurisdiction has experienced two damaging floods in the last 25 years, the probability of occurrence is high for flooding and scores a 3 under this category. If your jurisdiction has experienced no damage from landslides in the last 100 years, your probability of occurrence for landslide is low, and scores a 1 under this category. Each hazard was assigned a probability factor as follows:

- High–Hazard event is likely to occur within 25 years (Probability Factor = 3)
- Medium–Hazard event is likely to occur within 100 years (Probability Factor = 2)
- Low–Hazard event is not likely to occur within 100 years (Probability Factor = 1)
- None—There is no exposure to the hazard and no probability of occurrence (Probability Factor = 0)

Potential Impacts of Each Hazard

The impact of each hazard is divided into three categories: impacts on people, impacts on property, and impacts on the economy. These categories are also assigned weighted values. Impact on people was assigned a weighting factor of 3, impact on property was assigned a weighting factor of 2 and impact on the economy was assigned a weighting factor of 1.

Impact factors for each category (people, property, economy) are described below:

- **People**—Values are assigned based on the percentage of the total *population exposed* to the hazard event. The degree of impact on individuals will vary and is not measurable, so the calculation assumes for simplicity and consistency that all people exposed to a hazard because they live in a hazard zone will be equally impacted when a hazard event occurs. Impact factors were assigned as follows:
 - ▶ High—25 percent or more of the population is exposed to a hazard (Impact Factor = 3)
 - Medium—10 percent to 24 percent of the population is exposed to a hazard (Impact Factor = 2)
 - Low–9 percent or less of the population is exposed to the hazard (Impact Factor = 1)
 - No impact—None of the population is exposed to a hazard (Impact Factor = 0)
- Property—Values are assigned based on the percentage of the total property value exposed to the hazard event:
 - High—25 percent or more of the total replacement value is exposed to a hazard (Impact Factor = 3)
 - Medium—10 percent to 24 percent of the total replacement value is exposed to a hazard (Impact Factor = 2)
 - Low–9 percent or less of the total replacement value is exposed to the hazard (Impact Factor = 1)

- > No impact—None of the total replacement value is exposed to a hazard (Impact Factor = 0)
- **Economy**—Values were assigned based on the percentage of the total *property value vulnerable* to the hazard event. Values represent estimates of the loss from a major event of each hazard in comparison to the total replacement value of the property exposed to the hazard. For some hazards, such as wildland fire and landslide, vulnerability may be considered to be the same or a portion of exposure due to the lack of loss estimation tools specific to those hazards.
 - High—Estimated loss from the hazard is 10 percent or more of the total replacement value (Impact Factor = 3)
 - Medium—Estimated loss from the hazard is 5 percent to 9 percent of the total replacement value (Impact Factor = 2)
 - Low—Estimated loss from the hazard is 4 percent or less of the total replacement value (Impact Factor = 1)
 - ➢ No impact—No loss is estimated from the hazard (Impact Factor = 0).

Impacts on People

The percent of the total population exposed to each hazard of concern with a defined extent and location (e.g. floodplain) can be found in the loss estimate matrix in the **green highlighted column.** For those hazards that do not have a defined extent and location the entire population or a portion of the population is considered to be exposed, depending on the hazard. For the drought hazard, it is common for jurisdictions to list "low" or "none," because all people in the planning area would be exposed to drought, but impacts to the health and safety of individuals are expected to be minimal.

Impacts on Property

The percent of the total value exposed to each hazard of concern with a defined extent and location (e.g. floodplain) can be found in the loss estimate matrix in the **blue highlighted column.** For those hazards that do not have a defined extent and location (e.g. severe weather) the entire building stock is generally considered to be exposed. For the drought hazard, it is common for jurisdictions to list "low" or "none," because all structures in the planning area would be exposed to drought, but impacts to structures are expected to be minimal.

Impacts on the Economy

The loss estimates for each hazard of concern that was modeled (i.e. dam failure, flood, earthquake) can be found in the loss estimate matrix in the **purple highlighted column.** For those hazards that have a defined extent and location, but do not have modelled loss results, loss estimates can be the same as exposure or a portion thereof. For example, a large percentage of the building stock may be exposed to landslide or wildland fire risk, but it would not be expected that one event that resulted in loss to all exposed structures would occur. For those hazards that do not have a defined extent and location, exposure is based on the hazard type.

Risk Rating for Each Hazard

A risk rating for each hazard was determined by multiplying the assigned probability factor by the sum of the weighted impact factors for people, property and the economy:

Risk Rating = Probability Factor x Weighted Impact Factor {people + property + economy}

This is the number that is shown in the risk ranking table in your template. Generally, score of 30 or greater receive a "high" rating, score between 15 and 30 receive a "medium" rating, and score of less than 15 receives a "low" rating.

1. JURISDICTION NAME

1.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact Name, Title Street Address City, State ZIP Telephone: xxx-xxx-xxxx e-mail Address: xxx@xxx.xxx Alternate Point of Contact Name, Title Street Address City, State ZIP Telephone: xxx-xxx-xxxx e-mail Address: xxx@xxx.xxx

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 1-1.

Table 4.4.1. South to south the second se

Table 1-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members				
Name	Title			

1.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

1.2.1 Location and Features

[jurisdiction name] is in [general location description]

The current boundaries generally extend from <u>[describe]</u>, encompassing an area of <u>[area in square</u> miles]____.

[general description of key features]

1.2.2 History

[jurisdiction name] was incorporated in [date]. [brief historical summary]

1.2.3 Governing Body Format

_[general description]___

The **__[name of adopting body]___** assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; **__[name of oversight** agency]__ will oversee its implementation.

1.3 CURRENT TRENDS

1.3.1 Population

According to <u>[identify data source]</u>, the population of <u>[jurisdiction name]</u> as of <u>[month</u> year] was <u>[population]</u> Since <u>[year]</u>, the population has grown at an average annual rate of <u>[number]</u> percent.

1.3.2 Development

_DESCRIBE TRENDS IN GENERAL__

Identifying previous and future development trends is achieved through a comprehensive review of permitting since completion of the previous plan and in anticipation of future development. Tracking previous and future growth in potential hazard areas provides an overview of increased exposure to a hazard within a community. Table 1-2 summarizes development trends in the performance period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

Table 1-2. Recent and	Expected Future Developm	nent Tre	ends			
Criterion					Res	ponse
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan? If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or structures.					Ye	<mark>s/No</mark>
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during If yes, describe land areas and dominant uses. If yes, who currently has permitting authority over these areas?	is during the performance period of this plan? Yes/No			<mark>:s/No</mark>		
Are any areas targeted for development or major red If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas	r redevelopment in the next five years? Yes/No				<mark>s/No</mark>	
How many permits for new construction were		<mark>2016</mark>	<mark>2017</mark>	<mark>2018</mark>	<mark>2019</mark>	<mark>2020</mark>
issued in your jurisdiction since the preparation of	Single Family					
the previous nazard mitigation plan?	Multi-Family					
	Other					
	Total					
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	 Special Flood Hazard Areas Landslide: # High Liquefaction Areas: # Tsunami Inundation Area: # Wildfire Risk Areas: # 	s: <mark>#</mark>				

Response

Criterion

Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.

1.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 1-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 1-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 1-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 1-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 1-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 1-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 1-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 1-10.

Table 1-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability				
	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements				
Building Code	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Zoning Code	Yes/No	Yes/No	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Subdivisions	Yes/No	Yes/No	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Stormwater Management	Yes/No	Yes/No	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Post-Disaster Recovery	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Real Estate Disclosure	Yes/No	Yes/No	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Growth Management	Yes/No	Yes/No	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Site Plan Review	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Environmental Protection	Yes/No	Yes/No	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Flood Damage Prevention	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Emergency Management	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Climate Change	Yes/No	Yes/No	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Other	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Planning Documents				
General Plan	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No
Is the plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140? Yes/No Comment: Enter Comment				
Capital Improvement Plan	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
How often is the plan updated?				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Disaster Debris Management Plan	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Stormwater Plan	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Urban Water Management Plan	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Habitat Conservation Plan	Yes/No	Yes/No	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Economic Development Plan	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				-
Shoreline Management Plan	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				-
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				-
Forest Management Plan	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				-
Climate Action Plan	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				-
Emergency Operations Plan	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Continuity of Operations Plan	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Public Health Plan	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				
Other	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Comment: Enter Comment				

Table 1-4. Development and Permitting Ca	pability
--	----------

Criterion	Response
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits?	Yes/No
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	Yes/No
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	Yes/No

Table 1-5. Fiscal Capability				
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?			
Community Development Block Grants	Yes/No			
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes/No			
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes/No			
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes/No			
If yes, specify: Enter Response				
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes/No			
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes/No			
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	Yes/No			
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	Yes/No			
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes/No			
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes/No			
Other	Yes/No			
If yes, specify: Enter Response				

Table 1-6. Administrative and Technical Capability	
Staff/Personnel Resource	Available?
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Staff with training in benefit/cost analysis	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Surveyors	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS applications	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Scientist familiar with natural hazards in local area	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Emergency manager	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Grant writers	<mark>Yes/No</mark>
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Other	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	

Table 1-7. Education and Outreach Capability	
Criterion	Response
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes/No
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	<mark>Yes/No</mark>
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? If yes, briefly describe: Enter Response	Yes/No
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe: Enter Response	Yes/No
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? If yes, briefly describe: Enter Response	<mark>Yes/No</mark>
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? If yes, briefly describe: Enter Response	Yes/No
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe: Enter Response	<mark>Yes/No</mark>

Table 1-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance							
Criterion	Response						
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Enter Response						
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Enter Response						
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	Yes/No						
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	Enter Response						
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements? If exceeds, in what ways? Enter Response	Meets/Exceeds						
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	Enter Response						
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed? If so, state what they are. Enter Response	Yes/No						
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction? If so, state what they are. Enter Response	Yes/No						
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? If no, state why. Enter Response	Yes/No						
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program? If so, what type of assistance/training is needed? Enter Response	Yes/No						
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If yes, is your jurisdiction interested in improving its CRS Classification? Yes/No If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program? Yes/No	Yes/No						
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? ^a What is the insurance in force? What is the premium in force?	Enter Response						

Criterion	Response
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction? ^a	Enter Response
How many claims are still open or were closed without payment? Enter Response	
What were the total payments for losses?	

a. According to FEMA statistics as of MONTH XX, 20XX

Table 1-9. Community Classifications						
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified			
FIPS Code	Yes/No		Date			
DUNS #	Yes/No		Date			
Community Rating System	Yes/No		Date			
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	Yes/No		Date			
Public Protection	Yes/No		Date			
Storm Ready	Yes/No		Date			
Firewise	Yes/No		Date			
Tsunami Ready	Yes/No		Date			

Table 1-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Champions for climate action in local government departments	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Public Capacity	
Local residents knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Local residents support of adaptation efforts	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	High/Medium/Low
Comment: Enter Comment	

 a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

1.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

1.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- Plan or Program Name—Description

1.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment presented in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

•	Plan or Program Name—Description
•	Plan or Program Name—Description

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan presented in this annex.

1.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

1.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 1-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 1-11. Past Natural Hazard Events								
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					
Insert event type		Date	\$					

1.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 1-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property and the economy. Mitigation actions target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 1-12. Hazard Risk Ranking								
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category					
1			High/Medium/Low					
2			High/Medium/Low					
<mark>3</mark>			High/Medium/Low					
<mark>4</mark>			High/Medium/Low					
<mark>5</mark>			High/Medium/Low					
6			High/Medium/Low					
7			High/Medium/Low					
8			High/Medium/Low					
9			High/Medium/Low					

1.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: XX
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: XX
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: XX

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Insert as appropriate.
- Insert as appropriate.
- Insert as appropriate.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan presented in this annex.

1.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

If your jurisdiction has no previous hazard mitigation plan, please enter an "X" in the box at right and do not complete this section.

Table 1-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 1-13. Status of Previous Plan Activity	tions			
		Removed;	Carrie Plan	d Over to Update
		No Longer	Check	Action #
Action Item from Previous Plan	Completed	Feasible	if Yes	in Update
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				

1.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 1-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 1-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 1-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

	Table 1-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix						
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Ohiectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of	Timelinea	
Action xxx-1—W	nere appropriate, supr	port retrofitting, pur	chase or relocation	of structures locate	ed in hazard areas	s, prioritizing	
those that have ex	perienced repetitive lo	sses and/or are lo	cated in high- or me	dium-risk hazard a	areas.	5	
Hazards Mitigated	: Enter Response					I	
Existing	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	High	hmgp, PDM, Fma	Short-term	
Action xxx-2— In the community, inc	tegrate the hazard mit	igation plan into ot	her plans, ordinance	es and programs th	nat dictate land us	e decisions in	
Hazards Mitigated	: Enter Response						
New & Existing	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing	
Action xxx-3—Ac	tively participate in the	e plan maintenance	e protocols outlined	in Volume 1 of this	hazard mitigatior	ı plan.	
<u>Hazards Mitigated</u>	: Enter Response					I	
New & Existing	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term	
 management prog Enforce the floc Participate in floc Provide public a Hazards Mitigated New & Existing 	rams that, at a minimu od damage prevention podplain identification assistance/information <u>conter Response</u> Enter Response	um, meet the NFIP ordinance. and mapping upda on floodplain requ Enter Response	requirements: tes. irements and impac Enter Response	ts. Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing	
Action xxx-5—Ide	entify and pursue strat	egies to increase a	daptive capacity to	climate change inc	cluding but not lim	ited to the	
following:							
Hazards Mitigated	: Enter Response						
New & Existing	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term	
Action xxx-6— Pi	urchase generators fo	r critical facilities ar	nd infrastructure tha	t lack adequate ba	ckup power, inclu	ding	
Hazards Mitigated	: Dam failure, earthqu	lake, flooding, land	lslide, severe weath	<mark>er, tsunami, wildfir</mark>	e		
Existing	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response				
Action xxx-7—De	escription						
Hazards Mitigated	: Enter Response						
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	
Action xxx-8—De	escription						
Hazards Mitigated	: Enter Response						
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	

Benefits New or	Objectives Not		Support Agonov	Estimated Cast	Sources of	Timolinoa
Action vvv 0 Doc		Leau Agency	Support Agency	EStimated Cost	Funding	nmenne ^a
Hazarda Mitigatod						
Entor Posponso	Entor Dosponso	Entor Dosponso	Entor Dosponso	Entor Dochonso	Entor Dochonco	Entor Dosponso
Action vvv 10 D		LITER RESPONSE				
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Desponse					
Fnter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Entor Rosponso	Entor Posnonso	Entor Posnonso	Enter Response
Action vvv 11_D						
Hazards Mitigated	Enter Resnonse					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
Action xxx-12—De			Enter Response	Enter Response		
Hazards Mitigated	Enter Response					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
Action xxx-13—De		2		2		
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
Action xxx-14—De	escription					
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
Action xxx-15—De	escription					
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
Action xxx-16—De	escription					
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
Action xxx-17—De	escription					
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
Action xxx-18—De	escription					
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
Action xxx-19—De	escription					
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response				·	
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
Action xxx-20—De	escription					
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 1-15. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a
1	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
2	7	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
3	3	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
4	6	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
5	7	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Medium
6	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
7								
8								
9								
10								
11								
2 500	the introduction	on to this v	olumo for	ovalanation of a	ioritios			

а. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 1-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions										
	Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a									
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building		
High-Risk Hazards										
Medium-Risk Hazards										
Low-Risk Hazards										

See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types. a.

1.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 1-17 lists public outreach activities in connection with this hazard mitigation plan update for this jurisdiction.

Table 1-17. Local Public Outreach							
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved					

1.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **[jurisdiction name]** Municipal Code—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **[jurisdiction name]** Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.
- <INSERT DOCUMENT NAME AND DESCRIPTION OF HOW IT WAS USED>

<INSERT DOCUMENT NAME AND DESCRIPTION OF HOW IT WAS USED>

<INSERT DOCUMENT NAME AND DESCRIPTION OF HOW IT WAS USED>

• <INSERT DOCUMENT NAME AND DESCRIPTION OF HOW IT WAS USED>

<INSERT DOCUMENT NAME AND DESCRIPTION OF HOW IT WAS USED>

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• **Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit**—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

• <INSERT DOCUMENT NAME AND DESCRIPTION OF HOW IT WAS USED>

1.11 FUTURE NEEDS TO BETTER UNDERSTAND RISK/VULNERABILITY

Insert text, if any; otherwise, delete section

1.12 ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Insert text, if any; otherwise, delete section

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING SPECIAL-PURPOSE DISTRICT ANNEX TEMPLATE

Jurisdictional annex templates for the 2022 Ventura County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan update will be completed in three phases. This document provides instructions for completing all phases of the template for special-purpose districts.

The target timeline for completion is as follows:

- Phase 1—Team, Profile, Trends, and Previous Plan Status
 - > Deploy: May 10, 2021
 - Due: June 21, 2021 by close of business
- Phase 2—Capability Assessment, Integration Review, and Information Sources
 - Deploy: July 6, 2021
 - Due: August 20, 2021 by close of business
- **Phase 3**—Risk Assessment, Action Plan, Information Sources, Future Needs, and Additional Comments
 - > **Deploy:** September 9, 2021
 - > Mandatory Phase 3 Workshop: September 23, 2021
 - Due: October 25, 2021 by close of business, Pacific Time. No due date extensions!

Please direct any questions and return your completed Phase 3 template in electronic format to:

> Megan Brotherton Tetra Tech Phone: (808) 339-9119 E-mail: *megan.brotherton@tetratech.com*

A Note About Formatting

The template for the annex is a Microsoft Word document in a format that will be used in the final plan. Partners are asked to use this template so that a uniform product will be completed for each partner.

Content should be entered directly into the template rather than creating text in another document and pasting it into the template. Text from another source may alter the formatting of the document.

The section and table numbering in the document will be updated when completed annexes are combined into the final document. Please do not adjust any of the numbering.

For planning partners who participated in the 2015 planning effort, relevant information has been brought over to the 2022 template. Fields that require attention have been highlighted using the following color coding:

- Yellow: Text has been brought over from 2015 Plan and should be reviewed and updated as needed.
- Pink: This is a new field that will require information that was not included in 2015.

Please un-highlight each field that you update so that reviewers will know an edit has been made.

New planning partners will need to complete the template in its entirety.

Appendix B.2

Instructions and Templates for Special Purpose District Annexes

PHASE 1 INSTRUCTIONS

CHAPTER TITLE

In the chapter title at the top of Page 1, type in the complete official name of your district (e.g. West County Fire Protection District #1, Johnsonville Flood Protection District). Do not change the chapter number. Revise only the jurisdiction name. If your jurisdiction's name has already been entered, verify that wording and spelling are correct; revise as needed.

LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Points of Contact

Provide the name, title, mailing address, telephone number, and e-mail address for the primary point of contact for your jurisdiction. This should be the person responsible for monitoring, evaluating, and updating the annex for your jurisdiction. This person should also be the principle liaison between your jurisdiction and the Steering Committee overseeing development of this plan.

In addition, designate an alternate point of contact. This would be a person to contact should the primary point of contact be unavailable or no longer employed by the jurisdiction.

Note: Both of these contacts should match the contacts that were designated in your jurisdiction's letter of intent to participate in this planning process. If you have changed the primary or secondary contact, let the planning team know by inserting a comment into the document.

Participating Planning Team

Populate Table 1-1 with the names of staff from your jurisdiction who participated in preparing this annex or otherwise contributed to the planning process for this hazard mitigation plan.

JURISDICTION PROFILE

Overview

Provide a brief summary description of the following:

- The purpose of the jurisdiction
- The date of inception
- The type of organization
- The number of employees
- Funding sources
- The type of governing body, and who has adoptive authority.

This should be information that is specific to your jurisdiction and will not be provided in the overall, planning area-wide mitigation plan document. Provide a statement similar to the example below:

EXAMPLE: The Johnsonville Community Services District is a special district created in 1952 to provide water and sewer service. A five-member elected Board of Directors governs the District. The Board assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the General Manager will oversee its implementation. The District currently employs a staff of 21. Funding comes primarily through rates and revenue bonds.

Service Area

Provide a brief description of the following:

- Who the District's customers are and an approximation of how many are currently served
- The area served, in square miles
- The geographic extent of the service area

This should be information that is specific to your jurisdiction and will not be provided in the overall, planning area-wide mitigation plan document. Provide a statement similar to the example below:

EXAMPLE: The Johnsonville Community Services District serves unincorporated areas of Jones County east of the City of Smithburg, including the communities of Johnsonville, Creeks Corner, Jones Hill, Fields Landing, King Salmon, and Freshwater. The current total service area is 3.3 square miles. As of April 30, 2020, the District serves 7,305 water connections and 6,108 sewer connections.

Assets

List District-owned assets in the categories shown on the table (and described in the sections below). Include an approximate value for each asset and a subtotal value for identified assets in each category.

Property

Provide an approximate value for any land owned by the District.

Equipment

List equipment owned by the District that is used in times of emergency or that, if incapacitated, could severely impact the service area (vehicles, generators, pumps, etc.). Provide an approximate replacement value for each item. Equipment of similar type may be listed as a single category (e.g., "3 diesel-powered generators"). For water and sewer districts, include mileage of pipeline under this category.

Critical Facilities

List District-owned facilities that are vital to maintain services to the service area. Include the address of each facility. Provide an approximate replacement value for each line. Critical facilities are generally defined as facilities owned by the District that are critical to District operations and to public health or safety and that are especially important following hazard events, including but not limited to the following:

• Structures or facilities that produce, use, or store hazardous materials (highly volatile, flammable, explosive, toxic and/or water-reactive materials)

- Hospitals, nursing homes, and housing facilities likely to contain occupants who may not be sufficiently mobile to avoid death or injury during a natural hazard event
- Mass gathering facilities that may be used as evacuation shelters (such as schools or community centers)
- Transportation infrastructure such as roads, bridges and airports that provide sources for evacuation before, during and after natural hazard events
- Police stations, fire stations, government facilities, vehicle equipment and storage facilities, and emergency operation centers that are needed for response activities before, during and after a natural hazard event
- Public utility facilities such as drinking water, stormwater, and wastewater systems that are vital to providing normal services to damaged areas before, during and after natural hazard events.

The table below shows an example of assets to be listed in this section.

Sample Completed Table – Special District Assets					
Asset	Value				
Property					
11.5 Acres	\$5,750,000				
Equipment					
Total length of pipe 40 miles (\$1.32 million per mile X 40 miles)	\$52,800,000				
4 Emergency Generators	\$250,000				
Total:	\$53,050,000				
Critical Facilities					
Administrative Buildings – 357 S. Jones Street	\$2,750,000				
Philips Pump Station – 111 Fifth Avenue N.	\$377,000				
Total:	\$3,127,000				

NOTE: Placeholders in the table of assets request **ADDRESSES** for critical facilities. These addresses will not be included in the final published annex, but are needed in order to perform risk mapping and risk analysis for the hazard mitigation plan. Include the addresses in the table if convenient. If not, then provide a separate document listing all critical facilities and addresses for use in development of the hazard mitigation plan.

CURRENT TRENDS

Provide a brief description of previous growth trends in the service area and anticipated future increase or decrease in services (if applicable). This should be information that is specific to your jurisdiction and will not be provided in the overall, planning area-wide mitigation plan document. Provide a statement similar to the example below:

EXAMPLE: The Johnsonville Community Services District originally was formed to serve only the Johnsonville area. The District's service area expanded throughout the years to include the full area served today. Total customers have increased by 3 percent since 2010. Population in the service area is not projected to change significantly over the next 10 years, and the District has no plans to expand its service area.

STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Note that this section applies only to jurisdictions that are conducting updates to previously approved hazard mitigation plans. If your jurisdiction has not previously participated in an approved plan, enter an "X" in the box at the beginning of this section and do not complete the section. We will remove this section from your final annex.

Also note that this section is further back in the annex than the rest of the Phase 1 content. Some Phase 2 sections are included before it.

The hazard mitigation plan update must describe the status of all action items from each jurisdiction's previous hazard mitigation plan. Each action item must be marked as ONE of the options below by checking the appropriate box (place an X) and providing the following information:

- Completed—If an action has been completed since the prior plan was prepared, check the "Completed" box and provide a date of completion in the comment section. If an action has been initiated and is an ongoing program (e.g. annual outreach event), you may mark it as completed and <u>note that it is ongoing in the comments</u>. If an action addresses an ongoing program you would like to continue to include in your action plan, see the "Carried Over to Plan Update" bullet below.
- Removed—If action items are to be removed because they are no longer feasible, a reason must be given. Lack of funding does not mean that it is no longer feasible, unless the sole source of funding for an action is no longer available. Place a comment in the comment section explaining why the action is no longer feasible or barriers that prevented the action from being implemented (e.g., "Action no longer considered feasible due to lack of political support."). If the wording and/or intent of a previously identified action is unclear, this can be a reason for removal. A change in community priorities may also be a reason for removal and should be discussed in the comments.
- Carried Over to Plan Update—If an action is in progress, is ongoing, or has not been initiated and you would like to carry it over to the plan update, check the "Check if Yes" column under "Carried Over to Plan Update." Selecting this option indicates that the action will be included in the mitigation action plan for this update. If you are carrying over an action to the update, <u>include a comment describing any action</u> <u>that has been taken or why the action was not taken</u> (specifically, any barriers or obstacles that prevented the action from moving forward or slowed progress). Leave the last column, "Action # in Update," blank at this point. This will be filled in after completing the updated action plan in Phase 3.

Ensure that you have provided a status and a comment for each action.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, all action items from your jurisdiction's previous hazard mitigation plan that are marked as "Carried Over to Plan Update" will need to be included in the action plan.

THIS COMPLETES PHASE 1
PHASE 2 INSTRUCTIONS

CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

Note that it is unlikely that one person will be able to complete all sections of the capability assessment alone. The primary preparer will likely need to reach out to other departments within the local government for information. It may be beneficial to provide these individuals with background information about this planning process, as input from them will be needed again during Phase 3 of the annex development.

Planning and Regulatory Capability

List any federal, state, local or district ordinances, plans, or policies that apply to your jurisdiction and relate to hazard mitigation. Provide the date of last update and any comments as appropriate. The table below shows an example of items to be listed in this section.

Sample Completed Table – Planning and Regulatory Capability				
Plan, Study or Program	Date of Most Recent Update	Comment		
District Design Standards	2010			
Capital Improvement Program	Updated annually	covers 5 year timeframe		
Emergency Operations Plan	2000			
Facility Maintenance Manual	1990			
State Building Code	2016			
Division of State Architects		Review of all building and site design features is required prior to construction		

Fiscal Capability

Complete the table titled "Fiscal Capability" by indicating whether each of the listed financial resources is accessible to your jurisdiction. Enter "Yes" if the resource is fully accessible to your jurisdiction. Enter "No" if there are limitations or prerequisites that may hinder your use of this resource.

Administrative and Technical Capability

Complete the table titled "Administrative and Technical Capability" by indicating whether your jurisdiction has access to each of the listed personnel resources. Enter "Yes" or "No" in the column labeled "Available?". If yes, then enter the department and position title. If you have contract support with these capabilities, you can still answer "Yes." Indicate in the department row that this resource is provided through contract.

Education and Outreach Capability

Complete the table titled "Education and Outreach."

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, review all the above capability assessment tables and consider including actions to provide a capability that your jurisdiction does not currently have, update a capability that your jurisdiction does have, or implement an action that is recommended in an existing plan or program.

Community Classifications

Complete the table titled "Community Classifications" to indicate your jurisdiction's participation in various national programs related to natural hazard mitigation. For each program enter "Yes" or "No" in the second column to indicate whether your jurisdiction participates. If yes, then enter the classification that your jurisdiction has earned under the program in the third column and the date on which that classification was issued in the fourth column; enter "N/A" in the third and fourth columns if your jurisdiction is not participating. If you do not know your current classification, information is available at the following websites:

- FIPS Code <u>https://www.census.gov/geographies/reference-files/2018/demo/popest/2018-fips.html</u>
- DUNS #- https://www.dnb.com/duns-number.html
- Community Rating System— <u>https://www.fema.gov/floodplain-management/community-rating-system</u>
- Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule— <u>https://www.isomitigation.com/bcegs/iso-s-building-code-effectiveness-grading-schedule-bcegs.html</u>
- Public Protection Classification <u>https://www.isomitigation.com/ppc/</u>
- Storm Ready- <u>https://www.weather.gov/stormready/communities</u>
- Firewise <u>http://www.firewise.org/usa-recognition-program/map-of-active-participants.aspx</u>
- Tsunami Ready- https://www.weather.gov/tsunamiready/communities

Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change

Consider climate change impact concerns such as the following:

- Reduced snowpack
- Increased wildfires
- Sea level rise
- Inland flooding
- Threats to sensitive species
- Loss in agricultural productivity
- Public health and safety.

With those impacts in mind, complete the table titled "Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change" by indicating your jurisdiction's capacity for each listed criterion as follows:

- High—The capacity exists and is in use.
- Medium-The capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement.
- Low-The capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement.
- **Unsure**—Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

This is a subjective assessment, but providing a few words of explanation is useful. It is highly recommended that you complete this table with an internal planning team after reviewing the results of the other capability assessment tables.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, review all the adaptive capacity criteria and consider including actions to improve the rating for those rated medium or low, to make use of the capacity for those rated high, or to acquire additional information for those rated unsure.

INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. FEMA recommends integration as follows:

- Integrate hazard mitigation plan goals with community objectives (e.g. incorporate the goals for risk reduction and safety into the policies of other plans).
- Use the risk assessment to inform plans and policies (e.g. incorporate risk assessment findings into emergency operations plans).
- Implement mitigation actions through existing mechanisms (e.g. include mitigation projects in the capital improvement plan).
- Think about mitigation before and after a disaster (e.g. build recovery planning on existing mitigation plans and goals).

After reviewing the plans, programs and ordinances identified in the capability assessment tables, identify all plans and programs that have already been integrated with the hazard mitigation plan, and those that offer opportunities for future integration.

Existing Integration

In the highlighted bullet list, provide a brief description of integrated plans or ordinances and how each is integrated. Consider listing items marked as Completed in the "Status of Previous Plan Actions" table if they were indicated as being ongoing actions. Examples are as follows:

- **Capital Improvement Plan**—The capital improvement plan includes projects that can help mitigate potential hazards. The District will act to ensure consistency between the hazard mitigation plan and the current and future capital improvement plans. The hazard mitigation plan may identify new possible funding sources for capital improvement projects and may result in modifications to proposed projects based on results of the risk assessment.
- Emergency Operations Plan—The results of the risk assessment were used in the development of the emergency operations plan.

Facilities Plan—The results of the risk assessment and mapped hazard areas are used in facility
planning for the District. Potential sites are reviewed for hazard risks, and appropriate mitigation
measures are considered in building and site design.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, any plans that fall into the "Existing Integration" category should be reviewed and elements from them should be included in the action plan as appropriate.

Opportunities for Future Integration

List any plans or programs that offer the potential for future integration and describe the process by which integration will occur. Examples follow:

- **Capital Improvement Projects**—Capital improvement project proposals may take into consideration hazard mitigation potential as a means of evaluating project prioritization.
- **Post-Disaster Recovery Plan**—The District does not have a recovery plan and intends to develop one as a mitigation planning action during the next five years. The plan will build on the mitigation goals and objectives identified in the mitigation plan.

Consider other programs you may have in place in your jurisdiction that include routine consideration and management of hazard risk. Examples of such programs may include: tree pruning programs, right-of-way mowing programs, erosion control or stream maintenance programs, etc. Add any such programs to the integration discussion and provide a brief description of how these program manage (or could be adapted to manage) risk from hazards.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, an action to integrate any identified "Opportunities for Future Integration" should be considered for inclusion in the action plan.

INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

Note that this section will ultimately describe all information sources used to develop this annex, but that only the sources used for Phases 1 and 2 will be listed at this point. Additional sources will be added with the preparation of the Phase 3 annex.

This section should describe what resources you used to complete the annex and how you used them. Several items are started for you, but be sure to update and enhance any descriptions. Providing this information is a requirement to pass the state and FEMA review process.

THIS COMPLETES PHASE 2

PHASE 3 INSTRUCTIONS

RISK ASSESSMENT

Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

In the table titled "Past Natural Hazard Events," list in chronological order (most recent first) any natural hazard event that has caused damage to your jurisdiction. If it was a federally declared disaster, include the FEMA Disaster #, otherwise enter N/A in that column. Include the date of the event and the estimated dollar amount of damage it caused. You are welcome to include any events, but special attention should be made to include major storms and federally declared disasters. Refer to the table below that lists hazard events in the planning area.

	lab	le 1. Past Natural Hazard	d Events
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
			\$

We recommend including most large-scale disasters, unless you know that there were no impacts on your jurisdiction. Specifically, we recommend that you include these events if you have damage estimate information or can provide a brief description of impacts that occurred within your community. In addition to these events, refer to the NOAA NCDC storm events database included in the toolkit. We recommend conducting a search for the name of your jurisdiction in order to identify events with known impacts. Other potential sources of damage information include the following

- Preliminary damage estimates your jurisdiction filed with the county or state
- Insurance claims data
- Newspaper archives
- Emergency management documents (general plan safety element, emergency response plan, etc.)
- Resident input.

If you do not have estimates for costs of damage caused, list "Not Available" in the "Damage Assessment" column or list a brief description of the damage rather than a dollar value (e.g., Main Street closed as a result of flooding, downed trees and residential damage). Note that tracking such damage is a valid and useful mitigation action if your jurisdiction does not currently track such information.

Hazard Risk Ranking

Risk ranking identifies which hazards pose the greatest risk to the community, based on how likely it is for each hazard to occur (this is called the community's exposure) and how great an impact each hazard will have if it does occur (this is called the community's vulnerability). Every jurisdiction has differing degrees of risk exposure and vulnerability and therefore needs to rank risk for its own area. Risk rankings for cities and the county have been calculated in the "Loss Matrix" spreadsheet included in the annex preparation toolkit. These rankings are on the basis of risk ranking scores for each hazard that were calculated based on the hazard's probability of occurrence and its potential impact on people, property and the economy.

The risk ranking methodology used for cities and counties is not usable for special-purpose districts because the risk-related mapping generally does not align with the boundaries of districts. To rank risk for your District, use the following procedure:

- Find the risk ranking scores in the Loss Matrix spreadsheet (on the "Risk Ranking Summary" tab) for the county overall and for any cities whose area overlaps that of your District.
- For each hazard, generate a risk ranking score for your District by calculating the average of the scores for those other jurisdictions.
- Rank the hazards based on those average scores:
 - Assign the rank of 1 to the hazard with the highest risk ranking score, the rank of 2 to the hazard with the second highest ranking score; and so on.
 - > Assign the same rank to any two hazards with equal risk ranking scores
- If the resulting ranking differs from what you know based on substantiated data and documentation, alter the scores and ranking as needed based on this knowledge.

- Assign each hazard to the risk category of "High," Medium," or "Low" based on the risk rating score:
 - Low for scores of 0 to 15
 - Medium for scores of 16 to 30
 - High for scores greater than 30

Enter the results of this analysis in the "Hazard Risk Ranking" table in the template; enter the hazards in order of ranking, with 1 at the top of the table.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, you will need to have at least one mitigation action for each hazard ranked as "high" or "medium."

Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Review the results of the risk assessment included in the toolkit, your jurisdiction's natural events history, and any relevant public comments/input, then develop a few sentences that discuss specific hazard vulnerabilities. You do not need to develop a sentence for every hazard, but identify a few issues you would like to highlight. Also list any known hazard vulnerabilities in your jurisdiction that may not be apparent from the risk assessment and other information provided.

Spending some time thinking about the results of the risk assessment and other noted vulnerabilities will be a big help in the development of your hazard mitigation action plan. The following are examples of vulnerabilities you could identify through this exercise:

- Over the past 10 years, the jurisdiction has experienced more than \$1 million in damage to critical assets from severe storm events.
- 17 critical assets are in areas that would be permanently inundated with 12 inches of sea level rise.
- One significant District asset is not equipped with a generator and four District buildings are unreinforced masonry or soft-story construction.
- An area along the river is eroding and threatening a District-owned treatment facility.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN INPUT

When preparing the hazard mitigation action plan in Phase 3, consider including actions to address the jurisdiction-specific vulnerabilities listed in this section.

HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix

The hazard mitigation action plan is the heart of your jurisdictional annex. This is where you will identify the actions your jurisdiction would like to pursue with this plan.

Select Recommended Actions

All of the work that you have done thus far should provide you with ideas for actions. Throughout these instructions, green boxes labeled "Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Input" have indicated information that needs to be considered in the selection of mitigation actions. The following sections describe how to consider these and other information sources to develop a list of potential actions.

Be sure to consider the following factors in your selection of actions:

- Select actions that are consistent with the overall purpose, goals, and objectives of the hazard mitigation plan.
- Identify actions where benefits exceed costs.
- Include any action that your jurisdiction has committed to pursuing, regardless of grant eligibility.
- Know what is and is not grant-eligible under various federal grant programs (see the fact sheet on FEMA hazard mitigation grant programs in the toolkit and the table on the next page).

Material Previously Developed for This Annex

Capability Assessment Section—Planning and Regulatory Capability Table, Fiscal Capability Table, Administrative and Technical Capability Table, and Education and Outreach Table

Review these tables and consider the following:

- For any capability that you do not currently have, consider whether your jurisdiction should have this capability. If so, consider including an action to develop/acquire the capability.
- For any capability that you do currently have, consider whether this capability can be leveraged to increase or improve hazard mitigation in the jurisdiction.
- If any items listed in the Planning and Regulatory Capabilities table have not been updated in more than 10 years, consider an action to review and update the capability and, as appropriate, incorporate hazard mitigation principles or information obtained in the risk assessment.
- Consider including actions that are identified in other plans and programs (capital improvement plans, strategic plans, etc.) as actions in this plan.

Capability Assessment Section— Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change Table

Consider your responses to this section:

- For criteria that you listed as medium or low, think of ways you could improve this rating (see adaptive capacity portion of the mitigation best practices catalog).
- For criteria you listed as high, think about how you can leverage this capacity to improve or enhance mitigation or continue to improve this capacity.
- For criteria that you were unable to provide responses for, consider ways you could improve your understanding of this capacity (see mitigation best practices and adaptive capacity catalog).

Table 2. Federal Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Eligibility by Action Type				
Eligible Activities	Hazard Mitigation Grant Program	BRIC	Flood Mitigation Assistance	
Mitigation Projects				
Property Acquisition and Structure Demolition	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Property Acquisition and Structure Relocation	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Structure Elevation	\checkmark		\checkmark	
Mitigation Reconstruction	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Dry Floodproofing of Non-residential Structures	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Generators	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Localized Flood Risk Reduction Projects	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Non-Localized Flood Risk Reduction Projects	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Structural Retrofitting of Existing Buildings	\checkmark		\checkmark	
Non-structural Retrofitting of Existing Buildings and Facilities	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Safe Room Construction	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Infrastructure Retrofit	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Soil Stabilization	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Wildfire Mitigation	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Post-Disaster Code Enforcement	\checkmark			
Advance Assistance	\checkmark			
5 Percent Initiative Projects*	\checkmark			
Aquifer and Storage Recovery**	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Flood Diversion and Storage**	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Floodplain and Stream Restoration**	\checkmark		\checkmark	
Green Infrastructure**	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Miscellaneous/Other**	\checkmark		\checkmark	
Hazard Mitigation Planning	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Technical Assistance			\checkmark	
Management Costs			\checkmark	

* FEMA allows increasing the 5% initiative amount under the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program up to 10% for a presidential major disaster declaration. The additional 5% initiative funding can be used for activities that promote disaster-resistant codes for all hazards. As a condition of the award, either a disaster-resistant building code must be adopted or an improved Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule is required.

** Indicates that any proposed action will be evaluated on its own merit against program requirements. Eligible projects will be approved provided funding is available.

Integration Review Section

Review the items you identified in this section and consider an action that specifically says what the plan, code, ordinance etc. is and how it will be integrated.

Risk Ranking Section

You must identify at least one mitigation action that is clearly defined and actionable (i.e. not a preparedness or response action) for every hazard that is categorized in the risk ranking as "high" or "medium" risk.

Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities Section

Review the vulnerability issues that you identified in this section and consider actions to address them (see mitigation best practices catalog).

Status of Previous Plan Actions Section

If your jurisdiction participated in a previous hazard mitigation plan, be sure to include any actions that were identified as "carry over" actions.

Other Sources

Mitigation Best Practices Catalog

A catalog that includes best practices identified by FEMA and other agencies, as well as recommendations from the steering committee and other stakeholders, is included in your toolkit. Review the catalog and identify actions your jurisdiction should consider for its action plan.

Public Input

Review input received during the process, specifically the public survey results included in your toolkit.

Common Actions for All Partners

The following three actions have been prepopulated in your annex template; these three actions should be included in every annex and should not be removed:

- Where appropriate, support retro-fitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in high hazard areas, prioritizing those structures that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high or medium ranked hazard.
- Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.
- Purchase generators for critical facilities and infrastructure that lack adequate back-up power.

In addition, the core planning team recommends that every planning partner strongly consider the following actions:

- Identify and pursue strategies to increase adaptive capacity to climate change.
- Develop and implement a program to capture perishable data after significant events (e.g. high water marks, preliminary damage estimates, damage photos) to support future mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the hazard mitigation plan.
- Support the County-wide initiatives identified in Volume I of the hazard mitigation plan.
- Develop a post-disaster recovery plan and a debris management plan.
- Develop and/or update plans that support or enhance continuity of operations following disasters.

The specifics of all these common actions should be adjusted as needed for the particulars of each community.

Complete the Table

Complete the table titled "Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix" for all the actions you have identified and would like to include in the plan:

- Enter the action number (see box at right) and description. If the action is carried over from your previous hazard mitigation plan, return to the "Status of Previous Plan Actions" table you completed in Phase 1 and enter the new action number in the column labeled "Action # in Update."
- Indicate whether the action mitigates hazards for new and/or existing assets.
- Identify the specific hazards the action will mitigate (note: you must list each hazard by name; simply indicating "all hazards" is not deemed acceptable).
- Identify by number the mitigation plan objectives that the action addresses (see toolkit).

Action Numbering

Actions are to be numbered using the three-letter code for your jurisdiction shown below, followed by a hyphen and the action's sequential number:

- Cal State/Channel Islands—CSU-1, CSU-2...
- Calleguas Municipal Water—CAL-1, CAL-2...
- Casitas Municipal Water—CAS-1, CAS-2...
- Channel Is. Beach CSD—CIB-1, CIB-2..
- Conejo Recreation & Park—CRP-1, CRP-2...
- Ojai Valley Sanitary—OVS-1, OVS-2...
- Pleasant Valley Recreation & Park—PLV-1, PLV-2...
- Saticoy Sanitary—SAT-1, SAT-2...
- Triunfo Water & Sanitation—TRI-1, TRI-2...
- United Water Conservation—UWC-1, UWC-2...
- Ventura County Fire Protection—VFP-1, VFP-2..
- Ventura County Office of Education—VOE-1, VOE-2...
- Ventura County Watershed Protection—VWP-1, VWP-2...
- Ventura County Emergency Services—VES-1, VES-2...
- Ventura Regional Sanitation—VRS-1, VRS-2
- Indicate who will be the lead in administering the action. This will most likely be a department within your jurisdiction (e.g. planning or public works). If you wish to indicate more than one department as responsible for the action, clearly identify one as the lead agency and list the others in the "supporting agency" column.
- Enter an estimated cost in dollars if known; otherwise, enter "High," "Medium," or "Low," as determined for the prioritization process described in the following section.
- Identify funding sources for the action. If it is a grant, include the grant-providing agency as well as funding sources for any required cost share. Refer to your fiscal capability assessment to identify possible sources of funding and refer to the table on page 14 of these instructions for project eligibility for FEMA's hazard mitigation assistance grant programs.
- Indicate the time line as "short-term" (1 to 5 years) or "long-term" (5 years or greater) or "ongoing" (a continual program)

Mitigation Action Priority

Complete the information in the table titled "Mitigation Action Priority" as follows:

- Action #–Indicate the action number from the Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix table.
- # of Objectives Met-Enter the number of objectives the action will meet.
- Benefits-Enter "High," "Medium" or "Low" as follows:
 - > High—Action will provide an immediate reduction of risk exposure for life and property.
 - Medium—Action will have a long-term impact on the reduction of risk exposure for life and property, or action will provide an immediate reduction in the risk exposure for property.
 - Low—Long-term benefits of the action are difficult to quantify in the short term.

- Cost-Enter "High," "Medium" or "Low" as follows:
 - High—Existing funding will not cover the cost of the action; implementation would require new revenue through an alternative source (for example, bonds, grants, and fee increases).
 - Medium—The action could be implemented with existing funding but would require a reapportionment of the budget or a budget amendment, or the cost of the action would have to be spread over multiple years.
 - Low—The action could be funded under the existing budget. The action is part of or can be part of an ongoing existing program.
- **Do Benefits Exceed the Cost?**—Enter "Yes" or "No." This is a qualitative assessment. Enter "Yes" if the benefit rating (high, medium or low) is the same as or higher than the cost rating (high benefit/high cost; high benefit/medium cost; medium benefit/low cost; etc.). Enter "No" if the benefit rating is lower than the cost rating (medium benefit/high cost, low benefit/medium cost; etc.)
- Is the Action Grant-Eligible?—Enter "Yes" or "No." Refer to the fact sheet on FEMA hazard mitigation grant programs in the annex preparation toolkit and the table on page 14 of these instructions.
- Can Action Be Funded Under Existing Program Budgets?—Enter "Yes" or "No." In other words, is this action currently budgeted for, or would it require a new budget authorization or funding from another source such as grants?
- Implementation Priority- Enter "High," "Medium" or "Low" as follows:
 - High Priority—An action that meets multiple objectives, has benefits that exceed costs, and has a secured source of funding. Action can be completed in the short term (1 to 5 years).
 - Medium Priority—An action that meets multiple objectives, has benefits that exceed costs, and is eligible for funding though no funding has yet been secured for it. Action can be completed in the short term (1 to 5 years), once funding is secured. Medium-priority actions become high-priority actions once funding is secured.
 - Low Priority—An action that will mitigate the risk of a hazard, has benefits that do not exceed the costs or are difficult to quantify, has no secured source of funding, and is not eligible for any known grant funding. Action can be completed in the long term (1 to 10 years). Low-priority actions may be eligible for grant funding from programs that have not yet been identified.
- Grant Pursuit Priority— Enter "High," "Medium" or "Low" as follows:
 - High Priority—An action that meets identified grant eligibility requirements, has high benefits, and is listed as high or medium implementation priority; local funding options are unavailable or available local funds could be used instead for actions that are not eligible for grant funding.
 - Medium Priority—An action that meets identified grant eligibility requirements, has medium or low benefits, and is listed as medium or low implementation priority; local funding options are unavailable.
 - > Low Priority—An action that has not been identified as meeting any grant eligibility requirements.

Actions identified as high-grant-pursuit priority actions should be closely reviewed for consideration when grant funding opportunities arise.

Note: If a jurisdiction wishes to identify an action as high priority that is outside of the prioritization scheme for high priorities, a note indicating so should be inserted and a rationale should be provided.

Analysis of Mitigation Actions

In the table titled "Analysis of Mitigation Actions," for each combination of hazard type and mitigation type, enter the numbers of all recommended actions that address that hazard type and can be categorized as that mitigation type. The mitigation types are as follows:

- **Prevention**—Government, administrative or regulatory actions that influence the way land and buildings are developed to reduce hazard losses. Includes planning and zoning, floodplain laws, capital improvement programs, open space preservation, and stormwater management regulations.
- **Property Protection**—Modification of buildings or structures to protect them from a hazard or removal of structures from a hazard area. Includes acquisition, elevation, relocation, structural retrofit, storm shutters, and shatter-resistant glass.
- **Public Education & Awareness**—Actions to inform residents and elected officials about hazards and ways to mitigate them. Includes outreach projects, real estate disclosure, hazard information centers, and school-age and adult education.
- **Natural Resource Protection**—Actions that minimize hazard loss and preserve or restore the functions of natural systems. Includes sediment and erosion control, stream corridor restoration, watershed management, forest and vegetation management, wetland restoration and preservation, and green infrastructure.
- **Emergency Services**—Actions that protect people and property during and immediately after a hazard event. Includes warning systems, emergency response services, and the protection of essential facilities.
- **Structural Projects**—Actions that involve the construction of structures to reduce the impact of a hazard. Includes dams, setback levees, floodwalls, retaining walls, and safe rooms.
- Climate Resilience—Actions that incorporate methods to mitigate and/or adapt to the impacts of climate change. Includes aquifer storage and recovery activities, incorporating future conditions projections in project design or planning, or actions that specifically address jurisdiction-specific climate change risks, such as sea-level rise or urban heat island effect.
- **Community Capacity Building**—Actions that increase or enhance local capabilities to adjust to potential damage, to take advantage of opportunities, or to respond to consequences. Includes staff training, memorandums of understanding, development of plans and studies, and monitoring programs.

This exercise demonstrates that the jurisdiction has selected a comprehensive range of actions. This table must show at least one action to address each "high" and "medium" ranked hazard. Planning partners should aim to identify at least one action for each mitigation type, but this is not required.

An example of a completed "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table is provided below. Note that an action can be more than one mitigation type.

Sample Completed Table – Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
	Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type							
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building
High-Risk Hazard	s							
Dam Failure	EX-2, 3, 4, 5, 6	EX-1, 6	EX-4, 6		EX-8, 11			EX-3, 4, 8, 9, 10
Drought	EX-2	EX-1	EX-4					EX-3, 4, 8, 9, 10
Medium-Risk Hazards								
Earthquake	EX-2, 3, 4, 5, 7	EX-1, 7	EX-4		EX-8, 11			EX-3, 4, 8, 9
Flooding	EX-2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7	EX-1, 6, 7	EX-4, 6	EX-9	EX-8, 11	EX-6		EX-3, 4, 8, 9, 10
Landslide	EX-2, 3, 4, 5, 7	EX-1, 7	EX-4		EX-8, 11			EX-3, 4, 8, 9, 10
Low-Risk Hazards								
Severe Weather	EX-2, 3, 4, 5, 7	EX-1, 7, 9	EX-4		EX-8, 9, 11		EX-8, 7	EX-3, 4, 8, 9, 10
Wildfire	EX-2, 3, 4, 5, 7	EX-1, 7, 9	EX-4, 9	EX-9	EX-8, 11			EX-3, 4, 8, 9, 10

PUBLIC OUTREACH

FEMA requirements for public outreach will be met by the County's engagement efforts and are included in the main part of the plan. These may include public meetings, a StoryMap, surveys, etc. If individual jurisdictions want to have a more robust outreach for their local community, the public outreach table in each annex may be used to memorialize those local efforts.

This table should record local public outreach efforts made by your jurisdiction to inform the community of this hazard mitigation plan update process. Examples may include local surveys on hazard awareness/preparedness, social media blasts, press releases, and outreach to local groups (CERT, senior citizen organizations, etc.) **This section is optional.**

INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

This section should describe what resources you used to complete the annex and how you used them. The sources used for Phases 1 and 2 should have been entered previously. List any additional sources used for the preparation of the Phase 3 annex. Review to ensure that all materials used in all three phases are identified. Providing this information is a requirement to pass the state and FEMA review process.

FUTURE NEEDS TO BETTER UNDERSTAND RISK/VULNERABILITY

In this section, identify any future studies, analyses, reports, or surveys your jurisdiction needs to better understand its vulnerability to identified or currently unidentified risks. These could be needs based on federal or state agency mandates. **This section is optional.**

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Use this section to add any additional information pertinent to hazard mitigation and your jurisdiction not covered in this template. **This section is optional.**

THIS COMPLETES PHASE 3

1. DISTRICT NAME

1.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact	Alternate Point of Contact
Name, Title	Name, Title
Street Address	Street Address
City, State ZIP	City, State ZIP
Telephone: xxx-xxx-xxxx	Telephone: xxx-xxx-xxxx
e-mail Address: xxx@xxx.xxx	e-mail Address: xxx@xxx.xxx

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 1-1.

Table 1-1. Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team Members				
Name	Title			

1.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

1.2.1 Overview

Insert Narrative Profile Information, per Instructions.

The <u>[name of adopting body]</u> assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; <u>[name of oversight</u> agency] will oversee its implementation.

All fire districts should include the following sentence (non-fire special purpose districts should delete the sentence):

The District participates/does not participate in the Public Protection Class Rating System and currently has a rating of $\frac{1}{4}$.

1.2.2 Service Area

The District service area covers <u>[area in square miles]</u>, serving a population of population_

1.2.3 Assets

Table 1-2 summarizes the assets of the District and their value.

Table 1-2. Special Purpose District Assets				
Asset	Value			
Property				
number acres of land	\$_ <mark>value</mark> _			
Equipment				
description	\$_value_			
description	\$_value_			
description	\$_value_			
description	\$_ <mark>value</mark> _			
description	\$_ <mark>value</mark> _			
Total:	\$_ <mark>value</mark> _			
Critical Facilities				
description - Include Address	\$_ <mark>value</mark> _			
description - Include Address	\$_ <mark>value</mark> _			
description - Include Address	\$_ <mark>value</mark> _			
description - Include Address	\$_ <mark>value</mark> _			
Total:	\$ <mark>_value</mark> _			

1.3 CURRENT TRENDS

Insert summary description of service trends.

1.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 1-3.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 1-4.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 1-5.

- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 1-6.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 1-7.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 1-8.

Table 1-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability				
Plan, Study or Program	Date of Most Recent Update	Comment		
Name of code, ordinance, policy, program or plan				
Name of code, ordinance, policy, program or plan				
Name of code, ordinance, policy, program or plan				
Name of code, ordinance, policy, program or plan				
Name of code, ordinance, policy, program or plan				

Table 1-4. Fiscal Capability				
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?			
Community Development Block Grants	Yes/No			
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes/No			
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes/No			
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes/No			
If yes, specify: Enter Response				
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes/No			
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes/No			
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	Yes/No			
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	Yes/No			
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes/No			
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes/No			
Other	Yes/No			
If yes, specify: Enter Response				

Table 1-5. Administrative and Technical Capability	
Staff/Personnel Resource	Available?
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Staff with training in benefit/cost analysis	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Surveyors	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS applications	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Scientist familiar with natural hazards in local area	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Emergency manager	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	
Grant writers	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	1
Other	Yes/No
If Yes, Department /Position: Enter Response	

Table 1-6. Education and Outreach Capability		
Criterion	Response	
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes/No	
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes/No	
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? If yes, briefly describe: Enter Response	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe: Enter Response	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? If yes, briefly describe: Enter Response	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	
Do you have any other programs in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? <i>If yes, briefly describe:</i> Enter Response	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe: Enter Response	<mark>Yes/No</mark>	

Table 1-7. Community Classifications					
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified		
FIPS Code	Yes/No		Date		
DUNS#	Yes/No		Date		
Community Rating System	Yes/No		Date		
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	Yes/No		Date		
Public Protection	Yes/No		Date		
Storm Ready	Yes/No		Date		
Firewise	Yes/No		Date		
Tsunami Ready	Yes/No		Date		

Table 1-8. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change					
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a				
Technical Capacity					
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	High/Medium/Low				
Comment: Enter Comment					
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	High/Medium/Low				
Comment: Enter Comment					
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	High/Medium/Low				
Comment: Enter Comment	1				
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	High/Medium/Low				
Comment: Enter Comment					
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	High/Medium/Low				
Comment: Enter Comment					
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	High/Medium/Low				
Comment: Enter Comment					
Implementation Capacity					
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	High/Medium/Low				
Comment: Enter Comment	1				
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	High/Medium/Low				
Comment: Enter Comment					
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	High/Medium/Low				
Comment: Enter Comment	1				
Champions for climate action in local government departments	High/Medium/Low				
Comment: Enter Comment					
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	High/Medium/Low				
Comment: Enter Comment					
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	High/Medium/Low				
Comment: Enter Comment					
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	High/Medium/Low				
Comment: Enter Comment					

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a			
Public Capacity	rating			
Local residents knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	High/Medium/Low			
Comment: Enter Comment				
Local residents support of adaptation efforts	High/Medium/Low			
Comment: Enter Comment				
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	High/Medium/Low			
Comment: Enter Comment				
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	High/Medium/Low			
Comment: Enter Comment				
a High Capacity evicts and is in use: Modium Capacity may evict, but is not used or could use some impro	avomont			

 High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

1.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

1.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

•	Plan or Program Name—Description
•	Plan or Program Name—Description

1.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment presented in this annex indicates opportunities to integrate this mitigation plan with other jurisdictional planning/regulatory capabilities. Capabilities were identified as integration opportunities if they can support or enhance the actions identified in this plan or be supported or enhanced by components of this plan. The capability assessment identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

•	Plan or Program Name—Description
•	Plan or Program Name—Description

Taking action to integrate each of these programs with the hazard mitigation plan was considered as a mitigation action to include in the action plan presented in this annex.

1.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

1.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 1-9 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 1-9. Past Natural Hazard Events							
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment				
Insert event type		Date	\$				
Insert event type		Date	\$ <u></u>				
Insert event type		Date	\$				
Insert event type		Date	\$ <u></u>				
Insert event type		Date	\$				
Insert event type		Date	\$ <u></u>				
Insert event type		Date	\$				
Insert event type		Date	\$ <u></u>				
Insert event type		Date	\$				
Insert event type		Date	\$ <u></u>				
Insert event type		Date	\$ <u></u>				
Insert event type		Date	\$				
Insert event type		Date	\$				
Insert event type		Date	\$ <u></u>				
Insert event type		Date	\$				

1.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 1-10 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property and district operations. Mitigation actions target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 1-10. Hazard Risk Ranking								
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category					
1			High/Medium/Low					
2			High/Medium/Low					
3			High/Medium/Low					
4			High/Medium/Low					
5			High/Medium/Low					
6			High/Medium/Low					
7			High/Medium/Low					
8			High/Medium/Low					
9			High/Medium/Low					

1.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

•	Insert as appropriate.
•	Insert as appropriate.
•	Insert as appropriate.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan presented in this annex.

1.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

If your jurisdiction has no previous hazard mitigation plan, please enter an "X" in the box at right and do not complete this section.

Table 1-11 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 1-11. Status of Previous Plan Actions							
		Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update				
Action Item from Previous Plan	Completed	No Longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update			
Insert Action Number & Text							
Comment: Enter Comment							
Insert Action Number & Text							
Comment: Enter Comment							
Insert Action Number & Text							
Comment: Enter Comment							
Insert Action Number & Text							
Comment: Enter Comment							

		Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update	
		No Longer	Check	Action #
Action Item from Previous Plan	Completed	Feasible	if Yes	in Update
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				
Insert Action Number & Text				
Comment: Enter Comment				

1.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 1-12 lists the actions that make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 1-13 identifies the priority for each action. Table 1-14 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 1-12. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix							
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action xxx-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.							
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response						
Existing	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	High	Grant Funding	Short-term	
Action xxx-2—Act	tively participate in the	e plan maintenance	e protocols outlined	in Volume 1 of this	hazard mitigation	plan.	
Hazards Mitigated	All hazards						
New & Existing	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term	
Action xxx-3— Purchase generators for critical facilities and infrastructure that lack adequate backup power, including							
Hazards Mitigated: Dam failure, earthquake, flooding, landslide, severe weather, tsunami, wildfire							
Existing	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response				

Benefits New or	Objectives Met			Estimated Cast	Sources of	Timolinoa
	Objectives met	Leau Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Funding	Timelinea
Action xxx-4—Des	cription					
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
Action xxx-5—Des	<mark>cription</mark>					
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
Action xxx-6—Des	<mark>cription</mark>					
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
Action xxx-7—Des	cription					
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
Action xxx-8—Des	cription					
Hazards Mitigated:	Enter Response					
Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response	Enter Response
a. Short-term = Co	mpletion within 5 ye	ars; Long-term = C	Completion within 10	years; Ongoing=	Continuing new or	existing

program with no completion date Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume. 1

	Table 1-13. Mitigation Action Priority									
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Grant Pursuit Priority ^a		
1										
2										
3										
4										
5										
6										
7										
8										
9										
a. See	the introduction	on to this v	olume for	explanation of pr	iorities.					

		Table	• 1-14. Analys	sis of Mitigat	tion Actions			
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a						
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilient	Community Capacity Building
High-Risk Hazards								
Medium-Risk Hazard	ds							
Low-Risk Hazards								
a. See the introduct	ion to this vol	ume for expla	ination of mitiga	ation types.				

1.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 1-15 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 1-15. Local Public Outreach						
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved				

1.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

•	<insert and="" description="" document="" how="" it="" name="" of="" used="" was=""></insert>
•	<insert and="" description="" document="" how="" it="" name="" of="" used="" was=""></insert>
•	<insert and="" description="" document="" how="" it="" name="" of="" used="" was=""></insert>

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

•

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

<INSERT DOCUMENT NAME AND DESCRIPTION OF HOW IT WAS USED>

1.11 FUTURE NEEDS TO BETTER UNDERSTAND RISK/VULNERABILITY

Insert text, if any; otherwise, delete section

1.12 ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Insert text, if any; otherwise, delete section